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ALTHOUGH the Sllbstllnre of the incipient procee(lings which look 
place, i, rlitru!'ell o\"Cr the following pages; it may, perhap~, be advan­

tagcou~ (particularly to the European !'ellder,) to offer, by way of in­

tl'Oduction, a condensed outline of them. 

The manner in which Charles De Reinhart! was delivered over to 

the ct"tody of the con~tiHjted authorities of Lower Canwlu, (after a 

knowledge of the murder bad been obtained) ag"ceably to the Act of 
.~Sd GEO. HI. (Jtp. t.38, is fully exhibited in the testimouy of M". 
Collman; it is, tbe"eforC', only requisite, in endeavouring to attain 

completely the object of this preface-namely, that.of the reader's 

having a. ktlOlvledge of the entire r,rog"css of tbe pro<eclltion-that this 

sketch should present a succinct narrath'e of oecurrences in that prQvince. 

In March, 1317, an iadiytnient was prefprred in the (ourt of King's 

BOlCh, for the diBtrict of .:lnilireal, agaimt Chadcs De Reinhard, Ate"i­
bald lVl'Lellan, CllthUeri Gralll, and Joseph Cr1dolle, wa. returned by 

the Grand Jury, d true bill. At this time it will be recollected, that 

neitber oC the accused, were within the ordinary juri"liction of the 

Court; but the wbole arrived in the course of the ye~r, from the Indian 

Country, and were severally committed toprison in JJlolllreal. 

A Commission of Oyer -and Terminer having been issued, by Sir 

John Coape 8herbrooke, was opened at llIontreal, on the 2Wb February, 

1813; and an indictment, for the same offence, was preferre.1 and found 

against Frall{'ois Mailtl'ille, and Jean Raptisle J)umara~s. two Half­

breeds; and against lYeganub'ines, an Indian, known throughout these 

trials, as Jose, fils de fa Perdrix Blanche. Of ,these persons, 11Iainville 

made his efcapp, at Pointe au Tonntre, in Lake SlIperior, from those 

who were conveying him to LOll'er Canada, and has not been ,ince 

beard of; Jose had been brought down by the Commissioner, at the 

expense of gO\'el'nment, unIteI' an idE)a of his becoming a witness, (see 

page .328, el seq.) but, upon the officers of the Cl'own judging it proper to 

include him among the accu~cd, notice was gil·en, that he could not be 

rec""'ed as a King's evidence, alll) what then became of him is not vCI'y 

"'pparent; whilst of Desmatai$ the accounts are still more deficient, all 

that has transpired relati"e to him, being container1 in the examination 

-Of Mr. Coltman, (page 147.) TIle Court of Oyer and Terminer adjourned 

\vithont the pel'~ons in cu~torly being put npon their trials, and in the 

enSiling March term of the Court of King's Bench, the Crown otficers 

l1eclarrd, that the pr~.iudice, on the subject of the differences between 

the Hndson's Bay and North-West Companies, were so 1trong, that they 

c,oDsidered it would be alike an act of injustice to the Crown, anll to 

the individuals accuse,!, to allow theil' tri~ls to take pl~ce in Monlrerrl, 
where they considered it impossible to select impartial Jurie6. 



'fhe Prisoners being removed to Quebec, indictment!' were preferreu 

agaimt them in the COllrt of King's Hench, for tbat di~trict, the returns 
upon which, by the GI'and Jury were, a true bill against De Reinhard, 
and Af'Lelian, and no bill against the others. In consequence of this 

finding, the two were jointly put upon their tdals on the 30th March, 

and the proceedings continued during that, and the following day,-To­
wards the clORe of the 31st, (as had been anticipated thl) day befol'e by 
the COlll'I,) it became evident that, ;0 far f!'OID the trial being completed 
by twelve o'clock at night, the period when the functions of the COllrt 
must of necessity terminate, .(the Provincial Act of 34th VEO, Ill. cap, 6, 

commonly called the" Judicature Act," limiting the sessions to the last 
ten days of the month of "Warch,) not even the evidence on the part of 
the Crown would be gone throu;;h, Thus situated ftlr, Attorney.Gene­

ral proposed, with the consent of the Pdsoners' counsel, that a Juror 
5hould be withdrawn, which \\'a, done, and thus il1 the language of the 
Chief Jus/ice, the case" reverted exactly to the same situation in which 
"it 1V0uid have been if the trial had never commenced." 

In ad,lition to the foregoillg compendium, a still mOl'e particular 
notice of some circul1lstances which took place in Marc", but did not 
reCll1' upon tile trials in May and June, is p.erhaps desirable, and even 
llecessary to constitute this the complete report of" the most important 
~' legal investigation ever witnessed in Canada," which its prospectuf 
promised that it should present. 

Upon the arrai;;nment of the Prisoners, they pleaded" not guilty;U 

and it \\~as immediately moved by AIr. Van/elson, that all the witnesses 
~hould be ordered to withdraw, which being objected to, by the Attor­

ney·General, as a proposition to which the Prisoners were not entitled, 
frIr, Stllart replied, that they were entitled to it, and, it being their 
'Tight, he ,,,ust avail himself of it, as it was no time for cllUrtesy, Mr. 

Altonlfll·Ce'lcwl denied its being a maHer of right, or, that the grant­
ing or refusing the application, conld at fill affect the case, and stating 
there were in Court, magistrates, and other gentlemen, whose official 

sitnations woul,l rel'ldel' them witnesses in this caFe, ask8d, " Can it be 
" necessal'Y for the fustice of the case, that they should loe ordered to 
.. w~thdraw? I can see no reason fOl' it,,, Revel,ting to the question of 
"ighl, he wid, "It is a right imppara'ble from the Crown, and when 
" applie,l fol' OR hehalf of pl'!S'mel", umally a"c(!tt'!l to, as it should be 
" in tlle pre,ent iustance if the justice of the case would he one tittle 

" promoted by it, The witnesses in Court are principally Lord Selkirk, 

"and other ,:;!'ntlemen, to \\ hom it could not be imputed that the jus. 

" tice of the ~ase would be influenced by theil' I'emaining in COUI't." 
lilT, Stuart replied, " that being most interested upon that point, they 

.. 111u,'t be permitted to judge; and thpy considered it essential to the de­
n fence, tha~ no witne,s on the part of the Crown, should be present ill 
" Court dUl'lllg the examination of the evidence." 



,The Attorney-General still reFisted the motion upon the same grounds, 
and the Chief Justice enquired, whether tho,e gentlemen, and Lord Sel­

kirk; were to prove the facts connecter! with the murder, or the locality 
of the place? The AI/arney-General intimated, that he ·should use Earl 

Selkirk, as a magistrate, before whom depositions had been taken, 3nlt 
perhapB, to prove other circumstances of the ~ase; but questioned, whe­
ther he ~as pound to state fOI' What" purpose, he might produce Lord 

Selki,.k, .or any other witness. 11fr. Stuart in,isting that where the ob­
jection was made, the uniform course in criminal practice was to excluue 
witnesses; the Chief Justice observed, that he conld not say that it 
was the uniform p.ractipe to put magistrales out of a COllrt of justice; to 
which ftIr. Stuart repeated, his own conviction that it was, find expres­
,Sed his surprize at its being objected to, in tbe present imtance, asking, 
.. what benefit can it be to the Crown, that its witnesses remain in 
.. Court ?"-The Chief Justice sl1ggesting-" i.hat is a point upon whic.h 
.. they must judge;" Mr, Stuart said, the evidence to be proved by 
these gentlemen, eonsisted of doCltmenls of tbe. most important natnre­
that the innocence, or supposed impartiality of the persons, before whom 
they were taken, or by whom they were obtained, migbt be contradict­
ed; or, it might be made to appear, that they were entitled to no cre­
dit, being obtained under hope of reward, from promises; or poder fear, 
from threats; adding, that jf ever. there was a case in ,,-hieh it was re­
quisite tbat all witnesses should withdl'aw, this was it; .. A case (sairl 
.. llIr. Stuart,) with ,,.hich the feelings of anothel' distdct are so COll­

.. nected. that tbe public prosecutor has dcclai'ed, he caonot try it with 

., safety. Documents the most important have been taken before Lord 

,. Selkirk, who cannot be separated from the case, and we ol1ght not to 
~, be placed in a situation to incl'ease·tbe difficulty of proving ~ny part 
.. of our case." The Chief Justice would be sorry that the Pri,oners 
.should be Ileprived of any right, nOl·, if their in(erests were ever so remote­
ly affected by it, wou'ld the Court hesitate about granting the applica­
tion; but he really did not see, that evil cOl1lJ reblllt from withholding 
it. Mr. Stuaj·t then asking it .. as a matter of righi, on behalf of the 
Prisoners;" the Chief Justice said, .. I cannot do so, j;Tr. Sluarl."-:It 

was suggested, by Mr. Justice Perrault, that Lorrl Selkirk might be the 
!irst witness examined, and he supposed there coulil be no objection to 
his then remaining in Court; to which the Chiif Jus/ice, was expressing 
bis approbation, when Lord Selkirk, accompanietl by a number of gen­
tlemen, left the Court. His Honour added, " the gentll'men have 
~, mOHt judiciously, retired of theil' own· aecol'd, and there the matter 
'.I ends." 

It being intimated that ftI ... Gale,· (one of hiS Lorilship's prim!e coun­

~el,) had '\lot r~tired; he ruldl'essec.l the Court, obFel'Ving, .i I have not, 
~' nor do I intend to retire;. I came here to witness the pl'Oceedings, and 
.~ am not under suopcrna as a witness; thollg;h fmln a communication 
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f' the Atlorney-General has made to me, it. is . probable I ma.y lJe eAd.­
" mined to prove the jurisdicti"on. ,I have no de,il'c to he examined, u. 
" I came here olily to witness the pJ'oceedings, and CflO depart or sta.y. 
" just as I think expedieuL"-The "!i!()rliey-Gene-ral begged to put hIr ~ 
Gille under recognizance, not to leave the Court, or to he in attendance 
\\hen called; to which, .1:,.. Gaie remarked, that as lIn A~rocrue of'thi~ 
provinee, he hall certain privileges, and he claimed the right of I"emuiu. 
ing in Court during the trial; w bich he thought could not be refused, 
or denied him; "I am not (said ,Mr. Gale;) a witness, and theref~re, 
" shall not leave this Court unless I (hink 'propel'; and if I do, I con, 
" ccive I have a right. I carne here to witness this trial, and I intend 
" to do so."...".The Chili Jus"ce intimated, that the .A(/umcy-G~neral 
might put .DIr. Gale under J'€Cogniz81lce if be thought it neeessary­
obserYing that, the curio,ity of an, Adllocale., (any 1J)0J'e than aclJY othe.u 
person,) was not to impede the jJyblic admini,tr.ation of justil!e; thoug4 
if lIIr. Gal~ was not boing away, it woul~ not perhaps be·required, nor, 
as it was merely to ju·risdiclion that he was to be examined, wonld hi.;; 
leavin.g the COUI't be imiRted upon. l'YIr. Gale informed the Attorney­

GCIleral, tbat he was not going away-who 'stated he was satisfie,d-but 
added: " in examining ;JI,.. Gale, I do not cOrljille myself to iuri~diction. 
" for I may use him to prove the statc of the country generally." 

The Attorney-General then orenell the pase .to the Jury, and was fol­
lowed by the Solicitor-General; it being claimed as a privilege, to which 
the Crown was at all times entitled, aud its exercise, juotified in the pre­
sent case by its magnitude, for both to address the Jury. 

The geograpl,ioal position of the Dailes, and the boundaries of Up­
per Canada, 'Tere tben proved by thc Honourable 11'. E. Collman, Colo­

nel Boucilct:c, the surveyor-genera] of the pl'Ovince, anll Samuel Gale, 

jUllicr. Esquire; Hubert Failh ",as the next witness,. and llis examina­
tion lasted the greater ral·t of the day. At its close, Jean Baptise La 
{,oirlle being calleu, the ('hiS,. Justice ob~erved, that if any other witl1.ess 
\n.s examined, it must be one \,hose testimony would be short, (which 
be Ellpposed woul,\ not hp the case with La Pointe's,) as neither the 
Bench nOlO the Jury, c,,,,hl "ustain at that late hoUl' the fatigue of a long 
examination.-Upon scnding for another witness, it was foupd that hear­
ing La Pointe called; an,! knowing that his evidence waul!! occupy a 
very considerable time, the whole had gone away, (having been in at­
teudance since morning,) to get some refr()Shment. Th!s being 8Lated 
to the Court -.-

Chili Justice Sewell . ....:.We cannot take this wit(less, for if 'we beginj 

w~ cannot avoid jinishing his' evidence. We will also mention'that, it 
Will be desirable for the gentlemen eugaged in this cause, to be prepar­
ed to shew liS, in the event of its proving incapable of being 1j,nished by 
twelve o'c!' k t I. • 

, '. oc a-morrow llIght, what course IS then to be taken. We 
llIentlon It to all .1 -

concerneu, the gentlemen engaged on the defence, !Ii 



well as the officers of the Crown, that the point may be taken into co.1'­
sidel'ation by them, and they may be prepared. It may appear that the 
J"risoncl's have l'ights in that case as well as the Crown. We mention 
it thus early, fo,' the reason I hase stated, that our functions termiuate 
attwelye olclock to-morrow night. The COllrt then adjourned. 

On the 31st, La Puinte was examin.ed: The material differences be­
tween h!s, aud Faille's,testimony, 011 the first and second trials, are no­
ticed in the examination of Mr, Justice Perrault, (ppge 154, of seq,)­
to wbicb llCing alideu, those I have pointed out in the notes accompany­
ing the Summapy, it is believed the whole are brougbt into view.-l\1y 
examinatjon, (page 162,) leaving the point which I was called to prove, 
completely in statu quo; it perhaps is due to my own reputation, to as­
sert most positively, that tbe description of Fl'eHch spoken by De Rein­
hard, was, in March, depicted by La Pointe in these words: " It par/oit 
';' Fran~ois, comlne un JIIleuron," or in other \Vords, tbat he did oot speak· 
good French. The decision upon the question proposed by the Prison­
er's counsel to Mr. Brewer, in connection with this subject, (page 157, 
.et seq.) determining that-in a legal point of view-his capacity in that 
particular, was unimportant i the expression, if imerted upon the judge.' 
notes, would have been" me!'e surplusage," and for that reason it was 
probably" rejected as unnecessary." l\Iy confidence that it was used, a· 
riics frum the impression instantaneously forced upon my mind, that. 
the confessjon which I had previollsly read, could not possibly be the 
production of De Reinhard's pen, if he only spolce French" like a JIIleu­

" ron,", as fully as frOID finding the expression upon my notes; and I 
tru.t, without incurring the guilt of p!'esumption, I may add, tbat I 
£onsider it a circu)11stance well calculateu to weaken the claim of the 
JlOnfe,~ion to c,'edit, actually, though not tegally--tbat Crom ignoranc6 
Qf the language,. the Prisoner was incapable of drawing it up. 

]3ut ,'etuming f!'OID tbis digres~ion-the examination of Captain 
J)'Ol'sun1wns ~.uccee<1ed to th.at of La Pointe. Nothillg material appear" 
ed, dUFing its progress, beyoI)(\ what is given in'the present report, nor 
any additional circumstance, if we except the prouuctioI) to, and ac­
knowlc<;lgroent by, Captain D)O,.sonnens of the requisition to 11,[r. Den,". 
which on the present t!'ial was not allowed to be gone intp, as it was 
dated subsequent to the confession. (page 79,) A copy of it i" however, 
gillen helow,'" as it was frequently refeJTed. to, as beiug at variance with 
Captain D'Orso1!lI.ens) description of himself. 

'" Tn ;\NSLATION. 

" From the Pottage of Lake la Plai·e, 
" the 61h Oclob~r 1816. 

" The personal saCety of His Majesty's subjects, reqllh'es, fol' 
.. fear of slI"f>ri;;e or accident, that you ,h061<1 deliver to me all the ::rm" 
., ammuniliou, powder, "hot, &c. &c. &c.-which you Inn''': in your po~-
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Proof of t1",< paper not being allowed-lI-I,·. Rluart closed his ex". 

mination on the ,'oire dire, and the trial was immediately terminated ill 

a mode which, if not unprecedented, is certainly novel in criminal case5. 

The minute taken of these proceedings follows: 
~1.ttvrlley-General.-As it will be impossible to close the trial by 

twelve o'clock, I propose, and the proposition is assented to on the part 

of the Prisoner~, that a Juror be with,lrawn. 
Chief J'ustice Sewell.-Tbere must be a motion made, ~o that the 

subject may be brought regularly he fore us, and our decision be made 

of record. It may be made a precedent. 
Attorney-General.-I shall move, that the last Juror 9worn be with­

drawn. I believe that to be the usual course. (Haring written his mo­
lion.) I move" that Pierre F:oi, a Juror, sworn in the case of Domi?lllg 
:' Rex, tJcrS1!S Jlf'Lelian and De Reillhard, be withdrawn from the box." 

Chief Justice StwEll.-State some cause for the motion-either froll! 

the numher of witnesses 'tfet to examine, or any othpr which you think 

pl'o:,er, so that it may appear, on a future o<;casion, for t~e justification 

of the Court. 
Atiomey-General.-I will move, viz: " That Pierre Hoi, a Juror, 

" may be withdrawn, because it is imposssble to receive the verdict by 

'" twelve o'clock." 
Chief J,JSlice Sf1Cell.-It being impos,;ble " to close the case on Ih~ 

" part of the Crown," would be hetter, and it certainly will be impossi-­

hIe. The charge etlmte, upon the evidence already ~eceived, would oc­
cupy three hOl1rs .. 

Atlorney-General.-I will then make the motion as follows: " 'Illat 
" it being impos,ible to close the evidence on tbe part of the Crown be­

" fore tweh'e o'clock, nnll the functions of the Court then terminating, 
" it is moved by the Attorney-General, tbat Pierre Roi, the Juror last 

" sworn, be withdrawn," which is consentell to on tbe part of the Pri. 
sonersot 

Chiif JlIStice SC1l'elt-Archibald lIf'Lellan anll Charles De Reinhard, 
-on the part of the KING it is proposed that-as the Crown officers 
cannot- close their evidence before twelve o'clock at night, at which pe­

J'ind the authority of this Court terminates-Pierre Roi, the Juror last 

.. seFsion at the fort, and which belongs to tbe Nortb-West Company.­
" The arms'that are private property, will alone be respectell, for your 
.' own safety. 

U I bave the honour to be, 

U Your very humjlle and obedient' servant, 

" CAPT.,UN P. D'OR50NNENS, 

.. , Commanding the alIt-ance guard, of Ihe Voyageurs if 
" the Iludson's Company, &c. &c. &c. 

, ,- P. S.-Thp- pickets will be cut down by my people yours may !Is: 
" llssist them, if you deem it expedient." , 
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sworn, bll withdl'awn from the box, The effect of thl's motioDwln he that 

{he cause will ,revel't exactly to the same situation in whiah it would 

haye been, if the trial hat! never commenced, Do you consent or not? 

The Prisoners severally consenting, the Chief Justice adilressing the 

Jury, returned th~m the thanks of the COUl't, an't! di~charged them. 

In May following, a Court of O!JeT and Terminer was held at Qllebec, 
ant! an indictment being preferred against Charies De Beinlia1'd, ami 
other;;, ('page S,) for the Murdel' of Olt'en Kweny, was ret\ll'Iled " a true 
bill," against the whole. Of th~ accllsed two only appeared-viz: 

Charles De Reinhard, who had remained in close custody, and Arc/Ii­

bald Jll' Lcllan, who after the .March proceedings, had been admitted to 
bail, The ab~enoe of 1I-Iaim"ille andDesmamis, is·in ,80me degree ac­

counted for, in a former part of this introductiol'l ; whilst with l'elel'ence 

to Grant and Cadotte, it is only necessary to state, that upon the Grand, 

JUl'Y, in llIarch, retul'ning no bill against them, they were ~et at liberty. 

Having traced the preiimillal'Y meamres, the (ollowing pageR are 

a/fp.red to public notice, with confidence that the" REPORT (at large) 
of the trial of CHARLES DE REINHARD" contains an accll~ate repre" 

sentation of that impol'tant legal investigation in all itR stagp.s; and that 

.. the SU~[lI1ARY of ARCHIBALD ])<l'LEJ,LAN'S," exhibits an impartial 

and ,uffiaieDtly compr('hensiv8 statement ofihe pl'Oce.'dillgs whiLh termi­

nated in his acquittal. Upon the disputes ~o fl'equently referred to in the 
progrc<sof the~e trials, contrariety of oJinion will undoubtedly exist, 

though all must deplore a conte~t'wbich 'h!l~ '.oxhibited,cPllcS of blood. 

shrl, from which humanity recoils, The cUIl'li'petioo"of the case of "ryIr. 
J;'cl'eH"j with th" gCilcral Jiffcrences that havl' unhappily pervaded tlie Ij{~ 

, dian COllnt"y, has Ijcen q,'o.nuomly·us;erted by Lord 8, I/;:rk and as posi­

ti. plv cont,'adicted Ly th,' i\'r,,"h,!Yrs! Company, who refer to the acq-uit­

tnl of their partner, after '''" arduous trial, as furnishing a triulli),llctnt and 

hOlJ(Jllrahle l'pf, blinn of tllP heavy but llllfoundNI accusation nfi"citing; 

their ;('r'/3IHS to the perpetration of the '.c.ri~1-'I,e v~lidity of this 

appeal j, denied, ~nJ the result unequi~o~allyarti"iblltf'd t, ineffiri­

blCY in conducting the trial, arisin~ from" the assumption L{' the 
" All< "lIe,V and ,;-'i(ir;'ot-Gencral. of the pxciu,i'. e malla,;<'metlt 'of the 

",""""cll(,on," It was hardly t'1 be anticipatell, frow fhe'anin,osity 

\\ 11;c:, charaeterizeR tile cOllfiict, that (lilY course '_ff invt'~dg:atiun would 

SeC,)' an un,ited ,,;·;.:'o\'al. 'Whf'thc,' the most f'!ic';L:c w"s selected ill 

the. m'H!;'l[~··~!.1f·nt. of these pro:-ec!Jtions, aI'\..: tIU~sti\I'j': which have IJ:"f'n an .. 

~wf'r(".1 in the affil'm'Htive and in t.irr nee:ative, The ": ininn of Lord 

Set/; ~ on the,~r~ rl'oce('din~~, alJ initi.o ad fl..'r1uiJlat;of1tm, may, perl,laps, 

be accurately inferr,'d fl'OnJ tb" foiiowil<", ~emal'k on tbe I"rown officees 

euw""':"" to :;!J~I'lle "~lr,lll'Ld'tawon bad; •• To "~ce"t I,f bail ill. 

" fuch h c:\~,~. and 1 andel' sllch cil·cunl .. :tance~, W'lf; a VfCC' ,',:lillg unpre­

~1 LcJc,:td m (\ Bl'itbh C "y_ 'cf Ju"ticc, aaJ beu..lyed the dctermiaa-
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(, tion, already take'n; to throw tbe whole guilt of the mUl',lcl' on j)c 

" Reinhard, a foreigner, in order to sCI'een his accomplice, a partncr in 

" the North-West Com pany." 
On these oppo~ing sentiments Ioffer no opinion at pre,ent. To 

friends, whose expectations and wishes will incline them to dimpprove 
this determination, I can only offer the assurance that, thoilgh complyin,; 
with the solicitations of those I respect is at all times peculiarly grate­
ful, had I done 50 in this instance, I.should most probably have sacri­
ficed an esteem which is personally too flattering to seck for jU5tiiicatioil 
beyond the partiality which dictates it. I would also ad.!, that cull,i­
<lerable deliberation has led me to doubt the pl'opriety o'f commellting 
upon a case which is still under the consideration of the supreme all­
thority, in whose hands i, vested the fate of the unfortunate indivi-

. vidual, most intercsted in its' cecision. At a future period, 5hould no 
.hbler pen, guided by a ju~grnent equally impartial and capable, obvi­

ate the necessity, I propose to >UQmit, througb the ,arne medium, a 
eonci'le narrative of occurrences (in connection with the disputes) which 
bave taken place in the Indian territories, the provin~es of Canad~, 
amI at home, ~ince the year 1312; and, assisted by the ad,litional infor­
mation which, it is to be boped, the investigation by the Brilish Parlia­
ment will afford, I shall, uninfluenced by pro~peets of pecuniary advan­
tage--indifferent to the frown as to the smile of " the powers that be,j 

-and (a much more difficult task) Ilnbiassed by the enJearing, bllt se" 
ductive, sympathies of friendsllip, add those reflections which shall have 
"atisfied my own mind, whpre culpability attaches. The encourage­
ment gi"Cl1 to tha present publication appeared to demand this explana­
tum, and, I trust, that in giving it, I shall escape the charge of egotism, 

The volume will, it is trusted, realize its prospectus. In endeavour­
ing to attain this object, my obligations to the Court, commenced with 
the proceedings, and have been continually augmenting, up to tbe mo­
ment I am writing; whilst to the professional gentlemen, on either shle', 

I am equally indebted. The facilities afforded-by tae accommodation 
of a convellient seat, during the trials-the liberal access to libraries; 
witb permission to take therefrom the various-authoritie5, and the revi­
sion and correction afforded to the ilISS.-render me deeply their debt­
or, and although the obligations should never be cancelled, they ;ball be' 
aluiays remembered and gratefully acknowledged.-If its fidelity shoul<l 
constitute it a work, which may be advantageously consulted for legal 
reference, I bave accomplished the object sethllollsly aimed at, and the 
gratification I shall experience, will amply reward tile anxiety I have 
felt to entitle it to that distinction. 

WILLIAM'S. SIMPSON. 

QUEilEC, 28th October, 181g. 



DISTRICT OF QUEBEC. 

Special Session of OYER and TERMINER, and 

GENERAL GAOL DELIVERY; 

ON Monday the 18th May, 1818, a special Session of Oyer and 

Terminer, and General Gaol Delivery, for the District of Quebec, was 

opened with the customary formalities at the6 Court-house, in the city 

of Quebec. The coo;mission in addition to authorising the trial of per­

sons accused within the district, extended the power to the trial of of­

fences" committed within any oj the Indian Territories, or parts of Ame­

" rica not within the limits oj either oj Ihe said Provinces of Upper or 

II LOIDer Canada, or of any civil Government r!f the United States of Ame­

" rica." Although the cases from the Indian Territory were ex.pected 

to form the principal business of the Session, in his charge to the Grand 

Jury, the Chief Justice did not advert to them, unless the following re­

mark may be supposed to refer to that part of the Sheriff's Calendar. 

" Gentlemen,. 

" Upon perusal 6f the Sheriff's Calendar, We do not perceive 

" that it exhibits any commitments which require particular notice at 

" this moment, it may however bappen, that in the progress of your 

" enquiries, some pOints of law may occur, upon which you may be de­

.. sirous to take the opinion of the Court, and, if thi. shquld be the case, 

" you will find us at all times ready and desirous to afford you every 

" assistance, in the execut.ion of your duty, which it is in o'l1r power to 
.. gil·e." 

. On Wednesday the 20th May, the Grand Jury returned as true a Bill 

of Indictment, charging various perwDs with the Murder of OWEN 

KEVENY, on the 11th day of September, 1816, at the Dalles, on the rio 

"er Winnipic, in the Indian Territories. Mr. Attorney-General imme-
A 



diately moved that CharTes De ReinhEtrd be put to the har for the pur­

pose of arraignment. The priso~er was then arraigned in the usual 

form, and having pleadell NOT GUILTY, fixed Friday the '22d instant, 

liS the time at which he should be ready to enter upon his trial; to 

which day the Court was adjourned; his honour the Chief Justice hav­

ing previously intimated to the gentlemen summoned to attend as petty 

Jurors, tbe absolute necessity of tbeir punctual attendance at eight 

o'clock in tbe morning, tbat the prisoner might have the fu II benefit or 

the rigbt of challenge, given him by tbe laws of his country; and, 

" Gentlemen," (added his honour,) " the Court, to ensure this right in its 

.. fullest extent, will feel itself obliged, in justict to the Prisoner, to im­

" ppse a fine upon every defaulter." 

FRIDAY, 22d May, 1818. 

PRESENT. 

His Honour CHIEF JUSTICE SEWF.:LL. 

The Honourable Mn. J()5TICE BOWEN. 

Counsel for the Crown. 

MR. ATTORNEy-GENERAL, UNIACXE. 

MR. SOLICITOR·GENERAL, MARBIIALL. 

Counsel for the Prisoner. 

GEORGE VANFELSON, ~ 
ANDREW STU ART, Esquires. 

J. R. V ALLEIBE DE ST. REAL, 

THE Prisonpr, Charles De Reinhard, being put to the bar, the pan­

nel was called over, and after various challenges on his part; as well liS 

on that of the Crown, the following gentlemen were Sworn as a Jury: 

Thomas Levallee, t Ralph Brewer, 
~ 

Stephen Curtis, ~ Jean LaJorme, 
Laurent Audy, ~ 

Simon Le Comte, ~ 

J ouph M iville, i Joseph Prevost, 
Olivier Trahan, i Daniel Thomps;n, 
Roger Sasseville, ~ Jean Desnoye, • . , 



The Prisoner was then given in charge to the Jury by the Clerk of 

the Crown. It is not considered lIecessary to set forth the whole of the 

very long indictment, con~isting of eigbt counts, abounding witb tech­

Dicalities; indeed it migbt perbaps be sufficient to state, that the whole 

indictment charged that Owen Keveny was killed on the 11th Septem­

ber, 1816, by Cbarles De Reinbard, with a sabre or with a gun, or with 

both, or tbat one Fran90is Mainville killed him with a gun, and that the 

present Prisoner was present, aiding, assisting, &c. &c.; b&t to enable 

the reader fully to understand the case, tbe first count is given at length 

together with a skeleton of the remainder of the indictment. 

DOMINUS REX, I 
versus 

CHARLES DE REINHARD, 

ARCHIBALD M'LELLAN, 

CUTHBERT GRANT, 

JOSEPH CADOTTE, 

FRANCOIS MAINVILLE, 

JEAN BAPTISTE DESMARAIS.j 

QUEBEC, TO WIT. 

On an Indictment for the 

Murder of Owen Keveny, 

on the 11th day of Sep­

tembe1', 1816. 

THE Jurors for our Lord the King, upon their oath, present, that 

Charles De Reinhard, late of a certain place in the River Winnipic, not 

known by any name and not comprised in any parish, 01' county, but situ­

ated in the Indian Territories, or parts of America not within the limits 

of either of the Provinces of Upper or Lower Canada, or of any civil go­

vernment of the United States of America, labourer, Archibald 1\1'J"el­

lan, late of the same place, gentleman, Joseph Cadotte, late of the same 

place, gentleman, Cuthbert Grant, late of the same place, gentleman, 

and Jean Baptiste Desmarais, late of the same place, labourer, not hav­

ing the fear of God befOl'e their eyes, but being moved ~nd seduced by 

the instigation of the devil, on the eleventh day of September, in the 

fifty-sixth year of the reign of our Sovereign Lord George the Third, 

by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom, Kin"g, defender of the 

Faith, with force and arms, at the wid place in the River Winnipic, 

not comprised in any parish or county, but situate in the In<l.ian Tel'ri­

ries, or parts of America not within the limits of either of the Provinces 

of Upper or Lower Canada, or of any civil government of the United 

State of America, and being within the jurisdiction of this Court, in and 

upon one Owen Keveny, in tue peace of God and of our said Lord the 

King, then and there being, feloniously wilfully and of their malice 
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aforethought, did make an assault, and that the said Charles De Rem­

hard, with a certain sword called a sabre, made of iron and steel, of the 

value of five shillings, which he the said Charles De Reinhard, in hi6 

right hand, then and there had and held, him the said Owen Keveny, 

in and upon the back of him the said Owen Keveny, under the left 

shoulder-blade of him the said Owen Keveny, then and there, felonious­

ly, "ilfuIIy and of his malice aforethought, did strike, stab, thrust, and 

penetrate, giving unto him the said Owen Keveny then and there, with 

the sabre aforesaid, in and upon the back of him the said Owen Keveny, 

under tile left shoulder-blade of him the said Owen Keveny, two mortal 

wounds, each of the breadth of two inches, and of the depth of six in­

ches, of which said mortal wounds, he the spiel Owen Keveny then and 

there instantly died; and that the said Archibald ;'il'LelIan, Cuthbert 

Grant, Joseph Cadotte and Jean Baptiste Desmarais, feloniously, wiIfulIy 

and of their malice aforethought, were then aad there present, aiding, 

helpicg, abetting, comforting, and maintaining, the said Charles De 

Reinhard, the felony and murder aforesaid, in manner 1'lnd form aforesaid, 

to do, commit, and perpetrate. And so the Jurors aforesaid, upon theit· 

oath aforesaid, do say, tbat the said Charles De Reinhard, Archibald 

lVl'LeIlan, Cuthbert Grant, Joseph Cadot, and Jean Baptiste Desma­

rais, him the said Owen Keveny then and there, within the jurisdiction 

aforesaid, 'in manner and form aforesaid, feloniously, wilfully, and of 

tbeir malice aforethuught, did kill and murder, against the peace of our 

said Lord the King, his Crown auu Dignity. 

SEcond.-De Reinhard killed Owen Kenevy with a gun; ~l'LeIlan, 

Grant, Cadotte and Desmarais, being principals in the second degree 
present aiding, &c_ 

Third.-De Reinhard killed Owen Keveny with .. gun and sabre, 

conjointly; M'Lella~, Grant, Cadotte and Desmarais, principals in the 
second degree. 

Fourth.-Pran<;ois Mainville killed Owen Keveny with a gun; De 

Reinhard, M'Lellan, Grant, Cadotte and Desmarais, being principals in 
thl) second degree. ' 

Fifth.-De Reinhard killed Owen Keveny with (I sabr~.-Sixlh_ He 

killed him with a gun.-Sel'cnlh. He killed him with a gun and sabre, con­

jointly; and each of the~c counts charged l\l'LeIlan, Grant, Cadotte and 

Desmarais, with being accessaries before, and after, Ihe jacl.-The Eighth 

and last count, laid that Fran«ois Mainville killed.Owen'Keveny with a 
gun; De Reinhard being a principal in the second degree, ancl the re­

maining four persons accessaries before, and after, the fact. 
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Mr, Attorney.General then opened the case to tile Jury, in nearly 

the following terms. 

Gentlemen of the Jury, 

You have been sworn to try the Prisoner at the bar, 

named Charles De Reinhard, who Is accused of having made on the 11th 

day of September, in the fifty-sixth year of the reign of his Majesty, an 

assault upon one Owen Keveny with a sabre, and giving him therewith 

two wounds, which caused his death. There are, gentlemen, various 

counts in the indictment, but they all arrive at the same conclusion.­

(The Attorney-General then detailed to the Jury the nature of the different 

counts, (IS exhibited in the abstract given above, remarking, that the ft'i­

dence to be produced, woul¢ prove that the deceased met his death princi­

pally by the wounds given by the Prisoner with his sabre.)-This, gentle~ 

men, is one of the cases brought fl'om the Indian Territory, and will, I 

am confident, receive that patient investigation, to which, from its im­

portance, it is entitled. From the evidence we shall produce, there can 

exist no ~oubt of the death of Keveny, ami I fear a; little, that he caIpe 

to it by the hands of De Reinhard. The deceased was a native of Ire-, 

land, in t4e service of the Hudson's Bay Company; and the Prisoner 

at the bar, was formerly a serjeant in the regiment De Meuron, but at 

the breaking up of that corps, entered into the ,en'ice of the N orth-'Vest 

Company.-It appears that Mr, Kev,ony having arrived in the Indian 

country, with a number of persons undel' his charge, complaints were 

made against him by some of them, and he was arrested by the Prisoner 

at the bar, in virtue of Ii warrant issued by a Mr. Archibald Norman 

1'1'Leod. The deseased was a man of high spirit, and did not fOl' some 

time submit to the warrant, but I believe opposed its execution witl:t 

considerable violence. Whether this circumstance did not give ri,e; in the 

mind of the Prisoner, to that degree of malice which eventually caused 

the death of tbis man, Owen Keveny, it will be for you to determine. 

[The Attorney-General then nal'rated the particulars of the evidence 

given by Fa..lle and La Pointe, up to tbe period of their finding the 

Ileceased en haut des Dalles, for which their testimony is referred to.] 

It is here, gentlemen, that the evidenoe begins to affect the prisoner, 

in the strongest manner. After staying some time in this place, De 

Reinhard took Keveny in charge; and, with Mainville and the Indian 

Jose, was to follow M'Lellan and the others who went away in his 

(M'LelJan's) canoe ;-when they had proceeded a few miles, it will 

!lppear to you in evidence that the deceased having occasion to be put 

on shore, it was determined, by Mainville and the Prisoner at the bar, 

tlul! the place was suitable to carry into effect the design (which it will 
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be shewn had long previously exi~ted) of taking away the life or Owe. 
:Keveny. The decea8ed had returned from a short distance, whither h. 
had gone for his necessary occasiuns, ancl was in the act ofre-embarking 

in the canoe when the prisoner at the bar gave him a thrust in the back 

with a sabre, and subsequently another. Mr. Keveny, notwithstanding 

he was wounded, made snch resistance that it WllS not improbable but 

be would' have succe~ded in wresting the sabre from the Prisoner, but 

ihat he coumelled the Metif Mainville to fire at him, which he did, and 

Keveny fallint; into the canoe, instantly expired. 

[The Attorney.General then stated slIccinctly the occurrences, as 

"etailed by Faille and La Pointe,' from the time of the canoe with the 

Prisoner, Mainville and Jo.e arriving at l"l'Lelian's encampment, up 

to the period of cli\-idillg the bu/in of Keveny, remarking, that from 
this chain of corroborative evidence-and, from the nature of the crime, 

it was scarcely ever possible to exhibit positive testimony-he feared 

the Jury would not be able to doubt of the guilt of the Prisoner at tho 

hal', although that positive evidence of the murder should not be intro­

duced, which it ,,,as always def>irable should precede a conviction, and, 

which, on accusatiun of all other crimes, the Crown officers were enablecl 

to produce.] In conGlusion, the Attorney-General observed, 

Gcn/lcme,l, 

Another very strong proof we shall produce, will be the 

Prisoner's own confession, made to an officer of the same regiment to 

which the Prisoner had formerly belonged, a captain D'Orsonnen~, 

whom he met some time after, and to whom he voluntarily confessed that 

he had killed Keveny; and, on various other occasions, he also freely 

confessed it. Indeed, I believe, he nenl' denied it. 'Ve ~hall also 

produce a confession in the Prisoner's own hand-writing, made before a 

magistrate, in which the whole of the circumstances are detailed, as I 

have related them. Upon this chain of evi.lence I apprehend yon will 

have Iitile difficulty in returning a verdict for the Crown. The people 

to be pl'oduced before you are the traders of the Indian country, canoe­

lIlen and engages; of a lower order of men, certainly; but, 1 believe, 

every way entitle.l to credit; that, however, gentlemen, as I mentioned 

just now, is peculiarly your province to determine. The ca~e is one of 

those which have arisen from the unfortunate di5putes between the Hud­

~n's Bay and North-West Companies, relntive to which we have heard 

so much, through newspapers and pamphlets, bnt, to which, 1 am sure, 

gentlemen, you will pay no attention;' otherwise, I would beg of you, 

to allow nothing to have the slightest influence on your judgmenb, hnt 

what is produced before you in evidence. We uo not know what is thlJ 



"I 

ce(enee the Prisoner will set up; if he can convince your eonscience. 

that he did not commit the crime he is accused of, you will acquit him: 

If, on the other band, the Crown establishes the case t have detailed to 
you, it will be your duty, by the oaths you have'taken, though a very 

painful one-yet your duty will be to say, He is Guilty. He has pu1 

himself on God and his country for his trial, and you, as that country, 

~re to decide upon his guilt or his innocence. 

The .Attorney-General having addressed the Jury to the saine rffeet iA 

'he Freneh language, called Mr. Rax; the other witnesses being orderel. 

tfI withdraw, with ihe exception of Messrs. Coltman, Gale and Rouchette. 

WILLIAM SAX, Sworn. 

I am a surveyor, and I know from a map which I have Iiere, as well 

as from others, the limits of the Province of Upper Canada, and of the 

ancient Province of Quebec. Its western limit is a line drawn northward 

from the mouth of the Ohio, which is in ~!70 10' north latitude, and 88'" 

fiO' weit longitude, from Greenwich. A line drawn due north from thit 

point, towards the Hudsoll.'s Bay territory, would stdke Lake SUIMlt'ior, 

at about a degree to the east of Fort William, or three quarters of a 

degree; i. e. it would leave Fort William about three quarters of a de­

;ree to the west. I am acquainted with the River Winnipic by maps, 

and it is between the 50th and 51st degree of north latitude. The spot 

C!alled Portage des Rats is, by this map, in 49 f o northern latitude, and 

in lon!!.itude 94° 6' west of Greenwich. The Rivec Winnipic is about 

five degrees west of a line running north from the mouth of the OhiiJ 

River, at its junction with the Mississippi, and certainly without the 

limits of the old Province of Quebec. I now speak of a due north line, 

and not a northward line --

[Thi~ explanation of Mr. Sax's meaning gave rise to considerable 

di~cussion between the Chief Justice, the Crown officers, Prisoner'! 

counsel, and the witness, as to the import of the terms due north aml 

northward. The Bench and Crown officers considering the terms nOYtk 

and' northward as synonimous. 1\'l:r. Sax and the Prisoner's counsel 

contended that a north line must be astronomically north, whilst a line 

might be drawn having an inclination to some other point of the com­

pass, yet gaining upon the north in its progress it would in the parlance 

of surveyors, be denominated a northward, northwestward or flortheast­

'oard line, as the case might be. It is not thought neces~ary to give the 

whole of the discussion, or rather altercation, that ensued, as the fol­

lowing questions and answers sufficiently exhibit the distinction drawll 

by the judge5 and witnest.] 



Chief Justice Sewll.-If a line is to be drawn (rom a given point of 
the compass, say from the we~t, in a north\\'ard direction, to say that 

such a line would not be a due north line appears to me to be a contra­

diction to the plainest principle of common sense, and totally irrecon­

cileable. I will put the question to you again, sir. Do I und~rstnnd 

you to say, that a line drawn from a given point northward. is not a 

north liue? 
11fT. Sax.-Surveyors usually call lines running-

Chief Justice Sewell.-I am uot asking you what surveyors usually 

call. I wnnt to know whether in point of fact, a fact that any man 

call tell as well as a surveyor, whethel' a line from a western or eastern 

point of tbe compa~s drawn' nortbward, is, or is not, a: north line? 

Just answer that question, yes or no; and then. you may explain that 

answer in any way you think proper. 

Mr. Sax.-It certainly must be, to a certain extent, a north line, 

IIut not a due lIorlh line. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Why not? 

Mr . .'lax. -A line drawn from any point between two cardinal points 

of the compass, direct to any cal'dinal point, is a due north or west line, 

ns the case may be; but a line may be so drawn between two point~, 

as to be called by ~urveyors a northwar~ or southward line, as it may 

chance to gain in the course of running it upon that point of the com­

pa,s to which it is approaching; as I might draw a line from a point 

north-westardly, but gaining in a northerly direction in its course, so 

that at its termination it would be a line northward, from having more 

northing there than at the point from which I started. 

Attorney-General.-If you were directed to draw a boundary line 

'1torlhward, would you qualify it in any way by drawing it to tM east or 

west, or would you go as nearly in a direct north course as possible. 

Mr_ Sax.-If J had to draw a line northward without any other in­

struction, I should draw it due north, or magnetically north, according 

to my directions. The variations, in some places, between an astrono­

mical and magnetical north line extend from twenty to thirty degrees, 

whilst, in other places, they agree. I should draw such a line magne­

tically north if there were variations, and astronomically if there were 

not; an astronomical-line would be a trUtl parallel. 

LThe Attorney-General baving requested the Court to take that 

down, the examination was continued with reference to the line of se­

paratioll between the Province arid the United States of America.) 

Mr. Sax.-A line drawn due we~t from Portage des Rats, which, 

by English and American maps, is the most nor-til,western part of the 

J,ake of the Woods, would never strike the River D1ississippi. A line 



Brawl! due we~i from the most no~th-western point of the L!lke of tire 
Woods, would leave the whole of the River Winnipic to the north of 
i~;' and, were a line to be drawn from that point to any part of the 
River Mississippi, the whole of the River Winnipic wonld be to tb.e 
north and west of it. 

l1felish's map of the Ufliied Slates produced. 

1f1Ir. Sax.-Tliis map leaves it wholly to the north-~e!t, excepting, 
perhaps, a particular elbow, where the riv,er runs into the lake. Toe 
proper point of departure is at the very point where the river and lake 
unite, and this is in conformity with' the best' charts or maps, both 
English' and American. 

008s-exam,ined by Mr. Valliere de St. Rial. 

Mr. Sax.-I have' seen many charts and maps, and it is r~om them r 
tleriveu my knowledge of the latitudes and longitud~s of which I have 
spoken. According to th'e maps of Jeffries and Bouchette, the wester~ 
limit of the old Province of Quebec, from the junction of the Ohio'wit'a 
the Mississippi, is the course of the latter riv~r to its source in Turtie 
:take, which is in latitu4e 47° S8' north, and'longitud~ 94}, or, more 
correctly, !15o degrees west from Greenwich. From the source of the 
MississIppi in Bouchette's map, the line is drawn due north to the Hut. 
son's Bay territory; Jeffries' ritap takes the line ~lO rurther thim Turtle 
Lake. According-to t.his boundary, the whole of the Lake of the Woods' 
and that part of the River Winnipic called the Dalles, would be to the 
east of such line. Jeffries was an English geographer, but I do not 
know' when his map was publbhed. 

1'IlR. JOSEPH BOUCHETTE, JUNIOR, Sworn. 

Examined: by the Attorney-Generai. 

Mr. Bou'ehetle.:.-.l am deputy to the Surveyor-General. The west· 
ern limit of Upper Canada, is formed by a line running north from 
the junction of the Rivers Ohio and Mississippi, to the sou thern 
limits .of the Hudson's Bay. The junction of these rivers is in lati· 
tude S7° 10' north, and the longitude is 88° 58' west, from the me· 
ridian of Greenwich; aml this line will leave the whole of the River 
Winnipic to the west. Portage des Rilts is in latitude 49° 51' north, 
and longitude 94° 10' west, from Greenwich. The place called the. 

Dalles is twelve miles to the north of Portage uea Rats, according to 
Arrowsmith. The most north,wl'stern point of the Lake of the Woods 

B 
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is in latitude 49° 28' nortb, and longitude 9,0 ~5' west, Crom Green­

wich. A line drawn from the most north-western point of the Lake of 

the Woods to any part of the River Mississippi, will leave the whole of 
the River IWinnipic to the north; and the same thing will happen if a 

line be drawn due west j and consequently that river is without the 
boundaries of the United States of America. The Dalles are' to the 
north of the Lake of the Woods, and also of Portage des Rats, and con­

sequently not wiihin the United States. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Stuart. 

Mr. Bouchette.-I am nineteen years old. I never was at the mouth 
of the River Ohio, nor at the Lake of the Woods, nor at the River 
Winnipic. I do not speak from any persona} observation. My know­
le~ge of the latitude and longitudes is derived from my father's map, 

now before me, and Mr. Arrowsmith's, published in 1795. The green 
line upon the manuscript map ,before me, prolonged from longitude 88° 
58' west, and running due north, was copied from a map of Emanuel 
Bowen in 1775, at London. It runs due north from the confluence of 
the rivers. In other maps the western limit of Upper Canada, is drawn 
as running from the mouth of the River Ohio in the l\'lississippi, until 
its source in Turtle Lake. 

The map was here handed to the Court. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Here is a line on 49() ofIatitude. 
11fT. Bouchelte.-That is from Emanuel Bowen also, and drawn by 

the Commissioners under the treaty of Utrecht, and the line coloured 
violet is the southern limit of the territory of Hudson's Bay, according 
to Emanuel Bowen's map. 

WILLIAM BACHELOR COLTMAN, ESQUIRE, Sworn. 

Examined by the Attorney-General. 

Mr. Coltman.-I am a magistrate of this district, and one of the 
Commissioners of the Indian Territories. I was last year in the Indian 
Territories, and passed through the Lake of the Woods. My mind be­
ing much occupied by the business of my mission, I did not make any 
particular local observations, but I ahvays understood the Portage des 

Rats to be the mo~t north,western point of the L~ke of the Woods, and 
according to what I remarked, I consider it so myself; but I had no 
opportunity of making exact observations on the spot. Tbe River 

Winnipic rllllS out of the Lake of the Woods and into Lake Winnipic. 
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I.do not know exactly tDe distance lletween the two lakes, but I should 

think it is from eighty to an hundred 'leagues .. The general course' of 

the River Win~ipic, I should consider to be north-west, or about' that 

course; but in speaking of it I beg to repeat that I had not time to make 

particular observations; but assuredly I think no part of that river can 

be sou./h of a line drawn dne west from the most north-western point or 

the Lake of the Woods, or if any, a very small portion. Undoubtedly 
a line drawn from that point to the Mississippi, would leave the whole 

of the River Winnipic to the north-west of it; for a line so drawn must 

be almost due south.-I have knowledge. of a place called the Daile" 

which I hav,e passed twice; it is a part of the River Winnipic. I can­

not Bay with accuracy what distance the Dalles are from Portage des 

Rats, for when travelling in the Indian Country, I was always accus­

tOlDed to read, but I should think it to be about five or six leagues, in 8 

course running north, with a little inclination to the west. 

[The Attorney-General then asked Mr. Coltman ". whether he wae 
.. acquainted with the place where Owen Keveny was killed, or said to 
" be killed P" to which lVlR. STU ART objected, on the ground tbat the 
place having a name, must be identified before any questio,n could be 
put relative to any occurrence which it might be supposed had taken 
place there.-In noticing the objection hi~ Honour the Chief Justice re­

marked, that it could be of no consequence to put the question; but al­

though enough was known of the,case to manifest th~t if the murd~r had 

been committed at all, it was committed at (or very near to,) the Dalles, 
" yet, (he added,) it is necessary for the Crown officers first to establisb 
"THE FACT."]· 

Cross-examined by 1I'Ir. Siullrt. 

Mr. Coltman.-I' speajr of the boundary lines, and otb.er places I have 

mentioned in my examination in chief, only according to my belief; for, 

while travelling in those parts, I was generally _engaged in reading law­

books, and I had not an opportunity of making particnl~r observations 

on the localities of the River Winnipic.-Wben I said the Portage des 

Rats formed the most north-western' point of the Lake of the Woods, I 

lJioke from the same belief; but a belief, lrkewise founded upon this cir­
cumstance--I had been told that it was the most north-western point, 

and when I pa'Ssed it, I saw nothing that could ~ake me douLt the cor­
rectness of the information 1. had received; I cannot say where it 'wag 

that I was told this, DOl' whether before, or after, passing hy it, but I 

was informed whilst in the Upper Country, that Portage des Rats Willi 
th~ most norta-western point of the Lake of the 'Woods, and t~at' froUi 
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thence was ta,ken the boundary line between the United States and Bri­

tish Territory, agl'eeab'ly to the treaty of 1783.-1 did not make any as­

tronomical observations, or any other, so as accurately to ascertain thf! 

latitudes and longitudes, my only observations were those of the eye il) 

passing. 
Mr. Stuart.-Is not Fort William generally reputed to be in the 

province of tJ pper Canada? 
Mr. Colimiln.":-Yes, Fort William is usually considered to be within 

the province of Upper Canada, and 1 understand" it to lie so.-It'is a 

matter of public notoriety, that "writs issued by the magistrates of the 

Western District of tbe province of Upper Canada, are executed at Fort 

William. 
(]lif. Solicitor-General submitted to the Court that this evidence did 

not apply to the case; to which 2J1lr. "Stuart answered that it was a fact 

and therefore evidence, and that he was not bound to shew. its application 

at present.-The Solicitor-General in reply, contended that Mr. Stuart 

ought to shew how he intended to apply evidence, "which prima facie, 

had no'beal·ing on the case, before he should be entitled fo proceed in 

such a course of examination-and that therefore be had thought it 

right to check it in its commencement:] 
Chief Justice Se~ell.-Ail that Mr. Stuart has obtained is the naked 

fact that Fort William is, according to general rep'ute, in' Upper Cana­

da. Whether any or what use he may propose to make of it we cannot 
say; as a fact it is evidence. 

SAMUEL GALE, ESQUIRE, Sworn'. 

Examined by the Attoney-General. 

11fr. Gale.-I was in the Inilian Territory last summer, and 1 went 
down the River Winnipic -I know Portage des Rats. The course of 

the River Winnipie from Portage des Rats to Lake Winnipie is the 
same as before north of north-west-"-

Chief Justice Siwell.-N6rth, tending a little to the west? 

Mr. Gale.':"'Yes; neverthilless, less to the west th~n to 'the north­

but I should not like to speak positively, yet I believe that a line drawn 

from the beginning of the RiveI' Win'nipie, in Lake Winnipic, would be 

to the north' of the north-west, hut as a lawyer I would not say that 
such a line was a north line. 

Attorney-(Jeneral.-Are you, sir, acquainted with the Hudson's Bay 

Territory, and its line of seperation fro~ the province ofU ppel Canada, 
by map or any other way ~ 
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.1I'll". Gale.-I have never seen a map in which they were ~orrectly 

ceJineated, according to my idea. 

Altorney-General.-By the treaty of Utrecht was not thehoundary 

established? 

Mr. Gale.-I ,know by the treaty of Utrecht, no line was given, nor 

any boundary fixed as to the Hudson's Bay Territory, south, or on the 

.ide of Upper Canada. I have examined that treaty fOl the purpose of 

ascertaining. I do not know that any line has ,been drawn between 

the territories of Hudson's Bay and Canada, in pursuance to the treaty 

of Utrecht, and that treaty did not describe a southern boundary line. 

CraBs-examined by Mr. Stuart. 

lI'Ir. Gale.-I perhaps do ,not know precisely where the River Win­

nipic commences. I "consi~ered tl}.at I entered it at Portage c;les Rats, 

and I do not think that any part is more sout.11. I should not Ii,ke to be 

positive, but I will mention why I think I am correct as to its course. I 

had a small compass before me, and I observed, tha t the general course of 

~he River Winnipic is as I have said; for a short distance, perhaps about 

fen or twelve leagues form the Portage des Rats, the course is more 

.northerly tha~ afterwards. 

lIUBERT FAIl,LE, Swo~n. 

Examined by the Solicitor-General. 

Fail/e.-I am a voyager-and in 1316, I was ill the service of the 

:;North-West Company. Towards the end of that year I left Lake la 

Pluie in a canoe to go towards Red River, and on the fourth or perhap9 

the fifth day, we met t\VO canoes in the River Winnipic, in which were 

five MitiJs or Bois.brulis, some gentlemen and a pl'isoner of the name 

of Ke\leny, who was hand-cuffed. Mr. Cadotte, a' clerk of the North­

West ,Company, had the'command of our canoe, We landed, as ,~ell as 

the people out of the other canoes, and l\l'l)onell and Cadotte gave the 

prisoner in charge to us to convey to Laj;:e la Pluie.-There were in the 

canoe with me one La Pointe and a guide called Jose, Fils de La Pel"drix 

Blanche, (son of the white Patridge,) who is an Indian, and we went 

away to return to Lake la Pluie, hut Mr. M'Donell ant! ]\fl'. Cadotte 

remained on shore.-Somedays after (perhaps three,) we met two other 

canoes, belonging to, the North-West Company, in the Lake of the 

Woods. I recognized 1'11'. Stual·t, Mr. Thomson and Mr. FerrieR, on 

foard of them. Mr. Stuart a~ked wh~re we were gDing, aud I answered 
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him we were going to Lake la Plu'ie with a prisoner. He 81!id he should 

like to see him, and he saw him. They conversed together several 

times. Aftel'wards iVlr. Thomson advised U.'l to return, as there would 

lie no canoes going down to Montreal. We, however, continued our 

!'Oute, and on the fame day we met a brigade of canoes belonging to the 

North-West Company, under the chat'ge of one Joseph Paul. I request­

ed Jose, the Indian, to let us return with Paul, but he did not consent. 

'Ve afterV;ards determined to go back with him, being in want of pro­

.... isions-and as I did not know the way 0;' route to go'to Lake la Pluie, 

neither La Pointe, nor the Indian, any more than La Pointe or myself. 

We followed Joseph Paul's brigade for a day, but on the following day 

we lost sight of it became they sailed, and our little canoe could not fol· 

low them, so we put ashol'e.-On the same evening that we landed, tl;II': 

Indian played with his gun, putting it to his shoulder and saying puff, 
'luff, and by his gesture5 I understood he wanted to kill Keveny. I do 

nat know whether he cut any sticks,. and asked us to h;lp him. I do 

not reeoltect that he did, 

[Here MI'. Vanfelson objected that the Prisoner was not anFwerable 

Cov the conduct of the Indian, and that the course of examination the 

Solieitop·General was pursuing, was not only irregular but one which, 

at the late sessions the Court had most decidedly rejected. 

The Chief Jmtice ohserved, that he thought the evidence, if admit­

ied, would rather make [01', than against, the Prisoner, but that at pre­

sent he eould not be affected by it, as he stood apparently unconnected 

with these people, and that if there were any circumstances which con· 

neeted De Reinbard with the~, the most regular, as well as the shortest 

and surest method was, as a substratum, to. shew the connection before 

admitting evidence of occurrences in which, as the Prisoner was absent, 

he prima facie did not participate: 

lYlr. Solicitor-General stated, that be hat! a chain of testimony to in­

troduc~, which would shew tbat there hat! existed a settled design to 

take away the life of Ke,·eny, and that persons were employed in the 

execution of this design with whom be should afterwards associate the 

Prisoner, and therefore with great deference he submitted to the Court 

that the shortest (and an equally regular,) method would be first to prove 

t,he alleged facts, and subsequently by connecting the Prisoner with the 

agents, shew that although be was not at the moment actually present., 

yet in the eye of the law he was a participator. 

The Chief Justice repeated, as the impression on bis mind, that as the 

circumstance now appeared, were it admitted to be evidence, it would 

be ratber a service to·the Pl'isoner than otherwise, as from tbe conduct 

flf the Inwan, perhaps others might be suspected.-Tben addrels~ing ths 
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Solicitor-General he added: On the point beCore us we are clearly u( 

opinion that you must connect the Prisoner with this Indian before yo'll 

can be permitted to adduce evidence of transactions occurring when he 

was not present.] 

Examinati.oll resumed by the Solicitor-General. 

Faille.-We slept on shore that night, and the next mgl'ning when :I 
went to wake 1\11'. Keveny, he said he was ill, and that he could 1IGt go 

then. He wanted hot water, and asked me to go and fetch him some 

water from the beach, and I went; but I did not bring him any because 

I then saw that the Indian and La Pointe had put off in the canoe intG 

the stream. I called to them to come on shot-e, and La Pointe ptlshed t() 

land, and I embarked with them. We set off for Bas de la Riviere" 

leaving the Prisoner below the Dalles, and on the same island where we 

had encamped the night before. We went down the river intending tl) 

go to Lake Winnipic, but a few days afterwards we turned back in. Gl'" 

del' to purchase provisions from the Indians. I bought so;ne from them 

both above and below the Dalles.-The Indian and La Pointe quarreled. 

and fought together the day after we had Jeft our Prisoner. Jose rail 

away into the woods, and La Pointe and I embarked aga.in aud ascend­

ed the river with an,intention of getting to Lake la Pluie. We ascend­

ed it a certain distance, perhaps twelve arpents; but having 'lost our 

guide, and not knowing the way, we came to a determinatIon to land Oil 

Il small island and wait there till some canoes should'pass. I do not re­

collect the distance between the island whel'e we had left Keveny, BI1lt1 

that where we stopped to wait for canoes; but the island where we 

waited for canoes, is lower than that whel·e we had left I\evcny.-Some 

days after we were on the island, (perhaps five or four days,) we ~aw a 

canoe approaching, in which were Mr. Archy, (Mr. AacHlnALD 

M'LELLAN,) Mr. De Reinhard, (the present Prisoner,) Mr. Cadotte., 

Mr. Grant, and one named Jean Baptiste Desmarais; with others whom 

I did not know.-Mainville, the Bois-brule, was there; also a Canadi­

an of the name of Rochon, and men for working the canot', which was 

ascending the river towards the Lake of the Woods. They came 10 the 

island, and part of them landed, but not all; De Reinhard, the PrisoaBr, 

did not land, but he saw what passed, or if he did not, it was because he 

did not Iqok. 

Solicitor-Generar.-Now tell the Court and the gentlemen of the 

Jury all that passed. 

'Faille.-The party who landed asked me what I had done with tll1-' 

Prisoner Keveny; and I answered, that he had been left. Oil a small ~ 
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land; that the lildian wilO had beeri gil"en us for a guide, Ifadhlmself 

left him there, and that afterwards he had left us. We likewise said, 

tbat the Indian wanted to kill Keveny . ..:....When Mr. Arcby landed he 

beat me with a canoe-pole, and La Pointe then fled into the woods, but 

Mr. Archy made him c~me back and beat him also, saying, "that it 

was not our business." At that time De Reinhard was in the canoe; I 

cannot say that he did hear what passed, but I should thing he was near 

enough to have heard. I cannot speak positively as to the distance; 

the canoe laid from the sho're; but bad I been in it, I think I should 

have heard what passed. 

Solicitor-General.-What did you understand by the words" it was 

not your bUFiness.". 

[Mr. Valliere de St. Real objected to the witness being questioned 

as to whnt he understood by the words, though as they were not proved 

to have been uttered within hearing of the Prisoner, they could not af­

fect him, lei them be what they might. To which the Solicitor-Gene­

ral remarked, that it was in proof tliat lie was in a situation to see, 

and therefore certainly to hear, every thing. 

The Chief Justice observed, that it by no means fonowed that he­

cause he saw certain actions, that he must necessarily have heard a con­

versation; amI as the witness only said that perhaps he might have 

heard, it was surely as fair to suppose that perhaps he did not. 

Mr. Solicitor-General submitted to the CoiIrt, that in a ca,e like 

this it was impossible ever to go farther-that the witness proved the 

Prisoner was in a situation where he might have heard, by saying all 

that with certainty call be said, namely, tnat had he himself been there he 

should have heard; and that upon this evi,lence it was a question for the 

Jury to say, whether the Prisoner dill or i1id not hear the conversation. 

:M:r. Attorney-General called the attentlon of the COlurt to FailJe'~ 

extreme caution-remarking, that although he was so very clear as to 

events actually taking place, .yet not an inch, if it was a question of 

distance, or a moment, if one of time, would he speak with any degree 

of certainty to ;-and submitted that the Crown hat! gone far enough to 

entitle it to put the question proposed by the Solicitor-General. 

Chief Justice Sewell saiil, that the Court were at present without 

any substratum, upon which thl} question itself conld be founded, or a 

right to put it irisisted upon, for that at present no connection had been 
ehewn to have existed between these people. 

Mr. Solicitor-General considered, that after what had been shewn, 
the degree of connection formed a question for the Jurv. 

The Chief Justice allowed, that every thing that' came before the 

Jl!lcy, would undoubtedly be decided by them; hut saiil, the questi~n at 
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mitting certain circumstances to be brought before them_ Had De Rein­

hard been ,present, participating in the conversation, it would (his Ho­

'nour I'emarked,) have been another thing, but as yet it does not appear 

in evidence, that he heard what passed, ot even knew these men: It 
was probable that he did, but the Crown has not shewn it. 

The Attorney-General submitted, that having proved that when 
this witness told Mr. IVl'Lellan that the causc of his quitting Jose, was 

his manifesting an intention to kill Keveny, and also tbat M'Lellan's 
l'eply, .. that it was not his business," was made when the Prisoner Wa5 

in a situation that he might have heard, the Crown had shewn enough 

to entitle the Solicitor-General, to pursue the course of examination he 

has proposed, as ft was impossible absolutely to prove that a man hears 
a thing. 

The Solicitor-General prdposing to ask the witness whether he told 

M'Lellari why they quar~eled with the Indian, it was suggested by 
iiII'. Justice Bowen, that he had better be permitted to relate his story 

in his own way, and tbe Court would then see whether any, and what 
part of it was evidence.-To this 11'11'. Stuart objected, except as he prov­
ed Dc Reinhard was present, alle'ging that the Prisoner's counsel had a 

very serious duty to perform, and feeling its weight, they could not 

consent to his relating any thing which was not evidence-positive and 
undeniable evidence according to the strictest rules for its admission. 

The Chief Justice stated, that the indictment was one for murder, 

alleging also on the part of the Prisoner, M'Lelian and others, a con­
spiracy to coinmit it, as well as the actnal murder. To sustain that al­

legation, a participation by act, word, or deed, must be shewn; but, 

(he continued,) you have done neither, and yet you wish to be permit­
ted to go into a conversation in which, you do not even assert that the 

Prisoner shared, which you do not prove that h~ even heard, and if he 

did, you bring no evidence to shew that he app'Toved.] 

Solicitor-GeneraL-It is no matter to me whether he approved-­

Chief Justice Sewell.-But to us it is; and a very greatmattel' too, 

for we cannot allow you to pursue an examination upon a conversation 
that the Prisoner did not share in, and which, till you prove he heard, 

you certainly cannot be prepared to shew he approved. 

Solicilor-General.-Did you embark in Mr. Archy's canoe? 

FaiUe.-Yes, I embarked, and La Pointe also, in Mr. Archy's canoe. 

Solicitor-General.-Then I am to un~erstand that your Honours think 

I cannot question him as to the conversation on shore? 

Chief Jl!stice Sewell.-Most certainly; that is my opinion, unles, 

you shew by some evidence that he heard it and apprlilved of it. I do 
c 
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not know whether lIfr. Justice Bowen cencurs with roe or not, but thnt 

is my opinion. 
Mr. Justice Bowen.-An opinion in which I perfectly coincide. You 

cannot by this witness prove tbat he even heard the conversation; and 

if you did you must go farther before I should consider it admissible evi­

dence aga.inst the prisoner : You should demonstrate by some act of his 

that he approt'ed as well as heard it. I consider the question as totally 

beyond the rules of evidence. 
Solicitor-{hneral.-Then I return to the general examination, aban­

doning, as is my duty after your Honours' decision, any question relative 

to this conversation.- Did you perceive the Indian in- t<be canoe? 

Faille.-Yes, I did perceive him. Before I embal'ked I saw that the 

Indian, that is to say, Joseph Fils de la Perdrix Blanche, was in 1\11'. 

Archy's canoe. We set off for Lake la Pluie, nnd the same day we 

met other canoes; I do not know the hour exactly, but it was the same 

day-we had before sought for the island where we had left Keveny, but 

without finding him. Some one belonging to our canoe (but it was nut 

me) asked the people whether they knew any thing of Keveny, and they 

answered that he was a little further on above the Dalles. The distance 

between the island \I-here we had left Keveny, and tbat where we fouDd 

him, was, perhaps, five or six leagues. The island where we left him 

was below the Dalles, and that where we found him was above the 

Dalles, 1\'[r. Arohy asked the Swan River people how Keveny man­

aged to live, and some one, but I do not know who, answered" he pur­

chases w hen he can, and sometimes he steals;" he is above the Dalles. 

[Mr. Stuart objected to the questions as irregulal'; he stated his ob­

jection was merely professional to the mode of examination; and did 

!lot arise from any appreheusion of tbe consequences to the Prisoner. 

The Chief Justice coneurred with 1\'[1'. St1,1art, saying, why not, 

]'[r. Solicitor, bring forward the unexoeptionable part of your testimony? 

'Vhy introduce a man- the witness himself does not know who he was, 

and, therefore, cannot prove a connection between the Prisoner and the 
person speaking.] 

Solicilor-General.-What-did -De Reinhard say; do you recollect? 

Faille.-I do not recollect what De Reinbard said; I do not recollect 

having heard De Reinhard say any thing in going to the island whertt 

we had left Keveny before meeting the Swan- River canoes, but upon 

tbeir answering that he was above the Dalles, he (De Reinhard) said­

" that he had taken him prisonc'I', and if he was found again, he would 
" not take care of Mm." I do not know whether he said it by way of 
threat or not. 

Solicitor-General.-Repeat the words he made use of. 
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Faille.-He said" It was I who took him prisoner, M!d if he w~s lound 

.. again, I will take care 01 him." 

[The Solicitor-General enquiring if .. be heard him say any thi~g 

e'1se," and the witness auswering that .. he did not there," Mr. Stuart 

requested that answer might be taken down.] 

Solicitor-General.-How did you understand the words" that he w01tld 

" take care o/him." 
[MI'. Stuart, in objecting to. the question, remarked, that it was ex­

tremely unpleasant to be compelled by professional obligation, as well 

as by imperious duty to the Prisoner, so frequently to oppose the mode 

pursued in the examination, but it could not be supposed, as counsel, 

they could sit still, and allow such a question to be put. 

MI'. Solicitor-General urged tbat words have force and meaning ac­

!lording to the mannElr in \vhich they are uttered; and unless a witness 

were permitted to explain what he understood, it would be impossible 

when (as in the preient instance) an equivocal expression was made use 

of ever to attain the real meaning of the speaker.} 

]ylr. Justice Bowen.-The words made use of here, I think, suffici­

Ently explain themselves, .. I took him prisoner, and, if I find him, I 
.. will take care of him." 

Mr. Stuarl.-I beJieve the words of the witness were" Si on Ie re­

trouvoit 'lu'il n'auroil pas soin," which certainly bear a very different 

import to .. I'll lake care rif him." 

Mr. Juslice Bowell.-I have taken it down, and I am confident he: 

.. did say c'est moi 'Ini I'avoil pris prisonnier, el si on le relrouvoil qu'il en 

'" aur~it soin." .. II was I who took him prisoner, and, if he was found 

.. again, he would lake care of him." 

lIfr. Stuart.-He said the other too, and I do wish that the whole of 

his answers may be taken just as he gives them.* 

SolicilO1·-General.-Did yon hear any other person say --

* The reporter has, several times, upon his notes both the expressions 
Ilttt"ibuted to the witness, although so different in their meaning. On 
this and mallY other occasions during the examination of the Voyageurs, 
hat! Bria·reus been a Stenographer he would have found sufficient em­
ployment for his heads aud hands in attempting to follow the explana­
tions of these witnesses; given with R rt\pidity,pecllliar to themselves, 
and in a patois or jargon almost un'intelligible, except to the Indian 
Trudcrs.-Candonr also demands that the reporter should admit, that 
his limited knowledge of the idiom of the French language, led Jqim at 
the moment, to affix rather a different import to that whicb he now 
finds a correct tl'anslation of the expressions rrqllirc. W. !O. 
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[Mr. Stuart objected, and expressed surprise that a course so conirll­

ry to all principles of law, should have been suggested by the Crown 

.,fficers; and still more, that it should be renewed after the Court had 

pn the present, as well as the former trial, decided such questions to be 

inadmissible. 
Mr. Solicitor-General, after nO,tieing that Mr. Stuart had objected 

to a question which he had I!ot even heard, contended that they ought 

not to be bound so strictly as if the affair had taken place in the district, 

where proof would have been easily within reach; but that every thing 

bearing on the justice of the case, might, and ought to be admitted; and 

whilst the Crown were only desirous to exhibit the whole of the facts, 

he trusted he was pursuing, in the production of them, the'method best 

j:alculated to save the time of the Court. 

The Chief Justice admitted that the case had its difficulties, but not 

lIny that could call upon the Court to i~vert the order of receiving tes­

timony, by allowing evidence to be given of a conspiracy for a particu­

lar purpose, before the fact itself was proved. Supposing for a Illoment 

that the evidence is admissible, still (he said,) there wa5 nothing to dis­

tinguish this case so as to justify an exemption from the general rule; 

first prove a fact, atld then strengthen it by corrQborative testimony, as 

much as you can.] 

Attomey-General.-I wish on this point to put merely one question to 

the witness, which I think is not liable to objection. Did you hear De 

Reinhard say, after the death of Keveny, "that he had done bis business." 
Faille.-Yes, I did hear De Reinhard say sp. 

[Mr. Stuart expressed his conviction that the Court would not take 

down the witness's auswer, 01' permit the Attorney-General to put such 
a question, as it was losing sight of the very first principles of the law on 

evidence for leading 'luestions to be proposed on an examination in chief~ 

The Chief Justice stated the rules for the examination of witnesses, 

to be three: first, that on an examination in chief, leading questions are 

not to be put; second, on a cross-examination that restraint is not i m,­

posed, because the witness is not supposed to be friendly; a third rule is 

where your own is an unwilling witn6ss and manifests an hostile disposi­

tion to the party who makes him a witness; the examination in chief is 

permitted to assume the shape of a cros~-examination; but this (said his 

Honour with marked emphasis,) must pe in consequence of a manifest 

indisposition on the part of the witness, amounting to an impracticabi­

lity of obtaining, in the usual mode of examination, those facts which 
he is in possession of, and which it is esselltial to the justice of the case 
lihould be exhibited in evidence. These being the rules there can be nQ 

difficulty in applying them. Most certainly you cannot be permitted 
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to put leading questions on an examination in chief; for, with the ex-

peption I stated, there exists no right to put them. 

:illr. Justice Bowen remarked, that the question, .. did the witness 

hear any thing said, and by whom, and when?" might he put, and if he 

ans~vered affir/Datively, he might then be examined as to what was ac­

~ually said; to which Mr, Stuart assented.] 

Solicitor-Genera I.-Did you pear De Reinhard say nothing else? 

F(1ille.-Not then; but I remember that after Keveny was dead he 

said he had done hjs business.-Before we got on shore I beard Main­

ville say, that if be were found he would kill Keveny; and that he 

V/ould have his hat and boots, and others said they would take his 

1Il'10thes, his coat and shirt. De Reinhard said nothing, and I cannot tell 

whether he heard the conversation. He was sitting in the canoe on the 

tiaIDe bench with the gentlemen, and was as ne.ar as I was, and I heard 

it; but I do not know whetber De Reinhard heard or not. 

[Mr. Stuart begged that the words, " I do not know whether De 

~einhard heard or not," might be ~aken down; to whi.ch the Solicitor­

General replied that tbe witness was in his hands, and as they formed 

no part of an answer to any que~tiol1 pnt by bim, be thought it complete­

ly unnecessary, and was proceeding with the examination when Mr. 

Stuart objected, rep1arking, that with all his respect for the Cr.:>wn 

bench, they stood in that Court upon equal terms, that he did not un­

derstand dictation, !lor would he -submit to it, and he thought JJe saw 

someth'ng very like ito He added, that he,:!lOuld be uqworthy of the 

gown he was honoured with, if he admitted any thing like the conduct 

of which he cOlPplained-conduct, in his humble opinion, equally incom­

patible with good manners and the accnstomed practice of the Court.­

To these observations the Solicitor-General rejoined, with some warmth, 

that it was not the first time th~t interruptiol18 had heen made whilst he 

was putting questions, and to apply no harsher epithet to them, they 

were certainly very irregular, and being equally irreconcilable to good 

manners as to the practice of the Court; he trusted his learned friends 

would abtain from them.-Mr. Stuart concei,-ed that he had not devi­

ated from the rules of politeness or of practice in insisting that the wit-­

ness' answer should be taken down entirely as he gave it.-The Chief 

Justice said, the answer is taken down entirely; J have taken every 

word of i~.-Mr~ Stuart begged pardon, sayil'lg, that was all he wanted.] 

• 
Ecramination reSllmcd by the Solicitor-General. 

SoUcitoT-G~neral.-Did you land where you weloe told tha\ YOIl 

would find Mr; Keveny? 



Faille.-Yes: when we arrh'ed where Keveny was, we landed, 

an!l Mr. Grant shook hands with I{eveny. 'Ve were afterwards at 

an Indian encampment: after wbich Mr. Archy told La Pointe and 

myself to embark in his canoe, saying at the same time, that he had no 

room to take Keveny in his canoe. De Hcinhurd 8aid that if he had a 

canoe he would not cal'e to take him to Lake la Pluie. I embarked 

witb Mr. Arcby and we all took our departure, with the exception of 

:De Reinhard, Mainville and Jose, who~' we left on shore with Keveny. 

lVe proceeded about two or three leagues, and then we landed and we 

~lept there. Some time after we had landed I heard a gun go off in the 

quarter whence we came. At that time we were between the Dalles 

"na the Portage des Rats, but I do not know whether we were nearel" 

1;0 the Dalles or to the POl·tage des Rats. Some tilue after, I think half 

:m hour, I saw a canoe approaching the shore where we were. There 

were in it De Reinhard, Mainville and Jme: Keveny was not there. 

Nr. Archy, l'IIr. Cadotte, Mr. Grant, and another ma,n came forward; 

and it was asked, and I beard it, but I cannot tell by whom-" what 

they had done with the prisoner Keveny?" Some one' in the canoe an­

.s\vered, " he is \\ ell hid where we have put him;" but I do not know 

which of them it was who gave this answer. At that time De Reinhard 

was in the canoe. I do not think it was the Indian who said so, as I 

do not believe that Jo>e speaks French enough to have answered in 

t~at way; bnt I cannot say which of them (that is to say, of Mainville 

and De Reinhard,) it was who said, "he is well hid where we have put 

him."" The canoe was full of blood, and I saw Keveny's clothes ill the 

canoe covered with blood. I knew them from having bef()re seen him 

wear them. I did not observe who landed first, but they all three came 

on ehore. It was Mainville who landed the clothes; and I then aske,l 

:l'oIainville," what had been done with the prisoner Keveny," and Main­

ville repiied, "that he and De Reinhard had killed him." De Rein­

hard \,as then iu the same place at the distanc~ of half the length of this 

room. We were encamped all together, but I do not know whethel" 

De Reinhard heard at' not. De Reinhard said and I heard him, " it ill 

Ii ,en'iee I have rendered to that man Keveny.u De Reinhard never 

tol,1 me that h, had killed him. It was most certainly Mainville onty, 

who tolll me " that it was he and De Reinhard who had killed himY 

Jl1r. Sluarl.-I trust the Court have got these answers of the witness 
[01' we comider them verJ! important. 

Chief Justi"" Seu'ell.-I will read to him his evidence as I have taken 
, I 

.. Il est bien cache ou nous Paronl mis." 



23 

it, I think I have it correctly; if he wishes then to explain or qualify 

any part of it he can. 
I 

The Chief justic~ then redd the wit1!ess~ testiYnoliy, beginning"lit "J:hr. 

Cdnoe was full of blood," and witness aimitted it to be correct. 

Solicilor-Gene'flll.-There is one little wora which I think yOUy Ho­

nour has mistaken the witness i", and wbieh occasions a considerable dif­

ference from wbat the witness I believe intended to say--

Chief Justice Sewell .. - Yes, a very little word will certainly make all 

the difference; whether he ,said I or he is certainly a very material 

point; but I have read to him his testimoney, which he admits to be 

correct, and I believe it is, for I have strove to take all he dill say; I 

will, however, read it to him again, and he may add to or explain it 110\11 

he likes, but I cannot alter what I have already taken. 

The eV'idence was read oy the Chief Justice, and the witness again ad­
mitted its correctness. 

E:rami'llation resuflled by the Solicitor-General. 

Faille.-t saw De :Reinhard wipe bis sword which was bloocly, and 

he then said the words, .. it was a service ulhich ne had Tendered." 'T' e 

,vere then altogether at th'e fire. Keveny had three Dr four trunks, and De 

neinhard opened them. I recDgnized the trunks to be the same which i 

hacl before seen in the possession of Keveny. There were three or four 

which De Reinhard opened in my presence, with the keys which be had 

in his hand. De Reinhard took the clothes ancl things aut of the trunl<s 

and divided them. The best of the things he chose hlmself, and hid them 

in the woods. The bad ones he put on ohe sille. The llIilifs wanted 

to have some tiTle shirts; but he would not give them any, saying that 

it was not then necessary, but that when he arrived at the post, he would 

give them gDod cottbn shirts. The lIUtijs said to De Reinhard that if 

he would not give them fine shirts, they would not have any at al1 ;­

and De Reinhard hid' them all in the woods. There was some whit~ 

Sl1gar and some tea; Mr. Archy would not have the tea, but the white 

sugar was put in his tent. 

BDl-icilor-General.-Did you see Keveny's clothes in the canoe? 

Faille.-Mainville shewed me Ke"cny's coat. It had the hale 'Of 11 

baJlnnd of a sword. 

The coat was here qifered to be produeed. 

[Mr. Stuart felt himself called on by a sense of professional duty, til 

object to any evidence being admitted of occurrences subsequent to the 



supposed death, till that fact was proved, aud to which :it pte~ent there 

was not Ii tittle of evidence. This objection was not made to benefit 

the Prisoner, by keeping any thing from the Jury-fur his counsel were 

anxious that the whole truth .hould be brought out-but with a view 

to conducting the proceedings in that regular way, which we consider 

indispensable; viz: to first demonstrate the actual death of the person 

charged as having been murdered, and then adduce what corroborative 

testimony you can; were any other' course to be allowed, the whole bu­

siness (said lVIr. Stuart,) may perhaps end in smoke after three or four 

days examination of witnesses as to facts ~l1pposed to be connected with 

a death, which is not even proved to have take place. 

The Solicitor-General expressed ,urp"ise at D1r. Stuart's opinion, 

contending that under the circumstances of the case, it was hardly pos­

sible to adduce stronger evidence of the death, than that which had been 

exhibited. To substantiate a charge of murder, it is desirable that the 

body should have been seen, but it is not indispensable. In looking at 
1 

tbis case, it will be ~een that better evidence' of the death could bardly 

have been produced. It is not as if there bad been a coroner to have 

viewed the body, and assisted by the opinion of a surgeon, as to the im­

mediate and actual cause, had by his jury returned a vertlict of how the 

decea~ed came by bis death; and it is competent to the Crown, in the 

absence of that positive evidence, which the botly having been seen 

would enable it to exhibit, to adduce that secondary evidence to which, 

from the circumstances of the case, we have been compelled to resort. 

lHr. Stuart observed, that the Solicitor-General had mistaken the 

nature of his objection to the admission of the proposed evidence, which 

was not to the method by which it was proposed to prove the death, but 

because no evidence had been oftered-td establisb tbat fact, which must 

form the substratum of all the subsequent evidence. From the evidence 

as it now stands, for aught we know, the man may be alive, for nothing 

bas been shewn to the contrary; although doubtless the Crown officers 

have in their hands irrefragable evidence of the death. Then wby not 

produce it? My objection is, that evidence of occurrences subsequent to 
the death ought not to be introduced till the death itself bas been proved. 

At the same time tbat he made these observations for the sake of regu­

larity, Mr. Stuart trusted that his learned friends tbe Crown o~cers, 

"would believe him incapable of entertaining, for a moment, all opinion 

~o unwarrantable as tbat the Prisoner had been brought to trial ~n an 
indictment for murder, without their bei~ in possession of tbe ~ost sa­

tisfactory evidence of the aetual death; but when without one title of 

evidence from which it could even be inferred-nut so much even as"the 

body having been seen-his learned friends proposed to go into evidence 



l.Is to clrcumstances which thllY allege took place subsequent to it. lob. 

ject to tire course, because it cannot be regular. On behalf of myself 

and my learned fl'iends, who concur with me as to the validity' of the 

objection, I assure the lear,ned Crown officers tliat it is purely profes': 

siona), and Dot made with the mosf remote idea of excluding testimony; 

but on the contrary, to urge lipon them'the necessity of producing wha~ 

we fear they,have o\-erlooked, namely, evidence of the death of tire man. 

Mr. Att6i'ney-General contended, that they were shewing tiy very 
strong and perfectly adinissible' evidence, tb-at the man W'l.S actually 

,dead. He referred fo Mr. Chitty, who gives the authorities whiCh sup.­

port the opinion; that to establish a charge of murd~r, althou-gh desirable, 

it was not indi~pensable that the body should nave been seen; and ar­

gued that if ever tbere was a case in which this secondary evidence were 
admissible, certainly the present was such a' case. 

The Chief Justice rema'rked~ that th~ general ruie had been'never 

to convict' for murder or manslaughter, unless the fact were proved, or 

the body at least fouml; this doctrine, he'oBserved, had been supported 
by Hale'and' others, but as it is sometimes impossible that this canbe 

d~ne, we must resort to secondary evidence of that which cannot be 
proved' by the mi)l'e posili'-e testimony, or in many cases,' conviction 

never could take place. In the preseot" instance, from the impossibility 

of exhibiting the primary or more positive testimony, the Crown offi­

cers contend they have a l'lght to prod~ce secondary evidence of the 

death, and tIley niost certainly Iiave; though I confess, I consider the 
order inverted' by the course that is taken: It might probably have 
been as well if the confession of the Prisoner, mentioned by Mr.-Attor­
riey-General'in'his opening, had been proved, as perhaps it would have 

established the fuct which- Mr. Stuart contends ought to be established, 

lind thel\ this evidence would have been merely confirmatory;' but, as 
all the f~cts were in possession of the Crown'officers, they bad und~ubt~ 
edly selected ac~ording to t1i-eir judgment the course best calculated to 

attain the ends of public justice, and the Court had not the slightest' 

wish to interfere with it, or in the smallest degree to intrench upon 'their 

rights ail public prosecutor. It would'merely hint, that if' oonsistent 

with their plan of conducting the prosecution, to prove the confession 
first, it might perhaps save time_ Relative to the objection'itself, the 

Court do not at the present t1~ink it good: The coat is producelfl,ls that 

which the deceased wore at the time the witness last saw him, rather 

than to prove any thing that took place after the alleged murder. 

What the snbsequent evidence might be, it was not for the Court to an­

ticipate; hut at pre~ent they considered it to be perfectly competent evi· 

dence. 
D 



:Mr. SWart remarked, that the course suggested by his Honour, ap~ 

]'leared to him to be, not only the most advantageous, but in reality the 

only regular one, though to the Prisoner's counsel, exeept for the sake 

of regularity, it wiis a mattel' of complete indifference what course was 

adopted, and therefore he should not press (as indeed after his Honour's 

clecision it would be highly imprdper for him to attempt to press,) the 

objection he had submitted.] 

Examination resumed by tlzt Solicitor-General. 

Faillc.-I believe the coat which is now shewn to me to be Keveny's 

coat. It is the coat which he used to wear when he travelled. The 

coat was in the little canoe in which the Prisoner, Mainville, and the 

Indian, came on shore. Mainvi,lle carried it on shore with the other 

clothes and things. It was he who took on shore all that was on board, 

and not Mr. De Reinhard. Mr. De Reinhard was a clerk, and clerks 

do not work. Mr. Keveny used to wear this coat when he was with 

me. Mainville pointed out to me in this coat the holes which he said 

were the cuts of a sword, and the hole made by a musket ball. 

Mr. Stuarl.-What Mainville may have said certainly cannot be 

evidence against us. Indeed I do not see what effect tbis old coat is to 

have upon the case at all. 

Solicitor-General.-I will state why thi~ evidence is adduced, and it 

is offered simply for this reason, and the Jury will judge what weight it 

ought to have upon the case. Here is a coat which we prove he was in 

the habit of wearing when travelling-that he had it when this witness 

was with him-and it is found in the canoe in which the Prisoner arrives, 

,vithout Keveny, though the last time Keveny was seen, it was in the 

company of the Prisoner. We simply prove the fact, the Jury will 
infer from it what they think proper. 

Examination resumed by the Solicitl17'-Gfneral. 

Faille.-It was De Reinhard who clivided the effects which were in 

the trunks; and Mainville took the Coats and other things which were 
not in the trunks of his own accord. 

[In answer to a question from the Chief Justice, as to how Keveny 

was dressed the day witness left him with De Reinhard, Mainville and 

Jose, Faille said he \VaS well dressed in II. blue coat.-De Reinhard for­

bade me to speak of this business., When we went away from Lake Is 
Plui~, about a month and a half after, to go t6 Fort William, he told 
me, If met by the people of Lord Selkirk, not to speak of the death of 
Keveny. He forbade me to say that he had killed Keveny.] 
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Chief Justice Sewell.-That he had kille4 ~eveny, or oi the'death c.f 
Keveny? 

Faille.-Of the death of Keveny, and of the matter that had hap­

pened in the River Winnip\c. De Reinhard did not th~n come down 

with me from Lake la Pluie. 

Solicitor-Genel'al.-I submit to your Honours that there is. now evi­

dence sufficient to entitle us to go into the conversation between the 

witness and l\i'Lel1;~.n, J'ela,tive to the treatment experienced by witness 

rOl' having prevented Joseph, Fils de Ill. Perdrix Blanche, from killillg 

I{eveny. The first piece of evidence to entitle us to do so is, that it took 

place within the hearing of the Prisoner; and, if,we do 110t do it now, 

we shall, after we lJave proved his confession, have to call this witness 

Ilgain, as in the confession he relates the conversation to have t\lkell 

place in his hearing. 

ftlr. Stuart,-I must still object to such evidenc~as to the pre­

tended confession, of whie\! illY learned friend spea],s, it is the sa\lle, I 

,~uppo.se, !is a printed paper which I hold in my hand, a paper which it 

would add more to the credit of persons of a certain rank, if it had 

never appear~d, for I ..cannot refrain from saying, that I consider its 

publi~atio.n as disgraceful, and calculated only to prejudice the public 
Illind and endanger the safety of a fair and equitable trial. 

Solicilor-General,-I really I\1ust interrupt the learneel gel\tlp1llan. 

We are making 110 refel'ence to a printed paper: when I spCi1k of a con­

fession, I speak "f a confession in the hand-writing of the Prisoner, and 

I may be permitted to remal'k on the subject of printed papers, or any 

deEil'e to prej~ltlice the public mind, that my learned fl'iend the Attor­

ney-General most tlistinctly told the Jury, in his opening speech, that 

they we,.e tlllall] to dismiss from their minds every thing \\ hich they 

might I~ave heard upon the subJect. I therefore trust that we shall hear 

no more on the subject of endeavours to preJudice the publi~, 01' of in­

terrupting the regular and pure COUl'se of public justice. 

)fIr. Slltart,-When I make the,e ohservations I do not apply them 

to, the learned CrOWD lawyers. I could not, for I l;now them to be in­

capable of meriting sl1ch an accusation, as an endeavour to pervert the 

pure stream of national justi~e; but when I see in a pl'intetl publication, 

-)II a subject connected with the interests of the private pl'osecutor, that 

','ery confession which in the exercisQ of his o,fficial duty as a magistrate 

he hud takcn, I canllOt refrain from saying that it is to be feared he has 

overlooked his cluty, and has publi,hed it, for how else could it have 

got to the world? and I am not to be restrained by any consideration 

ror the elevate(ll'ank of this magistrate, on the contrary, that ought to­

have Qperated us a security fOl' the most accu)'ate fulfilment of the duti~s 



~~posed upon him: particularly as from the peculiar delicacy of his sit.\l­
ation, one would have imagined he must have felt most anxious that no 

part of his conduct should be exposed to tJ.!e shadow of suspicion; bu~ 
the motives for such a publication are too glaring to be misunderstood; 

and, I repeat, that it would have been more consistent ,vith the distin­
guished rank of the magi~trate if it had never appeared. As to the col)­

versation it cannot be evidence; when this pretended con fession-is offered 

we shall have an opportunity of meeting it, and, therefore, till then I 

Tefrain from taking notice of it. 

;Examination r,esumed by the Solicitor-General. 

Solicitor-Genero.l.-What did Mainville say at the time you met the 
Swan River people? 

Faille.-Mainvill~ said--
Mr. Stuarl.-That wo'nt do indeed-what paye we to do with what 

Mainville, or any body else has gaid. I really did hope my Jeamed 
friend would not have attempted this course again. 

Solicilor-General.-It was said in his hearing, an.! I beg leave to 
contend that it entitles me to introduce it as evidence against the Pri­
s,oner. 

(Mr. Stuart replied that every thing said· in 4is hearing was not ne­
cessarily to belong to him. If a man chooses to talk bigb treason in my 

hearing, I am not ne~ssarily to be pung fOI' it; hut if tbis doctrine i~ 
sound, I should be. 

Tpe Cbief Justice said, that did not follow, but if you heard a 
~an say, "you helped me to cut another man's throat, they might 
prove what you said upon hearing it, and accQl'ding to what that prov­
ed to be, would be *e effect such lao'guage in your 4earing would havlj 
upon you.] 

Solidlor-General.--What did Mainville say? 

Faille.-I heard him say, that he would kill Keveny. He gpoke of 

bis intention to kill Keveny the same day, and it was the day befor~ 
the death of Keveny. 

Mr. Stuart.-Tbat as~uredly is not evidence against us. 

Chief Jus/ice Sewell.-N 0, certainly-but it may be for you, and 
very strong too, and therefore I take it. 

Cross-examination conducted by 11Ir. VaT/Jelson. 

Failu.--The first time I saw Keveny, was in the River Winnipic. 
He was ill irons, with some Bois-br.llis in a canoe. I was then in a 



."anoe'COm.n1BJ,Iaetl'hy Mr. Cadotte, a cle,rk oftpeNorth-West CO)llpany. 

Mr. WDonell was in company with us in another canoe. M,r. M'Do­

nell caused the irons to be takeu oft' from Keveny, and he breakfasted 

with Mr. M'DoneU. I do not know that Mr. Keveny complained tG 

Mr. l\l'Donell, nor that tbe Bois-bl'Ules bad said t]lat Mr. Neveny had 

killed tbree men. M,l'. M'Donell is one of the gentlemen 0.£ the N<lrtll­

West (Jompany, and he gave l\IIr. Keveny 11 bot~le of wine ,and a bottle 

,of rum, and put him in tbe canoe with me and La Pointe. We did not 

~ike to go, because the Metils ~ad told us he was mis,chievou8 or wicked; 

but we were ordered to go, and the r ndian was given us to serve liS 'a 

:guide for Lake la Pluie. On the way, the second or third day, Keveny 

was uneasy, because the Indian had-endeavoured to kill him. The In­

~ian ~id not speak French, al}d I do not Hpeak the Indian lauguage.-

"The Indian made signs that he wanted to kill him, and Keveny was 

angry at us. The Indian said that Mr. M'Donell would be pleased if 

he killed him. He said in French, " In killing 8ctguenash Mr. M'Do­

" nell will be pleased." I understood lly " Snguenash," an " English­

man," but I did not then know Keveny's name. I knGw t..hat Joseph 

the Indian frequently wanted to kill Kevel)Y, while he was under the 

charge of La Pointe and me. I do not recollect having seen La Pointe 

and the ,Indian at Keveny's tent with stakes. I have no knowledge 
t,hat the Indian witl1 La Pointil and anotber were at the tent, saying) 

at the same time, that they would kill Keveny. 

Mr. Valifelson.-Did you ever relate to anyone that La Pointe 

and another had provided themselves wit/l stakes to help the Indian to 

kill Keveny? 

Fa-ille.-I dq rot recollect having ,said so; perhaps I did; I do not 

remember it. I was sometimes a good deal beside myself, {demonte.) 

Mr. Vanfelson.-Did you ever say to anyone that La Pointe's 

heart was black enough to have killed Keveqy, if you had listened ttl 

him? 

Faille.-No. I do not recollect having said so. In the course of 

pur route we met l\ir. Stuart and Mr. Thomson. Mr. Thomson ,advised 

me to return, .but we diel not, and afterwards the Indian left us; before 

which he had a quarrel with La Pointe, who wounded his thumb in 

wielding a paddle. The Indian ran away and we left him. He was 

almlilst naked, but he had provisions; he had sold his blanket before for 

a capot. We kept his gun, a~d he had no canoe. We left Keveny II 

~ittle while before in another island. At the time we left him, he had 

laid down, hut was not asleep. He hacJ no arms. We were encamped 

!Ipon an island farther on, waiting the arrival of canoes, when 1\1r. 

,Archy and others met with us~ It was I who called to them to land. 
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I know Mr. Cadotte well, a!ld he asked me what had become of th~ 

Indi:\D, IIml I answered that I,a Pointe had beat him, and that he 

,bad run away into the woods. I had not touched him myself, and 

I do not know that La Pointe and I quarreled as to who had beat 

him, or that La Pointe said it was I who beat him, and that it was 

on that account that Mr. Archy had struck me. The question wa3 

asl~ed what had been done with the prisoner, and I answered that he 

had been left on another island. T\lereupon ))'11'. Arcby ~aid "there 

" was no occasioh to beat the Indian or to l~ave 119anrlolled the priso­

ner,>' and he beat us with the paddle. Mr. M'Lellan enquired if l 
could point out the island where we had left }{evcny, and I answered I 

coulq, and I emblirked in the canoe with Mr. Archy to go there. A(­
terwards we met other canoes belong~ng to the people of Swan River, 

and from them we learnt that MI'. Keveny was above the Dalles, aD!l 

w~ wellt up and foulld him there,. Mr. K~veny was then dl'essed very 

neatly, like a gentleman, ane! he bad not the clothes on which have been 

shewn to me here, nor those wl.tic.h he wore when we left ~lim on the 

island, but was in very good trim, ""nd dressed like a g?ntleman; likll 

a. v~ry well-dressed gentleman. Mr. Archy said Ke\'eny ()ould not 

embark; with him, because th,e canoe was too much loadeu, having ten 

men and five gentierr,en, making fifteen i,n all., The usual complement 

for snch a canoe. i, ten, that is ~o say, eight IVc,rking men ami two gen. 

tlemen. Mr. Grant was tllere, an~ Mr. Keveny did not appear to b; 

angry with hil;\l. He was satisfied, I believe; hut hG spoke in English, 

and I do not understand English-but he did not seem to be vexed. 

When we went a\\ay, I lert Keveny with De Reinhard, Mainville, 'iIl,(l 

Joseph Fils de la Perdrix Blanche; but I cannot tell whether Keveny 

embarked with them. I am quite sure that I heard two guns go off lha,t 

evening. 'Ve 'vere on ~hore" an<;l encamped, when I heard both the 

reports; one gun was fired at a bustard, and the other I hea rd before we 

had encamped, aUtI the people might have heard it as well as me. Iu 

that quarter it is usual to hear the reports of guns, (lond where there are 

Indians and peopie. Keveny once tded to. overturn the CIIno!:, wheAl 

we turne.! back to go to Bas de la Rivicl'e, and if he had succeeded, ,,-e 

~hould hav\l been dl·owned. I have heard that Mainville has since ab­

sconded; and I ~a,w Fils de Pudrix B1a,nche at Montreal this ~pring. 

I saw him at a distance, and I did not speak to him. The clothes were 

partly washed by Joseph and Mainville. There was hlood upon them, 

and I saw ,,'ashed, a, coat, waistcoat, and a striped cotton shirt of Ke­

veny's; but I saw none of the things in the canoe "hich he had on when 

we left him on the little island, excepting his hat. Those cJothes wel'C 

!l blue cloth aoat and wai,tcont: but the," in the cano~. were the, otd, 
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eiothes in which he travelled. The last gun which I iieard go off wa! 

fired at a bustard, as Mainville told me, and there was a bustard whicH 

they had killed and thrown into the canoe. I am sure of it, beeause I 

plucked it myself. The next day we. took our departure fOI" Lake la 

Pluie. I afterwards saw De Reinhard a prisoner at the Fort of J .. ake 

]a Pluie. It was the people ef Lord Selkil·k who were in search of me 

and La Pointe. Both De Meui-ons and Canadians came after us, bllt 

t'hey had no musket~. There were, perhaps, five or six tif thein, and I 
was taken prisoner and La Pointp- also. Captain D'Orsonnens appeared 

to be master, and he sent us to Fort William. Captain. Matthey and 

another received our depositions, and the next morning we swore to 

tllP-m before Lord Selkirk. After I had made my deposition, I. was 

perfectly at liberty; When I werit up; FoH William was in possession 

of the N orth-W est Company; but when I came there, after being ~e"t 

thithel" by Captain D'Orsonriells, I foun,l it in the possession of l.o~d 

Selkirk's people. I did not enter into my lord's service, but I was made 

to work ~e~-en or eight days, in mder t6 go a wintering. I alll not in 

the service of my LoM Selkirk, but I worked a few days in the canoe~ 

and bateaux. I would not go to Montreal, without being paid the ar­

rears due to me by the North-West Company, and they were paid me; 

! received them by a letter. They promised to pay me for the time I 

Mlould remain here, and to keep me, and to make me a recompense. 

Sat1trday, 23dMay, 1818. 

PRESENT AS YESTERDAY. 

'l'he Jury were called, and being present. 

JEAN BAPTISTE LA POINTE, Sworn, 

Examined by the Attorney-Generar. 

[AI La Pointe's testimony was to tIle same facts throughout Ro 

Faille's, it is not thought necessary to do more than exhihit any addi­

tional circumstances that were brought fOl·ward, and any variations in 

bis account of the same facts. His detail of. occnrrences up to losing 

!ight of Paul's brigade was almost verbatim the ~ame as Faille's. Ht­

then proceeds.] 
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La Pointe.-In the evening we landed on an island, and' encamped 

for the night. It blew too liard, and the Indian would not proceed, 

being aware of the danger. That evening the Indian cut two stakes, 

and wanted us to take them making signs at the same time with his gun 

that he wished to kill Mr. I{enny, saying iu French that" D'Ir. M'Do­

,. nell will say it is good," shewing- with his gun as if he would kill ,him. 

The next morning, perceiving that the Ind'ian' was vel'y much vexed 

and angry with us, because we had not approved of it, and that he 

wanted to leave us; we were aesirous of going away. We left Keveny 

oa an island below the Dalles because he wa~ too iii. 

[Mr. Valliere requested the Court to take that answer.] 

La Pointe.--After leaving ]{evcny Ire proceeded ,10wn the River, 

but we ascended again to an Indian village above the Dalles, Jose say­

ing that he had lost his way, and did not know the route. 'We we.(C 

very angry and dissatisfied, having but a very small quantity of prm'j·· 

sions. The Indian was angry, and in his rage he broke the canoe, and 

was forced to buy another lVith a blanket of Keveny's, and his keltle, 

lind having got a birch-bark map from the Indians, we continued 0111' 

route back from the River Winnipic. On the way we had a quarrel 

for he would not let us take our meals nor boir our kettle_ We werl' 

then on shore at the place called Portage des E~claves (Slav~ Portage,) 

We fought together, and the Indian run away int~ the woods, and we 

left that place without him. We went up the river to find the place 

where we had left Keveny; ,but, fearing to lose ourseh'eR, we made for 

the shore, and landed on an island to wait the arrival of canoes. The 

fifth day we saw It canoe coming up from Bas de la Riviere; and in 

that canoe were De Reinhard, Mr. Archy, Grant, Cadotte, and some 

Bois-brule!; Mainville and Desmarais were there among the Bois-bruhlSo 

The Indian Jose was there. one named Le Vasseur, and ahoth'er called 

little Joseph Lorrain. They asked us " what we were doing there ?" 

and ., what we had done with the Indian?" (they were then iu their 

canoe.) It was Cadotte who asked this, and" why we had heaten the 

.. Indian P" I answered him that we had a quarrel, and th'at the Indian 

wanted to shoot Keveny. Cadotte repliea, you were told to do nothing 

and that he was your guiae. I said to him, .. Mr. Cadotte, you did 

.. not tell us to leave; or to kill Keveny." Cadotte then answered, 

.. that wa.s not your concern; you are rasca1s and blasted blackguards, 

" and you both deserve a threshing; you have nothing to do with the 

.. Indian." It wa& Mr. Cadotte who said this, and thereupon Mr. 

Arehy landed quite in a rage, and he first beat Hubert Faille. I tried 
to get away, but he caught me and beat me too. 

Mr. Valliere de St. Real.-I do not pel'ceive that this can be any 



~vidcnoe against the Prisoner, hal' do I conceive that it is at all regular 

10 ent"er upon an investigation of circum~tances, which, although not 

.direct evidence against the PrisQner, may b~ve a tendency to impres' 

the min"us of the Jury un favourably. 

AUoTlley-General.-1 shall immediately connect the Prisoner with 

ail these transactions, my very next question associates him with the 

ivhole.-Was De Reinllard at this" time as near to Cadotte as you 

were? 
" La Pointe.-De Reinhard was hearer to Mr. Cadotte than I waS. 

for they were both in the canoe"together, 1\ir. Archy did land; that 

is quite certain; and afterwards we embarked to go in search of Keve­

l1y. MI'. Arcby a~ked us "where it was that we had left Keveny,;' 

and we answered that we hall been endeavouring to find the piace again, 

but that \ve were not sure where it was. He replied, " we have got 

the Indian and he knows where to find him,;' (Keveny.) Grant said, 

.. you want to conceal him, try' to forbid now, (essayez Ii Ie dejeruire,) 

you will be well received-you shall swallow the contents of my gun." 

'Ve pursued our route and the next'day we came to t.he place where we 

had left Keveny.-" -[Witness here related the conversation of the iIi~ 

l!fs, and Ihe Swan River people, ris given bJJ Faille, page 18.]--Before 
corning to the island, I heard De Reinhard say r .. i will take gOlld" 

care of him; it is I who will kill him." ,then they landed they 

were all armed, De Reinharll had a dagger; it was neither a sword nor 

a bayonet fat certain, but a dagger as long as eighteen inches. Keveny 

w~s founli above the Dalles with the Indians. We learnt from the peo­

ple of the Swan River canoes, whom we met below the Dalles under 

the conduct of Ducharme the guide, that he would be found there, and 

we consequently repaired tbitiler. Some body asked, but I cannot (eU 

who, " bow does he do to live," and they answered, (tilat is to say, the 

Swan River people,) " some times he steals, and some times he purcha­

ses," and the MitiJs of 0\\1' canoe replied, .. he "sball not ~teal long;" hut 

:i: do not kn~w whether De Reinhard was near enough to bear it.-­

\Vhell we found him again, 1\1r. Grant shook hands with Keveny and 
they conversed together. ' 

Chief jl~stice Scwell.-Did 1\Ir. i{evcny and the gent1~men dine to­
gethe,'? 

La POinte.-N,o, they did not eat together. 

ExaminatiQn resumed by the Attorney-General. 

La Poin/c.-W e went to fetch Keveny's baggage-they put it 011 

Ii.ard of Mr. Archy's large canoe; not all of it, but a good part. We 
. E 
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remained two hours on shore; and I, and all the others, excepting Ke­

veny, De Reinhard, :l\'[ainville, and Joseph the Indian, embarked with 

Mr. Archy, and we went away leaving the three with Keveny. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Why did you leave these men? 
La Pointe.-They ~topped behind to Callow in a small eanoe, which 

the Indian women were about gumming. 

Examination resumed by the Attorney-General. 

La Pointe.--We continued to go on before and lost sight of the oth· 

ers. We proceeded afterwards for three leagues or thereabouts, when 

we disembarked and encamped for the night. Before arriving there, 

and while we were on the water, we heard the report oCa gIlD. We had 

proceeded about half way, and aile of the Bois-brules in the canoe thea 

said, .. did you hear that report of a gun P the man is killed." 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Did you hear it or the others? 

La Po-inie.-When we had landed I heard the report of a gUD. I did 

not hear the first report when the canoe was OD the water, but the others 

heard it; and when I said before that we had heard the report of a gun 
upon the water, I never meant to say that I had heard it myself, but 

that the people in the canoe said that they had heard it. I heard but 
ODe rep'ort; Mainville heard two. 'When Mainville was about coming 

all shore, some bustards flew past, and Mainville fired his gun and killed 

one of them. I was then on shore, perhaps I had been an hour on shore 

before I saw the canoe, but I saw the canoe at the time of the second 

report. It was perhaps an hour, more or less, between the two report. 
which I heard.. It was Mainville who killed the bustard, and I saw it. 

Jmt as the canoe arrived, some one on shore asked" what they had 
done with Keveny?" and De Reinhard, who was then in the canoe, 
answered, .. he is well hidden, he wo'nt come back again." Wbile I 

was cOD"ersing with Mainville, Reinhard landed, and the whole party 

mixed together, and Reinhard was amongst them. One of the Bois­

brules a~ked ~Iainville whether Mr. Keveny had made .. great deal of 
resistance when he was killed. The party were then round a fire and 

De Reinbard was nearer to Mainville tban I was. I cannot tell the 

distance exactly; perhaps he was as near as you are to me, or from the 

witness box to the Judges' Bench, but De Reinhard was certainly 

nearer to Mainville than I wa~ myself. Mainville replied to the ques­
tion of the Bois-brule!, that Mr. Keveny said he wa, ill and desired to 
go on shore; and that he had been put on shore, and on re.embarking 

De Reinhard had stabbed bim in the back with a dagger or sword, that 

XeYeny was crllshed and doubled himself down upon the stroke, alltl 



that De Reinhard attempting to give him a second cut with the sword, 
Mr. Keveny, in rising, seized hold of De Reinhard's dagger or sword 
with his hand, and thflt thereupon De Reinhard i:alle~ to Mainville to 
kill him, and that Maillville then fired his gun, and sent the ball through 
his neck, and tbat Keveny fell upon the canoe; and Mainville added, 

that if he had not been quick in firing. Keveny would still have had 
.trengtb enougb to wrest the dagger or sword from De Rehlbard. 

Chief Justice Sewdl.-What did De Reinhard say when Mainville 

related this II 
La Pointe.--He said nothing, bllt conversed with the others; but I 

do not know what he said. 
Chief Jusllee Sewell.-Did Mainville speak as in common II 
La Painte.-He spoke loud enough for me to heal' very well, and I 

did hear him very well. 

Examination continued by the Attorney-General. 

La Pointe.-I saw Reinhard's sword afterwards, but I did not ob­
serve whether it was bloody or not. I saw Keveny's things, and Mr. 
De Reinhard began to divide the baggage and the clothe~. I saw the 
things in the canoe all bloody. Mainville and the Indian brought the 
things on shore. They were full of blood and I saw them washed the 
eame evening by them. Tliere was a great deal of blood in the canoe 
at the bottom; and certainly more than the blood of a bustard. Ten 
bustards would not have given so much blood. I do not believe that 
the bustard was ever in tbe canoe, for I ~alV it fall in the water, au(\ 
1 believe, it was thrown on shore, without having been put in the canoe 
at all. De Reinhard divided I{eveny's things and I saw it, When he 
begun he said, .. as it was I who killed him, I will have the first choice 
.. of his things; and as Mai~ville was with me, and as~isted me in kil­
.. ling him, he sball have more than the others." There were two 
small boxes of paper~, one was a round box covered with skin, and a 
small thing or writing-box (une boile pour ecrire.) [Witness here ex­
plained that .. la boile pour tcrire" was similar to a portable writing 
desk which Mr. Justice Bowen hlld berOl'e him.] I saw some money 
in t~e writing box, and it was Mainville who had the money. After 
De Reinhal'd had opened the boxes he began himself to divide the things. 
He put the best in a box for himself, but when the Bois-brules saw that 
De Reinhard wanted to take possession of the best things, the fine shirts 
and 80 on, they would not take any thing, exceptin~ Mainville, who 

Got some of the clothes. De Reinhard said, "I will give you cotton 
" shirts when we get to Red River," and that vexed them. The next 
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~ay De-Reinhard !aid the things must be le(t here, and they call be got 

again on our return. I saw the things concealed (cacM) by 0. party' of 

Bois-brulis belonging to the same canoe as we. I do not know whe­

ther De Reinhard was with them then or not; hut I know that De 

Reinhard gave orders to conceal them. I received orders" not to talk 

" of this." 
_Mr. Justice Bowen.-Who was it gave you these orders? 

La Pomte.--It was Mr. De Reinhard; he told me "not to speak 

" about it," and I asked about what, and De Reinllard amwered " of 

" the murder of 1\1r. Keveny." He said likewise, that" if it were 

" talked of, it would not be him, but we (the others) who would be 

" punished for it." 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Are you sure, quite sure, that it was De 

lteinhard who said those words, and not Mainville, or any other per­

son? 

La Poinle.-I am quite !ure that it was De Reinhard said it; and 

Mainville said, that" if I spoke of this murder I should he hun?," anll 

I am quite sure of that. 

TM coat WaS here produced. 

Attorney·Gcneral.-Have you seen this coat before? 

La Poinle.-Yes. I have seen a coat like that, of the same colour 

and of the same kind ofclotb, but newer, and certainly a little longer. 

I receive~ it in exchange from Mainville for a capot. I took it because 

I was going to winter at Lake la Pluie, and I had nothing but a shirt. 

All my clothes had bep.n left at Bas de la Riviere in Mr. Cadotte's ca, 

noe, at the time that Mr. Keveny was given to me in charge. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Did you give tbat coat to any other person? 

JA Poinle.-Yes.- I parted with it to Hubert Faille. 

Ji;xaminillion resumed by the .Attorney-General. 

La Pointe.-At Lake la Pluie I had no things, nor any clothes, 

none at all but only one shirt; I was almost naked. When De Reinhard, 

Mainville, and Josepb, arrived, I saw a bloody coat in the canoe, which 

I had before seen upon Keveny, at the period he was under our charge. 

I recollect it vf'ry well, and I saw there were holes in it in the neck and 

in the hack; one large one, and one smaller one. I can certainly take 

my oath that the coat I saw in the canoe was Mr. Keveny's coat. I 

did not take the coat in my hands, but I saw it was pierced by a 
baJi. ' 
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C'ro!s-examinalion conrluGterl by Mr. Valliere ,de St. IUal. 

La Painte.-It was below the Dalles that Mr. M'Donell met witb 

t\,eveny. He did not appear to have any anjUj.~sity against him; but, 

on the contrary, he call sed his irons to be taken oft'. Mr. M'Donell 

belongs to the North-West Company; he is a partner as I have under­

stood. They ate together, and he gave him two bottles of liquor, and 

snme ~mall biscuit. Mr. Keveny spoke English, and I never heard hilll 

r;ay any thing in French. Jose Fils de Perdrix Blanche did not speak 

French; he spoke a few words, he could utter a few words, but I do 

not know whether he even undel'stood them himself. I do not speak 

the Indian languagp, and the Indian could speak bllt a very few FreRch 

words, yet the signs which he malic at the ~ame time, made him to be 

understood. Faille once qnarrclell with ~eveny. I{evellY wanted to 

strike him. It was at the Portage des Rats, or at the Po.'ta;,;e des 

Bois, and about the time we met Mr. Thommn, who advi,ed us to turn 

back. Mr. Keveny did not choose we Fhould turn back, and he el)tiea. 

voured to upset the canoe. I was afraid that he would have upset it. 
I have no knowledge that Faille ever was about a;si,ting Joseph with a 

stake, or in any other way to kill Keveny, nor that any other man ever 

Bet about cutting a stake, and went with it to the door of Keveny's tent 

with the Indian, in order to kill him if Joseph missed him. We left no 

arms with Keveny; we had none oUl'selves; excepting Joseph, ,,·ho had 

a gun. He hall no fire. It·was upon lin ishnd that we left him, and he 

hall no canoe, nor any other means of leaving the island, but by swim­

ming, (the mainland was not far oIT,) or by making a small ,raft, or by 

waiting for a canoe going by to take him oif. The reason "hy we left 

Keveny on the island was because we had no more provisions than a 

kettle (chaudiere) or two; anll, also, th"t we might go and get some 

provisions from the brigade, and because the Indian did not know the 

way, 8lil\ would not take him on board. Ke\'eny had no axe nor any 

thing to cut wood with. I did not know at the time whelhel' he had 

materials for stt'iking fire or not. When the Indian Joseph went away 

from us, that is ,after we had left Keveny, he had been for a long time 

in the habit of maltreating me; he struck me with the paddles. He 

kept possession of the I:ar of the canoe, anel was eat; ng whilo we were 

paddling, and could not eat; and the next day being at Portage Ile! 

Esclaves, he would not let us take our meals, he would nQt give 1\S any 

thing for breakfnst. 'Ve landed our things, and he took his gun anil 

pointed it at me, but Faille snatched it froin him. The gnn had 110 

llint; I am quite convinced that the gun had no (hnt. He left us ther!', 
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and 1 did Dot 5ee him again, till after 1 was beaten by Mr. Arcb1, when 

he had !l Scotch cloak about him. At that time bit hand was wounded. 

The answers which 1 gave to the people of Mr. Archy's canoe were 
given beCore Mr. Archy beat me, and before 1 was aware that Joseph 
was in the canoe. I said I had led from the Indian after I bad fought 
with him. I cannot recollect exactly all that was said; I was then very 

much frightened, and scarcely knew what I was aboul, but I was no\ 
mad, although I said just now that I was half-mad when we were upon 
the islanil. We were, I believe, fifteen in number in the canoe when 
we leCt the islanil. I did not dispute with Faille when I saw the Indian 
saying that it was him and not me that had beaten him; Faille said that 
it was me, and that was trne. I did not accuse Faille of having beaten 

him. Mr. Archy when he flogged me did not say why he struck me, 
but the same day in the canoe, he told me it was because the Indian 

.bould see it; and I said to him, that he ought not to have Bogged so 
hard. In the canoe the people sometimes changed seats. The day that 
I embarked with Mr. Archy, there was sometimes one man, and at 
other times two, between me and the gentlemes. I do not recollect 
whether I was next the steersman or near the steersman. Lorrain 
paddled behind the gentlemen, and there were no other gentlemen 01S 

bOaJ'd but Mr. Archy, Mr. Grant, Cadotte, and De Reinhard, and they 
did not paddle, nor did the Indian Jose. I do not know, for certain, 
that all the people in the canoe heard me when I related that the In­
dian wanted to kill Keveny. I believe that the canoe was under way 
at the time, but if it had been lying still they would have heard me. 
It was the same evening, I believe, that I recounted the occurrence 

between the Indian and, Keveny. I never said, nor I never heard FaiJfe 
eay, that he and another repaired with the Indian Joseph to the en­
trance of Keveny's tent with stakes to finish him, or to kill him, if the 
Indian missed him; blAt I said that the Indian had cut stakes, and that 
he brought them to us, shewing us with his gnn, and by his signs, giving 
us to understand that if he missed, his aim, we were to do it with the 
stakes. 1010 not remember having said, nor having heard Faille say, 
that the reason why Keveny had not been killed was because the Indian 
had done nothing. Faille did not say, to my knowledge, and certainly 
not before me, " if we had not besought La Pointe, Keveny would 
.. have been killed; La Pointe would have struck the blow, his heart 

" was blallk enough to do it;" and, I am also certain, that he never 

uttered in illY presence any other words to the same effect, as far as 1 
heard. I do not know whether the others who were in the cauoe heard 

lilt. Grant, when he said to me, "come, come; try to forbid him now, 
.. you shall be well received; I would make you iwallo\v what I have 
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•• got iD my gun. He said it in the c'anoe, in-the place where he sat. 

Mr. Justice Bowett.-Was the canoe then under way? 

La Pointe.-I do not recollect whetRer the canoe was at the time 

lying still, or whether it was going on. Le Vasseur, Mainville, and 

some other Bois-brulils @poke quite loud, properly so, of killing Keveny, 

~nd all in the canoe made a jest of it, and they spoke loud, properly 

loud (haut comme il faut). It was in the canoe, before we came to the 

island where we found Keveny, that De Reinhard spoke of killing Ke­

veny, and he said it in the same manner as be generally spoke, not aside 

or secretly, but aloud, and the words were, " I will take good care ~f 
" him, 'it is I who will kill him." It was at the time that the Bois­

brules were expressing themselves about killing Keveny, and dividing 

his clothes and things, that De Reinhard said this. The last time I saw 

Mr. Keveny; and that was at the period when we left him with De 

Reinhard, Mainville, and Joseph, he was better dressed than I had 

before seen bim •• The clothes which were in the calloe were not the 

same as those_which he had on when we left him, hecause Mainville told 

me he had changed his drcss before he embarked. 

Mr. Valliere de St. Reaf.-The Court, I hope, are not taking down 

the latter part of this answer, it forms no part of an answll" to any 

question I have put to him. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-I most certainly am, Mr. Valliere, and feel 

myself bound to do so. 

M". Valliere.-l must then, with great submissien to the Court, 

object to its being taken; it is at the best but mere hearsay evidence. 

Solicilor-General.-I must submit to the Court that there cannot bl! 

a doubt, but that the whole of a witness's answer should be taken. Jfu 

is asked a question, the object of which cannot for a moment be con­

cealed; the witness, in the former part of his answer, appears to meet 

the wishes of my learned friends, but when he offers to account for this 

apparent weakening of the evidence on the part of the Crown, then be 

is to be immediately stopped. I tru~t that the Court, thinking us fuUy 

entitled to the an!Wer as the witness gives it, will insert it entire on 

their notes. 

[Mr. Valliere de St. Real urged that the mild spirit of Briti8h 1m,. 

considering the strength of the Crown in its character of P!lblic prose-, 

cutor, is inclined to extend, rather than limit, to the prisoner the exer­

cise of every privilege to which he is by the laws entitled..,..-he contended 

that it was the undoubted right of particularly the defendant to have 

the entire answer taken down, because the witness adduced with all that 

bias on his mind, which the freedom allowed in cross-examination pre­

lupposes him to have towards the party bringing him before the Court, 
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had himself benefited the prisoner by bis testimony; but, if, under" 

cross-examination, it was permitteol to a witness to intl'oduce, in answer 

to a direct question, any extraneous observation of bis own, or, as in 

the present instance, mere hearsay evidence, of what some other person 

had told him, and the officers of tbe Crown to insist on taking it down, 

we are then 80 completely at the mercy of the malice or ignorance of 

either a wicked or an uninformed witnes~, that the great and extensive 

benefits, which are the usual consequences of a cro95-examination are 

done away, and the freedom allowed in them is 0~11y likely to be a 

fruitful source of dang;er to the Ilnfortunate priwner.] 
Jllr. Justice Bowen.-If no evidence had been offered to prove a con­

nection between these two per,ons, I should certainly concur with you 

in opinion, 1\Ir. Valliere; but, unfortunately, evidence has been intro­

duced, wbich most clearly, and distinctly, connects De Reinhard with 

:Mainville, and, till that evidence is rebutted, I certainly think the 

Crown are entitled to have inserted on our notes any proofs that may 

be extracted from a witness at any period of his examination, of acts 

done by either, in the preSetlce of the other. As the cuse stands, it has 

nrrived at this point as I take it. A cont is produced, it is identified as 

having been in the eanoe in which "I'-'.inville, De Reinhard, and Jos~, 

the three persons with whom the deceased \I"as in company the very last 

time he was seen, an'ived a few h{)ul's after the witnesses had so left him 

ill their company; it is Bworn to as being a coat belonging to !{evc­

ny, and, upon examination, it proves to he pierced in two places, 10 

as to have a corresponding appeurunec to that which, from the manner 

the indictment alleges that Keveny met his death, it might have been 

expected the coat he then wore would have presented. 'fo remove the 

effect, 'Jr weaken the impre"ion, oflhis secondary evidence, corrobora­

teu by other parts of the testimony, you ask him how lIir. Keveny was 

drCfsed at the time he left him, an(1 he answers that he was habited like a 

gentleman (monsieur) and better dressed than the witness had ever seen' 

him before; there appeal's to be a doubt thrown upon this testimony, by 

the difference between the coat proJuced, and. that which we might, from 

tbe former part of bis answer, ha;'e expected to have had exhibited; 

but explaining what, if left unexplained, might seem to be an impeach­

ment of his own evidence, he says. " Mainville told me that befol'S 

.. embadc;ng he changed his dress;" and, I clearly think that a connec­

tion at present being in eddence oet11een lYIainviJIe and De Reinhard, 

that what l\Iaim"ille said may be adduced in evidence • 

. iJIr. Valliere de St. Rial.-Not, I hope, to make him answerable fo~ 

what it is not attempteu to be proved was said in his hearing. 
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[Mr • .Tu§tice Bowen said-in tny opinion it is admissible evidence 
to g~ to the Jury, anJ the Chief Justice expressing his concurrence-1 

The cross·examination was resuinei by Mr. Valliere de "i. Bial. 

La Point e.-When De Reinhard divided Keveny's things, ami said 
that he wonld have the llhoice because he bad killed him, all the others 
were present, as I believe, excepting Mr. Archy (M'Lellan.) In going 
to Lake la Pluie, it was on the right hand (or, reckoning by the banks, 
the !fouth bank) of the River Winnipic, wbereI saw Mr. Keveny for 
the last time. -I was sent with Faille by Captain D'Orsonnens to Fort 
William. Since the last trial I have conversed with ~everal people, 
who told me to tell the truth, anJ even to take the sacrament, ami to 
g6 to confession before giving my testimony here. I am not engaged 
in the service of the Hudson's Bay Company, nor of Lord Selkirk. I 
was served with a writ by Mr. Coltman at Red River io Come Ilown, 
and he admonished me to speak the truth. It is Mr. Gauvin, tlie She­
riff's officer of 1\'[ontreal, who pays for our board at present, I believe. 
My Lord Selkirk told me, that when the· Court and all was over, I 
should be well paid. He gave me a little money when I was in the 
north. I received no more from the North-'Vest Company, during the 
silt months I was with them, than twenty-five dollars, but I expect to 
get the remainder from them. Mr. Forrest, Lord Selkirk's agent, has 
given me sums of five dollars at different times; perhaps thirty dollars, 
perha,ps forty, I cannot say exactly; but I have not received mo~e than 
fifty dollars from him. I reside at present at l' Assomption. 

LOUIS NOLIN, Sworn. 

Examined by the Solicitor-General. 

Mr. Nolin.-l was in the Indian Country in 1816, and before get­
ting to Lake la Pluie, I heard the Indians speak of a murder committed 
at the River Winnipic, but at that time I did not know upon whom. 
After I received this information, I continued my route towards Lake 
1a Pluie, and met with a canoe in which were Mr. Dease, La Pointe, 
and three or four others; and from them I learnt that a murder had 
belm committed. Afterwards I continued my route, and arrived in the 
beginning of the month of October at Lake la Pluie. I had received 

orders from Captain D'Orsonnens to desire De Reinhard who was at 
Lake Ia Pluie to wait Captain D'Orsonnens' arrival; but I had no or­

ders to detain him by force, or to take him prisoner, but to endeavour 
F 



to obtain information of what had occurred at Red River. On my ar~ 
rival at Lake la Pluie, I slept that evening with two freemen, and from 

there, on "the next day, I went to the Fort. I entered Mr. Sayer's 

room. Mr. Alexander M'Danald went into De Reinhard's room, and 

in a short time after, all the five, tbat is to say, myself, Sayer, ROUfsin, 

)'I'Donald, and another, entered another apartJbent. De Reinharubatl 

in his hand a note or letter, and, walking in the room, said that he wa~ 

much surprised that Captain D'Orsonliens wanted him to give informa­

tion about Red River. Captain D'Or~ohnens arrived" three or four 

hours afterwards, and he walk~d with De Reinhard out of d"oors. 1 

followed them, and walked with them. I did not hear the beginning 

of their conversation; they were some time together before I went to 

join them. 
Mr. Justice Bowen.-Did you ynurself, or did you hear any other 

person make any promi~es or threats? 

1I'1T. Nolin.-No your Lord~hip. 

Solicitor-General.-Relate the conversation. 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Stop, if you please, 1.\'[r. Solicitor-General; \'1e 

must know the commencement of this conversation. 
Mr. Stuarl.-Will the Court just aHow me to a<k the object of pro· 

ducing this conversation. Is it to prove a confession? 

Solicitor-Genera 1.-Yes; it is. 

Mr. Stuart.-Then to this course of the Crown lawyers I mosl cer­

tainly object, it is an attempt to call a witness to corroborate what is 

not proved. The fact of the death, according to our judgment, is not 

proved; but, waving that for the preBent, it is now proposed to support, 

by way of a corroborating testimony, a fact to wbich no evidence what­

ever, that can be received for a moment, has been ever offered". What 

may be the re~ult of ~uch a course? why, that when Captain D'Orson­

nens is called, his evidence may prove, and (if not wrongly instructed) 

it will prove that E'very thing connected with this pretended confession 

is totally inadmi~,ible. If I am not wl'Ongly imtructed we ~hall prove 

it to remit from a fear amounting to ahsolute terror, produced by a 

series of unheard of aggression~ and violence, such as never was before 

seen on this continf'nt, and such as, for the sake of humanity, it is to be 

hoped will never again disgrace it.-I Ehould be wasting the time of the 

Court to atte"mpt to e~tabli,h the inadmis,ibility of a confession ohtained 

undf'r such circumstances,-circumstances, whicb in their nature are 

witbout a paraliel, and of a description, that to avoid their elfec~s, the 

most innocent man mh,ht be induced to confe.s, or even accuse himself 

of crime. The authoritiils which prohibit the admission of a confession 

und.er eyen the slightest txpecta tion of reward, or apprehension of pun-
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-ishment are as numerous' as they are familiar to every lawyer.-Mr. 

Stuart taking a book in h{s hand, and opening it --
Chief Justice Sewell.-I do not, Mr. Stuart, see any necessity for 

your troubling yourself to adduce authorities, for if you can shew that 

the confession was improperly Qbtai~ed, ~ou~tlesB it ~al).not be received 

.as evidence; bul unless we have the commencement of the conversation 

which prefl1-ced the confession, we are in the dark as to the circumstances 

which induced it. Captain D'Orsonnens, with whom it commenced, 

is here, why not examine him, and we shall then immediately and satis­

factorily decide whether it can be permitted to go to the Jury. 

[The Attorney-Genel'al stated, that in laying the case before the 

Court he intended to produce the witnesses in the order of time in which 

events to ",hich they had to testify took place, but to sa\'e the necessity 

of calling the same person twice, to let him testify at once to all he 

knows. :Ch)s witness (Nolin) first saw the Pl'isoner, therefore he had 

better examine him, because it was, cunsistent with the order of time in 

which the circumstances occurred.l 

Chief Justice SeuJell.-rTo whom WaS this confession made that you are 

desiraus of proving?' to Captain D'Orsonnens whom you do not bring 

forward, but endeavour to prove it by a witness who sets out by telling 

you that he was not present at the commencement of the conversation 

in which the confession was made. Certainly not at this bar, or in any 

other English Court can a confession be a<l.mitted till it shall be placed 

beyond even the possibility of suspicion, that it was voluntary, free, and 

spontaneous; whether it was or was not cannot certainly be proved by 

a person who sets out by saying, that he WIlS uot present at the com­

mencement of the ~onversation in which it was made, having joined the 

parties afterwards. 
Atlorney-General.-We cau call Captain D'Orsonnens first, if the 

Court thinks that the preferable course. Our only reason for introduc­

ing Nolin was that he first saw De Reinhard, but we have no objection 

to call Captain D'Orsonnens if the Court think proper. 

Chiif J uslice Sewell.-Yon, certainly, cannot by this witness get the 

qonfes8ion admitted, because he is incapable of proving the indispensable 

preliminary, that it was freely and voluntarily made. He can, however, 

answer for himself whether he did any thing, the effect of which would 

be to destroy it, and than, if he answers in the llegative, you can call 

Captain D'Orsonnens anli the examination can go on. 

Did you, Mr. Nolin, make De Reinhard any promise of advantage 

in case he confessed, or any threat of punishment, if he made no confes­

sion? 

/rfr. Nolin.-:No, Sir; not any. 
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Chief .Tustice Sewell.-Neither the one nor the other? 
Mr. Nolin.-No, Sir; I neither macle any promises nor any threats 

,0 the prisoner to indnce him to make a conf!lssion n~r otherwise. 

CAPTAIN PROTAIS D'ORSONNENS, Sworn, 
, t " ' " 

Examined by the Attorney-Gen~ral. 

f:aplain D'Orsonnens.-1 am a half-pay Ca'ptain of the Regiment 

of Meuron. I know the prisoner at the bar, Charles De Reinhard, an~ 
on the second or third of October, 1816, I met him at the Fort of Lake 

la Pluie. 
[Captain D'Orsonnens here intimated that he could wish the Attor~ 

ney-General to co~mence at an earlier perio<l, as there were Borne cir­
cumstances, which, as they were favourable to the prisoner, and might 

be of benelit to him, he ~ns desirous of stating; they had occurred an­

terior to t~e pe~iod to which the Attoruy-General had directed hi~, 
attention. After some remarks by Mr. Stuart on the singularity of a 

witness wishin'g to suggest to the Crown officers a course of examina­

tion, and disclaiming any desire to profit by the offer, the e~amin~tion 

was continued.] 
Captain D10rsonnens.-When I came to Lake la Croi,x, a smlll~ 

lake between Fort William and Lake la Pluie, I mbt several India~s, 
and from them I lea~nt tha't the Metifs; togetber witb tbe people of th~ 
North West Company, watched for us in the River Wil\nipic to destroy 
us, and they described to me a military man, white, like one of those 

wbo formed our guard, 'and, by the description; I bad n~ doubt that it 

was De Reinhard, On the following day, I believe it was, I met Mro 
Dease, and I asked whether rie Reinhal'd was at 'Lake la Pluie, and he 

told me bewa~. In consequence, I sent Mr. Nolin and 1\1r. l\l'Donald 

forward to carry a letter froll,lme, together witb Si~ Jobn 'Co ape Sher. 

brooke's proclamation of the 16th July, 1816, the whole directed by me' 

to lY[r. De Reinhard. In tbe letter I requested bim to wait for me, as 

I desired to receive information from bim, as to what had passed at the 

River Winnipic. On the second or third of Octo\:>er I reacbed the fort,' 

to whicb I proceeded by land, and ':ttl r. Dease made tbe trip -by water 0 

I arrived tbe first, and De Reinbard came forward to meet me; be 

shook hands with me, say~ng, he was elttrem~ly sorry to see rue in that 

country, tliat my life was' in daDg~r, as well as tbe liveS of those who 

accompanied me. That there were Me.tifs and several engages of tbe 
Nortb-West Company, wbo, being determined to destroy my Lord 

~lkirk's establisbment, would wait for bis people in the River Winni-
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pic; lind thllt he hil~se)f had fortified the fort ~t BIIS de 1a Riviere wit\ 

five or six pieces of oannon, to fir!l upon the E'nglisl), when they shoul4 

Fome down. At that 'moment M,r. Dease arrived, and desired me to 

.walk into the fort, and we entered it and De Reinhard entel'ell with us. 

Before we wen~ in, De Reinharll saill to m~ " that at some time when 

!' w~ might be ~Ione, he would take, the opportunity, in pursuance of 

" the proclamation, to ten me all he knew or what had happened rela. 

tive to Red ltiver, and at the Rive~ Winnipic." 'Some tim~ afterwards, 

half an hour '1 think, I went out oCthe fort, and De Rein~ard followed 

me. He told me that" he had been left by Mr. Archibald M'Lelian at 

.. L~ke la Pluie, for the purpose of apPfi~ing him' of OUI' arrival, and 

.. that they, the BoiR·brules o~ l\'[etifs, as well as the people of the 

"' North-We~t Company, had determin~d npon waiting for us at some 

.. rapids in the River Winnipic!n onler to (lestroy us." 

Mr. Stuart.-These questions of the Crown lawyers I comider as 

far, very far, beyond the limits of evhlence. The simple question be­

fore us is to ascertain whether the Prisoner at the bar is guilty or inno­

cent of the charge preferred against him i~' the inqictment, instead of 

~hich, by the ~ode pursued by t4e Crown lawyers, we are getting into 

a wide story, that it is ilDPossible to see w4ere it may lead us. What 

have we to do "with Metif;, B~is.b!:ules, or tHe North·West Company; 

or my Lot'd S~lkirk. or any individual, el'cept the rrisoner at the bar. 

This wbolesale method of casting imputatio~9 on other persons, on per~ 

!ons who have no opportunity of repelling them, is certainly a prac­

tice as unjustifiable as it is novel. It may be, perhaps, of little conse­

quence in sem~ quarters whether this Prisoller is aC'luitten'or convicted, , ' 

provided his trial furnishes an opportunity for giving vent to those feel. 

~ngs of animos!'!y, which a great commel'cial rivalry has probably given 

fise to. The conduct of this witness 1 consiJer extraordinary in the 

extreme. Un4er the semblance of giving evidenCE? against a single in­

jlividu~i upon ~ specific charge, ill whiCh the time, the means, and every 

other particular thatia connected with or calculate(i to produce the al~ 
leged death is D\ost explicitly set forth in the very long indictment be. 

fore' the CO!lrt-Wha~ is tJIe course this 'witness i~ endeavouring to 
pursue:? why, to charge in the lump the whole North~West Company 

~iih murder, or an intention to commit that crime. This cay, per­

paps, be consi,lered a sure and safe way of propagating libels, which, if 
published in any other mode, would subject the slanderel's to prosecution i 

but, it is pt'obably calculated, that, in the shape of testimony given in 

a Court of Justice, publicity will with impunity be affol'ded to c"illm­

~ties, which in no other way would sufficient temerity be founel to haz­

ard. As well might. this witness libel any gentleman in this Court, ~e 
'I, ' " ' , 
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~pectators, the bar, the Jury, or even the Court itself, as tho~ wbo\l1. 

he is'thus indiscdminate1y calumniating. How are they to meet thes" 

charges? what method shall they take to vindicate themselves, and 

~escue tueir honoul'able characters from these aspersions P He sets out 

by volunteering something which which he says will be of service to the 

Prisoner; and, manifesting a degree of anxiety to benefit him, directs 

the Crown officer ill what manner to conduct this examination. As it 

is the first, so I trust it win be the 1a't, instance of a witness directing 

or dictating how his examination shall be carried on; it b quite suffi­

cient, in the discharge of the duty every individual owes to the country­

Qf giving evidence in its public Courts, to give that testimony which is 

'sought for by those, whD, from their official ~ituationB, are best acquain­

ted with what will be conducive to the attainment of jl1stice. My ~us­

picions were immediately excited "'hen the witness stepped forward in 

this manner. Notwithstanding the boon which was proffered, I did not 

believe iu the sincerity of the offer, and I rejected it. We were not 

thus to be lulled into confidence, and the justice of our resolution I think 

is now sufficiently apparent. But, relative to this unwarrantable attack 

upon gentlemen, who have no opportunity of meeting these gross libels, 

for no softer term can I use to correctly designate these slander~, I shall, 

once for all, say, that whenever the private prosecutor in this case may 

think proper to become so ag~inst them, the North-West Company will 

Dot shl'ink from any investigation into their conduct; so far from it, 

they :will hail the day that enahles th~m before the world to vindicate 

their characters from aspersions, calumnies, and libels, which have for 

a length of time beeri circulating with an avidity aDd indu~try. prQPo~~ 

tio~ed to the raDcour and falsehood which gave them birth and cui'ren­

ey. But I do most sincerely trust, that the Court will oppose its au­

thority, and prohibit this most unwarrantable and dangerous stride under 

tbe guise of giving evidence of a pretended confession, made by the pri­

soner, for, I repeat, that it is not impossible but it may be a matter of 

indiffererlce to some whether this prisoner is acquitted or condcted, if, 

by the trial, they are enabled to give pUblicity to calumnies with safety, 

from the consequences that, in any other way, would inevitably attend the 

propagation of libels.-I object, indeed, t6 the evidence being received. 

Chief Justice Sewell,-You will, certainly, assign to DS some reasons 

for 80 doing. I confess I do 1I0t at present see what is to prevent its 

being gone into. If the witness asserts that the confession was made 

without any promise or ~enace being used to induce or influence the 

Prisoner to make it, I do not sec to what end the objection is made. 

These questions have not ai yet been put, perhaps they might as well, 

r.s it will immediately decide the question ef admissibility. 
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.i.rf'. V4nfelson.--In order, if it please the Court, that this witness' 

may not be permitted to acc~se others. The charge at prest;ut before 

the Court is a charge of murder against the Prisoner at the bar. My 

learned brother, the Solicitor-General, now proposes to bring forward 

the confession of the Prisoner, but the testimony of Captain D'Orson­

nlms is not confined to the confession of the murder, and we take the 

liberty of submitting to the Court that this course is hTegular. 

Chief Justice Sewell..-The Attomey-Genetal proposes to introdm:e 

here a confession made by the Prisoner himself to Captain D'Orsonnens, 

to which you object, l!or do J at all wonder at the opposition, as, if the 

oonfession be admitted, the effect it must produce upon the case cannot 

but he of the utmost importance. [The Chief JUBtice then noticed the 

remarks of Mr. Stuart on Captain D'Orsonnens, saying, no doubt they 

I,ad been dictated by a sense of duty, but (he added) that he bad seen 

nothing in the condu.ct of Captain D'Orsonn'ens, that exposed him to 

the sligbtest imputation of impropriety, or the shadow of blame, ]-AI­

though a little out of the regular course, I think, asit was a voluntary 

offer of benefit you might have availed yourself of it. It could certainl! 

have done you no harm as he was not your \\itness. 

]Jfr. Sluart.-Yes, but your honour kuows " timeo Danaos et uomi 
tereotes." 

Chief Jl!stice Sewell.-With respect to where \Ve are now, the ques­

tion appears to be, supposing that the circumstances under which this 

confeSSIon was made do not pl'eclude its being admitted as evidence to 
go to the Jury, \\' hether the whole or a part of that declaration shall 

be received. On this point I am decidedly of opinion that the declara­

tion once admitte<l, it mnst be taKen from beginning to end. It i'i his 

own statement of his own conduct, and, Whatever it may he, it can af­

fect nobody but himself. The Crown, most undoubtedly, are entitled 

to have it, and any part that does not directly apply to this case, can­

not at all afl'ect or bind others, became it is merely an assertion, and com­

pletely ex parte, but it is' not, therefore, to be excluded. It forms a 

partof what he did say, and, therefore, must be given iU,evidence, other­

wise we might do him or the Crown an injustice. 

[Mr. Justice Bo\ven in concurring in the opinion delivered by his 

Honour the C!J,ief Ju~ticc, remarked, that it might be an act of the great­

est injustice to the Prisoner, to separate or keep back any part of bis 

confession. 

Chief Ju~tice Sewell.-Captain D'Orsonnem, I wish to know \\ hethl"l' 

before the Prisoner made his declaration YOll used any promise or threat 

to induce him to make it. 



48 

Cliptain D'Orsonttens.-~o, not nny-he related it 11.8 a nutter 01 
eon~Cience. 

Examination continued by ihe Attorney-General; 

Captain D'OrsollTlf71s.-The Pris~ner then ~poke to me of an Ils~a8' 

,iDation tJiat bad been committed in the Rh'er 'Vinnipic, an<1 be added, 

that he bpJieved himself bound as an hone.t man, and in purs~ance of 

this proclamation, to reveal the circumstances of the assassination that 

had taken place, for the information of his Maje8ty's government. 

Chief Justice Sewel/.-Excilse ~e Captain D'OI'sonnens, but I would 

again ask you if you are certain that you neitber made any promise nor 

any threat? 
Captain D'Orsonnens.- ¥ e~, your Lordship, I neither made him any 

promise nor any threat; I 8aid nothing to him either for or against. 

AlIor1lfy-Generat.-Relate wh'lt he told you. 

lIIr. Stuart.-It is now proposed to -prove this pretended confeosiolt. 

I am in time therefore to object to i!s being admitted. There are two 

courses I belie\'e open to me; first, to object to it now; secondly, to 

wait till the cross-examination. I propose, however, a. the safest and 

at tbe same time as the ~hortest method, to put" few questions to the 

witneFs, under a belief that bis answers will prove that this pretended 

confession is not evidence to go to the jury at all, for that the cir­

cumstances under \"hich it was made, were such as completely to ex­

cluue it. These questions I apprehend will be very few, and th~y will 

be in the nature of an examination on the voire dire, to which c"urse I 
believe I am full y en ti tl ed. 

Mr. Justice Bou·en.-Will you, Mr. Stuart, state the circumstances 

which you consider as entitling you to this examination, or what you 
propose to prove. 

Mr. Stuart.-I intend to prove the existence of a private war-a war 

agaimt the North-West Company--and tbat in the prosecution or that 

,war this unfortunate individual at the bar who was in the service of that 
company, fell into the hands of his enemies, and __ 

Attorney-General.-I really must interrupt my learned friend, for I 

do not understand what he means by, a private war. Were it even 

proved to have existed in the fullest sense my learned frieJld contend, 

for, it could not, certainly, be offered as any justification for a murder, 

nor as a legal cause of influencing the mind of the prisoner,-

11f,.. Stuart.-I admit that it is, and certainly ougbt to be, II matter 

of regret, that web a war did exist, Ilnd it may hereafter be a suitable 

enquiry why it was not prevented; but, at present, we have nothing 
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to do with thllt. I will prove, by the mo!t positive testimony, that .. 

private war did exist, and that, in ,its progre,s, the Prisoner fell into 

the hands of the party belonging to the Earl of Selkirk. This party was 

iii reality a milit,ary force, who had already captured, and were then 

retaining, by force of arms, the principal stiltion of the North-West 

Company. I say that. it was 'a military force, because it :was provided 

with every thing that would constitute it one, arms, accoutrements, 

ammunition, cannon, in ~hort, equipments of every description. It 
\.vas composed chiefly of men who had been trained to war; they had 

been ~oldiers in the regular army. The witness now in the box was at 

their head, and he tells us, that he is at this moment a balf-pay officer 

of the Regiment De lVIeuroil. This force was in the pay of tbe private 

pro,ecutor in tbis case, raised and equipped at bis own expence to pro­

mote his own views of private advl!-ntage, and the witness now in the 

box had the command of this military force, or ratber, fwm its illega­

lity. this armed banditti. I remark again, that it is not now a question 

whether this was a legal or an illegal force; whether it is not extraor­

.linary, that, with his elevation of rank, the private prosecutor sh\JUld, 

in the promotion of schemes of secular advantage, the gratification of 

inoruillate ambition, or til accelerate tbe destruction of a commercial 

rival, have not only forgotten what was Jue to those laws which his 

rank enabled him to assist in enacting, but actually have put himself 

at the head of a fOl'Ce to levy war, at his will anrl pleasure, against 

dIOse, whose only crime was, that, in tbe peaceable pursuit of a lawful 

commerce, theY,inte..rered witb his gigantic, and, perhaps, equally vi­

sionary, prospect of an exclusive ~overeignty over an immense and 

scarcelyexplol'ed country; or, "hetber it is not to be lamented that 

the government either dir! not possess, ordid not exert, a powel· ade­

quate to tbe prevention of tbis private war; all we have to do with at 

present is the fact, that it did e'Xist, and the consequences of its l'O ex­

isting. The causes which originally led to it, the means by which it 

was supported, and the reasons for which it was not, or could not, be 

prevente(l, are topics for discussion proba)lly In another place; but moSt 

certainly at another time. 

Allorney-General.-The statement of my learned friend is certainly 

one that completely surprises mc. As to pri;ate war, I really know 

of no such thing, nor can it, according to my opinion, exist. If the 

statement I allude to is founded on fact, it comtitutes tbe cl"ime of high 

treason; but,. Burely, the gen t1eman does not considel· an accusation of 

high-treason, though susceptible of the clearest proof, can be admitted 

as' exculpatory evidence on a charge of murder. 

[The Chief Justice ,expresSf'd his astenishment that it ... ould f(ll' a mo" 
G 



ment be thought necessary on the defence, to exhihit an unqualified al­

legation of high treason, against a number of persons of whom the Court 

were bound to know nolbing. 
The Solicitor-General said, that the officers of the Crown could not, 

from any apprehension of the effect it migbt have, be at all times anxi­

ous to exclude tbe proposed evidence, though, perhaps, it might be It 

consideration bow far it was right to permit a witness, W!IO is certainly 

under the protection of the Court, to be expoRell or maJe liable to ac­

cuse himself, by his evidence in a Court of Justice, of high treason.­

To which 
The Chief Justice most pointedly obsen'ed, that, it could not for It 

moment be supposed that a witnes~, \\ hom, by every obligation of duty 

and office, tbe Court were bound to protect, would be Illluwed to im­

plicate bimself, by admitting tbat he has been guilty of higb treason. 

Tbe Solicitor-General remarked, that, if, at ,the time oC making tbi! 

conC"'sion, the prisoner was in a state of illegal duress, the resul t mu;t be 

that the confN'sion mrnot fall throui!;h; but it was a most extraordinary 

and novel proposition to say, that this pri vate war, if it did unfortunately 

exist between these two c()mr'anie~, shonld b~ given in evidence, as a 

reason on an indictment for murder, agaimt receiving a confession made 

by the accused. He concurred with tbe Attorney-General tbat, if its 

existence were proved, the law would denominate it high treason, and 

punish it as such. 

~be Chief Justice stated, that any course of examination, which 

had for its tendency to draw facts from Captain D'Orsonnens, bearing 

ever so remotely on the case, might be pursuer!. If it was tbought pro­

per to enquire whether, at tbe time of making his confession, tbe Priso­

ner was in a state of duress, jt is a question that must be answered; but, 

if the nature of the restraint should be investigated, this witness may be 

in a ,itllation tbat he cannot be compelled to answer (I do not say that 

he is, far from it) any questions on that point. If it should in any way 

affect himself he certainly may refuse to answer, and we shaH protect 

him in his resolution: His Hononr added that, it could not be expected 

that Captain D'OrsonAens should prove that De Reinhard was a priso­

ner of war, breause, if he did, it might involve himself, and repeated his 

astoni~bment at the broad unqualified ~ay in which the war and Captain 

D'Orsonnens had been spoken of. 

1\1r. Stuart did not want Captain D'Ol'8onnens to prove tbat he made 

this unflll·tunate man a p"isoner. That tbis force was headed hy him, 

and raised and paid by the Earl of Selkirk, for the purpose of overturn­

ing his commercial rivals, was a matter of sucb puhlic notoriety tbat 

tbere could be no difficulty in adducing testimony to substantiate iL-
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l\1r. Stuart again, in' energetic ,language, adverted to the attack made 

upon persqns 110t: pefore the COllrt, and concluded, that were it even 

admitted t.hat his confession ought to be pllt on their Honours' notes, it 

6I;1oQ.h! be confined to that part which strictly relates to th~ charg~ laid 

in the indictment against hiID, and that the witness ought not to be per­

mitted to relate any part of ,the conversation, not immediately bearin~ , 

upon th«1question of the guilt. or innocence of the prisnrer. 

Mr. Ga.le.-I would humbly submit to the Court that --

Mr. Stuflrt and Mr. Vanfelson.-Mr. Gale is not, assuredly, going 

to address the Court. 

1I'Ir.-Glll~.-As Amicus C1I'rim I certainly must beg permission, and, 

conceive it being a very customary practice, ,I shall be allowed to offer 

Jl few words. The impropriety of t,raducing characters will .e freely 

.admitted,but, I think, it has been but little avoided by those who 

complain of being attacked. As Amicus Curim I conceive, relative to 

the confession, a part certainly ought not to be received; but that, if 

admitted at all, it must be admitted as a whole. Relative to the Earl 

of Selkirk, having a perfect knowledge of the steps he has taken, and of 

the mqtives which actuated his conduct, I confidently affirm, that no 

man, disposed to act with any degree of honour, could do. any other 

way than take the measures he did. All he has done has been in the 

upright and conscientious, but fearless, execution of his dllty as a ma­

gi~trate. Having had tile honour to be employed on various occa,ions 

liS leading counsel on behalf of the Earl of Selkirk, I feel it my duty to 

protect his character when I hear it attacked, and, more particulal'ly, 

as no cir'cumstance in the case renders it at all necessary that it bhould 

be adverted to. 

Chief Justice Sewell,-I feel it my boun(len duty to interpose, anll 

beg.ofyo)l gentlemen, to let no warmth of feeling, though dictated by a 

8ense of professional duty, added perhaps to personal esteem, lead us in­

to forgetfulness. We also know the parties individually, and privately 

respect them all; but here I know nDbDdy, God forbid that I should.­

Whilst sitting here, I have, in cDnjunction with my learned brother at 

my side, a duty, a serious and:bDunden duty to perfDrm, that of admin­

istering with fairness and impartiality, stl'ict ju,tice to all parties that 

enter this Court. Tbe Crown and the PriSDner are entitled to this 

strict justice from us, and accol'ding to the light we have ('ach shall 

ha\'e it. We ha\'e no other aim than to secure to .each party, the public 

prosecution on the one hand, and the defendant on tb" olher, tbe full­

est advantages afforded to them by the law, and to tb~ counsel.on both 

-sides we are disposed to preserve their privileges to the utmost extent. 

In the vadou's applications which have been made to the Court, what-



ever has been granted either to the Crm\'n or to the Pri.coner, ha~ been 

given because in our con,ciences we believed them entitled to it, The 

abstract question between the Crown and the Pl'i~onEir,'is thi~, has he or 

has be not been guilty of the crime of which be is accu'sed?- Every thing 

connected with thi, question has a right to be brought fOrward, but I 

do not see the most remote connection or bfflring upon this 'abstract 

question in the state of the Illdia~ Conntry; or that it '!lan furn:ilIli evi­

dence to invalidat.e a confession of the crime of 'murder,"n~I' can 't:bere 

be the least nece;sity for referring to the conduct of perFOns not before 

the Court, on the one side or on the otber. I repeat to you, gentlemen, 

the charge is a charge of murder ; that is the questiqn br>tween the 

Crown and the Prisoner, and in a'certaining his guilt or his innocence, 

let the law take it, COUl'se fairly, purely, and honourably. It is our an­

xiety that it ',hould do so, and we trust that the ends of justice will be: 

attained without deviating into a cour~e that cannot tend to do us any 

credit in the eyes of the world. 

Mr. Stuart regretted that allY thing sbould bave fallen from him 

calculated to excite a warmth of feelin,~ that called for the interference 

of the COUl·t; but (said I1ir. Stuart,) the life of that man is put into my 

bands, in conjunction with my learned friends, and I feel I cannot do 

justice to him witbout proving the state of the country, as I 'shall then 

shew, that this pretended confession was ma.le undel' circumstances of 

restraint and fear, anrl coming, in the words of M'Nally, page 43, " in 

!o questionable a shape that it must be rejected." 

Mr. Justice Bowen feared that he had been the innocent calISe of 

this misunderstanding by afking a question: in reply to which, difficul­

ties had been stated, which he imagined would never occur, for e\'en ad­

mitting that apprehension existed, as one unlawful act could not be set 

up as a justif](jation of another, so neither could apprehension of conse­

quences that might result from an illegal act, be received as a reason for 
rejecting the confession. 

Mr. Stuarl.-It is one thing for an illegal act to be committed in 

the lower-town of Quebec-and another for it to be committed in the 

Indian Territory, where there was no law but the will of the private 

prosecutor, and where all who did not submit to his authority, were 

treated as rebels and traitors. We know if this had been done in Que­

bec, the remedy was at hand; an appeal to the law would have imme­

diately set him at liberty; but to whom, when in the power of the pri­

vate prosecutor, was he to apply for redress? I am sorry to affect the 

feelings, unnece~mrily, of any man, but I cannot help it. In the per-, 

formance of my duty, no consideration of rank or con~equence can for 

" mcm~nt re5train tchoEe ohservations which I feel myself compelled to 



make. I cannot, from motives of delicacy to any mlln, howe'9'er big\J. 

:his rank, consent to any course that might have a tendency to sacrifice 

the interests, of the Prisoner, whose life indeed is the stake we are en­

deavouring to pl'esen'e. By pr{}ving the ~tate of the country, we think 

we shall pl'event the pretended confession from going to the Jury, or 

should your, Honour~ permit it to go to them, that they will, in theiexer­

dse of a sound discretion, consider the circumstances under which it wa! 

abtained to be; sucla as to warrant them in giving no'cr~dit to it. I will, 

with;'permission of the COUI't, proc€edlw.it11 my questions-and I shall 

, fil's! ask., ,h'ad Fort WIlliam been 'captuied by Lord Selkirk before YOIl 

saw the Pl'i,;Onel', De Reinhardi'at"Fort Lac la Pluie; and when wlls,it 
~o captured?" 

, ' Gaptain D'Orsonnens, -No ;" but 1,0t'd, Selkirk tookpossession:1lf, it 

on the thirteenth of' August. 

[i'll-t, Stuart's next' question being to the mannedn which the fdrt 

was taken possill'sion of" tbe Cbief.Justice rCq:larked, that he had taken 

the last answer down mei'ely as a' fact, but, if Mr. Stuart, inten.led to 

.follow it up, and to prove how it \vas taken pllSsession'1lf; he thonght, 

in justice to 'the witnes~, he ought to strike it out, and he should do so. 

lIir. Stuart disclaimed IIny wish to ask this witness any que.tion that 

would implicate him by al1s\vering, bull conceived that he, had a right 

to prove that Fort William was caplul'"d, and to go on and 'sbe:w;thllt 

it was retained forcible possession of, and, from tbat circurrutanceOllllm­

bined with others, as the prisoner \\'IlS under that re~traint whicll the 

clemency of English law deems sufficient to exclude Ii 'confession from 

being received as an edtlence of guilt. He referred again to Macnally, 

rule 9th, page 4.'3.] 

Chief Justice Se'well.-If I under~tand y.ou, it is intended, by an exam­

ination in the nature of one on the ~'oire dire to prove, that, by a military 

or armed force, Fort William was taken possession Of; and to follow 

up that by evidence of a similar taking of tbe Fort of Lac la Pluie, and 

thence to infer that the confe~sion, offered on the pal't of the Crown. 

ought not to be permitted to go to the Jury, because it was extorted by 

the restraint which the Prisoner wns suhject to. I apprehend lhat these 

will be found too remote circumstances to Invalidate the confession, 

and, partjculal'ly, as it stands at pl'e~ent in evidence, that possession 

was not taken of Fort Lac la Pluie, till after he bad made it, and was 

so taken in consequence of information which he associated with his 

confession, 

Mr. 8tllMt.-I must still, with great suhmission to the Court, con­

tend that the doctrine on wbich I rely, for the exclu~ion of this preteni;led 

confession, is correct, and is sanctioned by authorities equally respecta. 



Ille as numerous. The rule in Macnally, which I just now submitit'(/ to 

the Court, is supported by Gilbert on Evidence, page 137, .. the~e rules 

reflect the brightest lustre on the principles of the English law, which 

benignly considers that the hnman mind, under the pr;8sure of calamity, 

is easily seduced, and liable in the alanD of danger to acknowledge, in­

diticriminntely, a falsehood or a truth, as different agitations may pre­

vail." What !ian be more appJi€able to the pl'esent ca~e,'Jor, if even it 

were contended that the circumstances ought not to have had t hat effect, 

we~e they Dot such as might easily be supposed to produce the state of 

mind. which is.described as leading, indi~cl'ilUiriatply, "f"om the alarm 

of .langeI''' to the " admission. of either Jalsehood ot· trutll, as ditfhent 

agitatiuns prevailed." This able writer goes on to exhibit, in language 

equally forcible,: the reason upouw.hich·thi~ human~ collstructiou.of law 

is founded, therefore, he adJs, " a confession,~ whelher· made:upon an 

olIicial examination or in di~course. \\~j1.h. private persons, which is ob­

t3ill~d from a defendant by the imp"es;ioh 'of .bflp·e or. fear,however slight 

the. ('wotion may be planted, i; lIot admi"iule ev,idence. For the law 

will Dot suffer a'prisoner to be made the deluded instrument of bis own 

conviction." . Having thus Ret forth the rule and descanted on its pro­

pmetybe subjoins an illu,tl'ation of it> wisdllID in these words" t.he wis­

dbm. of thiS dolltrine vms fully iJlll;trated in a case at Glocester. Three 

me/lwere tried for the mllrder of !\lr. Harrison at Cambden, and one 

of1.hem, :under a promi;e of pardon, confessed himself guilty of the fact. 

'rhe confes;ion, tbel'efore, "'as not given agoinst him, and a few years 

after it appeared tbat Harrison was alive (])'l. S. note cited in Leache'. 

Cr. Ca. -::d. edit. 22S--Sd edit. 298.) Mr. Philli.ps in his Treatise on 

Evidence maintains tbe same doctrine, after stating in sect. 5th, page 

81, the weight of a voluntary confession, he de;cribes the cil'cumstances 

-that'are nece,sary to justify its admission agiiimt a prisoner. "But the 

confession must be voluntary, not obtained by improper influence, nor 

drawn from the prisoner by means of a threat or I;r,)mise, for, however 

fligbt the promise or tlll'eat may have been, Ii confession so obtained 

cannot be received in evidence, on acc;unt of the uncel·tainty al!d doubt, 

whether it was not made rather from a motive of fear or of interest than 

from a sense of guilt." 

l The Chief Justice observed, that facts which immediately surroun­

ded the case might be proved, whether they ought or ought not to have 

produced the effects which followpd them was another qoe,tion, but the 

facts themselves they had a ri1>ht to lay before the Jury, bpcause they 

might aCCQunt satisfactorily for the effects. Thus if proved that the 

Prisoner was suddenly taken possessiou of by a body of armed men, and 

under fear of consequences, was induced to make a confession, though it 
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might not, from its being an illegal restraint, set tltel:onfessiotl aside, 

!O as to prevent it from going. to the Jury, yet it might form a solid 

ground fOl' examination with them as to what degree of credit was due 

to it. But (he added) remote ft'ellts such as the capt lIre of a Tort at a 

distance of prohably a hundred leagiles, or circnm~tancps not'bearrn-g im­

mediately on the question wbich tbe .indictment brings before the Court, 

I certainly consider you are not entitled to golinto. 

Mr. Justice Bowen intimating his acquiescence in these opinions of 
bis Honour the Chief .Tmtice-

Mr. Stuart observed, then I will narrow my questions so as to meet 

the decision of the Couri, and commenced his examination BlI/he voire dire.] 

Mr. Stuart.-Did yon go into the Indian country, or to Lac la Pluie, 

in a civil or military capacity at the time you have mentioned? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-I proceeded to Lake la Pluie in _October, 

1816, as a simple individual, and not in a military capacity • 

.hIr. Stuart.-How many persons were there under your charge? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-Seventeen colonists, dischargp.d men of the 

re;;iments of Glengary, Mellron, and.Watteville, destined for Red Ri­

ver; aJ?d, also, eighteen Canadians, voyageurs, in the service of the 

Hudson's Bay. 
Mr. Stuart.-Did you stop at Lake Ja Pluie, and why? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-We stopped at Lake la Pillie in consequence 

of the information which I bad rpceived from De Reinhard of the danger 

which awaited us in the River Winnipic. 

Mr. Stuart.-These people were they armed, ana was, it with hunt­

ing guns, 01' with t\merrcan guns? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-The colonists were armed, some with hunt­

ing guns, and some with small American guns; the Canadians were not 

armcd. 

Mr. Sluart.-And, as it wa~ your intention to proceed to Red River, 

you had no intention of taking the fort at Lake la Pluie? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-J\'Iy orders were to proceed to Red River if 

I cou.Jd, and, if not, to build a house at the Portage of Lake la Pluie. 

Assuredly, I had not any intention of taking the fOl,t of Lake la Pluie • 

. Mr. Stuart.-And you considered yourself as a simple individual, 

without any military command or authority? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-I was a simple indidduaI. I WM not there 

with any military command whatever, and I do not remem"er having 

given orders to anyone, excepting to my colonists ami Canadians. 

Mr. Stuart - Y 011 did not give any onler excepting to the cDlonists? 

uor any as .. the chief of the advanced guard of an army." 

Captain D'Orlonne7ll.~-I was not there as the chiif of the adviwClld 
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guard of any army. I was the chief of a party of VQ.yugwrs, in Li.e 

Hudson's Bay serl'ice, and there was no order issued 'by [PIe but to my 

coloni.ts and voyageurs, excepting one directed·to:Mr. Dease, and that 

was with his. own consent. 

Mr. Stuart.-At what time and how did you issue that? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.--I represented to Mr. Dease tbe danger t". 

which we should be expoeed, if the MitiJs came, and I demanded of him 

to lodge us in the fort, offering at tbe same time even to pay him a rent. 

He refused me, saying, that it was impoo~ible; and I then, as a measure 

of precaution, demanded the arms anti ammunition. The exi!;cncy of 

the circumstances obliged me to make this demand, and I represented it 

in that way to jUr. Dease. Mr. Dease delivered the arms and ammuni· 

tion to me, and I drew up a receipt for them, in the terms which he t1ic· 

tated to me, for hi. justification • 

. Mr. Stuart -This receipt how did you sign itl' 

Captain D'Orsonnens.--I signed it " Captain D'Orsonnens, com· 

manding the advancerj guard of Hudson's Bay voyageurs." 

[The Attorney.General objected, that although in the latitude al­

lowed in cross-examination, this course might perhaps he admitted, it 

"had nothing to do with an examination on the t'OIre din; to which 1\11-. 
Stuart replied, that, without deviating at all from the rules \\ hich gov­

ern an examination on the t'oire dire, he had nearly .hut out this pre­

tended confe.sion, by shewing that the Pri~oner was under constraint, 

and that of the mo~t arbitrary kind. 

The Attorney·General rejoined, that all this took place in conse­

quence of information given by the Pri50ner at the time he made hi! 

confession. Was not that the case captain D'Orsonnens?] 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-De Reinhard's declaration was made on the 

third of October, and I received the arms on the sixth; and it was in 

80nsequence of the information I got from him, that I demanded them. 

lJIr. Slllart.-How did you sign the receipt? 

Chief Justice Sewell.-It is of no consequence how it was signerl, it 
!lould not influence his confession. 

)lIr. Stuarl.-His ans\\"er might, perhaps, affect Ilis credibility, ns we 

~hall, on his cross'examination, ~hew, tbat all this resulted from the pri­

vate war, which I shall then demonstrate .did exist between these COID­

mercial rivals. 

Examination resumed uy the Attorney-General. 

Captain D'Orsonnens.--When I held the conversation with De Rein­

.ard, he was not a prisone.r; I explained to him how much 1 was H~_-
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eel to lind my!elC in !uch difficulties. He krtew before making his declllo 

.ration, that I was only a simple individual, (simple individu.) He 

told me tbat be' bad been sent in August, by Mr. Archibald Norman 

~i'Leod, in the capacity of constable, witb a warrant to arrest one Ow· 
en Keveny, and that he had- taken bim prisoner and carried him to Bas 

de la Riviere. That some days afterwards a council was held, at which 

were present Mr; Alexander M;DonelJ, Mr. Archibald 1\1'Lellan, Jo­

seph Cadotte, Cuthbert Grant, and several other Mitijs, whose names I 

have forgotten: De Reinhard told me lie was present (not as one of the 

council) and that it was resolved, that Keveny Was a man of too great 

eomequence, and that he ought to be killed, but not there among the 

Indians; an'd that he had in consequence been sent In a canoe to Lake 

la Pluie, That by dint of tbe solicitations of a man named Mainville, 

Who had consented to kill him, he (De Reinhard,) agreed to see that 

Mainville <lid do it. Being come to a place called the Dalles in tbe 

River Winnipili, Keveny required to go on shore, which De Reinhard 

granted, and when Keveny came to re·embark, he (De Reinhard,) said 

that it was the proper time. Mainville immediately discharged bis 

gun and wounded him in the neck, when, as an act of humanity, seeing 

that he could not live, he run his sword twice through his body to prevent 

him from suffering, and according to all he had heard from his masters, 

(bollrgenis,) he was in the belief that he would have done a meritorioul 

act even had he killed him bimself, and that he should have done the 

same to any other Englishman, having, at a council of war some time 

before, heard the Indians solicited to make war upon the colonists and 

the English of Red River, whom he considered as enemies to govern­

ment'from'the representations of 1\'[r. 'l'l'Leod. I was not a magistrate 

and I hllve no knowledge that the Prisoner's declaration was taken by 

11 magistrate, or any how, in writillg. I have not received any pay 

from any person since the regiment has been disbanded, except from hi~ 

Majesty; but besides that, I possess my own income--rents, paid to me 

by the Swiss.-De Reinhard described Keveny to me as .. handsome 

'young man, tall, with light hair, inclining to red. He likewise told me 

that they dragged his body some distance along the beach and left it 

there; and of his effects, that he· (De Reinhard,) had given a part to 

80me, Bnd a part to others, and kept a part himself, amongst which was 

his writing desk. He told me that he looked upon him as most certain­

ly dead-for being mortally wounded, to save him a few moments of 

pain he (De Relnhal'd) had run his sword through hi! body. He also 

told me that his body had been left quite naked, haV'ing been stripped 

even to his shirt. 
11 



Cross·examination conducted by 1I'1r. Stuart. 

Captain l)'Orsonnem.-... I left Montreal on the 27th of May, 181G, 

with eight men, formerly MeuFoBs, engaged as voyageurs to Kingston .. 

and fourteen, sixteen, or more men, formerly WatteviIJes. At King­

ston we were jo.ined by Captain Matthey, Mr. Graft'enreith, and Lieu­

tenant Fauche, with fifty or sixty, and the whole number might tben 

amount to eighty or ninety men. Fort William was in the occupation 

of my Lo.rd Selkirk and his peo.ple at the time I had the r.onversation 

with the Prisoner already mentioned. All these mel'l, those with me, 

in the first in!'tance, aud the others, were engaged under the direction 

and in the name of my Lord Selkirk, and of the Hudson's Bay Com· 

pany, to undertake the voyage to Red River, and to take lanM there 

if they desired it, or, if not, to. return to Europe hy Hudson's lIay. I 

never received a{)y money from my Lord Selkirk, nor from the Hud· 

son's Bay CompaBY, and I do not mean to. receive any. We had can· 

non, (but not any mounted, nor any tackle} (gTemens) intended for the 

deferrce of the colony, amI (as I helieve) to replace other cannon which 
had been stolen the year before. I have no personal knowledge that 

these cannon were stolen, but I beHeve ther were. 

Mr. Stuart.-This very answer demonstrates I should humbly submit 

ihat we shoutd be permitted· to go into evidence of the general state of 

the country, lOr, if not allowed to do so, the prisoner is depri·ved of his 

principal ground of defence. I have no wi"h to enquire whether my 
Lord Selkirk was right in taking possession of Fort William with an 

armed force, and in pusbing his con'luest to Fort Lac la Pluie, or whe· 

ther the witness was not at the head of tliat army which took the rerts, 

and wbether the wbole were or were not in the employ and· pay of the 

private prosecutor. I do not want t.o mention' the name of my Lord 

Selkirk in the examination, but, I do humbly contend, that every 

thing mater-ial to the defence ought to be admitted. We consider that 

we should be allGwed to shew the general state of this unfortunate coun. 

try torn to pieces by a war, emanating from a great commercial rivalry, 

and bounued ollly by the interest or ambition of those eagaged in tbe 

conflict, but, from the peculiar situation of that Ilountry, involving 

personally in its consequences aU who, from any circumstance, were 

found within its wide and extended range. Widely different is that im· 

!neme wilderness to a civilized country ;-an immense territory known, 

in part only, to the fur·traders-in possession' of the aborigines, the na­

ti,·e'lords of the soil-tracked only by the hunters in pursuit of the bea. 

nf-with no habitation hut the cabin of the Indian, except the posts 
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which commercial enterprize has established. Widely different is a COR­

fession made in a territory remote from e~ery thing like the semblance 

ef magistracy or judicial authority, where to be accused was to be con­

victed; nay, to be suspected only was to be exposed to punishment, and 

·where the only avenue to the protection which the law afforded being in 

the hands of the enemies this man-his enemil)s because they were at waf 

with his employers-was, therefore, closed against him; different, indeed" 

;s a confession thus made, to one made in our police office, where it may 

be reasonably esteemed, the.disburdening a conscience troubled by a sense. 

of guilt, there it 'may be only a self-accusation under the hope of some 

advantage. Mr. S. again referred to the case oj-Harrison. If allowed to 

prove the general ~tate of the coun~ry I ~hould demonstrate, perhaps, that 

self-accusation was this prisoner's only security for the preservation of life, 

Nothing, after what I have witnes~ed of the lawless violence practised in 

this unhappy couhtry, can excite my astonishment. The prestl'vation 

of the interests, nay, the life of that man is entrustell to our hands, and 

from no motive of delicacy to any individual, let his rank be ever so higb 

or elevated, will we consent to sacrifice the one or endanger tbe other. 

In the discharge of professional dut.y, I dare not; whilst, as a man, I 

should sCDI'q it. 

The' Chief JU5tice enquired what effect this cou'ld have upon the 

cuse as it naw stands. He should (he said) be sorry to prevent any 

thing being adduced in defence of this unfortunate man, but there must 

be shewn a connection between the charg:" and evidence, which prima 

facie did not appear to have the least beadng< upon the case, before it 

could be admitted; for, supposing the whole substantiated, does the 

state of the country alter or justify a deiiberate murder? 

flIr. Stuart.-I am not arguing upon any of the circumstances I spe­

cify; they have been only mentioned aR matters of public notoriety; but 

the point I have the honour to submit to the Court is, that this preten­

,led confession ought to go for nothing, as it was made at the time that 

the pJ'isoner was in the possession of an arflled. force, and, to substan­

tiate that fact, I wish to' go into the state of the country generally, as, 

if permitted, I shall tben shew that he was, although apparently free, 

as Rctually a prisoner as if confined within the foul' walls of the common 

gaol. 
},[1'. Justicc Bowen briefly recapitulated the p~illts which .Mr. S. ha4 

stated he wished to prore, and concluded his remarfcs thus-The circum­

stulJces of the countl'y generally (although undoubtedly of a very pecu­

liar nature, and deeply to be regl'etted) appear to me to \:Ie too remote 

a cause from which to infer that a man would not only confess himself 

to be a participator in, offences, but also accuse himself of murder. 1 
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tully agree with the opinions delivered by my learned brother the Chief 

.Justice, previous to the examinatiol! on the voire dire, that the circum­

stances were too reDlote, as they appear at present, to prevent the con­

fession being received, and submi~ted to the Jury: 

Mr. Stuart expressed himself rather glad of thl! decisjon of the Court, 

as it would afford him an opportunity of putting the questions, and of 

baving a formal objection made to them, and, by that moans, of ob­

taining a solemn decision of the Court. After its opiJlion, intimated 

just now, I shall only as matters of fllct (said Mr. s.) i: presume be per­

JP,itted to sbew that Fort William llIas taken possession of by an armed 

force, and prove that, previous to the confession, the fort of Lac la Pluie 

had been taken possession of by Captain D'Or~onnen8. If I establish 

the fact that Fort WilliaDl being taken was in the kilowledge of the 

prisoner, I consider that the res gesla of the affair is settled; for the in­

!luence upon his lDind must necessarily have been stronger when he wit­

Jles~ed a small division of that force, detached from the maiq body, to 

pursue the same course at the fort of Lac la Pluie, which had previously 

put them into possession of Fort William. The moment they took pos­

zession of Fort William I consider that they had a complete command 

of the country and all who were within its boundaries were ~ubject to 

their will, to which any opposition was completely unavailing, as it 

must be nugatory. These facts, I presume, I shal~ be permitted tq 

prove; I pllfpose simply putting one or two questions, wlJich, I trust, 

we shall be able to satisfy the Court are questions essential to our de­

fence, and such as we are entitled to put. My quest!ons will be "whe­

ther Fort William was not taken possession of or captured by persons in 

~he service of the HudsOl~'s Bay C0I!1pany previous to the pret!!nded con­

fession of De Reinhard, and that to De aeinhard's knowledge;" and 

.. whether the fort of Lac fa Pluie was not also taken by persons in th~ 

service of the Hudson's Bay Company previous to the said confession ?~, 

The Attorney-General intimating that he objected to the questions, the 

Court 10m ordered to be adjourned till Monday the !:ilh MaJj, at eigl~1 
o'clock, A. M. . . . . . 



Saturday, 2Sth,May, Jllt8, 

~OURT fRESENT AS ON S~TURDAY. 

The Jury haf'ing been ~alled, a'[Ld Jonnd to be presmt, the .Atlorney~. 

{leneral was commencing his observations when the Chief J uslice $Uggestcd 

that Mr. Stuart had better b.e heard in the affir~.atitle. The .Attorney~Ge~ 
reral stated that the objection coming from the Crown officers he conceited 

rhe more regular way would be to allow Mr. Stu,art to reply to them. Mr. 

Bluart expr~ssed f!- wis~ to slate the grounds on which he conceived himself 

.ntitled to put the qU,tstions, adding, tha.t, unless permitted to do so, the 

Crown officers could not ~now the pnTPl!sefor which they were put • 

.Attorney~General.-I object to the q~estions being put at all ; th 

pi0tive for putting the.Ql is sufficiently apparent from the questlon. 

~hemselve~~ T~ey are ," whether Fori William was not captured by per· 

"sons in tile service of the Hudson's Bay Company, previous to Ule con • 

•• fessian of the prisoner, and that 10 his knowl,edge," and also, .. whether 

I' the fort of Lac la Ptuie was not also ta~?n by persons in the sC'rvice of Ihe 

.. Hudson's Bay Company, previous tll the said confess;on7" !fthey were 

so even, it would not, in point ofl~\"" invalidate this confession, for there 

,,"re only two circum,tances which ~an destroy the evidence of a confes­

.ion, n~mely, t4at promis~s, or menace~, were made use of ~o obtai~ it. 

Now a mere knowledge of the fact that FOI·t William had been taken 

Fan notcertaiQly operate /lither as the one or th~ other. I h!lillbly con· 

~end~ and consider it un/lecessary to ,detain the Court to support the pro­

position by argument, tAat not4iQg but ~ promise of reward 01' advau-

1-age, or a menace of punishment, is sufficient to destroy a confession. 

For a moment admitting it to he a fa!)t, that ~he fort was taken and 

kept possession of, in t4e manner stated by my learned friend, it is not 

exactly apparent bow s~~h a circumstanpe is ~o opemle to preclude a 

confession i'leing good evidence. I sub~it two points only have that 

power, promises or mellaces ~eil)g resorted to to obtain it. 

Soliqitor-G~neral.-I shall make Illy objections rather more general 

than my learned friend the Attorney.General has done, but without 

~respassing long npon the time of the COUl·t. And if I should be able 

'0 cut down a long chain of testimony whifh I perceive Illy learned 

friends arc desirous to introdllce, and whicll I think I shall be able tl) 
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,a.!isfy your Honours, is in no way relevant, I truEt it wiII be occupymg 

a few minutes in a way tbat may hereafter save hours. The proposition 

apppars to me to resolve itself ,,,to two questions: first, Whether the 

Prisoner was actually in a state of confinement, in a state of actual im, 

fTisonment, at the time of making the confes~ion, and necessarily undel: 

fear; or, second, Whether, from the statl! of t~e country, owing to a 

system of unlawful warfare, he was under constructire restraint, and froID 

tllat circumstance, under the impulse offea.r, so as to extort from him a 

~onfession. In PNof of the existence of tris ull!awf1l1 warfare, it is pro­

posed to prove that Fort William was takeD. But my learned friends . 

. do not propose to prove this as an isolated fact, iL i~ in~ended only to 

form the introdu~tion, or ground work, to a long .chllil~ of ~estimony, 

which my learned frienqs are desirous spould go to ~4e Jury. J there­

fore oppose the adplis;ion of the introduc~ory ,testimol)Y, thougb it is a 

fact, bepaupe f~ is a fact no way bearing ppon the case, and jptended only 

to pave the. w~y to a history that will cont;urp.e a grellt d~al of our ~iw.e, 

and to no entl, because it cannot be brought to bear at all upon the 

charge against tbe Prisoner, who now stands at the bar to aD5wer to a 

charge of mllrder.--The points for your honours consideration, I consi. 

der to be two-Whether the Prisoner was in absolute custody, and al80 

in B state of feaE, and secondly, if not in actual cOl)finement, whether the 

state of the country were such, that a constructive restraint operatf;!d 

on his mind to such an extent, as to induce a fear that shall be consider­

ed as I)n adequate reason for rejecting tbis testimony.' With respect to 

the first, what does captain D10rsonnens .ay? Hjl answers positively 

that he was not, that the fort of Lac la Pluie was not taken possession 

of, at least that it was Dot at that time, but that in point of fact, the 

Primner was as free as I am at this moment. But, if he had been in 

custooy, I contend that it would not be sufficient to invalidate the con­

fession made. Do we not daily see. confessions made by persons is cus­

tody? Confessions made in our police-office by persons with a con~table 

at their elbow? but is that ever adtluced as an evidence against the va­

lidity of the confe!sion? most certainly not. This part of the subject I 

consider to be completely answered, and that the objection must fail. 

On that branch of the objection, which is founded on the unfortunate 

state of the country, the doctrine of my learned friend, the Attorney­

General, I consider to be perfectly correct, that it is only a direct pro~ 

mise, or a threat, that can destroy a confession, and I perfectly agree 

with that opinion, and consider it as unanswerahle in law. I might 

perhaps be disposed to admit that, if by legal or illegal restraint, a con­

fession was extorted, though no direct promise or menace was apparent, 

tpat it mioQt perbaps hr a subject of fair comideration to g\) to the Ju-
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circumstances of imprissnment or restraint that entitled it to no credit. 

}. do not know whether in admitting even this, I am not going too far, 

hut it cannot, at all eve~ts, apply to the present case, for there are no 

such circumstances proved; the evide/l'Ce goes directly to contra,iict it, 

for captain D'OrEOnnens says eKpressly, that he was not in confinemllDt 

or duress of any kind. If any thing of the kind did exist, it must be 

most clearly proved; and it is incumbent on the Pri~oller most distinct­

ly to shew the circnmstances to be of a nature so strong, that they ac­

tually led him to accuse himself of CI'ime, to escape from the danger! 

with wl1ich he was surrounded, and which threatened to destroy him.­

Eot the circumstance of restraint alone, could it be admitted to have ex~ 

isted, is not of itSelf suffitient to object to a flonfession, Yonr Hon(JUF8 

will recollect a case much stronger than any that have been hinted at 

here, which existed not long ago in England, that of restrl!int by a mi­

litary force, whi'eh the intemperance of misgnided persons rendered it 

necessary, by way of precaution, to employ, In tbat time of tumult, a 

man in tbe commission of excesses was' immediately seized by a party of 

dragoons, examined befOl'c a magistrate, or the secretary of state, or the 

pl'ivy c;ouncil, and his examinations made evillence against hrm on his 

trial. I am aware that it may be objected that this 1vas a legal, though 

an imposing force, and. that any confessioR made under its fear, was ad­

missible-because it was cl'eated by a legal body opposing an illegal 

force. But your Honours will see immediately that this argument tells 

just the oth,*" way, for he had no right to suppose tbat he would be con­

lined if he did not confess. He was not invited even to confess, If 8! 

defendant is permitted to say that he made a confession because he was 

afraid of going to jail, I am apprehensive we shall never have a confes­

sion read. What is the common practice in London? A man commit, 

some offence, a nocturnal one for instance, he is taken up, carried to a 

watch-hElUse, or lodged in the compteI', if tbe circumstance occurs in the 

city, till the morning, wheu he is taken before a magistrate, or the si-t­

ting alderman, as the case may be. Having for some time before, anti 

then remaining under restraint from the custody of tbe law, he confe!se! 

his guilt from some motive or otber; perhaps, -if otbers have been con­

cerned wi-th him in tbe infractioR of the law, from a hope of being re­

ceived as a witne~s on the part of the C)'own, On his trial his own 

eonfession ts produeed against him, No donbt, having misled himself 

in his expectation of being reeeived as .. witness fa I' the Crown, he 

would be glad, on his trial at the Old Bailey, when hi~ confession is 

produeed in evidence against him, to object to its being received, and 

,'"QuIll a~sign, as Illy learned friends do on t.he present occasion, that at 
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consequences, or in other wOl·ds was afraid he would be sent to jail.­

But we all know that would not prevent the confe8sion from being re­

ceived, beC8u,e he must most di~tinctly shew, tbat he was oot only in 

Iluress, but that his imprisonment was usect to screw out of him a con­

fession. Neither can the Prisoner at the bar be allowed', on the othel" 

hand, to' plead tbat he thougbt it might be to his advantage to confes~, 

and that therefore he made ~i's confession. The an~wer to that i~, if he 

tlid tbink so, be bas thought erroneously, and his erroneous conclusion 

tanllot invalidate a: substantial eonfession: In answer to that part of the' 

argument wbrch we have before heard, relative to tbe nature of the du­

re58 under wbich the Prison'er alleges he suffered, and tire operation of d 

fin his mind, we make the same observation, that, if even true, it fur­

nishes no objection 10 the reception of his confession. It iR merely an 

err6neous conclusion of bis own mind, and we add furfher, that ns there 

is always redress for an illegal act, it is quite impossible that he can be 

permitted to allege tbat he was apprehensive of his personal safety at 

the tnne of making it, and that therefore, the confession ought to be set 

aside~ His thoughts as to the consequences of what, (if it existed,) wat 

an mega:! restraint, cannot certainly exclude tbe testimony we offer al 

to his confession. We think it wrong that our learned f"iends shou Id be 

allowed to go into proof of wbat, in tHeir own words, is denominated Ii 

private warfare; because su'ppo>ing indeed that they proved its exist­

ence, is could not, for many, very many, reasons, and among them, fol" 

those I have had the fronour to submit to the Court, be received, either 

in justification of the act cbarged against the Prisoner at tbe bar'; (for 

which purpose my learned fl'ienus would not think of presenting it,) nor 

(as I submit to the COllrt,) to invalidate the testimony of the Prisoner'. 

confession, already before tire Court, and which' we propose, ifpermitted 

by your Honours, to strengthen by various other witn'esses. I think it 

tmneeessary to offer additional arguments, indeed 1 ought to apologise 

to your Honours for the length at which I have occupied the time of ths 
Court. 

Mr. SlwJrt.-Tbe question now in argument berore the Court, is Elne 

of infinite importance to the Prisoner, being in effect no less than whe­

ther he is to be permitted to exbibit a defence or not; for, if not per­

mitted, either by cro.s-examinatiun of the witnesses on the part of tbe 

Crown, or by tbe testimony of those we have to produce on the defence, 

to bring before the Court and the Jury the situation of the country de­

nominated the Indian territory, he iR, in point of fact, excluded Crom 

his principal defence; and what period is so proper as the moment when 

• pretended conCession is attempted to be introduced as evidence Il/ljainst 
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fore the Court and Jury those circumstances, which, if the confession 

even ~hould have been made, as is related by the witness now under exa­

mination, would immediately shut it out as completely inadmissible evi­

!lence against him, from their producing a constraint incompatible with 

that freedom which the wisdom and humanity I!lf the law, unite in de­

claring absolutely necessary and indispensable to tbe validity of a con­

fession. In producing these circumstances it is impossible not to touch 

UpOll the difficulties which unfortunately existed between the Hudson'! 

Bay Company and the Earl of Selkirk, on the one hand, and the North­

West Company on the other. In so doing, however, I shall most stu­

diously avoid introducing any thing calculated to excite the feelings of 

any person, and shall refrain from mentioning the name of the private 

prosecutor, or any other persons who may be supposed to be interested 

on the other side of the question, excepting when, in detailing matters 

of public notoriety, it is completely unavoidable. It is a matter of pub­

lic notoriety, whicldt is indispensably necessary to prove, that an armed 

force, under th!! orders, and in the pay, if the Earl of Selkirk, took pos­

session of Fort William by FORCE. I do not want the witness to ac­

knowledge that he was at the head of that force, as I shall prove it by 

other testimony. .All I shall question him to, will be the general state 

of the country. 
Attorney.Generat.-1 am coinpelled to interrupt the learned gentle­

man; The course he is pursuing is that of an address to the Jury, which 

certainly cannot be permitted, nor do I consider that the circumstances 

st~ted are any way relevant to the case before the Court. 
Chiif Just'ice Sewell.-I certainly wish Mr. Stuart to coniine himself 

strictly to points which, according to the acknowledged and established 

rules laid down to regulate the admission of testimony, ile is entitled to 

insist upon offering, and we are bound to receive. I repeat to you, 

gentlemen, that the Court are equally sensible with yourseive~, that a 

variety of d.ifficulties distinguish this from ordinary cases, but there are 

none that render it either I)ecessal'y or expedient to depart from et'ery 

acknowledged principle upon which criminal proceedings are uniformly 

conducted, I do sincerely hope that the gentlemen on both sides will 

shape their course in that way, and should any point arise, involving in 

it a difference of opinion, the Comt will enforce that exposition of the 

law which it is their duty, according to the best of their judgments, to 

furBish. Perhaps it is impossible strictly to confine gentlemen on a case 

like this-it may be inconvenient, and even unfavourable to one or other 

of the parties, parties equally entitled to the protection of the Court, 

:\ 



I>nt I do not see that it can be entirely avoided-indeed on cross-eXllmii­

nation at all times considerable latitude is allowed. 

Attorney-General.-If the Jury wel'e permitted to withdraw, I should' 

Bot object to the argumeut heing pursued, as it was not from any ap­

prehension tbat eventu'ally it wiU at all weaken the ease on the part of 

the Crown', tllat I intel'rupted~ but because it is not relevant to the mat­

ter under our consideration', and my learned' friend's argument being in' 

fact 811" a!1dress to the Jury, their minlls might, by bis eloquence, be 

kld away from what really forms the only subject for their eonsideration­

and decision, namely, is, or is not, the Prisoner guilty oC the crime 

wbereof he i~ aecused, ani!' for which he is receiving his triai? If the 

Jury can be allowed to withdraw, we are prepared to meet my learned 

{!'iend', othenvi;c we object to the course he is taking. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-The Jury unquestionalily canno1i Iitl permilteil 

to retire. They are entitled to hear every point of law dIscussed, all 

well as the evidence. Every thing mllst take place before them, tha~ 

$hey may form a correct opinion. 

Mr. StuctTt.-I will, In submitting my argument to the COlirt, etate 
"-

nothing that I do not m~an to prove. 

Attorney-General.-That I d'are say, but that is the very objection 

we make. )'.1: y learned friend'is desirous to ental' upon a long chain of 

circumstances, which (if true) do not at all bear upon this case, and' 

cannot in any way be made evidence, although they might, aided by 

llis talents, impress eproneously the minds of the Jury, and lead them 

away from the obly subject that ought to occupy theitt attention. 

1I'Ir. Stuar/.-I conceive I may state an outline of what I intend to 

prove; for, unless I am permitted to do so, I do not see how the officers 

of the Cl"Own can object, or the Court determine whether I am within 

or heyond the pale of cross-examination. I have no wish- to address the 

Jury, because I know I cannot be permitted to do so, but I must, as I 

conceive, be allowed to state to the Court an outline of. what I am de­

firous of proving, and my reason. for helieving that I am offering no­

thing incomist~nt with the accustomed, course of proceedings • 

.JUr. Jus/ice Bowen.--We sit here, I take it, at the present moment. 

to i1eciile whether the questions proposed and objected to are, or are not, 

such as might be allowed to be put. ,!'he learned Crown officers have 

iJcen heard in support of their objections, and the counsel for the Priso­

ner are now desirous of answering them, and of evincing that they are 

entitled to put the questions. Pel'llllps, before the Court can satisfacto­

rily decide that yoint, it is desirable clearly to comprehend the object or 

the gentleman in proposing them. If I understand the intention or de­

sign of these interrogatories, they are to commence a series of q,UCatiollS-
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relative to a supposed duress of the prisoner at the .time of making the 

(lonfession. This be,ing proved, he expects the Court will decide that 

the confession cannot be permitteil to gl') to the Jury at all. It is OUT 

peculiar province t9 decide \lpon the admissibility of testimony in the 

first instance, but, when admitted, tg the J uTl/.Ctlone belongs tbe power 

,of determiniRg the .credit that is due to it. The Court perhaps may 'be 

,assisted in forming ~ts decision, if ~he supposed bearings of the testimonr 

which it is wished to introduce are pointed ou.1. 

Jlf11. Stuarl.-I l)1ean to prove, that an armed ferce, which this wit. 

ness accoropanied to Fort William, tool< possession of, and retained it 

by force, against the il1clina~,ions of tl;1e North-West Company; and 

that the partner.s aJ;ld servants of that CompaBY were arrested and sent 

prisoners to MOJ;ltrJlal, upon charges of having committed l)1urders, 

high treason, an!l a variety of other offences. I mean to prove that this 

force, and partK:",larly those w~o co.mmanded it, represented that these 

measures of .ul;theard of outrag-e and violence were pel·petrated under the 

sanction of the goverOlnent, to wJ?ich it was represente<i the whole of 

the North-Wes~ Con;tpa,~y were rebels and traitors. I mean to prove, 

tp.at, in t4e prosecutiol) of this systeIfl of lawless tenor, a division from 

t~ same army captnred and ra-7,ed Fo}."t La,c II). PII,lie, appropriating to 

their own me the propllrty, and-

Chief JIMtice Sewell.-I must stop YQU tl)ere, Mr. Stuart: all that 

took place at Fort Lac la PI;gie (and what it was we <II') not wish to 

know) happened four days after the ~onfession was maile, and therefore 

pannot be evidence. 

]\Ifr. Stuarlr-Frorp. the peculiarity of the case, it is not absolutely 

jmpossible but the effect mi"ht, even under these circul)1stances: have 

been produced, or I may, per)laps, prove this statement to be incorrect' 

Chiif .Justice Sew.tll,-T~at will be fair again-you certainly al'e en­

titled to do that, but I cal)not admit an aetion done four <Jays before a 

Fertain occurren<:e coul4, by possibility, ):ie influenced thereby. 
Mr. Stuart.-\Ve further mean to prove, that it was aj; tIle time in 

his knowleqge t4at Fort William Imd beel) takel) fordbk possession of 

by the Earl of Selkirk, and a force to a.!1 <lppearance of a military des­

cription. TI!iB force raised, eql.lipped, and llIaiflt~ine<J, at the cost of the 

Earl of Selkirk, aod nnder the more imlllediate cOlI!mand of captain 

D'OrBollo,cns, to whom it is said the confession was made, and who, at 

the very moment he is represented to have feceived this confession, was 

lIctuallyat the heall of a division of that fOl'ce, prepareu to renew at 

Lac 11,1 Pluie the scenes of Fort William. We intend to pro,'e, that to 

his knowledge the partners, clerks, and servants of the N orth-West 

Company, were by this military force treated as rebels and traitors, and 
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that this usurpation of authority was represented to be under the coun­

tenance of the government, that it was constantly held out that all who 

did not agree to the terms offered by this armell body, would be treated 

as rebels and traitors, in corroboration of which it was urged that the 

leading persons engaged in the commerce of the N orth-W est Company 

were sent to Montreal to be hanged. If we make out this case, what 

Ilffect can a confession have when resulting from such circumstances? it 

is the right of the Prisoner to shew, at any rate, every circumstance 

which may make in his favour. But, quitting the line of argument I 

ha\'e had the honour of submitting to the Court, let me solicit their at­

tention for a moment to the natUl"C of the evidence, which, in a legal 

point of view, is furnished by a c')nfession. It is universally considered 

by all writcFs on the nature of evidence as the weakest that can he ex­

hibited, although at first hlush persons might suppose that it was the 

I\trongest. In support of this doctrine I might advert to Blackstone 

who, with his usual eloquence, in volume 4, page 256, speaking of con­

fessions, sa.ys, "and indeed they are, even in cases of felony at tLe 

" common law, the weakest and most suspicious of all testimony; ever 

" liable to be obtained by artifice, false hopes, promises of favour, or 

" else menaces, seldom remembered accurately, or reported with jlye 

" precision, and incapable in their nature of being disproved by nega­

!' tive evidence." I might with confidence rely upon the single autho­

rity of the eminent judge I have cited, but the same doctrine is main­

tained by 11'Ir. Justice Foster, and in terms peculiarly applicable to the 

pretended confession upon which we are arguing. This humane and 

learned judge, page 243, says, " for hasty confessions made to persons 

" having no authority to examine, are the weakest and most suspicious 

., of all evidence." The very case that is this moment before the 

Court; this pretended confession, how was it made? (a,]mitting for 

the sake of argument that every thing we have heard ~elative to it is 

incapable of contradiction)-was it not a hasty confession ~ to whom 

was it made? to a person unquestionably having no authority to take 

n con(ession, and, from peculiar circumstances, exposing it to all that 

suspicion which the learned judge describes, as the inseparable atten­

dant of confessions obtained" in a hasty manner by persons having no 

"authority." In assigning the reasons upon whioh the opinion I have 

read is founded, he proceeds to state, " proof may be too easily pro­

"cured, words are often misrepresented, whether through ignorance, 

I' inattention, or malice, it mattereti) not to the defendant, he is equally 

" affected in either case, and they are extremely lia~le to misconstruc­

" tion."-Re adds to all this, what cannot fail to strike every person 

as the distinguishing characteristic of the unfortunate situation of tl.is 
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defendant, .. and withal this evidence is not, in the ordinary course 

" of things, to be disproved by that negative sort of evidence by which 

.. the proof of plain facts may be, and often is, confronted." It is al­

most needless for me to urge that, if this sound opinion is correct and 

applicable in cases which occur in the ordinary course of criminal juris­

prudence, tljat it applies itself with tenfold force to that at present be­

fore the Court. How, I might ask, is it possible to bring in this ca8e 

negative testimony? tIre difficulty would of it8elf amount to a prohibi. 

tion. I might advert to a great number of cases in which the authori­

ties record erroneous convictions, arising from the exercise of extra-ju­

-didal authority by person s havi~g no qualifications, but my learned 

fdend who follows me, will have an opportunity of pointing them out. 

'1'he case of Harrison stonds as a beacon on this subject, associated as it 

is with others ora similar description, so familiar to every gentleman in 

the law, that it would be trifling most unwarrantably with the time of 

the Court, and the understanding of the Crown officers, to attempt to 

refer to them. What weight tnen, I ask, can be anticipated to follow 

such a confession? a confession loaded with all those suspiciou~ circum­

~tances, which the humane antI enlightened judges to whom I have re­

ferred, de~cribe as tbe ordinary characteristics of confes5ions, but mo~e 

especially of " hasty ones to umiuthorised persons," and our own daily 

expet"ience, I was going to say, confirms the doctrine, that such confes­

sions ;ire "indeed, the weakest aad most su~picious of all evidence." 

I,et me again d,·aw your Honours attention to the circumstances under 

which Fort 'Villiam was captUl·ed, and the representations ci,'oulated 

throughout the interior of that country by the captors, f~r purposes lOa 

glaring not to be immediataly appreciated. Let it be remembered tliat 

the partners aud servants of the North-'Vest Company had becn sent 

to Montreal for trial, upon charges which it was confidently asserted 

would terminateJn the whole of,them being hung, and that all ,,-ho i1id 

not submit to this usurpation, masking itself by pretended authority 

from the government, were to share a similar fate with the rebels and 

traitors of Fort William. I,et it be r~membered that a portion of this 

force proceeded to Fort Lac la Pluie, under the command of the same 

pflicer, and previous to the confession, (as I expect by the croSi-examin­

ation of this very witn('ss, to prove incontestibly,) arrested the Priwnex 

at the bar. 

Solicilor-General.-I presume that my \carnell frieml will not he per­

milted to lead a witness to convict himself of an offence, by which his 

nwn safety might be endangered. 

,Mr. Stuarl.-Does my learned friend, the Solicitor-General, intend t() 

~ay, tllat I pan not ,ift the accuracy of any statement the \\-itne~s may 
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J!ave made? for example, if Captain D'Orsonnens 8houlel, on bis examl. 

nation in chief, testify that De Reinhard was not in custody, may I not, 

by cross-examination, sift wheth,er that is the truth and the lohole truth? 

If I may not, I have yet to learn in what cross-exal;llination consists. 

It is only i?y a most rigorous exercise of this right, appertaining in the 

JOost extensive sense to prisoners, that we cal). expect to extract evi· 

dence of events which occurred at .. distance of twenty-Ih"e hundred 

miles from any Court in which redress could be obtained for injury, and 

~he only avelfue even to thM, in the hands of his enemies. Once in the 

possession of Captain D'Orsonnens, or the E;J.rl of Selkirk, in vain wonld 

~he Priwner look for any relief, for where was the COllrt to which he 

could apply for his writ of haheas corpus? where the judge to whom he 

could petition for the protection of the law, to have an examination in­

etituted whether the restraint he was suffering was a !egal or an illegal 

confinement? When he hell-rel of the outrageous violent;e committed at 

Fort William, that his elI)ployers, those to whom he had beenaccus­

.omed to look up with respect, and from whom, in consideration of 

faithful services, he had a right to receive protection and assistance in 

difficulty, were prisoners, and threatened with ignominious deaths, 

whilst their property was retained possession of, he mqpt have considered 
himself in tbe hands of his enemies; hffl enemies bccau~e he 'lVa~ in the 

service of the commercial rivals of that individual who, most unaccoun­

tably, when we reflect on his elevated rank, had raised and equipped at 

his own exprnse, the force which carried on the siege, and, to crown 

the whole, superintended in person, the exe<;ution of the lawless enter~ 

prize. My le'l-rned friend, the Solicitor-General, has compared this to a 

case to which I consider it by no means analagous-the case of tlie riots 

in England, which induced the legislature to suspend that safeguar<l of 

personal freedom, the habeas corpus act; but, althougq for the security 

of the government, it was necessary to strengthen their arm by with­

holding from the subject tbat great barrier against the attacks or en­

croachments of arbitrary power, yet the examination a person so t!lken 

up underwent, was before a disinterested magistrate. Widely different 

was the case of any person in the Indian territory; the magistrate, be­

fore wbom his examination mwt be taken, was at the bead of that very 

force, which, hy its lawless violence, had produced all those evils whicb 

we tbis day deplore. Such a case as the Prisoner's never has occurred 

in the course of law proceedings, and, it is to be hoped, will never a­

gain disgrace a Court. Sincerely do I trust that no part of his Majesty'. 

dominions may again witness such unparalleled outrage as desolated, 

nnder a semblance of magistErial authority, that unfortunate country. 

The ground we take is this, that we ought to be permitted to shew the 
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state or the coUntry, because it is a part of our defence, is a part of the 

Tes gesta upon which we stand, and that the Court and the Jury have a 

right to be made acquainted with it, as il fact essential to the correct 

administration of justice betweeu the Cto\vn' and the Prisoner. The 

Court and the Jury will, respeetively, give what weight to it tiley think 

proper; but, if we are deprived of an opportunity of 50 doing, we lose' 

the main prop of our defence. I shall not trespass further on the time 

of the Court as my learned friend who follow s me will go fully into that; 

part of the argument, and in 50 doing, will, I am confident, satisfacto­

rily prove that De Reinhard's mind, at the time of,making this pre­

tended confession, was not (ree, but that it was nnder the influence of 

fear that it w~s extract€d from him, and, therefore, ought not to be 

received in evidence. 

Mr. Vanfelson.-My duty towards the Prisoner is to sbew that, ac­

cording to law, tbe pretended confession now offered cannot, from the 

circumstances of the case, be given in proof, and this is very important' 

to him. The officers of' the Crown are desirous of putting iu proof a 

confession which they themselves say was made to an individual, not ill­

vested w.ith any public authority to receive the confession of a criminal. 

Under this cil'cumstance this confession is void and cannot be received 

agreeably to the English authorities. The principal question for con­

sideration at the present moment is this, was the Prisoner free at the 

time he made this declaration to Captain D'Orsonnens ? I say that he 

was not, in person, and, also, that bis mind was not free. He was a 

prisoner, .aud had no means of escaping from those whom he considered 

as his enemies. Let us observe for a moment the respective situation~ 

of De Reinhard and Captain D'Orsonnens, and also consider the situa­

tion of the Indian country at that period, De Reinhard was a clerk, in' 

the service of the North-West Company, and Captain D'Orsonnens was 

in the service of the Hudson's Bay Company, 
[The Solicitor-General objected to the statement that Captain D'Or­

!onnens was in the service of the Hudson's Bay Compan~ as incorrect, 

to which Mr. Vanfelson rernal'ked, that if he had not a(lmitted it him­

,elf he (Mr. V.) should satisfy the Jury, from Captain D'Orsonnens' OWl1 

hand-writing, thtlt in point of fact he was so. The note sent by 1I1'Do­

lIald and Nolin with the Prodamation, telling De Reinhard to wait his 

arrival, was signed by Captain D'Orsonnens as Captain of Voyageurs in 

the service of the Hudson's Bay Company; and, if (said Mr. V.) he wa~ 

a simple iOlUvidual (simple indicidu,) why should he direct: De Rein­

hard to wait for him. Mr. JUbtice Bowen hinted that Captain D'Or­

sOlmens tidl>ised or counselled, rather than directed, him to stop, and 

!aaying ,'ead a part of the evidence as taken by himself ending, " In the 
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.. formation of what hall occurred in tbe River Winnipic."]* 

Mr. Vanjelson.-I proceed then to consiller the real situation of D~ 

Reinhard at the period of this conversation, in tire course of which my 

learn"ed fdends say that he made a confes!ion of the murder.. Fort Wil­

liam had been taken by, and remaine.I in pos8ession of my L01'd Sel­

kirk. Captain D'Orsonnens had come to Lake la Pluie with seventeen 

armed men, and eighteen Canadians, although, as he has told us, he 

was only a simple individual, 01' private person. I now solicit your 

Honours to favour me with your particular attention for a moment.­

I beg you will remember that Fort William had been taken by Lord 

Selkirk, and that at the time of this conversation De Reinhard kne,'f" 

that fact. This circumstance is hi"hly important, fol', in my humble 

opinion, it will have the effect of wholly destroying this pretended 

confession. The argument, founded' on thijj fact, which I have the 

honour to submit to the Court, is this,-The outlet from this country 

being in the possession of Lord Selkirk and his people, and, a part of 

the same force having, at the very moment of the confession, also sur­

rounded the fort of Lake la Pluie, where De Reinhard was, and whence 

he was not at liberty to depal·t, nor had any means of so' doing-the 

confessi'On that was made was not the confession of a person that was 

free, and therefore cannot be received as evidence against him. The 

circumstances in which he was placed could not but excite fear in his 

mind, and I therefore submit, that, his mind being under the impres­

sion of fear, the confession walf not free and voluntary; and., before a 

confession can be received as evidence against " prisoner, I contend, 

it is necessary that the Crown officers establish, that it was made freely 

and voluntarily. The rule is a general one, and, if there al'e any ex­

ceptions to this rule, it is the duty of the Crown officers to produce 

them. I r(jfer to M'Nally on Evidence, cap. G, rule 9, page 43. .. A 

.. confession forced from the mind by the flattery of hope, or the torture 

.. of fear, comes in so questionable a shape, when it is considered as 

.. evidence of guilt, that no credit ought to he given to it. and therefore 

" it ought to be rejected." In the present case, then, the confes-

5ion ought to be rejected, for De Reinhard was not a free agent at tlw 

time of this conversation. He could not escape from the hands of his 

enemies, because Fort William, the only outlet from the interior country, 

was in their possession; and, if this was the case, how can it be said that. 

he was free. If he was not in the p06sessi{)n of freedom, then, no avowal 

.... Dans Ie billet je lui priois de m'attendre, desirant d'avoir de lui 
"des informations sur ee que s'etoit passe dansla Rivi~re Winnipic!' 
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that he mar have made can be produced as evidence against him, agree. 

ably to English law. It is dangerous, extremely dangerous, to admit 
a8 evidence against a prisoner, what 'he may have 'said undel" an impres. 
sion of fear. I refer again to l\l'Nally, the same chapter and section. 

" These rules (says Mr. Loft, in his commentary upon Baron Gilberts' 
" Evidence) reflec\ the brightest lustre on the ,principles of English law, 
" which benignly considers that the human mind, under the pressure 
.. of calamity,' is easily seduced, and liable in the, alarm of danger, to 
.. acknowledge indiscriminately a falsehood or a truth, as different agi­

.. tations may prevail; and, therefore, a eonfession, whether made upon 

.. an official examination or in discourse with private persons, which is 

.. obtained from a defendant by the impression of hope or fear, however 

.. llight the emotion is planted, is not admissible evidence," and the 

reason for that (he says) is this, " for the law will not suffer a prisoner 
.. to be the deluded instrument of hjs own conviction." In conclusion, 
I submit to your Honours that Fort William having been taken by the 
Hudson Bay people, to the knowledge of the prisoner, and a part of th$ 
,ame force being in possession of Lac la Pluje, where De Reinhard was; 
a place whence it was impossible he could escape-he was under con­
ertraint, being in the hands of his enemies. Thus situated, I contend, 
finally, that not ,being a free agent, no confession which, un~er such 
circumstances, the Prisoner may have made, can be now received as 
proof against him. 

Attorncy.General.-This argument involves in it two questions; 
whether certain places were taken to the knowledge of the Prisoner, 
and what influence that circumstance produced on his mind. :nly learn­
ed friends, in arguing on the former enquiry , assume as a fact that Fort 
Lac la Pluie was then taken; whereas it stands in evidence that it was 
not takeD till four days after the confession, and instead of influencint; 
the Prisoner to make it-was taken possession of from the circumstances 
disclosed in his confession. 'This 1 conceive does away with considera­

ble part of the arguments of both gentlemen, but more particularly Mr. 
Stuart's. But my learned friends say, that because Fort William had 

been taken, therefere we ought to lose the benefit of this confession; I 
really cannot see how that circumstance can operate to the exclusion 
of this evidence. In what way could it lead him to make a confession? 
did it 'create a fear that he wouhl lose his life, or that he might be put to 
the sword, if he did not can fess? I should think he took the most ready 
way to sacrifice his life, to accuse himself to his enem'ies, (as they are 
called by the learned gentl~men,) of a crime which, from the proclama­

tion be had just read, would compel them to make him a Prisoner. One 
or the learned gentlemen argued that he was not free at the time of 

K 
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Inaking the confession; supposing that he was unfier reetraiut, are not 

confessions generally made by persons in custody? But he was perfectly 

free, and I do think that if ever a strong case \vas made out, this is it. 

The Prisoner meets a man with whom he has formerly ~rVed- in the ar· 

my; upon meeting they shake hands, enter into conversation, and, un" 

der perhaps the influence of conscience, he voluntatily confesses the per" 

petration of a murder. If this is not a free confession, I do ndt think it 

will ever be possible for one to be offered as evidence against a Prisoner. 

Relative to the letter and proclamation about which so much has been 

said, I do not perceive that they weigh at all on the case. The procla. 

mation contained no general pardon, on the contrary, it called upon atl 

persons to b!l aiding and assisting in bringing to justice those who had 

committed offences. We think the, argument~ of our learned friends 

abundantly shew the danger of departing from what I had the honour to 

enforce, in opening as the leading, and indeed the only~ principle on which 

the confession could be invalidated, and I again offer it to the Court. 

The only circumstances that can prevent the confession of a prisoner 

from being mllde evidence against himself, are, that .it can be shewn to 
have been made under hope, or fear, from direct promises of benefit, or 

menaces of danger. On this opinion, we think, we may firmly rely as 

law; and itbeing distinctly proved that th'is was a free and volurt,tal'lI 

confession, it mmt be allowed to go to the Jury. It may he saiu, he 

thought it would make in hisfavour if he confesseil, or that he imn::;iueu 

it wou"l be worse for him if he did not, bnt his imagination is not to des­

troy this evidence. He might choose to imagine the world would soon 

.be at an end~there is no answe,ring for a man's imagination-bnt that 

is not to !et aside a deliberate act. Once admit tbis to be sufficient to 

set aside a confe-'sion, anu there never will be another proved, for all 

that a prisoner will have to say, on his trial will be, that when he made 

his confession, he imagined it would be better for him. Your HODoun 

know that persons are frequently prosecuted upon their confessions, desti­

tute of any corroborating circumstance, yet it being satisfactorily proved 

to have been made freely, conviction has followed; but, that never would 

occur again, if a prisoner were alloweu to turn round anu set his confes­

sion aside by saying, that at the time of making it he thought it would be 

beUer for him. But even this was not the case of De Reinhard, it does 

not appear that he thought it \\ould be better for him. On the whole, 

lIonsidering the circumstances under which it was made, we contend it 

is a good confession in law, and that we are entitled to have it received 

by the Court, and submitted to the Jury, who will giv~ that weight to 
it which they, in their consciences, consider it to deserve. 

Chief Justice Seu:ell.-On all testimony olfered in a Court of justice, 



75 

either in civil or criminal cases, two questions arise: first, whether the 

Court can legally receive and permit it to go to the Jury;' and, second, 

whether the Jury ought to believe it; and this is applicable to confes­

sions in criminal cases. We have at present to enquire as to the first 

point, and, that the decision of the Court upon it may be clearly under­

stood, I will, before I go furtber, state a case. A highway robbery was 

committed, but it was uncertain by whom ~ a man in company with 

some others, dropped some words which excited their suspicion, and 

t;hey took him before a magistrate; before whom he admitted himself to 

be the feloo, and related the circumstances of the robbery; he was com­

mitted to gaol, to await his trial; upon the trial, his confession waM 

provoo, and it being voluntarily made, without either promise or men­

nee, it went t6 the Jury. Upon his defence, however, it was satisfacto. 

rily proved that at the time the robbery had been committed he was at 

a great distance, and that he had made this confession to enable his bro­

ther, wllO bad actually cominitted the robbery, to make his escape. 

Now in tbis /Jase it is plain that tHe confession was lawfully evidence for 

the Jury, although it was destroyed by subsequent evidence, proving an 

o.libi, for that was the result of the JUI'y giving credit to the additional 

testimony which dir.ectly contradicted the confession. Let us exempli­

fy the distinctions of the present case. Had the question been, whether 

testimony to contradict his confession could be received, we should say, 

yes. If it was whether the confession, after being disprove~, or rather 

Ilegatived, should yet go to tpe Jury, we should Bay yes, for we, sitting 

as judg.es, have no power to prevent t)1e confession from going'to the 

Jury, if there is no proof of a direct influen,pe having been resorted to 

by some person in company with the accused, such as holding out an 

expectation of punishment, if not made, or an expectation of benefit, if 

made. It is in such case a question of credibility upon IJontradictoTY 

testimony, and who ,are to decide ~ why unquestionably tlIe Jury. But 

when a di~ect influence has been clearly proved, upon an examination, 

or on the voire dire, judges have said, this shall not go to the Jury at 

all, because it is not'evi(lence, and they shall Rot be exposed tD the in­

fluence of statements, which are not admissible as evidence; but the in­

fluence has be,en appFlrePi ,before,Fln}, judge h,ns exercised his !J.uthority, 

to that extlll1t, apd neitlier wyself nor my learned brother know any 

case in. whiqh the prlncjple hilS beel! ca .... illd farther. We admi,tted the 

cOilfessionin the present case to be gone into, for whf!.~ else could we do 

with that which was evidence acc;J\'ding to the strictest rule~ of a Court 

of law. Yet we do not, by admitting it, say that it is ,to be conclmive, 

01' that it cannot be contradicted: If you have evidence which goes tl) 

th~t; it must be a4mitted; the case I have cited clearly proveJ it mu~~ 
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be admitted, It is your fzght to have it received, and that right shall bo 

preserved to you. When testimony is offered to do away a confessioll 
that is already in evidence, if it be asked who are to be the judges of 
that evidence i' who are to decide what Is the effect produced by it? 
we answer the Jury, the Jury undoubtedly, but if the evidence offered 
is that of a direct and immediate inlIuence on the mind of the Prisoner, 
the confession not yet being' in evidence, then the Court are to decide. 
The evidence you offer to prove (from a supposed influence upon his 
mind) that his confession ought not to go to the Jury, is remote, very 
remote, indeed; too wuch so for us to say that it ought not to go to 
them; they will give what credit to it they think it merit" but it il 
trenching infinitely too far upon their rights, indeed it would be usurp. 
ing the pllcujiar province of the Jury for us to decide upon the merits of 
the confession, which we consider we should be doing if we acceded to 
the desires of the Prisoner's counsel. The last time tbis subject wa3 
before us, you went no farther than to the general enquiry, whether 
the Prisoner, at the time of making the alleged confession, knew of the 
capture of Fort William, and, upon that question being answered, the 
comproinise, (if I may use the expression,) was entered into by which 
the trial closed. Let me beg the gentlemen concerned for the Prisoner 
to recollect, that to facts which bear in any way upon this case there 
can be no objection, but a detail of all the facts connected with this la. 
mentable quarrel between the Hu<lsOQ'S Bay and Nortb-West Compa. 
nies, we can not allow. As a fact, (though I do not see that it can iQ 
any way affect tbe case,) you may prove, if you wish it, that Fort Wil­
liam was taken possession of, and that De Reinhard knew it before he 
wade lIis confession. But as to Fort Lac III Pluie, you can not giveevi­
dence that it was taken, till you 'llOntra.<lict the present witness, who 
swears that it was not taken possession of until four days after the con­
fession of the prisoner, and tbat his information given at the time of 

making the confession, suggested the necessity of its being taken as a 
measure of self preservation, as is aUedged. 

lI-Ir. Justice BQwcn.~The arfPlment we have been attemlin~ to has 
arisen from two questions which the counsel for the pris()ner consider it 
their duty to insist on putting to the witnes8, Captain D'OrsoQnens. 

We considered tbe circumstances uneler which the confession was 
made as 80 fair, that we were bound to admit it, amI aecordingly receiv­

ed it as evidence proper to go to the jury. A fact has come out in the 
cross examiQatiQn, namely, that Fort William was before, and at the 

time, the prironer made his confessioQ, in the possession of the Earl of 
Selkirk, it therefore only remains to enquire whether it was so to tha 
knowledge of De Reinhard, and how did it inlluence his confession? the 
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fact is clearly and distinctly in evidence, and the inference the couneel 

for the Pri~oner wi5h to draw from this fact, in conjunction with what 

passed at Fort Lac la Pluie, (which I shall presently advert to,) is, that 
it ought to exclude his confession. By the gentlemen engaged in the 
defence, the question does not appear to have been seen in two points in 
which, I confess, I have, from the first, seen it. First, That the cir. 
cumstance of Fort William being taken was not strong enough to in­
fluence him. to confess, and seeond, that, in the nature of things, if all 
is true that has been asserted, by being silent he had another chance 
of escape, for i~ appears to me to be an act of madness to imagine. 
that by confeMling to his enemies, (as they are described in the argu. 
ment to be,) his .condition would be bettered. ltelative to his being 

a prisonel', the evidence of Captain D'Orsonnens positively oontra_ 
dicts the assertion. Captain D'Ors~nnens says that he was there as a 
~imple individual, and that an al'med force followed him at a distance, 
but did nothing for four days after tbe .confession had been made by 
the Prisoner, and that what was then done, so far from influeneing the 
confession, was suggested by it, .and that De lteinhard confessing he had 
committed a murder, induced him, in obedience to the proclamation oC 
the governor, to make him a prisoner. EKcept you mean to say that 
the events passing in that country were such, that a rational being would 
~nfess, or rather accuse himself of a crime that hI! never committed, I do 
.JIot see the bearing of your questions. It will be for the jury to deter. 
mine whether they were so, and upon a CFOI!S examination it would be 
Wl"Ong 1.0 shut out any facts which may lead to that conclusion; but it if 
only facts that can be admitted, and those only that took place previous 
to the confession, and I am free to confess that I do not see the bearing 
even of them. I do not Bee what effect the capture of Fort William iI 
io have on tbis case, but it is a fact, and you are entitled to have it np. 

*ed if you tbink it il)lportant. 

Crosl·examination continued by Mr. Stuart. 

Mr.stUftrt.~Did Lord Selkirk and his people take possession of Fort 

William and when '! 
Captain D'Orsonnem.-Lord Selkirk and his people took possession 

of Fort William the thirteentb or fourteenth of August, 1816. It WlIS 

on the thirteentb that bis people entered the fOl·t. 
Mr. Stuart.-Did he take it witb the consent of the people who OC, 

cupied it, or by force 'J. You speak of possel8ion as if it had been vo)un. 

hrily given to Iliy Lord-te)\ us the fact, jUFt yes 01" no. 
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Captain D'Orsonltfns.-I consider that he took it by necessity in the 

jlKecution of his duty as a magistrate. 
lIIr. Stuart.-I want a direct answer to a very plain question as to a 

matter of fact.-Question repeated. 
Captain D'Orsonnens.-I consider t1}at he took it: by force, of right 

(avec Taison) or by necessity. 
Mr. Stuart.-We do not, Captain D'Orsonnens, ask your opinio. 

of the justice of the capture, but a simple direct answer to a matter of 

fact. Was, or was not, Fort William taken po~ession of byf9rce? just 

say yes or no, according to your knowledge. 

Captain DIOrson;'ens.-On the fOUl·teenth of Angnst, or abollt that 

time, Lord Selkirk took possession of Fort William. 

Mr. Stuar-t.-l \vish that io be taken dawn, I will now ask him,~ 

'Vas it taken by f()rce or voluntarily given up ~ answer just yes or no. 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-I consider that he took it by force, but by 

necessity, in the execution of his duty as -. -. -

Mr. Stuarl.-'Ve do not want your opinion as to why it was taken. 

I beg that the witness' answer to the fact, namely, that" he considerell 

the fort to have been taken by force,!' may be inserted on your Honours' 

notes. His opinion as to the necessity for sp taking it, is 110t evidence, 

and, of course, will not be taken down. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Is it of your own Imowl8dge that you say this? 

Captail! D'Orscmnens.-Yes; I say of my own knowledge that the 

fort was taken possession of by my Lord S~Lkirk. I was there in the 

execution of my duty, and -. -. 

[The Chief Justice apprized the witness that he was not bound to 

answer any questions implicating his own conduct, and that the Court 

would protect him in refusing to do 80, and added,-I do not, Captain 

D'Orsonnens, mean to intimate that answering would expose you to any 

unpleasant consequences; bllt that you may not be taken unawares, I 

5hall put the question again, and, in tbe exeraise of yOlll' own discretion, 

you will either ans~er it or decline doin& so as you may·think proper.) 
(The qu~slion being repeatet!) .' 

Capta;n D'Orsonnens.-I say t~at from my own personal knowledge. 

Solicilor·General.-I beg the Court's pardon, hut I do not think the 

witness understood the question. In point of fact he llill n.ot see Fort 

William taken, he Qnly heard of it, and therefore it Illl!1.11ot be evidence. 

:tIlight I beg of your HOllour (0 put the question to the witness, wheth~r 

Fort William was takt:n possession of by force, or eVen '"t all to his are,. 
proper knowledge. 

His Honour the Chief Justice again put the question, and Captain 

p'Orsonnens cQmmencjng 4is reply" I coniider" W!lS interrupted by ~ 
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Mr. S[uart.-'I have repeatedly put avery simple question, YOIi.have 

lInswered it by giving your opinions as to what you call the necessity 

that existed fol' taking it; I want merely the fact-you may decline 

11Iiswering the question if you think proper, but if you answer it, let 

me beg of you simply to say yes or no. Do you know that Fort Wil. 

Iiam was taken possession of by force by the Elirl of Selkirk? simply 

ye! or no. 
Captair! D'Ors;mnens;"-N o. 
Mr; Stuart.-Let the answer be taken 60wn if your Honours pleare, 

tor, upon the defence, we shall have occasion to refer to it. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-The simple point is, did or did not Captain 

i)'Orsonnens see Ihefo·rt tQken by farce ~ 

Captain DiOrsontiens.-I could not say simply yes or nOi oomi<ler. 

ing that if I bad so answered, the criminals might perhaps appear to be 

innocent, and the innoCent might appear guilty. I consider that the 
fort was taken by force, but by necessity, that is my belief according. to 
",hat I have heard. ' 

Chief Justice Sewell.-We must have the fact, whether of your dwh 

lmowledge, you speak ofits having been taken by force. Did you, Sir, 

see it taken, or is it merely from what you have heard that you speak df 

Lord Selkirk's mode of obtaining possession? 

Cllptain lYOrsolt1lens.-1 ,lid not see it taken possesfion of. 

Cross·eramina.tiQn resumed "'!111ft. Slua:rl. 

Captain D'Orsonnens ...... I remained there till the 10th September, 

~nd Lord Selkirk and his people were then in possession of Fort William. 

but what length of time they remained after that I know only by hear­

say, because I did not return thither. I dispatched Noliu and. ltl'Do­
nald before me to Fort Lake Ia Pluie, with a note addressed to De 

Reinhard. By this letter I requested him to wait for .me to give me 

informaticn, or intelligence, of what was going Ol~ at Red River nnd 

in the Riv~r Winnipic. My letter was signed as I always sig\led my 

name" Captain D'Orso1'lnens." It is probable, and I~believe that I 

added" commanding the advanced guard /if the voyageurs of the Hudson'" 

.. Bay Company," or something similar. I wish the Prisoner would 

produce the note. 
Mr. Stoort.-Was the paper to 1\1:r. Dease of the 6th, signed in the 

same wayP 
Chief Justice Scwell.-The Court are decidedly· oC opinion that it i. 

impossible that they cnn permit you to go into an examination of wbat. 

look place .nlbsequent to the confession. 



MI'. Stuarl.-l should imagine I might put 1t as a question to eredi·, 

bility. Captain D'Orsonnens has said that he went there as a ,;mple 

individual. If I can, by these questions, substantiate that be acted 
throughout in a military capacity, I establish the prineipal part of my 
clefence, for I prove the inftuence upon tbe mind ot the Prisoner to be 

sufficient to do away tbe pretended confession. 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Any thing antecedent to tbe conCession that by 

possibility can bear upon it, certainly must, and sball be received; but 
we cannot on the otber hand permit you to adduce evidnce of what 

might bave taken place afterwards. Y 011 must remember tbat on Sa­
turday I opposed it by remarking, that it was no mallner of eonsequence 

how the receipt given to Mr. Dease was signed, as it was given subse­

quent to the confession. 

Cross-examination resumed by Mr. Sluarl. 

Mr. Stuart.-Did you tell Mr. Nolin or Mr. M'Donald to lIrtest the 
Prisoner? 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-No; not at all. I told them to detain him, 

I tbink. 
Mr. Stuart.-Detain or arrest? (Detenit 01.1 ar~ler.) 

Captain D'Orsonnens.-Not to arrest (arr€ter.) I cannot say wbe. 
ther the note was, to request him to wait for me, or, to order him to 
remain for me, as I was burried at the time. When I ~ave tbem the 
note I told them to induce De Reinhard to remain there and wait for 
my arrival; and, as I knew the good disposition of tbe Prisoner, I was 
llOnvinced that when he saw tbe proclamation of Sir Jolin Coape Sher_ 

brooke, and received my note, he would remain. When I was going to 
talk wiih De Reinhard at the fort, there were some men wbo followed 
out of curiosity. I arrived at tbe fort of Lake la Pluie with ,two men, 
who were armeil, and I was armed myself. The otbers followed a good 
way otT, and I cannot say whether they were armed or not. I never 
laid to any person that I expected a remuneration from my Lord Selkirk 
nor from the Hudson's Bay Company. I advanced money to Lord Sel­
kirk's people and to those of the Hudson's Bay Company, on acconnt of 
wages out of my own funds, and I have since received back the amount, 
thirty-nine pounds from Mr. Garden', in one payment by a check on the 

, I 
bank. I did not say before I came to the Portage of Lake la Pluie, 
that I had taken Fort William, or that I had taken other forts, and that 

I would also take that. I do not remember to have said at Red River 
to any person that I was not my own master, and that my departure 
depended upon Lord Selkick, but I may have said 50. I had Ii ftaS 
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hoisted before Illy tent at Lake la Pluie. I had no artillery mounted 

till after De Reinhard had made his declaration. On the 5th or 6th of 

October, Mr. Vftchie brought me two small pieces "of artillery from the 

POl·tage, which is a mile and a half di.tant from Lake la Pluie. I fully 

explained to De Reinhard that the men who were with me were not 

engaged in ~ military tapacity, but as coloni~ts for Red River; and, if 

they declined taking lands at Red River, they had tbe right of returning 

toEurope b~ way of Hudson's Bay, 01' of Canada, at their option. I said 
to the Prisoner after his declaration, (and it is very possible before the 

confession,) and to ~il'. Dease, tliat I considered that the people of the 

North-W'est had" committed a great crime in destroying the Red River 

colony, and that I considered the people who had been active iu destroy­

ing it like rebels, or even that they were in fact rebels, and that that 

could not pass without punishment. In the 6ame conversation I 'may 

have said that I expected reinforcements of colonists to go up to Red 

River, but I did not say that Government was going to 6end ... large 

force there, 

I .. OUIS NOLIN, Sworn, 

And his examination continued by the Solicitor-General. 

Mr. Nolin.-When 1 went to join Captain D'Orsonnens and the 

Prisoner they were alone, and outside of the fort, at which time De 
Reinhard spoke of a murder that had been committed at the River Win­

nipic, amI named the person murdered Owen Keveny. He said that 

" Mainville fired a gun at Mr. Keveny, and wounded him in the breast 

.. or ~eck, and that he (De Reinhard) had finished him by passing his 

" sword once,or twice ~hfough his body." On the following day De 

Reinhard was walking alone with me on the b;ow of a hill; we were 

walking arm in afm ilt a friendly way, and he spoke of the death of 

Keveny. 
[Mr. Nolin was now questioned very closely as to inducing the Pri­

soner to make a confession; he most positively declared that it was per­

fectly voluntary.J 
He told me that" when he was at Bas de la Riviere he heard Mr. 

" ~l'Lellan several times ask both Mr. Grallt and Cadotte to kill Mr. 

" Keveny, but that they refused, and that he also asked the same thing 

" of him, but that he too had refused. That after this Mr. Keveny 

" was sent away as a prisoner up the River Winnipic. That some 
L 



.. days after he himself embarked with Mr. M'Lellan, Grant, Cadotte'. 

" and other persons, to the nllmber of ten or twelve, in a canoe, and 

.. that they also ascended the River Winnipic. That on arriving at a 

" place situ~ted a short distance from the spot callell the Dalles they 

" stopped, and artet·wards that he (De Reinhard) with Mainville, and 

" the Son of the White Partridge, had embarked from there in a little 

" canoe to go where Keveny was, and that their going there was wi~ 

" the intention of killing Keveny, because at that time Mainville had 

" come to a determination to kill Keveny. That they went to where 

"he ,'vas and made Keveny get into their canoe, and that when they 

" had got a little distance, Keveny asked to lantl or to go on shore, and 

" when he was going to re-embark, Mainville fired his gun at Keveny 

.. and wounded him in the neck, and that he (De Reinhard) seeing that 

" Keveny was mortally wounded, ran his sword once or twice through 

" his body and finished him,"-the words were .. and I finished him." 

(Je l'aifini.) In 1817, I encamped about the distance of an arpent from 

the place where, as De Reinhard had told me, they had left Keveuy's 

body. 
[In reply to a, question from the Chief Justice, Mr. ~olin said, that 

having passed through the Winnipic once or twke before, he was able, 

from De Reinhard's information, to form at the time a good idea of the 

.pot, '" though he also admitted that De Reinhard did not tell him at 

what distance above the Dalles, nor on which side of the river they left 

the bo"y.] 

Solicitor-General.-Did you speak with the Indians about that place? 

1I1r. Stuart objeete{l that no eonversation with a thir" person in the 

absence of the Prisoner could be made evidence; to which the SolicitoF­

General replied, he meant to ask him, whether, according to general 

repute, this waB not the iipot where Kelleny was killed; and then shew 

that at this very spot the remain, of a body wercfound, which he thought 

were circumstances proper to go to tbe J ory. 

Chief Justiee Sewell.-You certainly may ask \rim on which side of 

the river the remains of a human body were found; but, upon the vague 

testimony of a parcel of wandering savages, it is hardly worth while to 

have an altercation about general repute, for what can it pOlisiblya­
mount to? 

Solicitor-General. - I submit to your Honour's decision, as on all os-

~ The place where the body was left, according to the Prisonel·'s 
statement, was a small stony or rocky point; but lY[r. Nolin's testimony 
on this point being considered as not sufficiently precise, the Chief Jut!'­
tice put the questioll referred to above. 
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clIsions it is my duty to do, but I considered it a strong corroborative 

circumstance, that at the spot where, according to general repute, Ke­

veny met his death, and was, according to the Prisoner's confession, 

left, the bones of a human being were found. I shall proceed to examine 
the witness relative to the bones. 

[Mr. Stuart objected. that the evidence wished to be produced by Mr. 

Solicitor-General was inadmissible as it was, that SOI't of evidence which 

might prejudice, but could not enlighten those who were ultimately to 

decide the point at issue. Till (said Mr. S.) evidence is offered that 

these are positively the remains of Keveny, which, I imagine, with all 

the ingenuity which my learned friends possess, they will not be able to 

do, I should hope that your Honours will not suffer them to go into 

evidence which, I repeat, is only calculatel to prejudice without en­

lightening, and therefore, in my humble opinion, ought to be most 
scrupulously kept from the Jury,] 

Solieilol'-GeneTal,-I think we have sbewn quite sufficient to entitle 

us to go into this evidence. The confession being admissible evidence, 

I imagine that any thing having a tendency to corroborate that confes­

sion, mu~t also be admissible,-The question then is, does the finding 

the bones of a human being at th~ ~pot lvhere the Prisoner stated that 

Kevcny was left by tboEe who committed the murder, and which com­

mon repute fixed as his burial place, do so. I contend it is admissible 

evidence; and, I believe, there will be hut oue opinion what weight it 

ought to have. 

MI'. Vanfelson said, the officers of the Crown ought to prove that 

Mr. Keveny is really dead before talking of his bones. The first ques­

tion ought to be,-" Had you any knowledge of Mr. Keveny ~ do you 

.. know whether he is dead ?" If the witness answers yes, then, if you 

clln, prove that this is in fact the body of Keveny, for the confession is 

not sufficient, and I produce the authority of Judge Hale, P. C. 284., in 

confirmation oftbi! maxim, "I have often known the prisoner disow8 

.. his confession upon his examination befol'e the Justice, and be some­

.. times acquitted against such his confession" .-There is a case exaotly 

in point: In the hope of pardon a confession had been made of a murder, 

and upon this the accused were unfortunately executed, whilst some 

years afterwards the man was found to be alive. If tbe Indians told tbe 

witness that Keveny had been buried bere, I submit that these Indians 

would be the best evidence, and that secondary evidence should not be 

admitted until tbe officers of tbe Crown make it appear that these In, 

dians are not within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

The Chief Justice remarked, that every case of law must necessarily 

turn upon its own peculiar circumstanccs; for example, a murder hav-



ing been committed in a populous city, it wouh] certainly be a very 

suspicious circumstance if there was not produced that po~itive teFtimony 

of the death which results from the body ha"ing been- seen and recog­

nized subsequent to the death, but. in a forest, remote and exten~ive 

like this, we ought not to expect that exactitude of proof; and, thus 

situated, we are com pelle,) to resort to secondary evidence and abandon 

the primary. His Honour proceeded, the rule undoubtedly is that se­

~ondar!J evidenpe shall not be admitted if it can be fairly inferred that 

better might have been produced, but here is no probability shewn on 

the part of the defence that these savages were known to the officers of 

the Crown, or that by any exertion made by them, they could have 

lleen found. After three separate confessions of murder to three diffe­

rent persons. the Prisoner at la.t points out the spot where he says the 

body was left. It is wished to identify that at a place, which, at the 

time De Reinbard described where the body was deposited, the witness 

supposed to be tpe spot, he subsequently found a dead body. If the body 

so found can be proved to be of the size of Keveny, or that there are 

any other circumstances leading to a belief that it was the remains of 

Keveny, they may at the back of these several confessions perhaps be 
considered as strengthening the case. Though the Jury should infel' 

from the evidence offered by the Crown officers that Kevert!J is dead, it 

does not necessarily follow that the Prisoner at the bar killed, him. The 

~vidence, at the utmost, can go for nothing more than perhaps to lead 

the Jury to infer that Keveny is dead. Here is "a fact that a body was 

found; what additional circumstances c(Jnnectltd with the finding there 

lllay be, it is not for us to anticipate, but the present is, I tliink, a faIr 

question, and my learned brother agrees with me in opinion. 

[The Examination was resumed by the Solicitor-General, and ~lr. 

Nolin detailed the finding at the spot, which De Reinhard 4a,1 de~crib, 

ed, (on the left hand ofthC River Winnipic, in going towards Lake I~ 

Pluie,) a ~uantity of bones, which to the best of his knowledge were 

those of a !llan. He stated that he saw tPe ar!ll and leg bones, and part 

of the scull, but he could not say whether they were those of a large 

!llan: Also at the place, there was a small wooden cross to denote that 
the hody of a while man was there. 

The Attorney-General wished to be permitted ~o go into evidence 

and shew that according to general report, these were the bones of Ke­

veny, but it was overruled by the Court as being neither proper nor ne­
cessary.] 

The Court adjourned/or half an hour, Jt;[r. Nolin's worrl being taken 

that in the interval he would nol communirote with anyone -on tiM! sub jut 
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'!f this trial. The Court hatling re-assembled, the Jury were called and 

peing present, lilT. Nolin was a.,gain called and cross-examined. by Mr, 
Vallielson. 

l\'[r. Nolin confirmed the former testimony relative to b.~ing sent on 

by captain D'Orsonnens and in company with M'Donaltl, and continu­

ed: In the canoe with me and ~l'Donald, there were five others, of 

wh~m thl'ee were armed with American guns, which arll of a larger 

bore than hunting or trading guns. It was ~Ir. M'Donald lV/lO deli­

vered captain D'Orsonnen's letter or note to De Reinhard at the fort of 

Lake la Pluie, and I was with him. I entered the fort accompanied 

only by Dir. M'Donahl having left our men where we had pa,sed the 

night. I did not see in the fort and about it, more than seven or eight 

men, perhaps niue. I arrived in the morning, and Captain D'Orson­

nens arrived (as I believe,) in the afternoon of the same 118y.-I went 

with De Rejnhard, Sayer, and Roussil), to meet him. I was then in 

the service of the Hudmn's Bay Company, and ~l'Donald also. I do 

1'10t know that Captain D'Orsonl)ens always sai<l that he was not in the 

~ervice of tbe Hudson's :eay Company, or of my Lord Selkirk. I be­

lieve that he was there to view the country, as a companion to my 

Lord Selkirk, and'that bis idea was to go no farther tban Lake Superi­

or. I believe be wore his sword. He had no uniform-it was a grey 

great-coat that !Je wore-an old military great.coat. Captain D'Or­

sonnens came to the fort alon,e, but from the fort'we could see the per-

50nS who hael alleompanied pim encamped at some distanlle. Mr. Sayer 

and I talked in De Reinhard's pr,esence of the differences between the 

companies. I recollellt h~ving heard De Reinhard say, before tpe ar­

rival of Captain D'Orsonnens, ",that he was sorry my Lord Selkirk had 

" taken Fort Williafll, because his equipment was there." I remember 

ihat when Captain D'Orsonnens arrived 4e said, that several gentlemen 

of the North-West pad ,been taken and sent to' :Montreal to undergq 

their tl'ials, but I do not recollect that he spoke of treason, or of rebels. 

I never knew J{eveny, amI I never heard hiln mentioned before that 

time, There al'e several graves on the banks of the River Winnipic 

distinguished by crosses to indicate tbat they are the graves of the 

whites. Where I saw the bones I saw only that single cross. There 

/lre no falls there, and they are .generally in places wbere there are ra­

pids or falls. ' Thl! body was I)ot interred, becanse there was no soi! 

~bere, it was only covered with branches and leaves in the Indian fashion. 

In answer to a f[tlestionjro1ll JtIr. Justice Bowen. 

The Indians generil,lIy bury their dead very deep in t)16, groun~, five 

pr si~ feet. 



JACOB VI'rCIDE, Sworn. 

Examined by tf,e Attomey·General. 

Jacob Vitchie.-I have been in the Indian Territories. I arrived at 

the portage of Lake la Pluie three days after Captain D'Orsonnens.­

At the time of my arrival, De Reinhard told me, that he WiiS a prisoner 

on account of the deilth of Keveny. In the evening I heard him myself 

fay to the men of our brigade, that he knew of the death of Keveny, 

and he related how that event had iak!!n place, that \le had received or· 

ders from Mr. Archihald M'Lell;l.D to kill Keveny. 

[The Chief Justice remarking, that this evidence was not admissible 

I).S it was impossible the witness could say that no undue influence had 

been used. 'rne Attorney.qeneral obsen'ed, that he thought it suffici· 

ilnt that the witness made no promise or used any uqdlle influence.] 

Chief Justice Rowelt.-If you go to any pllrticular conversation held 

between a witness and a prisoner, it would be all that could be required; 
but I cannot allo\v a witness to go into evidence of a' general statement 

inculpating the Prisoner, made before such a number of people that it 

is quite impossible the necessary preliminary questious caq btl answered. 

Examination continued by the Attorney·GeneTal. 

Jacob Vilchie.-The next. day I had a particular conversation with 

kim myself. He told me that he had been instigated by Mr. Archy. 

[Mr. Stuart objected that he was a prisoner at the time of the 

eonversation, and consequently not in a sltu!!tiQn tQ Il!ake any thing hQ 

might say evidence against himself. 

The Chief Justice over,uled the objectioIJ and tlje ellamination pro· 
ceeded.] 

Jacob Vitchie.~De Reinhard was not under arrest, he took his meals 

and slept with me, he went and came like the others, but Captain D'Or, 

sonnens told us to watch De Reinhard so that he might not escape. 

Chiif Jus/ice Sewell.-Mr. Vitc\1ie, did you make any promise or 

any threat to ~nduce him to make ~\le declarations which you are going 
to relate to us. 

Jacob Vitcme.-No, Sir, not any; the Prisoner and I belonged for· 

merly to the same regiment, and we were walking together and I asked 

him bow it had happened (speaking of the death of Keveny.) 
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[Mr. Stuart wished the decision of the Court, whether a confession of 

mur<ler, made under a state of illegal dure~s. was proper evidence to go 
to the jury. 

The Chief Justice remarked, tliat after a ,confession of having eom­

mitted a murder, it could not be illegal to secure his person, which 

would put him undoubtedly in a state of duress or surveillance, but that 

this case was abundantly stron gel' under the pro clam ation of Sir J oTtn 

Coape Sherbrooke. The COUl't had got the wbole <lown and it must go 

to the jury, who would give to it whatever degree of credit they thought 
it merited,] 

Jaeob Vildhie.~De Reinhard told me that he had received orders 

from Mr. Archy to kill U:eveny or toeause him to be killed-That Ke­

veny was embarked with him, (De Reinhard) one named l\iainville, 

and an Indian, in a small canoe in the river Winnipic, and that when 

they had come to a certain place where Keveny went.on shore, Mainville 
fired his gun, and that he, De Reinbard, had finished him with his sword 

to hinder him from suffering; and he told me likewise the budy was left 
on the beach. I saw on going up the river Winnipic, near the spot 

which is called the Dalles, a cross on some rocks, and our guide told us 

" that was Keveny's cross." 

Cros8-examination conducted by Mr. Vatliere de St. Rial. 

Jacob Vitchie.-I saw several crosses on the river Winnipic, they 

8CCUl' from distance to di~tance, ,but not here. In the place which is 
called .. above the Dalles," I saw but one. De Reinhard told me that 

Captain D'Orsonnens had sent a note to him, bot be did not tell me 

what the contents were. He told me that he was a prisoner, but <liel 

not say when he had beeR taken. Captain D'Orsonnens told me that he 
intended to go to Switzerland by the way of Hudson's Bay. He told 

me that he travelled out of curiosity alone; he did not tell me that he 

had the title of chief. Every body was in the service of my Lord Sel­

kirk allll Captain D'Orsonnens commanded them. The Prisoner, on tlMl 

third or fourth day after I saw him at the pOl'ta~ of Lake la Pluie, 

told me that .. he beUeved he should be received as King's evidence, that 

" he ha4 confessed the whole to Captain D'Orsonnens, and that he was 
.. going to do the same to my Lord Selkirk, hoping to be received as King's 

.. evidence, but he did not tell me that be had had any conver~ation with 

.. Captain D'OrBonnens rel~tive to such expectation." De Reinhard 

always took his meals with us and Captain :p'Orsonnens. At hble the 

gentlemen of the North West were frequently spoken of. The usual 

conversation of Captain D'Orsonnens and the others was,that Ihe~r-
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trade was ruined anu that their people were going to be scnt pri90l1er~ 

to Montreal to take theil' trials. 
Chief Justice Sewtll.-Was this said in the presence of De Reinhard. 

Jacob Vitchie.-Yes, I remember that it was said in the presence of 

the Prisoner. The Prisoner was known to be a North West Clcl'k at, 

the time. De Reinhard knew that Fort William had be-en taken by my 

Lord Selkirk at the time when we arrived at Lake la Pluie. One is not 

forced to pass by Fort William in going from Montreal to Lake la Pluic. 

but it is the usual route; one may go by Fond du Lac without passIng 

by Fort William. I knelv the person named Henrter, who was tIJelr 

an engage of the North West; he was supposed to be at Red River. 

Captain D'Orsonnens said before de Reinhard that it was a pity such a 

good fellow as Heurter should be amongst rebels, and tllat he onght to 

be brought over. I do no/ know that Captain D'Orsonnens gal'f orders 

to De Reinhard to write a letter to Henrter, but I know that De Rein­

hard did write to him. Captain D'Orsonnens told me to write at the 

bottom of De Reinhard's letter to let him know that I was there, and 

for him to come to us as soon as we got 10 Red River. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-What is tbis testimony to tenel to? 

11Ir. Valliere de St. Real.-I intend to prove that similar conduct 

was also a(lopted to other persons, and that a part of tbe system by 

which the commercial rivals of the private. prosecutor were attacked was 

by seducing their servants, and that the "ritness, Captain D'Orsonnens, 

was principal agent in so doing. 

The Attorney.General objected and sifiJ,-AdmiW-ng for a mo­

ment, what I by no means allow to be really the case, that he succeeded 

in proving tl1at Captain D'Orsonnens was a man calculated to seduce 

the servants of what the learned gentleman very ingeniously calls a 

commercial rivalry, what would it amount to? How wauld it rebut Ii 

charge of murder? how set aside a confession made, confirmed, and re­

peated over and over again by the Pl'isoner? If it cannot be made evi­

dence, why should the time of the Court be taken up in going into it? 

for what would it amount to if my learned friends proved that the whole 

of the servants, of this commercial rivalry had been seduced by Captain 
D'Orsonnens? 

Mr. Just;ce Bowen.-I think a nearer way of accounting for the 

conduct of Captain D'Orsonnens might be found. An old fellow sol­

dier had, in his opinion, got into a scrape, and he causes a letter to be 

''l'ritten, apprizing him of his danger, and recommending him to avoid 

the consequences by leaving the service of those who, in Captain D'Or­

sonnens opinion, would involve him in difficulty; 'a ,ery natural thing, 

in my judgment, for him to do towards a fellow soldier, fer whom he 
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cherished sentiments of respect, an act very far indeed from being cell-
8urable. ' 

Mr. StUlJTt.-We are charged with the defence of the unfortunate 
P~isoner, and are conducting it to the best of oUr humble abilities. I 

am sorry that the more elevated situation of the learned judge deprives 
the unfortunate man of thtl advantage which he might have derived 
trom his talents; but, as he cantiot avail himself of that assistance, I do 
hope tbe defence will be l¢ft in our hands, and tbat we may be permit­
ted, without interrtiption, from any quarter, to conduct it in our own 

way, as it is a duty sufficiently arduolls, without his case being preju­
diced by unfavourable remarks from tiie Bench. 

Chief justice Setoell,-Don't say sa, Mr. Stuart; there can be nti 
greater odium thrown upon a judge tlian to charge him with prejudicing 

the case of an unfortunate prisoner. I beg of you not to repeat sucb a 
remark, a remark as unwarranted as it is unbecoming; I cannot sit and 

bear such observations, and do not, I beg of you, Mr Stuart, attempt 
any thing sifmiar. 

J1fr, Stuart.--I was going merely to state that I do think it extremely 

essential to shew to the Jury that this was the conduct of the agents of 
the private prosecutor on all occasions. Captain D'Orsonnens tells you 
that he was tbere a private gentleman, /l pri1Jate traveller no way inte­
rested in the affairs of the Huilson;s Bay Company, 01' the Earl of Sel­

kirk's views. W' e now wiah to let the Jury know that this private gelt­
lleman, merely travelling for his amu,ement, employed,himself in se­
ducing and debauching; the servants of tlie rivals of that comp!lny who, 
whether he was connected with it or not, he was, by his own account, 
employed in assisting, by superintending the progress of nearly a hun­
dl'ed persons to their settlements. It is, in my humble opinion, ex­

tremely important; they are facts-what weight they may have on the 
Jury i know not, but, to my mind, they are facts completely at vari­
II.nce with'the testimony of Captain D'Orsonnens, who most explicitly 

asserted tbat he was in that country a simple individual, no way con­
nected with the Earl of Selkirk or either of the rival companies, but in 
fact, a private gentleman, travelling merely for amusement. As evi~ 
dence affecting the credibility of Captain D'OI'sonnens' testimony, I 
cannot but consider that we are fully entitled to pursue the course adop­

ted by my learned friend, 
Chief Justice Sewell.-To, a certain extent you certainly may pursue 

it, but not into a history of all the circumstances of this unfortunate 
business. You may ask aim did Captain D'Orsoilnens give orders to 

De Reinhard to write to Heurter. I will put that question to him,­

The inierrogatory be'blg put-
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JGCob Vilchie.-Ido not know whether Cap~ain D'Or!Onnens ,ave 

orders for writing to Heurter, but he told me to write at the bottom of 

Dc Reinhard's letter for him, to come to us KIld to be'at Red,River. 

Cr03$-traml'nation (01Ilinued. 

dGCob Vilchier-I was at Fort William at the time of the capture, on 

the thirteenth of August, 1816. 

Juryman.-What rank did you hold? 

Jacob Vilchie.-I was a clerk in the service of my Lord Selkirk. 

The fort was taken by force, because they turned lIS out with our war" 

rant and all. There was in our party one man with a bugle, and Bome 

men who were armed with muskets and bayonetR. Some had red coats 

heing soldiers lately dischargetl. I believe that De Reinhard knew that 

Fort William had been taken, but I do not know whetber he was ac­

quainted with the manner in which it was taken. In the conversations 

of our people, they often spoke of the manner in which it had been taken 

before De Reinhard, but I cannot say for certain whether this lVas he­

fore or after the declaration which he made to me. 

[MI'. Valliere wa~ about asking the witness whether it was not taken 

with cannon, to which the Chie_f Justiee remarked, that as yet it was 

not brought home, that their conversations took place before De Rein­

hard made his declaration, and that although it might be material t~ 

prove that the fort was in possession of Lord Selkirk at the time, it 

could not be necessary to shew that it was taken with cannon, or how 

it was taken. 

Cross-examination resumed by Mr. Valliere ele SI. Rial. 

JQ.cob Vitchie.-Captain D'Orsonnens said hefore De Reinhard, that 

in consequence of the disputes between my Lord Selkirk and the North 

We!t Company, or in order to settle tllose disputes he was, if it was ne­

cessary, to have troops from government, but I do not know whether 

ne mentioned any number, or whether it was before or after the decla­

ration which Dc Rei'nhard made to me. I have known De Remhard 

for a long ti'me, he was much esteemed in our regiment. 

MILES MACDONELL, ESQUIRE, Sworn, 

And examined by Ihe Attorney-General. 

J1I ... M'Donell.-I have been in the Indian territory, and, I knew 

Olfen Keveny; he passed the winters of 1812 and 181S with DIe 8\ Red 
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River. I never knew but one person of that name, nGr indeed ofthat or 

Keveny, I do not know that it was exactly Indian territory where Ire. 
mded, I considered itto be tile territory of the Hudson's Ray Company. 
I was at Red River from 1812 to 1815, and I knew the gentlemen 
generally residing there. As I went every summer to Hudson's Bay I 
was particularly acquainted witb all between the River Rouge and York 
.Fort. In the autumn of 1813 Mr. Keveny went to 1i;ngland, but I 
have not seen him since. 

Mr. Stuart • ...,..TIie witResl, I believe, does not know tliat he WIIS ill 
England. 

Mr. M'Donell.-I had a letter from him, ~Ilying he was on the point 
of embarking, and I heard afterwards th~ he b.ad been in England, and 
that he had returned to the southward. 

Mr. Stuart.-That will not do, he only heard it. 

Attorney·General.-Was Y9U in England afiel'wards i' 
Mr. M'Donell.-In 1815, I was taken prisoner by the North·West 

Company, aod sent to Fart William, and afterwards I went to Eng. 

land, and from the gentlemen at the Hudson's Bay House I heard that 
Mr. Keveny ha.d returned. Mr. Keveny was a slender bllt very active 
man, about 5 feet 10 inches or 11 in heigbt, of a fresh complexion, a. 
~out thirty (I should suppose) with light brown hair. I know the pas· 
!es on the River Winnlpic and the Dalles. Last July, or the beginning 
.r August, I landed at the place above the Dalles, where I was told 
that the murder of Mr. Keveny had been committed. It was on the 
left side of the river coming towards the Lac des Boii. We were shewn 
at a few yards distance from the shore on a point of rock thee skeleton 

of some person covered with stones and a few branches. The bones 
were asunder, and there WI\S no flesh, but I have no doubt it was a ske· 
leton of a human being. The bOlles were put up togethel', those of the 
legs and body together in a heap. 'We buried them more by putting 
more stones above them. I saw nothing that could lead me to think 
that they were not the bones' of Keveny, 011 the contrary --

Mr. Stuart.-This is mere negative testimony, founded on opinion, 

and not admissible, I eonceive. 
Chief Ju.lice Sewell.-I don't know that, Mr. Stuart. It ii a fact 

that bones were found. Were they, Sir, the bones of such a man as 
Keveny wa!, of a slender man live feet ten or eleven high? 

Mr. llI'Donell.-They were ~mall bones. Mr. Keveny was' a slen· 
der man, but tall, and I bave no doubt that they were his bones. Mr. 
Kev:eny was easily managed, he was a man possesRed of a high spirit and 

a quick sense of honour; he was quick to resent an insult, but did not 

give them. I should think one man might easily munage him. I sup. 



}Jose the Prisoner to be superiour to ~r. Keveny in point of strength, 
I pave heard that he quarrelled with the Hudson's Bay people he brought 

out, but I saw nothing of it. He was not, I think, mo,'e likely to quar. 
,..el than otqer people. I never bad any d,lferenpe with hifD. I put up 
a cross at the pl,ace where I fOUl!d the bones; t/lere pad been a stij)i!; 
with a wisp of straw across it a,ccording to the 1I1dilln manner. Crosse~ 

~e generll-lly put at rapids where people, meeting with accidents, are 
buried; but here are no rll.pids, and I saw no other cross hereabouts.-, 
J left Fort Wil1i~ to go to Red River 011 the 15t4 October, 1816, and 
about three days after,-{he Prisoner joined us wqere we were encamped. 

, He clime ~o my tent and we spoke together about affairs ill general re­
lating to tpe North-)V est. He told me afterwar4s that he was a Prisofl, 

f!T, but he did not appear like one, as he bad a gun and ammunition ami 
a shot bag on. We spoke of the affairs of the Savage Territory general­
ly, and amongst others of the massacre in which Governor Semple fell, 
together with his people, by the North-West Company. He t4en said 
l,hat he also had committed some crime, lind was then a prisol)er on hili 

way to submit himself to Lor<l Sel~irlr. I told him t/lat he bad not 
Pluch to apprepend, as I supposed he hal} not b~en guilty of such hein­
pus crimes as the massacre at Rjld River, upon wl1iph he said that he aI­
ro had killed a mal) belonging to us, and asked me if I w0!lld permit 
/lim to name hillJ; I said yes, certainly, and I)e I)amed Mr. Keveny. 

JIe said Keveny, not Owen Kev~ny. He said that Keveny had come 
from Hudson'~ Bay, Qle appeared to speak with regret for what he had 
,lone,) and that he went witl! a warrant f,om Mr. Archibald Norman 
M'Leod to arrest ~lr. Keveny, and having done RO, he brought him tl;) 

the /lIouth of ~e River Wil1nipic, where Mr. M'Leod issued the war~ 
rant, but he had previou~ly departed for tlIe north. He sai~, that at the 

~ime phakipg him, Mr ~ Keveny refused to obey t4e warrant, and there 
had belln a scuffle, an,I t)1at tjle Bois-brules wjlo were wit4 him would 
pave killed Mr. K~veny, but that he prevent~d the'll, saying, that he 
could manage Keveny himself. He went on to tell me that Keveny 
was afterwarl}s sent off for Fort William, and that some days after his 
departure they received new~ at Bas de la Riviere, ~hat Fod William 

had been tak!ln possession of by Lord Selkirk, that thereupon a council 
was held, at which it was resolved to despat~h Mr~ Keveny rather than 
he should join Lord Selkirk. He (De Reinhard,) said that he was pre­
sent at this council with Mr. MILellan, Mr~ M'Donel\, Joseph Cadotte, 
Cuthbert Grant, and some others, whose names I do not now recollect, 
and that they divided his effects between them at this couDcil, but he did 
not mention what part of tbe effects he had. He further said, that they 

represented to him that the deceased was ~ rebel Qnd that 1I1I t~e person~ 
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~p!oyed under my Lord Selkirk were rebels, and were actin~ against 
the government, and that the gl'eatest mischief might be expected, as I)e 
(1feveny) had with him papers ahd, pl,ans whicb might, and would be, 
ruinous to the Nortb-Wes~ Company, He afterwan}s mentjoned being 
in a canoe with Keveny, in company with a man named Mainville, and 
a Savage .commonly .called Jose, fils de la Perdrix Blanche. 

Attorney-General.-Hl/.ve the goodneJIs, Sir, to relate to IlS "'hat /le 
jtated to have passed in the ,canoe. 

Mr. M'Doneil,-He said that, en hllu.t du Dtdles, tl)ey landed, and 
that Mr. K!lveny, (qr some natural occasion, left them, and went a little 
pistl/.nce into tIle woods, and that, during his absence, he spoke to Main· 
ville, saying, t~at if he, (Mainville,) was desirous, (" si vous aves en. 

t'ie,"") of killing Keveny, tbat this was a favoura~le place; upon which, 
as Keveny Wlj.S approacq.ing the calloe to re-embark, Mainville discharg. 
ed his gun, sl)ooting /lim in tile ne,ck, and t»at he, (the Prisoner,) ral). 
)lim twice through tbe Rack with his sword to ijnjsl;1 hjW. He also sai<! 

that, after being wounded, Keveny tried or atte~pted to spel!ok, but that 
p,lJ he could Sl!-y WIlS, " you," addillg thf!ot pe ~id not llU#,er lOng, for th,a~ 
pe, (pe Rein4ard,) im~ediil~ely put pim ou~ of Pllill. H.e told me l/o 

great deal II/ore w4ich I do not now recollect, but I have ,elated the 
principlll par~s of our !1Qij.versa~i.oll. 

AUorr~y-G~neral.-Did '~e appear penjteljt, and e:\rpress sorrow f.or 
what he pad done, or accol)nt f.or his ~ondu~t? 

Mr. M'D,onell,~lIe appel/.rell ve~y peni/etlt for what 4e had dqne, 
expressing grjlat s.orr.ow, saying that he p'al} ~~n lI!jsled, ~nd that it 
was thr.ol)gh ignorance t,hat he had done it. 

Allorney-Ge~ral.-Dip. he tell y.ou wpere Keveny fell, anI} what 

tlleY did with t!).e b.ody. 
Mr: jlf7Donell . ..",-lIe t.oJd me that M~. Keveny fell )ust by .01' upon 

the canoe, jus~ as he w!!os g.oing,to embarlt, l/.nd I do n.ot recollect that 
~e told me w4at t!).ey dil}lVith the body; I think /J,e didllot. 

It being si7! o'clocfr, the Court was adjourned until to~morrow at eight, 
A.. M. The Chief i/'lJ&tice a4monishing _"4Cr. M' DoneU that he must no, 

bold communication with any person 071 th~ subject oj Ihe trial. 

, If rou }lave a wisb. 



Tuesday, 26th May, 1818. 

lRESEN~ AS BEFORE. 

The Jury were called over, and being all pruent, Miles ]If'DontU, 

j;$quire, was cross-examined bV lilT. Stuart. 

}lrr. M'Donell.-I cannot swel!7' that the bones I saw en haut des 

Dalles were the bones of Keveny, nor am I sufficient anatomist to know 

the bones of a man five feet ten or eleven inches, or to dietinguish the 

bones of a man from those of a woman. I could distinguish the bones 

of a very large man from those of a Imall one; these appeared the bone. 

of a man rather above the middle size. I do not recollect that De Rein. 

hard said where it was held, but he told me who were at the council­

viz: Mr. M'Lellan, Mr. M'DonelI, Mr. Grant, Mr. Cadotte, and oth­

ers, together with himself. By Mr. l'l'Donell, I mean Mr. Alexander 

)1f'Donfll, a partner of the North-Welt Company. And I am sure the 

Prisoner told me that he (Mr. M'D.) was at it. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Are you sure, Sir, that the Prisoner told you 

it was Alexander M'Donell. 

Mr. M'Doncll.-He told me it was Alexander M'Donell, a partnel' 

in tbe North-West Company. I was made a Prisoner by the North­

West Company in 1815, and taken to Montreal. Mr. Keveny went t6 

England in the autumn of 181S, aocl I have not seen him since. I never 

considered myself in the sPfvice of the Hudson's Bay Company. I held 

a commission for judicial purposes in a tract of land ceiled by the Hud­

son's Bay Company to the Earl of Selkirk, it being a right they have 

reserved, and I was Governor there, Tbe Hudson's Bay Company havQ 

also reserved the judicial authority O\'er this ceded territory to them­

selve~. I am pl'incipal agent to Lord Selkirk ill the IQdiu territory, 

Ilnd have been so since the 10th 01' 12th of June, 1811, which is the date 

of my commission. I had in my possession (but Ilave not at present) a 

warrant for the arrest of Ke\'eny, which I found at FQrt Douglas, I 
sent it with other papers to my Lord Selkirk. 
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PREDEltICK DA1IIIEN HEURTER, SWOrrt, 

And examined by the Attorney-General. 

Heurter.-I was in the Indiali territories in 1816, -in the service of 
the North-_West Company. I was formerly a sergeant in the Meuron 

regiment. I !aw Keveny'~ baggage at the fart at Bas de la Ril'iere; I 
received it froiD a Canadian named Wells, and an Indian called Joseph_ 

The trunk which was marked" Keveny" -

[Mr. Stuart interrupted the witness, saying, this was not evidence, 

the Chief Justice replied he had not taken it down.] 

Hmrter.-I received a letter [l'om the Prisoner, hut I have not got 

it here. 

Ceoss-examination conducted by Mr. Vanfelson. 

Heurler.-I was engaged to the North·West Company for three 

years, but I left before my engagement was completed. I did not enter 

into the service of the Hudson's Bay Company, nor of my Lord Selkirk. 

I never was employed in the service of any other company. 

hIr. Vanfelson.-In what service have you been sin~e you left the 

North-West? 

[The Chief Justice doubting whether this was a proper question, Mr. 

Vanfelson said he considered it one which he was bound to answer, for 

if mnde to acknowledge tbat he deserted before nis engagement \VB!! 

linished, and went into the service of others, no worse consequence could 

attend it than a civil action of damages; and upon a cross-examination 

lie hoped he wall not exceeding the limits. The Chief Justice said, upon 

a cross-examination perhaps .it was not beyond bounds, but not ~eeing, 

any effect which it could produce to the benefit of the Prisoner, he 

thought he should save time by stating his difficulty on the subject, and 

recommended Mr. Vanfelson to put the direct question to the witness,. 

which was done.] 

Heurter.-I have never been employed in the service of the Hutlson'~ 

Bay Company or of my Lord Selkirk, or of any other person_, and I 
have not received any salary from auy one whatever. Aftel' De Rein­

hard was in prison at Montreal I went to see him I believe tWG or three­

times. I do not remember any messag~ which I carried to him; antl,_ 

as far as I can recollect, I did not tell him that I was entrusted wiYl any 

message. 



Mr. Vanfelson.-I have done with thi~ witne!!. 

Attorney-General.-You left the North-West: Give us,yonr faa,,,,',S 

for so doing. 
Chief Justice Seweil.-You must not go into that. You have tbe fact. 

and I cannot permit you to go fanher.-Caii the next witness. 

Doctor Allan was about being sworn. 
Chief justice Sewell • ....;;Mr. Justice Bowen lias reminded trie of a cir" 

eumstance which renders your question petfectly admisSible, Mr. Attor­

ney-General; you certainly are entitled to ask it, so tllat your witnes" 

may account for wliat at present appears unfavourable to his reputation; 

namely, that lie left tlie serviceo! his ~mployers before be had completed 

Ms engagement. 1 did not recolleet tbe circumstance, bu t upou my 

brother Bowen's suggesting to me his reason for thinking the question 

was a fair one, I referred to' my notes and certahlly am of the same' 

opinion. 
Mr. SluaTI.-It is with the greatest deference that I beg to submit !II 

contrary opinion to that just intimated, but 1 presume your Honour 

did not intend to pl·event us from stating that we had an objection, 

which YOllr Honours overruling the question; rendered it unnecessary to 

produce. We now beg leave to' contend, that tlie question is perfectly 

inadmissible in law, and perfectly unnecessD!ry for the sake of justite. 

The question of the CrolL'n on the examination in chief was, were you 

in the service of the North-We..t Company? and the answer of the' 

wituess was, res. We ask, have you 11ft that service? and he answers, 

Yes-There the facts end, and it is quite unnecessary to gll farther. 

Chief-Justice SewcU,-For you perhaps it is. 

llIT. Sluart.-And equally so for justice also. 

Chicf Jus/ite Sewell.-That I deny-Justice to the 1V1tness ,,,ho h!l8 

just left the box requires it. 

Mr. Stuart -I still must beg to contend that all the purposes of 

justice are obtained by tbe question of the Crmvn, which led to evidenc8 

that he had been in the serviCe of the North·West Company, and, by 
our own on the cross-examination, proving that he had left it. 'V fJ 

have imputed no object to the witness, we therefore consider that thfJ 

question should not be entertained, for it can be of no possible benefit; 

:lIor do 1 see Rny end which it can answer, unless to engraft a civil ac­

tion on. a criminal process. Our only object in putting our question 

was, that we thought it necessary to know, and that the jury should 

know, what service the witness is iu at the present moment, becauFc 

there is an influence arising from circumstances, which we are not al­

ways capable of divesting ourselves of, !lor imleed, from its subtleness, 

ilo we always detect its operations. Had his answers to O1y lellrne~ 
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lriendis subsequl!Dt qUisti'ons been different to what they were, thoug. 

they might not have invalil\ated his evidence, would it not have been a 

fair circumstance to excite their caution, and therefore proper to be be­
fore the ,jury, that he was in the employ of the private prosecutor. 

Upon his saying that he was not; we left him, and we do not consider 

that the Crown are entitled to re-examine the witness. 

Chief Justice Sewell.~It is really painful when first principles of law 

are oppos~d, by so~mn argu'ment, from gentleip.en for whose abilities 

we entertain the highest respect, and, as painful lIatly to deny them, and, 

without hearing' them, to'decide contrary to tileir wishe5, but it is aO: 

absolute waste of time to hear' an argument on this que8tion. Had I 

l'ecoll'ected th'e e~leni of the question you had put to the witness, I 

should not hl.we hesitated." moment as to the right of the Crown to' 

put the question' prop05ed oy ll'[r. Attorney-General. J.et us foi' a: mo­

inent look how the case stands. You ask Vitchie, a farmer witness, 

whether he dM not write to Heurier, the present ''fitness,' recommending 

a certain course, and yon support the testinrony given by Vitehie-, by 

making Heurter acknowledge, that he did that which was recommended 

to him. The infetence you wi'sh to draw is evident. To obviate the 

suppo~ed infiuence which the jury would infer from the circumstance 

Of bis leaving his employers witbout finishing an engagement; I say to 

remove an)' unfavourable impression as to his credibility, which tbis, (to 

use your own term,) desertion might create, the Crown officers wish to 

ask him the manifest question:' why did you leave the N.:lrth-West Com­

pany? and in my opinion it cannot be refused. 

Mr. Justice Bowen.-In concUlTin/j!;' with tbe Chief Justice, I re­

~ark, that I suppose tbe object of our sitting here is fo see justice done 

between the parties, ami to fairly take tbe evidence, as it i. adduced on' 

both sides, and, in the performance of this office, that it is my duty to 

put any question, or make any obselTation, that strikes my mind as im­

portant,' either to the Crown or to the prisoner; and I trust, so long as I 

have the honour of a seat on this bench, 1 shall never be so wanting in 

illy duty to the public justice of the country, or to myself, as to abstain 

from doing so. In the present instance, I refrained from putting the 

quest'ion, though I saW the proptiety of it, but when it u'as put and 

was about being, ovelTuled, I felt it my duty to point out to the Chief 

Justice that he, had', in my opinion, overlooked the part of the evidence 

which the Attorney-General, by that question, was desirous of clearing 

up to the jury. It was a sense of duty that prompted' me to do so now, 

and a similar &ense has urged any former remarks I have made, and ·not 

II wish'to conduct this prosecution as was yesterday so ungenerow;ly inti­

mated by Mr, Stuart. 
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Tile question was then put by the Attorney-General. 

Heurter.-I left the service of the North-West Company, because 1 

received orders to join the Half-breeds to take posses.ion'of Fort Douglal 

by/orce.-It was in 1816, at the time Captain D'Orsonnens was there. 

Atlorney.General.-Call Doctor Allan. 

DOCTOR JOHN ALLAN, Sworn, 

And examined by the Attorney-General. 

Dr. Allan.-I know the Prisoner at the bar. I first saw him in 

November, 1816, at Fort William. 

The Attorney-General produced a paper.·­

Mr. Stuart.-What is that paper? 
Auorney-General.--I am going to ask the witness what it is. 

Chief Justice Sewell, addressing the Attorney-General.-What is that 

paper? 
Attorney-General.-Witness! what is that paper? 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Give me the paper. [The paper being handed 

to, and examined by the Couri.] It purports to be a confession of Charles 

De Reinhard before Thomas, Earl of Selkirk, one of his Majesty's Jus­

tices, &c. &c. 
Mr. Stuart.-Let Lord Selkirk be produced. 
Attorney-General.-I proceed with the examination, and when I 

produce the paper to make it evidence, the learned gentleman can object. 
Dr. Allan.-I attended the Earl of Selkirk as a surgeon. I never 

acted as clerk to him. Lord Selkirk was " magistrate in the Indian 
Territory at that time. I was present when De Reinhard signed a pa­
per drawn up with his own hand. I understood three days before, that' 

he was drawing up one, and he told me at the time pfsigning it, that it 

was his awn hand-writing. I was present when the Prisoner gave the 

paper to Lord Selkirk, and there was not any promise or threat made 

use of. De Reinhard signed the paper, and then delivered it to Lord 

Selkirk, and when it was delivered, Lord lOelkirk !!.sked him whether he 

wished to add or take away any thing frsm that paper, and he said no. 

Mr. Stuurt.-I object to this as going to prove the contents of a pa­

per by evidence that is not legal. Let the paper be produced regularly. 

Dr. Allan says distinctly that he was not clerk but surgeon to Lunj Sel­

kirk, who, as I understand, signed this paper as a magistrate; produce 
him or his clerk. 

8olicitor·GenerCll.-For all the purposes of thil confessioD I should 
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contend that the present witness was a clerk. Did you, Sir, act as sur­

geon ta Lord Selkirk in witnessing the paper? 

Dr. Allan.-I came out as il medical attendant to Lord Selkirk's 

family. I had never he!iJ"d_ of Red River at that time. I was present 
when the paper was signed. Nothing was altered; he said the prisoner 

did not wish to alter any thing. Three or four others were also present. 

1I-1r. Stuart.-I hope the Court are not taking this; surely till the 
paper is put in, this cannot be evidence. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-It is evidence as a recapitulation of what took 

place at the delivery of a certain paper, which if not produced, or if pro­

duced and found inadmissible, will go for nothing. If found to be evi­
dence, we then have the whole attendant circumstances before us. 

Mr. Sluart.-It would he more frank of the Crown officers to ,tate 

explicitly what it hl they are going to prove by this paper. 

Solieitor-General.-We mean to prove I!- voluntary confession oj this 
murder on the part of the Prisoner. 

Mr. Stuart.-Is it that? 

Attorney-General.--Certainly it is, and have we not a right to do so? 

Mr. Stuart.-Then the Crown officers intend to prove a depo~ition 
taken hefore a magistrate by a by-slander-I object to such proof. 

Attorney-aeneral.-My learned friend is, I think, a little premature. 
We have produced no paper. He cannot, therefore, make an objection 

to the mode of proof. 
Ch-ief Justice Sewell.-It is of no very material consequence when the 

objection is made. According to strict etiquette, the time for objecting 

would be when the paper is put into the hand of the witness, and the 

question is asked-is that the paper -you saw signed and delive~ed by the 
Prisoner at the bar to the Earl of Selkirk? and you bad better I'e~erve 

your objection to that stage of the examination. 

Attorney-General.-Did Lord Selkirk send for any person to witness 
the Prisoner sign the paper? 

Dr. Allan.-Lord Selkirk sent for a geRtJeman belonging to the 

North West Company, named Dease, to see De Reinhard sign the paper. 

Mr. Dease read the paper himself in my presence and signed it as a wit­

ness. 
Attorney-General.-Did he make any remark on reading it?' 

Dr. AlIan.-Mr. Dease asked the Prisoner" if the contents were 

f)'ue JDe Reinhard said" yes they were true," and signed it, and Mr. 

Dea5e signed it as a witness. 
Allomey-General.-Is that the paper, Sir, which you speak of? 

1I'Ir. Stuart.-I object to that question • 

.Attorney-Gemral.-Is that the paper? 
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Chief Justice Sewell.-Now is the time certainly for Mr. Stuart tQ 

tender his objection, amI to be heard in support of it. 

lfIr. Stuart.-The officers of the Crown produce a paper purporting 

to be a confession taken before a ~agistrate,' and they propose to prove 

the signature of Charles De Reinhard by the gentleman now in the box. 

To this course tee object, and I shall have the honour very briefly to 8ub~ 
mit to the Court the grounds upon which our objections are founded.­

-:We obj?ct to this I!aper or confession being proved unless by the magis. 

trate before whom it was taken, or that magistrate's clerk. It is a con· 

fession which on its very face s~ews that it was ta,ken under the statute 

of Philip and JlIary, on a charge of felony and the question is, can it be 

received in evidence? We say no, except the ~agistrate or his clerk is 

proauced according to the provisions of the statute of Philip and lffary. 

~ithout ,reference to authorities upon the subject, the necessity for Ii 
stl·ict compliance with this provi~ion of the act must, I conceive, he ap­

parent to everyone. At the time of making the confession, he was in 

~he magistrate's hands, who according to his juolgement might liberate 

or imprison him, for the statute of Philip and Mary gives that discre­

tion to the magistrate. It also provides·a check against magistrates in­

ducing prisoners to confess, ' by rendering no other evidence sufficient to 

prove a confession, but their own oath, or that of their clerk, who was 

present at the time of its being made. The reason for this is apparent; 

because it i. the magistrate alone who can give what the law invariably 

demands, the best evidence of any fact that it is wish~d to prove. Ap­

ply it to this case, allol it is obvious that this gentleman, who was in the 

room a short time, five minutes perhaps, cannot give us that informa­

tion which the magistrate could before whom the confession was made, 

and who must necessarily know whether any promise or undue innuenc~ 
was resorted to. Upon the great and leading principle of criminal law, 

that the best possible' evidence must be b;ouglll before the Court, this con­

fession is inadmissible. Who can give the best possible evider.ce in this 

case? why indubitably that person who knows all about it, f,·om begin~ 

ning to end, and who is able to give a legal quality to the confession by 

answering those introductory que<tions, which it is indispensahle ;hall be 

put, pre~ious to any such examination heing read in e\"ide~lce. M'Nal­

Jy, page 41, in a few words, lays down the rule, which it is impossible 

1:0 evade-u Before such examinations can be read in ~vidence, it must 

" be testified th'at they were made f,·eely, without any menace, or ter­

" ror, or any species of undue influence imposed upon the prisoner."­

Who; I say, but the magistrate, or his derk, can satisfactorily prove this? 

Here we have a confession attempted to be pro,·ed, without a justice 

being brought before the Court, or his clerk; and a confession not writ. 



~ lIown at the moment, when it mi;;ht ,be supposed that a sense ~ 

}5uilt burdening the eonEcience, led to a full develop~ment of all the cir­

,immstances connected with the cdme. What certainty have we that 

threats and mena~es were not inade use of, or what ~ertainty, ou the 

other hand, have we that promises were not ,resorted to, to incluce HIe 
,confession. If my instructions are correct,promises must bave been held 

out, for pret,i01;ls to the confession, I beiieve, we sha!! be able to prove 

that Dc Reinhard was cOllfined closel,lJ and treated with rigour,but that 

nfter IHl had delivered this' paper, he 'was libera(ed and treated with k;nd~ 

'ness. Thjs circumstance alone is mfficient to excite suspicion, and to 

dictate the absolute necessity of most strietly scrutinilMng every thing 

,connectc[1 with this pretended con'fc!'Sion. The pe~'tliar situation of th~ 
,1Iwgistrate who received this confession, forms also a reason for' examin­

ing into this case (more tban any otlier,) with the utmost minuteness. 

Fort 'Villiam, where the Prisoner at the bar was in a rigourous confine­

,ment, previous ,to making this confe~sion, had been taken by, and the(l 

rema,ined i~possession of, this very magistrate, A justification for all 

,the violence and aggression which characterized the capture of that fort 

was, we are told, that it was indispensible to enable this magistrate to 

bring to just,ic~ a band of criminals, who had thought themselves above 

,the faw.' This is the story that had, by every possible means, been cir~ 

,culatell in' that country, and that all in opposition to tl1is magistrate 

were rebels and traisors. That story not answering, except in the wil­

derness, where info,rmation coul,l only be obtainect, through the e1mn­

nel, and under the observation, of this very magistrat~, recourse "'as 

had to the press, to enal~le the actors in these seen ~s to stand clear in tll? 

public opil~ion, I hold in my hant! a public'";tion, in whicb this very con­

fession is git·cn to the public, and not IIw confession alone, ?ut 16th com­

?nenfs calculated to inflame the public mind, and dtp1'ia this unfortunate 

1Itan, and every other person any way connectcd ,6th these transactions, rif 
~'fair and impartial/rial. ' Most sincerely do I hope as this is the first, 

so it may be the last time, we shall hear, I will not say of a British S11b­

ject, but of any mnn being dpprived of a fair and impartial trial, upon a 

'charge affecting his life, Of this first right of every human being, tho 

magistrate before whom the ,confession \Vas taken, has, as far as in him 

Jay, depI:h-ed'the pers~n at the bar, by [loisoning against him, in a long 

~nd studied pamphlet, tb,e public eal', 'by daring to reveal the I{ing'~ 
counsel which he was bound to keep seCI'et, and thus disturbing the 

pure fountain of national justice. Such conduct I trust in God we fhall 

nev~r again witness. Eut we arc not d~iven to the nccesfity of exhi­

biting the dcfor?Iity of thi~ con<luct, it is snffie;ent that we I'cst upon Ii 

rr'illciple of [au', and pay, thRt till the best evidencc, which the nature 
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6( the case will admit of, is produced, this confession cann"t be permit/eel 

tD go to Ihe Jury. It may perhaps be urged, that the number of 'Yit­

nesses to the signing of this confession, excludes all idea of its being ob­

tained in any other than the most open and honourable manner; on the 

contrary, I should contend that the number witnesses adds no strength 

to the confession, but rather the reverse, iMeed that circumstance alone 

renders it saspicious, and would, though unattended by any of the strong 

points to which I have alluded, BUggest to my mind that all was not 

fair. If it was, why deviate from the usual course? No reason, I think, 

can be assigned that will satisfy either the Court, or the Jury, that any 

necessity existed for ~uch a step. In conclusion, I contend that Lord 

Selkirk, as the magistrate, ought to be produced, so that the Prisoner 

JDay have the benefit 'Of examining him. It is positively required by 

lCW!, that the magistrate shall be produced previous to the confession be­

ing receive<1 as evidence. I have no wish to trespass further on the 

time of the Court, being confi<1ent,· that till the necessary compliance 

with the statute takes place, it will not be permitted to be given in evi­

dence against the Prisoner. Reason, as well as law authorities unito 

against such a confession being received . 

• ~Ir. Yan!,lson.-I have the hoonur, in the first place, to submit to 

the Court that this pretended confession of the Prisoner ought not to be 

received, because the magistrate before whom it is said to have been 

Jllade is not called before the Court to prove it, anti secondly, that on 

account of the Iloniluct of the magistrate who received it, this confession 

ought I/ot to be admitted. The magistrate, the Earl of Selkirk, (of 

whom I shall say nothing but as a magi~trate) has so deviated from his 

duty, in the present instance, as to endeavour to poison the public minil, 

by giving to the whole world this paper, which the Crown officers now 

produce as the Prisoner's confession made to him as a magistrate.­

Not confining himself alone to the printing of it, this magistrate equally 

forgetful of his elevateil rank in society, and the duty which, ~s a ma­

gistrate, he owed to his Sovereign, has e\'en dared to comment on his 

confession. Yes, your Honours, this magistrate not content with hav­

ing published, contrary to his duty, this confession, he has not been 

ru;hamed to comment upon it, for the purpose of exciting the public 

opinion against the unfortunate Prisoner at the bar. I do not, there­

fore, object to this conf€ssion, as being the resu It of an undentanding 

with the officers of the Crown, no, not at ail, but upon the principle 

that it is not equally certain that it does not result from some under­

daniling bet\\'een the private prosecutor and the Prisoner, which does 

not at present appear. I submit to the' Court, that the law always re­

quires, and indeed exacts the best evidence that the nature of a case will 
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will permit. Then I ask, what in the present case 'is the best eVldenc" 
of this confession? Assuredly it is not the testimony of a bye-standel', 

not the testimony of a gentleman who tells you, that he did not even 

see the Prisoner write it; not that of Doctor Allan, his Loraship's phy­

sician; but the best evidence to produce, is, that of the magistrate befol'e 

whom this pretended confessi~n was made, or of his cle~k, and not that 

of a person who, by pure accident, happened to be present. Let us 

consider this confession and the testimony which Doctor Allan gives OIl 

the subject. -This confession had been prepared before-hand, which is 

certainly not a very usual circumstance; moreover, at the time that tbe 

Prisoner delivered it to the magistrate, it is in evidence that Lord Sel~ 

kirk asked him whether 'he wished to alter it, or to add any thing to it. 

Certainly my learned brethren, the Crown officeL's, will not pretend tu 

say that this comluct is perfectly usual. Then, I would ask, for what 

,reason has the magistrate thus acted? what particular circumstance jus­

tified him in departing in the present case from the usual and r~gular 

course? I roost respectfu lly submit, may it please the Court, that the 

moment we see a magistrate depart from the regular and usual course, 

from that moment there is ground for suspicion that the whole has AOt 

been conducted with that degree of regularity and integrity which is 

necessary to pl'Oduce confidence in such proceedings; and, looking at the 

manner in which this confession was made, and, also, at the mode of iu 

production before this Court, I feel myself authorized to say, that the 

circumstances are elttremely suspicious. Another circumstance which 

renders the presence of the magistrate very importaut in this case til 

this, the confession was ready written when it was deli\'ered to Lotd 

Selkirk in the presence of Doctor Allan; and, unless his Lordship i! 

called here, it is imposeible to knolV whether any threat or promiSe was 

made to the Prisoner, to induce him to confess. Let us look fOL' a mo~ 

ment at the confession itself. What is it? the history ef a murder which 

is alleged,to have been committed in the Indian territories, and it is par­

ticularly-set forth in the paper that this eonfession is the Prisoner's own. 

hand-writing, and that he made it before Lord Selkirk, one of the ma­

gistrates for the lnelian territories, who also signed it in his official ca­

pacity. I hope, with confidence, that this honourahle Court will not 

introduce a rule 60 novel Bnd so dangerous, as to all~w of proving a 

confession without the magistrate before whom it WBS made being pro­

duced; indeed, I am certain, your Honours will not allow this confes" 

sion to he received. Again, this confession ought not to be received 

unless the magistrate before whom it was taken be present, because, if 

he were in the witness-box, perhaps he Iflight suggest somethil1g favor­

able to the Prisoner, 01' the Prisoner, during the examination of the 
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magistrate, might draw out some favourable ci'l'cumstantes, tvhicb I!re 

unknown to any other person. Perhaps it might appear that the ma. 

gistrate had seen the p,'(sonet befo"re, and then a ci"rculDstance might be 

explained, which at present it is very difficult to understand, namely. 

hl}w it happened that this confession should he prepared beforehand; we 

should ascel'tain how it was obtained, and the reasons which induced the 

Pl'isoner to prepare it. The Pl'isoner, undoubtedly, ha:s the right of 

examining the magistrate before whom tire CI'own officers oay the con· 

fession was taken. The law ordains that befOl'e a confession can be reo 

ceived against a prisoner, it shall be established, that it was not obtain­

ed by means of promises or threats, and that this circulllstarrcc shall he 

proved. By whom i' not certainly by an' individual who, by clmnce ot 

accident, happerrs to be in the police office, 01' in the apartment of a ma'· 

gistrate at the time ttat a PrisClller is making his confc"ion. On th" 

contrary, it is expI'essly required that it shaH be done by the magistrate 

hefore whom it was made, or by his clerk who had written it, and 

why? for tbis reason, certainly, becallse the magistl·ate. 01' hrs clerk, 

could furnish the best evidence wbich the ease would admit, alld the law 

always requires the best evidence. 'V ere it p'ossible to allow a confes· 

.ion to be receh"ed against a prisoner, in the absence of the mag-isll'ate 

or his clerk, he i~ deprived of a materi'al part of his defenCe, It j, the 

duty of tbe Crown officers to produce the best testimony pos;ible, and I 

ask them, do they produce it in ca\li'ug Doct01' Allan? I m'aintain they 

do not, most assuredly not. If my learned friends, the officers of the 

Crown, say that Doctor Allan signed it as a witness, that lli'ight be!l 

plausible reason for admitting his testimony. Lut it would not be suffi­

cient; for the law enacts, that the magistrate 01' his clerk shall be the 

witness. Again, I submit to the Court that this confessiou is ina.lmi .... 

sible, because the Prisoner would be therehy Jeprived of his right of 

cross-examining the magistrate,--[The Attorney-General remarked, 

.. The Prisoner can call the Earl of Selkirk,"]--I ask pardon of my 

learned brother, but it is his duty to produce the best possible testimony 

to establish his case, and if, on the contrary, as in the present instance, 

he offers testimony of another nature to the Court, it is' not sufficient 

for him to say, that we lIIay produce it, It is ahsolutely necessary be­

fore this confession can be received, for the magistrat~ or his c1el'k to 

tell us, tbat it was made voluntarily, freely, and equally without pro· 

mise of benefit, or menace of harm. I admit that if the magistt'ate and 

his clerk were both dead", then the present witness would be the best 

evidence, but, under the actual circumstances of the case, he is 1I0t 50<, 

and I consequently maintain, with confidence, that it is no answer to 

my argument to say, as 1\11'. Attorney.General has done, that we are 
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ht iiberty to produce it., It is 1I0t for us to prove his case; it is his duty 

to do it, by producing the best evidence P9ssible, and since the rule is 

such, I say, that in producing Doctor Allan, the officers of the Crown 

have not prodnced the best evidence in their power, and, it necessarily 

follows, that this confession ought not to he received as evidence for 

the Jury. It is not. our business to contradict the confession, before it 

has been put in proof, and, to put it in prool, it is absolutely necessary 

to produce the magistrate; and when he is in the witness-box, if we 

cannot prove, that the circumstances under which it was made prevent 

it from being receiveil, the blame will be with us. But, having reasons 

to believe that this confession woulil be offered, we expected the Earl of 

Selkirk' woulil be calleil, and we were prepared to meet him, 'but his 

},ordship not being here, we submit, with great confidence, that your 

Honours will not admit it. 

Attorney-General.-The paper offered as evidence on the part of the 

Crown, I beg leave to c~ntenil, is entitled to be received, either, as a 

confession taken before a magistrate, or as a paper in the' hand writing 

pf the prisoner. I admit, that the ru'le is to produce either the magis­

trate, or his clerk, to prove tile confession of a prisoner; but, there w~.i 
no clerk present, and as the magistrate is not before the Court, I submit, 

with g."eat deference, tbat" having proved that no menace was used, nor 

any promise made, to induce the ~onfe"ion, that we are entitled to 

prove it. That no inducement was m,ade use of, or resorted to, is, I 

thillk, clear, and l' conceive, it to be no matter how that circumstance 

is brought before the Conrt, so that it be but clearly and undeniably es­

tablished. This paper, I submit, does not set forth that it was an exa­

mination under the statute, hut is much in the form ofa letter, narrating 

the circumstances of the murder of 1\11'. Keveny, and must, if not as a 

confession under the statute, he received as an authenticated paper in 

the hand writing of the prisoner, made by him freeiy and voluntarily, 

from a sense of guilt, and therefore, in the words of )'l'Nally, desen"­

lng of the highest cl'ed'it. As a confession or examination under the 

5tatute, I contend, that, having proved there was no clerk, ;llId the rna. 

gistrate be'ing absent, we produce the nest evidence; but if the Court 

are against us in that particular, and think, as such it is not sufficiently 

proved, y~t, as an authenticated paper, in the Prisoner's 'own hand 

writing, delivered by him in the presel.ce of the witnesses, after the 

most fair enquiries whether he wished to aItel' any thing contained 

therein, it mllst be received, and handeil to the Jury as evidence for 

them to decide on. 

Solicilor-General.-Upon this question I shall very shortly trouble 

your Honours. The first objection of my learned friends to the intro­
o 
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duction of this confession is, that it is not the best evidence, but that to 

make it so, the magistrate, or his clerk, must be produced: another ob­

jection is, that this confessio~ has been published. With respect to the 

first, I perfectly agree with my learned friends, tbat the best evide\lce 

in all cases ought to be produeed; but, agreeing in the principle, I 

draw a different inference from the proposition; I contend, in opposi­

tion to my learned friends, that we have produced the best evidence 

which the case admits of, indeed the strongest that can be produced; we 

produce an acknowledgment, in tile Prisoner's hand writing, that be 

committed the crime fQr which he is now at the bar. My learned 

friend, Mr. Stuart, says that authority and reason combine to oppose 

any confession being received, unless proved by a magistrate, or his 

clerk. The reason of such a rule is not very obvious. A magistrate 

cannot authenticate all depositions made before him; that would be 

impossible. Ab~ence, sickness, and i1 variety of cil'cumstances, may 

prevent the attendance of a magistrate. Indeed, in tbe present in­

stance, we could prove tbat tbe magistrate is ill; but we take a wider 

course, and contend that we do all, that, from tbe circumstances of the 

case, can be required.Qf U8. We produce a confession in the hand writing 

of the Prisoner at the bar, and we prove his signature by a witness who 

>aw him sign it, and heard him acknowledge that t,he confession was true, 

This confession differs from a confession taken under examination before 

a magistrate at a police office, inasmuch as it was prepared by the 

Prisoner himself. We know the practice at home is this; a prisoner is 

taken to Bow Street, to undergo an examination, in the course of which 

he makes a conf"."ion; on his trial at the Old-Bailey, the clerk of the 

office attends, and produces the confession; but this case is placed un­

der such circumstances, as to render it impossible almost, strictly to fol­

low the general practice, But, when I cite the treatise of Mr. Chitty, 

upon the subject, I think I shull set the question at rest. I refer t~ page 

571. In support of the position for which I am contending I might 

also refer to 2d Hale, to Sixth State Trials, to Hawkins, to Philips on 

E,·idence, and many authorities, but your Honours will find it stated 

fully in Chitty, page 571, where he mentions the authorities on which 

it is founded. 1\1y learned friends have found out a very ingenious rea­

son for not permitting the witness to prove the confession, viz. he was. 

not, str;ctly speaking, a clerk, (though, were it necessary, I might he 

,1i,posed to contend that for all the purpmes intended by the statute of 

Phiiip and lIIary, the witness was so,) and they proceed to argue, that, a 

straubeI' acciilentally or purposely, in the room at the time of tbe con­

fession being delivered, could not so completely prove the fact as the 

magi£tl'lIte, or his clerk. "'if ere I to advert to the. remarks that haV8 
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been made by my learned friends on the magistrate, Defore whom tbiB 

confession was made, were I to recall to their recollection, the view 

they have taken of his conduct, I think I should have sufficiently an­

,swered their argument; for taking thier own character of him, surely a 

s~ranger would be more likely to prove candidly the circumstances at­

tendant upon the confession, than such a magistrate as they hav~ de­

picted. There is another point wbich, though supported by authority, 

my learned friends (lppear completely to have overlooked, namely, that 

confession~ are to be presumed free, till the contrary is proved. In Sixth 

State Trials this doctrine is supported, but is it so clear a principle oflaw, 

that it is needless to cite authOl·ities to sustain it. M'Nally has been 

cited to shew that the best evidence must always be produced, and look­

ing at this confession, I contend we have complied with the rule; fOf, 

although Dr. Allan was not retained as a clerk in the serv ice of the Earl 

of Selkirk,yet, in this instance, he acted as such, and, for all the pur­

poses fOl'<'which the provision of the statute of Philip amI Mary was 

enacted, he was a clerk. The object of that statute is to identify a con­

fession by the signature of the magistrate, or the hand writing of }lis 

c1~k •. Dr. Allan does this fully. Another ingenious argument of my 

learned friends will with eq ual facility be overset. They have argued­
that as there was no clerk present at the examination, and as the con­

fession is not the hand writing of the magistrate, the statute has not 

been complied with, and therefore the confession ought not to be admit­

ted. My learned friends appeal' to forget that the paper does not pur­

port to be an examination, it is a voluntary confession, and certainly 

much stronger from being entirely in the hanil writing of the Prisoner, 

because it is impossible that any misrepresentation can exist, which, 

though not likely, yet might creep in, if wl'itten by another person, 

such as the magistrate, or his clerk. The case is so clear and so fair, 

that doubt, I thi~k, cannot exist upon the subject, that this was a free 

and voluntary, and therefore a good, confession against the Prisoner. 

He relates the same circumstances to Captain D'Orsonnens, to Ndin, 

to Vitchie, to Mr. M'DoneJl, adding that he was goi[)g to Fort Wil­

liam to submit himself to the Earl of Selkirk, and to make a discJo~ure 

of all he knew under - a hope, (which was not warranted certainly,) 

that he would be-admitt~d to give evidence for the Crown. Arrived 

at Fort William, he employs himself in preparing this statement. Ha­

Ying finished it, in the presence of the witness and others, amongst whom 

was Mr. Dease, a person belonging-to the company to which lie him­

self was a clerk, (who read the paper, and asked De Reinhard if the 

contents were true, to ,y hich he answered they were) the Earl of Sel­

kirk enquires if he wishes to add, to take away, or to alter, any thing 
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in the paper, and after saying he did not, he deliberately signs it and 

delivers it to Lord Selkirk ;-the "'itness, together with Mr. Dease and 

others, testing the act by putting their names to it. Surely then we are 

producing the best possible evidence when we tender this same paper, and 

prove its identity by producing Dr. Allan, who witne,sed the signing 

and delivery. The observations relative to the pUblication had I think 

better have been withheld, as I cannot see that they were at all called 

for, as we have nothing to do with printecl publications.-[The Solicito~ 
then referred to the Attorney GeT/erat's observations on this topic, and 

deprecated any attempt to prejudiGc the public mind.]-In conclusion, { 

beg to submit: 1st. that the confession is most distinctly proved and au­

thenticated; 2d. if it should be thought necess<\ry to produce the ma­

gistrate, we may be permitted to prove, (which we should do by thi8 

witness,) that he is incapable of leaving Montre1\I, owing to sickness; 

and 3d. that if a witness i.s necessary, then t\lat D,·. Allan is a compe­

tent witness; he was present at the time, he heard neither menace nor 

promise; he heard.the Prisoner tell Deas!" the contents were true, he 

heard him asked if he wished to make any alterations, and heard him 

answer, that he did not; he saw him sign it; he himself pnt his name 

as a witness, and he saw him delive,' it to Lord Selkirk. What can be 

stronger evidence against him? what can be better evidence? I con­

tend that it must be admitted. 

[lVIr. V&lliere de St. Real brieffY contended in reply, that as Dr. 

Allan could not prove all tbe circumstances connected with the confes­

sion, it ought not to be received. Referring to the position of the 

Crown officers, that supposing it not to be good in criminal law that it 

was a good confession at common law, he asserted that common law 

eqnally with Cl'iminal, required the best evidence; the Earl of Selkil'k 

onght' to prove the confession. He also argued that the confession could 

I)ot be produced as evidence, as De Reinhart! did not enjoy freedom at 

t)le time of making it, nor was his confinement a legal duress. In con­

clusion, lIlr. V. said, he was a prisoner in a fort whic~ that same ma­

gistrate ha,l taken by a military force, and retained by the most abomi­

nable violence, and I therefore submit that from its commencement, 

during its progress, and until its completion, his confession is not the 

best evidence, and therefore ought not to be admitted against the Pri­

soner.] 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Notwithstctnding all the exertions of the gen­

tlemen who are counsel for the Prisoner, notwishstam\ing all we have 

heard from them, we are most dictinctly of opinion that this confession 

must be received as evidence proper to go to the Jury. I shall proceet' 

to shew that, npon soullIllegal pri~ciples, this is the only conclusion ,,-e 
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ean arrive at, I shall first take up Philips on Evidence, sect, 5, page 18, 

" since an admission," says he, " is evidence against a party in civil 

" suits, with much stronger reason is the voluntary confession of a pri­

.. soner evidence against him Oil a criminal prosecution, for it is not to 

" be conceived that a man would bl! induced to make a free confe,sion of 

" guilt, so oontrary to the feelings and principles of human nature, if 

.. the facts were not true."-Then, adverting to " late case, (the case 

of Lamhe,) he says, " it seems now to he clearly established that a free 

" amI voluntary confession by a person accused of an offence, whether 

" made before his apprehension, or after, whether on a judicial examina­

" tion, or after commitment, whether reduced into writing or not, in 

.. short, that any voluntary confef,io~ made by a 0 prisonel' to any per­

" son, at any time, or place, is strong evidence against him, and, if sa­

"tisfactorily proved, sufficient to convict, without any corroborating 

.. circumstances;" and this doctrine was supported by my Lora Kenyon 

in Wheeling's case, 1 Leach Crown Cases, 349. Under these general 

principles, who can doubt that this papel' is a gootl confession at com­

mon law ;-if a confession made at any time, antl to any person, is, evi­

dence, this being in writin:;, amI signed by the Prisoner, (intleed the 

whole is the writing of the Prisoner,) is certainly so, A confession re­
duced to writing, though not signed, according to a late decision, is goo,] 

evidence, Mr. Justice Grose in delivcdng the opinion of the twelve 

jUllges in Lambe's case, stated that a majority held tbat such a confession 

would have been evidence at common law, and that it is not renderetl 

inadmissible by any pl'Ovision in the statutes of Philip and Mary, res­

pecting examinations and informations before justices of the peace, 

" for," lie adds, " if a prisoner's confession, even when not'reduce,l into 

" writing, be evidence against him, a fortiori, it m,mt be admissible 

.. when taken down in writing, for the fact confessed, being thus ren­

.. dered less doubtful, is of course entitled to gloeater credit, anel it would 

" be absurd to say, that an instrument is invalidated by a circumstance 

,. which gives it additional strength and authenticity," Now, this be­

ing the case, as to the paper offered by the Crol\'n, what is the principle 

by which its admissibility is to be tried? This principle is stated by 

Hawkins and M'Nally, but very clearly in M'Nally, rule 11th, page 

47, "Confessions are received in evidence, or rejected as inadmissible, 

",under a com ide ration whether they are, or are not, entitled to Cl'e­

"dit." And, this being the 1'Ole, in what shape does the paper before 

us present itself? But before entering upon the examination on this 

point, I would remind the Prisoner's coumel of that l'emarlcable piece 

.of testimony, given in evidence by Vitchie, that the Prisoner told him 

!' ~hat he had acknowledged all to Captain D'OI'sonnens, aud that he 
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,. was going to do tbe same to Lord Selkirk, helping to be received as II 

~ \,·itnc,s for the Crown."* Here we have bis verbal determination to 

znake a disclosure of tbe mmder, I beg pardon, of what be knew of the 

,lenth of Mr. Keveny, and we must not, in considering the admissibility 

of this confes~ion, lose sight of this evhlence, that he had previously a­

vowed his intention of making a confession to a magistrate, because 

M'Nally saylagain, rule 10th, page 45. "It has been determined that 

" whe,'e the accused makes a confession in conversation, and afterwards 

" makes a_nother confession before a magistrate, acting judicially by 

" taking the same in writing, the conversation, or parole cont'ession, 

" may be given in evidence," but not if it has not been given freely ·and 

yolnntarily. The statute of Philip and 1I'Iary requires that a magistrate 

~hall pro Geed to examine any person brought before him on a chuge of 

felony, by putting such qnestions to the prisoner, and to those who 

brought him befo.'e the justice, as, in hiB legal discretion, shall seem ne· 

ces,ary, and that this examination shall be taken down in writing, and­

old writers soy, shall be signed. Hence the necessity of producing the 

magistrate. He puts the questions, his clerk, if he has one, writes down 

the answers, therefore 1I1'Nally says, page 41, rule 7th, that on the prid­

ciple "that the best evidence the nature of the case affords is the 

" only evidence that can be received, the proof of snch e~aminations or 

.. tIle prisollcr must be made eitber by the justice of the peace, or the 

U COI"One.', wbo took them, or his clerk who wrote them down, that they 

., are the true substance of what the prisoner confessetl." ,The necessity 

for producing the magistrate is Dot, according to the vulgar opinion, to 

prove the icie .• tity, of the paper offered on the trial in evidence, but that 

it contains the substance of what the prisoner had confessed before him 

in the examination previous to commitment or bail. But tbis is quite 

a different case; this is not the act of a magistrate, not the act of the 

derk to a magistrate, it is the act of the Prisoner himself, following up 

the intention be had antecedently expressed to Vitchie, of making a con· 

fession of all he knew relative to tbe death of Keveny. It i., he who 

writes the declaration with his own hand, which is now produced in e· _ 

vidence against him. There cannot therefore be any necf'f>ity for eitbel' 

magi~trate, or clerk to be produced, for we have the \"ery best evidence 

possible. We bve the evidence of the Prisoner him,elf of what he re­

'~dly meant to say. Proceeding to the eviJence of Dr, Allan, what can 

be stronger? tbe Prisoner hands the paper that he had heen, (as Dr. AI· 

" " 'lu'il avoit tout avoue au Capitaine D'Orronnens, ct qu'il alloi~ 

.. faire autant a .i.llilord Selkirk, esperant etre re<;u tcmoin tle la Cou­

.' ronne." 
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ian had heard or understood,) some days previously engaged in prepar­

ing, to the Earl of Selkirk, who, before De Reinhard signed it, seht fOl:' 

Mr. Dease, a clerk in the same employ as the Prisoner, the paper is giv­

en into the hands of Mr. Dease, who reads it, and then asks" De Rein­

hard is this trne? are the contents of this paper true?" and he answers, 

.. they are true," and signs it, and then Mr. Dease and Dr. Allan, and 

others, who were pre~ent, signed it. Under such circumstances, can 

the credit of the paper be for a moment doubted? can it, flowing, as I 

have shewn it does, from the highest possible source, himself, and made 

agreeably to a determination he had IJreviously communicated to his 

olil comrade Vitchie, be rejected, or can it, for one moment, be a question 

whether or not the-Crown is entitled to the benefit of offering it to the 

Jury as a piece of testimony? I think not. There is no necessity t() 

produce Lord Selkirk, or his clerk, or for any further proof, because we 

have already the highest possible proof, viz: his own confessions, v'ivil 

voce: completely substantiated by the fulfilment in this confession, writ­

ten with his own hand, of his avowed determination to Vitchie of mak­

ing a confession to Lord Selkirk. On what ground can we reject this 

confession? I beg the gentlemen engaged in the defence, to reco'llect 

that this was his declared intention, to recollect that he was brought iU4 

to the room prior to signing it, to recollect that by one of his own fe1~ 

lo\v-servants he was asked if it was true, to recollect Ihat neither me­

nace nor promise was made to him, to recollect that, on the contrary. 

he was asked if there was any thing he wished to change, any thing t() 

add, any thing to take away, and therefore that it is, pruna jacie, a coa­

fession voluntary made. If it is intended to set up the contrary, it may 

be proved, but certainly it doe~ not appear, that there was either me­

nace or promise made at the time of signing it. I repeatj let it· be re­

collected that he had before expressed his intention of making a ~onfcs­

sion to Lord Selkit'k, and that he signed this papel', containing a con­

fession befOl'e bis Lordship, F.nd in the presence of one of his own party., 

who asked him at the time, " are tIle contents of this paper true?" and 

tlIat he answer~d, .. they are true." Let the~e circumstances be recol· 

lected, and, I ask, is it possible that, under such a continnation of evi­

dence, we can reject the confession, as a confession at C01111110n ].aw.­

Lord Selkirk, as far as we See, took no eKamination, the Prisoner had 

prepared a detailed statement of the transactions as they occurI'd., 

which be delivered to Lord Selkirk, who certified it to have bel'D ,0 de. 

livered by {he Prisoner, a~ his account of the transaction. In L:'Y judg. 

ment it is a manifest continuation of his origiual intention of 112r.killg a 

.:onfession. 'Vherever we find him, from the moment he arrived at the 

clIcampment, as tes~ilie!lhy the two voyager5, \yheneye!' we meet him ill 
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to Vitchie, to whom he explains the moth'e for bis conduct. He comeS 

at last to Lord Selkirk, and reJllces the 1'im roce narrati,'c to writing, anti 

the whole is finished with more than usnal caution, fOllr persons being pre­

sent, one of whom, who might reasonably be supposed to be favoUl'ahle 

to the Prisoner, l\Ir, Dease, reads the paper, asks iJim, "Reinbal'd, i~ 

"this true P" as if he had said, "did you so killlYlr. Keveny?" amI 

he says, "yes it is, I did." lIe then deliberately signed it, and the 

others witnessed the signing. As a confession made hefor~ th~se per­

sons it must be received. Had it been made only 1'ira rucc, it would 

have been a good confession at common I"", and it calluot be invali­

dated by a circum,tance tlwt clothes it \, ith alhlitional ,tl'cn"th. It is 

not received as an examination under the statute of Philip and.l'Iary, 

taken before 'a magi,trate, but as the Prisoner's conf,~s,ion at common 

law, made in his o\\'n hand writing, and that part of it \\ hicb is in his 

hunu writing is so rec~ived. The remainder of \\ hat appears on the pa­

per, in another hand, \\-c have nothin; to ,io with, we only take his ou'n 

net, that which is in his 01l'1! llitil,z writing, as evitlence to go to the Jury 

[LVIr. Justice Bowen vcry shortly expressed hi, entire concurrenc" 

wilh tIw. Chief Justice, remal'king, that nothing conlu be stronger evi­

dellce than a conr~ssion wl'itten by the Prisoner himself, but the admis­

,ioll of it did not preclnde the Prisollcl"S counsel from shewing, from 

circnmstances wbich had not yet appeared in c\'iuence, that it "as not 

entitle,l to credit. He observed that his writing it himself, and Doctor 

1.Ilan knowing three days hefore that he was engageu upon it, mig;ht 

open the door to ,hew those circumstances, hut at present it" as a good 

confession, and legally entitled to be received • 

.illr. Stuart remarking that it ,,-as certainly made under tile II()pe at 
vardon, the Chief Justice remarked, that was merely his own statement, 

ancl repeated, that receh'ing the confession nOll', did not preclude them 

from destroying it hereafter.] 

Examination resumed by the Attorney-General. 

Attomey-General.-Is this the paper ,.hich the Prisoner ,jg;lled iii 
your pre,cllce ~ 

Dr. AlIan.-It is; I saw the Prisoner at the bar sign it. It is in 

Lis hand'\\Tiling, and is signed in two places; in the one Charles Rein­

bard, and in the otiler Charles De Reinhard. 

(The confession, in the French language, of \\'hich a translation foi­

lows, was then put in and read, the Chief Justice directing the Clerk of 

the Crown to read only that Iyhich was the Prisoner's own hand-writing, 
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,v,nd not the app'endage or certificate beginning " Be!ore me, 'l'komru, 
.. Earl of Selkirk."]* 

TRANSLATION. 

I, the underwritten, Charles De Reinhard., hli.'Vlng surrendered my­
self prisoner to Captain D'.orsonnens at Lake II!. Ph,lie, the 2d of Octo­
.ber, 1816, in consequence of the various circumstances 'that have hap­
pened, during the time, I have been in the service of the North-West 
Company, and with regard to the death of Mr • .o. Keveny, I volullta. 
rily make the following declaration. 

My time of service being expired; as colour-serjeant in the regiment 
of 1\1euron, I was l'ecommend~d by Lieutenant de Mesani, commanding 

my company, to Messieurs William M'Gillivray and M'Leod, as derk 
in the North-West Company, and I afterwards obtained my discharge 
·from the regiment on the 24tl1 April, 1816, in consequence of a special 
application made to His Excellency the Go'Vernor, Sir Gordon Drum­
mond. 

I efl~aged myself with the highest opinion, with which I had been 
impressed by Mr. Mesani, to serve with all posssble zeal, a society of 

* The Certificate, .which the Court rejected, follows: 

,BEFORE THOMAS, EARL OF SELKIRK, one of his MaJesty's Jus­
tices assigned 10 "eep !TIe peace in the Western District of Upper Canada, 
and also i71 the Indian Territories,' or parts of America not within the 

Provinces of Upper or Lower Canada, appef!,red, CHARLES DE REIN­

HARD, charged with the crime of llfurder, who being examined, confessed 
that· he had assisted in murdering MR • .oWEN KEVENY, and gave in the 

annexed statement, written with his own hand, on the seven preceding pages 
and !igned with his name, decia.ring that the same ~ontained a true account 
of the transact-ion, and of the reaSQn by which he was misled to participate 

in such a crime. 

(Signed) CHARLES REINHARD, 
Commis de la Compagnie du Nord-Ouest. 

Declared before me, at Fort William, 
on the 3d day of November, 1816. 

(Signed) SELKIRK, J. P. 

In presence of 

J. MATHEY, Capt. late D. M. Regl. } 
JOHN WILLIAJIl DEASE, W' 

J A 
rt1inesscs, 

OHN LLAN, 

ALEX. BRIDfOKD BECHER, 
p 
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the most horioura'ble nature, and under the protection of government, 

and I was much pleased when I took my departure for the North, iu 

company with Lieutenants Mesani and Brumby, who had six months' 

leave of absence from the regiment, at the desire of the N orth-West 

Company, in order to render an impartial account to Government of all 

that might occur in that country. 
, On the journey I often heard an opposition talked of, without un­

,derstanding where or what it was, tilllVe had arrived at Lake la Pluie, 

where MI'. Mesani informed me that 1\11'. M'Leod wished me to put on 

my military coat, as Iikewioe my comrade, Heurter; Messieurs l\'l'GiIli­

vray, l\l'Leod, and Mesani, having recommended us to take them with 

us hefore we left ,1\1outreal, in OJ'der to appear in a council of Indians, 

which took place in the audience hali, I"here Messrs, l\'Iesani and Brnm­

by were introduced as Captains, and I and Heurter at theil' side, as peo­

ple belonging to the King. 1\11'. JI'l'Leed dictated tbe speech to tile in­

terpreter, and caused to be explained to the Indians what had occurred 

at the Red HiveI', where Mr. Robert:.on had taken the fort like a rob­

ber, maltreated the prisonel's, and after pillaging, burnt the whole, and 

that, because there was reason to be apprehensil'e of other violences, go­

vernment had, on that account, sent those gentlemen, tqe officers, to see 
that justice was done, and MI'. 1'1 'Leod invited the Indians to take part 

with the North-West Company, and to render tbem assistance for the 

defence of their rights. Upon which one of the chiefs, and twenty-four 

of his young men, after hGving received presents and ammunition, took 

their departure the following day, " ith the brigade, half of them in their 

own canoes, and half in those belonging to tbe brigade. 

On his ar'rival at Bas de la Riviere, Mr. M'Leod caused the cases 

of arms to be opened, and armed the Canadian;; two brass pieces of 

cannon were embarked, and the brigade moved on to Deadman's River. 

in order to wait for more canoes from Athabasca, which arrived the next 

day. On the 22d of June, the brigade proceeded along Deadman'. 

River, and met with two barges with colonists, all "hose boxes, trunks, 

.s.:c. Mr.l\l'Lcod examined, and kept a great many papers: he took no 

one prisoner but Mr. Pritchard, from whom the first accounts of the 

occurrences that had ta"ken place at the Red River were obtained. Up­

on returning back to the preceding encampment with the colonists, Mr. 

Bourke, who Iyas wounded" and three other servants of the Hudson's 

Bay Compa'ny, were made prisoners, and put altogether in a tent, the 

over~eein:; of which was comL)litted to me. 

On the followin; d~y lVIr. l\i'Le~d and the other partners present, 

together with sCYeral clerks, took their departure in light canoes for the 

Forks, and in same mannlll', 1\1c"r" j)Iesani and Brumb~', immediately 
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after their return and that of the ?ther gentletnenfrom Dea(lman'g. 

River, departed .with 1\'[1'. Hughes for Fort William to convey the news 

to Mr. !\l'GiHivray, and thence to repair forthwith to Montreal. After 

the brigade was reassemWed,. I was sent with the p1'isoners to Bas de Is 
Riviere, and the' brigade went to ·the Grand Rapill,· fearing .. that lVIr •. 

Robertson might intercept the Athabasca loaded canoes, and.l\'lessrs., 

Macdonell and M'Lellan arrived at Bas de la Riviere four or five days. 

after I did, with fifteen Brois Brulis; .three piec.es of cannon, two of 

which were brass, and one iron, two wall pieces, and about fifty. guns,. 
musquets of the old ar.my Illodel. ' On .thereturn of the brigade li'om: 

the Grand Rapid, the prisoners were embarked .for Fort William, and I' 

received instructions untler the or'llers of Mr. lVl'Lellan to put the fort 

in a state of defence .. as well against Mr: Robertson, who.was supposed 
to have it in view to take possession of that provision post, where there. 

were four or five hundred bags of pernican, as for the purpose of giving: 

a -reception wi tn the cannon, and forty musquets in reserve, which were' 

kept always loaded, ts any caRoe of the Hudson's'13;ay Company that 
might attempt to. pass the post. 

Having learnt that :My Lor.d Selldrk had arrivjld at tile Sanlt with" 
a great number of men, artillery, &.c. double v'gilance took place' at. 

the fort, M'Lellan making all tile peoplebel:ieve, that' my Lord was 

tbeii' greatest enemy, degrading his character· in every way, and repre­
nnting l\1Jo. Strachan's pamphlet as speaking of my Lord 'with too much 
moderation, publishinlJ; the opinion of three lawyers in Qrder ,to pr{)\'c 

the invalidity of' the charter, .and representing LorI! Selk,h'k as acting 
without autilOrHy, ·and making laws according to his own good liking; 

that the governmen~was decidedly in favour of the North-West'Com­

pany, ~ince they had sent two officers to see that every thing was in 

order: that all that Lord Selkirk did was without the knowledge or 

approbation of government. 
In the beginning of AuguBt, inieIligence was received at Bas de la 

Riviere, that a barge or boat with a few men, English, f\;om Hudson1i 

Bay, had arrived at Lake du Bonnet. By.the first loaded canoe~ fropt 

Atbabasca; a man belonging to that barge, arrived, who said that. he 

could not continue any long.er with Mr. Keveny, who commanded that 

barge, and that hi~ comrades would e'lually desert ·the first opportunity. 
A few days afterwards, fonr other men belonging to tha,t hm-ge, arrived· 

with other Athabasca canoes. Two or three days after, 1\I1r. lVl'Leod. 

having arrived from Fort William, examined these men, one of whom, 

of the name of Hay, made oath, that Mr. Keveny had cfueIly iII-treilted 

him and his comrades, upon which Mr. M'Leod granted a warrant a­

~inst hi.lll, and nominated me, and one of his own meD of the name of 



116 

Castalo, as constables, to go and arrest him at the portage where his peo­

ple had abandoned him. Mr. M'Lellan ordered silt Bois-bruU, to ac­

company me to assist;' when I came there, ahout ten o'clock in the 

morning, I found Mr. Keveny in his tent,. and I apprised him of my 

mission, making a prisoner of him ,in the King's name; he was milch 

rurprised, and seized hold of his pistols to defend himself. Having re­
presented to him .that his. immediate death would be the inevitable con-

5equence of his opposition to the law" he became quiet and .required to 
see the warrant upon which he was arrested., Having read it, he again 

beeame outrageous, and it was with difficulty I prevented the Bois-bru­

lis from dispatching him., l\lr. Keveny was conveyed as a prisoner to 
Bas de la Riviere, I leTt Primeau, the interpreter, to take care of his 

property which was already under the charge of his clerk" named Cowly, 

and his servant, an Irishman. Ha\'ing arrived at the fort with the pri­
soner, he had a violent altercation with M'LelIan, pretending, not to be 

under the jurisdiction of Canada, being upon the Hudsoa's Bay Compa­
ny's territory, he pretended to be independent of the law of Canada.­

On the following day, about ten o'clock, he Was embarked for Fort 

William, in company with five Bois-brules, to whom lYlr. M'LeUan 
gave irons in order to make use of them in case the prisoner should re­
sist. I was afterwards inforwlld by the Bois-bruies, that when they 
came to the portage, the ,prisoner behaved in such a way as to foroe them 
to bind him and to ,hand-cuff him. Mr. Keveny's clerk, (Cowly,) being 
left by himself, came to the fort, and l'eqUested Mr. M'Lellan to receive 

against an acknowledgment, the barge with its loading, and to grant 
him his liberty, together with one man to return in,a, small canoe to 

Albany Fort, whence they call1e. An acknowledgment was given for 
four calves, II. still, a case of arms, quarters of salted beef, Oour, &c. &c. 

On Primeau's return to the fort he delivered lIir. Keveny's papers to 
Mr. M'Lellan, and he kept for himself the clothes which he (Mr. Ke­

veny,) had left on going away for Port William; he .besides made pre­

sents to Mr. M'Lellan, of a book, a case wine bottie, candlesticks, tea 
cups, and other small articles. 

Amongst the papers there were printed instructions from Hudson's 

Bay. I was informed that Mr. Macdonell, having met the prisoner and 

the five Bois-Briilis, replaced the five Bo;s-Bru!is, by two young Cana­

dians and an Indian, as guide, to convey the prisoner to Lake la Pluie. 

Messrs. Stuart and Thomson, having, three or four days afterwards, met 

this canoe, caused it to tum back. The Canadians and the Indians hav­

ing quarrelled, they separated, and the Canadians, being ignorant of the 

way, were no longer able to pursue their route, abandoned the prisoner 

in a small island, and stopped themseh'es at another island not far from 
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him. Mr. Stuart having arrived at Eas de la Riviere with the news or 

the taking of Fort William, Mr. M'Lellal'l dispatcheu a light canoe for 

Athabasca to apprise Mr. :nPLeod, and another to Red River to apprise 

Mr. Macdonell, who arrived at Bas de Ia Riviere, on tke 4th of Sep­

tember. in the night, with the Bois-brulis and Indians. All this time 

Mr. Keveny was expected, who did ,not arriye, and conjectures were 

formed either ,that the Indian had killed him, or that the Canadians 

had lost their way, or that the canoe had been lost. On the 5th of 

September, MI'. l\lacdonell and Mr. M'Lellan conv9ked all the people 

Ilt Bas de la Riviere to hold a council; the capture of Fort William 

was stated in a proclamation, and the danger represented which would 

be incurred by allowing the enemy to penetrate farther; and those who 

chose to volunteer their services to go to Lake III. Pluie were desireu to 

declare themselves, The greatest number having refuse4 and preferring 

to pefend their lands at Red River, Mr. l\'l'Le)lan took a light canoe 

with 1Ur. Grant, Cadotte and me, bis Bois-bru!is, and his servant, a 

Canadian, with the intention of proceeding to Lake la Pluie, in order to 

obtain intelligence, and at the same time to endeavour to discover what 

had became of Mr. Keveny. On the voyage the general tenor of the 

conversation was, that if I\I~ was found, he ought to be dispatched, u§ 

being a determined enemy of the Company, and capable of doing mucb 

harm at Red River, if after a while he should have the 0PPol·turlity of 

taking revenge. After four hours march, the Indian was foull,d near a 

!maU river, a few hours afterwards the Canadians were perceived, upon 

whom M'LeJ!an bestowed much abuse, ,and a good many blows with a 

~anoe pole, for having beaten the Indian, lind abandoned the prisoner, 

The Bois-bruUs abused the Canadians for having prevented the Indian, 

{rom killing the prisoner, who said he ought to be put to death thc mo­

lIIent he was taken. Mr. M'LeJ!an having enquired where he might 

meet the prisoner, too~ the Canadians in his canoe, the InJian being 

there,already, covered over with a Scotch cloak, that he m,ight not be 

recognil?led. Mr. M'Lel!an became enraged when he came. to the island 

where the prisoner had been left and he did not find him, believing tha~ 

he had escaped tqwards H{ldson's Bay, and he searched amongst all the 

Indians, until he found him out by his tent, which was pitched near all, 

Indian family, to whom M'Lellan made a present of rum and tobacco, 

and traded a small canoe, in order to embark the prisoner with m~ and 

a Bois-brule, and the Indian, saying to me, " Make the prisoner believlt 

.. tbat he is goillg to Lake la Pluie. We c~nnot kill him here amongst 

.. the indians. 'Ve will wait for you farther on, and when you come to 

AI a suitable place,you know what you have got to do." Upon wh1ch 

ite went away. Ab9ut th~ee quarter~ of all hour after)varus, when till' 
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Indian women had finished gumming the small canoe, I caused the pri­

~oner to embark with all his baggage, with the exception of a trunk and 

.a portmanteau, which were/p,ut into Mr. l\1'Lellan's canoe, and about 

.a quarter of a league from there, where the river makes an elbow, and 

Mr. Keveny 'having asked to go on shore for his necessities, I said to _ 

Mainville (~be Bo;s-bl-ule')-" We are far enough from the Indians, you 

" may tire when he comes near eI'1Ough to embark," the Indian held the 

canoe fast by the bow, Bnd I was also on shore. Upon Mr. Keveny's 

approaching, in order to embark, Mainville fired his gun at him, the 

c:ontents of which went through his neck, and as I saw that the wound 

was not mortal enough, and thnt Mr. Ke-veny still attempted to speak, 

having fallen forlvards upon the boat, I run my sword behind his back 

through hii heart in two thrusts, in order to put him ont of his pain.­

Being quite dead, tbey stripped the body, and carried it into the wood. 

Having got to 1\J r. M'Lellan's camp, who, when he saw the small ca­

noe arrive, he scnt Mr. Grant an,l Cadotte, to a.k me whether Mr. Ke­

veny was killed. Having replied in tbe affirmative, they told me that 

1tir. M'Lellan had sent them to give l!Ie orders not to say he was killed, 

upon which I said, that he was killed, and that I would not conceal it, 
as it had been done by his orders. When we came to the camp M'Lel­

Jan required to know the details of the murder, which I ga\"e him as 

above, and I gave up to him his tent, his bed, and all bis baggage. Dur­

ing the night he examined all the papers, burning some and keeping 
others, and the rest he left to my discretion: I distributed amongst tbe 

Bois-britlls some clothes that had been worn. 1\1r. Grant asked for the 

tent, and Mr. Cadotte for sundry article~, and I reckoned upon keepin~ 

a box with good clothe~ for my share, but the whole was left concealed, 

(en eache,) till we should come back from Lake la Pluie. On the 1St~. 

()f September in the evening, we arrived at Fort Lake 18 Pluie, where, 

finding that the fort was not in the occupation of Lord Selkirk's party, 

]-lr. M'Lellan proposed 50 proceed on to Fort William to procure intel­

ligence, but the Bois-britl€s having refused to do so, he proposed to me 

to go down In a small canoe, with two or three Canadians, but Mr. 

Dease, having his family at the fort, asked and obtained leave to go in 

my stead. Mr. M'LeBan took his departure for Bas de .Ia Riviere, on 

the seventeenth, and I was to remain at Lake la Pluie, till Mr. Dease's 

return: on the 2d of October, very early in the morning, I received a 

letter f"om Captain D'Or~onnen5, who bad learnt from the Indians that 

I was there; he admonished me not to fiy from the place, that he posi­

tively must ha\'e some conversation with me ahout the Red River af­

fairs, sending me at the same time a copy of the Governor's proclama­

tion. Captain D'Orsonnens having arrh'ed about two o'.cIoeIr, with 
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il.\'lr. Dease. and having explaineu to me the situation or the two eont­

panies, and that those who belonged to the North-West who were at 

the Red River, would be considered as rebels by government, if they 

persisted in their condoct. I was much surprised at this intelligence, 

a~d above all I shuddered with horror at the dl'e!ldftll crime in which 

th0sC gentlemen of the North-West had caused me to participate, a few 

days before, upon the person of Mr. Keveny-Having till that moment 

conceived that I had been acting in conformity with the wishes of go­

vermnent-wliereupon I gave myself up as a prisoner to Captain D'Or­

sonnens, and gave him all the above mentioned details. 

(Signed) CHARLES DE REINHARD, 

Clerk of the North·West Company. 

Fort William, the 28th Octoba, 1816. 

AttoTney.General.-That is the case on the part or the CrOWD. 

[A. Juryman asked ~he witness whether, before the l'rison& signed 

the paper, he read it?] 

DT. Allan.-Yes, I read it; not to the P"'isoner. but t(} myself, and 

it is now in the same state except the endorsement. 

Cross-examination conducted by 3fT. Stuart. 

;lIT. Stuarl.-'Vas Lord Selkirk, at the time of this confession bein; 

made, in posses~ion of Fort William? 

Dr. Allan.-Lord Selkirk was then, and had been, fOI' some time in 

possession of Fort William. De Reinhard had been about a week at 

Fort William previous to his signing the paper. He lived in a room 

~ith another fellow-sergeant of the same regiment-there were no sen~ 
tinels over him. The paper was signed aud delivered to J"ord Seikil'k, 

in the evening about seven o'clock. It was dllsk I recollect. I had not 

seen either this papel', or Qny other like it, previous to the 28th of Oe­

t~bel" 'I I,flew a few days before that he was writing something, and 

I may possi'bly have spoken to Captain .Mathey about it, but I did not 

see, the papel' till I saw it on' the 28th of October. I do not know that 

"the original of this paper was written by Captain Mathey and copied 

by De Reinhard, nor any similar paper. Captain 1I1athey regulated the 

affairs at Fort William. This papel' was laid before the Earl of Selkirk, 

as a magistrate. I do not know whether the Prisoner was taken before 

Lord Selkirk, at the time of his arl"ival at Fort William. I was not 

tllCre at that time. I ;,llOuId not think he could be m long a~ a week at 

Fort William withont seeing Lord Selkirk, but I cannot give evidence 

to that point, as I \I"as 110t there at the time. I left Fort William oJol 
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the 17th of May, 1817. I generally resided there from 1816 to tbllt 
period, but I was sometimes a good mao)'. miles distant • 

.Attorney-General.-Where is Captain Mathey, Sir, at present' 

Dr • .Alian.-Captain Mathey is at Montreal. 

lIfr. Stuarf.-I have done with Dr. Allan. 

DEFENCE. 

Upon the prosecution being closed, and the Prisoner'~ counsel asking 

the indulgence of the Court for a short time to enable them to arrange the 

eoUrse of their difence, the Court was adjourned for an hour and a half. 

Having re-assembled, and Ihe usualforms being gone through, Mr. James 

C. M'Tavish was about being sworn, when it was intimated that one of 

the J wry feared he should be unable from sickness to proceed with the trial • 

.A physician was sent for, and (being swam (Dr. Hackel) to hold no con­

-Verse wilh Ihe J UTor but on the subject of his health) examined the slate rif 
ii, and represented to the Court that he did not doubt but the JuraT woulll 

be able to allend to the proCEedings. 

JAl'IES CHISHOLlI'I :WTAVISH, Sworn, 

And examined by lifT. Stuart. 

-,lIr. JlI'Tavish.-I was a clerk of the North-West Company in the 

month of August 1316, resident at Fort William. I know that on the 

13th of that month, Fort William was taken possession of by an armed 

force under the immediate command of Captain D'Orsonn"ens. The Earl 

of Selkirk ,vas not at Fort William on the 1Sth of August. The per­

snns composing this force were all armed, some doubly armed. The olli~ 

ceri were armed with swords and pistols; the muskets, generally speak­

ing, had bayonets attached to them, and the force had altogether the ap­

pearance of a military force. Captain D'Orsonnens was at the head of the 

first party that entered by force into Fort William. On the evening of 

the 1~th of August, we distinctly saw the men on the other side of the 

river, belonging to the late De 1I1euron regiment cleaning their arms, 

Rnd observed them plant a cannon against Fort'Villiam. At the mo­

Illcnt of their arrival at Fort William, a bugle was sounded, and the 
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\nen hu~zaed crying, " aux armes, aux armes et aux canons" (to arm!. 

to arms, and to the cannon), and then rushell into the fort. They 

tieized two pieces of cannon, loaded them, and planted them in the mid­

dle of the square, which was a position oommanding the entry into the 

fort. The men were exceedingly outrageous and abusive, and Captain 

D'Orsonnens behaved in a very violent manner. I heard him threaten 

Mr. John M'Donald, a partner in the North-West Company, and saw 

him seize him with one hand, aUtI in the other he had a pistol which he 

put to the ear of MI'. M'Donald. 
Solicitor-Genera I.-This surely cannot be evidence to repel a charge 

of murder, nor do I see that it can have any effect upon the case. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Nor can it, unless clearly brought up to the 

knowledge of the Prisoner, and then it will form a question for the Jury 

what influence it might have on his mind. 

Mr. 8tuart.-From Captain D'Orsonnens' testimony it might be 

inferred that the [ort was given up voluntarily. It will, I am sure, be 

in the recollection of the Court, that, in his examination, Captain 

D'Orsonnens described himself as a simple individual. 1 wish to prove 

that he was at the head of II military force; that he was not there, as 

from his representation we might .be induoed to imagine, solus cum solo. 

I shall exhibit such evidence, as to tbe conduct of Captain D'Orsonnens, 
that it must m~terially affect the credibility of his testimony. I will 

put the direct question. 'Was Captain D'Ol'sonnens armed, and did he 

act as the head of a militaty force? 
.llfr • .M"Thvfsh.-Captain D'Orsonnen~ was armed I he had a sword 

and pistols; he commanded as tbe head of an armed body. The officers 
were dressed in the uniform of the late De Meuron regiment, and Cap­

tain D'Orsonnens wore a grey militllry great-coat. Some time after 

the fort had been taken possession of, (but the same day,} a reinforce­
ment ar-rived with Captain Mathey, who then took the chief command j 

about twenty with Captain Mathey kept possession of the fort that 

night. On the arrival of Captain Mathey, and before the arrival of 

Lord Selkirk, sentinels were placed over the fort. 

Solicitor-General.-I believe at this time Captain D'Orsonnens was 
not there, and as this evidence is intended to destroy his credit, it is ne­

cessary that we have nothing brought for~al'd except when Captain 
D'Orsonnens was present. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-You have obtained the substantive fact that 

Fort William was taken by force, (I am speaking to the gentlemen en­

gaged in the defence,) what do you wish for I'IlOre? It is taken by arm­

ed men, cannon are planted, sentinels are placed; what more complete 

possession could be obtained of a place thlln this? 
It 
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]Ilr. Sluarl.-We con5ider it necessary to shew, not merely that it 

was taken possession of forcibly, but that it lVas retained pos,ession of, 

for a considerable time. 
Chiif J'ustice Sewell.-Well put the general question' then: HolV 

l~ng was it kept possession of-and you come to the point at once. 

The question being put. 
1IIr. 1II'Tat·ish.-1 am not able to say how long! Lord Selkirk retain­

ed possession of Fort William. I left it on the 4th or September, and 

at that time it was in possession of the armed force, together with the 

whole of the property. Fort William is the grand depot of the North­
'Vest Company. All the equipments for the interior, and all the re­

turns, pass through Fort William. From the 13th of August, till the 4th 

of September, the day I Jeft, there was no communication with the In­
dian Territory for the North-West Company, it was entirely cut off. 

Cross-examination conduc.ed by the Attorney-General. 

1IIr. lfI'Tavish.-At the time Fort William was taken, there were 

upwards of a hun (Ired men there, perhaps in and about the fort, there 

might be upwards of two hundred men. They were not armed, neither 
were the cannon loaded. There was no resistance made, nor any oppo­
sition further than this: One of the gentlemen belonging to the N orth­
'West Company said, that they could not think of admitting so ptany 
armed men into the fort, till they knew what had been done with MI". 

M'GiIlivray, and the otlier ger:ttlemen who had gone across the river; 

and no violence was used, except by Captain D'Orsonnens. I wa! 

standing at the door of the gate, only a few paces from Mr. M'Donald, 
and I did not see him shut the gate at the time Captain D'Orsonnen~ 

arrived. I did not know that Lord Selkirk acted as a magistrate in the 
Indian Territory, nor that the principal partners of the North-West 

Company went out to meet Lord Selkirk in his capacity of a magistrate. 

I had not heard of any warrant being issued, before the taking of the 

fort, not did I see a comtable. At that time Mr. M'Gillivray and 

other gentlemen wtre out, but I did not know why they had gone out, 

nor even that they were out. I have since heara that they went across 

the rivel", in consequence of a warrant. I did not know of a warrant 
against Mr. ~l'Gillivray. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-You can make Mr. M'Gillivray a witness if 

necessary. This witness tells you that he knew nothing of any warrant 
before the fort was taken. 

Solicitor-Gentral.-I want to prove that a process was issued, and 

that its execution was opposed. I could not anticipate the defence, but 
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I now wish to shew, that no violence was used beyond what was neces- • 

cessary to enror~e the execution of a civil process, which had been re­

sisted. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-We wished to keep this out upon the examin­

ation in chief, it 'yas insisted upon bein!> gone into, !lnd now I suppose 

must be permitted in croBs-examination. 

Mr. Stuart.-We thought it very materiaI evidence, and So we still 

think. As to the warrant Mr. Solicitor-General is enquidng for, I care 

not a straw about it. It can be no justification for the conduct pursued, 

on the contrary, it greatly enhances the crime. What! is a warrant 

issued against A. B. C. D. E. and F. to justify an appropriation of pro­

perty, a seizure of guns, and an occupation of stores belonging to the 

great commercial rivals of the very magistrate who issued it, ,and whose 

conduct has so largely contributed to all the evils we have to deplore. 

AUllrney-General.-The line of defence taken is certainly very sin­

gular. It would induce us to believe that terror was produced, similal' 

to that oecasioned by the sacking of a town. , My learned friend's state. 

ment is perfectly terrific. Pi.tols to heads, the taking of cannon, and 

planting it so as to command the gate, and all this to people, who ac. 

cording to his account of the matter, made no resistance whatevel·. 

Mr. Stuart.-That is our defence"and we will prove that all these 

outr:;tge~ were well known to De Reinhard. 

Cross-examination resumed by the Attorney-General. 

Mr. M 'Tavish.-After the fort was taken, I knew of a warra,nt tD ar­

rest some persons on a charge of conspiracy. It was signed SELKIRK, 

and was against some of the partners of the North-W'est Company. I 

then saw some persons acting as constables, but not previously. Cap­

tain D'Orsonnens' men seized Mr. John M'Donald and Mr. Allan 

M'Donald, two of the partners or the North-West Company, and put 

sentinels over them, and the day after, I undet'stood they were taken be­

fore Lord Selkirk. His Lordship did not tell me that he was acting as 

a magistrate. Two days after the fort was taken, I was forbid by Cap­

tain Mathey, at my peril, to go out of it, 01' to speak to !lny of the ser­

vants of the North· West Com pany. I cQnsidered myself as' a prisoner 

to a military force, as guard was regularly mounted in the fort. We 

were treated like military prisoners, and with every indignity. I was 

confined to limits in the fort, which I was forbid by ~aptain Mathey to 
leave. I slept in the same bed and eat in the same room as I had pre­

viously done. This force consisted pt'incipally of foreigners, and I took 

them for soldiers. If they had been dressed in black clothes, or 01t in 
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uniform, I should have considered them well trained to the use of arms, 

and very expert in military manOluvres. Fort William Is the principal 

depot of the Nort-West Company. The correspondence and principal 

Books of the company are kept there. I know of an express arriving 

at Fort William with the proclamation of Sir John Coapr Sherbrooke, 

on the 22d of August; there were a number of them addressed to gen­

tlemen holding commissions as magistrates in the interiur, and a num­

ber of blank ones. I asked Lord Selkirk for men and canoes to send 

them forward, but I was refused. I do not know whethel' Lord Selkirk 

sent them or not. I know Mr. Pritchal'd left Fort William about that 

time, but I do not know that he took the proclamations. I do not think 

our gentlemen received theirs from him. The proclamations specially 

addre~sed to the gentlemen of the Hudson's Bay Company, were taken 

by Lord Selkirk; those to the gentlemen of the North-West Company, 

were handed over to me, bnt I was not permitted to send them, nor 

were they forwarded when I left the fort in September. I did not re­

fuse to send them by Mr. Pritchard, for I did not know of his going 

till after he had gone, and then I found it out by "steersman of our~, 

named Wells, having deserted . 
.Alto1'ney-General.-Are you confident you never refused to send 

them by Pritchard, or by any other person? 

Mr. M'Tavish.-I am upon oath, and I know what I am saying. I 

\vas not allowed, though I asked permission, to forward them; and I 

Iwear positively th&t I did not refuse to send them by Mr. Pritchard, or 

any body else, for I was never applied to, to send them. Mr. 1.\1'Gilli. 

vray and the other gentlemen, who went over the river1 returned th" 

iame night, and had sentinels placed over their doors, 

CLAUDE BLONDIN, Sworn. 

Examined by ]tIr. Vanfelson. 

Blondin.-I was in 1816, in the service of the North-West Compa­

ny at Fort William, and know that it was taken on the thirteenth of 

August. There were fifty or sixty men armed with muskets and can­

non, and dressed in soldiers' clothes of different colours, some in red, 

some in green, some in blue. I know Captain D'Orsonnens and it was 

he who commanded this force. They pushed open the barriers; entered 

the place on a run, seized the cannon, and formed themselves in the 

square. No resistance was made. The gates were not shnt, nor the 

tb.e barriers. After baving tilken possession, they searcbed all over the 
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jort, and placed sentinel! at people's doors. The following evening 

Captain D'Orsonnens came to my lodging and blamed me on account 

of a fire which he had seen in the- canoe yard. 

8olicitor-General.-I am sorry to interrupt, but really this is not evi­

dence; this sort of testimony has no bearing on the case. 

Mr. Vanftlson.:-The objets of the defence are two ;-first to !hew 

that the confession was extorted from the Prisoner by particular eir­

iumstam;es; and secondly, that Fort William was taken by force, and 

that Captain D'Orsonnells was not a simple in<lividual. I take it, the 

more I prove that is calculated to invalidate the strict correctness of 

that assertion of Captain D'Orsonnem', the more I destroy his evidence, 

lind in proportion as I destroy that, I weaken the case on tl;le part of 

the CrOW/l, a/ld strengthen the defence of the Prisonel'. 

Examination resumed by Mr. Van/elson. 

Blondin.-He told me he would hold me answerable, at the peril of 

my life" if Iii'S or accident shoul<! happen iu the canoe yard. On the 

following day I saw him again, aud in consequence of the remarks I 
made, I was sent to the otber side of the river. 

~lr. Vanfelson.-Is it within your knowledge that Captain D'O\'son­

nens said to the persons in the service of th~ company, that it would be 

hest to leave them, or' that the gentlemen of the North-'West' were reo 

bels, or that their trade was at an end? 

Blond·in.-He said that they were rebels, and­

Solicitor-Gene·ral.-I object 'in toto to this line of'evidence • 

.lifT. Vanfelson.-My learned friend is too late, for the witness's an­
swer is taken down. 

Sollcitor-Gcncral.-I beg my learned friend's pal"ton, but I am iu 

time sufficient; I object to this answer bein!!; on your Honours' notes, 

for it is not only inaclmissible, but absurd to say, that any private indI­

vidual's misconduct can be evidence to exculpate the Prisoner, My 
learned friend says, that he pursues this course to impeach the crediloili­

ty of the witness on the part of the CrQwn, but he must be well aware 

that his credibility cannot be attacked in that way. There are VlITiOUli 

ways of impeaching the general credit of a witness, but proving that a 

fort was taken, or that servants were seduced by him, is IIOt 'one of them. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-The question relative to the fort, Mr. Solici­

tor, is not to general credit, but to a specific declaration as to a matter 

of fact; which Captain D'Orsonnens has been examined .upon. 

Mr. Justice Bowen.-Captain D'Orsonnens swore distinctly that he 

did not know tbat Fort William was taken by an IIrllled force, because 
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be did not see Lord Selkirk take it. This witness swears tRe contrary, 

fQl" he swears that he headed the/orce by u:lIich it lI'a$ taken. I think the 

'lliestioo relative to seducing servants ought not to be allowed. If it 
las heen asked, and was answered in the ncgati,c, perhaps it ought. 

bIT. Vanfeuon.-l shall not press it. 

CrolS-examination fondueted by the Solicitor-Generar. 

Blondin.-I ~aw the people of my Lord Selkirk enter, and Captain 

D'Orsonnens (whom I knew,) with them I am sure. I thought that 

the noise arose from people fighting, and I ascerl'lled the stairs where I 

was wOI'king, and saw the people take the fort quite distinctly. I do not 

know that lIe has been a captain in the regiment of Meuron, or that 

Captain D'Orsonnens entered as a constable. He looked liked a soldier. 

LOUIS LABISSO:NIERE, Sworn, 

And examined by Mr. l"alliere de St. Real.-

Labissoniere.-ID the month of August, 1816, I was at Fort William, 
s voyageur, employed by the North-West Company. On the 13th of 

Anguflt, there were in aOlLout of the fort sixty or eighty men, perhaps 

less, perhaps more. We were taken prisoners in Fort William by 

Captain D'Orsonnens and Captain ~latheV' and their people, who or­

dered us not to stir out, ,and placed sentinels at each gate to prevent us 

from going out. I can not say positi\'ely W}lO commanded, but it ap­

peared that Captain D'Orsonnens and Captain Mathey did. Lord 

Selkirk came to that part before the fort was taken, but he did not enter 

the fort till two or three days after. They were well armed with mus­

quets and fixed bayonets. After the others had joined, there were per­

haps two hundred men or more. The greatest part of them were dress­

ed in red, and appeared like solilier~. 

I was very much afraid li.nd there was a general panic. I know 

that some of our people were put in prison. I have no knowledge as to 

when our people who were imprisoned by Captain D'Orsonnens depart­

ed for :Montreal, but I know that Captain D'Orso\lnens proposed to 

take the fort of Lake la Pluie. Some days before he went, I heard him 

say that he was going to winter at Lalle la Pluie, that there were plen­

tyof provisions in that fort, and that he would be well off there. At 

the time he talked of his intention of taking that fort he said-" I can 

" take it without any danger; my men are clever fellows, a.ndI have 

"got cannon." I saw Captain D'Ol'sonnens take hiF departure for 
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J..ake la Pluie with his people, and he 'took wit" him two pieces of canno7l, 
mounted, ~hich had been take~ from 'Fort William, and belonged ro the 
North-West Company_ I heard him say, that the gentlemen of the 

North-West were sent to Montreal, and that the most favourable sen­

tence they could expect would be, to be hung. 

Cro,u-examinalion.conducled by tile .Attorney-(kneral. 

At the time ~Captain D'Orsonnens entered Fort William, I was in it. 
I do not know that he had a warrant to execute. I saw Captain D'Or­

sonnens depart with his people for Lake la Pluie, and tbe cannon were 

embal·ked. captain D'Ol'sonnens did oot mount them, they were ready 

mounted. 

II being past ',six o'clock, tlte COltrt was adjourned tiU to-mo1'~CW 
morning at Eight o'clock, A.1I-l. 

Wednesday, 27th May, 1818. 

PRESENT AS BEFORE. 

The J llr!J 'were caUed over, and 

l\IR. WILLIAl\I MORRISON, S!OOrn, 

And examilled by Mr. Valfelson. 

lIIr. 1I-Iorrison.-1 was at Fort William, in tbe service of the North­

West, in 1816, and I was tbere when my Lord Selkirk took possession 
of it. It was taken by a party of men, who appeared to be soldiers, 
Drmed with musquets and fixed bayonets. The first approach was made 
in a barge, which carried fifteen or twenty men, but when all together 

there were sixty or eighty men. There were officers, and amongst 
them Captain D'Orsounens, who was at the head of an advanced party, 
which .entered the first. There was one Mr. lI1'Pherson and Mr. 

l\i'Nabb,but I do not know whether they were officers. When they 

enterell, I was close to the gate of the fort. I did not hear Captain i>'~ 
Orsonnens say any thing, but! heard Mr. M'Donald, one of the North-
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West partners, request him to go back, as he had nothing to do there, 
and the agents of the Company were absent. Captain D'Orsonnena 

thereupon turned round, and spoke to his men in a language which I 

did not understand, and they sounded the bugle, and the force advanced 

immediately into the fort in double quick time, charging with their 

musquets and bayonets. Mr. M'Denald made no re.istance. Captain 

D'Orsonnens placed guards at the gateS, and the North·West people 

could not either go in or out; this continued for three or four hours. I 
was imprisoned for four or five days. There was a sentinel placed aver 

me, and one day when I looked through the window Captain D'Orson­

nens advanced towards the sentinel, afld asked him, .. how is it that you 

.. suffer your prisoners to look through their window~? make them keep 

"within their bounds, and blow their brains out if they ate obstinate." 

A few daYR afterwards Captain D'Orsonnens having assembled all tLe 

people of the North-West then in the fort, gave us the choice of three 

things; IIrst, to enter, (for my Lord Selkirk I suppose,) on the '~ame 

terms as we had with the North-West, and to go ,and winter in the in­

terior; secondly, to go a voyage to Lake la PJuie; or, thirdly, to go 

two voyages to the Thousand Lakes, and afterwanls return to Montreal. 

ftIr. Vanfelson.-What did you R~y to Captain D'Or~ollnens, \rhen 
he gave you the choice of three things? 

IIIr. Jllorrison.-I asked him whether he insi~ted upon that, an<\ he 

answered, "I command it you in the King's name," also .. that we 

.. should lIever see our bourgeois again." I am very certain that be ,aid 

to me, "I command it you in the King's name." 

Cross-examination conduced by the Solicitor·General. 

I was olle yard from the gate at the time that they entered. They 

entered as much as they could by force. The gate was not shut. I 

went up to the Red River afterwards, but I never told the half-breeds, 

nor anyone whomsoever, that Lord Selkirk was in irons, nor that he 

was chained at Fort William. I simply said, that I had seen him there. 

I never told the half·breeds that the Great Chief, the Governor, had 

sent officers to put Lord Selkirk in irons, but I said that a Constable 

was coming up with a warrant to take Lord Selkirk, as I had heard, and 
nothing else. 

Allorney-General.-Look at this gentleman (Dr. Allan)-do YOIl 

know him? 

11Ir. 1I101'rison.-1 know him from having seen him, but not his 

name. I have heard him called Allan. Dr. Allan was not present, to 

my knowledge, when the fort was taken. 



JEAN CREBASSA, Sworn, 

And examined by Mr. Stuatt. 

J'ea'lllCrebO,ud.-:I am a c,lerk of the North-West Company, and my 
post in 1816, in the months .of August and July, was at Eas de la Ri­
viere Winnipic;-Mr. Archibald M'.Lelhin came down from Athabasc<a 
some time in'July, and remained at that fort part of the ,summer. I 

know that a warrant had been issued against one named, Oliver Keveny, 
at Bas de la Riviere by MI'. Norman MiLeod, In the month of August; 
1816, upon the complaints of some pe~sohs who were under his com­
mand, and, I aftirwards ,saw Keveny at'Fort Bas de Ia Riviere. 

Mr. Stu!trl.-Keveny, was he taken to the fort in consequence of hi. 
arrest. in virtue of the warrant which Mr. M'Leod had issued i' 

Jean Crebassa.-I heard De Reinhard spoke to, tD execute a war­
rant with three men,- and he was brought in a prisoner by De Reinhard 

I • 

the same day I believe. 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Where was Mr. :M:'Laod i' 
Jean Crebassa,--Mr. M'Leod went away the same day, after he had, 

issued the warrant, for Athabasca. He was gone before De Reinhard 

returned. 

Examination restlmed by lIfr. Stuart. 

JeanCrebussa,M-I do not know the Christian name of that Keven:", 

lmt his people called him ~liver Keveny. Mr. M'Lellan was at th. 
time at the fort of Bas de la Riviere. Mr. MiLellan, and all the peo­
ple of the fDft, 'received Keveny in a friendly way, Keveny was sent 
to 'Fort'William as a prisoner on the following day. A few days after­

wards we learned that Fort'William, the principal depot of the North­
West Company, had been taken by Lord Selkirk. De Reinhard wa. 
there at the time, and was aequainted with this intelUgence as well al 
'myself. Mr. Alexander l'I'Donell was then at"Red River, and a letter 

"was sent. to infDrm him' of the capture of Fort William, and he came 
down'immediately in Mnsequence to Bas de la Riviere. After his ar­

rival a consultation was held a~ to what ought tD be done in consequence 
of the capture of Fort lYi\liam; and, in consequence .of this consulta­
tion, Mr. M'Lellan took his departure in a canoe with the prisoner, 

(De Reinhartl) Mr. Cadotte, Mr. Grant, and other persons, to see whe­

ther the communication between Fort William and the interior wal 

"pen or not. We were afraid that, Fort William being taken, our 
II< 
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equlpments which were then expected to arrive might not come, anil'it' 

was a matter of very great consequence to us. In that country, the 

meetings which are held, in order to consult on matters of business, are 

called" councils," in imitation of the Indians. It was the only council 

held there at that period to my knowledge; and, as I was the principal 

clel'k, I believe they would have had sufficieut confidence in me to have 

caU~d' me to any council held there. I have no knowledge that asy 

person said any thing about Keveny, and if they had spoke of Keveny, 

i mu,t have known it. When he well~ away I heard Mr. M'LeUan say 

to the people who conducted him" to take good care of him," and" not 

" to give him 'any offence:" Four or five days after the council, Mr. 

l'Il'Donell returned to Red River, and, on going away, he told me that 

it was expected that, in consequence of the capture of Fort Willia~, 

Mr. Keveny would come back to Bas de la Riviere, and that, in that 

case, I should do right in sendin~ him to Red River, as a more conve­

nient place for him, and also one where the~e were more provisions thull 

at our fort. 

Cross-examination conducted by the' .Attorney-General. 

Jean C,.ebasJa.-I never saw the warrant of w!lich I have spqker .. 

nor can I say agllinst whom it was issued. The Prisoner brQught to 

the fort by De Reinhard amwered to the name of Keveny. I never 

heard him answer to his Christian name. I saw Keveny and spoke to 

him, hut I do not know what countryman he was; he was a tall man, 

and of a fair complexion. He was sent from Bas de III Riviere in the 

ea/'e of one Louis Lacerte, a guide and interpreter. Lacerte is a Bois­

brultl, or Half-breed, and four or five others went with him, all Half:. 

breeds or Bois-brules. He was not to my knowledge in irons; he wai 

not in irons when he went away, and I ne\'er 'at any time saw him in 

irons. We had none at Bas i1e la Riviere. I never saw any there.­

When lVIr. Keveny was brought to Bas de la Riviere he had no bag­

gage. After the departure of Keveny his barge with some haggage 

came, and his clerk (])ir. Cowly) asked leave of lVIr. M'Lelian to put 

it in an outhou.,e. He took an inventory of it, and it was put in. I 

did not see the word Keveny on the baggage, nor engraved on a writ­
ing desk, nor did I see a writing desk. 

Chief Justice Seuell.-Then I understand you, that you did not see 

the name of Keveny on the baggage, neither printed, written or en­
i;raved on a writing desk. 

Jean Crebassa.-Yes. 

Aliornev·G,neral.-Did you see any calves? 
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Jetln CreIJllSsa.-Yes, there were four calves. whi~h were kiiled anti 

<;laten by the Iniliam. I swear that I did not eat any. I, was present 

at the Council of which I have spoked as a member o.fit.."...but I did not 

vote. Mainville, I believe, was present, and there were other Bois­

brules. The object of this COllncil was solely to send canoes forward, 

to know whether the canoes with the equipments were coming from Fort 

William or 110t, because if there is a want of goods to t.rade with the In­

dians, and of seines (fishing nets) we shoulLl al:Jsol\l!e.ly be stiJ.rved to 

death. 

Mr.~lua1t . ...,..I beg t\.iat may be taken, that, oo.tess t,hey 'llceived 
the supplies they were exposed to absolute starvation. 

Attomey-General.-I must ask YO.1,I, .upo,," 1,I:1e oath you have taken, 

had this Council no other objeci tha1,l merely to send 9ft' a canoe,? 

Jean Creba8sa.~The 90,Iy ,object of this Counc~1 0.1' tr\lde was that. 

I cannot say it is the custom of the hlllf-bl'eeds .to sit in a council of 

trade, but I know they we,e caIle~ .upon on t):ais occasior,a. I have no 

knowledge of any opposi,t.ion to the ll1.e.asur,e o.f sending a canoe. The 

prop,osal was made by ~r. :n'LeIl\1D anil Mr. M'Donell, and nobody 
opposed it. Mr. M'LelliJ.n enquirei! ~hQ would volunte.el· to go in the 

canoe. This Wall .lill t,l,1\1t W:;IS .~l.OI:\efSo!p.e of the half-breeds rC.fused to 
go (rom idleness. 

Attorney-General.-Are you quite sure. that nothing but idleness 

prey,entei! them gojr,ag.? Diil they not sOllle of them assign a reason? 
Jean Crebassa.-I think it was nothing but idle/less, becausli they 

none of theDl gave an¥ reason. I do not know that a Bois-brule, 

n,alIleil IJ,a ;1',ointe., re.fuse'J to go, or t/;II;l.t he g\lve 4is reasons for not go­
ing. I do not know of his making a speech at the Council, nor ,did I 

hear him say that he would not fight 86aigst tbe King's troops. I do 

not kJ;loW 4is rathe".or that he was tried by a court-martial for advising 

his SOil /lot to go. Mr. Archibi;lld M'LeHan, Mr. Reini)a,d, lHr. 

Grant, an,d 1\'[r. C\ldotte, together with l\IainviHe, a/l,d sevell 01' eigbt 

other Bois-bl'ules w,ent in the cano.e. Each man had his gup, as.is cus- , 

tomary in that country. They liad ball with them. Shot is tbe gene­

ral ammunition, bllt ball is also taken ill C/lse of meeting with large ani­

qlals. To my knowledge there was I}ot mOre ball or ammunition than 

~djnary. I did not see any war pieJ:es. 

AttoTn.ey-General.-Did you hear any thing at this C~uncil about a 

,va, l' 
JIIlr. Stuart."...1 object to that question, as totally inadDlissible. 

Atlorney-General.-It is a most unusual Council I think atten~eJJ 

by Bois·briUes, who are not in the habit of attending councils of corn­

IIj.ercc, though councils of IVaI' I believe the>, OllwaYI! dQ at~eml. lYIy 
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}etirllt.a:ftiend II)U!t really permit me to know something more of thi. 

most extraordinary Council held to determine whether a callbe should" 
tie sent oft'. What could- the canoe do if it went? could it bring tbe 

thing that they expected any faster? or, if they were not coming would" 

a canoe being sent off make any alteration in the sltuation of those who" 
were at Bas de la Riviere? It really appears to me a very mysteriou. 
bnsiness to call a couDcil and invite the Bois-brUles to it, mtlrelyto de. 

liberate whether a canoe should be sent off or not. 
M .. Stuart.-I think it was very natural when they heard that the.­

great line of communication W9,S cut off, that they should be anxious 
whether they were to receive any supplies, for what does the" witnes9 
say'-" tbat unless they had merchandise to trade with the Indians; or 
.. nets to fish, that in that country they must inevitably starve."-The" 
object for which the council assemhled was a very natural one, and the 
witness most unequivocally says, that it w~s confined exclusively to tbe 
consideration of the proper steps to be taken in consequence of the out­
rage whicb deprived them of their principal depot, and not to devise a 
retaliation of the aggression, or even to deliberate upon any I\leans of re­

gaining that which was rightfully theirs. 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Suppose at this council there had been a propo­

iition of the kind your questions are hinting at, Mr. Attorney, boW" 

would it bear on the case? 
Mr. Justice Bowef\.-Admit they determined to fight their way 

through, how can it affect this case? 
.AltQrne~-General.-I wish to prove that this council was not that 

innocent assemblage that it has been represented to be. Did you hear' 
any thing at that council relative to war? 

Jean Crebassa.-No; not to my knowledge. The council was held tell 
or twelve days after Keveny had been sent from Bas de la Riviere, and 
the canoe with Mr. M'LelJan and the others, followed on in the same 
track, indeed there was no other communication. Two or three days 
after Mr. M'Lellan's departure, I saw a trunk and a box brought to 
the fort at Bas de la Riviere, by Joseph, fils de la Perdrix :Blanche, and 
a: man named VAlJemand, but I did not see the name of Keveny upon 
them, or I do not recollect that I saw it. I saw them at the water side, 
and I do not know what became of them. I do not know whether it 

was a week or a fortnight after Mr. M'LelJan went away that the things 
came. I do not think it could be so long as a fortnight. I cannot Bay 
that it was not five or six days, but I do not believe that it was four­

teen; but I cannot swear that it was nat ten; 1 think that it was near 
lipon five or six. 

Chief Jull~e Bo~n.-Did De lteinhar4 go with the warrant th" 
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day it wugiven, and return the same day!' and how happenetl it,that 

Mr. WLeod was not there II 
Jean Crebassa;-He had gone away to another post, to Athabnsca 

aetel" granting the warrant, and before De Reinhard returned. 

Attorney-General.-Could not Keveny have been kept at the (ort, 

till a better opportunity offered of sending him to Fort William? 

Jean'Crella~sa.-That Ylas not my bu£iness', I had notbing to do with 
.euding him; 

Attorney-General.-I want' to know if. he could, not have been kept 
at Bas de la Riviere. You have represenred that Keveny wall treated 
with friendship. If you and I wel'e there and I should send you to Foli 
William with five Bois-briiles, would you call it friendly? Is it usual ta 
send men of his rank with Bois-brules? 

Chief Jus/ice &well.-l think it is not put in the power of the lXIa· 

gistrate to exercise a desoretion upon that poin t. 

Attorney-General,-I merely want to k~ow whether or not be could 
have been kept, or wh@ther. according to witness' opinion, it was an act 

pf friendship, to send a man of Mr. KeveIlY's rank with Bois·bruh~s i' 
Chiif' Justice Sewell.-His opinion goes for nothing. You may ask 

him whether he could have been kept. 
Attornty-General.-Well, I will put that question to him. Could 

Keveny have been kept at Bas de la Riviere? was De ;Reinhard there? 

Jeatt Orebassa.-There were houses there, so that he might havll 

.topped. De Reinhard was there. 
[In answer to a Juror, Mr. Crebassa said, he knew that Mainvoille, 

De Reinhard, and Perdrix Blanche, went in the canoe with l\'lr.1\'l'Lel­
lan, but had no knowledge that they were sent in the small canoe witb 
Keveny, as he was not in the upper part of the river; also, that at the 
time the conncil was held, there was no report of the existence of a: war 
in the country below Bas de la Riviere, with the exception that inteUi~ 

lienee had been received' of the taking of Fort William.] 

MICHEL CHRETIEN, Sworn, 

And Examined by Mr. Valliere de St. Rial. 

Chretien.~-In the BUlDmer of 1816, I was an engage of the North. 

West Company, and was at Lake la Pluie at the time when Mr. Alex­

sn>der Stuart arrived there from Athabasca. About perhaps ten days 

after he came, welleard that Fort William was taken by the people 

of my Lord Selkirk. I know that towards Michaelm3B, 00 the IIll:Qu!1 
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()f October, Captain D'Orsonnens came, and that before his arrival 101r. 
M'Donald, one named Bonaire, and Mr. Nolin, arrived at Fort Lake III 
PJuie, and took MI'. Sayer prisoner. Mr. Sayer was in. bed and they 

took bim prisoner, saying, " we take you prisoner in the name of the 

'f King." I was outside of that room, but at the door where I could 

.ee, and I saw them take him, and heard the words, " we take. you pri. 

',< soner in t,be name of the King." :lI'Ir. i\l'Donald asked where Mr. 

De Reinhard was, but I did not hear the answer. He immedi;ltely 

went in the house where De Reinhard was. I afterwards went into De 

Reinhard's hou~e, where I saw 1\11'. M'Doaald, Jvith his arms, guarding 

:l"Ir. De Reinhard. At that instant, I did not know that a force con, 

sisting of the people of my Lord Selkit'k, was at the fort a.tLake la Pluie, 

or at the portage. In the afternoon Guillaume arrived wjth perhaps 

twenty MeuTom. Befor.e, and in the course of the day, about three 

o'clock, three or four M.~urons had made their appearaI!ce, and after­

wards, at sun set, or thereabouts, the others came to join Mr. 11'l'Donald. 

I did not hear these three or four speak in a threatening way to De 

Reinhard, but there were M.eurons there, and I heard them make use of 

threats against De Re4J4ar.d, "n~ I ~hiQk that D,e Reinhard heard t4em. 

I believe that he did. 
[The Solicitor General remarked, that as 011 a former occasion tbe 

Crown was not permitted to go into evidence of a conversation in tbe 

presen.ce of Mr. l\'l'I"eJlan, beca.use the witness wonld not swear that 

M'LeJlan heard it, he did not think this WIlS evidence; to which the 

Court observed, that this might not be a p.arallel case, but till tpe t~me 

was fixed when tbis took place, the Court could not determine.] 

]tIro Valliere de St. Rial.-When did the twenty Meurons arrive? 

Chretien.-lt was in the evening towards sunset, and they were part­

ly at the door and par~y in the bouse. Captain D'Orsonnens came in 

t~ afternoon, ahout two o'clock. The twenty men were with Captain 

D'Orsonnens. It J,vas mid-d~y or one o'clock, ",pen the four Neurons 

first arrived, or about an hour before Captain D'Orsonnens came. The 

twenty men came with Captain D'Ormnnens in the el'ening, but I do 

not know whether they came with him the first time, that is, at tWQ 

p'clock. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-You said, "that it was with Captain D'Orsoll­

Dens they came." 

Chretien.-The twenty men accompanied Captain D'Orsonnens in 

the evening, but I did not understand that they had come at two o'clock. 

(The Chief Justice remarked, that there must be some mistake, or 

contradiction, as the witness had just before said, that these men came 

';1.,111 Captain D'Orsonnem. The Prisoner's counsel after his HOnOl1f 
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bad read Qis notes'" observed, that they believed the .witne-ss· (although 

his answers were not very distinct,) had not intended to say, that tha 
twenty Meurons arrived with Captain D'Orsonnens at two o'clock."'" 

The Chief Justice observed, that Mr. Bowen's notes agreed with his. 
What the witness meant could only he known from what he said, and he 

had said that. Some or'the Jury intimating that they had not so un­
derstoo'd the witness, the Chief Justice en'quired of the reporter if hill 
notes accOl'ued with those which he had read? Mr. Simpson observed, 
that they did not exactly, and read his. The differe.nce appears to he 
this, the reporter; in the former part of his testimony, represents the 
witness as saying merely, that these twenty men were WitTl Captain 
D'OrsOJinens, without any speCification as to time, and latterly that 
they came with him towards evening, which was the second time of Cap­
tain D'Orsonnens' coming according to his comprehension of Chretien; 
whilst the Court understood him as fixing the first visit of Captain 
D'Orsonnens, viz: at two o'clock, as the time when tlIey accompanied 
him. The Jury and the Prisoner's couflSel observing, that they under­

stood the witness as the reporter had taken his evidence, the Chief JIlS" 
tice said, that he I;ertainly had stated that they arrived with Captaia 
D'Orsonnens at two o'clock, and being on both the judges notes he coul<l 
not strike it Ollt.) 

Examination continued by Mr. Valliere de 8t. Rial. 

Chrelien.-I heard the l.\'leurons (who were all armed) say, that they 
Bad entered the fort to seek for one De Reinhard, and " that if he did 

" not got go to the Portage of Lake la Pluie, where their camp wa~, 
.. of his own free will, they would take him by force." This was m. 
dusk, about sunset. "We have him now," said they, .. formerly he 
" took care of us in the regiment, he made us smart, hut now we are 

" going to take care of him." They took him to the portage that same 
evening, but did not say why. I cannot say whether De Reinhard 
heard it, became I do not know it for certain. They were all ill a 

'If III the afternoon, the person named Guillaume, a Meuron, arrived 
at the fort, with a score of men; and before, about two o'clock in tlte 
afternoon, three or four Meurons had arrived with Mr. M'Donald.-"­
They came to join MI'. M'Dona!d at the fort in the evening, at sunse-t, 
or thereabouts. I heard threats made use of by the Meurons against De 
Reinhard. They were then at the door and in the hOllse where De 
Reinhard was. The twenty men came with Captain D'Or50IInellll, ad 

IIl/ut two o'c!o.:k in the afternooil. 
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troop, and De Reinhard was in ljis. room with the door open. .I was is 
the kitchen, and I heard, and I believe in my conscience, tbat De Rein­

hard heard them. He was as near to them as I was. l.ha\·e not any 

knowledge of a quarrel between Captain D'Orsonnens. and De Rein­

hard. All went out together, De Reinhard, . Captain D'Orsoonens, 

and a\l of them, went away together to the .P~rlage of Lake la Pluie. 

De Reinhard appeal'ed to have a melancholy air. These Meurons 

leemed to be seriously irritated against him, aud by their language it 

appeared to me that tbey hated.him. 
[The Cllief Jnstice intimating tbat they were not trying twenty 

Meurons, Mr. Valliere said his object was to shew tbe disposition of 

the Menrons towards De Reinhard, and that they threatened him. The 

Chief Justice reminded Mr. V. that he had previously made his confes­

~ion to Captain D'Orsonnens, and, upon it, had been taken up a~ a 

murderer. Mr. Valliere pursuing the same course by asking if they 

were prohibited from leaving the fort, the Chief Justice said it could 

not be admitted, as subsequent events could not be brought to bear on 

this question. Mr. Valliere stated his object to he torebut the evidence 

of Captain D'Orsonnens, by shewing that he uniformly appeared in II: 

"ery different manner, from that of a disintel'e8ted person, which, M 

affecting his credibility, he considered very material.] 

Examination resumed by lIIr. Valliere de 81. Rial. 

Chretien,-The next day, or the day after, Captain D'OrsonneM 

called us all together, and ordered us not to trade with the natives, nor 

to go on the water to fish, nor to go out a hunting; and tbat, if we did 

~o, the first shot he would fire would be in the air, and the second to 

8ink us. Captain D'Orsonnens constantly wore a grey great coat with 

a ~lVord by his side. I did not see him wear a red uniform. I know 

that Captain D'Orsonnens took the ammunition, and all the liquor 

there was in the fort. He gave for a reason that the forl did not belong 

to the gentlemen of the North.West, but to his Majesty, and to the 

government. He off.,red to give us lands there, and told us that he held 

the freehold so that he could give them. He also said that part of the 

gentlemen of the North-West would be hung, and the other part 

driven f,·om the country, "but (said he) you will be well off with 'Us." 
Captain D'Orsonnens told me, also, that formerly there were no law. 

in that country, hut that everyone did as he liked, but that it would 

not be the same now, became he had come to establish laws. He sent 

to fetch me, while, by order of 1'>11'. Dease, I was burning some old 

papers whlch had heen lying about for a long time in an outbouw .... 
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Jte eommanded me to tell the truth, .!aying that he had as much 

power 'lis a ;magistrate, and that, if I did not spelj.k the t.ruth, he 

would run his sword through my body, that he would cut oft'my 

liaad,.·or that I Rhould he hung. A few minutes after, he ordered a 

tent to be pitched, into.which he put me, saying .. you shall remain 

.. there until you take your departure for York, and, if you do not de­

" clare the truth there, you will be hung," that I did not know the 

consequence of burning those papers .. He let me remain there till the 

following evening, with a simtinel at my tent. During the time that I 

was imprisoned, I saw two pieces of brass cannon, mounted upon their 

carriages, hinded at the camp atthe portage. I had seen them before 

mounted upon the vessel of Fort William, and I perfectly recognized 

them to be the same. There was a pile of balls placed at the camp, next 

to the cannon. AfterWards Captain D'Orsonnens took possession of all 

the effects which were in the fort, of which he took an inventory. The 

next day I went away for Fort William. De Reinhard went down 

several days before, with Faille an!l La Pointe. 'When I arrived at Fort 

William, I found De Reinhard a prisoner, guarded by a Meuron placed 

at his door and armed. At the end of two or three days he was enlarg­

ed, and permitted to go and come at large witbin tlie fort. The sentinel 

was taken away from his door. There were still sentinels at the outside 

door of the fort. During the course of the winter De <Reinhard wDnt 

out once with OJle of his comrades to the other side of the river. I know· 

that he kept a school during the wrntcr, and that Lord Selkirk was 

master of the fort at the time. 

lI-fr. Valliere de St. Real.-Have you any knowledge that Mr. Dease 

was taklln by force before my Lord Selkirk to sign a paper? 

SoliDitor-Gcneral.-The course my {earned fl'iend has taken to dis­

prove a confession, is very singular, namely, to prove that the conduct 

of the magistrate may have been wrong in other cases. Can this be 11-11-

mitted ? I that.n magistrate's gencf'Ul conduct can be examined into, or 

his conduct even in nny particular act, however connected with the 

transactIon, is a.proposltion, I think, completely untenable. Mr. Dease 

.lid sign it, and whether he did so voluntarily or by force, cannot alter 

the confession itself. 'That was the deUberate act of the Prisonel', pre­

viously prepared in Ilk 'own hand writing, its delivery to the Earl of 

Selkirk, P_s his confession Of ,the part which he hall taken in the murder 

of ;)1 r. Ke,-eiiy; is witnessed by four perBons. Wbat pos5ible difference 

can the manner in which they became witnesses, make as to the con­

tents of the confession? not a particle. 

Mr. Justice Bowen.:"';'In admlt!itlg this confession, it should be re­

wlleeted, that we exc)uMd that part beginning, .. Before Thomas, 
8 
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Earl of Selkirk." There arc no witnesses to the conCession aSy:"e re­

ceived it; the four witnesses are to a part which the Court disatlowed. 

That, at a certain day, De Reinhard was a prisoner, and tbat at ano­

ther, he was free, is a fact proper for you to lay before tbe Jury, and 

they may, if they think proper, connect this liberation with the con­

fession. But what possible use can it be, to go into an examination, 

as to the manner, in which rejected testimony might have been obtain­

eu? 

Mr. Stuart.-'Ve submit, as we are bound to do, to the judgment of 

the Court, though at variance with our preconceived opinign~, but, in 

ill ustration of why we thought this question to be within the Iimit~ of 

evidence, the Court will perhaps indulge me with the liberty of making 

two or tbree observations. Dr. Allan stated that Mr. Dease, attended 

at the delivery of this paper to the Earl of Selkirk by De Reinhard.­

From that want of candollr, fairness, and frankness, which rllns through 

the entire transaction, from the total absence of any thing like candour 

in those who are at the back of this prosecution, tbe natural inference 

which the Jury would draw would he, that Mr. Dease attended volunta­

rily. The additional weight given to the pap~r, by the signature of a 

confidential clerk to the North·West Company, attestinjb, that in his 

presence this confession was made, cannot for a moment be overlooked, 

for if such a person was voluntarily present, making no objection, tho 

c"ident presumption would be that every thing, being perfectly fair, the 

testimony was irresistable. If, instead of this, we prove he wall dragged 

there by four Meuron soldier5, in the pay of the very magistrate before 

whom the confession was made, we, I think, account for the finding of a 

clerk of the North-West Company's name to a confession, made hefore 

the Earl of Selkirk, and at the same time destroy any supposed valillity 

ftttached to such a paper by that circumstance. We now wish to prove 

that this pretended examination, which is lIetailed on the paper receiv­

ed by the Court, is not entitled to creilit, and that tbe pains taken to 

give it the semblance of extl'aordinary fairness, is nothing more than a 

part of that plot of which the machinery was all'eady prepared. The 

Ulinc was ready to be blown, the train was laid, nothing was necessary 

!Jut to apply the torch, nothing required, but to have the paper already 

manufactured, signed by the unfortunate De Reinhard. His power of 

rcfasiug, aotl freedom of mind, may be well estimated, if we prove, that 

those who witnessed the delivery, "'cre not there accidentally, or volun­

tarily upon an ill\-itation, but were dragged before the noble Earl of Sel­

I:irk, Ihe private proseclllor, by four "~Ieuron soldiers in his own pay.­

\Ye think, that, as such a circumstance cannot fail to involve the volun-. 

t:urille" c.f the cOllfeS5ion in doubt, we might be permitted to proye it, 
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and considering that it woult1 produce an essential benefit to the Prison­

IIf, we felt bound to urge the questio!l to the Court. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-For my own part, I can not see it. Dr. Allan 

.ays he was present before De Reinhard signed or delivered the paper to 

Lo.rd Selkirk, that Mr. Dease wns al~o sent for and upon his arrival the 

paper was banded to bim. He reatI it to himself, and asketI the P!'isorrer, 

"if it was true," De Reinhard answering that .. the coritents were 

~'true." He ,is further asked, .. do you wish to add to, or take away 

" from, or !lIter, any part of the contents," nnd he answel'S, "no, I do 

"not." Now, had the attestation been admitted, what difference could 

it make to what De iBei.nhard dill, that one of the w,itnesses went with, 

{)r was even taken against his inclination by, four soldiers? we should 

lJe happy to receive any thing, gentlemen, which )'ou, in the exercise of 

your judgments, may thing proper to offer, but our inclination must be 

lim,i,ted, by rules of law. 

111'1'. ,Ju~lice BO,u'en,.-The Crown officers objecfed to your question, 

because you were go.ing to sbew, that Dense was himself a prisoner, am1 

from that to lead the Jury to infer tbat the magistrate, acting wrong in 

ene insta~ce, he would do so in another, 1,IOd upon thnt point I :consider 

the objection good. But, ,if you only wish to prove that Mr. Dease was 

~ot a voluntary witnessj as it js in evidence that he was present, I think: 

you can; but no farther than just that fact do I think you can use the 

'iuestion. 
1I-Ir. Va71felson.-We have no wish to use 'it fa~tller. We merely 

wish to prove, thai such was the system of lawless violence and outrage 

carried on in that country, that every thing was done by force, nntl 

that opposition was useless, as military authority awed it down. ' 

Chief Justice Sewell.-I do not see what benefit is to resl)lt fl'~m the 

enquiry. Acts of viQlel,lce, of military aggressifrn, are proved, indisplf­

tably proved, and so, unless some very strong circumstances appenr t .. 

chal)ge Quropinion, we shall charge tht; Jury. There therefore can be 

110 necessity to gol/./)Y farther. 

Mr. Stl,tart,.-Under this view of the ,ubject taken by tJ;te, Court, \VlI 

lIave done wjtl). this witnes~, ., ., 

A.ttoTpell-Ge'flcral,-After what has ,aile<} from the. CDJ)l't~ W~, ~h~1I 

c~rtnirly feel it plJr ~uty to prove tha~ this was not !l military ~ol'cel 

a!ld tl,at no greater viole,nee was used, than, what opposition to legal 

RJ.~ru;ures r~!)dered necessary; therefore the defen!:,e, hall better per~ 

haps at once prove it, if they can, because we nre prepared to over-

turn it. ' 

Chief JIM/ice SeweU.-To prove what, or overturn what? what possI­

ble difference-can it make to the abstract fnct of t~e conleSl'iOIl, whether 



140 

Dease was a voluntary witness or otherwise? it does Dot intluence my , . 
opinion 'in the smallest degree. 

Cross-examination conducted by the Attorney-General •. 

Chretien.-The conversation of the Meurons was amollgst.them.selves. 

De Reinhard was not bound. I was not lower down than Fert Wil. 

Iiam. I first saw Captain D'Orsonnens at Fort Lake la Pluie, about. 

one or two o'clock in the afternoon. 

RUDOLPH HALLER," Swom, 

Examined by Mr. Vanje[son. 

Raller.-I WIlS at Fort William on the nineteenth of October, 1816. 

De Reinhard was then there, a prisoner under the guard of a sentinel, 

and he remained so for ten or eleven days. I cannot say that it was 

thirteen 01' fourteen. After that, he was no longer confilled, but could 
go out and ill the fort as he cho~e. I left the fort tbe sixteenth or se· 

venteentb of November of that year, and tI;e peopie of Lord Selkirk 

were in possession of the fort, and were so during all the time that I 
was there. The party was armed and commanded by Captain Mathey, 

but at first Captain D'Orsonnens had had the command. 

Altorney.General.-'\Ve have no questions to,put to l!aller. 

JEAN BEA UER, Sworn, 

And examined by Mr. Stuart. 

Beauer.-I was employe,l the fifteenth of this month to serve an or· 

der of mbprena upon lIIr. John 1I1'Xub, at Montr'eal, on behalf of the 

i'risonel', hut I could not meet with him. I am a constable at Mon. 

treal. I went to his lodgings, at Mr. "" illiams', the post office at 

Mdntreal. They told me that he had gone away f6r ten or twelve days, 

but had left his things there. I was afterwards at Longneil, where he 

sometimes went, and was informed by the Curate, that he had bot seen 

him for three weeks. I cannot 6IlY, whether, be i;. in the service of my 

" The witness being a German, and not speaking English or French, 
Jasper Brewer, Esq. was sworn to act IU interpreter. 
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Lord Selkirk or not. The sixteepth of thi,s month I likewise served flilt 

erder upon a man named Jean Baptiste St. Pierre, as a witness fOr the 

Prisoner, and 'he told me he would go; but that he hili! rweived money 

from Lord Selkirk, and was engaged to depart fol' Fort William, hut 

that he would go to Mr. :i)l'Kenzie, and speak to him. We were in 

.consequence at Mr. lIol'Kenzie's ,office; he related bis concerns to Mr. 

l\Il'Kenzie, and tnel'etlpon lYIr. l\Il'Kenzie said to him, that he would 

uo well to appriBe his employer, that he had received an order to set off 

for Quebec. Thereupol). St. Pierre said, .. go with nael' and 011 going 
out'of the door'we met one Harnois. 

[The Attorney.General objected to thie course of examination, but 

the Court held, that the Prisoner having subpreuaed witnesses, was en­

titled to shew why he could not bring them forward.] 

Beauer.-On going o!1t of Mr. l\'l'l(enzie'. office, one Harnois, a 

voyageur, said there was, at the top of the street, a friend or a com· 

rade, " who wants to speak to you." He answered, that he could not 

go, that he was going to his employer's office to settle his concerns, anll 

Harnois told him that Mr. Forrest. was not there. Being gone a little 

farther than the market, we met Mr. Heurter. St. Pierre told him, that 

he had received a subprena, and he asked to look at it, and took the 
order, upon which I told him ibat he had nothing to do with it, and he 
returned the order to St. Pierre, and we afterwards went·· to the office 

(jf Mr. Gale, who is, I believe, of counsel for my Lord Selkirk. 

St. Pierre was called upon his subptena" dnd 1!ot appear·ing the default 

was entered. 

Mr. Gale observed, that his name having been introduced, in a manner 

that might create an unfavourable impression, as to the non·appearance of 
.st. Pierre, he u'as desirous of explaining his conduct, to the Chief Justiee 

and Court. The Chief Justice remarked that, though his name had been 

introduced in the course of the Ir'ial, yet it had never been mentioned but 

with the greatest respect, and that, if thought necessary, the Crown officers 

-might call Mr. Gale, but he (the Chief Justice,) did not suppose that they 

would. Mr. Gale rejoined, that had his being called, rested with himself, 

he should not ha7le interposed any observations, but as ,t was with the Ai· 
torney-General, he had felt himself bound to protect his own conduct. 

Mr. StU(!,Tt intimated, that the chain of evidence the Prisoner's counsel 

had proposed /0 pursue, was here broken. They were desirous of shewirtg 

• (}'variation, between the testimony given, by certain witnesses at the proceed-

4ngs in Mareh on this subject, and that, during the present trial. No more 

~DmmissionerB being in <Alurl, than required by the patent, /u; did nol "noll1 
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tJ:hat course the COllrt might approve, to enable him to attain this poillt, 

which he considered 'important. The Chitf Justice enquired, (blr. Btuart 

here hesitating,) whether it was Ihe wi.h of the gentlemen to examine him, 

and being answered affirmatively, slated that the difficulty was: " If I come 

.. down from this bench how am I to get up again, for it is as yet an 

.. unsettled point, whether a judge can retire from the bench, be exa­

.. mined, and resume hia seat on the same trial." After some colloquial 

conversation oetlceen the bench and the bar, in the course 0/ which his Ho­
nour the ChiFf Justice, recognized as sound law, .. that if the interest 0/ 
.. the Prisoner u'as 10 be promoted by the examination 0/ himseTj, however 

.. inconvenient it might be, it was a paramount right which his cQunsel 

" were entitled to insist on. In the present case, perhaps, no difficulty might 

.. present itself, as lIIr. Justice Perrault sat in lIIarch, and was not on the 

.. bench on the present trial." It 'U'as ag~eed t9 obtain the judge's altentl­

IInce for examination to-morrow. 

WM. BACHELOR COLTMAN, ESQUnE, Sworn, 

4nd examined by lilT. Stuart. 

JrIr. Collman.-I was last year at Fort William, and farthe{' in tho 

Indian Territories, ill the qu.ality of His lHajesty's Commissioner for en­

'juiring into the troubles in those parts. I arrived at Fort William on 

the twelfth of June, 1817, I believe; and I found that fort then in the 

possession of the North-West Company. When I got as far as Sawlt 

£t. Mary, (before crossing Lake Superior,) I received a letter from Lon} 
Selkirk, dated at Fort William the 28th April, 1817. 

j1I ... BluTat.-Have you, Sir, got that letter? 

jlIr. Collman being 30me lime in txamining a large collection 0/ paper« 
umth he had in Cottrt. 

JrIr. Jus/ice Bowen.-The Crown will perhaps admit that Lord Sel­
kirk had possessiOll of Fort William. 

lIIr. Sluart.--We ha,"e not proved the lcn~th of time that he re­

tained possession of it, which we are desirons of Joing by 1I'1r. Coltman. 

ChiFf Justice Seu·ell.-What difference is that to make, what if he 

kept it for ever? the question is not itt all varied, whether, the duration 

of the possession was for an hour, or for twenty years. The fact, that it 

was in the occupation at one time of Lord Selkirk, and that to the 

knowledge of De Reinhard, at the time he made his confession, you have 

p.rovad, as well as that, previou~ly to tl!.at period, it was occupied by 
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the North-West Company, and is at present in their pbss~ssion. It thed 
cannot be essential to obtain more testimony on that point.. 

Mr. SluGrl.-With great deference I heg to submit, why I consider 
it essential, to put before the Jury, the length of time Fort William wa~ 

in possession of Lord Selkirk. Let it for a, moment be supposed that 
Lord Selkirk, as a magistrate, entered Fort William in search of, or 
to arrest, imaginary culprits, that he got them, sent them, in confor­

mity to the act under which the warrant issued and was executed, to 
Montreal, and had then gone away. There, every thing might havll 
been justified, hecau~e it was the legal exercise of legitimate autltority. 
Let it, on the other hand, he supposed (it is an imaginary case only 
that I am putting,) but let it be supposed that, from very different mo­
tives, not to take alleged culprits, not to execute a legal warrant, not. 
iD pursue a legitimate and authorized course, that of forwarding thosll 
whom he might arrest, to a Court, where they would receive protectioll 

or punishment, according as they merited; let it, I say, for a mOInent 
he suppossed that a magistrate could be found, so lost to all sense of du­

ty, so insensible to his own honour, so regardless of those laws whicll 
he was bound as a magistrate to enforce, and il! a subject to obey, that, 
under pretence of executing a legal process, he should at'ray a military 
force, lay siege to, and carry by assault, houses and stores, seize and ap­
propriate to his own use their eontenh, arrest, and confine indiscrimin­
ately, the preprictors, their clerks, and tlleir servants, tamper wita 
them in their confinement, liberating sucb as cam!! into his views, and 
confining more rigourously such as opposed them; I say, if such a rna­
gisl.fate could be' found, would the legality of the instrument, from its 
having his seal and signature, be a justification for the outrageous course 

of procedure I have been imagining? surely not. What ground, is there 
then, in the present instance, io say that the Earl of Selkirk, as a ma­
gistrate, made a legal entry, that in first issuing, and then in ~he mode 
Tae adopted to execute, his own warrant, he hall no view but that of the 
upright and enlightened magistrate, that no private, or interestell sug­
a;estion warped the impartial and disinterested justice of peace, into a 
partial and interested rival. There is no ground ~hatever, for such a 

conclusion, the whole transaction proves the contrary. After entrappinl; 
the leading partners, and' getting into the fort, he instantly changed 

oharacters and threw off the cloak. Instead of culprits, it was property, 
he wanted, and hal,jng got possession ofit, together with the fort, there 
he staid as suited his convenience, six, eight, or ten months. 'fo say 

that this excess of violence and aggression was necessary, is contrary to 
tommon sense. To say that it was not sacb an aggravated abuse, if 

.-ot prostitution, of the mngisterial character as to merge the ma!;istl'llte 
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In tbe hostile rival, is, I think, impossible. The language, not only of 

eommon sense, but of the law also, (fOf I might multiply outhofitie~ 

without end,) is, that the moment authority is abused, authority cen~es, 
and ,the magistrate, Of officer. becomes only a prhate individual. I 

might instance the entry of a sheritf upon a writ of execution; if fefu~­

ed admission, tlie entry although forcible, is a legal entry, and he might 

pfoceed to levy, according to sound judgment, sufficient to cover the a­

mouut specified in his wr;"t, but if, instead of demanding admission by 

virtue of the '1uthority of his writ, he proceed to break in the premises, 

or if, having obtained entry, instead of levying to cover th~ hundred 

pounds specified in tbe process, he should wantonly or malevolently 

seize property to the amount of thousands, is his office of sh€ritf or writ. 

of execution to protect the abuse ~ No. Then I conten", that it is es­

lential for me to prove the subsequent conduct of the Earl of Selkirk; 

because, I contend, that tbe moment he exceeded the necessary power to 

~ecure obedience to the law, tbat be changed from the magistrate. to the 

private individual, on this sonnd and general principle, that authority 

abused, ceases to he anthority. In adverting to the Earl of Selkirk, it 

is not to influence the Jury as to these disputes, nor is it to address th" 
passions on the con dud of the noble Earl, and the other great commer­

cial company; I should he unworthy of tbe gown I ba\'e the honour to 

wear, did I attempt it, but I cannot do justice to the Prisoner, except I 

prove that the Earl of Selkirk, by his subsequent ccnduct, lost his cha­
racter of a magistrate. This I int~nrl to do by shewing, that at the 

date of the letter I have asked for, his Lor(l;bip remaiued in possession 

of Fort William, and must necessarily, from tbat circumstance, have 

acted ns a prh-ate individual, and De Reinhard being therefore, in a 

Itate of illegal dure~s, bis confession is good for nothing. 

lIfr. VaI!/,elson briefly teent orer the same argument. 

Chief Jus/ice Sewell.-Let us see how the question comes before U~. 

and the grounds of our decision will be evident to every man of common 

sense. The unfortunate individual at the bar, is accused of the crime of 

murder, and it is yet' in suspensp, whether, he is guilty or not guilty. Hi 
is nolV on his trial before bis country, and we are bound to receive every 

thing offered in evidence for and against him, as far as is consistent with 

~ound legal rules. Tbese cannot be broken in upon to accommodate 

either party. How then stands the case, at the present moment? I 

ha\-e made, (says the Priwner,) it is true, a series of confessions, but I 

will shew, such an influence on my mind, at the time of making them, 

(arising from the bope ef benefit, or nny thing you choose,) that they 

ought to be destroyed. Prove then the circumstances pro"ducing tbis. 
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.I1flueilCe,; this you.~lo not attempt.: I Agliia;·il1lpposing the confessiob, 

$1gne,1 the 28th October, ,had been delivei'ed: to, a gentleman acting as 
b.,magistl'il.t~ and retei\'e,l:as,sullh,.;what· call pcc~rre\tces taking plilce in 

the succeeding' April by possibility have to do with it? certainly 

nothing.i: By nQ' possibility can Uiejlafol'eCt or alter the nct ·finished on 

thdiSd oti the·previousNOJV.ember.) You contend that we ought to allow 

the quei;tion,because,~the confession was taken by a magistrate. We 

decided, . and we·tt·aced authorities to convince yon, tha; we could not 

reje~t it, as a confession at cdmman latil, anl:l we rCllei~~ it as Ii paper 

delivered b!y the. PriscIDer to tlte Earl of Selkirk as an mdividual; and 

not in hiscapacit;y; of t1. magis/rale. Had it been delivered to' anybody 

elSe;; (')r beelLa,vivl&ivol:e coilfessimr to any other person; we should have 

r.eeeilred it, a$.~eldid Ilis previous verlial confessions to Captain D'Or­
sonnen~;'Vitcbie,and others. Un-der this view, which my learned bro­

ther IlS well a~myself takes bf tlle'sul:iject, I am decidedly or opinion 

your'question1Iia'lJU@t'be' recei\'ed. i. I 

[Mr. Justice Eowen very hrielly e.-itpress'ed his~ opinion of the impos< 

sibility of enterlaoining the qpestion.] . 

lIfr. S/uarl.-I would reqhest )'our Honours 'to insert my question 

together with the jJecislon of the Court thereon upon your Hononr's 

notes, that we maybe able hereafter to refer to them, should we see 

occasion" as I thinli:probalily we ;shall. 

Ol!iej.Justi.ee Sewell.-You'wish us to admit evidence of the 2"7th 

April, 1317, tn a"fnet wij.ich transpired on the 3d November, 1816, 

pT'i:ma facie the thing is impc:lsi;ible., Next, you object that Lord Selkirk 

was not iI.cLing as a magistrate, that we have decided is no matter, for 

that we have admitted the confession at common law; so much you 

may certainly ·haveilown if TOU think proper.' 

Mr. Justice BcilOen.-We have taken it tbus. Mr. Stuart, fot the 

Pdsoncrt. heing, called 'upon to state what he meant to prove b)' this 

letter, answered, "I mean to prove that his Lord~hip retained pos~es­
.. sian of Fort William up to that time, and secondly, that he (Lord Sel­

.. kil'k.) did not act as a magistrate In receiving tbe confessioo of De 
'H. Reinhal1d." 

M1'. Stuart.-I:be~thll CourVs pardon, but I am not so fortunate as 

to be;C\erll',ly undeI'stood. I intended to prove by the witness the ·re­

tllinillg possession of tile, fort, by ·Lord Selkirk; that I cOlisi<ler a ques­

tion ofJact,; 'the other is a cllltclusion of law arising from the argument 

I have-had the honour of ~ubmitting. 

, Chief Jus/ice Sewell.-I will read the opinion of the Court upon your 

proposition, I\S we now understand it .. Your question to Mr. Coltman, 

was, " h:n"c you got the lett6r?" l\'Ir. Stuart being cRII~t1, slatpll. t." 
T 
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to the Comt, that he wished by this question to prove two point~:­

"first, that Lord Selkirk had remained in.posses~ion of Fort William, 

WuntH tbe month of Apl'il, i8H, and, from thence to' infer, that he did 

" not act as a magistrate when he. received the Prisoner's confession, 

.. (lnd, therefore, that it is not entitled to creUit, the Prisoner being in 

" dure~s." :[he Court decided" tllI!.t the letter cannot be read for either 

•• of these purposes: first, because Lord Selkirk's possession on the 28th 

" April, 1817, could not, by any possibility, have inlluenced the deCla· 

" ration of the prisoner De Rcinhanl, marle on the Sd,November pre· 

" ceding, and second, that the COllrt have rejeetetl the examjnation ,said 

" to bO"e been taken by the Earl of 5elkirk as a m~gisti'ate, became it 

" was not proved either hy Lord Selkirk or his clerk; and received the 

.. paper written by De Reinhard, and then delivered .by him to Lord 

" Selkirk, as a piece of evidence by confession at common law." 

[Mr. Stuart explained that be did not call lVll'. Doltman to pro,'e 

that Lord Selkirk acted as an individual, and not as a magistrate, all­

cling, that he should be extremely concerned, if the Court thought ht' 

would attempt such an il'l'egularity,~.as tt> questi0'l Mr.-Coltman, upon 

the capncity in which the noble Eat"! acted,] 

.lIlr. Justice Bowel1.-1 ha~e made this minute. Mr. Stuart, for the 

Prisoner, being called upon to state' what he meant to prove, by this 

letter, answered, " I mean to prove tbat his Lordship retained posses­

" sion of Fort William up to that period, and from thence to infer that 

.( he did not act as " magistrate, but as a private individual, when he 

" received the pretended confession of the Prisoner, and that it was not 

,. entitled to credit, the Prisoner being in duress." This the Court 

tJvcrl'\llet.!, because it is immaterial, upon the present issue, whether hi~ 

LOI'dship retained possessipn of the fOL·t for six months, or six hours, an" 

because the Court did not admit yesterday the examination of the Pris­

oner, said to have been taken before his Lordship as a magistrate, it not 

being proven, but adm itted the written .declaration of the Prisoner, 

signed on the 28th October, an,l afterwards delivered to bis Lordship, ill 

the presence of the witness, DL'. Allan, tiS evidence at common law. 

j11r. 8/ullrl.-3Iy object was to ,hew, from this letter, a fact, and 

thence to infeL', as a legar~eduction, that the preten~ed confession could 

not have been taken by the noble Earl, as "magistrate, because he had 

divested himself, by his conduct, of.the. qUlllities of a magistrate: also, 

that, if rccei,'et! by the Court as a con(e.,iQu made to the·Earl of Selkirk 

as a private individual, it is net entitled to credit, because it .was writ­

ten anti taken at a time that the Pris01ler "as in a state of illegal du­

re". I wi,h the Court to notice that my objection Is twofold. [Mr. ~. 

l~aiu statetl the branches of ito] 
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Chiif' Justice Sewell.-I will add tll-ese words, and then I believe I 

mall state explicitly our decision, and also meet your ideas; after the 

wonls" '. as a piece of evide,nce at common, lal;'," I will annex, " as a 

" p~per of the Prisoner's'owti·c'o\nposition an,l writing, deliv{lred to his 

Lordship by him, and the capacity in which his Lor!!~hip reeeh'ed it at 

common law, being therefore immaterial!' 
." .. ~ 

Examination resumed by lIfr. Stuart. 

11[r. Collman.-:-I left Q.uebec.\ast,yeal·, aud, on my. route to Red Ri. 

~'er, at 1),.ummond's I~lan(l, in ~ake Huron, I'saw the Prisoner for the 

61'ot time. It was the thirtieth of May, or the first day of June, 1817, 

as I believe; he appeared to me to be at liberty. lIe was not confined, 

but was wilh onil Murphy, whofn I understood to be a constable, anel, 

I believe, u~der his sur~eI1Ian~e. I addressed (co~jolntly with' MI'. 

Fletcher) a warr~nt to Murphy to convey De Reinhard to Montreal, 

and tQ'comni'it him to prison, and the warrant coni~anded the gaoler 

to recetve him. I knOll' 'Jean B~pti,ste Desmarais, and I s~w him there. 
, " 

";I}~ answer to ,a ,question Jrom th~,()"iif Justic~, Mr. Collman stated 

thai 1ft tltal lime it was a mailer oj public belief Ihftt himsc'! and lIfr. 

Fl~icher were the only magistr.(f.tes of !he Indian territory. 
~ , . , _.,. ) '- . 

. J,J,. (!oltman.-I saw De!ima~ais afterwards at· l,a,ke la Pluie. He 

was brought before me, on the 25th June, by one Michael lI'l'Donell, 1 

believe, as a man in the sen'ice of my Lord Selkirk, rro,m whom it 

would be right to receive some evidence. I know an Indian from. Red 

River, commonly called Pils de la Peldr;:r BI~/TJi~II!C • . I bm'e seen hiur 

..el'eral, times j'n this-province, ,aBcl. I 'saw him 'dhmit 'February fast, in 

I;he,(li~trict of MOliltreal. He eould not fpeak Frenell,'~s I u\ldel'stood. 

I thimk, lie kmew a few .words; he .could pronounce perhaps somll words. 

I k-n!Jtv oPe lIi'Nllh, and I have seenljirn wri,te. " 

,~[I'. StllJl,p"I.-.-L(I~k at this letter'and, have t,he;goad'1ess iQ'My ",be-' 

ther it is tUe,writ!ug of John l\'l'Nah. , r ,~ 

Jlf. CQltman.-1 have no' dO,ubt, but it is his writing. I hu\'e seen 

this lettel' .,before at Fort William. FroQI the state it is in'no~v, it is. 
tviden,t ~at jt hati been destroyed,andpasred 'toge1l1cr: 

[illr. Stljart moving that the let~r, be read; the Attorney.Ge.nel'~I' 

objected, on the ground that tl!f're,~ould be no w<ly'of proving lI'lIN<lb's 

knowledge of any circu(IJstanc~ Lut by produoing him.]. 

Chief Ju.,tice Sewell.~It i~npw ,blllf-past sixo'chlCk. ,'{rhe' Court' 

\','i1~,.t¥refprll adjoul'll till ,eil!jht o'elock to-\Ilorl'oWJ morning, whun;w(, 

'yilllmllr YON in,supp.ort.llf YllU\' libj(li:ltions" 

,!;"Cp,lfr;1 adjoumed till t/w./.,timlt. " 
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Attorney-General,-A piece of evidence is QffereJ by my learned 

friends, to which, though it is Hl'y imlll4{eriul wl,cther it be read or not, 

I feel it my duty to object, because it io not the best 11\:iilence, which, 

from tbe l1a~ure of the subject, might be prouuced. A;wtlJer objectio!! 

is, that it is not a deposition of ~l':\!lb's, such af, if !llY,I,:arl1eilJrientls 

proved that the deponent was beyond the juris~il'tion qf thi¥ Court, they 

would be entitled to h!lve let in. That it is totally inadmissible is, eyi­

dent in a moment, for, admit letters as evidence, it would put it int\> 

the power of ",ny two persons to destroy any confession. As to this let­

ter, it never came into the Pris~net's hands, h~w, therefore, could his 

conduct be affected by it? I will not tr,spass 'further on the time of the 

Court. I contend, it cannot Le aumitted on the genel·a) rule that tha 

be,t evidence must be Noduced, which 'in this case is M'Nab; and al~ 

that it is a uocument not maue on oath, I mig\Jt add, anll never was in 

possession of,the Prisoner. 

Solicitor-Genenll.-'li is hardly nee€f'Sary to occupy the attention ot 

the Comt, 011 a poiot I consi~er so very clei'\r. The evidence tendered 

is, I conten~, \lOntqry to cvery principle, though its admissibility is 

urged on the ground that se~(mdary ev\clence may' ve res6~ted t!'l, in tllll 

ausence of the primary ; undoubtedly it may, a legal i.npos3ibility to 
produce the primary, being prm'ed. Haye lIlY learned friends sUbpre­

naeu M'Nab? i.f they bave, and be has not appeared, \vh.ere is their writ 

of attachment? If even they had token tllese indispemallle preliminary 

stcp~ to the introquctioll of s~ondary testimony, and after all, could not 

have found him, it would, be a !llisfortunc for the Prisoner; but could 

form no grouncl for taking as evidencc a document not supported by 

oath. Suppcse there should be occasion to inuict:;\I'~Hb for perjury, 

bow can it possibly be done upon a document not substantiated by oath? 

It is unnecessary to remark, that letters pretended to be written 10' a 

defendant, migbt be made to prejudice his case,oP to benefit him, though 

1.10 not see that this letter can do citl~er. This else, how~er, is mnch 
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btl'~nger, it is nol ~ letter to the defendant, but to a tbird pel:son, and 

~vbich, I believe, it is not pre~ended ~he Prisoner ev~r saw. I really 

~onsider I should be trilling with the ~itne of t~e Court, were I to argue 

further on this bu'sil)ess. 

M'f. Stuart.-I have the honou~'to'subl1lit, that the evidence I ten­

der, is clearly admissible. This is not a lettp.r rabricated a weel( or ten 
" ~ I , ) I' , 

(11lyS ago, to" give a colouring to OUI' defence. It was made in the c~un-

try where the pretended confessioll took place,and being found long 

.lgo, mutilated and torn, was put into the CominissioDer'shands: A 
letter of tbis tenor, being so found, ~ight of itself tUl'llish stro~g gron'nds 

or suspicion, and be at the same time powerful evidence of its genuine 

chura~ter. We ilid not ~ubpama Lord Selkirk, not doubting but be 
would lie bl'oughthere Oil the pa~(of the CrO\~n, This conf~~sion lVas 

a ~aner ~'f such public notoriety,'fromIti h~ving been printe~ and cir­

culated with 'the greatest av\dit~; that \;e ~;ver questioned b~t his 

Lordship would llimself have felt it his du ty to attend, though not serv­

ed witb ~ suhprena. In the absence then of the noble Eal'I1 fl'oJll whom, 

were he 'in 'the bo'JI:, we might draw the most important infor!Dat~on ,re~ 

Jative to this confession, Isubmit, thl!t we-may consistently with the rules 

of evidence, introduce this lett~~. From W/lOm is this letter, and tv 

whom is it addre,sed? it is a letter from M'Nab, in the service of Lord 

Selkirk to Ca'ptl!in Mathey, also in the service of Lord Selkirk, relative 

t~ De Reinhard. I should contend, us n positjve fact, from wbicli'th~ 
Jury can d,'aw what inferences they please, that we have a right to 

prove that at about the time this pl'eten<!ed COllfesslon was ma(le,' a let­

ter wus writt~n fl'Om lVPNub, in the service, of Lor'] Selkil'k, to Captai~ 
Mathey, who was in command. This lettel' will' she;v thoit measure~ 
!J)ere resorted to;to obtain a confession" It will then be for the Jur7, t~ 
say, whether it is that free, that voluntary, declaration which it has been 

represented to be, whether the circumstances we ha~e prove<! do not eon­

t,'adiet such Ii supposition, am1 theretore ue~troy its ~redibility; corrobo-
, .' I 

rated as they will be' by this letter. 

, llIr. Valliere de St. Rial, in a I·eryfc·w words, submitted to the Court, 
!hat, although it might not be tI~at stric\ evidence which VJould be required. 

against a prisql,zer" yet as it was a pq,rt qf a circumstance favourable to 

the' Prisorer, a~e COWl wo¥,(d not refuse it, as the cons/ant practic~ of 

criminal Cou~ts." 'w!1:s, to relar,the stri.ct ,rules of law in favour qf the" at:" 

eu.sed, if necess~ry to let in /~sti17l0ny 9P- his behalf. 

Chief Justice Scwill,-The COlll't ate under the absolute necessity Of 
refusing to receive this letter, inasmuch as it.is riot possibl~' to hring it 

,vvbin an)- rule for the admlfsion of'testimollY, The argnmcnt fol' I';'.' 
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rciving It, i. completely broken ,do\\"n by the circumstance, lI'lJich be­

l<mg to the I~tter. Here iii ~ Jettcr}rom a Mr. M'Nab, to a captain 

;Mathey, of whom we hal'e lIot h~~ru till the prerent 1D,0ment, and of 

the other only incidentally dlll'ing the trial. Is it t"en to be said, that 

merely because ])Ir. ])PN ab js not able to be ,lrouuced, (1 do not mellu 

~o ,elY that it i~ nny body's fault that be is not,) that therefore we could 

r'ective' any t'h,in" he said or IHote, merely because he could not be so 
, , I'i.? 

y~,~duc~d?, 'rna,t msurcdly it \\'ill not, ulLless it WIIS something that hall 

p~,~'ed upon o~(h. It has been ,uggc,(cd that adw;"ion might be giveN 

to tbis tc~(im'o·ny, under the rule that where the primury evidenee could 

Dot beproduc~d, the secDI/duTY misht be remrled to, This is the gene­

.ill rule, not only as to IHitien te~tim(lny given under oatb, but also 

in riw t,'o~c evi;len,ce. It is alw Ul'pcd" "tilat, as Lord Selkirk is not 

"llel'e 'th~refore it ought not tu be l,lrirnittc,l;" but the (Juestion imme--
, :.') , i·" ;.. ;' 

.iatc1y p,re,,'uts iUclf, '" why is he \Iut Iiel'e?" have any measUI'Cs been 

hkelL to 'secure his attendancc? it is not cnou"u to my tbnt you expect­

ed, [l'Om the na(m'e of the case, he would IUlI'e been Ilere. If he was 

llll important ",itnes, for the defence, it was certainly tlie duty of those 

f'lltrus'teu with i,t to have token tbe rcqui:itc step' to secure his qUen!!­

anee_ Harif\g faile~ Lo ~o '0, yeu CUll not certainly avail youn,e)f of 

yonI' own {aches, ,/-5 tl.wy are tel'me,j in law; nor is it competent to you 

to say that you relied Upllll !Jis ueing produced by the Croll'n. If De 

Reinhal'll I', anted the Earl uf Selkirk as a witness, hf- shpuld have sumo, 

monsed him; lie is Idtlli" the jurisdiction of til~ Court, and his attend­

allce mio;ill hal'c Leen SCCUl'?d, 01' ]'i~ abence accounted (or in a satisfac­

tory m~nner, ,0 as pnhaps to admit te,timony, to pl'Ove that rl'Omi~es 

1\'e~'e mad!, py hiIp, uccording to \I hHt you allege. ,A tl,il'<l rel'lsou 

therefore for ~efll,ing youl' apvlication, i" that as tIle witnesses were 

.'alled over OIJ the -c"?<J in,tunt, tbe Prisoner as we)l as his coun­

sel, k,~~w, or mi;;Lt hm'e known, that the Earl of Selkirk alld Captain 

l\(athey~ were not called by tJ,e Crown, and consequently they might 

Ihin ha,'c subp~naed them, if they hilll not before. This letter 

.-an nvt lie matle el'idellce. l¥hat can occurrences in l'Iay, 1Dil, have 

to aD with Idlat took plnce in ]';01 ember, 1816 P If it i. alleged that the 

Jetter hfl' no dnte, fDr \I hat reu~on are we to l'Uppol'sthat it was written 

I;iforc, any more than "f:er, the confession. Indeed the \'Cry f"ce of the 

kiter \I al'Tants a cOiltrary'conclllsion, ,,'hat can that part of it refer to 

ttllich 'peaks of the prom;," of De Reinhard, if it does not refcl' to the 

confe"ion? Does not this "cry unccl't'linty ',h~1V the necessity of bet­

Jel cyidence lwing ,produc,ed. If \\-e are te, lJTcsume, we may pre.'Wlie 

'lTlfayoul'ably a' well as fa\'ourably, for if we el'll(le the rule all i, hazar<L 

i!.nd uncrrtainty. For these rC~50Jl~'1 am compelled to, 'Hy it CftD not 
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lie relleived Its 'evidence, hqwever unpleasant it is to do so. It'18J not 

only urlpleasant but very' much '110,' to decide against; 'CI' exclutlc,aiJ,y 

thing which the Pl'i~oner'8 legal atlviset's consider essential totJ11e d:e~ 

~n()e, but in the pet'forinance 'of olil' ih~ty, we: cnn-nDtilelp' it, and'.Calletl. 

to decide, I am bound to say it is totally,inadwissible. ' "" 

llIr. Justice Btl1vetl.-I 'am, p'f'rfectly 'df the same opinion, but- f()<r 

many reamns, I hope it will be admitted to be l'cad arter thei:as~ 1SJ(:l,O~­

ed, EO that no~hing wbich the Pris\)U~r or his \<oun~el m1!Y hav~ thonguL 

i~lilOl'tant, may have been kept fro~ the Jury, thougl; to n;e':''It does not 

appeal' that it can make eithel'for or against, either the one pa'~'ty (,1' fr;e 
other. We are called upon to legal~yd,ecirle ~t~!'; qll~Siio:,:\:a!1~ 1"!5uu 
not but refuse to receive the leHer, for this obvious reason, that tqe let­

ters of third persons, nel'er having come to the posses~ion' o'f ~le Prib(J)Ia­

el' e,!nnot he evidence, A prisoner i~,e,' ;)citfiing oy this, for if lette~ 
of thiI'lI persons were to be allmh;~d a:!? eVidchcejer, :;hey'~u'st 'also be 
admitted against, him. TI;at=illi hemJit couIiIacci:u'e Tromth~ admi;~ 
~ion 'of letters ~f third p'erso'ns, : ",il I be' e'villenti~:a rllcitnent;'!s,lPPO"e 
sucli a letter to state correctly ili~circumstiLn(!~s, 'an1lto i)rove{hidl~no:. 
cence of the accused, then it would l;c in the powel' of any f6iirth pei'son, 

to accuse by letter, antI altl;oilgh the'pfiisoner had nothir;gtodo \\'itl1 it 
I1t a11, it might be mntle evitience agalrisi hi~, a'l\lh'h;l~ )'e~'e)'sc 'th~ 
whole prQceuing favourahle testimony. " TIlE! ,;et'y 'slfIne'question 'occu't­

red in the case of Colin RolJertson recently trkt! at :iYIontrcal. It l"a~, 
wished, on the'defence, to pl'o<lucc a leitel' from CulTrbel-t Grant, shew­

ing [!'Om that letter, that they h"ureason to apprchenll that the Bois­

bruit;, would Gome down upon them; but its adpji;;ion was .refu~eQ 'OR 

this very gl'Ound, that letters of tliil'd pel'sons could neith(lj' be,c;'1Jeuee 

for, nor against, a prisoner. It is stated that its ha~ing been to,l'm is a 

suspicious circumstance, because it manifested a wish to cOllcc::d its con­

tents. This is mere' presumption. lIlay it Dot be pl'esurned,on the 

other hand, that there could not be that grcat anxiety 'about ·it, 'ur a 
more eli'ectualwayof destroying it weuld have been resorted t'<'l; it 

might have been burned. It was torn and scattel'cd to {fie ,,-,n<lli, 

where it might'be. Imd -indeed has been 'collected. n it was wh.t it 

was wished ~hc)uld:not be known>b.y another, why nGt destroy it elfeu­

tually r why not b'urn' it? The letter,is withoiIt a date, It ,istrtre, Ibu<t 

there is a part of iis c(lIlton'ts wLich indicates', about what time ,it J'tmSt 

!lave:beim wl'ilten; the breakingtJPof the ice of the rivernIludeel to il11ihe 

letter, plainly ,hews it could nut havc been written in N()vemoor, l;)Wt 

must have been ,penned a~out the time the imlul'semcllt specifies.' ift d 

hOlVever perfectly nnnecessary to cumrneut far',thcl' upon the subject, al~ 

ter the very c1eal' cxpo,itioll of my.Icfll'ued Ul'otu.el'. 



(l\Ir. Justice Bowen repeated, for the reason he before assigneJ, bill 
JVish that it might be read as well as the other letter although it was im­

possible to admit it as legal evidence.] 

Attorney.General.-I ha\-e no objection to their beidg read. I co> 

rent to both letters being read. 
Chief Justice Sewell.-Let it be entered. thus: read by constnt of his 

Majesty's Crown officers. 

ih~ letter from Jlfr. John lrI'Nab to Captain FredericT, ]tr(!t~.$y, udJ 

then read.' ' 

CAPT,AI'NFREDERICK :l\lATHEY. 

Dear Sir, 

i WILLIA.N" is thi5 moment expediting Charritb, af,"! 

Morache., Reinhard refuses to come to Mr. Murphy's chamber!. He 

says, ul)j~ber his Lordship ,or you said any thing to him on that arrange­

men~; that he is comfqr~able where he is, and that his determination i~ 

to perform the promises made to Earl Selkirk and to you. Ee so good 

as to give Mr. Bourk€(, a hint that when ho requests, any thing his lists 

may be correct, and signed by himself or Mr. Becber, as they will be 

kept for his Lordship's inspection. The ice is again driven to our 5hore 

in a very ,I;Iarrow line, the ba~ will soon be clear. 

I nm, Yo.urs, very sincerely, 

(Signed) JOH::-< :WNAE. 

[IlK,DORSED.] 

Latter from JUr. John l\l'Nab to Captain Frederick Mathey, regard. 
jng Reinhard. 

May, 1811. 

Chief Justicc SClc,ell.-D9 yo.ll wish to have the letter of the Earl o. 
Selkirk read? 

11fT. Stuart.~l do. no.t know, as I cannQt speak of a document that I 
have nQt seen. 

Mr. Justice Bowen.-I thought you called for it yesterday, and that 

the argument was because the Crown Qbjected to its production. 

Mr. Pluart.-I vel'y distinctly stated that my object was to prove 

that at a certain time Lord Selkirk remained in possession Qf Fort Wil. 

Iiam, and, in endeavouring to attain that ohject, I enquired of Mr. 

" The mutilated state in which l\l'N"ab's letter nO\v is, from its hav­
ing been torn and ~asted together again, rende~s it uncertain whethor 
the name is William or Wil\an. 
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,Coi.uila!l if he, in conjunction with his brother ,coll'ullissioner, had re­
ceived a letter from the Earl of Selkirk. If I saw the letter, and it 

Jlroved that circumstance, I should certainly wish it to be read, but I 

cannot state, till I see the letter, ~,hether I am desirolls to have it read 
or not. 

Chit{ Justice Sewell.-Upon that subj~ct you must exercise your own 
discretion, and Mr. Coltman his own pleasure. We know nothing of 

Mr. CoItman's letters; if he likes to let you see them, we Gan have no 
objection, and, ifthe Crown officers consent to their being read, we shaH 
present no obstacle, but we have no controul over ~Ir. Coltman's let­
ters, nor do we wish to have any. 

hIr. Stwlrt.-I will put the ,direct question, when did Lord Selkirk 
leave Fort William? 

Mr. Coltman.-I was not there when he went away. 

Cross-examination conducted by the Attorney-General. 

Attorney-General.-Have you got Captain D'Orsonnens's deposition 
among your papers? 

Mr. Coltman.-I have such a variety of papeys that I can not say at 
the moment, bllt I know that I took his deposition. There are amongst 
my papers, I believe, declarations of person8 upon oath to certain 
'facts, which contradiet the declarations of Captain D'Orsonnem, made 
also upon oatb. I have no right to judge which of them deposed the 
truth, but I hav!'!, without doubt, no personal reaSOD to doubt Captain 

D'Orsonnens's credibilty. 
Allorney-General.-Do you consider Captain D'Orsonnens entitled 

to credit upon his oath? 
Nr. Coltman.-Undoubtedly, I believe that Captain D'Orsonnens is 

worthy of m'edit upon his oath in a Court of Justice. Captain D'Ol'son­
nens acted in the Indian territory with a strong spirit of party, and with 
!ome prejudice; but, according to my judgement, always with honour 

and propriety as it appeared to him. 
[Mr. Coltman's evidence being read over to him, he explained that 

hcl did not intend to say that De Re·inhard was at liberty, but he was 
usually with, and under the surveillance of lffitrphy, who seemed to treat 

him with confidence, as if he (Murphy) was not afraid that he would 

escape-l j 

Attorney-General.-Was not Murphy a cOllstabh;? 

.Mr. Coltman.-I believe, we swore him in as a constable before 

~ellding him to Montreal with De Reinhard. 
Allarney-General.-Is it necessary to guard a priso'ner in bringins 

u 
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him through the Indian territory in the same manner as in a civilized 

place? 
Me. Coltmal1.-There is no occasion for the same precaution! in the 

Indian country, because'there is no danger of a prisoner's absconding, 

for, if he were to escape, he must, of necessity, perish from hunger in 

the woods; but, when arrived at Drummond's Island, it is necessary to 

make use of more precaution. 

lie-examined by Mr. Stuart. 

Mr. Stuart.-What distance' is it from Drummond's Island to the 

American shore? I mean the United States of America. 

lIfr. Coltman.-It is about fifteen leagues, as I imagine, from Drum­

mond's island to Michilimackinac. I do not knolV the distance from 

Drummond's Island to the neare~t American shore, but it is not great; 

and, I considered at the time, that he might have escaped if he had 

liked. 

lIfr. Stuarl.-I have one question more. ~as Mr. Coltman been for 

a long time on terms of personal intimacy with Captain D'Orsonnens? 

I will first ask you, Sir, how long you have been acquainted with Cap­
tain D'Orsonnens? 

Mr. Coltl1lan.-1 have known Captain D'Otsonnens since the month 

of July last, and, since that time, have seen him only occasionally. I 

do not recollect having been in his company more than half a dozen or a 

dozen of times, except on business. 

THE HONBL:t. OLIVIER PERRAULT, Swotn. 

And examined by .Ur. Stuari. 

1I1r. Justice Perrault.-I am one of the judges of the Court of King's 

Bench for the district of Quebec, and I sat during the whole of the last 

criminal term of that Court. I remember the commencement of a trial 

in that term, upon a bill of indictment for the murder of On'en Keve­

ny, against the present Prisoner, and Archibald M'Lellan; and I ha\'e 

II knowledge that Hubert Faille, Jean Baptiste La Pointe, and Captain 

Pl'Otai~ D'Orsonnens, were examined as witnesses upon oath on the part 

of tbe Crown. I took notes of their testimony. I have them here be­

fore me. They contain, I believe, all the facts which appeared to me 

to be of importance at the time oC the examination; and, I am certain, 

that I wrote do~n nothing in my notes than what tbose three personi 

IItated respectively in giving their evide~ce. Hubert Faille deposed (hat 
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~e and La Pointe being upon an island in the River Winnipic, in th_ 

summer of1S1S, the fifth day after the departure of Joseph, who is called 

fils de la Perdrix BI~nehe, they saw a canoe which 'Game from the 

Lake of the WO~dA, in which w~re l\i'Lellan, -De Reinhard, Cadotte, 

seven Half-breeds, one Canadian, and Jo~eph Fils de la Perdrix Blanche, 

who had a Scotch plaid clock oyer hi~, and he deposed t~ati)'[r. CadJtte 
. ~. . 

sai,1 to him III the presence of M'Lellan, .. what have you done with 

" the prisoner K~veny ?,; and he also swore ,;" that M'Lellan eaused 

" the same question to be repeated, and' that he answered, • perhaps he 

" 'will be found aga!n. We have left him on 8, small island.'" He 

swore also, .. that when Cadotte spoke to him M'Lellan was very ncar 

"him, and afte, that he (Cadotte) had abused us (La Pointe and me) 

" for rascals, and that he had said a good many things to us, which I do 

'! I]ot now re~e!l1ber.tl He likewise de,posed t~at l\1'~e\lan di,l not say 

any thing to him relative to the Indian Joseph. 

Mr. Sl~art.-Is it within your knowledge that Jeal1 Baptiste La 

fointl'l 4eposed .. that at the time Mr. M'Lelian struck hi,ill they di~ 

" not mention Keveny?" 

Mr.,Ju.stice Perrault.-Jean Baptis~e La Pointe, bei.ng sworn, de­

{Iosed " that ~e had received at the same time and place blows with a, 

" canoe pole, from 1\11'. M'Lellan. :rhat he (Mr. l''PLellan) sprang 

" on shore from the .canoe, and struck him with a perch, and that a~ 

'.' that time, he did no~ mentio~ Keveny, but that Mr. M'Lellan told 

" ~im that ~e heat.hilT\ for having beat the Indian." I have not got on 
my uotes that he sai,l that he h.il:d not relate\1 to M'LeIIan the hehaviour 

~f the Indian toward~ Keveny, till after he bad embarked in Mr. M'Lel· , , .. ," . ' , ,... 
lan's canoe. He deposed ~hat, being in Mr. l'1'Lellan's cunoe, tbe 

Half-breeds s[lid .. that tl;ey would kill Mr. Keveny," that Mainville , . 
Baid, " he would ha'~e his hat ;" Le VasseUl:, .. ~ha~ h,e ,xould have his 

~'boo~s." That they made a jest of this in the canoe, and that at the 

time the gentlemen said nothing, but laughed, and made a joke of it. 

Upon his cross-examination he deposed, "when we heat:d tho two guns 

" fired we were encamped, and, the weather being calm, one could 

"'. hear at a great distance.'? He Likewise deposed. on his crobs-examina­

tion, " whilst ~Iainville re.lated ,the manner in whi"h J,(eveny had been 

'\ killed De Rei.nh.ard WIJ.S h.u~y, hut that he made use oftwo expressions, 

" , that he took l,liOl for a monster," and that' it was an act of charity 

'I ' he had done to him.'." I have not got on my notes that he spoke 

French like a Meuron. I hft,ve taken it that De Reinhard spoke French 

pretty well. I have not taken, t.hat on the arrival of the small canoe 

iO} the evening after the death of Keveny, Faille said that "he did nq~ 

I,' know whether M'Lellan weDt to look." 
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WILLI A.M SAX, Sworn, 

Examined by ]Jfr. Valliere de St. Real. 

Mr. lS'ax.-1 am' a sworn surveyor. I am well acquainted with tbe. 

line of division between the two provinces of Upper and Lower Canada, 

according to the proclamatioll of 1791. The place called the Dalles oq 

the River Winnipic is much to the eaitward of a line drawn due north 

from Lake Temiscaming to the territory of the Hudson's Bay Company. 

The Chief Justice enql/iring u'hat it was proposed to effect by this 

evidence-

JUl'. Valliere de St. Real said,-To support by authorities ueduceJ 

from history and law, that aU to the south and west of that division line, 

Mr. Sax has been speaking of, which is known by the name of Canada~ 

is Upper Canada, and then to contend that the offence, if committed at 

all, must have been committed in Upper Canada. 

Chief Jus/ice lS'ewell.-1 clearly understand your object; and, as it is 

a point of law you intend to argue, we do not require Mr. Sax's a"is­

tance. As to any matter of fact, I am glad of evidence to assist me, but 

my conscience must be, on points of law, my ~ole guide. We will hear 

you with pleasure,. as long as you like, in suppurt of your position; but 

we do not want, as at present auvised, any informatiou as to the limits 

of ancient Canada. The fact of where the Dalles are situated, with re­

spect to any line, you are at full liberty to obtain from :Mr. Sax, thO~bh 
I think their locality is pretty fully established. 

JASPER BREWER, E:;Q.UlRE, SH'O,.", 

Examined by JJlr. Vanjelsoll. 

1lfr. Brewer.-I know the Prisoner at tbe bar, and I have known 

4im for seven years. I was a lieutenant iu tbe Regiment of the Meu­

rons, and De Reinhard was in it four years. He was a sergeant, and 

latterly a colour-serge aut. Be was colour-s~rgeant for considerable part 

of tbe time. He bore an excellent character in the regiment, extremely 

civil and quiet. He could express himself in French, but not well, very 

indilferently. I had occasion to see several of hiR reporh, they were 

reports of not much consequence, such as guard reports, nevertheleEs they 
~ontained sllveral mistakes in the language. 
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Jlfr. Vanfelson.-Look at this paper-(lhe c~nfession.) 
Chiif J!lslice Sewell.-Why? What is 1\fl'. Brewer to prove about 

~his declaration? 

l.{r. Vanfelson.-I propose t6 ask the witness whether, with the 

Jmowledge he has of the Prisoner, and of his acquaintance with the 

French langaage, he considers it possible for him to have written thi$ 
declaration. 

Altorn:ey-General.-I submit thnt my learned friends cannot be per" 
pIitted to put such a question. 

:AIr. Stuart,-The question is, whether the evidence proposed to be 

gone into by my learned friend, Mr, Yanfelson, is, or is not, admissible. 

I think it is, and should Uke to know on what gronnds it is to be re~isted~ 
Wllat effect it may pr.oduce, is not the question. Another gentleman 

may think differently to what I do as to that point. I s,ubmit that, up­

on such proof as we haye adduced, of the circumstances under which this 

pretended confession was made, and when we recollect that it is as much 

lIn accusation of those whom his Lordship considered his enemies, as a 

declaration of guilt on the part of the P,isoaer, I think it comes be­

fore us in sq questionable a shape, that we ought to be permitted to shew 

(lny thing cakulated to weaken its claim to creJit. But confining my­

$elf to the na~ed' question of law, I contend the e'vidence is perfectly ad­

missible. It is to shew that the Pdsoner was incapable, (from his igno­

rance of the language if) which the paper is written,) of dralving up this 

preten(led confession, I repeat that the question is not, what weight 

tms may have with tne Jury, but whether we have, or have not, the 

riglit to pnt this strong circumstance in ,evidence he fore them. I shall 

wait with some anxiety to hear what objections the Crown lawyers can 

make, and as I shall have the honour ,of replying to them, I abstain 

from urging any thing in addition to what I ha\'e submitted. 

Alforney-G,eneral.-The legal objecti@ I make to the introduction 

of this festimony, is, that it is not the best evi<1ence which the nature of 

the case affords:" It is in proof upon your HonoUl"s notes, that the con­

fession is in the Prisoner's own hand wriling. Admit, for a moment, 

that it was drawn up by another, ~till he must have known the contents, 

lind if he copied an<1 signed them, ,he made them his Ol\'n. That the 

confession he delivered to Lord Selkirk is in his own hand writing, and 

that, acknowJeding the contents were true, he signed it, and delivered 

it to Lord Selkirk, we have incontestibly proved by a witness, in whose 

presence the occurrence took place. It is a misapprehension on the part 

of my learned friends who conduct the defence, when tI~ey Ruppose that 

any thing done by Lord Selkirk or Captain Mathey, relative to its be­

ing dl'awn up, can invalidate the confession. If the~e is any thing, Cap-



tain l'Iathey o~ Lord Selkirk should be prouuced, If it is ~o be ~agge\',~ 

~l\ at all, it must be by legal testimony, aimed ,lireetly at the facts we 

have proved, and not by asking the opinion of this, or any other gentle~ 

man, as to the w'pposed capability of t~e Prisoner to do that which it is 

~n evioence he did. ' 
Solicilor-Gelleral,-The question proposed by m,y \earned frienll, ~ 

~ontend, is perfectly il'l'ele\'ant. I agree with my other learned fl'iend, 

lIIr. Stuart, that, in deciding upon it admissibility, w~at weight it may 

ha\'e upon'the Jury, 'ought not to form any part of t\le consideration, 

1mt that its clailT\ to oe made e\'id~nce ~ho,uld be estimated only by legal 

rules. But \V~at would be the weight if e';cry thing they offer ~o prov~ 

were admitted? What would it proye, but that somc time ago the Pri­

soner could not write so ,,'cll as he docs at present, 01' did when he drc\'{ 

up this confe~5iol1? What eITect is the circums~an~e, that in his military 

returns 'there "ere some few mistakes, to have on this trial? It is, how­

ever, of no consequence to go into an cxaminatio~, of these ~ircumstan~ 

~es, as it is a matter of complete indiffel:ence wh,o guided, tlie pen in the 

making, or preparing the confession, w?ich w~ h8\'c gi\'CI~ i~ \lvideDce~ 
inasmuch as ,ve have ~atisfactori,ly proved that he knelY the contentF, 

anu before he sig:ned it, acknowledged to, one of hi~ l;ellow scn'ants that 

they were truc. I, th'erefore, 0ppoEe the 'lu,estio~ ;, first, OI;l. tl;l,~ ground' 

taken by the Attorney-General, that it is nol the best evidence; nnd 

secondly, bccall~e it is totally il'l'elevant, and therefore inallmiB>ible. 

Jllr. Stllarl,-~Jy learned ~riends blate indi~tinctly, or rather misap­

ply, the point that we do not produce the best evidence. For the pur­

rO,se we have in view, I contend, that in produ~ing Mr. Bfe1nr, \\'e do, 

exhibit the best testimony. In producing ~Ir, Brel,ver, we examine a, 

~erson, from whose ,ituadon in the same regimer.t \\lith t,he Prisoner: 

we are able to obtain a satisfactol'y account of the poi,nt we are defirou!l, 

of establishing, namely, that this paper was not drawn up loy the Pri: 

~oner at the bar. \Ve are not askin~ whether Captain lHathey drew lIrl. 

the ueylaration, thoug~, if I looked to my instructions, I might be, 

tempte(l t~ m,pcct that he was the author of it, but, for our pre,en; 

purpose, it is un,necessary, His copying, Figning it, and afterwards de­

Iil'erin,; it to Lonl Selkirk, my learned friends contend, made it De 

Reinhard's own, though it might not be originally'written by hi~.":'" 
The manner in wbich the witnesse~, o~ some of tl1em, were compelled 

to ~ee him sign this paper, gi\-es us a pretty good idea of the voluntari· 

ness of the whole transaction. Had t_h!s confessio!l been in the Swedish 

or Turki,h language, and ~igned hy the Prisoner, and delivered to 1.01'<1 

~elkirk, do the learned gentlemen inte~d to argue, that, unlessl brought' 

the per!On who actually penned it, that I could not be per~itted by 
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biber witnesses, who, (like l\1:r. Brewer,) had abundant opportunities 

iir knowing his iD~apa~ity, to prove that a Swedish or Turkish confes­

sion could Dot be his own production, inasmuch as he was totally igno­

rant of the language? and what is the difference between such a case 

and that we are discussing? We \nean to ,prove that the individual at 

the bar is nllt able to pl'oduce such a paper, that he is riot sufficiently ac­

quainted with the language ill which the paper is written, to have been 

.capable of drawing it up, and to prove tbis, whom do we produce? 

why, an officer, wider whom he served for four years, and who hal 

known him seven, and this officer tells us that such was his limited ac. 

quaintance with the language in which this elaborate paper is written, 

that he could not even make out his report, as sergeant of the day, with­

out its being full of errors. It is a fact, I consider tile Jury have a right 

to be acquainted with, and I submit it with great confidence that the 

Court will maintain the same opinion. 

ChiP}" Justice Sewell.-The question we are ,called' UPOD to decide 

ought not to pe complained of by the Court. The counsel for the Pri­

soner, from a sense of duty offer it, and the Court have no disposition 

to slight, or disapprove, theii· exei·tions. Counsel on the one side, and 

011 the other, have necessarily a certain bias. 'Ve are to hold the ba­

lance, and to decide, whether their several propositions shall, or shall 

ilOt, be admitted, and in aniving at this decision, we can have but onc 

principle of actio~, however unpleasant the enfurcing it may be, and 

frequently is. The principle is: If the proposition is not according to 

jaw, we can not admit it, but if is, we must. NolV, what is the question 

propo~ed to be put to the'witness? "Is it your opinion that the Pd­

" soner ever composed tMs paper p'; if he answers, not, is it not mere 

matter of opinion? 'and are ,,,e not bound to reject opinion? Is it 

tIe aI', that if the contrary were to be allowed, we shouiJ be left in the 

wide field of presumptio~, all would be hazard as to whether it was wrote 

by somebody else: whether forced upon him, or voluntarily adopted by 

him, or, whether it was first written by De Reinhard, antI the language 

being corrected by another, then copied by him; would not every thing 

be conjecture and uncertainty? Is it not an undoubted fact upon e\·i­

dence, that it was his own production? Who is to say, that, if it was 

not the work of his own head and hands, tl1at he did not, in the most 

solemn manner, adopt it and make it his own? Prima facie, it was 

Ilis own, and, till it is proved by positivc evidence, that it was illegally 

put upon him, whether it was first \'vl'itten by some one else and then 

.oried by him, 01' not, still it must remain his own act. An act Bvi­

c:lently done in furtherance of the declaration made to the witnesses who 

- have depo~c~ to t!mt'point, amI ~igned by hilmelf, and then delivered 11,'-
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himsel( to the magrstrate as the declaration oC what he knew of, "J) 
what share he had taken in, the melancboly transaction. All tlli, i~ 
done in the presence of a number of witnesses, o~e ~f whom, at lea.!, 

aould not be supposed to be unfriendly, and to him he particularly nc­

knowledged tbe truth of the paper. After signing it, he deliberntely 

put his ultimatum to the business, by delivering it to the magi' strate al 

his own confession, stating tbat he had no desire to add to, take away, or 

alter any part of it. What difference, under these circumstances, is it 

to make if even it bad originally been written by another? he copied 

it, he must, therefore, have neeesflarily known tbe contents, and if any. 

misstatement existed, he could have corrected it. It is manifest tbat 

he was not taken by any surprise, but mu,t have been well aware of 

what he did. With his motives for so doing, we can have nothing to do, 

but you may, if you can, prove an undue it!fluence to have been used 

towards him, but to ~o farther than this, or to admit such a question as 

you now propose, would be to open the door of a labyrinth, to which 

there \1\ ould be no cine by which to escape. If you want to remov,", 

this confession, attack it broadly, openly, and legally. You should be­

gin by proving, if YOll can, that it was forced upon him in tOlD, or that 

it resulted from an undue influence exercised ove,· his mind, but the one 

or the other must be substantiated by positive evidence. Eefore that 

is done, you ought not to expect us to tell the jury that they are bound 

to put this confcs~ion altogether out of their consideration, for we can 

not do it. Relative to Mr. Dease, I consider yoUI' argument to make 

against him. You say he was a witness by compulsion; a witness tl} 

l"hat? to De Reinhard being farced to sign this paper against his will., 

Where is ~lr. Dease? Whose duty was it to bring him here? eel'­

taiflly the Prisoner's. But wtiat if Mr. Dease was an unwilling, or 

compulsory, witness; what if Lord Selkirk said, this man is about 

making a confession, and you, as one belonging to the same employ. 

shall see him make it; you shall be preient, and see all that pas~es. 
shall yourself read his confession, sk,,z( witness that every thing is done 

fairly on the one si,le, and voluntarily on the other side? If it is said 

d.l8t Mr. Dease was not sent for till the whole macbinery had been pre-­

pared, still the fact returns that with the Priwner is the knowledge of 

,,-ho was present. The same thing occurs relative to the writing. If 
he did not write it himself, must it not evidently he within his know­

ledge who did write it? and, yet, without proving that any effort has 

been made to bring these persons here, you ask to go into evidence to 

pro\-e that the Prisoner did not write it. I am sorry, at all times, to 

uclude any thing in the shape of testimony brought forward by a Pri­

IOOnrr, or his legal advisefi, but, when compelled by duty to do so, L 
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Mtir ~t help it. t:rm Jl)ci4ed/.y Q( QpiniOD: this l\Jlestion can not be 

admittJlil .• 
[Mr. Justice BQ,wenslJ!lQ,~arily stated I,tiscoucurrence ""ith the Chief 

4stice.} 

Examination resumed by Mt. VanfelsOi!. 

Mr. BfetW . ..,...I never sa,lv any wri~hlg of th.e Prisoner;s so correct 

as this declaration; his writing was always full of errors. I know 
Captain Ors'onnens" and 1 have often seen him write. The signature to 

this paper, now p,roduced to me, is the proper hand-writing of Captain 
D'Ol'sonnens, and the qu~lifications which follo~ the name, resemble it, 
and I have nn doubt that the words .. captain commanding the fort of 

"Lake la Pluie," are in the proper hand-writing of him, Captain 

D'Orsonnens. 

The Capitulation btlwecn Coplain D'Orsonnens and Mr. Dease wa~ 

put in and 1'ead as follows ; 

(TRANsr.ATION.) 
The alartning circumstanoes under which the post.of ~ake La Pluie 

Is, at this moment, placed, have compelled Capt. P. D'Orsonnens to 
seize the arms and ammunition of the fort occupie.d by the North-West 
Company, for 0e safety of His Majestyis subjects who are on the spot; 
this mea,ure, indi~pensable for the tranquility of the public, depriving 
1\11'. J. Dease, chief of the post', of the means of trauing with the In­
dians, w1lo might make a bad use' of the arms and ammunition they 

might receive. 
Besides, Capt. P. D'Orsonnens having It in his power; to assure 

upon his woru of honour, that he is every moment in exp.ectation of a 

regular order, conformable to law, for the quitting of the fort occupied 
by the North-1Vest Company, (japt. P. D'Orsonnens, and Mr. J. Dease 
chief clerk of the North-W~st Company at Lake La P(uie, have ueeDJ­
ed it el!:pelllent for the security of every individual invol\-ed in the pre­
sent circum~tances, to ta~e an im'entory of all the effects belonging to 
the North-West Company in the place, including the Caches of prom­

sio11:si< which may be announced until the. end of the year, in order that 

*..Gaches are hiding places, either dug in the ground, or placed upon 
scaffolds in the interior of the woods, where provisions and other arti­
~les, are secreted during the winter, or during the absence of the pro­
prietors, to be fetched away in the spring or on their return. The Ca-· 
ches alluded to here were depots of wild rice collellted by the Indiana 
dnd others for the nile of the North-'l\-est Company. 

w 
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the whole may be faithfully delivered up to the elerks of the Hudson'''' 

Bay Company, who are present on the spot: that Company will ren­

der an exact account, according to law, of all the maiters which will 

have been delivered to their clerks by those of the North-West Compa­

ny, Capt. P. D'Orsonnens rendering himself responsible for the execu­

tion of this arrangement. 

(Signed) 

(Signed) 

WITNESSES. 

P. D'ORSONNENS, 

Commanding the post of Lake La Pluie-. 

JOHN W. DEASE, 

Chief Clerk for the North-West Company. 

JACQUES CHASTELLAIN, 

Clerk for the Hudson's Bay Company. 

LOUIS NOLIN, 

Clerk for the Hudson's Bay Company_ 

Cross-examination conducted by the .Atrorney-General • 

.lIr. Brewer.-I left the regiment before De Reinhard, in 1314, tl) 

wards the end of the summer. When I spoke of his knowledge of the 

French language, I Fpoke of his knowledge at the time, a5 I have not 
Iieen him since. 

l\lR. WILLIAM S. SIMPSON, Sworn, 

.And examined by 1I'Ir. Valliere de St. Rial. 

111r. Simpson.-I was present during the trial of Charles De Rein­

hard, and Archibald M'Lellan, in the Court of King"s Bench in the 

term of March last. I was present during the whole trial, being elll.­

ployed by the Earl of Selkirk, to take the proceedings stenographically, 

which I did. I remember that Captain Protais D'Orsonnens was exa­

mined, as a witness on the part of the Crown, in that case. 

Solicitor-General.-I do not know what my learned friends intend ts 

prove by thiS gentleman, nor, indeed, do I conceive they ought to be 

permitted to examine him, as, certainly, his notes of the trial are not 

the best evidence. If my learned friends wish to pr.ove contradictions 

in the evidence given on tbe two trials, there are your Honours' notes
r 

or the notes of lUI'. Justice Perrault, taken under oath, which they cant 
refer to. 

1J1r. Justice Bowen.-It is certainly a most extraordinary, not t .. · 
~ay indecorous, proceeding to examine a $ort-hand writer, wW; is DOt, 
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~pon 9Mh, to disprove the notes of two judges who take notes under 

their os.th of office. 

]tIro Valliere de,SI. Rial.-We were merely going 10 -ask Mr. Simp­

son, whether or not Captain D'Orsonllens did, according to his notes, in 

describing the.sort of French De Reinhard spoke,-say, o. Il parle Fran­

o. f0isllSstiz bien, il parle comme un Meuron." His Honour Mr. Justice 

Perrault, probably thinking it of no consequence, did not take it, though 

Captain D'Orsonnens cert~inly did make use of that particular expres­

~ion, in describing De Reinhard's mode of speaking French. It is, how­

ever, of no consequence. I believe the case on the part of the Prisoner, 

is now closed. 

Mr. Stuart.--For form's sake, we wish to put in and have read, the 

Prince Regent's proclamation. 

Attorney-General.--We have no ,objection. 

A copy tl'as then offered, but being pri:nted at Yor1c, was objected to, as 

not b~ing an ojJicial prod'UCtio~t. A copy printed at Quebec by his Majes­

ty's lalp-printer was therefore sent for. 

Attorney-General.-We shall now proceed to call witn~sses, to rebut 

the allegations relative to the excess of force or violence, which has 

been so frequently adverted to in the defence. 

Mr. SluaTt.--I certainly object to any farther evidence being gone 

into. The Crown closed its case, .and we entered upon our defence.­

Nothing remains now but the argument, which we are ready to enter 

·upon. 

Atlorney-General.-I beg my learned friend's pardon, but tbe matter 

is not. quite so near settled. The necessity for our exhibiting additional 

testimony, arises from the nature of the defen'ce th~y have set up. lHy 

learned friends have made their principal reliance, the state of the coun­

try, where we allege the murder to have been committed. They have 

represented, that a ~tate of warfare, (called by them a private war,) 

existed, and that the confessions we have proved, all resulted frol:" ter­

ror, ,inspired ,by the presence of a military force. Now, we desire to 

rebut this testimony, by proving that it was not a military force, but 

merely a number of persons ~upporting a comtabh., and enabling him to 

execute a legal warr.ant, which had been resisted. This is completely 

new matter. It was not aHuded to on the part of the prosecution, so as 

to render it necessary for the Prisoner to disprove our ~tatement. My 

learned friends have brought it forward, as their mode, of accounting fOl' 

a series of viva voce declarations of guilt on the part of the Prisoner, ter­

minating in a written confession made at Fort William. I should £er­

tainly think I might call th~ officer, who had to serye this warrant, to 
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shew that he was resisted in the execution of the process of a civil III;;'­

gistrate, and that the force that was used, was no more, than what wn! 

indispensibly necessary, to enfor,:e ob\ldie~ to the authorlty oCa civ il 

~agistrate. 

Se/wito7'-Genera.I.-I should contend, mny it ple1lse the Court, that 

we have a right to impeach the defendant's witnesses, as well as the tie, 

fendant those of the Crown, if not, we do not stand upon equal ground. 

If unfounded statements are made by witnesses on 'tl:c defence, are we 

to be debarred from rebutting them, because we have said our case was 

closed? I should think not, If our witnesses are impeached, shall we 

not be permitted to rebut such impeachment" I do not mean to say, 

that the course we propoEe to pursue, is a usual proceeding, becall.lc it 

is not often that it is rendered ne~essary, but it is certainly a very justi­

fiable one. I do not knll.W that I can refer to any aetnal autl10rity up­

on the subject, but the reasonableness of the proposition renders it un­

necessary that I should. A defence usually consi.ts of II negation of 

tbat which has been proved on the part of the prosecution, but tile de­

fence set up in the present case, is not a simple denial oftbe facts brought 

forward by us, lind this denial supported by evidence, but t\ley ba\'e 

gone into a long investigation of a number of witnesses to; shew, that a 

~tate of warfare existed in the Indian territol'Y, an>J that as it was under 
the in~uence of terror that the several confessions were made, therefore 

they ought to be set aside. 'We wish to shew, that no such thing exist­

ed, and that all the violence, (ii any was resorted to,) was rendl'red nc­

cessary by the re~istance of legal measures. We could not anticipate 

the defence, but as in it, they endeavoured to impeaoh our witnesses, we 

bave a right to examine witnesses and produce evidence to rebut it.­

Where authorities are silent 011' criminal subjects, the rule is to have re­

ference to cidl cases, and here 'we shall certainly find precedents to jus­

tify the course we are desirous of following. When the defence consi,ts 

.of an impeachment of a plaintiff's witnesses, the Courts at Westminillter 

Hall daily present instances of the rebutting sllch ev idence by the e:xa~ 

mination of additional witnesses, and if it is allowed ill civil cases, why 

shouhl it not be in cdminal? 'Ve wish to prove that a warrant wa~ issu­

ed to arrest certain persons, and that in COl'lscwence of its being resisted, 

it was neces;ary to employ a number of persons to support the consta~ . 

ble, and thus rebut the charge of a military force having been employeJ\ 

flIr. Justice Bowen.-In M'NaUy, 380, this point is comidered. 

He says, "if prisoner's counsel examine witnesses to general cha~acter, 

" or to particular facts, then the witnebs for the Crown, thus impeached, 

" is entitled to rebqt these facts, an4 call wit~es to Lis general cba­
.. racter." 
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, Rolicito1-Gene'ral.-The same doctrine is lairl down alsl) by Mr. B ... 

rOI) Gilbert, and ion Philips, 

lI'1'1". St'Ul~rt.-In reply to my le~n'"ed friends, I beg to remark, that, 

prima facie, a very strong presumptiou ag~inst them, is, ~hat tlrey are 

4Jompletely out of the regular course, We daily see criminal proceed­

~ngs, but we never bafore heard such a tiling asked by the Crown, as t~ 

be allowed, afte!' the defence is gone through, to produce additianal evi­

!lence against a prisoner. The officers for th~ Crown, after producing; 

the evidence on tbe part of the prosecution, declare!\ t4at tlley closed 

the case for tbe Crown; and then the Prisoner proceeds on his defence, 

!ind introduces his witnesses, for what purpose, but to rebut t4at whicl~ 

has been e"hibited in e,vidence hy the Crowl)? After his case is plosed. 

!Ire t4e Crown officers to rise again, and ~sk to produce more evidence. 

:)Jecause they feel they are too weak, and i.4at conviction will not fol­

low? Certq.inly not. W4at was the case which the Crown had tt) 

'Illake out? That the Prisoner at the bar had committed the crime of 

which they Rccuse ~im in the indictment. To do this, -they examined 

a numLer of' witnesses to support, by pq.role testimony, a written con­

fessiolll, and, when t4ey thought they had fully estahlis4ed his guilt, and 

had ensured a cOI)viction, they informed the Court they haq closed their 

~ase. We \'I'ere, accordingly, put on our defence. In the ptosecution 

of it, have we produced any new facts ~ any facts unconnected with 

the Case they'made out? clearly not; but we have opposed to their evi­

jlence, testimony which contradicts it, and does 110t that occur upon 

every trial that ta1!:es place? How did the Crown proye its case? By 

getting aclmitted a number of cOllfessions, How do we pl'Ove our's' 

We sbew circnmst&nces, which, we contend, will lead the Jury to give 

no credit to them. Are th" Crown.officers now to tnrn round upon us, 

Rnd say, we did 110t know, or to usc lIIr, Solicitor'S own worus, " We 

u ~ol1ld not anticipate YOUl' qetence," we must strengthen our case or 

you will esc:jpe 2 What was our object iI) meeting' the case of the 

Crown ofl!cers? Our sole object was to prove that these conf~!siong 

were not entitled to credit, but ,,-e did not do it by attacking the Cl'e­

ilibility of theil- witnesses. We produced a number of fact~, which we 

thought well calculated to remove any unfavourable impression, they 

might have made O!l the on the minds of the Jl1I'Y· l"or example', we 

proved a capituI!ltion betweeu Ci'ptai~ D'Orsonnens and Mr, Dease, ami 

that, II) ,~igning it, Captain D'Orsonnens- styled himself, .. Captaill 

.. cOlnmamling the fort of Lac Ja Pluie," for what purpose was this 

done? why, that the Jury might contrast this fact with the declaration 

of Captain D'Orsonnens tliat he was nothing mor.e than .. un indi1'idn 

!' simple." Afi a tiuhstantiaIJact, we offered evidence that I'ort l,Yilliall1 
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_wa~ taken by a military fOI'ce, and that De Reinhard knew oC it. Is nut 

this the very substratum of our defence ~ are not these facts Ii part oC 

the res gcsla! and is it not in direct ~ontradiction to that exhibited hy 

the Crown? But is this impeaching their witnesses 50 as to entitle 

them to come to your honours, and ask permission to examine addition­

al witnesses? Certainly not. The distinction between this case and 

that, is a mUl'ked, is a broad, distinction, Our impeachment of the wit. 

nesses on the part of the ~rown has been ·by shewing faets, and nothing 

now remaius, but for the jury to judge, on which side credibility prepon· 

i1erlltes, It is really painful to be obliged, at this late day, to argue lirst 

principles, but the request of the Crown officers compels me to trespass 

.on the time of the Court. AllolV me to advert to the every-day occur­

rences of our ci,-il Courts, (as the learncu Solicitrn- General remarked, 

-" that, when criminal authorities were not to-be fQund, reference should 

"be had to tbe practice in civil cases") and ask where I am to seek for the 

autbority tbat allowed a plaintiff to say, after the defence, that tbe whole 

of his case had not been brought forward, and then permitted him to 

bring more testimony to strengtben his case? Such an antbority can 

not be found, for the plainest of all reasons, because, if ever it has been 

llske!l, it never has been granted. If -it were law, that wbenever a wit· 

ness was contradicted by positive facts being sworn to, that the case 

sbould, as it were, be re-opened to let in more testimony, we have all of 

us most miserably misunderstood the law up to this moment, and it is, 

indeed, high time that we de,istetl fmm practicing it. But, so far from 

being law, it is to subvert, to destroy, to overturn, the very fundamental 

principles, to root up the very foundation, on which the supel'structut"e 

of law is raised. Admit this doctrine once to he law, wbere are we to 

itop? If the Crown is to rebut our testimony, it can not be denied to 

us to rebut theirs, and for how long is this rebutting to continue? What 

is the criterion by which its extent is to be limited? Who is to bave 

the la,t blow ~ The Crown lilli,hed their case, ami we began, and be­

cause we '13_'-0 shaken it, are they to step in an[1 say, now we'll bl'ing in 

marc testimony? Became we have shewn, incontrovert ibly shew,,_ 

that these pretended confessions were forced from the Prisoner by the 

Jlcculiar state of the countl'y, is it competent to the Crown now to b~­

~ter them up hy additional evidence? It was a part, an integral part, 

of their case to hm'e sbewn, if they intended to prove the guilt of th,e 

Prisoner by his own confessions, that, at the time he was making them, 

he was free, thut tbere was Dot even a shadow of suspicion that he was 

other wife. 'This they did not do, but, seeing that we shew he was not 

free, not only not free, but that he was actually in a Ftntr of illegal du­

ress, th,-), ,ay we haye impeached tbe credibility of their witneiEes, and, 
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therefore, they are ellHtled to go into evidence to support them~ and flY 

rebut our testimony. But it is a mere sophism, and not an argument, 

that my learned friends resort to. The sophism appears to be thi~,­

.. You have controvet·teJ what we advanced, and, by your witnesses, 

have shaken our c~edit, therefore we have a legall'ight to, support OU1' 

own witnesses.i ' The sophism rests in an inaccuracy of language. We 

have not attacked the witnesses of the Crown upon any grounds which: 

relate to them as individuals. W· e have not controverted Captain 

D'Orsonnens' general charactei'. We have not said that he wa-s an at· 

tainted witness~ We have not endeavoured to prove, genecaIly, that 

he was a bad character.'Ve have not enquired whether his erl'Ol.'Ieons 

itatements resulted from party spirit. We have nat pretemle(1 to 1;8y 

that Captain D'Orsonnens acted from malicious motives, or that he was 

unentitled to general credit. All we say, is, that we have prove(~, and 

triumphantly proved it too, that particular fact-s! sworn to by Captain 

D'Orsormens, turn out to be erroneous. With reference to the autho­

rity of M'Nally, referred to by your Honour, I beg permission to re­

mark, that it refers only to cases very dissimilar to tlie situation in 

which this stands. Relative to witnesses to general character, we hav-e 

examined none. I repeat it, we do not wish to impeach Captain J),Or­

lonnen;' general character. As to particnlar facts, we have Pl'O.­
tluced no insulated fact, not connected with the case, and such, I con­

ceive. any fact must be, to be a particular fact within tbe mean·iag of 

the authority cited, for, if a fact is connected with the ease, it ceases to) 
be a particular fact, and such is everyone that. we 'have exhibited in 

evidence. 'Ve are, therefore, without the rule altogether. To test the 

8rgu~ent made use of on the other side, I would ask, where is the line 

to be drawn? If it is not where I put it, where shaH it be put? If vhe 

Court decide, they may proceed to prove additional circumstances to 

rebut particular facts, I should like to know how many particular foots 

are to be rebutted? Is it five, ten, the balf of what have been pt'o" 

duced, or all? What is the whole, but a collection of partkmlar facts? 

Where then is the line to be drawn? Where are we to stop? A,~mlt 

this doctrine, and we launch oUTseives on vhe wide sea of difficulty; 

doubt, uncertainty, and confusion. Let us-suppose, for a moment, :thai 

a)! the principles of law could be overset, ami the evidence admit>tea 

which the Crown asks to have let in ; we must be allowed to reply to 

it, and where is it to end? The very object, of offering evidence-o.n 

a ,defence ,is to controvert that which has been offered on the part,a( 

the Crown, and eannot, therefore, furnish a reason for admiUill!) 

~ddition81 testimony on the. part of the Crown. I~ the present 

cue again, there are many oth~r points I might adver.t to.. 'I'i>e 
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... ery nature of tbe evidence proposed is objectionnbln. Who is t() pt,,"e 
it? why, t]le very perwns of whom we complain; apart o[ this "el'Y 
fGrce, who, from their peculiar ~ituation~, we could not cross-exa­

mine, because, if thry told the trutb, tbey must accuse themselves. 

Their only safety was in perjury or silence, and, to avoid the first/ 

111e humanity of the law allowed the last. I could not ask oM 

of those witnesses, had you a mmket ~ were you armed, and did you 

act like a party of moss·troopers? because, if they answered truly, they 

would be liable to be indicted; an.l, as the Court has done befOl"e, it 

would interpose its protecting arm were such questions attempted to be 

put, and tell the witness be need not answer tbem. Again, the very 

men who are to be witne~ses, are, and have been .luring the defence, 

sitting on these benches. I do not mean to cast any imputation on any 

one of them, bnt, on this solemn occasion, it was thought necessary that 

every witness should leave the Court till his evidence WIIB completed, 

and for what reason, except that he might not be expose.l to any im­

proper bias from heating the depositions of otber wituesscs? If there 

were no other circumstance, I should think this alone were sufficient t<1 

exclude the proposal of the A ttorney-Genetal. He sait! he ha.1 closed 

his case, anil, thinking he had fini,hed, the Prisoner entered upon hil 

defence. Confiiling in the <leclaration of the Crown officers, he has 

prodnced his evidence, and the whole lias been exhibite.l before the very 

persons, who are now to be called 1I2on to prove the additional part of 

the case. It is a proceeding as novel as extraordinary, and, I feel con­

fident, the Court will agree with me, tba! it is as inadmissible as it i~ 

;mprecedented. 

Allorney-General.-Upon consideration, we are riot disposed to press 

our proposition, and particularly in consequence of the last observation 

which fell from the learned gentleman. The witnesscs wham we pro­

posed to examine, ha\'illg been in Court during the derence leads us to 

oibstain from pressing that, which, nevertheless, we consider ourselveS 

Ipgally entitled to, if we persisted in demanding it. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-The very object of a trial by Jury is, between 

affirmation on the part of the Crown, and negation on tbat of the accus­

eJ, to dircover the truth. The Crown, in the first instance, (take a ca~e 

of homicide, for example,) avers the guilt, the defendant briDgs affirma­

th-e testimony, and alleviates the offeuce from homicide to maDslaugh­

tn", which hilS a tendency to abridge the punishment. The Crown say~, 

I affirm, and am ready to prove the dt:femlant stabhed bim. A. comes 

illto Court. on bis defence, aDd ,ays, I am not guilty; B. met me in the 

street, nnd drew his sword 011 me, and it was in self defence I wounded 

loim. Here are two aflirmRtion<, one 011 the part of the Crown, that it 



169 

was homicide, and another on the part of the defendant, alleviating the 
killing to manslaughter. Shall not the Crown be permitted to prove 

this.alleviation false? certainly it must. A word with respect to testi­

many. All persons brought before the Court are presumed, to be ho· 

nest, it is therefore not necessary that the Crown should prove.its wit. 

nesses to be entitled to credit, because the presumption is that they are 

so. The defendant comes for,ward and discredits this testimooy. Shall 

not the Crown be permitted to prove this derogation is not correct i' 

certainly ~t must be allowed. These are principles which the Cour.t ,has 

always held and acted npon, and it must continue to do so, till it gets 

better light upon the subject than at present it possesses. But, on the 

other band, the Crown must invariably bring all its case forwIitd at 

once, or how shall the Prisoner know what he has to answer? If the 

contrary were allowed, a P",isoner never could know what was necessa· 

ry to his defence. Were it permitted to hold back any part of the case, 

then, '1either party knowing whether the whole were finishell, the de­

fendant would 'proceed to build his case upon the other, and the Crown 

coming in with that which before it. held back, would render a reply 

necessary, and' thus the case would become involved in what may be 

caIled a complete brouillerie, a word I make use of, because I know 
ntme in English which so fLlIly expresses my meaning. 

The J;>rince Rt!gent's Proclamatio~ was then put in and read. 

By HIS ROYAL HIGlINESS TlIE PRINCE OF W ALES, REGENT of the 

United Kingdom oj Great-Britain and Ireland, i'n the name and on 

the behalf oj His JlIa}esty. 

A PROCLAlIfATlON. 

J. C. SlIERBROOKE. 

W lIEREAS by an Act of the Parliament of the United King­

dom of Great-Britain and Ireland, passed in the forty-third year of His 

lY[ajesty's reign, entitled ~ An Act for extending the jurisdiction oftRe 

" Courts of Justice in the Provinces of Lower and Upper Canada to the 

" trial anti punishment of persons guilty of crimes and offences within 
" certain parts of N orth.America, adjoining to the said provinces," it is 

" amongst other things, enacted, that all offences committed within any 

" of the Indian Territories, or parts of America not within the limits of 
.. either of the said Provinces, or of any civil government of the Unit­

.. ed States of America, shall be, and be deemed to be, offences of the 

.. ~ame ~ature, and shall be tried in the same manner, and be subject to 

" the same punishment, as if the same had been committed within the 

" said Provinces of Lower or Upper .canada." And whereas, by the 
X 
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~uid Act it is also enacted" that it shall be lawful for the Governor, or 

" Lieutenant-Governor, or pel'son administering the government, for 

.. the time being, of the Province of Lower Canada, by commis>ion, un­

p del' his hand and seal, to authorize and empower, any person or per­

" 80ns wheresue';er resident or being at tbe time, to act as civil maJ;is­

U trates and justices of the peace, for any of the Indian Territories or 

.. parts_of Amel·ica not within the limits of either of the said Province!!', 

" or of any civil gQvemment of tbe United States of America, as well as 

.. witbin the limits of either of the said Provinces, either upon informa­

U tions taken or given within tbe said Provinces of Lower or Upper 

" Canada, or out of the said Provinces in any parts of the Indian Terri­

.. tories, or parts of America aforesaid, for tbe purpose only of heating 

.. crimes and offellces, anll committing any person or persons guilty of 

.. any crime or offence to safe custody, in order to his or tbeir being con­

.. veyed to tbe said P1"Ovince of Lowel' Canada, to be dealt with accol'll­

" ing to law," and" that it shall be lawful for any person or persons 

.. whatever to apprehend and take before any persons 50 commissioned, 

" as aforel;aid, or to apprebend and convey, or cause to be safely con­

" veyed, with all convenient speed, to the province of Lower Canada, 

" any persoll 01' per60ns guilty of any crime 01' olfence, tbere to be- de­

.. livered into safe custody, for tbe purpose of being dealt with accord­

" iog to law:" And whereas, by the said act it is also furtber enacted, 

" that every such offender may, and shall, be prosecuted and tried in 

" his Majesty's Courts of the province of Lower Canada, in which 

.. crimes and offences of the like nature are usually tried, and where the 

.. ,:!lUe would bave been tried if such crime or otlimce had been commit­

.. led within the limits of the province where the same shall be tried un­

.. der the said Act; tbat every offender, t"ied and convicted under the 

.. said Act,' sball be liable and subject to sucb punishment as may,_ by 

.. any law in force in the province wbere he or ~he shall be trieil, be 

" inflicted {or such crime or olTence, and tbat such Court may and sball 

.. proceed to trial, jud-gment, and execution, or otber punish men t, for 

" such crime or offence in the same Illannel" in every respect as if such 

.. crime or offence bad been really committed witbin the jurisdiction of 

.. such Comt, and to proceed also in the trial of any person, being a 

" subject of his ll'Iajesty, who shall be cuarged \I ith any otreilce, not • 

• - withstanding such offence ,hall appear to have been committed within 

" die limits of any colony, settlement, or territory, belonging to any 

" Emopean state." And, wlJereas llivers breaches of tbe peace, and 

acts of force alld violence, have lately been committed within the said 

In?ian territories aOlI parts of America mentioned and described in the 

$Jid Act of Parliament, which have arisen from contentions between 
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~tain merchants carrying on trade and commerce in. the said Indiarr 

territories, under the names of the Hudson's Bay, Company,iand, the 

North-'Ve~t Company respec:tively, and .othl\r plirsoDs, their servants, 

agents, or adherents, of whom some have entered into, and seizlld, .and 

occupied by force, and with strong hand, lands or. po~sessions therei n, 

taking, and, by force, retaining: divers goods, wares, merchandize, and 

other property, and obstructing the passage of navigable rivel's, and 

other natural passes of the countr.y, 'and others have ll)e.t together in 

unlawful assemblies, fOl'med divers conspiracies and confederacies, com­

mitted murders, riots, routs, and affrays, and appeared, gone, and rid­

den, in companies in military an'ay, with armed force, and have rescued 

themselves and others from lawful arrest and custody; We do, there­

fore, in the name and on the behalf of his Majesty, publish ,this pl'ocla­

mation, hereby calling upon ihe said merchants, so as afores/lil~ carpying 

on trade and commerce, in the said Indian territories unller the name 

of the Hudson's Bay Company and the North-West Company, respec­

tively, and upon each and every of them, and upon all other persons, 

their servants, agents, 01' adherent~, and eacn and every of them, to 

<lesist fl'om every hostile:~gression or attack whatsoe,'er, and, in order 

to prevent the furtlier employment of an unauthorized military force, 

1Ve do hercby requiJ'e all persons who have been heretofore engaged in 

Ms Majesty's service as officers or soldier~, and, as slIch,.·have enlisted 

an,l engaged in the service of the said Hudson's Bay Company, or Not,th 

West Company, 01' either of them, or'of any of their servants, agents,' 

or adherents, to leave the service in which they may be so engaged, 

within twenty-four bours after their knowledge of :this Proclama~ion, 

under penalty of incurring our most sevcre displeasure, and ·forfeiting, 

every privilege to which their former employment in his lHajesty's ser­

vice would otherwise have entitled them, And we do, under similal' 

penalties, hereby require of all and every person. and' persons whomso­

ever, whom it [loth, or shall, or may, in any wise concern, the restitu­

tion of all forts, buildings, .01' trading stations, with the property which 

they contain, which may have heen seized or taken possession of, by 

either party, to the party who originally established or constructed ther 

same, and were possessed ihereof previou~ to the recent di'putes between: 

the aforesaid companies; amI we do hereby require, in like manne~, of 

every person and persons whomsoever wham it doth, or shall, 01' may, 

in any WilY concern, the removal of any blockntle or impediment, by 

which any party, person, or persons, may have attempted to prevent or. 

iuterrupt the free passage of traders or others of his l\'fajesty's subjects, 

or of the natives of the said Indiall tCl'l'itories, with .their merchandize, 

ful'~, provi'sions, and other !lffects, throughout the lakes, ri vel's, roads, 
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and every other route or communication heretofore used for the purposes 

of the fur trade in the interior of North America, and full and free per­

mission for all persons to pursue their usual and accustomed trade with­

out hindrance or molestation, hereby decla~ing that nothing done in 

consequence of this Proj:Jamation ~hall, in any degree, be considerell to 

affect the rights which may ultimately be adjudged to belong to either 

or any party, upon a full consideration of all the circuIDstances of their 

reveral claims. And, whereas for the purpose ofrestrnining all offences 

in the said Indian territories, and of bringing to condign punishment 

the perpetrators of all offences there committed, His Excellency Sir 

John Coape Sherbrooke, Knight Grand Cross of the most honourable 

military order of the Bath, His Majesty's Gaptain General and Gover­

nor in Chief, in and over the provinces of Lower aud Upper Canada, 

Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, and their several dependencies, Lieute­

nant General and Commander of all his Majesty's forces in the said 

provinces, &c. &c. &c. by and with the advice of his Majesty's Execu­

tive Council of and for the said province of Lower Canada, bath no­

minated, constituted, and authorized, the honourable William Bachelor 

Coltman, one of the members of the said Council, a Lieutenant Colonel 

in his Majesty.s Indian Department, and one of his M'Iljesty's Justices 

of the Peace for the Western district of the said province of Upper Ca­

nada, and John Fletcher, Esq. Barrister at Law, one of the principal 

police-magistrates, and Chairman of his Majesty's Court of Quarter 

Sessions for the district of Quebec, ;0 Major in the said department, and 

one of his Majesty's Justices of the Peace for the said Western district 

of Upper Canada, to act as civil magistrates and justices of the peace 

for the said Indian territories, and parts of America aforesaid, as well 

without as within the said province of Lower and Upper Canada, under 

an,d by virtue of the said Act, and also his l'lajesty's special commis­

sioners, for enquiring into, and investigating, all offences committed in 

the said Indian territories, and the circumstances attending the same, 

with power and authority for such purposes. And, whereas the said 

William Bachelor Coltman, and John Fletcher, arl! immediately about 

to proceed to the eaid Indian territories, in execution of the tru!t so re­

posed ill them. We do, therefore, hereby strictly charge and command 

in the name and on the behalf of his Majesty, all sheriffs, bailiff., con­

stables, and other officers of the peace, and all others his Majesty's offi­

cers, servBnts, and subjects, civil and military, generally in their se~eral 

and respective stations, to make diligent enquiry and search, to discover 

and apprehend all persons who have been, or shall be, guilty of aoy 

such crimes or offences as aforesaid, or any other crimes or offeoce~ 
whatsoever. within the Indian territories or parts of America in the 
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,aid act mentioned and described, whether without or within the said 

provinces of Upper or Lower Canada, and to cause them to be carried 

before the said William Bachelor Coltman and John Fletcher, or one 

of them, or such other magistrates as may ~ereafter be appointed for 

the like purp05es, or otherwise be invested with competent jurisdiction 

in that behalf, to be dealt with according to law, and by all lawful 

means and ways whatsoever, to repress and discourage all such crimes 

and offences, requiring and directing them and each of them, as well 

within the said Indian territories, or parts of America, as elsewhere, to 

be aiding and assisting to the said William Bachelor Coltm'an and ,John 

Fletcher, in the execution of the duties wherewith they are charged as 

such magistrates and special commissioners as aforesaid, in all their en­

deavours for the repression and discouragement of all such crimes and 

offences wheresoever, or by whomsoever perpetrated or committed, for 

the detection and apprehension of all such pel:sons as have been or here­

after shall be concerned or implicated in the perpetration thereof and for 

the maintenance and preservation of the peace and of the laws. 

In faith and testimony whereof, we, by ouI' express command, in 

the name and on the behalf of his Majesty, have caused the great seal 

of the province of Lower Canada" to be hereunto affixed. Witness our 
trusty and well beloved Sir John Co ape Sherbrooke, Knight Grand 

Cross of the most honourable military order of the Bath, Captain Ge­

neral and Governor ,in Chief of the said provinces of Lower and Upper 
Canada, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, Lieutenant General and 

Commander of all his Majesty's forces 1n the said Provinces, &c. &c. 

at the Castle of Saint Lewis, in the City of Quebec, in the Iiaid pro-­

vince of Cana~a, this third day of l\lay, iu the year of our Lord Christ, 

Olie thousand eight hundred and seventeen, aud in the fifty·seventh year 

of his Majesty's reign. 

By His Exce~lency's command, 

JOHN TAYLOR, 
Depty. Seety. 

J. C. S. 

[The evidence on the part of the Crown, and of the Prisoner, being 

thus closed, the Ch-ief Justice enquired what course the counsel proposeJ 

to pursue in the argument to be submitted to the Court. Mr. Stuart 

said, that he should open it with some general observations, and Mr. 
Valliere would follow him, and produce the authorities they were desir­

ous'of olfering to the consideration of the Court. Mr. Stuart remark­

ing, that he could not help adverting to Borne of the/acts; which had ap­

peared in evidence; the Atlorney.Gf1Ieflll objected to any observations 
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being maue on tLe e\'idence, alleging there was little difference bet" e~n 

addressing Ihe Jury, amI remarking on Ille facts of the case. The cor­

rectness of this ob~ervation being asoented to hy the COUI'!, .'tIr. Stllart 

continued, that from what had been ,hewn on the defence, he ;hould can­

tenll, " that the confe~sion is not 11010 admissible evidence to go to the 

!' ,Jury." 
The Chief Ju .• /ice stated, that the point having been decided, 1\[ •• 

Stuart CQuld not now be heard upon it; .1IIr. J'ls/ice Bowen ob~ef\'ing, 

that in arrtst of judgment, (;hould the pmceet!ings unfortunately reach 

that length,) H might be argu~ll. 

Tbe Prisoner's counsel not appearing to llcquiesce in this decision, the 

Chi'f Jllstiee explained, that in admitting it as fit evi~ence to go 10 tile 

J!!ry, the Court did not deprive Ihell! of their right of deciding what cre­

dit was due to the confession. He reminded j.\'lr. Stuart that it bad been 

receind, he~ause-" aner very fnlly hearing him on the suoject, as well 

" as One of his colleagues-ng ease hat! been made out, that could justi­

.. fy the Court in wilhholding it from them;" lind in conclu~ion observed, 

briefly, .. that it went to the Jury accompanied by all the circumstance8 

" which it hall been contended, ought to invalidate its credit; and al 

" that was the tl'ibunal which must deciue the point, it WaS useless to 

•• address the Court 011 the m hject." 

MI". Stullrt ,li,chimed any intention of arguing again,t the opinion 

or the Court, although he hall not consideret! its former decision B; CD"" 

"letely debarring him from again adverting to the confession; especial­

ly after such strong additional circumstances hat! been proved. The 

Chief Jus/ice remarked, that the Comt could not resume the ~llbject a8 

it was fini.hed, bllt intimated, that on the point which, 11IT. rallii're h,d , 
5tated they wibheu to argue, it would hear ;lIr. Stuart with pleasUI·e.] 

.fllr. Stllarl.~In excepting to the Jurisdie/ion of the Court, I beg 

le-ave to remark, .that it is an exception of the counsel of the Prisoner 

only. OUI" opposition doe, not arise from apprelienoion as to the rer­

diet of the Jury ultimately being that De Reinhard is innocent; hut 

yonr Honours know that e,'en of technical objections, where the life of f\ 

'lefenJant is at ,take, it is the duty of his coun,,,1 to avail themsehe,; 

'lnt! althoug;h u'c entertain no doubt of the ac'!'d/l«[ of the PdsQner, yet 

In the duty w!Jich, as his Jegal advi,ers, we have to perform, we feel 

ourselns compelled to neglect nothing tbat, hy po,sibility, can lead to 

it. We, thel'efore, except to tlie juris,Hetion of the COllrt, A. I ,hall 

have the honour of b~ing followed by a learned friend, who has bestow­

ed considerable time anu !lttention to the subject, and shail have an' op' 

IJOrtunity of again adt!res,ing the Court in reply to the Crown officer~, 

I shall trouLle it very shortly in opening. The fir5t objection I ,hal! 
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<if committed at all,) was not eomntitted in the Indi!ln Territory, as (i·E. 
leged, but in his 1';Iajesty's province oj Upper Canada. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-If I understand you cO\Tectl y, it is a geugro..; 

phical objection you make. You argue that this spot, " en haut ilu 

., Dalles," is not in the Inuian Territory, but in °the Provinee of U ppet' 

Canada. 

1';lr. St·uart.-That is my proposition, and in sllpport of it, I prOOeed 

to remark, 'that the first enactment relative to the management of this 
portion of His Majesty's dominions took place in 1763. It is kno,vn to 

all of us, that the .conquest of' this portion of Nortb Ame1'ica, by thft 

Hl'itish arms, took place in 1759 anti 1760; but, f!'Om that' pet'iod 'to 
. -1763, when the whole of the country called Canada, was ceded to the 

English, who have retained po~~ession ever ~ince, notbing wils done 

to provide a government for, or to regulate, this conqiIer~d country; 

In that year, (1763',) a prodnce called Quebec was 'created by procla­

mation; but the affairs of this territory, not\Vith~tandiilg the procla­

mation, remained in a very unsettled state till the year 1'183, Ac­

cording to the most respectable historians, we contend, that the portion 

of couptry thus ceded, was exceetlingl~ extensive, gOing, agl'eeably to 

eome ivriters,"8s far as the river Ohio. The pretensions of the 'French l 

liS we gather from hi~tory, carried them into countries distant, remote, 

and in fact unconnected altogether with the province created in 1763. 

Tue people of Montreal and Quebec, we shall shew, had long traded in­

to those wiltls, which are now ro fancifully called the Iludson's B«y ter­

ritory, and fl'Om which, ufter an uninterrupted enjoyment of ll'affic for 

ages by the French traders, it is now sought to exclude enterprise and 

competition. It must be apparent to everyone, that after the con­

quest, this immense tract of country requi!'ed a government adapted t .. 

the change which had taken place in its circumstances, by becoming II 

pl'ovince of another nation. Its remote situation fl'om the parent-state, 

rendered it impossible, as well as unadvisable, to legislate hastily for its 

necessitie~, but the parliament proceeded to provide what it stood most 

in need of. Accordingly, by fhe '14th of the li:ing, tbe province of 

Q.uebec was enlarged, and here let me remark, that a great deal of the 

misapprehension which exists on the subject, arises fl'om confounding the 

province of Quebec, as thus erected and enlarged, w·ith what, under Ihe 

French regime, was denominated Canada.-Adverting to the 14th of the 

Eing; the act of 1774; it will be seen that the countl'Y, erected and 

enlarged thereby into the province of Quebec, was not commensurate 

\0 the country know by the name of Canada, as a French colony, a,{d 

recogni zed as such by the Fl'cnch and EritisIJ gOVCl'llDlonts. The ob~ect 
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or this legislative provision \va~, to provide a temporary government for 

that portion of his lIfajesty's prot,inee, whose neceuities required it. AI 
settlements pushed themselves into the conntry now called Upper Ca­

nada, as civilization extended its stride, it became necessary to adopt a 

government for the whole, and the interval from 1774 to 1791, afforded 

time, to form and mature a suitable government for the immense terri­

tory known as Old Canada. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-You are making a small mistake, it was not 

to provide a government for Old Canada that the act of 1791 provided, 

but for the new provinces formed out of the old province of Quebec. 

Mr. Stuart.-I know the act of 1791 mentions the province of Que­

lIec, and it speaks also of Canada. The proclamation issued in conse­

quence of this act, I contend, must be construed liberally. It must be 

looked as, not as a deed of property, in which, only a minute survey 

can be taken; we must not look at it like lawyers in our study; we 

must not contemplate it as the act of an attorney, surrounded by his 

musty papers and parchments; but we must view it as the act of great 

and enlightened statesmen, legislating for the popUlation of an immense 

and distant territory, with whose wants they were acquainted, and 

whose affections they were desirous of securing by 8 liberal and magna­

nimous policy. But, even looki~g into this proclamation, strictly and 

minutely, we shall find this country, waere it is alleged the offence was 

committed, to be strictly and minutely the province of Upper Canada. 

The act of 1791, in providing for the more suitable government of the 

province, created by the former one of 1774, divided it into two part~, 

and, we thiak, even in a strict comtruction of the provisions of that 

statute, and the proclamation issued in consequence of it, that, jf this 

offence has been committed at all, it has been committed in the province 

()f Upper Canada, and, consequently beyond the jurisdiction of this 

Court. But let us look into this act and proclamation, with a broad, 

liberal, ano enlarged disposition, and we arrive at the conclusion, that, 

this country must form a part of tbe province of Upper Canada. I am 

well aware, that in the preamble to this act, the province of Quebec is 

adverted to, but preambles of acts of parliament are never looked at as 

explaining the design of the legislature, except doubt arises in the con­

struction of the enacting clauses. It is almost snpertluous to remark 

that, for ascertaining the spirit of an act of parliament, we refer to its 

.nacting clauses; if they are clear, there is no necessity for referring to 

the preamble, which is but an introduction, 8 sort of preface, setting 

furth the necessity for legislative provision on the subject of the act, but 

not making the provision. On the other haBd, I freely admit, if the 
words of the act are uncertain, if dilferent constructions may be put 
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'oh the enacting sections, then we ought to go back to the preamble tOl' 
~he intention of the legislature, but that should never be done except 

doubt and uncertainty prevail in the body of, the act. Adopting this 

sound principle, let us take up the act we are, at this moment consi­

dering, anu we shall find it so Clear that misunuerstanding mill not exist 

for a moment. In the proclamation issue(\ in consequence of the S1st 
of the King, cap. 31, we finu the boundaries of his Majesty's province of 

Upper Canada, set forth after a short introduction, statiag that his Ma>­

jesty had thought fit, by and with the auvice of his privy council, by au 

order of council, to diviue his provincEl of Quebec into two distinct pro­

vinces, to be calleuthe province of Upper Canada, and the province of 

Lower Canada. 

Mr. Stuart read tI~e boundaries and proteedcd. 

Now, what was" the utmost extent of(lte counl'ry communly callerl or 

"known by the name of Canada," "'''' all know. It is that territ(')ry 

conquered by British arms in 1759, and ceded finally in 1763, to the 

British Crown. Canada recognized as 6uch in treaties of peace, and 

other most impOl·tant documents entered into betlfeen France and En­

gland. That is Canada, the whole of which, aSter the act of the .'list o~ 

the king, by the auvice of hi~ privy council, his Majesty declared it 

was his royal will and pleaSUI'e, should form the p.ovince of Upper Ca,­

nada, with the exception of, the comparatively small part situated to 

the north anll east of those boundaries which constitutes the province of 

Lowe" CU'Iludrt. The province of Quebec was quite another thing, and 

£ould not have been meant as Jcsignatin~ the boundaries of Upper Ca­

nacla. If that had boen intended to form the limits of 1he new province, 

the course was simple and easy, it was to have sai,1 the utmost extent oj 
,vIII/try commonly known as his Majesty's province of Quebec; btlt that is 

not the case, the boon was not so circumscribed. Let Uti now, for Ii 

moment, examine the fact according to r4;orolls municipal principles, 

and we shull, I think, an'ive at a similar result. His Majesty's pro­

vince of Quebec was always dtJined, whereas CUllodl1 was more undefined. 

Had the province of Quebec been intended as exhibiting the pJ'oposed 

boundaries of the about to be c'reated province, a word could have suf­

ficed to express his Majesty's p.leasure. It would merely have been .ne­
cessary to have referred to the royal proclamation of 1763, fLlundeu on 

the treaty of Paris, in conjunction with the act of i7'T.i, and we should 

immediately have known the extent of Upper Canada, but it is manifest 

that, insteau' ,f the then province of Quebec, as establi.hed uj' the act oj 

1774, it was intended, as clearly cxpre1sed in the proclamation issued 

In OOIl"cquenoe of the j1st of the king, that U FpcI' Canada ~hould in-
y 
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canoe" all tbe \<:rritory to tbe l'l'estlVanl and south'VBr,1 of the ,aid line;' 

(the line of .its boundaries) " to the utmost e~tent of the count .. y com­

" monly called 01' known by the name of Canada." I am fully aware 

that -I may he tolti.that in the p['eamble of this act and of the proclama.­

tion the t~rm, " His Majesty's province of Quebec" is made use of; it 

i.I almost unnecessary for me again to remark that the preamhles of acts 

of parliament are, in general, loosely and vaguely drawn np, alHI ought 

to form no critcrion by ,,'hich to estimate the obj'ec1!s contemplated I:Iy 
the acts th,emsell'es. That this is the case is known to every lawyer ami 

every legislator. It is to the enacting clauses of any statute that ,,'e 

mllst refer to ascertain wilh accuracy the provisions of the act. Allopt­

ing this certain rule for our guide, here we have a' clear manifestation 

of the intention of parliament in the act of 1791; it was to create two 

provinces of Canada, and, in defining the limits of the Upper, it declare~ 

that it shall, in a certain direction, include" the utmost extent of conn­

try commonly called" 'What? the provinc,e of Quebec,1 No: It shall 

include" the utmost c:,tcnt of country commonly called and known by 
" the I!amc of Canada." The utmost extent of tbat country, which I 

hirve before rl'marked, heing the conquest of Briti,ll valoUl' in 17.'19, by 

force of arms, was finally ceded to Britain by the treaty of Paris of 

1,63. Tbat immense territory, which has never by any treaty been 

since surrendered, which as;/ is, and has '[mm the time of its discol'cry' 

as well as its cession, been known as Canada, must be the territory 

wllich was intended by this municipal enactment to form the province 

of r pper Canada. That being the case (and I think it is the only con­

struction, even in a minute point of view, that can with propriety he 

gil'en to the statute,) we find that the Dalles are strictly within the 

'Province of Upper Canada, consequently out of the jurisdiction of thi~ 

Court, and the offence is not cognizable under the act upon which the 

indictment is founded. 

t come now to the mGre bmau and liberal interpretation of the act, 

and 1 shall, as I apprehend, have no difficulty in ,hewing, that \\'e canm)l 

arril'c at any otller conclusion, The 14th of the King, was e\'idently 

intended to provide a temporary government for that part of the newly 

acquired territory, which stood most in need of it. It was passed at a 

'<"sun of great difficulty, when anxiety and alarm pervaded all classes 

of society in England, relative to the issue of the disputes between the 

parent state and those of the colonies which she has since ackno\\'kdged 

U3 the F nitcd States of America. At a period \vhen the intercour,c be· 

tween the province and the mother-ccantry ,,'as so limited, that it coalrl 

1 ,':l1y be sai,1 to belong to it, such was the moment in which the ~ct 

il(,~il'~ the pro7ince of Quebec \';a, pa"ed; ,lD act whose temporary 
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tillture may be clearly aeduced upon a single reference thereto. ThiiJ 

province was to snbsist only, by the act of 1774, till the King should 

iee fit to alter its limits. III 1791, the situation of affairs, relative to 

this portion of the British possessions, was widely llifferent, and the 

British Parliament proceeded to form a government for a people, whose 

loyalty during a contest which -had severed such numerous colonies froll1 

the dominion of Britain, had willi entitled them to the distinguished and 

distinguishing privileges secured to them by the munificent act of 17.91. 

Refer to .the act!; of 1774, and of 1791, and, surveying the difference; iJ; 

it possible for a moment to imagine, that the government of 1791, in. 

tended only to legislate for a part·of Canada? Is ·it, I would ask, rca· 

sonahle to consider that the minister of a great nation, mch as EngTand, 

contemplating an extensive and valuable, though distant territory, be­

longing alike by conquest and affection to the mother-country, and ell­

titled to protection in time of ,war fl'Om its superi9r strength, in time (.r 
peace from its extensive and unequalled tl'ade, entitled to receive, aOll 

have secured to it, the due administr1l.tion of justice, and the unre~tt'ict­

ed enjoyment of religious freedom. Is it, I ask, )'easonable t·) FupT'oEe, 

that the great men who presided over the councils of Britain intended 

at that period to propose a government for a part of Cunada r To sup­

pose so, is to suppose they were ~Ieeping at their post. Can it, I ask, 

be imagined that a ~inister could be found so re;;nr(lless of his duty, so 

ignorant of the necessities, so insensible to the loyalty, of this country, 

or so negligent to the interests of his master, as in 1791, to propo~e a 

government to a part of Cana(la? I\' e cannot suppose it; they have not 

been 80 negligent. Th€'y have giveY{ us a government, ~nd a constitution, 

snpcrior to any on earth, excepting thei¥ own, artel' which it was mo­

,'elled. A government, suited to our necessities, al,t! gained by our un­

shaken and persevering loyalty, when revolution tore our sister provin­

ces f''OID theil' nllegiance, and strove to associate us in' the revolt. I 

ask again, is it for.a moment to be believed, that such mngnuniJ;IlHy 

wonld be tamishe(\ by these advantages being confined to only a part of 

n people of the same blood, equally brav-c, loyal and graterul, and equal­

ly standing in need of, anil equally entitled to all these privileges? If 
any should be fo.und di~posed to snpport, by argument, .a contrary opi­

nion, J;hey ought to be confident, before they make so heal,), a ,charge, 

that they can substantiate it beyond the power of contnllliction. Bnt 

there is no occasion to apprehend sllch an argument, for the prodMB~ 
tion is clear as the. noon-day sun upon the subject. It tell; us that the 

the act of 1791, has provided a libel'al, an equitable,' an'{l a permanent 

• government for the brave, the loyal, and grateful, pcpulation of an €'x­

tcnri';c ~ractQf country, within certailllatitudes arnllollgitudes, ''In-
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"eluding all the territory to the westward and southward of a 1m. 

" drawn due north from the head of the Lake Terniscaming, unti! it 

" itrikes the boundary of HlIdson'~ Bay, to tue utmost extent of the 

" country commonly called or known by the name of Canada." What 

that country consisted in, I have hat! tue honour ef ~ubmitljng to the 

Court, in \41e early part of the argument. In COlJriu,jon, I cuntend, ou 

the broall anllliberal construction of the act of 1791, tbot by Canada, 

must by meant Canada (/s known to the Frmch, from ",hom it was tak­

en, and who, in ceding this part of North America to the Briti,h Crown 

in 1763, actually, as a part of Canada, ceLled the Dallts. RCHrting to 

the whole question, I contend, tbat, whether the oct of 1791, is constru­

ed according to striGt, rigid, municipal rules, Of contemplated, witb a· 

broad, liberal, statesman-like 'I,irit, the Dalle.'form a part of his Jllaje.,. 

ty's province of Upper CanIJda, (md if the offence ha6 been committed at 

all, it has been committed out of the jurisdiction of this ('010/ . 

. 1I1r. Valliere de St. R( a I.-It appear~ to me that the statute 0-1' the 

14th of ilie King (upon which the Crown officers rely) was evident'ly a 

temporary act, and uever was intcnde<i to be a permaneot one, as to 

the boundary of Canada. It is true that, boundarie, \\,Cl'e giv.en by thi, 

act to the old province of Quebec, but they were only to remain durin" 

the King's pleasure, which i, cleady made known by the act of 1791. 

The principal objection of the coullsel for the Crown, to our comtru~· 

tion of that act, is, that in the preamble or title, it is only said" to di­

" "ide the pror;"ce if Quebec." It was well remarked by Mr. Stuar~ 

that it is not to the preamble, but, to the enacting clauses of an act that 

we must look to discoYer its spirit. lfe know, that In the preamble of 

an act of Parliament, it is usual to recite the titlc of the old act whic\} 

is to be amended, and, perhaps, to this circumstance may he ascribed the 

introduction of the words" the prorina if Quebec" in the title of the act 

of 1791. Be that as it may, the proclamation of the King clearly give~ 

to the province of t;r;nr Ca.nada" all the country to the west of a lino 

" drawn due north from the hea,l of Lake Tern iscaming to the boundary 

.. of H\lc\son's Bay, whkh \,"<l$ known as C"nada." 

lIfr. Valliere read from lhe act the line of separation and continued. 

These limits are very well known, and they were so before the pro, 

clamation. l'oIy learned brother, .Mr. "[u.art, has well explained tbei,' 

txtent, and has not taken too wide a view of it. Th.e words of the pro­

clamation are very remarkable. After describing the line which sepa­

r~tes tbe province of Upper from that of Lower Canada, it adds, " in­

.. eluding, (" rellfermant"-a very remarkable expression,) ALL the 

" territory to the uest and south of the Baill line! to the utmQst extent 0, 
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.,. the eountry commonly called or known by the name of Canada."­

Le,t us consider these words-they are not" of ~he country commonly 

.. called 01' know 11 by the name of" the IJrorince of Quebec. ; not at all­

but by "the name of Canada." The question, therefore, is, what is the 

utmost extent of the country known as ,Car/ada? The Abbi Raynal, in 

his" History of the Indies," speaking of tbis country, vol, 8, page 238, 

says, .. tbe yeal' 1764, bebeld the rise of a new system. Canada wai! 

i' 'dismembered of tbe ~oast of Labrador, which was added to Ne1vfound. 

" land; of Lake Ohamplain, and the whole tract of land to the south of 

" tbeforty-fiflh degree of latitude, with which New-York was augment.. 

," ed; of the immense territory to the westward of Fort Gq/cite, and of 

" Lake Nipissim, which was left without a government;' and the re­

~, mainder, under the designation of Ihe province of Quebec, was placed 

" under one governor." The description which tbis re,pectable histori'-

. nn here gives of the territory t1)us dismembered gives a correct idea of 

tbe country known as Canada. This new system, he says, gave a pa-rt 

of Canada to Newfo~ndland. New-York was encreased by another 

part, namely, the tract to the southward to the forty-fifth degree of la­

titude. "Tbe immense territory to tbe west of Fort Golette and of 

.. Lake Kipissim, was left without any government:" and (as my learn­

ed brother. Mr. Stnm·t, has well maintained,) it is tlliE immense territo­

ry which tbe proclamation of the year 1791, gave' to Cppcr Canada, as 

being a part of the country, "called or known by the name of Canada." 

I have the bonour to submit that, looking at the words of tbe proclama­

tion of 1791, and comparing them with this description of the Abbe 

Raynal of the territory left without any government, we ~hall find it tG 

be the country which, hy this proclamation it was proposed to make a 

part of Upper Canada, at the time whln it was declared that the line 

~hould he " drawn f!'Om the head of the lake T£I1;iscaming dlle 110Tth ull­

I' til it strikes the boundary line of Hudson's Bay," (a;,,1 moreovcr,) 

,. including all the territory to the westward and southward ~~ lhe said 

" line to the utmost cxlC')t of the country commonly called"or lcnowu 

" by the name of Oanada." This territory was IILln known by the 

name of Canada, and it is sitnated to the u:estU'(1rd of that Iille, and 

ihoL'efore it proves to be a part of Upper Canad(t, Again, I l.1eg the air 

tention pf the Court to the wprk of M,', Pinkerlon, a well known Eng­

lish geographer. This distinguished anthor, speaking of the extent of 

Canada, gives very large bounds to it. In l'u/. 3. page ~3';, he says-, 

" tbis country" (Canada,) " is computed to extend from the gulf of St. 

" Lawrence and isle of Anticosti in the east, to the lake of TJlinnipic in 

" the west, or from longitude 64° to 97° l1 cst fpom London; thirty three 

f' degrees, which, ,iH that latitude, may be about tIVelvy bundred geogra· 
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". pllieul mile> The IJreadth from the 11 k~ of ETi~ iR the sou/h, GI' 11.,110-

"tude '>3°, may c':tend to latitlluo 49°, or three hundred find sixty 

" geographical mile.', Imt the meJial breath is not above two hundred." 

So far he speaks of the absolute geographiMI ex/ent of Canada, the sub­

£c'luent obsel'valion, which he makcs relative to the tm"inal population 

d the c0untl·y, stronsly supports the argument which we have the ho­

llour to submit to the Court, viz: that this country, described hy \he 

_.j&~,:' Raynal, as " lhe ;tmnwse terri/or:; lift wi/half I any gOl'uomcot," is 

the very (,"'lIltr; intended Ly the proclamation of 11:!t, to Ttceire H gl)' 

vernmen!, by hecoming.a part uf L~/'Jlcr Canada. "The orig>.l,ul popu­

"la/ion," (says ]\1r. Pinkerton,) .. cunsisted of 5.eycral 5:iV~.:;e tril .. ,·, • 

.. "hope names and manners may be tracet) in the earl!! Fit ,telL aecolo/!,', 

.. which may also be COil,"lted for the pl'ogres;ive pi,cu\'cl'Y, tbe firft 

... settl.;:lh'l1t being at QUebec in 160S.-Durin,:; ..I century and a half that 

•. the French possessed Canada, they made many discoveries towards tht) 

•• iCcsl, and Luhc"',,,7, in the cnd of the sere"!lmlh century, has given a 

" tolerable account of some lakes beyond tha.t calletl Super;,JI', an,l of 

" the River .Blissouri. Quebec being .cDnquered by Wu(/e in 17:,~, 

.. Call ada was ceded to Great Lrilclin by the treaty of Paris in 116.'3." 

I confidently submit that tbis western territory which had becn rli,. 

covered by the FI:ench, IIn,l is described Ly Lahonta.n and otber writers 

under the name ofCu)lu,j,l, beca.mc, by the proclamation of 1191, a part 

of Upper Callad,l, alld con,equcntly does not form a part of the l"d;a~ 

Caritor,!/, nor i< it within lhejuri"diclion of this Court. The Abbe Ray­

nal and N(. Pinkerton agree in their ,lescription Orlpe u'(slem boundary 

" "j" the country commonly calh-d or known by the name of C(()l1ld" ;" 

qnd 1'01" it.; SOil/hem limits lot us again again refer to the AubE Raynal's 

work. This writer, in the same ",,Jumc of his History of the l'l,ji,s, 

ircating of the extent, soil, and climate of Louysirma, ~ays (p. 111.) 

... Louysiaaa i~ a "n,t c.ount,'y,. bounded on the south by the ,C~, on til" 

" €[:,( by F!urir!~ and Cawlina, on the west by )lew Mexico, and on 

"' tha "on!. by C"n:"I,(, and, by unknown lands, \\ bich may c;ctend til 

" II"dsG,I's Bu:'. It is not po .• oilJle to fix its lcn3th with precision, but 

" its medium b(caGtb is two hun{lred lea:;'Ic c ." Here we see thaCthe 

D'J"thern limit of, L}'lysbna is Cuauda and unknown lands which may 

€y.ten.} to Hudson', Eay. 'With the proclamation of 1,'31 before oor 

·'F', which tells uS that the boundaries of [ppet Canada indude the 

Trbole of tho couutrr to tbe west and south known under the name of 

Canada, to the utniost extent of that country, it is impos,ible to say 

Lut that country which bound~ Louysiana to the northward, according 

(he _.J'.'){ Rnynal, must at th,s mOlllent form, in conformity" ith that 

pl"OclamutieJll, « part of Fl'per Canada, because the cOllnh'y known 3. 
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Canada extlJmls to the south as far as Louysiana, anu to the west as tat 
as the ninety-seventlJ degree of longitude. There remains now for ui 

to consider the northern limits of Canada, and here we have not tho'same 

certainty. In the maps of New France it is true that the \\"hole ot lh~ 

River _ Winnipic is included in it, and the northern boundary line is 

d,l'awn in conformity with the H1terpretati~n of the limits of Canada, 

lyhich we have submitted to the Court. That this interpretation is .. 

eorrect one, and that it in effect agrees with the limits of Canada, as they 

were known to the I·'rench government, \\'i!l be evident, .f the attefi'o 

tion of the Court is given to what \Ye look upon as very 5trong autlw­

I·it.y. It is an act of the Dvke of Ventadour, dated in i6~5, and will bG 

found in the" Edicts and Ordinances," 1'01.2. page 111 umIer the title 

of" CommiEsion of Commandant in New France of the 15th February, 

" 1625, by his grace the Dukc of Ventado~r, who was viceroy of tho' 

H countl'Y, in fuvour of the '<;;wr de Champlain." This instrument be­

gins by reciting other patents of {:ommission already obtained, and pro­

ceeds to (kclare, in the mOht prec;~e manner, the view taken by the go­

vernment of France of the exteflt of this part of their posses,ions. As 

all the territory \\~hich, the French knew as being called by the name of 

Canada, to the fOuth and west of the line so frequently mentioned in 

the course of my speech, is ordered, by the King's proclamation of1791, 

to make part of the proYince of Upper Oanada, let us look at this 

act, ani! we shal.l p.~rceive·from it, tilat the mose extended powers wet".e 

given to the SieuT de Champlain, powers which <lid not at the time awa­

ken any doui:>ts·as to the right which France had to grant them, nor any 

impediment to their exercise, on the pm·t of any other nation. 

lJIFr. "Valliere ·rea,] the commission at length, layhtg great emphasis 01(~ 

the authorily gh,tn by it " 10 cause 10 be made discoveries in the saiL!· 

" countrie·s, and. specially from Ihe said place of QUEBEC, tmlil as filt 

" as he may be aole to penetrale beyond the same, wilhin the lands ana 

•• I"ivers wliich discharge lilemselt'es 'into Ihe River SI. Lau')Tnee, in ordeor 

.. to f)J.deavour to discover a conrenient way to go thTO'llgh Ihe said (OVIt­

•• try: unto tllR. ki;,gduY)l of CHIN A and liLe EAST INDIES," and l'rocl%rleJ. 

in his argument. 

Here, may it please your Honours, we bebold p{)wers the mo~t ex· 
temivc, granted by the government of France for all the objects whien 

mi!';ht rerjuire attention, to make peRce anu war, to spread the namt', 

POWCI:, anu authority' of the King of France over a country, the bounds 

ofwhieh were nat exactly known to~(he Frellch themselves, to es(ab:i,h 

rcli!;illn, to COll1ClIi,'sioll and cstablibh nlilital'y tn" ci\'il ofiiccr~, to trc:lt 

f.p', :lUll f'~'Jr!r;!d, prol"\ f\llih~l{'j\~, ;:tTHl 'J(·)od 1rkudt.hir, with o~hc.1" 
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\Va.!' against them; in fine, powel's are granted by this commission whldl 

~ould not have been brantell unl,·" by a govemment wllicb, by 'the law 

of nations, was entitled to grant them. These powers extend over all 

the lands and rivers wbich discharge tbemselves into tbe River St. Lalt­

renee. It is true, perhaps, that tile River W'irmipic does not discharge 

itself into that rivel', but, let us ,recollect, tbat at the date of this com­

mission, the country not being well known, the course of its rivers must 

Jlccessarily have been less known, and that, to arril'e at Chilla and the 

East Indies by way of Canada, you must come to the Pacitic Ocean. 

Also, let liS remember, that the French always regarded their discove­

ries to the west as making part of Canada, and according to old maps, 

that ri\·er (Winnipic) is situated within tbe country known to the French 

as Canada. After tbis proof of wbat were, at the time, considered as 

the territories of France, it is only necessary to enquire, whether 

possession thereof, was actually !lfld by that kin;,Jr)ffi. The species of 

IJossession which the law of nations admits as a proof of actual sovereign­

ty, will equally appear to have been maintained. 'Ve see that, by thi~ 

commission, power is given to be erected and built such forts and for­

tresses, as may he wanting and necessary to him, the Siwr de Champlain; 

nmv, forts and fortresses were" erected, and, to this day, there are re­

mains of French forts in that country, which incontestihly prove actual 

possession. Upon these grounds we a<sume tbat the limits of Ca­

nada to the north and tr) the west have /laeT been well kn'-J\\I}; neither 

at the time of the actual posse."i')/l of the couutry hy the F,-ench, 

nor since its conquest by the English. In support of this position, 

(~vhicb is especially true as regards the northern limiu,) I suhmit that 

Clwrleroir, the Abbe Raynal, lilT. PilikeTtoll, and all authors, agree in 

representing that the boundaries of Canada under the Freach regime, 

were not po,itively fixed or known. A,. an autbority for sayin:; that 

they /ire not fixe,l even at the present time, I produce the topography 

of lilT. Bouchelle, the surveyor-general of this pcov inee, who has be­

stowed great attention to every thing l,hat is interesting on this subject; . 

anl\ I flattel' myself tbat, from his official situation, his work must be 

esteemed ,'el'y strong authority. 111,. Rouchette, speaking of lIJ'Vr Ca­

nada, sap, page 590 of his topography, " On the U'cst and norU'-lcc,/ 

.. no limits ha\'e been a"isncd to it." I pray the p;;,rticular attention 

of the Court to the expressioll " ?Ie limils have been acsi;;ned to it, there­

" fore it may be supposed to extend over the vast region that spread. 

" towards tbe Pacific and the "Yur/hern Oceans. The separation between 

.. it and the Uniled Sla.les is °U vague and ill-defined, and the prolific 

" sourcs of so mallY dioo.gre';[Ilc;lts between \.h1l twu puwers, tlfat it b~. 
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\1 IIJJig ~aIJeil ,for the revision which js now abont to be perforrncJ, iu 

,0' fulfilment uf the foul,th and fifth articles of the treaty of peace of 1615.;' 

Hel'C we have the declaration of the survryor.genetal o'f this province, 

t!:tat on the wl-sl and 1.1OTlh"wesl no limits have been assigned to tile coun­

try called Canadq" Altp.o~gh Nr. Bouchette speaks at the time of th", 

pl'~clamation,{)f1'7~l, yet his opinion is, notwithstanding, that the boun­

diirie5 of Canada to 'l!le north amI U'fst are very uncertain, and since therB 

arc ao precise limits fixed, we ll1~"l enqulre how those who \\'ere can­

temporarje~, and who had a knowled~e of the country, how the geo­

graphers of tll~se days, un(lerstood the matter. Let us look at the 

mit]Js, alld ,,'e ohall find that the whole of the river JJ1inll ipic is d,elinea. 

ted as belongi'ng to CIUlad(t. When Mr. BO'llchetle, speaking of this 

.country i,n his Topogral'hy, says, that it has no limits assigned to it, 

and ad.!o, "therefore it may be 5UppOSC~ to extend over the vast regions 

.. thllt spread to\;mrds the Paci~c and the N orth~rn Oceans;" it is very 

certain, as it appears to me, that Ite hail in view the proclamation of 

1791, which bestows the wht11e country (J' to its 'lltmQst extent") com· 

monty called or known by the name of Canadlt, upon tbe province or 

Upper Canada. The Indian territories are to the north of the line spe· 

cified in the procl~matioll o.f 1791, because the.whole of the country to 

the south and west, is wifhin Upper Caaada, The principal point to 

consiller seems to me to be, that the proclamation of 1791 did not give 

the boundary of the province of Quebec, as the limits 'If the two pro· 

\'iuces, but that, in the aetnal words of the proclamation, the limits of 

Upper Canada extend on one side" fl'om the head of the Lake Temis­

.. caming, by a line drawn due north until it strikes the boundary lille 

.. of HU'!,Ull', EllY, inclu,\ing all the territory to the westward and 

.. sQ\ltl1ward of the ~aid line, to the utmost extent of the country com· 

.. ,monly clllled 01' known t,y the ,Inme 6f Canada." 

These reasons, and many olbers, manifest beyond a t10ubt that the 

country, \\ !Jere the Dalles are situated, "'as in possessio[l of the French, 

and, as we say, and as, I hope, we have proved by the best maps, and 

by the l11o~t (',diiOhienCL]. aut!'QI'S, (with ",119m the surveyor-general Of 

(Iii, province agrees) that tile country to the southward and westward 

was calle,\ amI known by tha name of Canada; that the P.,.ellch knew 

the cOlin try as Carwda, and thf.lt notbing certain tl) tha cO!'trary elIn Qe 

brought. fql'waril. In,conclusion, if we do ,not p'ro~!lce lJUsitive evidence 

that ,the Dalles ill'C within the linJil. of Upper Canada, we have proved 

that no fixed limils have been B."i[;l1e<l to it, and, by the Slime au(hori~y 

(an authOl:ity well entitled to.resfJcct on account of the official 8lluatioJl 

held by the wril(-r) that it f'xten,j, over the V<lst r('g;ions to the west and 

!torll!. of the line of ,eparatioll between Low'l and TlJJj (f CalW~\a. It 
z 
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if; for yOUl' Honours to i1ecide whether the Dalles are wilhin or wi/lto'ill 

tbis vast extent. 
Aliorney-General.':"'The point before tbe Court appears to me so 

clear that it is almost unnecessary to argue it; <\ great deal of learning 

has been produced, and much ingenuity exerciseli, by my learned friends, 

to prove the point with which they set out, viz: that if the olfence al­

ledged in the indictment to have been perpetrateil by the Prisoner at 

the bar, has been committed at all, it must have been in the province of 

Upper Canada, anil consequently out of the jurisdiction of this Courl.­
In ~pport of this position a variety of arguments have been resorted to, 

and numerous authors have been referreil to; fortunately for us, stand­
ing in Il Court of law, there is positive law upon the subject, there is 

therefore no occasion to have resource to the Abbi Raynal, or to Char-
11!Voix, or any other of the speculative writers, (writers at the same time 

for whom I eHtertain great respect,) to whom my learneil frienil, who 

last addressed the Court, has referreil as furnishing authorities upon the 

question. It is our ad'IBntage that we can proceeil in tbis ca~e, without 

referring to authors who, however respectable they may be, were expos­

ed to the too common failing of enil€'avouring to secure the favour of 

their respective governments. I do not intenil to throw the slightest 

imputation on the veracity of the very eminent writers whose opinions 
Ilnd works have been, "'ith so much ability, brought forwaril, but mere-

1-
ly to state that ,reference 10 them is completely unnecesary, as we ha\-e 

positit'e acts of the British Parliament, to guide both the examination 

and decision of the question. We do not i1iffer at all with our learn­

ed fl'ienlls as to the extent of territory formerly claimed by tbe French 

and which undoubtedly came into the possession of the British Crown at 

the treaty of Paris of 1763, but all We submit to the Court is, that the 

,choZe of the French p08sessions did not constitute Canada, but that tbe 

~untry known by that name, was much more circumserihed in its ex­

tent than my learned fl'iends have described (and I doubt not very ac­
curately too,) the old French possessions tu have been. The argument 

of my learned friend who opened this question, is that in construing this 

:md ev,ery other act of parliament we should proceeil in a liberal and 

statesman-like manner to apply its provisions. If we trace the move­

ments of the. British government, we shall see the impossibility of tbat 

contruction which my learned friends contend for, heing ailmitted to be 

correct. In 1760, tbese colonies were conquered, and capitulated to'the 

Eritish forces. Ey the treaty of Paris in 1763, the u'hole of the con­

quest was finally cedeil to his Majesty. In 1763, a part of tqis conquest 

was, by proclamation, erected into a province, denominated the province 

of Q~eb~. By the act of 1774, the provillce of Quebf,P wa6 enlarg~. 
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"By the treaty of peace with tne U ni.ted States Qf Amm-ica, the situlfti .. n 

lind boundaries between the late colonies and the province of Quebec, and 

others of his Majesty's dominions in ]forth America, were clearly defin­

ed, and in 1791, thi.s sct'ies of legislative and diplomatic jneasures were 

completed by his Majesty dividing his then province of Quebec into his 

ttwo provinr.es 9f UpFlr and Lower Cwn.ada. IJct us, for a moment, 

look at what the act of 1791, . proposed to effect, and every thing lik!! 

difficulty disappears in a momeRt. It wali to divide a large province, 

~mely that of Quebec, -into two small ones, to be called Upper and Low­

er Canada, and ~onsequelltly the boundaries of these two pr~vince.s 
could only be commensurate to those of Quebec. Upper Canada must he 

a part of the former province, and of that only, otherwise the act, in­

Etead .pJ being an act ~o divide the province of Quebec, ought to have 

been denowinated an act to enlarge its boondaries, and, from its extend­
ed limits, to form the two provinces therein created. The error of my 

learned friend is this, that beeause Canada happens to be mentioned, 

therefore the avowed object of the act, namely, that of dividing the pro. 

vince, of Q1lebec, must be abandoll.ed, or give place to what my learned 

friend calls" the broad and enlightened policy of providing a govern­

" ment for the whole of his Majesty's dominions in North America." I 
.again take up the act, and looking at its tine, I find it to be an act" ta 
,. upeal certain parts of an act pa~sed in the fourteenth year of his l\'£ajes­

.. ty's reign, intituled an act for making more effectual provision for the 

" .government of the province of Quebec in North-America." ~bat the 
province of Quebec comprehended is as well known as the limits of this 

room; the act of the 14th of the King, commonly called " the Quebel; 

.. act," defines tbem precisely. How then did this act of 1791, amend 

.tbat of 177!? Why, his Majesty;, having been pleased to signify, by 

message to both hQuses of parliament, his royal int.ention to didM hi;; 

provice of Quebec into two provinces, it was enacted, by this statutp, 

that it should, be so divided, and the tn'o provinces should ~e cree.teo. 

If my learned friend's observations are correct, then the 14th of 'the I{ing 

amounts to nothing, because, though the act of 1791 is professedly an 

n£t to amend, not to rel'€al, tl~at of 1774, still it IS Indispensable to a 

correct interpretation of 1I1e act to divide the province of Quebec, (ae­

cocding t6 my learned fl'iend'J; tloctrine,) that you add a very consirlera­

ble territory, to it, a mode of division, I confess, I am not acquainted 

with. The act, being to divide the province of Quebec, I contend that 

the limits of the two provinces must be fonnd in those which constituted 

the province out of Ivhich they were ftll"meil, and that, whilst on the onll 

hand, they must togetber be commensurate to thoie limits, so on the 

o\lher, they c~not c)l:cecd them. That more cannot he inchHle4 in tIJI; 
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two tuan ill the vne pro\'irwe. nnd that being the c:tre, that t'le p"'" ,,;, 

of Upper Canadn can comist on/!I of that part of th~ forlller proYince of 

Ql!cbec whi'ch does not form the'pi'ovince of LOII',r ('I\m\cla. '111;:. rr,)­
position I comider 30 clear, that a proyill~e, any moreo than Any thing 

else, cannot compTehcnd or contain mo,'e, whMl divi\\~d into two part'" 

than it dicl when a whole, th3t I bhould reel mY',,:r very nnjustifiably' 

taking up the time of the Court, were I to pursue the argnment farthet· 

If any other construction is to be ;i\-eu tu the act, then the 14th r(f tile 

King, definin;; the province of Qllci'('" amounts to nothin;. and the act 

of, the S1st, instead of being an sct to dil,ide. wonid ill reality be an aot 

to enlarge, the province of Quebec, uuder tile new titles of Upper and 

~ou'c" Canada. 
Solicilur-General.-I consider the Jloint50 extremely plain, that it i9 

not only wasting. but almost trifling witb, the time of the Court, ,,.ri· 

ously to argue whether the dh'isiun. of a province into 1>';'0 parts can, by 

any possibility, be const,ueLl to mean the addition thereto of a Vftst and 

almost (acc~ .. uiog as my learned frieDlIs contend) immeasurable territory. 

ln support of this, apparently most novel ao,l extl'Hordin"ry, proposi­

tion, my learned friend. Mr. Stuart, f,ontl'llus that the expre"iolJ in the 

designation of the bo~mdaries, " the country commonly called 0" known 

" by the name of Canada," is conclush'e that it 'I'D, in tLiB Illanncr that 

his Majesty intended to divide the pro\'ince of QuebeC, The enrjuiry, 

and the only enquiry, upon the subject appears to me to be onil extremely 

easy Qf decision. It is simply, ,,'hether that one 'L :ltenee is to preduJe 

or set aside tbe whole of the first clause of tlle act in which the intention 

of his Majesty and of parliament is so clearly ey.F~e'EeJ. The act of 

1791, after reciting the title of the 14th ef ,the King, ass;gns the reason 

which induced t4e legislature, to pass the act for tbe internal regulation 

of the two separate provinces. which his Majesty hEld signified his royal 

intention of forming, by the divi,ion of hiR then province of Quebec, 

namely. " that the said act. is in ~any respects, inal'plicableto the pre­
.. sent condition and cil'cumstances of the s~id province, and that it was 

.. expedient and necessary that further provision shou Id now be made for 

" the go01 government and prosperity thereoL" It is not said, that it 

is necessary or expedient io enlarge the said province of Quebec, but tbat 

further provision sqould be made for the good government thereof; that 

is, of that province which had, by proclamation, been created in 1763, 
and whOSe limits had been extended to what they then were by the act 

of the 14th of the King. commonly called" the Quebec act," My learn­

ed friend must most surely be driven to the l~st stage of despair, when 

he sets up a loose expression in a declaratory act, (which may be consid. 

~rcd as the wea1;:est act of the Crown ,) as affordinG a just groupd ~r 
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)UUllllatiutl for stich all opinion. I know that it is not to the pTeaffilfle d 
an ad of parliament that we most generally look for a clear expositiol) 

oOts ol.jt'cts, but, whilst I admit the eorrectne~s of that po~ition, I would 

!'Ilso remind my learned friend that there is a wide difference between the 

machn;:; and declaratory clauses of a ~tatute, amI that we ought not to 

sct:l!sicie t);te obvious mean,ng, ,and overturn the av<)wed intention of all 

3.ct of parliament, because of a loose expression in a declaratory clause. 

I cannot think that the French nation ever claimed these territories anlt 

wildernes.es, I1-S belonging to, ,01' forming a part of, Cana~. As to th~ 

authorities which my learntd frien\!, who spoke last has advanced, they 

£annot in a Court of law, be styled alllilor;ties. I have a very great respe9t 

fol' the AbbE R,ay)'wl, but 4is work is mel'ely speculatjve and philosophi. 

cal, ",nd is no geog;"aphical anthority UPOJl a question of territory; tbn 

same remark will apply tp Pinkerton, we may all esteem it. as 11- very 

u,efu I work, but it forms no geo.l'raphical authority in a Court.-Upon 

the whole I contcmj,. with the Attorney-General, that the former prO'" 

vince of QlJ,cbec mu8t he found in the provinces of Upper ~nd Lower CD' 

wuia, and that no more can be included in them than what was contained 

in that province, for tbe act py which they were erected into provinc~~ 
was notbing more t)lan an act to divide it into two parts, het'eafter to 
be ([('signated Upper and L01per Canada. A;;ain, the learned gentle­

Plea say, that all to the south and wtd of this lioe, f,'oro'Trntiscaming 

!Ilke to Hudson's Bay. must be esteemed Ca)wda, lI'hat then \VaE the use 

or this J .. t 'Jf the 43dof tbe IGl1g ~ The legislature, if my l .. arned friend's 

a"gument was correct, were idly I'Gcing au act that could have nil ob­

ject. Imtead of IndUtn Trlritul'!tS it is aU Upper Canada, according 

to my l~arned friend's statenjent. But it ,S a position completely un­

tenable even for a mament. Upper Ca,-wda extends no farther south 

and ke.st than the province of Quebec did, any more than uoes Lotter 

,Cap.arta to the north and east. In the two provinces are now to hc Lund 

I/,hat w-bich, before the Feparation, constituted the province of Quebec, 

;lOU Upper Canada ~onsists of that part, '~u(\ of that part thereof ~lly. 
which is south and west 'of the 'pro\·ince of LOJl)er ("auada. I4'cf!'ain 

from entering on this subject, ·heing confident that, ill the view we take 

.of it, we arc correctly construing the intention of the legislatme, and 

that we shall have Oljr own opin;on s~rcngthened and conprmed hy your 

Honours detlision. 
11f,. Stuart.-I (lonf~S'S I look in vain for those gl'Ouncls of confidence 

on which my learned friends.rely. If supporting opinions by confident 

assertions entitles the_m to the result they anticipate, they ba\'e ·cer­

tuinly gone a good way tow,ards obtaining it, hut I look in vain for any 

tIling that can be plle~ argument, upon tke ,question, that is now before 
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the COUN, in the observations that ha\'e been submitted by the ollicl¥,I 

&f the Crown. If tbere was any thing thllt demanded attention, it was 

(he remark of my learned Iriend, the Solicitor-General, on the act of the 

43d of tbe king; but, if my learned friend bat.! referred to the chart, he 

would perceive that ni",e lentiLs of the lehole Indian territories, according 

to !lis description of them, lie beyond tbe houndary wbich u'e elaim as 

that given to Upper Canada by the act of 1761. If my learned friend 

traced the pnrallel of 520
, he would pel'ceive Ulat nea·rly the whole of 

the North-West Company's stations, and the whole of those of the Hnd­

ron's Bay Company, are to tlte nor4h of that line_ Then surely it i~ 

obvious that tliis was not an act without an object. It was an act to 

t'xtend the jUl'i~dictiqn of the provincial Courts to the trial and pnnish­
ment of offences committed in tbe Indian territorie" and they are to be 

found in the immense and almost boundless wilderness to the norill and 

west of the province of Upper Canada, as established by the act of 1791. 

The act of tbe 14th of tbe king was obviously ttmporary, the proclama­

tion of 1791, ~efini ng the boundaries of the two provinces. was foundell 

upon an aot of a very different ,description. The fOl'mer was merely a 

umporary, whilst this was a permanent act. 

Mr. Juatice Bowen.-From what part of the act of 1'17.1., do you 

oI:onclu!1e that it \Vas only temporary. I see no part of it that I\'arran(~ 
wcb a conclusion, except with reference to the last clause. 

1I'Ir. Sluart.~Tbe words there made us of are general, and, as I con­
~eiy.e, must be understood to refer to the whole of the act. I mean, 

however, independently to c(,n.tend that the time at whiEh that act W'l.S 

passed, and tl>e situation of England with referenoo to ber Americun 

colonies, concur to shew that this act was merely temporary. But it is 

~eedless to refer to the act of 1174, as it does not bear npon the ease, being 

completely done away by the broad and Iiheral proclamation of 1791. 

I am surprised that the Crown officers shonld treat so lightly his lIIa~ 

jesty's proclamation, it is certainly~ not the quarter from which we 
should expect it. How was the province of Quebec created ~ By pro­

cla~on; and surely my learned friends will allow as much "'eight to 
one of his 1I111jesty's proclamations as another. They will not deny the 

!Rme power to his Majesty in 1791 wbich he exercised in 1763. If 

p'roclamations are sucb weak acts, what are we to think of the procla. 

mation that has been pnt in evidence on the prc,cnt trial, ~ has been 

resorted to upon all occasions as a justification [or all the apparent ag­

gressions which han marked the progl'e6S of these unfortunate dispute,? 

Eut I differ in opinion with my learned friends on that point; if, ie: 

1763, his ~laje5ty could create 11 province by procla~tion, he, in 1791, 

cQ1l'ld divide aDd enlarge a p~ovin\le in .the salUe way. This he has heeq 
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p1eased td do,. and all we have to do with this expression of the rord 
will and pleasure is, to adopt it, as the rule by which we are to be.go­

verned. In "Considerin@; and deciding the question of jurisdiction now 

before the Court, we contend that, looking at this proclamatioll, it; i. 

impossible to say that this olfence was committed within tire jurikdiction 

of this Court, If committed at all, it was perpetrated at. the DaUes. 

which form a PBl't of his Majesty's pl'ovince of Upper Cimada, as create41 

by his royal proclamation of 179.J. 

It being now past six o'clock, the Court was adjourned tiU FridaJl 

IMming at eight o'c!o6k, A. N. 

Friday, ~9th May, 1818, 

PRESENT AS BE~OR~ 

The Court kaving assembled, the Jur!! w.ere. called Q?ieT and being all; 
ltesent. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Th~ Conrt are most distinctly of opinion, on 

~ferring both to the act of 17916nd that of 1774, that the argument 

beld on the defence must fail. What was the object of these acts? A. 
mongst others, that of 1774 was to 8nlurge the proy-ince of Quebec, whic1t 

had been created in 176.3. That of 1791 was to separate or divide the. 

province of Quebec into two provinces, to be denominated Upper anll 

Lower Ctmada, and make each respectively independent of the other, 

by giving a legislature to eacr respectively, retaining within the tUJP 

provinces the same extent of couutry, the same spacei as the provinre 

of Quebec contained. What is the act of 1791? What is its object, itt 

avowed object? To repeal certain parts of the act of 1774; and whaCi 

is the part repealed? It is that part of it, wbich gh'es authority to the 

council of the pro~ince oj Quebec, and what is the reason assigned for so 

doing? ;Why, that his Majesty had signified it to be his royal will and 

plea;ure 10 divide .his provin.ce of Quebec. To assert that he intended by 

this, that the limits of the province should be extended by the separation, 

appears to me repugnant to the plaine!t principles of common sense, 

and, therefore, I cannot assent to i~. The short history of the a~ 0$ 
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1791 is briefly tMit~-The King signifies to parliament ills royal w{C1.ti,;;-,. 

of dividing his province of Qtccute, and he calls on the lpgislature to 
pr(}vide for this alterathm by granting an act adapted to the change • 

. The legislature pass an act provi<iing for the due Snvernment of the //I'(! 

provinces, and under the authority of this act, and the royal pl'oc]ama­

tion, the province of Quebec was accordingly divided. T!le royal PI', '­

tlamation was an act ofso\lcreign authority, by which his }Iajtsty, hy 

and with the consent of his privy council, declared that s~ould be the /ilit 

'If separation between Upper and Lower Canada, and how much of the 

forrrter province of Quebec ~hould belong to the -one, and how much to 

the other. The object of the act, and the objeot of the royal proclama:­

tion, are so clearly expressed, that we cannot, for a moment, doubt. 

upon the subject. The act says, "His Maje1;ty having been pleased to 

" signify bis royal will and pleasure to separate and divide the province 

" of Quebec." And what says the prochimation? "hy, the very same 

words. To die ide the province of Quebec, not to add to it, IIny more 

than to lake awa.y fram it. Therefore, Upper Canada could i~c1ude only 

that part of the province so diviiled, which was not contained in LOtl'er 
Caaada, but it could not extend beyond those limits which constitutr-i1 

the province of Quebec, otherwise it would certainly have been an act 

to enlarge rather than an act to dit'ide. Iu delivering this opinion, I 

am speaking our unanimous sentiment, for we have consulted ~ur bro­

ther Perrault npon the subject, an!l he clearly Concurs with u~. ",-\c­

cording to our understanding of the act, and the royal proclamatIOn, we 

are bound to say, that the argument of tbe gentlemen concemed for the 

Prisoner, though presented with great ability and ingennity, mn,!. r!>il, 

because the western boundary of tbe province of Upper Canada, is, .. a 
.. line draum duenorthJrom the f:onjluence oj tlef'. Ohio and .Mississippi ri­

« 'Vn:s till it slr·ikes the uoulldary tert'i/ory iille. oj the l-Iudson's Bay." 
The question ofJact will remain with the Jury. It i, they who are to 

Sl)y, whether tills place, the Dalles, IS, Ol" IS NOT, to the west of th~ 

line whicn we now declare to be the western blYUndary of his lli'lJeslyJ $ 

province of Upp~r Cooada. If they are of opinion that it is within; or 

to the ea$l, of this western line, then it is in the province of Upper Ca­

'Ilada, and not within our jurisdiction; Lut, if they are of opinion tha6_ 

it is to the WeJt of this line, then, 1 am giving you our unanimous opi­

:Q.ion, when I declare, that the Dalles are in the Ind-ian TtrJ'ilory, and 

'fUJI wilhin the limits oj Ih€ prorince oj Upper or Lower Canada, but clearly 

within the jurisdiction of this Court, by the act of the 4Sd of the IGog, 

cap_ 1S8,which extends our power to" the trial and punishment of pei·. 

lOlLS " iuiity of offences within certain parts of North America." 



CUARGE TO THE JURY, 

BY THE 

I'IONOURABtE CHIEF' JUSTICE SEWELL. 

Gentlemen of tile jury, 

THE Prisoner at the bar, is accu.cd of having Inurilered Owt'li 

Keveny in the I1ulian Territories~ The substance of this long indictment 

ii; this, that Charles De Reinhard, the Prisoner, and one .1J'Iainville, (who 

is not hel'e,) killed him with a' gun, or a sword, or both, and that the 

oth~r~, M'Lellan, Grant, Cadoi/e, and Desmarais, were accomplices, 

that is to say, that tliey did, before or at the tilne of the mllrder, aid in 

or advise the same; but at present it is only with De Reinhard that you 

have to do. The indictment compl'ehends several counts, which is uso. 

aI, because the officers of tlie Crown do not always know to what part 

of the case they apply, or what proof they may be able to produce.­
The charge is contained, generally, in eight counts, of which I will grve 

you an abstract. '1'he charge in the first count is, that De Reinhard 

killed Owen 'Keveny, with a sword, and that the olhers were present, 

that is to say, actually assisting iii the mnrder, or ready to have assist. 

ed, if it had becn necessary. By the second, he is accused af having 

killed him with a gun, instead of a sword, and the others, of having 

hoen present as ill the first count. By the third, he is accused of having 

killed him, not with a gun nor with a sword alone, but with both togeth­

er. The fourth count says, tI;at llfaintJilie killed him with a gun, the 

others being present, aiding and' assisting him. The fifth count again 

says, that De Reinhatd killed him with a sword, and that 111[' Lellan, 

Grant, Cadotte, and Desmarais, were accomplices bifo're and afler the 

fact. The sixth count accuses him of ha\'ing killed Keveny with a gun, 

but, like the last, does not say, that M'Lellan, Gtant, Cadrdle, and Des­

marais, were present, but that they previously counseIled the mur.der, 

aud that, after it was committed,! they received and assisted the Prisoner 

to escape. The seventh count again says, that De Reinhard killed him 

both with a sU'ord and gun, Bnd that these same four persons were Be­

co·mplices before aod aftel' the fact. The lJighth, and last count, acculie' 
A'i', 
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j)J'linville Df ha.ving killed him with a gun, and Enys that De Reinhard 

was present, and assisting tD kill him, and that ]1.1' Lellan, Grant, Ca­

dolle, and Desmarais, were not present when the murder was commit­

ted, but that they were accessaries before and after the fact. The6l!, 

gentlemen, are all the counts of this iuiliclment. To this indictmeAt 

the Prisoner has pleaded that he is in nowrse guilty. The officers of the 

Crown say, that he is guilty. It is your duty, to declare, upon your 

oaths, \vhether the Prisoner is guilty or not. Upon this question, there 

are three points that require, and particularly deserve, your attention. 

The first point is, to know u'hether Kereny was really killed. 

The second is, to know whether he was killed by the hands of De 
Reinhard or of ]l.Ia;Ilt'ille. and, if you limI that he was killed by 1I1ain­

l'ille, to know whether De Reillhard was present, assisting him to murder 

him; and it is necessary I should inform you, as the law makes no dis­

tinction, that in such case, both are equally guilty. It is not necessary 

that both shall haye actually helped each other to kill Ilim, if they were 

present, and abetting, the one and the other, are equally guilty. 

The third point which you must examine is thi~. If you find that' 

the .crime has been committed, it is for yot! to say, whether it hilS ·been 

explained by an):' circumstance that may diminish the cril!le, and reduce 

-it to any degree of homicide inferior to murder. Upon this point it is my 

<luty to tell you, that if you find that he was killed in the manner laid 

in the indictment, and by the Prisoner, there is no doubt but the PriED· 

ner is guilty of murder, because the circums.tances of his case, according 

to the evidence which you have heard, wouhl not leave you the power 

of diminishing the crime, as there does not appear any excuse or any 

necessity for haviogcommitted it. You have, therefore, two question! 

principally to consider, first, whether Keveny i~ really dead, and leclmd­

lV, whether he was killed by the Prisoner, or whether he was killed by 

pIainville, with the knowledge of the Prisoller, he being present aiding 
And assisting. 

Before reciting the evidence, it will be necessary to take notice of 

lhe authority, by which the Court, possesses the right of deciding on 

tbe Prisoner's case. By the statute of 1303, po'wer was given to the 

COllrt of Upper Ca1Ulda, and to the COllTts of Lower Canada, to try, and 

to punish, those persons who had committed crimes in the Indian Terri­

tories, ami the statute clearly explains what was meant by the Indian 

Territorits.-[The Chief Justice read the_ preamble and first clause of the 

ac/.]-It is in consequence absolutely necessary, to know, whether the 

place where tbe death occurred, and where the murder was committed, 

is li:il.holll " the limits of Fpper or Lower Canada, or of any civil Ilia" 

:' vernment of the Cniled Stalcs of Americll," for if it is without tbole 
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'limits we have the power of trying the Prisoner, and on tb~ contrary, 

if it is 1Iot 80, then we have not the right of trying him. It is a question 

therefore for you to determine, whcre' Keveny met his death? and it wag 

not in the province of Lower Canada certainly. There are, however, 

two other quarters which require your consideration. First, Upper Ca­

nada. The western houndary of Upper Canada is a line drawn due 1!()rtk 

from the junetion of the rivers Ohio and Mississippi, in the lati{ut~e of 

37° 10' north, and 88° 50' ~est longitude.-I am bounll to tell you that 

it is the Court who are to decide upon the law, and you who are to 
judge of the ja-cts, and, according to law, we heard the arguments of 

,counsel on the subject yesterday, anll to day, we have decided that the 

western limit of Upper Canada is the line, which I have mentioned; if 

-then Ih~ Dalles are t6 the east of tliat line, they are in the province of 

Upper Canada, and consequently not within OUi' jurisdiction. Let .ns 

1I0W look at the evidence. 

'rhe first witness on tbe part of the Crown is Mr. Sax.-[The et·;­
denee of Mr. Sax, vide pages 7 and 8, wasread.]-It is, therefore, ma­

nifest that a spot w'hic'll is in the longitude of 94,° 6' west, mmt be 

much to the westward of the boundary of Upper Canaria. There i~ 

another wit-nelS, lIfr •. .1oseph Bo'Uchette, who ~ays ,tbe same thing.­

[Mr. Bouchelte's e1>idence, page 9, read.]-You sec that Mr. Bouchette 

and )l[r. Sax entirely agree. There was some other evidence to thi-s 

point, but perhaps you have no doubt of the Dalles being to the west­

ward of the line of which these geilttemen ~poke.--Anothcr maHer for 

your consideration is, whether the Dalles are to the north of the line of 

separation between the United States, and H,e provill1:e of Upper Cana­

da. It is of impOl·tance to ascertain tlli" because if the spot is to the 

north of that fine, it is in truth in the Indian Territory, and if it is to 

:the south of that line, .it is in the United States, and consequently no-t 

within our jurisdiction. On this poiilt the evidence is equally as stJ'Ong 

as on the other. MI'. Bouchette's evidence is most distinct; but I wi,h 

now to llefer to the evideRce of ]iI,. Coltman.-[The Chief Jastice rearl 

Mr. Caltman's t"idencc, i'ide puges 10 and 11.]-Mr. 'Gale who was ex­

aminell afterwal·o.I~, confirms Mr. Coltman in every particular. This is 

all the' evidence with respect to our Jurisdiction, aild to the locality of 

the Dalles, and if it proves that the Dalles lie to the wesl of the bountla­

ryof Upper Canadll, and to the north of that of the United Slatcs,--it 

proves, cons;quently, that they are in the country designated in the act 

of 130S, as Indian TCTl·itories • 

. Now let us look at the evidence as to the facts of the case. It is very 

long, but the Court does not complain of the Crown, nor of the counsel 

for the Pri~oner-, both have done their duty, and have done it well. But 
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although the evidence is long, very long, the (acts of tbe Cllie lire ilU$ 

lew. The Crown officars rest their case upon the various confes6ions 

of the Prisoner, confirmed by several circumstances, which, it is 6aid, 

prove that it was his intention to kill the deceased, anti by facls occur­

ring in the execution of that intention; his public declaration tbat he 

had killed him, and his tacit confession that he had Ilone it, proved by h~s 

sileoce, at the time when Mainville related the mode in which Keveny 

bad been killed; his declaration when the things were di vided, that the 

right to have the best belonged to him, because it was he who had killed 

him, and not only these words, btlt that at the same time, he made the 

division, keeping the best for himself.--This i~ the case on tile part of 

the Cl'Own. 

On the part of the Prisoner it is said, " I have a defence to make, 

" o,n important ground~.; and it is not an ordinary defence, although it 

" turn~ on the evidence. lIiy defence is l:hiefly, that the situation ofth,e 

" country was so extraordinary, that my supposed confession ca~not be 

.. noticed. The country above was ~n a 6tate of warfare, anll my COIl~ 

.' fessions were the elfects of terror, and \lxtorted by tlIe circumstance" 

.. and the occurrences by which I was surrounded. These confession • 

•• do not relate to ~eal jacts, hut Wer" made under the pressure of cir­

.. cumstances, in order to put my life in safety." }Ie has also attacked 

the credibility of the witnesses on the part o( the Crown, particularly the 

testimonY of Captain D'Orsonnens, of Faille, al)d of La Pointe. The 

officers of the Crown say, that the confessions of the Prisoner are COllt 

firmed by these men, Faille and {:,a Pointe, !lnd the Prisonef says, that 

he has destroyed their testimony, by shewing to the Cour.t that they 

contradicted tbemselves. It is for you, gentlemen, to judge, and uot 

for us.-...,My learned brother, 11'11. Justice B9u'en, will read to you the 

evidence, and you will give that attention to it which it deserves, ill 

order that you may thoroughly understand it, and that your minds may 

be satisfied whether the officers of. the Crown or the Prisoner have esta, 

blished their affirmation. After you have heard the evidence, I propos~ 

to myself to advert to some particulars in the evidence, which seem to 

me to require notice fOl: your correct judgment, both with regard tp th\l 

Prisoner, and with regard to the Crown. 

The ~vide?lce was then read throughout by Mr. Justice Bowen. 

Chief JusticeSewe~l.-Before I!:nake my observations upon the evidence 

you have again heard, it is my duty to state that you must uot, in the 

least degree, regulate your opinions by what I "may say to you, but that 

you must bestow your entire attention upon the question to be decided, 

whether the Prisoner is guilty or not. I remind you agaio, that it i. 
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!JI1U who are to jurlge of the credibility of the witnesses, and I must like. 

wise make the further remark, that it is you who are to judge of the si. 

tuation of the country, of the circl.\mstances that relate to the cO'llfu­

~ions, as well as,generally of the degr~e oj credit to be given to the whole 

of the eviden~e. The foundatiO\l of the proof produced by the officers 

pf the Crown is the confession of the Prisoner, confirmed by other wit­

nesses, that he killed l(evfrlY. This confirmation, the officers of the 

Crown say, will be found in the evidence of Failfe, .as to his con<luct at 

the time they met the Swan river brigade, and when the people of those 

canoes said to the people of 1I'lr. M'Lellan's canoe, that !Ceyeny was a­

bove the Dalles, and, in the expressions of the Pri~oner, "that he would 

" take care, or that he would take good eare, of him, as it was he who hatl­

!. taken him prisoner;" but, at the same time, you will recollect that 

Faille said, that" he courd np/ say whether the Prisoner had said so in a 

threatening way." (see pages 18 and 19.) They allege also that La 

Pointe relates the same conversation, but \Vith a very important addi. 

lion. He. swore that, at the time this conversation took place, he heard 

De Reinhard slty, .. I will take good care of him, it is I who will kill 

"him." (pages 33 and .59.) Anothel· suspicious circum5tallce, say the 

Crown officers, is, that he was sent "'ith five Bpi~-brulis, and this fact 

!:tas been confirmed by the witnesses for the Prisoner. Another part of 
tbe evi<lence against the Prisoner, is the convel'sation between the peo­

ple of 1I'I'Lellan's canoe, at tile time th~ report of tbe gun was heard 
upon the waler, (of which I mean to speak again,) La Pointe says, that 

at that time Olle of tbe Bois-brulis exclaimed," Olt, the dogs," they hat'e 

killed him." (page 34.) and that tile prisoner, De Reinhard, was then 

with Keveny. The officers of the Crown maintain that this expression, 

Vlade use of on the impulse of the moment, demonstrates the expectation 

which all who were in the Cqnoe had, that Ket'cny would be killed. 

Another circumstance which demands your attention is this. LaPointe 

says, that he saw De ReiJlliard's sword, but that he does not know whe­

ther it was bloody; (page 35.) the othel· witness, Faille, says positively 

that he saw the sword in his hancl, and that he saw blood on the swol'd. 

(page 23.) Botb these men talk of Keveny's clothes which wel'e in the 

,mall canoe on its arrival. One says that they certainly were not the 

clothes which he had on at the time thQy left him, but he says, upon hi' 

'" The expression, " Olt, the dogs," the reporter has not upon Ilis 
notes of this trial. IJe remembers, from the impression it made on him, 
that IIpon one of the examinations of this witne~s he did $0 testify. He 
rather thinks it must have. been in _Uetr~h" but ):Ie has Dot his report a~ 
band to refer to, W. s. 
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oath, that they were Keveny's clothes, and that he had leen Ke1Jenq "eat 
them during the voyage. (pages 26, 55,59.) Both of them agree in 

uying that De ReinhflTd divided Kf'Veny's things, and both of them speak 

of the misunderstanding with the Bois.brUtes, and they also agree in 

1'.IIJ!1ting the conversation, which, they say, took place at the time of tho 

ilivision. La. Pointe relates that the PrIsoner said, " As it was I who 

.. killed him, I will have my choice of the things, and, as Mainville was 

" with me and helped to kit I him, he ~hallha\'e more than the others." 

(page 35.) Faille, in speaking of this circumstance, ~ays the same thing. 

J.a Poin(e 5ays, that " on the arrival .of the small canoe, some one ou 

" shore asked, what had been done with Keveny, and thllt De Reinhard, 

" being then in the canoe, replied, ' he is well hidden, he will not come 

" back again! " (page 34.) Faill.£, in speaking of this conversation, says 

" that on the arri,'al of the canoe, M'Lellan, Granl, Cadotte, and another 

." came forward. ;md that one of the rour asked, what they had done 

." with the prisoner Keveny," and he says, that pne of t.ue three who 

were in the canoe, but he does not silY which, liuswered, " He is well 

" hid where we have left him." (page 24.) La Pointe h~s given a se· 

parate account, by which he says, th:,;t fllaillville recounted the manner 

in which the IllUl'del' had been committed by De Reil/hard, and the re· 
~jstance which Kenny made, (page 35.) and both agree is saying, that 

at that time De Reinhard was very near, but that he ~aid nothing. 

1-aille and La Pointe agree again in representing, that they were forbid· 

den by the Prisoner to talk of tbis murder, and that they were told, that 

if they talked of the UlUl'c)er they would be punished. (pages 26 and 36.) 
His confessions made to Ih'e people are, however, the strongest evidence 

against the Prisoner. He made the. same con fessions to all fiva, and wa 

ha,"e (after hearing the arguments of counsel) decided that we could nst 

reject them. Thefirst he made to Captain D'Orsonnens; the second to 

}Ilr. Nolin, when they were walking together. (page 84.) Then there 

is his confe;sion to "~Ir. Vitchie, fOI'merly his comrade, in which he re· 

lates all the circumstances of the death of Keveny, adding, "that he 

" had confessed t.he "hole to Captain D'Orsonnens, and that he was going; 

"to do lite same to my LOHD SELKIllK, hopi)lg to be admitted King's 

" eviden~e, but he did not say that he had had any conversation witll 

.. Captain D'Orsonne.~s relative to that hope." (]lage 87.) Afterwards 

""e find him in the hamls of Lord Selki rk, with hjs declaration, made 

by his own hand, in his proper hand·writing. (pages 112 10 120.) You 

will, no doubt, consider these circumstances as very strong, but there is 

yet another, which, if it be not stronger even than the others, is eqruLlly 

worthy of remark. I allude to his declaration to Mr. Miles j}[o.cdonell. 
He began a @onversation himself with flIT. 11:~cdonell, and told him tbat 
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" h.e was a prisoner, Ilnd that he had killed a gentleman of the Hudson!!' 

" Ba,y Company," and added, " shall I nBme him to you P" and when 

Mr. Macdonell said" yes,', he then named Keveny. (paJ5e 92.) This ~ 

a circum~tance very extraordinary of itself, but Mr. lIf4Cdoneli sa,.. 
" he spoke of Kel,eny with regret, and with p,enitence for what he' had 

.. done." The law always considers a confession apparently produced 

by the compunctions of .conscience as a circumstance of a very strong 

nature. If a confession b.e extorted by hope, or by fear, it is not evi­

denc,e, but in this confession,. made to Mr.lIIacdonell, he seems to think 

that he perceive(l the fcrce of conscience.. He related all the p1;lrti<:ulars, 

and Mr. lVI,\cdonell adds, " the prisoner, De Reinhard, appeared to me to' 

.. be vel'y penitept (or what he had done, and confessed that he had done 

"wrong, but th~.t he had been led into error through isnorance.'" (l'ag~ 

93.) I am not willing to express any opinion upon this head. The first 

time tlmt the witnesses say the Prisoner confessed, he was not apparently 
lunder the influence of fear, nor in expectation of benefit. This was I).t 

the time when the small canoe I\rrived, after the murder is charged tQ 

have been cgmmitted. If you believe that his second confession wal 

influenced by the circumstallces of the situation of the country; if you 

consider that, at the time of his recital to Caplain D'Ors()1!nclls, bi~ 

mind was so agitated that you cannot rely on what he fhen- said, then 

you will reject it; but it is for you to weigh whether his mind'1vas, {)f 

was not so agitated, and, if you believe it was not, then you CIlnnot re­

ject it. It has appeare.\l to me, gentlemen, that I was bound to maktl 

these remarks upon the evidence, produc~d to you, on the part of the 

Crown. His confessiom have been frequent, besides that made to Cap­

tain D'Orsonnens. What he said to Captain D'Orsonnens, the same he 

511id to lIIr. Nolin, to Vitchie, and to 11fr. l1Iacd:onell; and, assnretlly. 

he sai,l the same to the Earl rif Sellcirk. 
On tJle part of the Prisoner it is my duty to ~tate to you, that h" 

hilS succeeded, in establishing the existence, of a most extraordinary state 

of affairs. If he has not proved that an open war e~isteQ in that coun­

try, a war known to the law as such, yet he has proved a state of netual 

'warfare. The discrepancies between the evidence of Faille and of La, 

Pointe on this trial, as also the difference between Faille's evidence 011 

the two trials have equally been proved. Faille Slly~, (in this trial,) 

" De ReinlIard did not personally tell me that he had kiliell Keveny." 

(page 22.) In the other be s"id the contrary. There is likewise aD 

apparent difference between the eriuence of La Pointe on the two triaill.. 

In one he said that wIlen he heard the first gun fired, he WIIS on shore, 

'!lnd in tqe oth~r, tilat he was on the waier. I mllst now speak of t~at 
"art oJ biR e\'idence in \\'I~icb he cayi that Q RoH·brfilc uttered tb,e ex-
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t1amatio~, "Oh, the dogs, they have kiBei! the Prisoner !"-It lIas up 

peared to mc tbat there is a conttadiction in thi~, but it is for you to 

judge, and I give no opinion. I will read his evidence as giverl on th~ 
former trial in the Coilrt of King's Bench, as it was proved by lIfr. Jus­

tice Perrault: " being cross-examineil, he said, when we heard the re­

.. port of tbe gun, ,ve wel'e encanlped, the weather was calm, we could 

.. hear from afar off," On this trial he has given eviilence quite contra" 

trary, My brother Bowen examined him on this point, and I wllll'ead 

llis evidence to you on the present trial, and then you will decide whe~ 

ther there is an essential dill·erence. ""hile we were yet on the watel', 

.. and before we arrived, ,,·c heard the report of a gun; it was perhaps 

.. about half way; some one of the Bois-brUles then in the canoe; said, 

... did you hear that gun, they have killed him.' " Certairi Iy these nar­

ratives are not the same. On the one trial he swore that the report ot 
the gun occurred when he was on shore, and in the present trial, that it 

occurred while he ",as on the water. But on the other hand, I must 

call yonr attention to the explanation which the witness gtive of what he 

meant to say when he said, " ~oe heard the report of a gun;" my bro­

tber Bowen will read to you tbe explanation he gave, 

[Mr, Justice Bowen read his cridence in anlwer to the Chief Justiu's 

question, page 34.J 

Chief Justice Sewell.-You 'see that he still says, that he heard t!Oj) 

reports, and there is no contradiction in that part of his testimony, but 

on the other trial, he said that he heard the first when he was upon the 

water, aud now he says, that he heard it wben he was on shore. I again 

!sy to you, gentlemen, it is for you to judge of the belief of which each 

witness is worthy, it is for you to determine whether La Pointe has or 

has not explained the variation. If, in your minds, you are satisfied wHit 

the explanation relative to the report of the gun upon the water, and on 

shore, it is your duty to believe him; hUt, I repeat to you, it is for you, 

and you alone, to judge, Your conscience must be your only guide in 

determining, but it is you alone who are to determille, I must tell yoa 

that Faille is guilty of a contradiction. 

[llfr. Justice Bowen read the evidence, page 16, relative to lIlr.M'Lel· 

lan's beating him.] 

Chief Justice Sewell, -The difference between this evidence, and that 

which he gave before, is this: in March term he said, that the conversa­

tion took place after he had embarked in the canoe, and now you hear 

he swears that it was on !hore', and before embarking, If you consider 

tbe contradiction so great as to destroy his testimony, to make ya. 
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wholly doubt his truth, then you will place no helief in it. There are 

bther circumstances which the Priwner, with much reasen, says are very 

important to him. In the first place, lie says, that Joseph, fils de ia. 

Perdrix Blanche, is not produced on the part of the Crown, and that he 

had reason to expect him, because he was taken by the commissioner for 

the Indian territories, in pursuance of the proclamation of his royal 

'highness the Prince Regent, fOI' the purpose, as he understood, of be· 

ing a witness in this cause, and Mr. Coltman confirms this representa. 

tion. Another circumstance is this. He says that Captain D'Orsonnens 

acted as an officer, whilst he (Captain D'Orsonnens) swore, that he 

was no morc than " a simple individual." I w,ill avail myself of this 

opportunity to state to you that it has not appeared to the Court that 

Captain D'Orsonnens has committed himself. I ma'ke this mention of 

our opinion, not to direct your?s, bLlt because the Court thinks it due 

to Captain D'Ol'sonnens, to say that those circumstances, which the 

Prisoner's counsel believe, to. be contradictory, have not appeared in 

that light to the Cow't. At the same time, we say again that it is you 

who are to judge. The evidence of Captain D'OrsonIlens as to that 

part of the case is confirmed by l1fr. Nolin, who says, upon his cross­

examination, " that he does not believe that Captain D'Orsonnens was 

." in the service of the Hudson's Bay Company, but that he was there 

.. to see the country, as a companion to my Lord S!;'lkirk." (page 85.) 

Another circumstance which, the Prisoner has put in proof is the capitu­

lation made between lIfr. Dease and Captain D'Orsonnens. Captain 

D'Orsonnens has sworn that this capitulation was required by the pur· 

ticular circumstances of the intel'ior country as well as by such as re. 

garded himself and bis people. There is SODle other evidence which the 

Prisoner says is very important. It is the evidence of Captain D'Ot­

son-nens, of La Bissonicrc, lind of CIt,elien, oli the subject of Fori Lake 

La Pluie, and of the intentions of Captain D'Orsonnens to take it ue­
fore he left Fort William, Captain D'Orsonnens says, .. that he had 

" not any intention nOl' any orders from anyone whomsoever, to take 

" the fort of Lake la Pluie." La Bissoniere, one of the Prisone,"s wit­

nesses, says; on the contrary, that he spoke of taking that fort before 

he left Fort William, and Iw relates the conversation in which Captain 

D'Orsonnens, as the witness tells us, said ,i that he could easily take 

" the fort of I.alee la Pluie, without any danger, my people are clever 

.. fellows, and I have cannon." (page 126.) On the subject Of these 

cannon there is a good deal ot difference between the testimony of Cap­

tain D'Orsonnens, and that of La Bissoniere and Chtetien; and the Pri· 

SOnel", by his coutlsel, says there is a good deal of contradiction in Cap. 

tail1 D'Orsoncm' own testimony upon hili examinatilln in chief, and hii 
B~ 
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CToss-exl1mi71lttion. La Bissoniere, speaking of the cannon, !ays, .. 1: 
" saw CAptain D'Or-sonnens go away with his people for Lake III Pluie, 
.. and he took with him two pieces of cannon. They were mounted on 

.. ~oheels; they belonged to the North West Company, and bad been 

.. taken from Fort William." In his cross-examination he says the 

snme thing; " when Captain D'Orsonnens went away for Lake la Pluie, 

" the cannon were embarked, and they were ready mounleel." (page 127.) 

Chretien, speaking of this circumstance, says,. "At the time when I 

" was in the tent at the portage of Lake la Pluie, I saw two pieces of 

" brass cannon, mounted upon their carriages, landed at Captain D'Or­

" sonnens' eamp. I had before seen these two pieces of cannon on the­

.. vessel of Fort William, and I recollected them well." (page 1S7.) 

On this subject Captain D'Orsonnens says, " I had no cannon mounlea 

" till after De Reinhard's declaration had been made. Mr. Vitchie 

.. brought me two small pieces, on the fifth or sixth of October." (page 

81.) He said that on his cross-examination. On his examination in· 

chief he swore, " We went by the way of Fort William; we had can­

" non, but nat mountcd, nor any matenalsfor so doing. They were in­

" tended for Red River, for the defence of the colony." (page 58.) 

This con~titutes the diffel'ence between the evidence for the Crown, and 

that on the pnrt of the Prisoner; and, .also, the apparent variation be­
tween that of Captain D'Orsonnens on his examination in chief, and his 

cross-examination. It is fol' you, we must say again, to judge, but per­

haps the apparent variation in Captain D'OFsonnens' testimony may be 

reconciled, when we consider tbat Captain D'Orsonnens always ~peaks 

of De Reinhard's declaration, that is to say, his evidence relates an oc­

currence as bappening before, or after, his declaration; thus, when 

~peaking of these cannon, he says, " that he had not any cannon mounted 

" till after De Heinhard's declaration." With regard to the variation 

between Captain D'Orsonnens and the witnesses for the Prisoner, it is 
your province to say to whom you will give credence. Another cir­

Cllmstance which the Prisoner's counsel have pleaded, is, that the Meu­

Tons had infiuenced him to make his confession to Captain D'Orsonnens, 

and that his mind was not free. But I fear that this circlloutance will 

not avail him, because all the witnesses agree that the l\'leurons did not 

arrive till sereit o'clock in the evening, and his declaratioR was made at 

two or three o'clock in the afternoon, or, at the latest, fOllr o'clock. 

Yet another circumstance in favour of the Prisoner, OCCllrs in the 

evidence of lIIr. Collman. He was very near the United Statfll, so near 

that "lIT. Coltman says he was apprehemive he might escape, but he did 

not attempt to e;cape. He is entitled, gentlemen, to be considered as 
1;,(It guilty, uutil the moment when you are sati~fie(l, and that you inu,~ 
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•• ay, 'by your verd!ct, that he is guilty. To enable you to say whether 

'he i, guilty or not guilty, you wilt weigh well the evidence on one !ide 

and the other. If, when you have considered it, you set his confessions 

,aside, and; with them, the evidence of Faille and La Pointe, you will 

say that he is nol guilty. On the contrary, gentlemen, if you do not 

'Pllrceive sufficient grounds to satisfy your conscience that it is your duty 

to discard from your belief; as weH his confession, as the evidence of 

Captain D'GrsO'Tlnens, of Faille, and of La Pointe; I say, that if you 

,are convinced, aecording to hig. confession and the other evidence, that 

,the Pl'isoner is at all guilty, I am bound to tell you, that he is guilty of 

th'l crime ofmur,"r. The evidence does not prove any excuse for the 

Prisoner. The crime, supposing you find that it has been committecl, 

, -is the crime of mllrder, and of murder alone. The circumstances of his 

case have not left you the alternative of reducing the crime to aHY other 

degree{)fhomicide. It is not possible to say, that it ,is mansia1ighttr, nor 

any other degree of homicide thafl that of murder. 

Gentlemen,- You are now t~ exercise your judgment upon the whole 

{)f the testimony which has been given, both on the part of tbe Crown, 

and on the part of the Prisoner, and, in so doing, I desire that no more 

attention may be paid to any thing, which I have stated to you relative 

to the facts and circumstances of tbe ca.e, tban so mucb as is necessary 

to conduct you to the consideration of the points wbich you are called 

upon to determine, as well/or as against the Prisoner. Every verdict, 

ought to be emphatically, tbe verdict of the Jury SlVorn to return it; 

and, therefore, let the opinion, which you give, be entirely your own. 

Rellect upon wbat you (}Ive 10 the Prisoner, but do not forget what 

you owe to the community at large. Pay the most serious attention to 

the wbole of the evillence which' has been laid before you, in this long 

and very important trial, on' bo{h sides; and, when you have duly and 

conscientiously weighed it witb deliberation, and have satisfied your 

consciences, give that verdict which rhall enable you, at all times, to 

say, .. 'Ve have well and truly tried, and tme deliverance made, be­

u tween our Sovereign· Lord the King, and the Prisoner, Ch(tTies De 

.. Reinhard, and we have given a true verdict, conformably to the evi • 

.. dence and to our oaths." 

[The Jury then retired under the cllre of constables, sworn in the u­

sual manner; after they had been· out of Court about an huur, a mes­

sage was sent to ascertain if it was likely they would ~oon agree, the 

answer being ill the negative, the Court adjourned till se~eno'Glock, P. I1f. 

Having re-assembled at that hour; sbortly after the Jury entel'ed, and 

being called over, were founel to be all present.] 

The usual formalities being gone ~hrough, the foreman, (Jh. Lf!'" I. 
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lee,) returned the followirg nrdict: " According to the evidence which 

"has bew given, u'e find him (the Prisoner,) GUILTY of HA.VING ..is­

" SISTED ;'/l the lIIurdcr, upon the EIGHT COUII'T."* 

Chief Justice &/Cell.-Gentlemen, I took the precaution of telling 

you this morning, if you recollect, that your duty would be to say, whe­

ther the Pl'isoner is or is not guilty of th,e crime of JJllurder; because the 

alternative was not, by the circumst;tnces of the case, left to you of re­

ducing the crime to any other dtgree of homicide. If he be at all guilty 

accol'(ling to the indictment, he is guilty of the crime of Murder, and of 

Jl:lurder alone. If you find him guilty of aiding, Clssisting, &:c. you in 

effect find him guilty of the crime of lIIurder upon the fourth count as 

well as the eighth. 

The foreman of the Jury repeating the verdict in thl) same terms" 

the Chief Justice said, " and on the fourth count also: HoV! say you 1" 
On which lIIr. Stuart, with some emotion, hegged of the, Court" that 

" the t'crdict might be taken and entered just as the Jury gave il." The 

Chi'f Justice saiu, " the Court could not enter a CONTRA.DICTORY verdict, 

" or one contrary to law." To which llIr. Stuart replied, that .. there 

" \Va~ no danger of such an on~ being returned, if the Jury's understand­

" ing of the offence was takeo, and that it was their province to say of 

.. what they did intend to convict the Pr;SDfltr." ~Ir . .Justice Bou'en ex­

plained t1H~t both counts being precisely alike, tile Court could not al­

low the J nry to conl'ict on the one anu to acquit on the other-" for" 

(oaiu he,) .. \"hat woulu he the consequ~nce of so doing ~-The verdi\)t Le­

" ing contradictory it would necessarily be void."...,..11Ir. Stuart renewe~ 

his request, sayif\g, he had nothing to do with consequences. The Court 

repeateu its determination not to take a contradictory verdict, to which 

Mr. Stuart rejoined, " I presume your Honours will take the verdict 

" such as the Jury gave it, which is all 1 ask." 

The Chief Justice recommended tbe Jury to retire, and reconsidet 

their verdict; upon which lI[r. Lawliee explained to the Court, that 

considering the Primner guilty of assisting MA.INVILLE, who commit. 

ted the Murder, the Jury found him GUILTY upon the eight count.-Mr. 

Justice Bowen strongly urged upon the Jury, that if they intended to 

find tbe Prisoner gU'ilty of hUl'ifig been present, aiding Mailll'ilie, thoy 

must find him guilty upon the fourth ~ouDt, as being that wbichfirst re­

counted the charge of' MUNVILLE'S having killed OWEN KEVEl\;Y 

with a gun, the Prisoner, CHA.RLES DE REINHA.RD, being then and 

there present, ailling and assisting in tbe murde~. He pointed out the 

* " Suiranl Ie Ie moignage qui a {Ie rendu, nOllS Ie trOut'01U coupablt 
d'al'oir ass isle dans Ie Jlleurtre selon ie huilieme chef." 
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.snfy 4ifference between the two counts to be, that by the eighth, the crimlil 

of some other persons accused was reduced, but not that of the Prisoner; 

and concluded by endf4v~ring forcibly to impress upon their minds the 

impossibility of saying, that the Prisoner was GUILTY upon the fourlh, 

when as far as regarded DE REINHA.RD, (who alone was on trial,) both 

counts were precisely the same.-The Chief ;fustice briefly enforced Mr. 

Ju.'tice Bowen's view of t4e 4uty of the Jury, adding, with great earn. 

estness: " It is, therifore, that we request you will reconsider your vel'­

" diet, because if you find the Prisoner GUILTY upon the eighth count, 

" and at the same time say that he is NpT GUILTY upon the remaining 

" counts, it is a manifest contradi/:!ion, for (as regards the Prisoner,) the 

" FOURTH is precisely the slfme as the EIGHTH." 

[Mr. Stuart again urged the Court to receive as tiJe verdict-" that 

" the Prisoner is guilty upon the eighth count, and not guilty on the 

" others ;". and was answereq, that it would be a contradictory verdict, 

!lnd therefore the Court could not receive it. He then pointedly asked, 

!' am I then to understand that the Court refuse to receive tiJe verdict pit 

And the Chiif ,fustice replied, .. !lertainly, Mr, Stuart, we do I·efuse. 

f' You ask us in the fape of all the world, to let a Jury say, that Main­

" t.ille D~D with a gun kill Owen Keveny, De Reinhard being present 

" aiding, &c. an4 at the same time to let them also say, that he DID 

" NQT kill him, and that he WAS N!)T so PRESENT. The thing is ab­

" Burd."-Mr. Vanfelson commenced an ad(lress, but was stopped by the 
Chiif Justice, who remarked, tha.t .. no assistance was wanted by the 

" Court in entering the verdict, nor should a particle of justice he with­

" held from tiJe Prisoner." JlIr. Stuart o~served, t~at all he asked was 

to have the verdict as giveq by the Jury taken, alleging that it was 

their province to give it, and the Prisoner's privilege to have it entered 

of record, be it what it may; adding, " what may be tiJe consequence 

I' hereafter, I have notiJing to do with, I only want the verdict as they 

" gave it by their foreman." The Court stated, that the Jury had not 

given a verdict, as they were not agreed. To which Mr. Stuart rejoin­

fd, that they had better retire; but they had said to the officel' of the 

Court, " that they were agreed." The Chief Justice directed the fourth 

lind eighth counts, as fa,r 11,8 related to the Prisoner, to be read; which 

was done by Mr. D'Es#mauville. (The eighth was read throughout.)} 

Mr. Stuart.-l hope your Honours will lay down the law to the Ju­

ry, on the doctrine of accessary bifo1'e, and after, the fact, as probably 

they have not clearly comprehended the application of a point of law to 

the evidence. 

Chiif Justice SeweU.-There is no such charge in the indictment 8i 

1hat of acces8ary before, or after, the [act, aga\nst De Reinhard, and 
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therefore there can be no necessity of explaining the law to the Jury 011 

Q point not involved in this case. The verdict against De Reinhard can­

Ilot be manslaughter, or any diminished homicide. The charge against 

bim is murder, and murder only. 
j}Ir. Slu8rt.-l know it ; but the intention of the Jury in the verdict 

which they returned would, hatl it been entered, have appeared. It was 

'101 to lind him guilty ofmurder, but of being an accessary. 
Solicitor Gener8/.-They cannot lind such a verdict, for as your lion­

ours have remarked there is no charge against the Prisoner, but that of 

murder. 
Chiif Justice Sewell.-I will not certainly permit the Jury to say the 

Prisoner is guilty of any other crime than that of murder which is charg­

ed, but 1 will enter a verdict of not guilty, if returned by the Jury, with 

the greatest pleasure. 
j}Ir. Sluarl.-l humbly submit that there could be no impropriety in 

your Honours explaining to the Jury the application of the principle of 

an accessary before and after the fact, inasmuch as, from the verdiet of­

fered by the Jury, it is evident they were about finding him so, and 

what the qJect of their 60 finding would be, I humbly contend, is not ~ 

question for our consideration at the present moment. They are to 
give a verdict, and as it is to be their verdict, I submit we are bound to 
receive it, without enquiring ~\ hat may, or may not, be the consequence; 

of that verdict. 

Chiif Justice Sewcll.-The law upon the subject of accessary before or 

after the fact is so clear that there can be no misunderstanding upon the 

subject, and it is equally clear that, in no point of view, does it apply to 

this unfortunate man. An accessary antecedent to the commission of 

the offence, becomes so by aiding, proposing, counselling, encouraging, 

or by any acts which may ~ave direct tendency to excite to the perpe­

tration of crime. An accessary after the offence is committed, becomes 

so by receiving the felon, aiding his escape, or any other conduct the 

tendency of which i" to shield the perpetrator of the crime, or enable 

him to escape the course of justice. Those are principles of law. This 

indictment states to us a fact, namely, tItat De Reinhard, of malice a. 

forethought, killed the deceased, or was present, aiding and assisting an. 

other in the act, and the law, in either of the cases, constitutes such ;< 

charge, a charge of murder, and of murder only, 

.lIT. Vmifelson '·osc, but was not permitted to address the Court. 

[The Chirj J(~slice recommending the Jury to retire, .ilIr. Levallie 

observed: •• Mainville bC6an to commit the murder, and De Reinhard 

.. w~, present and a'~iEting him. This;9 my verdict, and the verdict of 



20'7 

•• my colleagues, accordin'g fa tbe evidence we have heard, and we wiH 

" return no other."-The Chief Ju~tice remarked, "tbat is to say, gen.' 

I, tIemen, that be is guilty upon the fourth AND eighth counts ;"-to 

which Mr. Lewllee replied, " it is the same thing."-Tbe clerk of tlae 

Crown having, under the direction of tbe Court, entered " verdict of 

guilty upon the two counts, read it to tbe Jury; but upon asking their 

concurrence in the usual form; .. and so you say all," one of them (Mr, 

Trahan,) said "No, not on the two counts." The Court observing, 

.. Gentlemen, you must be all agreed; 'you had better retire," it was 

suggested that Mr. Trahan had not ,listinctIy heard the fourth count; 

upon which, the part of it relating De Reinhard was read again by di­

rection of the Chief Justice, who, after enquiring if the Juror had right­

ly heard it, and being answered " yes," begged him to attend to the 

eighth, and see if tHere was the least diJl'ereJice between the two. The 

eighth count having been read, Mr. Stuart wished to know if the whole of 

the fourth count was read, to which the Chief Justice observed, tbat all 

relating to De Reinhard had been, and that it was unnecessary to read 

what related to the accessaries, to enable the Jury to decide on the guilt 

or innocence of the Pris,oner. This not being satisfactory to lWr. Stuart, 

it was remarked by Mr. Justice Bowen, that the accussed having chosen 

to have separate trials, the charges against them must be severed also­
that the counts then in disQussion, containing two distinct charges, and, 

against different persons, it could be of no conseqaence to read to the 
Jury, on the trial of the p·rincipal, the accusation against the tLccessaries • 

. 1Ifr. Stuart again expressed his dissatisfaction, adding, (with some em­

phasis,) " I beg again to repeat, very respectfully, to the Court, that all 

" I ask i~ that, if the Jury are to find on a count, they may hear it read, 

" indeed I know qfno RIGHT that exists to keep any part from them."] 

Chief Justice Sewell.-What is it, Mr. Stuart, that you propose to ef­

fect by having it read? What do you wish, or mean, to haye read·? 

Mr. Stuart.-I mean, with gl'eat deference to the Court, to contend 

that the whole of the fourth count should be read, and that the officer of 

the Conrt had no right to keep back any part of it. 

Solicitor·General.-Your Honours must perceive, that the object of 

all this is, merely to dMract the attention of the Jury. My learned 

friend cannot propose to himoolf any other object by th~ course. What 

have the charges against M'Lellan, and others, to do with De Reinhard 1 

lIfr. Stuart.-All I mean is, to ask that the u'hole count may be read. 

The Court will take such a course as they think proper. I feel it my 

duty to ask it. 

Solicitor·General.-I eontend, may it please the Court, there are no 

reaSOllj whatever for granting thQ application; the present is not I~ke :} 
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tormal reading of the indictment, such as at thearraigllment of a Pr;< 

BOner, it is merely for the information of the Jury. For the sake of re­

gularity, not that we can have any objection, from any elrect the read­

ing might produce, but solely from a desire to proceed regularly, I tru.t 

that the Court wlll not consider it necessary to grant this application. 

Mr. Justice Botcen.-If any important point, or material averment, 

\Vas contained in the remainder of tbe count, which it was necessary for 

this Jury to understand, I should be clearly of opinion that it ought to 

be granted, but I really cannot see the neces~ity, or propriety, of such 

reading. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-What good it is to produce I know not, but 

Jet it be read. 

[The Aitorney·General rose, to oppose the reading, but at the sug­

gestion of tbe Chief Justice-to which Mr. Juslict Bowen stated, that 

thongh he did not see that any benefit could arise from it, he had no ob­

jection to the reading-did not persist in the opposition. Mr. Stuart 

observed, his reason fur urging its reading was, that if the Jury were 

to find on it, not one word ought to be omitted.-The Court remarking, 

that the eighth count had been entirely read without the omission of even 

a name; Mr. Stuart said, he only complained of thefourlh. The Chief 
Justice observed, " then you want the names of Ihe accomplices read, for 

" that in fact is all that remains to read ;" to which Jllr. Sluarl rejoined, 

.. I do not know what may remain; I want the ll'hole read, be it what 

.. it mayl'] 

TIle fourth count was then read throughout by Mr. D' Estimauville. 

[During the whole of the discussion, of which the foregoing is an ac­

turate compendium, the Prisoner appeared to be agitatetl, and upon the 

reading of the count being ended, he exclaimed, with considerable emo­

tion, (in French,) " 1I'Ir. D'Estimauville, have you finished with this in­

ti sUgation of the devilJ" (To the Court.) "Will you permit me to say 

" a few words?" The ChiPf Justice saying, "certainly, yes,"-he con­
tinued, ., I am mortified to hear the indictment read so often, it would 

.. seem to be the beginning of my trial, when I thought it would have 

.. been finished. It is long enough as it is-ten days; and I am mortifiQ 

.. ed, much mortified that it ~hould be made longer by reading the in­

B dictment."-The Jury then consulted together in their box for a few 
minutes.] 

.Mr. Levallie, (addressing the Court.)-We find him guilty on the 
tighth indictment, that is, the eighth count of the indictment. 

ChiPf Justice Sewell.-Wbat do you say to the fouTtll then, which ~ 
thefiTst ill order, and precisely the Bame as the eightltJ 
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iii,;. Stuart and Mr. Vanfelson.-We hope the veraiet will be taken 

Ill! they give it. 

Chiif Just-ice Sewel!.-Gentlemen, you mUst let us understand what 

they do intend to say, before we can record their verdict. I only want 

to know, what,.in point of fact they do say, so that I may enter it,if it 
is a verdict according to law. 

lIf1'. Levallie.-We find him guilty on the eighth count, of nssisting. 

, Chiif Justice Sewell.-We request you will retire. It is a contradic­
tory verdict, and we cannot receive it. 

A JUTo1'.-It is useless for me to retire, it is my verdict, and I will 

give no other, wefe I to die pf bunger. 

Chiif J,ustice Sewell.-If you will listen to me for a moment, I will 
explain to you. By this verdict, you say, upon your oaths, that he is 

guilty upon the eighth count, and you also say, upon your same oaths, 
that he is not guilty upon all the otheTs; to say so is a contradiction, for 

the fourth and the eighth are exactly alike, the same entirely, word for 
word, as tf} De Reinhard. 

The Jury then retired and shortly after'returned into Court, and were 
called over. 

OjJicer of the CouTt.-Gentlemen, are you agreed upon your verdict. 

Jury.-Yes, Sir. 

OjJicer.-Who shall speak for you? 

Jury.-.'Y.fr. Sasville. 

Q/Twer.-Look at the Prisoner. How do you say? Is he guilty of 

the murder ancl felony, in the manner and form in which he stands 

charged in the indictment, or not guilty? 

Mr. S'asville.-He is guilty upon the fourth and eight counts of the 

indictment, and not guilty lJpOn the olllel's. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Let it, Mr. Walle", be so entered of record. 

Clerk of the Crown, (by the 1nterpreter.)-Gentlemcn of the Jury, 

hearken to your verdict, as the Court have recorded it. You say that, 

" you find CHARLES DE REINHAR:Q GUILTY of the FELONY and 

" MURDER, whereof, he is accused, in manner ,lLnd form as he stands 

" charged in the FOURTH and EIGHTII counts of the indictment, and that 

" he is NOT GUILTY of the rest of the indictment"-and so say you all '! 
Jury ,-Yes, Sir. 

Chief Justice· Sewell.-Do you hear anll understand it, gentlemen? 

Mr. SasvWe.-Yes, your Honours. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-GentJemen, before you retire, the Court have­

to present you with its· thanks, and not only the thanks of the Court 

but'those of the district at large, for your attention to this case.­
cil-
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Gentlemen, the ,CourtJor ilself, and in lhe nctme oj the dil/riel, most !ill­

cerely thank you, not only for your attention, but for the manner in which 

you have performed your c1uty, during this long trial. Gentlemen, you 

are discharged. 
[The AI/orney-General immec1iately moved for judgment against'the 

:rrisoner, and the enquiry being made, .. what he had to say, why the 

"', Court should not proceed to judgment and execution against him?" 

1I1r. VanJelson statec1, that he proposed, for c1ivers reasons, to except to 

the judgment. After mentioning some of them, he added, that their 

objections would be more fully stated by his colleague; and as ,Mr. Stu­

art restatec1 those of lI'Ir. YanJelson, it is only necessary to observe, that 

one was to a point of law, and others related to the conc1uct of the-Jury 

nnd of the officer, who hac1 them in charge. 

Mr. Stuart intimating, that it lVas their intention to submit two mo­
tions tn the Court; the one in arrest of judgment, and the other for a 

new trial; anc1 that the first step would be founc1ec1 nn the question of 

jl1risdiction,-The Chief JtLsl-ice observed, that the questiou of jurisdic­

tion was uone with, as the Court hac1 given its decision upon it, after, a 

solemn argument, whilst the Jury had, by their verdict given theirs.­

He then directed l1Ir. Stuart to state the solid legal gounds upon which 

be proposed to discuss the motions.] 
Mr. St-uart.-I will state tbem eXlJlicitly to the Court. If the Court 

differ wilh me, my duty is of courle to submit, but I will briefly state the 

course I propose to adopt, and it will include the grounds of objection 

submittell by my learned friend who is with me. My first objection 

goes to the question of jurisdiction, which, although considered by the 

Court to be a point upon which they have decided, I may perhaps be per­

mitted to renew to a certain extent. I do not desire to go again into an 

extenlled argument on the subject, but I do hope thatin an incidental 

manner I may be, permitted, to renew the consideration of the jurisdic­

tion, as connected with the question of locality. I proceed to say, 

~ndly. That neither this Court, nor any other Court in Canada, has 

the right to try for Jelonies committec1 in the Indian territories. Power 

is only given taero, I c~ntend, for the trial of misdemeanours. 

Sdl}'. Waiving tbe la!t objection, I suhmit that, if power to try for 

felonies i< given to any, still it is only to such as are the usual COllrts. 
and not to a Court of Oyer and Terminer. ' 

l\Iy Jourth objection will be, that two separate returns of the Jury 

bave not been allowed by the Court to be taken; although, as I con­

tend, the Prisoner is cntitlec1 to have the verdict of the Jury rccorc1eJ, 

without any consic1eration of what the consequence of that verdict may 
loco 
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Chief Justice Sewell.-We cannot allow you, lIfr. Stuart, to argue the 

propriety of our j·efusing to receive and record an illegal, because a con­
tradictory, verdict. All that we said to the Jury was this, if you find the 

Prisoner guilty of heing preEent, aiding, and assisting Franfois Main­

ville, to murder Ow.en Keveny, it must be, upon the two counts that 

charge that crime, or if guilty upon one count only, then you must find 
him so upon thefirst which Gharges tbe offence, whiEh is the fourth count, 

but we cannot take, such a verdict upon the eighth, because it would a­

mount to a~ absurdity, involving in it a dIrect contradiction, as the 

fourth is verbatim the same, as far as the crime of the Prisoner is set 

forth. We cannot, Mr. stuart, permit you to argue upon our refusal to 
record what was an illegal, because a contradictory, verdict. 

Mr. Stuart.-I merely state my objections, and must of course bow 

to the authority of your Honours. My next o,bJection, waiving the for­

mer ones, is, that by the 43d of the King, cap. 133, it is only subjects of 

the King, committing" offences in the Indian Territories," OVCI· whom 

the jurisdiction of this prQvince is extended, and that, in the preEent case, 

the Prisoner is not stated in the indictment nor have the Crown officers 

proved him, to be a British subject, and I might add that, in point of law, 
he is not so. 

Solicilor-General.-I beg to remark that it was not necessary for us 

to prove that he was a British subject. By the act upon which he was 
indicted, if he had shewn that he-was wrongfully or illegally indicted, he 

was entitled forthwith to his acquittal, but the onus probandi lies up'!n 

the Prisoner. 

111)". Stuart.-A further objection is misconduct on the pal't of the J u­

ry, and of the officer who had charge of them, dul'ing the time they wel·e 

absent from Court. I beg I may not be understood as intending any 

thing personal to the Jury, very far from it, but I am given to under­

stand, that the Jury have been allowed to converse with persons on the 

subject of this trial, and that the officer who had them in charge has 

himself held conversations on the subject with them. In reference to 

the gentleman thus alluded to (l1fr. D'Estil1lauville,) I beg to remark 

that, as of course it must be under affidavit that this allegation must 

be sustained, we shall give him every information in our power as ear­

ly as possible, so us to enable him to meet, and if he CIlII, reLut th.,. 

charge. 
Solicitor-General.-As it will, perhaps, to rebut the charge be ne­

cessary that we prepare counler-affidavits, I should wish some time to be 

appointed for us to receive those of the Pds'oner, that a suitable ar­

rangement may be made for the discussion of the motio~ of which my 
learned friends luwe given notice; at present, it is impossible to fix a 
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carry their support of. this charge. 

After some explanation between the COllrt and the counsel on bolh sides, 

the Court was ordered 10 be adjourned till twelve o'clock on Salurr;lall, the 

S~lh i'(lstant, and a~cordingl!l was so ad/ournell. 

Saturday, ;301h May, ISH!. 

,RESENT AS BEFORE. 

[M~. Stuart stated to the Court, that the Prisoner's "ounsel beirlg 

called upon last night to state their grounds of opposition, they had from 

the circumstances which had been communicated to them, felt them­

selves bound to include the objection to the conduct of t)1e Jury, and of 

the officer who had had them in charge, although they had not examine!! 

the evidence to sustain the validity of it, but that their enquiries since 

bad satisfied them it was their 4uty to abandon the objection. He add­

ed, .. we feel, however, that we should be wanting to the gentleman, 

" (Mr. D'EslimaUt,ille,) in whose care t)1e Jury were placed, after hav~ 

" ing, for a moment, qnestioned his conduct, if we did not thus publicly 

.. declare that be most correctly fulfille<l his duty as an officer of thi$ 

.. Court, and that we were misinformed. For t~e argument we are not 

.. at present prepared, baving beel!. completely occupied \n examining 

., into the evidence by which it was supposed tbat the allegation just 

" alluded to, could be sustained, we therefore bope for the indulgeDc\: 

" of the Court!'] 

After sOllie conversation between the Court, the Croun qfJicers, and 
the counsel Jor Ihe Prisoner, the Court was adjourned till Wednesday, 
Sd oj June, at /tJtt O'clock, A. 3[. 
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fRESENT AS BEFOR~, 

THE Chief Justice enquiring If the gentlemen were reaAly to pro.ceed 

'With the argument, Mr. SIUMt intimated that Mr. Vanjelson would 

open it, and he should follow him in support of the motions for a new 

trial, and in arrest of-judgment. Mr.Solicilor-General questioned whe­

jher it was competent to the Court to receive a motion for a new trial in 

11 case ofjclony, and, as the Crown officers were prepared with autha­

rities to shew that it could not, he suggested that to enter upon a solem-ll 

argument till the ques'tion of competency was decided, might be a waste 

of time, The Chiif Juslice remarked that, upon the motion in arrest of 

judgment, tpeir right to be fully heard could not be questioned. Ti)c 

/letter course, therefore, he considered would be, to hear the Prisoner'S 

counsel in support of their motion till they were exceeding legal bounds, 

and then to stop them, and argue the ~bjections, As any other than 

~his apparently direct method, would, he feared, occupy mOI'e time, and 

present greater difficulties, he shouhl direct Mr. Vanjelson, who wali to 
ppen the argument to prooeed. 

Mr. Varrjelson.-ltlay it please the Cuurf,-We shnIl have the honour 

to submit Iwo motions; the first fOI' a new trial, and the second in arrest 

of judgment. To support the first, we shall urge three grounds, first, 

That the cOlijession proved by Doctor Allan, and received by the Coul't 

as coming from the Prison'er, has not been legally proved, and ougbt tl) 

have been rejected by the Court. 

Chiif Juslice8ewell.-If I understand you correctly, the ground TOU 

take is, that in receiving the conjession of the Prisoner, delivered II) Iht 

Earl oj Sd~il'k, in the presenc~ oj DoctQT Allan, at common 1l1;w, the Court 

:proceeded irregularly. 

Jllr. Vanjelson.-Wit4 great deference to the Court, that is one of 

the'points which we submit. The $econd is, misdirection to the ..Jury by 

the Court, in as much as there was no proof that Owen Keveny was 

'killed: I mean there was no proof of the baptismal name of Keveny, 

'l"hether it was Owen ot' Oliver, or any other name, and the indictment 
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cbarges it to have been Owen Keveny. It was, therefore, illcumbent 

on the Crown to have proved that it WAS Owen Keveny, who had been 

killed; neither was there any proof given of the actual death of Keveny. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-I must stop you, JIf.r. Van/elson. You must 

confine your arguments to legal objections, and, upon those, we shall be 

happy to 4ear you fully. Your objections to the not .proving the bap­

tiMlla, name of the deceased, and the want of positive demonstration of 

the death, al'e points that have been settled, a~d, to revive them, would 

be to try the cause again. 

Mr. Van!elson,-We shall have tbe honour to snbmit to the Court 

in the first place, the motion for (l new trial. We believe that it will 

not be wrong for us to support it by such arguments as may pre~ent 

themselves to our minds as calculated to evince that the grounds upon 

which it is made are legal being conformable to the criminal law of 

England. I submit, therefore, very respectfully to the Court, that in 

proposing this motion, and urging in its support the arguments I shall 

presently offer, I only fulfil my duty towards the Prisoner, but, I fear, 

I have not correctly explained myself, and, by that means, have been 

misapprehended by your Honours. I propose to submit to the Court 

lhat my learned brethren, the officers of the Crown, have not proved 
the necellsary and essential fa1:ts, namely, that Keuny is actually killed, 
nor that it is Owen Keveny who is dead. I also take the liberty of re­

presenting tbat we consider the con!ess;on of De Reinhard, admitted by 
the Court, 8S evidence that was not admissible. 

[Here Mr. V. was stoppe(l, by the Court staling that those points 

being already decided, they could not hear an argument upon them. 

Mr. Y. conter.ded, that at the present stage of the proceedings he was 

entitled to ar.gue them. The Chief JIlstice expressed the readiness of 

the Court to hear his counsel upon every poi\lt that could advantage the 
Prisoner, but the legality of receiving the confession had been argued, 

and solemnly decided, by the Court, whilst the point depending on the 

credibility of the witnesse~ had been decided by the Jury, and, it was, 

therefore, imposEible for the Court to hear further diScussion on those 

points. ]}lr. V. again urged his opinion, and begge(1 the Court to con­

sider him as arguing on general grounds, thou;;h he considered, at thi3 

stage of the proceedings, 50 far from being beyond his privilege in bring­

ing before the Court the receipt of illegal evidence, or its own misdi~ 

fection, that it was" no unusual occurrence, but the constant practice." 

]1r. Justice Bowen observed, that poi nts of law decided in the lower 

Courts were often brought up to the superiour·, and arguments took 
place upon the correctness of the decision; but, he believed, no case 
ever was heard of, wherein a Court was called upon to hear a solemn 
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ilrgUmellt the object of which must be to induce it to reverIe it owl1 
decision.] 

Chief Justite Sewell.-It is tlie wish of the Co~t, in refusing to hear 

an argument on what is in fact already decided, (and decided after hear­

ing argument,) -in the most ~oleBm manner, that you should distinctly 

appreciate our motives for 50 doing. The indi,ctment charges Owen 

Keveny to have been killed by 1lIainville, the Prisoner being present, 

aiding in the murder; and 'the Jury have, by their verdict, declared 

Owen Keveny was the person killed.' As to the proof of the actual 

death, the verdict equally establishes that point. In the' absence of po­

sitive evidence of tbe death, by the body baving been seen, the Crown 

officers produced a chain of testimony, from which, as they contended, 

the death must be iriferred, The Jury have, by their verdict, declared 
that they did so infer, and have decided alike, that the man is dead, 

and that the man who was murdered by Mainville, was actually, as is 

charged in the indictment, Owen Keveny. They have decided these 

matters, and we cannot meddle with their decision. Their verdict is 

upon record, they returned it according to the credit which they gave 

to the evidence, and not against manifest evidence, and we cannot on 

that ground disturb it. Had they acquitted even against manifest evidence, 

we could only, before recording the verdict, direct the jury to go out 
again, and reconsider the matter, but not after the verdict had been re­

corded, then, though it was a verdiot against evidence, we could not set 

it aside, on a prosecution properly criminal; and, though " verdict 

which convicts may be set aside, under the humane provisions of our law, 

it is only for being given contrary to evidence, or the misdirections oC 

the judge. These rules are found in 2nd Hawkins, cap. 47. sect. 11 and 

12. 

J1ft. Justice Bowen.-The point is so well established, that, after n 

convictio~, a motion in arrest of judgment must be on clear matter of 

law, that I confess I am surprised it should be attempted to pursue a 

different course.-My Lord lIale expressly lays it down, after convic­

tion a motion in arrest of judgment must be on a. clear point of law, 

and not offact, and that if a JUl·y had found even conl'rary to, fact, still. 

6uch finding could not stay judgment, though it furnished ground for a 

recommendation to mercy. But a verdict being recorded, unless, on 

points of law, a Court can hear nothing, as if they did, they would be 

a Jury, decidin~ upon facts, instead of Judges, administering law. 

JJ.Ir. Vanfelson.-May it please the Court, I have no desire in sub7 

mitling these two motions, that points already decided should be re-ar­

gued, but I do submit on the part of the Ptisoner, under a firm persua-

6;on that it is my duty, Bnd equally my right, to do so, two motions, 
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-tbe one !'or a new trial, anlt the other in arrest of judgment. In 5'11'· 

port of the~e motions, I have the honour to mbmit that "the confession 

.. o[ the Prisoner ought not to have been ,'ccL',·ed;" again, I submit, cer­

tainly, with great deference to the COUl't, that tbe uirections given to 

the Jury by the President of this Court, upon the two points, namely, 

the christian uame, and the death, of Keveny, were not conformable to 

Jaw, and that, in following those directions, the Jury found the death 

of Owen Keveny, without any proof. 
Chief Jus/ice Sewell.- W e cannot allow you to ar'gue the points you 

mention. You are, by this course, asking us to take up thg cause again, 

and go through it from beginning to end, point by point, aRd say whe­

ther or not the Jury have rightly decided on the matters of [act, alld 

whether the Court have decided rightly on the question of law. We can­

not do it; if you have a motion for a new trial, or in arrest of judgment, 

let them be supported hy legal arguments, and we are ready to hear you 

at any length "your inclination, guided by a sense of duty, may lend 

you to address us. 
Solicitor-General.-I request permission again to remark, that it ap­

pears to me to be a question whether tlIe Court have power to grant a 

new trial in a case of felony, and, if they IJa,"e not, that it will be use­

less for my learned f"iends to occupy the time of the Court upon a sub­
ject which, perhaps, if strictly looked into, ought not to be entertained 

at all. I take it to be a settled point, that in no offence higher than a 

misdemeanor, can a new trial be gmntcd, and, if that opinion is not 

erroneous, I should consider that my learned f"iends cannot be pennit­

ted to ar.~"e tlIe former motion, but must confine themselves to that in 

arrest of judgment. 

lIIr. Stuart.-I by no means comillcr that it i3 a settled point that a 

new trial cannot be granted in a case of felony. The course, I believe, 

which is to be obsen'ed in this argument is, that we ~hall be first heard in 

support of the motions, and the learned Crown officers will reply to us. 

In so doing, they will oppose snch authorities, as their judgments esteem 

to weigh against us, but I beg that we may be permi tted to state the 

grounds upon wbich we rely, without interruption. J.\'Iy learned friend. 

fr[,', Vll11[elson, will open to the Court our reasons in support of the mo­

tions, and I shall have the honour to follow him. If we exceed the fair 

limits of discussion, or a(h'ance illegal positions, we shall be stopped 

by the Bcnch, and, as is our Juty, bow to any correction which its 
wisdom may dictate, 

Mr. Varifelson.-The grountls then which I have the honour to sllb· 

mit, in support of tbe two motions which we propose to lay before the 

("ourt, namely, fur a new trial, anll ill arrest of judgment, arc nwne-
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rOllS. tn the first place, I'say that tIie Pr\sol).er'~ confesEion before my 
Lord Selkirk ought not to have been received. Set:rmdly, I submit, wIth 

the' greatest deference, that the Court misdireCted the Jury with .respect 

to the boundaries of the province of Upper Canada ; and thirdly, I main­

tain that the Jury have found that the Prisoner assisted lI'Iainvilie to kill 

Owelt K~euy, contrary to, or. rather witbout any.ev.idence, inasmuch 

as the officers of the Crown haye not put in prooftllat Keveny. is actually 

,Iea.d, .nor that it \~S Owen Ke,-eny, who was killed by llfainville.-­

These are the means by which I propose to support the motiQn for a 

!lew trial. , 
Mr. Justice Bowen.-And they are grounds npon which,. I'cQnfess, 

I think we ought not to hear you. On the face of them is stated what 

certainly is not a fuct, for the verdict of the Jury directly and flatly 

contradicts it, The verdict of the JU1'y, declo-ring the PrisoJ1er t.o 'be 

" guilty of the felony whereof he was accused, In manner and rai-in as 

" he stood charged in the indictment," explicitly ~ays, that the. mjln is 

deO-d, .and equally declare~ that it was OWEN KEVENY whom tl)(~ Pris_ 

oner wa~ pro~ent aiding and abetting in tile murder of. I ~onfess that I 

cannot re~oncile myself to hear you argue poin ts already decided by the 

Jury, and without at this moment expressing an opinioll upon .f!Ir. So­
licitor's suggestion as to the propriety of at all entertaining a motion 

fur a new tdal in a case of/~lony, I remark that, if permitted, it must 

be argued on legal grounds, and 110t upon matters of/gel, fQ>r they were 
never within the sphere of.ollr diclum; they belonged to the Jury,. whQ 

/lave decided upon them according to ~heir judgments and consciences; 

'U'e have recordetl their decision, and have no right to meddle with it. 

As to the cor.j'cssion, you ha:ve been heard upon it, aud the COllrt ~o­

lemnly pronounced a~ its decision that, as evidence at common lal", it 

was admissi/)le, and could no/ be wilhJleld .from Ihe J 11ry, it, thel'efore, 

went to them, and, in the exercise of t!lei!' discretion, Ihey hare (unfor­

tuna,tel y for the prisoner) beliet'ed it. Under these cil'cumstances, I 

think, it is going too far to endeavour to support fi motio,", for a new 

tJ'ial, by calling.upllJlUS to say that in so deciding we acted contrary to 

Im1', A,s to cnle,,'/ain·illg a nwtioll for a Ilew trial, I repeat, at presflIl 

I give no opinion . 
.Attorncu-Ge!lcrt~I,~Ibeg permission of the Court to contend, beforo 

my leaWled fl'iend resum.es hi, pb~el'\catitms, (as it may Save time) tha~ 

in reoeiving a motion fot 8 uelv triul in :tbis Case, we are acting in con­

t,'adiction to fil'st principles. This is a case of jelo;IY, anti, I believe, 

that it is settled, beyond dispute, that no new trial can i:Je granted in 

CIl'''S of felony. I find no authority, which goes the length of saying 

tbat a new tl:ial can be granted, in a case of fdony, under any circum.; 
D'~ 
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vtances. The attainment of substantial justice, your Honour~ know, .~ 

not a principle by wbich a Court can be altogether governed in granting 

or refusing a new trial Law and usage combine to limit this lIiscretion­

ary power, even in ordi'flary cases, where the iegality of them is not 

disputed. In !<Upport of this doctrine, I refer to 6 Term Reportl, page 

628, the ca,e of the King versus }~Iawbcy, Bart. and others. In the ar­

gument upon that case, the principle I have just submitted is contended 

for on the part of the Crown, and although Lord l{enyon did not alto­

getber recognize the general opinion, yet he said, " In one class of of­

" fences, indeed those greater than misdemeanorl, no new trial can be 

granted at all." 

The Attorney-General read at cOllsiderable length the argumenl on the 

pari of the Crown, by JT[css. (now Baron) GARROW and LAWES, and 

continued; 

10 delivering judgment upon the case, Lord KENYON say!, page 

630. "It has been contended that inasmuch as defendant!, who have 

" been acquitted in criminal cases, cannot be tried a setond time, the ne­

" cessary consequence was, that in this case we could not grant a new 

" trial, even thongh we were clearly of opinion that the other two difen.­

" dants had been improperly convicted. But I think the rule was cor­
, rectly stated by the counsel for tbe defendants, that in granting new 

.< trials the Court knows no limitation, (except in some excepted cases) 

" but they will either grant or refuse a new trial, as it will tend to the 

" advancement of justice. In one class of offences indeed," his lordship 

add~, " those greatfT than misdemeanors, no new trial can be granted 0.1 all." 

After citing such an authority as my Lord Kenyon, I consider it un­

necessary to trouble your Honours further, as no argument of mine can, 

by possibility, add to the decision of so learned a judge. I proceed to 

remark upon another of my learned friend's proposed points, which I 
consider it would be equally inexpedient for the Court to entertain, viz. 

his objections to the ,,'ant of proof of the baptismal name and of the death 

of lieveny. They are circumstances involving in them matters of fact, 

u)'on which the Jury have given us a decision, by which we are bound. 

to abide. If their decision is wrong, there is another quarter in which a 

representation can be made, aDd if proper that it should be so, will no 

doubt be made with success. A word as to the eonfeuion bifore Earl 

Selkirk, which my learned friend states to have been irregularly received. 

It was not put in as " a eonfession rnatk before Earl Selkirk ;" it was un­

doubtedly offered as such, but was refused admission, exeept as, a piece of 

evidence at i)()mmon law. The Court decided, after hearing the learned 

gentlemen agaimt it, tbat it must be so rcceired, it is, therefore, usele55 
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to argue upon that point, as I take it your Honours will not be disposed 

to listen to an argument ~gainst your own decision. As to the Jury 

convicting against, or witliout, evidence, it is equally unnecessary 1-
!hould trouble the Court, as I consider the motion which that position 

was intended to support, viz. one for a _ new trial, must be refused to be 

heard. I beg to refer to another authority upon this point, 13, East, 

page 416, the King versus the Inhabitants oJ Oxford, in a note,(b) ,,'In 

.. capital CRiteS at the assizes, if a conviction take place upon insufficient 

U evidence, the common course is to apply to the Crown for a pllrdon, 

.. upon a full report of the evidence scnt in by the learned judge to the 

.. secretary of state for the home department, but I am not aware of any 

.. instance of a new trial be-ing granted in a capital case, and upou the de­

" bate of all the judges in Margaret Tinkler's case, in 1781, it seemed to 

" be considered that it could not be." Upder these authorities, which, 

for the sake of preserving regularity, I have produced as conclusive a­

gainst receiving a motion for a /Jew trial, I presume the gentlemen 

will be compelled by the Court to restrain themselves to the motion in 

arrest of jlidgment. 

~Ir. SIUlli't.-With permission of the Court, I will state very sum­

marily the ground proposed to be occupied by the Prisoner's counsel on 

these motions, for 1 beg to say, that I consider it by no means a settled 

point that a motion for a new trial cannot be entertained and granted in 

a criminal case, sucll as the present. It is true that, as the learned At. 

torney-General has shewn, there is a dictum upon the subject--

Chief Justice Sewell.-Allow me to interrupt you, If'Ir, 8luarl, to say 

that we will hear you fully on every point which consistently with our 

duty we can do. You know we should be glad to hear you on every 

point which your judgments consider it to be your duty to urge on be­

half of this unfortunate Prisoner, but the solid, legal points in arre~t of 

judgment, must not he confounded witlJ reasons to suspend the execu­

tion of the judg~ent as they must be addressed to another quarter. It 

is not necessary to determine at the present moment how far a new trial 

ean or cannot be granted in cases of felony. We will heat' you fully on 

the grounds of your legal, indisputa~y legal, motion, that in alTest of 

judgment, and incidentally you may touch on other matt~rs, but, if you 

exceed legal beunds, .ynu must of COUl',e be stopped-l think this cour~e 

will save much time and enable you, Gentlemen, who have to support 

the motion to attain fully the objects you have in view without trenching 

on what appears to have been fully conside~ed, and in fact iletermined. 

Mr. Vaiifelsoll.-Then, may it please the Court, I submit on the 

motion in arrest of judgment two positions. That this Court has not 

juris,jiction or power, under the statute of tbe 43d of lite King, to take 
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that if the Court can take cognizance. of some offences, it hl\!' not the. 

power to try any fe/fFny. By the foul position, I say generally, that a 

Court of Oyer and Terminer does not originally )lossess nny jUI'islliction 

to take cognizance of offences committed in the Indian territori'es, anll 

that the statute of the 43d of the King, does not give it to any Cortft of 

the' pmvince of Lower Canada, but to the Courts, to the" lIsual Conrt." 

that i~, the ordinary Courts. It is we!1 known the stnlute of the 34tk 

of the King, commonly called the" Judicature act," divides the pro­

vince of Lower Canada into three districts, ill each of which a Court 

was erected, and, 1 submit to your Honours, that it is in these djstrict 

Courts-the district of Quebec, of JlIoJl/real, anll of Three Rirers-we 

must recognize the" usual Courts" of this province. 

Let us now look for a moment at the act of 1803, and we shall ~re 

that it contains l\YO or three very I'emarkable things. Let us first I'c~,1 

its title and preamble, and then c(}mpare them with the statute of the 

34th oflheKing, cap. G. \ 

JJlr. ranfelson having read the /;!l[ and preamble continued; 

Here we perceive the evil requiring a remeuy. It was, that great 

crimes alll1 offences had been committed in the Indian territories, anu, 

for want of a oompetent jurisdiction to try them, the offenders had e~­

caped with impunity, Tile remeuy, which thi~ act provides, is to ~\'e 

to the Conrts of the Prodnces of Lower and Upper Canada, authority 

to try crimes and offences so committed, " in the .• ame manner as if Ihey 

.. had been cammilled within (one or other of) those prov'inces;" the act 

further declaring that they "shall be, and be deemed 10 be, offences 6f 

" the same nature, and subject 10 the same punishment." Before we refel' 

to the" Judicature act" let us examine the 3d section of this act for what 

is saiu concerning the Courls of the two provinces . 

. I1Ir. Vanfelson read ·it throughout, and continued; 

I pray the attention of tile Court to the words" may and shall be 

" prosecuted and tried in the Courls of the Province d L":L'CT Canada," 

&c. whilst, in spellking of Upper Canada, this section says the Courl. 

What Courts? assuredly the Courts of the three di.tricts established by 

the act of the 34th of the Killg, to which we shall presently refer. 'The 

reason this distinction was made betw~en the two provinces is obvious­

the province of Upper Canada has but one Court, whilst that of Lo·u.·er 

Canada contains the Court of the district of Quebec, the Court of the 

district of Montreal, which, together with the Court of King's Bench 

for the district of Three Rit'ers, cODstitute the uSlc5l Courts. Let us 
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.' division of the prnvinoe of Lower Canada, for amending the Judicature 

" thereof, and for repealing certain laws therein named." 

[!lIr. VanJtlson rcaq. the preamble and first clause, which <livides the 

province into-three districts, alld defines the boundarits of eacll-the se­

!lolld and third constituting in ear.:h of the districts of Quebec and Mon­

treal a' (Jourt·oJ King's Bench, and estl!,blishing 'terms fo), holding the 

criminal sessions thereof; and the eleventh section which enacts.that, for 

the distript of Three Rivers, a Court of King's Bench shall sit in two 

terms of every year at the towu Of Three Rivers, for criminal and civil 

causes-and the" continued his arg;lment.] 

It is here, therefore, I submit, that we must seek for the usual cri­

minal Courts of this pro~ince, and, in one of them the Prisoner woult!. 

have been tded, bad the offence been committed within the province,­

I know very well that his Majesty has the prerogative of appointing 

Courts of" Oyer and Terminer," anu that theJourth section of this act 

provides for its exercise in this province. '" e say nothing against this 

provision, we kpow that it is specially the prerogative of his Majesty, 

• and of his representative, to ol'iginate commissions of Oycr and Tenni­

mr; bijt, I take the liberty of rClunrking, g'tltcrally,-that such d 

Court is not co-equal, either in its formation or in its powers, with Lhe 

Courts of King's Bench, and, in parlicular, I maintain that a Court of 

Oyer anll Terminer and General Gaol Delivery, cannot be a Court de­

signated by the act of 180S. 

If we refer to the th,rd section of that act, we shall pcrceke the im­

possibility of a Court of Oyer and T~T1ILillcr possessing autbority to tl'Y 

oflimces committed in the ludi[lJl. territories, for it is given alone le­

u the Courts in which offences of the same !lature committed within the 

" province nrc usually tried," It is only that in speaking of Lou'a Ca­

nada it is always said" the Courls" whereas the term made use of in 

I'elation to Upper, Canalla is " Ihe Courl" (altljongh I comidel' that cir­

f,:uUlstance as strongly indicating the views of parliament) but, if we 

look further into this sel:tioll, we shall find the _intel)tioll of parliament 

~ clearly expressed, that it is not possible to mistake what is meant by 

" the Courts" of' Lo1CCT Canada" Having confines the jurisdiction, the 

act goes on to make full provision fol' the issuing of subprellas and other 

proce~ses to !tom pel tbe attendance of witnesses. It appears to me that 

the moment we read the terms in which thi. power is conveyed, and the 

perspns to whom it is delegated, it will be impos;ible longer to doubt 

that only to the Courts of tue three districts cl"eated by the" Judicatllre 

~cl" was power given, 01' jl1l'isdiction extended, by the I,:}d GEO. III. 

~ap, 138. 
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particularly 10 observe Ihe expression" it shall be lawful for Ihe judgu," 

6:c. and CQiltinucd; 

Proceeding to remark upon this part of tbe ael of 180S, I submit· 

with much confidence, that litis COUl"t of Oyer and Terminer, nol havin$ 

the officers of which the third section speaks, cannot be the Court in­

tended by the e)lpression, " the Couris of the province of Lower Cana­

" da, in which crimes and o'l"ences of the like nature are usually tried"­

because we perceive that the extended jurisdiction is given to tbe Courts 

in which judges preside. It is the judges, whe by the act of 180S, are 

legally empowerccl to issue sl/bpamas, &c. K ow, in the present Court, 

I say, (though with the utlllost respect for your Honours,) that we haH: 

no judges. Your Honours fit at this moment as his Majesty's Commis­

sioners, but not Ufi judges. Considering this circumstance, it follo\\"~, 
that this Court cannot be the usual Com·t, because in a usual Court it is 

judges who preside; and ill this province suph a COUl"t ~an only be found 

in the Courts oj King's Bench. 

[The Chief Juslice pleasantliJ remarked, that though he questioned their 

power, he hoped ]Ilr. Van/elson was not disposed to deny, that, ill point 

"ffuct , they weT' Judges, and ,1IT. Vallfelson said certainly not.] 

'We say again, that another difference between the Court of King's 

Bench and a Comt of Oyer a!ld Terminer, exists in the nalure am] exlenl 

of the authorily of the one and of the other. It is n~cessary for this 

Court actually to meet before it can act. Before meeting it cannot evell 

issue a subpa:na-and ~hy? because a Court of Oyer and Terminer has 

no judges belonging to it. The officers of such a Court, are the King's 

Commiss;oO!ers, and their power is of .hort duration, and at the same 

time of a different nature from that of judges, from. beginning to end. 

,V ere a suhprena to be issued before the Clilurt met, there exists no pow­

er in the Commbsioners to compel a witness to regard it, or to force an 

unwilling witne,s to atle/lp. The situation of your Honours in Ihi' 

Court, as King's Commissioners, is altogether unlike that, you sustain 

asjudge, of the COUl·t of King's Bench. Your authority as CDmlllission­

crs of Ih;s Court, is like the Court itself, one of short duration, and as 

Iimitecl in power, whilst that of the judges of the Court of King's Bench 

i5 a permanent authority: ancl an authority as potent as it is permanent: 

for tbese reasons, because the power of a Court of Oyer and Terminer is 

IlOt a perdurable one, nor sufficient even to enforce its own processes ill 

the same \Yay as tbe Court of King's Bench, and because the King's 

Comm;$sioners are not judges, (or nued not be, or tho~gh judges yet a5 



223 

Commissioners they have not the power of judges,) we submit, that thi3 

Court has not power to take cognizance of offences committed in the 

Indian Territories, wanting, as it does, almost all the distinguiihing 
characters of the usual Courts. 

I would furthel' remark, that in making provision for Courts of Oyer 

and Termilller, parliament has again distinctly marked the difference be­

tween the two Courts. That of the King's Bench of each district, is not 

only a permanent and powerful Court, but it is an entire and complete 

ene in itself, having power to execute iis sentences. A Court of Oyer 

and Terminer on the contrary, is obliged by the fifth section of the 

.. Judicature Act," to suspend, in certain cases, " the execution of its 

II sentences or judgments until the approbation of the Governor, or person 

" administering the government of the province, ~hall be signified there­

H on, by warrant under his hand and seal at arms." The sixth section 

also strongly manifests the difference, by directing the transmission of 

H the proceedings of Courts of Oyer and Terminer-the scope and sub­

.. stance of points rule(l in evidence-their charge to the Jury-a copy 

" of the verdict, and of every material transaction in .the cause-to the 

.. Governor:" The only exceptions to the suspension of its sentelll:es and 

the tra.nsmission of its proceedings, are such cases as .. :;haII not extend 
.. to life, or limb, or transportation, nor to any greater nne, penalty or 

" forfeiture, than the 5um of twenty-five pounds sterfing." 

Upon the first head of my argument in arrest of judgment-namely, 

" that this Court cannot take cognizance of this case,"-I have thus 
submitted generally that a Court of Oyer and Terminer does not posseS8 

9n original juris,liction over offences committed in the Indian Territo­

, ries, and that the 5tatlite of the 43d of the King, conferred this jurisdic-

tion solely upon the 'Usual Courts of Lower Canada-that tllese usual 

Courts must be sought in the Couds of the three districts of Quebec, 

Montreal and Three Rivers-that a Court of Oyer and, Terminer does not 

accord, either in itsfm"mation or its authority, with the usual Courts, be­

cause it has no judges-an~l that this Court is neither perdurable, power­

ful, nor complete in itself, whilst the usual Courts of the province are 

permanent, powerful, and complete in themselvES. I now propose te 

pay attention to the second branch of my argument; to wit, U that if" 

.. this Court .has jurisdiction over some offences committed in the Imlian 

" Territories, nevertheless it does not possess the power of trying :my 
.. felonies." 

The act of 1803, in giving the POWCI" of tl"ying offences committed 

in the Indian Territories, and parts of America therein described, to the 

Courts of the provinces of Canada, has not included FELOXIES therein. 

It j, thi' act alone "'hich extpllU5 the j\1ristliction of tue COIU"ts of Cal'£!-
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da, over off~nces committed in the Indian Territories; and looking tIJ 

it for the extent of the authol"ity ~ivell, we sball find it limited to th" 

trial of" crimes and offences," to ihe el\c\usion of felonies. By tbe 

preamble we see, that what gave occasion for the act was, .. crimes Bnd 

" offences" having been committea in the Indian Territories. (Pream­
ble rcad.) In the third section, the same descriptioJll is given. (Sed,jQn 

read.) After prev iously repeating this term se,'eral times, the conclu­

sion of tbis clause in delegating the power of issuing subprenas to the 

Courts, expressly gives it-in relation to the trial of any (rimes find oj. 
fences made tognizable by this act. In tbe second section (throughout,) 

it appears to me that the words are so strong, that there cannot be two 

oplOlOns. [Mr. Vanfelson read Ihe section, remarking ihaflhe same words 

1uere uniformly made use lif.] All we ha\'e to a~certain is: what the' 

LA w considers as .• crimes and offences P' ,and certainly there is no dif· 

ficulty in saying; that ~!ISDE~lEA"ons alone -are understoou by the 

term. As from the beginning to the end of the statnte of the 43d GEO. 

III. the words, " crime~ and o.iJ·enees," are used. I contend, it is clear 

that no jurisdiction is given by it over felonies committed in the Indian 

Territories, but only over misdemeanors; because felonies al'e not in la"" 

considered aM offences. In support of this opinion, I produce to your 

1I0nours a very recent decision of the twel"e jU,lgC8 of England, in the 

case of a man named Shaw, who was proceeded against under the act 

of 42d GEO. III. cap. 85, and found guilty by the Jury. In arrest of 

judgment, the prisoner's counsel submitted that the Court could not, 

under the words, "crimes and offences committed in America," take 

cognizance of felonies. It ,,'as not denied generally, that the Courts of 

England bad the power of trying capital felonies committed in America, 

under certain circumstan~es, but this indictment being founded upon an 

act which only gives power to try crimes and o.iJences committed there, 

it was urged that the proceedings ought to be quafhed. I think tloJat 

the reason for this is plain, beeause crimes and offences are misdemeanors, 

and not felonies ; and my Lord Chiif J uslice Ellenborough, tn pronounc­

ing judgment upon the motion, confirmed the position of 111r. Selwyn. 

(counsel for Ihe prisoner,) that felonies were wt included in the term 

crimes and offences, and therefore could not be tried under that act. 

Thus is seems that the Cou'rts of England, and those Courts alone, are 

considered to have authority to try felonies committed in certain parI! 

of America.-I have here the reports at length in the case <if Shaw, at 

the service of the Court, and I believe that YOlir Honours will find that 
my statement is correct. 

Chief Juslice Sewell.-I ,hall certainly be glad to see them" thO~gJl 
I do not think my Lord Ellenborough could intend to go that length, 
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Mr. Val!felson.-I think your Honour will find that I have siated 

the decision corr~ctJy; it certainly was that" the p~oceedings must be 

" quashed," my Lord Ellenborough holding, with the counsel for the 

prisoner, that, under .the terms crimes and offences, which is made use 

of in the 43d GEO. III. cap. 85, felonies eould not be included--
Chief Juslice Sewell.-Yes, hut the decision was confined to that par­

ticular statute. I beg I'0ur pardon, if! have interrupted you, I thought 

you had c'oncluded your observations. 

,Mr. Vanfelson.-I was merely going to have added, that the infer­

ence I would draw from the opinion of my Lord Ellenborough, in con­

junction with th~ ~tatute of 43d GEO. III. cap. 138, is, that the reason 

the power of trying for felonies was not extended to the Courts of the 

IJrol'inces by that act, was that the prerogative or authority of doing so 

was intended 10 be exdusirely possessed by the Courts of the parent state, 

and their intention is clearly manifested, I think, by the term " crimes 

" and offences" being constantly used, which, according to this hite de­
cision, does not include feloniea. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-This decision upon Shaw's case, goes no farther 

than to the individual act tlien before the ju!ges. It was upon that 

particular statute that judgment was given, and, ,perhaps, you have 
shewn enough to induce us to say, that, under that particular statute, 

crimes and offences, did not include felonies, We should certainly say, 

that the '2d GEO. III. cap. 85, could have no greater power than the 

trial of crimes that may be prosecuted by indictmeni and by informa­
tion. It was in fact, an extension of an act passed in 11-12th WILLI­

AM III. to other cases. The 'luestion 8hall". case hing;ed upon was the 

point, whether, in an act so constituted, felonies were included in the 

term made use of, and it was said by the judges, no; for the plain rea­

son, felonies cannot he prosecuted by information. 

"lIr. Vanfelson.-l shall now offer to the Court some reasons for sus­

pending the judgment, if your Honours will not allow that I have suffi­

ciently established the motion I have submitted. As they may 1I0t be 

strictly applicable to go in arrest of judgment, I propose, with the per­

mission of the Court, to notice them incidentally. Tbe first remark of 

that nature which I make is this :-That thll:confessionoof the Prisoner, 

proved by Dr. Allan, isnot a confession according to law, and ought 

not to have been receive!!. I,et us look at this confession, and we shall 

5ee that it was made with all the formality of the statute of Philip and 

,lEary. which says, that " in any f~lony wllatever, the magistrate be­

<' fOI'e whom any person may be taken [or manslaughter or felony, be­

.. fore he shall commit the accused, shall l!ause him to be examined, and 

" 81m II take the examination of such prisoner, and the information of 
1

0,* 



.. those who bring him before him, as to the fact and attending circum­

.. stances, and the same or as much of them as sball be of importance ill 

" proof of the said felony, sball cause to be put in writing within two 

" days after the said examination, and the said writing shall be certified 

.. in the same manner and form, and at such time, as the same would or 

.. ought to be done, if the prisoner were admitted to bail," &c. &c. Tbie 

is the description of an examination under the act of tbe 2d and 3d of 

Philip and Mary, cap. 10. and this confession is invested with all the 

formalities prescribed by the statute. All the formalities, do I say? 

We find more than all. The anxiety to make this. confession stronger 

was snch that tbere were witnesses to it who have been produced on the 

part of the Crown; but I would submit to the Court that this circum­

stance ought ratber wholly to destroy it, inasmuch as it was originally 

a confession according to the law of Philip and Mary, which direct 

that the confeSSIon, or examination, of any person accused of felony, 

slmll be reduced to writing, and certified by the magiEtl'ate taking the 

"xarninBtion; they do not direct that the witnesses shall certify it, bu t 

the magistrate. I say, therefore, that this confession was aformal con­

fession, and ought to have been prol'ed by the magistrate who had taken 
it, or that, otherwi;e, it ought not to have been received by the COllr/. 

But it will be said by the officers of the Crown, that the confession was 
only received by the Court as an individual confession, and not one un­

der the statute. 

lIIr. Justice Bowen.-The Court received it-as a paper prot,ed to be 

in the hand.writing of the Prisoner, aDd by him delivered to the Earl of 
Sflkirk-at common law. 

11lr. Vanfelson.-Yes, your honours, but the argument which I very 

respectfully submit is this, seeing that this confession was in fact a for­

mal confession, it ought not to have been received at common law, and 

moreover that the rille of law which requires that the best evidence shall 

([lways be produced was disregarded when it was so received. Admit 

j.Jf a moment that the confession had been offered at common law, in 

thai case we ihoold have said," no; this confession, this papar, or what­

., eYer you please to call it, cannot be proved by Dr. Allan, for thi6 

" plain reason, that ht cannot be the best witness to the circumstance, 

., and the law requires the best evidence." The confession was not made 

to Dr. Allan, the paper was not delivered to Dr. Allan; no; the con­

fession was made, and the paper was delivered, to my Lord Selkirk, 

1herefore it cannot be pretenderl that Dr. Allan is the best witness. It 

is most assuredly my Lord Selkirk, wbo (it is a matter of public noto­

riety) is within the jurisdiction of the Conrt, and ought to be produced 

hy the Crown. As it has been remarked in the course of an argument 



",.hi£h took place during this trial, it does not become the officers of the . 

Crown to tell us that we might have produced him. It was their duty 

to produce him tu prove this confession, whether as a magistrate, or as 

the Lest evidence at common law. I beg your Honours' attention to this 

position, that if we look upon this paper as a confession under the statute, 

we say, that in that case, it oUl!jh.t to have been proved by the magis­

trate; and that if we )00" upon it as an individual confession, then, we 

say that it was the duty of the Crown officers to prove it by tbe evidence 

of my Lord Selkirk, because his lordship was the best witness; and, in­

a~much as his lordship has not been produced, the Prisoner is taken 

by surpris,. Incidentally, I submit that the actual death has not been 

proved, and also that, if a man named Keveny has been killed, it yet 

has not been proved tbat it was Owen Keveny. The witne~ses have 

simply spoken of Keveny, but have no more said Owen, than James, or 

John, or Peter. The confession has' it O. Keveny; not Owen any more 

than Oliver, I say, therefore, there is not a syllable of proof that Owen 

Keveny was tbe man that was killed. If we find ourselves compelled to 

admit, that there was one named Keveny killed, the only evidence on 

the subject of the christian name would induce us to believe that the 

~en~leman in t~e service of the Hudson's Bay Company who was killed, 

bore the uame of Oliver Kevcl)y, 

Solicitor-General.-I would s~bmit that the testimony of Mr. ]lIiles 

Macdonell 60 completely removes all difficulty as· to the person killed 

being, as he is named in the indictment, and as the jury, by their ver­

dict, have declared, Owen Keveny, that doubt could hardly be enter­

tained upon the subject. Indeed, whatever might exist befure the ver­

dict, I should considet' to be legally removed or set at rest after the re­

co:rding a verdic~ findiog the Prisoner guilty in manner and form as he 

was charged ill the indictment. 

]lIr. Stuart.-J beg to remark, in reply to the Solicitor.General, that 

we are addressing ourselves to the Court upon law, and every thing 

connected with the record is a matter of law. 'fa his observations rela~ 

(ive to Mr.ll:lacdonell's testimony, setting at rest all difficulty upon the 

identity of the person said to have been killed, aud the person once in 

the service of the Hudson's Bay"Companyz I do not see that it can ob­

viate even the smallest. Tlie utmost length ]lIr. lJIacdollcll lVent was, 

that, a man named Owen J{ereny was some time iu the service of the 

Hudson's Bay Company, and tbat some two or three years lJefore, he 

saw him, but bad not since. How that is to remove or set aside ali, or 

any~ difficulty as to the man killed not being proad to be Owen I~evenYl 
~r how it has a tendency to shew 'that it was Owen. Keveny, I confe5~ I 
cannot comprehend. 



.~Ir. Justice Bowen.-I confess I sit, and have for rome time sat, very 

reluctantly, to hear an argument upon either point, as I consider them 

both to have been deciued by the voice of the counfl'y, whose peculiar 

indeed exclusive right, it is to decide. The Jury, in their verdict, find­

ing the Prisoner guilty ill manner and form as he stood charged in the 

indictment, d.}clared that Keveny is dead, and that it WIlS Owen ](eveny, 

whom the Prisoner aided 1IIainville to kill, because the indictment 

charged him with having helped, aided, and a~sisted, Mainrille, to kill 

Owen Keveny, not Oli"er, or any otha Keveny, but OWfr, Keveny. 

On the point of law involved in this objection, relative to the proof or 

description of the deceased's name, it is hardly neces~ary that I sllOuld 

~ay any thing, thinking as I do, that we ought not to hear you on this 

part of the subject at all, If there is il material error, so as to render 

the indictment insufficient, the Court will fetl itself bound to arrest tbe 

judgment. But supposing that the question had been raised at an earlier 

period, or, that the Jury had not, by their verdict, said Owen Keveny 

was killed, \Vhat would have been the effect? The object of description 

is certainly, and it might be a question whether the indictment is not 

sufficient for that purpose. It is not an uncertainty as to the defendant 

himself, and we know that it has been adjudged that an indictment for 

an assault, against JOHN, parish priest of D, in the county oj C. is good, 

without even mentioning his surname; this is mentioned in 2nd lIaw­

kins, cap. 25, sect. 1 a:cd 2, an,l he argues " i~ a wrongful surname of 

" the defendant himself will not vitiate an inuictment as hath been more 

" fully shewn, section 69, surely aforliori the omission of the surname 

" of any other person will not vitiate it, especially where such person is 

" otherwise described with such certainty that it is impossible to mistake 

" him for any other." I merely mention Ihis for your consideration, 

but, returning to the question of how far we ought to hear yo'! at r1.11, 

I am clearly of opinion that our doing so mnst imply that we have legal 

donbts of the correctness of tha Jury's finding, that we consider it a ver­

dict against evidence, or contrary to his Honour the Chief Justice's di. 

rections. Now, if doubt does nol t:xist in our minus, we ougbt not to 

hear you argue what the Jury have solemnly decided, according to my 
opinion. 

JJIr. ranfelson.-I submit to your Honours that I am not beyond the 

legal right of argument upon the point, and that it is a point, which, in 

strict legal construction, I am privileged to argue. Upon this ground, 

I urge again, that the finding of the Jury, with no evidence of the ac­
tual death, is contrary to the opinion of the greatest and soundest law­

yers that ever practiced at the bar or ornamented the bench. Lord 

Chief Juslice Hale is exceedingly pointed on this subject; he fays,· tal, 
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~d. page 290. "I would nel'er convict any person of murder, or man­

" slaughter, unless the fact was proved to be tlone, or at least the body 

.. found dead, for the sake of two cases, one mentioned in my Lord 

"Coke, P.'C, cap. 104, page 232, a Warwickshire case, wbich is men­

"tioned in a ndte," and the other stated by the learned judge (Hale) 
himself. 

Mr. Vanfels0n. read the cases at great length, and continued; 

These two cases induced the great and very learne'd judge to tlecJare, 

that in a case of murder Or homicide, he would never convict, unless the 

fact was absolutely proved to have been committed, or tbat at least the 
dead body had- been found. 

Mr. Juslwe Bowen.-Well, now apply your law to the case before 
us; you remember also there are his own confessions. 

Mr. Vanfelson.-Yes; but I say that his confession was not proyed 

in conformity with the rules. Han'kins says, book2d. cap. 46, secl. 44, 
" but if a confession be not taken in writing, parole testimony may' be 

.. given of it, and the prisoner tbereon convicted, although it is totally 

" uncbrl'oborated by any other evidence." Here the confession l.l'as 

writtelt, and I submit that the parole evidence of Dr. Allan is against 

the rules; now, if we take away the confe~sion of the Prisoner, there 
does not remain.a tittle of evidence of the .death of Kel'eny. What my 

Lord Hale considers it necessary ~hould be proved is the actual death, 

either by the corpse having been found, or the murder havillg been seen 

to be committed; antI tbe wisdom of this opinion is confirmetI by a caoe 

in Leach, 1'01.1, case 127. the King versus Jane Warrickshall (in a note.) 

" Three men were tried antI eonvicted for the murder of Mr. Harrison, 

.. of Camden, in Gloucestershire. One of lhem, under a promise of par­

.. don, confessed himself guilty of the fact. The confession was not, 

" thererore, given in evi4cnce against him, and a few yedrs afterwards 

" it appeared that Mr. Harrison was alh'e." In this case, unfortu;lately, 

tbe man was executed, and aftel'wards we see Harrison was. found to be 

alive, There is another case of" the same nature which o(Jcurs to me at 

the moment, the case of a man who, in a scuffle with atlother. either 

fell, or was thrown, into a river, and who not making his appearance 

afterwards for some time, the othet· (being tried) was found guilty of 

his death. Some years afterwards the man, who was believed to ha\'c 

been tIrowr.ed, was discovered to be alive. Th& application I am desi­

rOlls of making is very plain. It is that in this case, the dead body has 

not been seen, no more than the perpetration of the offence, and .that, 

with' the exception of' the confession, there'is not a tittle of evidence of 

tl~e actual death, and CUI,ther, tbat this confession eYen is not evidence 
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of tbe death of Oll'W ]~cveny. I submit Il'ith confidence, considering I 

have wilh me the opinion of so learned a judge as my Lord Hale, that, 

in a case of murder, the only certainly there can be of the deatll of the 

individual charged to have been killed, must arise from the murder ha\'­

ing been seen, or at least from the bally having 'been found. I say that 

it is absolutely necessary, uefore finding a prisoner guilty of murder, 

that the actual death be undeniably proved, and in this case I submit 

that it ha~ not ueen proved up to the present momenl. With these cases 

before anI' eyes, we ought to be ext"emely cautious. It is upon these 

grounds that I have the honour to submit the motions; in the firijt place, 

for a new trial for the Prisoner; and, if the Court does not grant that, 

I offer the obser\'ations in a"rest of judgment. My learned hrother, 

lIIr. Stuarl, "ill follow me, and will more fully explain to the Cuurt 

other reasons which we allege in support of the motiom. lily arguments 

upon the two positions go to this length; that the Court is not possessed 

of any authority to try offences committed in the Indian terri/aries, or, 

if it has such a pO\\'eI' for smaller offences, it does not extend to any 

felony; and further that the ~onfessiol1 ought not to have been received, 

that the aclltal death C!f Kev~ny has not been proveu, that there is not 

one word of c\-idence which goes to prove the murder of Owen Keveny, 

and that it is not at all certain that Owen Keveny i! not at this moment 

still alive. I am bonnd to make my acknowleugments to the Court for 

the attention with which I have been IleaI'd, and I hope that the motions 
I have submitted will he of henefit to the Prisoner. 

Chief Justice Sw'ell.-Beforc Mr. Stuart commences his arguDleuts. 

I wish to remark that in all the cases you have alluded to relative to cir­

cumstantial evidence, the obvious 'luestion of the actual death ~ust 

have been left to the Jury. In this case, the question of the actual 

death of the man, anu who it was that was killed, (if any person was,) 

went to the Jury, surrounded with' all the circumstances which, in your 

opinions, lessened Ot· destroyed their weight and credibility. The evi­

dence of the death, of who killed, of who was present, aiding, and u'ho 

it was that was killed, have been c,'edited by the Jury, who have found 

the Prisone,' guilty, in manner and form as he stood charged in the in­

dictment. It is their \'crdict, and on circumstances upon which they 

were the sale judges, 

lIIr. Justice BoU'cn,-In stating there was no evidence but the Pri· 

wner's own confession, I think, you appear to have forgotten the evi­

dence of the tl\'O voyageurs, Faille and La Pointe, as well as the circum­

stance of the clothes being in the canoe and tile divisioll of the 'bulin. 

lilT. Stuart.-The first question before the Court, appears to me to 

be, can a new trial be granteu in :1 case of felony? or" to meet more di-
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redly Mr. Solicilor-General's objection, the enquiry is; 'oqghl the Court 

to grant a new trial in the case of Charles D~ Reinhard? Upon tha 

former branch of the inquiry can a ~ew trial be granted in a case of fel­

ony? I find a dictum of my Lo,d Keynon, that it could not, but I find 

also a later decision than that of my Lord K~nyon, in East, .P, 416, in 

which it is said that the point is not settled in England, but that the im­

pression seemed to be that there could not be a new trial in a case of fel­

ony. On the one hand we have then theditcum of a learned judge, enti­

tled, unquestionably, to respect, but still we cannot forget that it is only a 

dictum not ajudgmcnt rendered after hearing, in solemn argument, all that 

could be urged in support ofa contrary opinion, but inciiJentally expre,ss­

ed in considering a case of a very different kind. 011 the other hand we 

have an undoubted authority, declaring tbat the point had not (at a period 

subsequent to the dictum of my Lord Il:enyon,) heen settled in England. 

I conceive the door is now open to argument in its broadest shape. I 

shall trespass shortly on the time of the Court, to make a few obser,a­

tions on the question raised, as to whether motions for a new trial in 

capital' cases, can be entertained? To me it appears quite clear that 

they can, and why should they not? Motions are heal'd daily for new 

trials in civil casee, and daily are granted, and I humhly contend that, 

in accordance with, the mild and humane spirit of British law, they 

~hould he more fully entertained in criminal, than in dvil, ca~es. For 

what is the distinguishing feature of our criminal jurisprudence ?-a 
carefulness of life: hut refuse to entertain a motion for a new trial, and 

ollr civil code is infinitely more careful in protecting our property, than 

our criminal law will he in preserving the lives of the accused. Ano­

ther reason in support of my position, that a m,otion for a new trial 

ought to be even more fully entertained in criminal, than in civil cases, 

is this, that a Jury in a civil case are liable to a writ of attaint for cor­

rupt conduct, whilst in criminal cases a writ of attaint will not lie a­

'gainst a Jury. If the motion for a new trial cannot be entertained, or 

granted, in criminal matters, there is no remedy, there is no legal re­

medy, to the prisoner, however wrongfully convicted. Suppose a capi­

tal conviction, with no evidence to justify it-if a new trial cannot be 

gl'anted, than there is no remedy, hecause the insufficiency or total abo 

sence of ev idence, can form no ground for a motion in arrest of judg­

ment. I am aware it may be said, that in such a case the effect, with 

reference to a prisoner, would be the same; as, the Crown might, and 

would, pardon the prisoner. This may be so-but it is not the less true 

that the prisoner would be without remedy in the Court, wherein the 

v{)rdict wa~ rentlered. A"uinj in trials, let them be conclucted with 

whatc,"cr caution tbpy mar, slIpPI'intended by whatever talrnt all,1 :,.-
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tegrity, Hror may creep in, misdirection may be given, ot omissions 

may be made, by tbe best and mo,t en ligbtene(\ j~Jge~, whilst, by a pe­

cullar anomaly, in criminal cases, no counsel is heard on behalf of a pri­

soner. All that the Jury hear, for the purpo,e of assisting their judg­

ments, either on the 11lW or the facts of the case, is the judge's exposi­

tion of the one and the other. And as the best and most enlightened 

may err, the door ought to be opened wider, rather than closed, to the 

introduction of the only remedy that can be applied to the consequences 

of iuch error, omission, or misdirection. I call upon the learned Crown 

officer~, in opposing this doct('ine, to shew me the principles upon which 

their opposition is founded. I call upon them, after I have shewn that 

the poin t is as yet unsettled in England, to substantiate by argument, 

in the absence of authority, the (to my mind,) strange proposition, that 

a remedy shall not be applied to an error affecting the life of a man, 

whilst they ,tould extend it to every case of mere property. I call np­

on them to say, why the mouth that has been closed during a prisoner'~ 

trial for his life, (by, as I said before, a peculiar anomaly, which does 

not allow counsel to be heard on his behalf,) is to remain sealed after 

bis conviction, whatever may have been the error, omission, or misdi­

rection that occasioned it. I contend that the entertaining a motion for 
a new trial in all cases, criminal as well as civil, is in the discretion of 

the Court, who will grant or refuse it, as apears to them most consonant 
to the ends of justice, which I take to be the governing principle of all 
judicial proceedings. 

ltlr. Justice Bou-en.-Admitting your principle f"r a moment to be 

conect, what would you gain? If prisoners are to be entitled to a new 

trial, must not the Crown be equally so, and where is the system of new 
trials to end? 

]f'Ir. Stuart.-I beg the Court's pardon, but it is agreed on all bands 

that [\ verdict of acquittal ends proceedings. I might refer to innume­

rable authorities, that a verdict of acquittal cannot be disturbed, upon 

the equitable and bumane maxim, that" a man shall not be brought 

" into danger for one and the same offence more than ont:e." The dis­

tinction is stated in riner-word Trial: It is found in the second suc­

tion, under the general head of, " new trial granted, in what cases, in res­

" pecl if the action being criminal." "A new trial will not be granted 

" where the defendant is acquitted in criminal and capital cases, but 

,. otherwise it is, where be is convicted"-Liev. 9. l1Iich. 12 Car. II. B. 

R. Anon.-Indeed there is a case of a defendant's being discharged of a 
verdict, and receiving a new trial, as late as 26th Elizabeth. 

Chief Justice Seu-ell.-In the case you refer to, in the time of Eliza­

beth, the new trial was granted before the recording of the "erdict, in 



such a case prouably the same tbing would be ,done again. Upon a .IiSo' 
agreement of the Jury, the defendant was asked if he would be discharg­

ed of the Jury and their verdict, and he agreed to it; he was tried by 
another Jury upon the same indictment, was tound guilty, and had 

judgment to be hl1!nge&; It is Mansell's case, I presume, that you re­

ferred to. • 
]1'[1'. SIt/arl.-It was, Sir, -'-

Chiif Juslice Sf'l.Cell.~-Then it is one of' another kimT, ItS a new trial 

was granted there, before the verdict was recorded. The verdict of the 

Jury Ita! been recorded in this case, s'nd the qllestron is how can it be 

set aside? 

Mr. Sllll:trl.~There is another in Hau:kins, where a new trial wai 

granted ,after tlte verdict had been recorded. I cannot, at this moment, 

refer to the page of Hawkins, but I will send it to your Honours. 

Chief Jus/-ice Sewell.~Do', if you please, for I dQ not recollect it. 

lJ'1r. Sluarl.-I will; I sp'1ak witb conMence on the subject, as I wa!' 

looking at it this morning. And tbe reason of this distinction appears tQ 

be tltat the Kill'g, in whose narn'e' IIH criminal prosecutions are conducted, 

is n,ot interested ill the indictment {artfr~r thalt the maintenance of law 

and right concerns him, aUlI that, if twelve of his subjects say, UpOIl their 

oaths, that his peacel crown antI dignity, have not been infringed, it is 

reasonable to suppose that he' will be satisfied with such finding, aud thiR 

principle has been rf<;o;;nized al.d acted upon when new trials have 

been moved fJr, il;l cases of acquittal in misdemeanors, 3d Salk. 362. pl. 4. 

Having thu~ deal'ed away the difficulty raise,l by my learned frienel, 

the Solicitor.General, upon the 'luestion of competency, we enter at once 

upon the motion to sc\ aoide the veruict of eonvietioll, and grant a new 

trial in the Cabe of Charles De Reinhard. It was necc~ary thus to clear 

the way t~ this motion, bpcnu.e it is only before a motion in arrc!t of 

judgment'that it cun be heard. The rule is " one ~h311 not move fOl' a 

" new trial (ifler motion in arrest of juugment; but, after motion fur a 

" new trial, he may mo\'c ill anest of judgment." III slIpport of thB 

motion which we thus 5ubmit, I haye the hononr to contend --

Chirj Justice Sewell.--Had you nllt bettel', _'If 1'. Sluurl, combinp. your 

,objections, that is, state all you liave to olfe~ on any particular point, 

whether it may refer to the evidence 01' to' the directIOn of the C, ,,'rt. 

It will have a tendency to ahri,lge the argument, and "tV." time, without 

excludi,,:; any thing you may be tlcsirou~ of olferi,,:;. 

BIr. S/uar(.-I will adc:>pt that Coul'se.-On the motion to sct a£idc 

the verdict, and for a new trial, I shall conteHll, that the paper purport,­

ing to be the confession of the P"isoner, I'cceive,j a; evidence Dll bo' trial, 

was a confe~sion taken, under the ~tntute, bc~,,; ,. a mClgislroj" a< .,,,-
. 1'-' 



pears from the very face of it, amI was irregularly received as a ean(es­

sian at common law. This confe,;ion, if not used as a confession under 

the statute, ought not {a have been permitted to be used at all. If 'this 

were otherwise, the rule that proof of the examinations of prisoners must 

be made, eithel' by the justice of the peace, or the clerk, would be nuga­

tory. It might at all times, be evaded by producing the confession, as 

a con[,_,,,ion at cummon law. Had the best evidence been produced, 

either regnl'ding it as a confession at common law, or under the statute, 

still the effect would have been the same to the Prisoner, as the same in­

dividual would have been produced, the Earl of Sell;irk. In truth the 

rule above adverted to is but a corollary of that general rule that the 

best evidence the nature of the case affords, i~ the only evidence that can 

he receh'ed. Thel'e can be no question that, had this paper been in the 

hand-writing of Lord Selkirk, or his clerk, it would not have been receiv­

ed, unless they were here to prove it, and the circumstance of its being ill 

the Pri~oner's writing, does-not alter the argument at all; as no greater 

legal certainty is given to it. The [lcts of Philip and .'I'Ir1ry do not re­

quire that the ma;;istrate 3hciuld take the examination in ll~s own writ­

ing, but that the examination shall be put-into writing, and signed Ly 

the magistrate, and, upon the trial, shail be proved by him, or his clerk, 

An additional reason might be urged from the general necessity of pro\'­

ing that at the time of making tbe confe"ion the person was free, or 

if flUl, that the restraint imposed was a legal restraint, and that no im­

proper inducements were held out to obtain the confession, and who is to 

prove this but the magistrate? If the confession is to be receind at 

common law, still upon the principle of having the best evidence, the 

necessity presents itself again, who can best prove that no promise or 

menace was made use of to induce a confession? Certainly the an­

swer is immediately, he to whom the confession was made, and apply­

illg IIJis reasonillS to the present case, either as a confession at commoll 

law, or one under the statute, it was necessary to have produced the 

Earl of ,'<lkirk. Eut I go a step farther, and leaving the general rLlle, 

I say tllat, iu the present case, it was speciaily requisite, from the very 

cxtl'uordinary natul'e of the circumstances which are connected with it, 

that Lord Selkirk should have been brought here hy the Crown, ifhe did 

not come here himself as a magistrate wifh his retums, &:r .. -thougb it 

mi;;ht have ,yell -been expected that bis own anxiety, in a case wher. 

personally be \Ias so much, anti his own honour 50 deeply, concemed, 

\\oulJ have outstripped tbe tardiness of a legal obligation to appear-for, 

at tile time of making tllis confession, De Reinhard was under restraint, 

d restraint imposed by my Lord Selkirk, the which, if not imposed by 

ruagifterial authority, must necessarily have been an illegal duress, and 

! 
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had been so from tbe 19th of October, a perilld of ten d!lYs, the confession 

being delivered to Lord Selkirk upon the 28th, and three or four, days 

aftel' he was set at Iiherty, '" very strong circumstance certainly, and 

one UpOIl which had my Lard Selkirk, been here, as it was his duty to 

have been, and as his own feeling, I should have imagined, would have 

urged him to have been, and fn that witnesses box, he might, (for he on­

ly could,) have given us some information. At present, it only can be 

mentioned as a circumstance peculiar to the case itself, and one which I 

greatly regret that, in deviatinfj from the.general, a\ld as I I18YC al ways 

thought the unalterable, legal rules that confessions taken befure a ma­

gistrate must be proved by the magistrate, and that IIpon all matters, whe~ 

ther civil or criminal, at common law, the best evidence is required, ,,-c 

are left in the dark about, exposed to all the suspicions which will suggest 

themselves as to the circumstances, which first led to the im prisonruent 

of this individual, and after he ha(1 confessell himself to be guilty of a 

murder, the circumstances which occasioned-what? his being confined 

Inore closely? guarded more carefully? No ;--but what those circum­

stances were which, after this confession, occasioned his being set at li­

berty, All this information, so il11portant, not only to tl,e Prisoncl', 

but to the cause of substantial, impartial justice, we are shut ollt from, 
by a conrse which, we conten<1, exposed the Jury to the influence of 

that which, altbough allowed to be given in e~idence, was not legally 

so,-Lord Selkirk is within the jurisdiction of this Court, \\m1, coulti have 

given better evidence than Doctor Allan. This part of illY argnment I 

conclude by saying, that, in our judgments, tbe proof \\"hic~ the Couft 

receive(\ of the paper-writing was not according to law, tberc is, how­

ever, one point more, connected with the confession, which I have D­

~itted noticing, I beg, before proceeding to tl\e next objection I IUlI-e 

to submit to the Cou!'t, that I may b,e pel'nlitted to achert to it. It is 

that the Cl'Own, having offered a paper-writing, and succeede\~ in get­

ting it admitted as good evidence against the Pdsoner, the whole ought 

to have been admitted, the entire paper should have been received, the 

entire paper shoultl have been given to the'Jur,y, we <\rgue that it was 

not in the powel' of the Cr,own, a.fter producing a paper, to ~eHI' it,­

,Ve con\enl\, that all mUst go, Or ratqer s\lOuld ha\-e gone, to thc Jury, 
or that nO,lIe shoulll hav,e been handed over to ,them, We further sub­

mit, that,it is no answor to say, that the confession was reeeh-ed at com­

mon law, and tberefol'e the cel'li~eate of the magi.trate \\'!lS ullneces~ary 

for the Jury, 'We say, ancl feel ourselves warr!inted in so doing, that 

all that was on the paper was_proper c\'ic!ence to go to the Jury, if any 

part of it was entitled to fint! j!8 'Yay to them l aod, that it was not com­

-petent to the Court to enquire, what tbe contents of any pal't of it mi~bt 



~36 

~e; if a disCQvery was made that It part was a magietrete'! cl!rt\lIcate, 

that i~ ,containpd his examination of a per!On In/!king a confession, (1T 

that it was the ,confcssion itself, stilI th.e per~ilicate onght, as forming 11 

part ~f the paper produced, to have gone to the Jury. I wjIJ put a caSI!, 

suppose t~is certificate stated, that under !Jis examin8~ion t/le prisoner 

had b,een ,contumacious, .,!lld had refused to answer certain questiqns, and 

tberel/pop hl)d been st~etFbed upon ~ ra,ck, alld told he should ~ffer its 

pains pl)l~ he answered the questions put to hi/p, and heing relieve,d, 

he then wrote his confession; 0'11 his ~rial it is made evidence at com· 

1)l0,~"law against him, bein~ proved ~; wple byc.stander, I ~houJd ask, 

ougbt not ~u~h a certificate to go to the Jury? Would i~ be any answer 
to say; the paper the' priso~'er 'wrote anll delivered t.o the magistrate is 
r,e,ceived at common law, an~ tberefore the magistr~te!s certifi"ate is not 

required, it is not evidence g No, certainly not; ~or, as we contend, is 

it in this case. It lvould have b~en proved and re"eived as eviclence, 

had tpe confession been made !!O nnder tjle statutes of P'1i1ip and Mary, 

and t~ough received as a paper·writing at common law, ought not, nc­

eOfding to our view ortbe subject, to have been hp~ from the Jury. 
Tbe s~cond point wj:lich I shall have the honour to presllpt is one t~at, 

of course, I olfer with ,reat diffidence. It is that ihis honourable Court, 
in its charge to tbe Jury, misdirecte.! it upon twa points; fir~, as to the 
liln1ts of his Majesty'S provin~e o~ Upper Canada, al1<l also to the inter­

pretatio,! of t~e western boundary, as settlell by the act of 17U, in its 

explanatj~1I or construction of the term n~rthwaTd, which yonr Honour 

directed the Jpry, must be considered to mean flue '(Iorth. In renewing, 

to a certain extent, that which your Honours might consider as already 

deci~ed> I beg to mention tbat it is not my intention to toue" upon tbe 

fo~mer part of the objeption! becal!5e i~ was ~rgue~ to Its full extent, and 

yqur Honou;s have prolloun~ed your defi!ion upon it, bnt the latter ob~ 
jection was by some means omitted. It will be in the re~oJ\ection nf 

yO~lr Honours that, on that occasion, we fO!ltendell that tpe province of 

Upper Canm exceeded i~ its limits the extent which bounded the an­

tjen~ pr~vince of Quebet. !'pat point, may it please the Court, baving 

been discpsse~, and determille~, we do no~ propose to renew the argu­

ment. Bllt that whicb it is my intentipn to address tjle CouJ"!. npon, is 

the construction given to a part ortbe preamble to tpe act, lIsually cal­

Jed the Quebec act. I will read a part' of these bqundaries, 110 8S to in­

troduce the p~int I intend t() argue fairly t.o tbe Court: after tra.;jng the 

line to the no~wllSt angle of the late province of Penn'yltlania it goes 

on to deocribc its course thu, ... and t~ence along the 'IDes/ern boun~ary of 

.. the said province until it strikes the river Ohio; and along the bank of 

" ~id river westwarll to ~be banks of the Misli6lippi, ~d ~l/rl~'Il!/lrcl ~o 
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" tne8outfL!!rn QOImdary oflbe t~rritol'y'granted to tbe merebantnrlven­

... turers of Erg/and tl'ading to Hudso~'s Ba~, &C. ~c," Upon thi! 

portion of the boundary it is that I propose to found my observations, 

and tbe objection whic!), witb great deference Illlrtainly, I state to the 

opinion which your HonoUl"s hold is, tbat northward, means "to continue 

along tbe banks of the Mississippi, according to the course of tbat liver, 

whicb is in a northward dirclltiol), thougb not due north. A construction 

warranted by law and usage and plore consistent with the intentions pf 

the act as expressed therein. 

Chiif Justice Se·well.-That, Mr. Stuaxt, is the same point which we 

have already decided. We beard you and Mr. Valliere, in solemn ar­

gument upon all the points connected with the boundaries, both in rela­

tion to tbe Upper province and the American Iiue, and gave you our 

Eolemn decision upo'n them. We have followed it up by taking tbe ver­

dict of the Jury upon that solem n deci,ion. That ver~ict declares that 

the offence was committed in " the Indian territorjes, or parts of Ame­

" rica., not within the limits of either of the provinces of Upper or 
I, J,owu CaIJada, 01' of any civil government of the United Slates of Ame­

" rira," and the Jury have so found, after we had charged them o~ tIle la, .. 
of the subject, and that sucll as we laid them down were to be considered 

by them the boundaries of his Majesty's provinces of Upper and Lower 
Canada in relation to each other, and to the United SIale8 of America· 
We c~nnot alter that; it must be to another quarter that yqu must 
make y~ur appeal, to that q uartel' where this case must finally end; 

Indeed, after having given our decision, you ought not to raise the ques· 

tion. The Jury, under our direlltio~~ as to the law, have decided the 

fact, with which we dill not meddle, having nil authority to do so. 

'.rhey have decided that, according to our defining of the \loundaries of 

Upper Canada, aod the line of ~eparation betweel} his MlIjesty's pos­

~essions an<l the. late provinces,-the Dalles are in the I!l~ian territory, 

or p;1rts of Americll, not within the provioce of Upper or Lower Cana· 

da, or of any civil goverqment of tile United Stales of America. If we 

have done wro~g, you I~now how to remedy the crl'Or, and you Illay 

Ilepenil that every opportunity will \Ie ~veo to enable you to avail 

yourselves of the mercy of the Crown, but we cannot, without legal 

grounds are 8hewn to us, disturb their vef(!i~t. We cannot hear you 

I1pon the PQi'lt of juris~iction again, the question being, as far as lies in 

UB, already seWed. . 

~Ir • .Jus/"iee Bowen c;:f:pressed his entire OOrlcurrCflce with the Chief Jus·· 
'ice, and aclded, that h~ had a long time 8at wilh s~nso.tions of regret to hear 

IIle disC'Ussion 01;1 Ihe former point; that its admission W/U g"eatly at vari­

/fflce Ivi/h his own sellse o[ Propriety alt1!ollgh he had not interfered. 
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Mr. Sillart.-If that is the opinion' of the Court, I shall not urge 

it farther, but proceed at once to the third point, which I propose to 

adduce in support of my motion for a new trial, viz :-that no legal 

evulence has been produce!l to the Jury of the actual death of Owen 

Ket'fliY· • 
Chitf Justice Seu'ell,-I cannot hear you, 111T, Stuart, upon that POlllt 

either. You knaw that it has heen equally salemnly decided, and by 

the same autharity. It was a fact, and salely with the Jury, and they 

have decided that the tleath has actually occurred. Their verdict so­

lemn ly declares to. the COUl't and to the world, that Owen Ket'eny \Val 

murdered, amI we cannat allow you to say, that he lVas not,- and hear 

you ,argue upon the assertion. You knaw we cannot-then why at­

tempt it? 
1I1r. Stuart,-Thel1 I shall proceed immediately to the matian in ar-

rest of judgment. I pro.pase to argue, first, That this Court has no 

pawer to. try any affence whatever committed in the Indian territories; 

and, secondly,.that if it has ajul'isdiction, it is a jurisdictian confined to 

the trial of misdemeanars, and is incapable of trying allY felony. Be­

fore I euter upon the question itself, I rnu,t look at the act upon which 

this indiclm~nt i& founded, and when I so. laok at it, I find it to be " an 

" act far extending the jlll'isdiction of the Caurts of Justice in the pro­

" vince af Lotecr Canada and Upper Callada to the trial and punishment 

" of persons guilty af cl'imes and affences within c~rtain parts of lYorilt 

" AmeriCfl adjoining to the said provinces." IHy abject in reading its 

title is to sbew, fmm the vC"y nature of tbe act, that its constructiou 

ought to be most rigarous and strict, seeing that it trenches upon oue 

of the fundamental principles of the common law of Eng(and, vi,z. the 

associatian af lacality with jurisdiction and trial. This statute, it will 

at once be remarked, gives jurisdictian to try crimes and offences com­

mitted out of L01tCr Canada to the Courts of this province, thus giving 

jurisdiction whel'e there is no locality, anti nat anlydaes this act of a 
Bl'itish parliament assume the right af 50 daing as far as England her­

ielf may he interested therein, but also fOI' the whole of Europe, as far 

as British subjects are concerned. Again loak at the nature anti state of 

tbe country; it is Indian territory, and it furnishes a strong additional 

reason fur calling for the most strict and rigorous construction of such 

an act. Look at this country over which this act assumes power and 

jurisdiction, an,l we find it a country with no government at all, (that 

is, no civilized government) still in possession of the wild natives the 
\' . - ~ 

aborigines of the soil, who consi'der themselves the lords of it, and it may 

be questioned ",hether the po,~er o~ legislation ~ve~ it actually exists as 

a right. The right of legi.lation aSsumed by Englanj, I say, m~y we~ 
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be doubted. How did she obtain it? There are only two ways, I con­

tend, by which the right of legislatio'n can be attained by any nation, 

viz. by occupancy, or by conquest; alld by neither of these did England 

attain the right of legislation for the Indian t€rritory. TheJact of non­

occupancy is matter of notoriety; I would ask then from whom did she 

conquer it? not from the Ftench, for they never held an adverse pos­

session of it, an adverse ppssess'ion has never been hell by England, for 

she never had any occupancy, no adverse possession 'was ever held' by 

any European nation, no adverse occupancy has been maintained by il1'Iy 
nation but the United States. They have been at wal' with some of the 

Indian nations, a~d they have held, and do still hold, an adverse pos­

sessiou of some of their lands, but they are the only nation w bo have 

acquired Indian lands by a course which the law of nations acknowledges 

as couferring the right of legislation. It might have been supposed that 

the French had a possession or occupancy, because some of their tra(\ers 

visite(1 certain parts of tbis wild country; but their traders never dared 

to assume an adverse occupanlly. They ha.1 their trading posts; how? 

by sufferance. They expiored the wilderness; bow P under the protwtion 

of its native lords, but they never dared to think of an adverse possession. 
It might, in the same way, be ~upposed that England had maintaine.l 

a possession of this country, because she continued the trade which had 
been carried on by the French, an~ increased it, but ~'he had not there­

fore any possession of the country, or any portion of it gained from the 

natives by conquest, and retained by actual occupancy. What occu­

pancy has England, or what occupancy hall F"ance ever in this coun­

tbis country? none whatever. Tbey visited it as traders, and were 

permitted to traffie, an.1 erect trading-posts, but the French and the 

British have no mOI'e real occupancy or possession thereby, than they 

have of Smyrna or Constantinople, because they have established facto­

ries thel·e. The ground I take, and the position I maintain, is this, that 

the Bdtish have only a precarious posges~ion of any part of this immense 

and unexplored wildemess, a possession similar to that enjoyed by the 

French traders, by permission from the aborigines, not acquired by con­

quest, and tberefore incapable of being tl'ansfefl'cd or cedeu, nor indeed 

was it ever attemptClI to be ceded to the British government; for the 

possession of the French was, at its utmost extent, a permission to erect 

trudi ng-posts. 
1"Ir. Jllstice Bowen.-Do you int~nd to say, that it was not ceded to 

England at the treaty of Paris of 1763, or that the Comt of FraJice 
had ncr right to cede it? as accoruing to youI' rrgument they co'uld not 

legislato for it, having no occupancy in point of/acl, and nevsl' havin;; 

a'C'lllired the right of occupancy by conquest, 



240 

lJlr. 8/'0011.-1 do certainly; but I shall come to t~at point presentry. 

1 beg leave now to contend that this rourt bas no jurisdiction given to 

it by the statute of the .\..'ld GilD. III. cap. 1S8. The title o{ the aet 

I have just read, amI its object is so well known tbat it is uuneaessa:y 

to read tbe preamble and first enactment, wherein it is set fortb at length. 

It recites that great crimes and offences, committed in tile said Inuian 

Territories, have gone, and may hereaftCT go, .unpunisbed, and greatly 

increnie, for the remedy whereof, tbis act declares that all offences com­

mitted in tbe said Indian eountry, not cognizable by any jurisdictioll 

whatever, shall be, and be deemed to be, offences of the Fame nature, 

and shall be tried in the same manner, and subjeet to tbe same punish­

ment, as if the same had been committed within tha proviDce of Lower 

or Upper Canada; the second clause of the act, authorises the Goverllot, 

Lieutenant Governor, or person administerillg the government for tbe 

time being, to empower persons to act as civil magistrates, and jostices 

of the peace, in the Indian countl"y, and makes it lawful for any i>ody to 

apprehend, and take before any person commIssioned as aforesaid, or t3 

convey, or cause to be conveyed, any person guilty of a crime or of­

fence, to the province of Lower Canafla, ani! there to deliver him into 

lafe custodv, for the purpose of being dealt wi~h according to law.­

The third clause demands VeYy particular attention, as it provide. for 

the trial of the persons so brought tlown. The mOD]ent we have read 

this clause, it strikes me that it can no longer remain a question, tbat 

this Court does not posse~s any juri,diction over the Inuian Territory ; 

the only act which extends the jurisdiction or the Co-urt~ here to take 

cognizance of offences committed there, is the one I hold in my han(l, 

viz.-43d GEO. III. 13B, and this act does not give any power to thill 

Court. I will read its own declaration of the Courts to which it dele­

gates these new and extensive powers, [11Ir. Stuart read section 3d. and 

tontinued:] Here then we see, that the jurisdiction of this province 

was extended by this act, to the trill I of persons committing offences in 

the Ind'ian Territories " in the Courts where crimes and otfent:es of the 

" like natnre are usually tried, and where the same would have been 

.. tried, if such crime or offence had been committed within the limit~ 

.. of the province.", The natural, the obvious, and, in fact, the only, 

enquiry, which this delegation of increased jurisdiction, taken in con­

nectiun '.vith this case, suggests, is, which are" the Courts in which of­

" fences of the like nature are usually tried?" I answer, and contend 

that the answer is correct, they aye the Courts of King's Bench; they 

,are the Courts of King's Bench of the three districts, into which this pro-

vince is divided, to wit, Quebec, ll{ontreal, and Three Rivers, and that 

the increased jurisdiction is given (Yflly to them. I am perfectly aware 



that it inily be asked, may not, and do not, Courts of Oyer and T~rmin.. 
er take cognizance of crimes and offences? at once I answer, they may 
do it, and they do take cognizance of them, but I ask, is a Court of Oyer 

and Terminer the Court wherein crimes and offences of this nature are 

'ls1Idlly tried in this province? because it is only to the Courts where 
crimes and offences of the like nature, when committed therein, are u­

sually tried, that JJy this act the jurisdiction to take cognizance of crimes 

and_ offences is extended. The a~,swer, I think, must be, no, they are 

not. A;;ain, I might be' permitted to remark, that 'tne words ot the 

act are, tl,e Courts where such ~tences are usually tl'ied, and must there­

fore, ex nccesssitale rei, mean Courts already estaolished, not to be esta­

blished, and where shalf we Took for Courts which, at fhat t,me, usually 

, tried crimes anll offences? W e mu'~t fook to the Courts of King's Bench 

of the three districts; for it cannot, I should' think, be contended that a 

Court not,in existence, not (if I might use the expression,) born, not yet 
brought 10 life, could be that usual Court, wherein offences of a like 

nature, committed within the province, would have been tried. The 

Courts of lling1s Bench, IJeing the ordinary and establJshed Courts' of the 

province, must have been the Courts contemplated by the statute, and 

most correctly deoignated by the framers thereof, " the Courts where 
.. offences nrc usually tried." A Court of Oyer and Terminer is a Court 

of a day, and cannot be the Court intended; the Courts ot King's Bench 

are perpetual, and must therefore be the usual Courts. There is another 
reason which completely excludes the idea of a Court of Oyer and Tel'­

mincr being intended, but the point liaS been argued with so much force 

by my leal'lled fdcnd, JJfr. Vanfelson, that I shall barely mention it, as a 

concluding objection, which I offer to tbe act unde,' consideration being; 

construed as extending the jurisdiction of the Lower province to the tri­

al of any crime 01' olfence committed in the Indian Territory by a Court 

of Oyer and Termmer. The act in questi~n, when speaking of Lower 

Canada invariably says, Ihe Cow'ls; the offenders nre to .be prosecuted 

and tried" in tlte Courts of Lower Canada, in wkicb crimes or offenGes 
.. of a like nature are usually tried, and where tbey would have been 

" tded, &:c. &c."-what are tbese Courts'~ tbey must be, I ~gain say, 

those of the Killg's Bench, fo,' It'e know no otber Courts wherein crimes 

and offences are usually tried. Again," and it shall also be 'lawful for 

.. the judges, and othe'r qfJicen, of the said Courts, to issue subprenas, &c." 

what Courts but those of the King's Benell in this province, meet thi.!! 

description? What Courts have judges, and olher o.JJicers, their sheriff, 

their prothonota.-ies, &c.? Not Conrt, of Oyer and Terminer assuredly, 

but the Courts of King'~ Bench, provided by the Ihe Judicature Act, 

,.hich not only establishes Cou!'ts, bllt to the several Courb gil'fs what 
(;:'(0 



is neces8ary to the permanent administration oC justice, .. JUDGES, and 

~, other officers." 

As upon this part of the subject I may have to enter more fully, in 

examining, if it should be thought a Court of Oyer and Terminer ha5 

any jurisdiction over oftimces committed in the Indian tE<rritories, how 

far it extends, I leave it for the present, and, as I may not have suc­

ceeded in satisfying the C:ourt that it has no jurisdiction O\'er the Indian 

territory for the trial of any offences committed therein, I shaH now 

submit some observations, in support of another branch of my argument, 

namely, that, if it should be found to possess jurisdiction at all, it is 

a limited one, viz. over misdemeanors, under the term •• crimes and or· 

fences," and does not extend so as to enable it to take cognizance of 

any felony. I advert to the case of Shaw, produced at large. by my 

learned friend who is ~ith me, and with confidence submit it as conclu­

sive on every point that bears upon this division of our argument. It 
first, I think, e~tablishes that, although the term" Cl'irnes and offences" 

might in general be supposed to include felonies, yet that, under the 

circumstances of extra:iltrisdic/.ion conferred by this act, in opposition, 

or contrary, to thll common law, a construction the most limited must 
be necessarily given to the terms, and under such a constrllction, the 
deiegate(l power extends to no higher crime or offence than misdemea­

nor. The reason why this construction is given to statutes conferring 

an extra-jurisdiction is, that as no power to legislate over this territory 

or country exists in the colony or province to whose Courts authority 

to try crimes and offences is given, it is necessary that every thing af­

fecting the life of an individual should be consideud in the Courts at 

home, under the eye of the parent government, whither points, such 

as those arising in the present case, may be speedily referred, and a final 

decision given. thereon, from an accurate knowledge of the whole cir­

cumstances having been obtained by the investigation having passed, as 

it were, immediately under the personal ohservation of those who have 

ultimately to .lecide. I contend that Shaw's case distinctly establishee 

that by the term" crimes and offences" it is only intended to give the 

power to try for misdemeanors, for it is proved, by the proceedings in 

that case being quashed, that an indictment, even in the Courts at home, 

for afdony, fou.nded upon an act giving extra-jurisdiction over" crimes 

and offences" could not be supported, and, if it could not be at home, I 

suppose it will not be contended that it can be here. It is then, I con­

eider, evident (however I might be disposed to admit that, under a ge­

neral construction, the power of the Court might, under the term 

.. crimes or offences," in its own district, take cognizance of felonies, 

though felonies do not, in law, come under the denomination of either 
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the one or the other,) thatfclonies cannot be considered, under this act 

of the -lSd of the King, as comprehended under the description of 

.. crimes or offences," because the extra-judicial autbority conferred, 

demands imperatively that the strictest interpretation be given to it: 

and, in the strict legal construction of the words" crimes or offences," 

felonies are not comprehended. I contend thus, upon all the general 

principles of law, which are alike familiar to the' Court, as they are 

well established; and I consider it needless to trouble the Court farther 

upon this head, after so late a decision on the point as the case of Shaw, 

upon which we rely. The Court will find that it goes all the extent for 

which we have contended, and particularly establishes the principle 

that the statutes o~ this description, (and the 42d GJ!O. III. nap. 85, on 

which Shaw was indicted, was one) where they make use of the terms 

" crime\; or offences," do not therein embrace felonies. 

1 contend farther, that it was the duty of the King's law-officers to 

allege in the indictment, that De Reinhard was a King's subject. This 

also is a specialty arising from the nature of the jurisdiction, for I am 

free to allmit that, in general cases, such as those which occur in Quebec 
in Lower Canada, or London in England, or any place .' .. 101On to be in 

the King's dominions, it is not neuessary for the indictment to do more 
than allege that the offence ,was committed against the peace of our 

Lord the King, his crown and dignity, because every person found in 

his dominions owes him a temporapy allegiance, and it matters not to 

the law what the individual is who commits an infl'action upon it, whe­

ther he is a foreignel' or a native subject, for, whilst receiving the pro­

tection of a government ill its territory, he owes obedience to its laws. 

Widely different, as I eonlleive, is our case. We were not (admitting 

, for a moment the entire representation of the Crown to be correct) re­

ceiving any protcctlOn from the Britisb government, therefore could owe 

it no allegiance; in this wild country, destitute of the form of a civilized 

government, I woult! ask what law, even by possibility, we could hllve 

violated? How can it lie said that we have violated the laws of our 

Sovereign Lord the King, when not the shadow of his law could be 

found there, and, non constat, that at the very time and place where 

this offence is alleged to have been committed, we were not in t~e ac­

knowledged territory of some foreign power, of the United States,for 

instance. I contend that under this act, so various in its provisions, 

and as extraordinary as various, absotutc certainty wa~ indispensible, 

and thnt an essential featnre is wanting in the indictment, by the omis­

sion of tbe Crown to aver that the Prisoner was a subject. Admit, for 

the sake of argument, that the British legislature may pass a law to 

bind its own subjects 'i~ a foreign land, a point upon which, perhap!, 
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much might ,be aai,], but admit that every oation haA the pOlVor at all 

times to legislate for its own Rubjects; will i,t be pretended that she has 

the rigl;lt to ,legislate for those of oth<r powers. It may be ~aid the Pri­

~one,r was known some time ago to pe in the Britis~ dornillions, or that 

his,occupation ha,d made him owe allegiance. It did foO, bllt it was a 

temporary allegian,fie only, which was paid and ended wit!} qui~ting ber 

service'and territory. I conte"d tbis omission to charge the Prisoner 

with being ,a subject, and that t~e offence wa~ committed within the 

King's domioions, is as fatal ao omission as if the wordS, " aga!nst the 

" peace of our said Lord the King .. his crown lipa dignity," had been 

left out. In supporting tpis 1I0sitiol) I sup,nit to the COIl,rt that this of­

fence, h.eing charged as committed in the Indian territories, without al­

leging t~at it wa~ in the King's dominions, non constal, but it was in 

that part of these Indian territories if committed wherein, the act itself 

!/,ckoowledges, as well as the indictment, that, unless a subject, he could 
opt be tried. 

The iodietment sets forth that "Charles De Reinhard, late of 8 

.. certain place in the :ij.iver Winnipeg. not known by 'lny name, 

" and not comprise,d in any parisil or cp~nty, b~t ~ituated in the In­

n dian territorie~, or parfs of AmericII, not within the limits of either 
.. of tpe provinces of Upper or fouer Canada, or of any civil govern­

.. ment of the United States of America," &c, and the actdeclares, in 

extenuing the jurisdiction, that it is only to the prosecution and trial 

of persons committing ofrence~ in the Indian territories, or parts of 

America, not within tbese provinces, Mr wit!Jin the limits of any ci­

vil government of the United Stales of America; looking then at the 

indictmeot it appe~rs to me as if it was ()rawn up Expressly to shew 

tp/!-t the offence was committeq. ilJ a place where no jurisdiction eoold 

b.e ex~rciser) by the British government. The ofl,'en!)e is not charged tl) 

~ave beeo committed in the King's dominions, nor is t~e Prisoner 

charged to be a suhject of the King. two substalltial averments to make 

in every indictment. but e~pecially in a case foul1ded upon a statute giv­

iii!; a jurisdiction at opell war with the very first principle of our common 

law, t)Jat locality alone ginls tpe right of jurisdiction. The general rule 

llpon every ilJdictment is, that it ought to be certain to every intent, 

without any intendrnent to the contrary, having the same certainty as 

a declaration, for all the rules ti)at apply to civil pleadings are appli­

caple to criminal accusatioos. Can it pe sai4.that this i~dict~ent is 
certain? 'must it inel'ilably, follow that this" certailJ place 'without a 

" 'name, in the river Winnipeg, not comprised in any parish or county, 

" but situated in the Indian territory," is not within the limits of some 

other government, to whom the Prisoner must have owed a temporary 
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allegiance. The .trictl)css with whiah indi~tments are cDnstrued, and 

the rigidity with which all their fDrms are imisted up.Dn by judges, eve. 

in ,ordinary cases, 'where evel'y thing being perfectly knDwn to all the 

parties, it can be only fDr form's sake, are well knDwn, and it is need­

le!;s to advert tD the cil'cuIDstance, that the Dmi,sion ,of a word, ,of a syl­

labIc, nay, almDst of a letter, will quasI). an indictment; but here, in a 

case SD completely sVi g.ene~is, involved in doubt fl.n!) uncertainty as to 

jurisdiction, in a c~Se fcil/nlled upon: a statute whicl), I repeat, in giving 

jurisdictiDn tD these provinces, trenches up ,on the very fDundations and 

fllndamentfl~,principles ,of the commDn Jaw ,of Fngland, namely, the as. 

~ociatioJl of locality andjllrisdictiDn; t/:te CrDwn officers, in their indict­

ment, thrDw aside every rille w/:tich has heretDfore gnide<) ,ollr practice, 

or, when neglected, taught us, by the cqnsequences, tile l1(l.Cessity of 

being guided by tl!eJ;TI, and content themselves witb simply averring 

that this nameless plru;e is within the jurisdictioIJ of this Court. III. 
SJutw's ~\lse t1;e 1'cnuc is lai,l in a plj.l'ish ~t London or 2lfiddlesex. 

Mr. Justice Bowen.-Thel) YDU contend, I suppose, that the indict­

ment shDuld have stated that' /Ie the sai,) Chart~s De Reinhard, being a 

subject of his :l'IIajesty, and jate of a "ertain place in tbe Eiver Jrillnipic, 

not known by f!.ny n,ame, 1t11!) not ~ompl:ised in any parish 0,1' cDunty, 

but situate~ in the Indian TerritDl'ie~, or parts of Ame,-;ca, not withi .. 

the JiJ;TIits of eithel' of t/Ie provinces of Up),cr .or Lower Canatla, Dr ,of 

any civil government .of the United Stales oj Ailler;ca, lout "ithip )lis 

:l'IIajesty's dominjons, and the juri .. lic(iDP this Court, scilicet, in th~ pa­
rish ,of Quebe/), in the COltrlly .of Quebec, in the 4islr;cl .of Qllcbee, w/:ticb 

being negati\'cJ, would have made the indictment void. 

Jlfr. St'ltart.-No, your HDnour, I .only cDnten,ls, tbat it s/lOflld have 

~)larged, in addition to tile WDr(js contained in tbe in<jictment, that the 

place was il) tile King's dDrpiniDns. It might pnve said the Dulhs, or at 

Red Ril'~r, 01' any Otll~~ pl,ape. 

1I'Ir. Ju"tice Bowen.-You al'gue that tiJP omi,siDn o( the fcilir'(/ is 

filtal, t/mt it ougljt to have been lai" as cDQunitted at a place which i. 

extl'a-paj'Dc/Iiljl, situated in the Illd\an T""~itDricf' put within his Ma~ 

jesty's dOlp,nions, 118 to wit, at RfI~ River, 

1I'Ir. Stuart.-Yes, I qo. The Cl'Own officers have vefY wisely laid 

it as being contra pace111 (lomini regis--

Solicitor-Gciteral.--I beg to meiltiop to the Court, that the o!Dissio!l 

qf the scilicet, is not the result of any oversight on .our part, hut that, 

whe!) preparing the indictment, it was considered by us tD be f.(lere SlIr­

plusage, and therefore rejected as unnecessary. ,\Ye chm'ge the ojfcnce 

tp be against the peace of OUi' LDt'L1 the King, his crown 9nt! dignity, :li: 

spfficicnt. 



JIIlr. Stuarl.-That is the point upon whicb lye are at issue, you <Py 

the offence was contra pacem domini regis, coronam et dignilatem tjUI, 

and we Bay he had no pax at all to keep there, and this answer I make 

to sbew that the averment, that it was ill the King" dominions, was abo 

,olutely necessary. Had they <lone that, they'would, the moment it 

was established, have shut out all argument on the question of bis being 

a subject, beoause, if he was in the King's dominiDllf, be owed the King 

3 temporary allegiance, but, as we say he is not a rubject, he owes no 

'lIlltural allegiance, and from accidental circumstances alone can it be re­

'lui red from him, and therefore the obligatirm should be averretl, and 

whould be proved. However much I might be disposed to doubt tbe 

Tight of England, (or any other nation,) to legislate for even ber OUlrt 

subjects in foreign states, yet it can lIut, I imagine, be contended, if 

idle does possess that rigbt, in reference to those who owe her a natuTal 

allegiance, that she can extend it to all who, from cireumstanee!i, owe 

her a temporary allegiance only. That being the case, I say, upon the 

Crown's own shewing, it is not evident that temporary allegiance was 

dtlf from the Prisoner, over whom the King pO~8esses no natural autho­

rity, he being a foreigner, and on its own shewing, there is no proof 
that, instead of thi, olfence having been committed contra pacem domini 

regi$, it has not been committed contra pacem United States. The ar­
gument which I purpose to adduce to the Court, branches it~elf illto 

two distinct propositions, upon each of whieh I shall briefly remark, 

and I hope, sati'fy the Court that these omissions are ratal to the in­

dictment. I contend, first then, may it please the Court, as a broad 

and market! position, that the British legislature possess no right to le­

gislate for a country rtill in the pos,session of the Indians, and secondly, 

tbat, aumi tting even that they have the power of legi~lating for their 

I)/('n 5ubject~ any ~chere, in a foreign country it is only for Ihem that they 

~an uo so; upon both these points I argue that the indictment is radi­

cally defect;'·e. 
,Mr. Jils/icc BcwfIl.-J-Iave you considered what will be the effect of 

the fourth clause, which makes' some provision upon that subject. It 

enacts, that if any" offence charge!\ and prosecuted under this act ,hall 

" be proved to l1ave been committe!\ by any person or persons not being 

" subject or subjects," and so on. When must this be 'proved? necessa­

rily it must be upon the trial, because, IIpon such proof being exhibited, 

thl! Court is directed forthwith to .. acquit slIch person or persons not 

.. being such subject or subjects as afol'~aid, of such charge." Who then 

is to prove this? assuredly, tbe PrisoneF, not only because he is the 'lltO$t 

illteres/ed in proving it, but because he is the Thst able to do so. The 

Crown haH no mean, of knowing his birth, parentage, and ellucation, 



and ought not to ,be called upon to prove it. He himself knew his bil,th 

place, as well as all the circumstances necessary to secure his acquittal, 

if improperly indicted, and he should have proved them, so as to have 

entitled hUn to have.his'discharge. It was llis duty, not that of the 

Crown. 

Mr. Stuart.;-Your Honour's observation completely confirms my L 

argument, that the omission of the averment is fatal to the indictment. 

From the manner in which this indictment is drawn up, we should not 

have been allowed to deny our being a subject, and to go into evidence 

to substantiate such denial. It would not have been competent to us to 

do so, because it was not in issue between us and the Crown. This 

answel· was not put in upon the trial, because we should not have been 

ll.llo~ed to go into evidence upon it, inasmuch as tbe question under trial 

was, guilty or not guilty, not, s'l.\bject or no subject: We could not, un­

der the general plea of not guil/y,-a plea which (from the manner that 

the indictment was drawn up in) constituted the only plea we could 

make-I say, we could not, under that plea, go into evidence of De 
Reinhard not being a subject, although the moment \\'e establkhed that 

fact, he would, under the act, have been entitled to his acquittal, be­

cause it was not averred upon the indictment that he was so, and con,e­

quently it formed no put of the issue in contest between the Crown 

and the Vl'isonel". 'fhe suggestion of .1IIr. Justice Bowen, abundantly 

etl'engthens the argument which I have had the honour to submit ill 

support of the position that the indictment is defective, from its not 

averring that we were a subject, because, had it been done, we should 

have negatived the ayerment, and have been entitled to an acquittal--

Chief Justice Se-weU.-Not exaotly so, lIfr. Stuart, according to my 

idea; there is another difficulty which you would have to surmount: 

when you had shewn incontrovertibly that De Reinhard was not a sub­

ject, that would only be half the point which it would be n~cessary for 

you to establish, so as to entitle the Prisoner to his acquittal, under the 
clause t~ which my brother Bowen has so correctly (and advantageously 

too,) dmwn your attention. I will read. you Uor it is very short): th!j 

whole clause, so that you may clearly comprehend it, l'erbatim et litera­

tim :-" 4th. Proyitlc(\ always, and be it fnrthcr enacted, that if any 

" crime or offencc, charged and prosecuted this act, shall be proved to 

" have been conlmitled by any person or persons not being ,a subject or 

.. subjects of Ids jlIajcsty, and also tOlthill the limits of any colony, sell Ie­

.. menl, or territory, belonging to any European states, the Court before 

" which such prosecution shall be had, shall iorthwith acquit such person 

.. or persons, not being .such subject or subjccts as aforesaid, of such 

.. ch~rge." ,You will ohscn'e that thi~ clause does not put it into the 
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power of the Court u to acquit him forthwith"j even if it should bp. al­

lowed that he proved himselfto be aforcigner, he mmt, beyond making 

it appear that he is not a subject, go on, and also 'shew the offence to 

have been committed" witllin the limits of any colony, settlement, or 

.. territory, belonging to any European states," before it is in the power 

of the Court before whom the trial was holding, to say ·that the Priso­

ner must be forthwith acquitted of such chal·ge. The provision may 

have been dictated by some such snggestion as this; relative to being [l 

natural-born subject, it can be known only to the Prisoner with cer­

tainty, the Crown has no opportunity of being acquainted therewith.­

The Crown might say thus, I do not know, .rhether you are a natural 

born subject, or where the oRence was committed; but you, the Priso­

ner, if you are not a natural·bom subject .( wuich we cannot know, or if 

you shew, we cannot rebut, as we cannot prove a negati~-e,) must go 

farther, and, to be entitled to demand YOUI' acquittal, mnst prove that 

it was within the limits of any colony, settlement, or territory, be­

longing to any European states, as well as that you are not such subject 

as this act gives the powel' to try for any crime or offence committed 

any where in the Indian territories. I have stated that which appears 

a tlifficnlty which you have not adverted to, that we may hear you upon 
it, as you may perhaps obviate what at present strikes 'the Court as a 

considerable obstacle to his acquittal, though it were establi~hed that he, 

in reality, was not a subject. 

2J1fr. Stuart.-I am certainly indebtetl to your Honour for ~o doing, 

but I would remark that we are not asking for the acquittal Of the Pris­

soner, or contending upon, or as to, what would have entitled him to it, 

but we are contending that, upon the face of this indictment, that which 

ought to ha\"e been al'erred is omitted, and that such omission, is afatal 

omission, and ought to arrest the judgment of the COUl·t. In thanking 

your Honour for your observations, 1 do it because they most forcibly 

manifest that the Prisoner has been deprived of the opportunity 9f shew­

ing that which, when proved, must have secured hi, acquittal. The 

indictment does not m"er that he was a subject, he could not, therefore, 

be permitted to prove the contrary, because this answer would immedi­

ately have been given by my learned friends, " we do not aver him to be 

.. a subject." r say that they ought to have so averred him, hecause, if 

he was not a suhject, they und no right to try him. The moment that 

he was proved not a subject, the pl'osecutioll must stop, nor would the 

COllrt have a right, I take it, to try even a subject, if the offence was 

~ommitted out of the King's dominions • 

. 1I'Ir. Jus/ice Bou-en.-Perhaps that is not quite so clear; and if you 

attentively read the 4th clause, I think you will find that his Dot bein~ 
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II! sulljed, is not sufficient forthwitli to stop a tria!", but, as was pointed 

out by the Chief Justice, he must go farther. By the 5th clause you 

'will find the direct reverse of your last position io be law. It is in these 

tast words, " provide(t neverthlliess, that it shhU and may be lawful for 

" such Court t~ proceed in the trial of any person beirrg a subjetJt or sub­
" juts of his Majesty, wh'o sb'all be charged' with tbe same or any other 

" offence, notwithstanding such offence shall appear to have been com. 

" mitted within HIe IhnHs of any colony, sttllem'ent, or territory, belong~ 
.. ing to arty European stale as aforesaid." Here you see that provision 

is e~pecially made for the trial of any subject, notlvitlistanding his offence 

shall appear to have Iicim committed within the limits of any colony, 

settlement, or territOI"y, belonging to any European state. 

Mr.Stltart.-The prtnciple'Llhlvert to as completely sustaining the 

lI'rgumeut I have subm'rtted, is the great principle of public Jaw, that no 

nation can legislate for the subjects of another, unless whilst they are 

receiving, in the territory of that nation, tire protectioll of its laws; 

and that allegiance autt pl"Otection are reciprocal obligations; thus I say 

that the BI'iHsh parliament coullr not, by this act of the 43.1, legislate 

for a subject of the United States, in the Indian ferritory belonging to 

the United States. I do not know that it could even for its own natural 

bum subjects, but that mu.t be the utmost length to whick it could 

<:arry the principle of perpetual allegiance, Then, I say, as the face of 

this indictment does not aver that the oti'ence was committed in the 
King'8 dominions. thJ.t the Prisoner is not bount! by this. act if be is a 

foreigner, (as he i,,) and' owes no natural allegiance, because the obli­

gation of allegiance is insepm'able from the beoeJ\t of protection. Where 

tbe tatter is not received, the former is not owed; and ought not to be 

demanded. 'rhis is a PI·opo.ition that is t1"ue in the most unlimited 

sense. The 5th datlse of the act, I am aware, produces a Iini.tation of 

this principle, but what [speak of is that it has no limitation by the 

acknowledged public principles of international law. It would be ab­

surd to talk of the imperial parliament legislating fol Oltina; then what 

right has it to legislate for the telTitory of any other power? Now, if 

fOl' an offence committed in Chirut, the ollender is ever tried in London, 

it can ollly be where that oti'ellder is a natural born subject ofthe British 

CrOWD, and therefUl'c incapable of e,'cr divesting himself of the obliga. 

gation of allegiance. My &rgllment embraces two or three points, and, 

hI. loralil!J.; it is abwolntely necessary that the iOllictment should not 

only aver that the oftimce \Va; nat committed within the limits of the 

U"iled Slates, bnt also, that it 'was committed within the King's do­

minions. I then go one ~tep farlher, an<lnrgc that it is equally neees­

!ary ihat it ~h')lllcl h,we ayprr~,l tOOt De Reiniw.rd WIS a subject of the 
11""" 
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King. I do not admit the right assumed by_the legislature in this ael 

of legislating for its own subjects in a foreign territory; I do not admit, 

nor do I deny the right. It is not necessary that I should do 80, it is 

~ufficient for me to shew that it was necessary that this averment shoUld 

have been wade, and, as fl-om tbe Crown's own shewing upon its in­

dictmellt, it docs not necessarily follow but that this offence might hove 

been committed out of the ](ing's dominions, it should have been averred 

that it wa~ committed by a sub jed of the King. 

Respecting the Indian territory, in which it is charged the offence 

was committed, and which the Crown officers appear to consider a suffi­

cient description, I observe, that I an not concur with them in opinion, 

for several and, to my mind, weighty, reasons, and I first submit to th .. 

conRideration of the Court, that neither France nor England have, or 

ere,. had, any title, adt'erse to that of the Savages, to this territory; that 

they have not, lIor had they ever, any possession de jure, or de jacto, or 

any beyond the toleration given by the Indians, who are (as I shall pre­

~ently have occasion more fully to shew,) completely an independent 

nation. I remark, that one of the persons included in this indictment is 

a Savage, and he stands indicted for an offence committed on his own 
soil, the soil of which he is one of the lords, as being one of the abori. 
gines, in a Conrt of a country jO'Teign to him, and to which he owes no 
allegiance, and of whose people he knows nothing, but that he permit­

ted them to trade in his territory. I would ask of my learned friends, 

if that individual was tried, convicted, and executed, whether it would 

not, according to principles of nal.ionallaw, be a just case of war? I 

would ask, whether, upon all the acknowledged principles of natiomil 

intercourse, which are usually known among civilized states, under the 

appellation of the law of nations, that would not be the case? and, is 

their absence, I would ask, whether they, knowing no civilized rule 

for their gm-emment, would not be entitled to blood for blood? Whe­

ther their language might not justifiably be, " You have taken the blood 

of our brother, and we will cause tha blood of your brother to be shed 

10 atone for it." That this territory is theirs is evident from the act 

itself which calls it Indian territory. It is not called British territory; 

in no part of the act is it denominated Brilish territory, for the most ob­

,-ious of all reasons, because it never was, in point of fact, in our pos­

session, it ne\'et" was conquered by us, and therefore could not be called 

other than Indian territory, because, neither by c(mquest nor occupancy. 
had it ever become ours. Relative to a cansideration which very natu­

rally arises out of this part of the argument, I am aware that it m!lY 

be said that nations are iatisfied with very slight proofs of occupancy. 

1 he erection, for instance, of a lIag-post at the time a real, or imsgillary 
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ciseovery (and perhaps more frequently the latter) of any place, appears 

to be made. As a part of the international law of the kingdoms of Eu­
rope, it may be good, and ought on them to be bin.ding, because the ob­

ligations imposed by the law of nations bring with them benefits in whiclt 

those civilized nations of the earth participate, but it is not necessary or 

imperative that the Indian' tribes should agree to this convention, or 

that theyshoold allow that the erection of a pole or staff should be a 

confiscation of tileit' territory. No; their lands, like Ollrs, are defended 

by war, and the only reason, perhaps, that we have not practically 

known tbis to be the case is, that we nevel' attempted an occllpancy.­

We have wished to trade with ,them, and have been permitted. Hun­

dreds of miles from each other, we bave been permitted to buiW and 

establish trading-posts, but does that give us any right to assume a lord • 

• hip over the soil, or make us the owners of the territory? No, cer­

tainly not, we have no title to it whatever; if we have, let ~e learned 

Crown officers produce it, that we may know upon what it is foundeJ. 

I am not so visionary as to say to, or to expect, the Crown officers to 

produce title deeds, as if it was merely an estate, but I do expect them 

to shew me a government de faCiO, or, at least, a possession de facto, 

adverse to that of the Indians, but they cannot do that, for the Indians 

have alw:qrs had the possession defaeto, and have always had a govern­

ment defacto. Again, I remark, that they manifest in their intercourse 

with otber powers that they are an independent people of themsch-es, 

and have not forfeited, by the cbance of war, or by voluntary cession, 

any of thpse privileges which belong to independent nations. In their 

treaties what nation ever interfered and asserted a claim to the territory, 

whicb they consider as belonging exclusively to themselves? Do they 

not make peace, and do tbey not go to war, like any other indepen­

dent nation? If they are not an independent nation, why do we call 

them our allies? Wby were they, d'lring the late war with the United 

States of America, universally treated as such? But why should I de­

tain the Court upon tbis point, when it is so clear that they possess all 

the attributes of an independent nation, and consider themselves to be 

an independent people, acknowledging no jurisdiction over them?­

They are not in the situation which, in their olvn figurative anll cnrr­

getic languagtl, was tiO feelingly and forcibly depicted when one of their 

sachems described their situation to be, .• that the reeds which had been 

.. blown across the Atlantic: ocean had became great tree~, which 

.. scourged tbem." •• They were reeds," said the aged chief, .. when 

.. they were blown across the great waters, they were received and 

.. planted by us, we watered them, and they ~relV so that they be~3m~ 
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" thereof." 
Chief Justice Sewell.-That would ,imply a very strong, though pt'l"_ 

,haps not an equitable, jurisdil:~;on. Do yOU s:;.y t,hat was the complai,nt 

of one of their chiefs? 
11fr. Stuart.-It was ,thecomplaint'of an Indian ,cb,ief, but not of Olle 

beloHging to that portion of the Indian Terr~tory. It was a coPiplai~ 
made ill Quebec by one of the chief~, di,playing jn the mos,t forcible 6i· 

mile, tha:t those who, whell weak, they had receive.} aDd nonri~hed, hnd; 

when strong, become their oppressors. Above, they have no occasion 

yet to make such a complaint, and I mentioned the circumstance to 

shew the dijferent situation in wJJich the Indian uations above, :we!'e to 

to those with whom we are more acquainted. How 10ng it 1'lay be be­

fore they make th~ same lamentation,' we cannot say. Whether those 

tra~ers, who are now small as the reeds of whic)! the sachem complain. 

ed, who are permitted to erect posts for their convenience, but have as 

yet taken no actual possession of the soil, are t~ be nourisped up into 

trees, and. become the scourge of those who now protect them, remain. 

in the bosom of -time. But I conclude my argument by insisting that, 

as no actual possession has ever been held of this territory by the British 
nation, tbat as no adverse possession was even taken of it by France, 
from which nation it might be supposed that Eng/wId derived an autho­

rity to legi6la~e for this territory, the Britbh legislature could not, for a 

moment, entertain any right to make laws to bind. a~y, bu~ her own 

subjects, in the Indian Territol'y; nor fO I admit that they could even 

go that length, but, without admitting or d.enying their power over 

their own subjects, it ,could extend no fal,ther. I therefore contend, that 

it was most essential to aver, that Charles De Reinhard was a British 

subject, and that the offence was c~mmitted, not only contra pacem do­
miJ1i regis, corOll(!m et dignitalem ejus, but also, that it was ~ommitted 

within his dominions. That the Indian Territories are not part of those 

dominions, I consider to be satisfactorily estilbli~hed, not only by the 

Indians making peace and war as other independent nat~ons do, but, I 

think, it will be evident that t)lis independence has bee~: and is, recog­

nil;ed by Great Britain herself. If I only refer to the numerous treaties 

made with the Indians by the British nation, I completely establish my 

point, I need, indeed, only look to the very act upon which this in­

dictment is founded, and I deduce the same favourable co~firmation of 

~y position. It is an act for. the punishment of crimes and olfjlnce~ 
committed in the Indian territorie!. It is not even called British terri­

tories, and must be intended to bring to puni8hment perso~s owing aile­

:;iance to Britain, eit~r from the offence heing committed in the Bri· 
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tibh dominions, or from tile offender owing a natural allegiance to the 
British c.l'Own, and neither of these aU.imllortant characteristics are a­

vowed in the indictment. We contend, that both w~re necessary, and 

we consider that this circu,mstanee, in conjunption wjth tpe other argu­

ments }'Ie pave had t,he honour t~ submit, furnish grounds which will 
induce the COUI't to accede to our motion in art'est of ju4gment. 

, 1Ltorney-General.-In r\!ply to my learned friencls I beg to cOn~end 
that tq.e case cited frolJ1. East, of the King agail)st the Inhabitants of Ox. 

ford ~s conclusive against the argument to shew that a Dew trial can be 

granted,-The course to lJe pursued, if any or the evils which my learned 

friend8have so f(lelingly described .hould occur, is there distinctly point­

ed out. .. In capital cases if a convi(1tion take place at the assizes upon in­

.. sufficient evidence, t~e COlJlmon course is ~o apply to the Crown for 1l 

".ard0l), upoq a f~1\ report of the eVidence sent in by the learned ju!lge 
.. to the !ecretary of etat,e for ~he borne department." I cannot but reo 

mar)!:, tl1at I consider my learned frjend rather unfortunate in referring to 

this c,a£e, as it appears to tell <;ompletely og.fJinst, instead, of supporting 

bis al'gulJlent. The reporter says, .. I alll not aware of any instance of a 

" new t.rial granted in a capital ,cas~,'1 The reason he was not aware of 
it is, that there had I)ot Ij'cen any gl''tnted, an!l he adds, what must be 

considere~ as pretty strong evi~nc,e, that there had not, .. that upon tlllt 

.. debate of all the judges in ]lforga'r,el Tinkler's c~se in 1781, it seemed 

.. to be I!onsidered th~t ft could not be," If these are the sort of ca,es 

whiCI! my learned Mends are reduce,l to tlie ne~essity of producing as 

authoritjes that a new tdal may be granted in criminal cases of a capi­

tal natu~e, ~ apprehend your Honoui's Will riot be t!isposed to bp ~he first 

judges to evill~e that it cau, by gf'll)ting onein 'this case, in oppqi'ition 

to the positive di~tllm of my Lord K~nyon, that they cannot be lOranted, 

when t!Je utmost length to which the researclI of my learnell friel.ds en­
ables them to adduce d'iffering authorities is, that the point is not settled 

in England, but after a debate b,etwecn the whole of the judges, it seemc~ 

to be ~onsjdere~ that it could not be. A great deal has been said by my 

learn~d fdends, particularly by my friend, Jl!r. Stuart, upon the hard­

ships that would occur in' this and otper cases of a similal' nature from 

the Court not heing ~ble to grant ne\~ trials, but the hardship i. merely 

,maginary, and disappears the moment it is examine4, Evel'y thing my 

learned fl'iend conceives he would gUi'n by !l ncw trial, or rather the ma­

king a motion fOj' a new trial, un del' a .im!lar rule to that UpOll which 

~otions in al'l',est of judgment arc now hear~ and decide.!, viz: heard 

upon an undoubted rule of law, and decided by the discl'etion of the 

Court to whom the motion is addressed, he can effect at present. Ent· 

~y thing that could be shewn upon a motion for a new tdal addressed to 
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5ure remedy against improper conduct on the part of the Jury. Apply 

to the mercy of the Crown, but certainly not to the Court for a new 

trial, who, says the dictum of my Lord Kenyon, can not grant it. And 

if it coukl, what is the advantage? the Crown can at once remedy the 

evil, whereas a Jury cannot. 

On the subject of the conJeHion of the Prisoner, and of the actual 
.leath of Owen Keveny, my learned friends took nothing, nor could they. 

as they clearly were not topics that could be argued on a motion for a 

new trial, were your Honours 'e\'en of opinion that you could entertain 

~llcb a motion. I would, however, just remark, relative to the confes­

eion, that my learned friend's observations might have had some weight 

if the confession had not been in the Prisoner's own hand,wTi!ing, but 

the confession, being in his own hand-writing is a complete and satis­

factory answer to e\<ery thing that has been said relative to it, 3S he 

there acknowledges the murder, and details the circumstances which. UII­

fortunately led to, and attended, its perpetration. 

The next point urged by my learned friemls was one of considerable 

delicacy, though unquestionably one of solid right, viz: the supposed 

misdirection of the Court relative to the boundaries, but as, in the for­

mer instance, they gained nothing by tbeir objection, as they bad, dur­
ing the trial, urged it, and after all of us being heard at length upon the 

question, your Honours solemnly decided it, and the Jury, in apprecia­

ting the fact, adopting, as they were bound to do, your Honours judg­

ment on the legal points submitted and disputed in tbe argull1ent, have, 

by their verdict, set r.ompleiely at rest the question of locality, (at least 

as far as we can possibly have to do with it,) that verdict declaring the 

Prisoner guilty in manner, and form as he stood charged in the indict­

ment, Tbe que.tions of locality and jurisdiction were directly met by 

our cbarging the offence to have been committed at a eel'tain place with­

Olll the limits of the province, &~. but nevertheless, 10ithin tbe jurisdiction 

of this Court. Upon tbis statement the point of law contained in the 

inuictillent was raised by my learned friends, and discussed, both in rela­

tion to the loclts in quo, and to the jurisdiction of tbe Court. The one 

was finally determined by the verdict of the country, and the other by 

the judgment of tRe Court. The Court deci~ed the southern and wesler14 
ooundaries of his Majesty,s antient province of Quebec to co.stitute the 

southern and western limits of his new provinces of Upper and Lower 
Canada, and the .Jury, assisted by that ueci,ion, by their verdict, say, 

" we have prot'cd the ,Ieath to haye taken plaee witlwut the limits of thtl 

" province," &c. Again the indictment, in the counts upon which De 

lUinhard has been convicted, eharges that he was aiding, helping, abe~~ 
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ting, tOblro~ting, and maintaining, the said Franrois lIIainville to com. 

mit al)d perpetrate a felony and murder, (at this certain place so as a­

foresaid described,) by making" an assault upon one Owen I(eveny, &C. 
&:c. The counts conclude by saying-And so the jurors aforesaid, UpOIi 

•• their oath aforesaid, do say that the said Franfois Mai1ll'ille, Charles 

.. De Reinhard, Archibald l1'I'Lellan, CuthbtTt Grant, Joseph Cadotte, 

" and Jean Baptiste Desmarais, him the said Owen Keveny, then and 

.. there within the jurisdiction aforesaid, in manner and form last afore­

.. said, feloniously, wilfully and of their malice aforethought, did kill 

.. and murder, against the peace of our said Lord the King. his crown 

.. and dignity." If we had not proved the death of the man we should 

not have supported our indictment '; the same observation will suffice as 

to identity, for it was Owen Keveny, we charged as having instantly died 

of the mortal wound which was given to him, aud the verdict of the Ju­

ry says, that it was Owen Keveny, who was feloniou~ly assaulted by 

.. Mainville, and received from him" one mortal.wound pf the depth of 

".five il\ches, and of the breadth of one inch, of which last mentioned 

.. mortal wound he the said Owen Keveny, then and- there instantly 

died," and the Prisoner Charles De Reinhard is found guilty, " in man­

" ner and form as charged, or having been present, aiding, &c." the said 
Frant;ois Mainville to commit the sai,1 felony and muriler. These point3 

therefore were conclusively settled by those whose several function~ 

gave them authority to settle them. 

There remains nothing then to consider but the question oC jurisdic­
tion, in relation to its extent, as conCerl·ed by the act. Qne objection of 

my learned friends, and partiGularly insisted on by my friend Mr. Stuart, 

was, that the rigorous construction which he contended the act -confer­

ring jurisdiction independent of locality, (thereby trenching, as he said, 

upon the fundamental principle of the common law, that locality alone 

gave power,) precluded felonies fmm being taken notice of under the 

.. general term crimes and offences." It appears not to be seriously ques­

tioned, (though doubts were said to exist on the subject,) that in a case 

of felony committed in the district,.or in the province, the Courts of the 

se\'eral districts of the province might, under the general description of 

.. crimes or offences," take cognizance, but my frien,\.Jlf ... Stuart, says, 

as the murder was committed in the Indian territory, it must go hpme 

for trial, because the right of trying for felonies committed in places over 

which an extra-judicial authority bas been given, be\(}ngs alone to the 

parent state. It was also urged by my learned friend who addressed 

you first, that the constitution of this Court was such as to prohibit cog­

uizance being taken i!y it of felonies committed in the Indian territories, 

for, said the learned geutIemaD, " YOUI' Honours are 1I0tjlldgel, but~oJIII-
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missioner,," and the act of 18OS, requires thlitjudges .hall belong to tbe 

Court taking coguitance of crimes ancl offences committed in tbe Indian 

territory, because, said my leal'neti friends," it is to jruigts (hat the 

pawer of ls~uing subp<.Enas is ~tanted or givelliry the nct." AnotJler ob­

jection of my learned f.-iends, which may be associated wilh thig-part of 

their argument, is the difference in tbe words Court IlDd Cflurt" as ap. 

plied to the two province~. It is, say ilie learned gentlemen, the C01tT/$ 

of the Lower province, whoAe power or jurisdiction is extended, and 

this is but a Court, and, as pre~idents or comrnistdouers of this Court, your 

Honours are not the judges of tbe Courls spokerl of in the act, and they 

consi,ler this as additionaHy supporting their position that a Court of 

Oyer and Terminer is not included in the act of 1803. It is cnmtantly, 

they urge, the plural number in which th£"statute 5peaks of ,,' the COl1rls" 

of the Lou'er province, and in the singular" the Court" of the Upper 

province. There is one other point of objection made by my learned 

friends, closely connected with this part of the (luestioll, which I will 

mention, because, I helieve, I ,holl then have enumerated all tbat were 

advanced relative to the constitution of the Court, nnd the necessarily 

limited powers which snch formation enabled it to exercise, and I pro­

pose to advert to the whole of them at once. The objection was, that 

the Court over which yonI' Honours are presiding, was not then estab­

lished, and therefore could not be meant. 

On these objections, I ;ay,flffsl, that, in reference to the act meanin,!!j 

the Courts then established, there is nothing in the act itself which irIdi· 

cales that its operation was to be confined to the COUl·ts then e6tabli~hed. 

or to restrict its extension to any Court that mi,,:lt hereafter he estab. 

lished, provided it should- be a Court in which ~ Cl'ime or offence of a 

similar nature to any sent from the Indian territory could be tried, ir 

committed within the province. A Court of Oyer and Termuler and 

general gaol delivery was well known to the provinces of Canada, he fore 

the passing of this act by the imperial parliament, and murder was a 

crime usually tried in them, if, when they were held, there were persons 

accused of that crime of whom the gaol required to be delivered. I 

6bould think the more rational construction of this clause of the act 

would he to comider it as meaning the various descriptions of Court~, in 

which offences of all the different degrees of enormity are 5c\'erally tried, 

if committed within either of the pl"Ovinces, and, admitting th"t inter­

pretation, ":o'e all kn?w a Court of Oyer and Terminer and c;eneral gaol 

delivery, is a Court wherein felonies and murders are tried. All I con­

teml, meant by the act was this, that an offence committed in the Indian 

territories should be prosecuted and tried in precisely the same way as 

if it had been commi~ted within the body of one of our own (listricts. A 
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tourt of Oyer and Terininer, being a com'petent Court fo try a' mtr~de~ 
alleged to have been committed in the' district of Quebec; a Courf of 

Oyer and Terminer is: and must be, a competent Court to try the Pris~ 
oner, for a murder perpetrated iii the Indian territories, under this act, 

w'hich directs tim the offence; whether the' cri1Il'e be Ii felony or a mis-

11emeanour, " shaH be, and be ,teemed to be, an offence of the same na­

" ture, and shall be prosecuted and tried ill' the same manner, as if the 

" same IHid been committed within the limits of the province where the 

" same shall be tried under this acC" In fine my learned fri'ends eon­

tend, that no Court that was not actually in esse at the time of passing 

the act of 1.803, is competent to fry under it, whilst my position is, that 

(hese terms in the act, "usually tried, and where the same would hat'e 

" been tried," &c. have )'efereuce to the time at wltich the offence re­

quires to be tried, and, under this construction, any person: nDW in the 

gaol of this district, upon a charge of murder will re¢eiye his trial be­

before your Honours at this COUl·t of Oyer and Terminer and. general 

gaol ~elivery. I far~her contend, that a Court of Oyer and Terminer, 

being' known to the constitlltion of bO'tb provinces of Canada, before tbe 

passing of {he act of 1803, was sufficiently in esse to be admitted, (even 

under my learned friend's interpretation as to the necessity of its so 

being,) to a partiCipation in the intended' jurisdiction conferred by that 

etatute. 

Having establbhed that the objecfion against this very Court not be­

ing ;n esse in 180S, mu,t fail, as well as shewn its power to try for felo­

nies committed in the district of Quebec, it is necessary to follow up the 

enquiry, and prove that thm'e is nothing' tbat disqualifies it from exercis­

Ing n simihll' jlll'isdiction over offences committed in the Indian Territo­

ries, to that wilh which the other Courts of the province are invested.­

My learned friend's ot.jeCtion is twOfold, your Honours are ttot judges, 

hut commissioners, and it is the Courts of Lowet Canada to' whom pO'wer 

is given' to try, &c. As to the distinetiO'n arising from the plural num­

ber being mad'c use of by the act relative to Lower, and the 6ingular, 

whan it speaks of Upper Canada, I imagine a word \Vm suffice. In the 

Upper province there is but one Court usually trying criminal mattei'S, 

whilst in Lower Canada there are more. The objeetinn as to your Ho­

nours is equally unavailing. YOU)' Honours are, for all the substantial 

jlurposes of the administration of cl'imino.l justice, at ~1lis moment judgE'S, 

full)" as if ~jtting in bench or at bar, having power to compel the atten­

dance of witnesses, arid to fulfil all the duties attached to the office, 

. from the tdal of a larceny, to the passing against ::;, prisoner the judg­

JIlent of death. On another point suggested by my learned friend~, in 

loJ!. 
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connection with the offence charged, I think their observations very pe­

culiar. If, (says my learned fl"iend,) it shall be found tbat a Court of 

Oyer and Terminer can take cognizance of offences committed in the 

Indian territory, still its power is, by the act oC 1803, extended only to 

the trial of misdemeanors. This is not an objection to this particular 

Court, or to Courts of Oyer and Terminer generally, on the ground or 
inferiority of jurisdic~ion, but is an objection founded upon the wording 

of the act which gives jurisdiction to the Courts of justice of the pro­

vince of Upper and Lower Canad«, Cor the trial and punishment of per· 

sons guilty" of crimes and offences" within certain parts of North A· 

merica. The words, " crimes and offences," only give the power of 

trying for misdemeanors, aUlI consequently, according to my learned 

friend's explication, no Court in Canada can try, under this act, for a 

felony, because, as be argued with some degree of ingenuity, felony is 

110 crime. This is a conclusion which, I confess, I cannot see how my 

learned C"iend arrives at, and one certainly very dissimilar to tbose 

which il'1r, Justice Blackstone, in his Coml1.entaries, so clearly lays down, 

and so incontrovertibly establishes. I beg to refer the Court to Black. 

stone, 4th volume, cap, 1, pages 1 to 5, for an accurate definition of the 

nature of crimes. .. A crime, or misdemesnor, is an act committed or 

" omitted, in violation of a public law, either forbidding or command­
" ing it. This general definition comprehends both crimes and miEde­

"mesnors, which, properly speaking, are me,'e synonymons terms, 

" though, in common usage, the word crimes is made to denote sllch of­

" fences as are of a .leeper and more atrocious dye, while ~maller faults, 

.. and omissions of less consequence, are comprised nnder the gentler 

" names of misdemesnors only." Here, I think, we have authority which 

would justify us in opposing a contrary opinion to our learned friends, 

and in saying a murder, being an offence of a deeper and Inore atrociou~ 

dye, is ·a crime; but we bave no occasion to advance our own apprehen. 

sion upon the subject, for Sir William Blackstone expressly teUB u~, in 

the same page, when eD larging upon this genf:ral distinction; " treason, 

.. murder and I'Obhery, are properly rank.ed among crimes," and he 

gives, in very few words, the reason, " since, besides the injury done 

" to individuals, they strike at the very being of society, which cannot 

" possibly sub;ist where actions of this sort are EUffered to escape with 

.. impunity," Having premised in the following paragraph, that" in 

" all cases the crime includes an injury," that " every public offence 

.. is al89 a private wrong, and somewhat more; it ailects the individual, 

"and it likewise affects tbe community;" he says, in applying this 

pl'inciple to the crime of murder, "murder is an injury to the life of an 

" inllividual, but the law of society considers principally the loss wblcb 



259 

.. the ~tate sustains by being deprived of a memb~, and the pernicious 

.. example thereby set for others to do the like." 

In relation to the act of tbe 42d, and the case of SHAW produced 

upon it by my learned frien~s, and so 'confidently relied on by them, I 

remark that, if that act is examined, it will be found to have been made 

for a very different purpose. It will be evident in a moment that tbe 

object of tbat act was to preyent, or punish, the commission ~f frauds, 

but very different are the objects of the !Sd. Its preamble expli.citly 

sets out by a declaration that, " whereas great crimes and offences have 

" been committed in the Indian territories and otber parts of America," 

&c ... and that great crimes and offences have gone, and may hereafter 

" go, unpunished, and greatly increase," to prevent which they pray 

his l\1ajesty that it may be enacted, aud by the statute it is enacted, 

that all offences committed in the Indian territory shall be deemed to 

be of the same nature, shall be lried in the same manner in the Courts 

of the provinces, and subject to trJ same punishment, as if they had 

been committed within the province where the trial is held. In Lower 

Canada, felony is a crime; crime includes murder; murde·r is tried in a 

Court of Oyer and Terminer, which has power to award the punishment, 

which is death. It appears to me, therefore, that, in every respect, the 
offence of the prisoner is included in the act, and may be tried by this 

Court as far as depends on its constitution and-the right of jurisdiction. 
It remains only to consider the objectiens to the manner ttl which the 

indictment accuses the Prisoner, and my learned friend says it is defective, 
because we have not averred him to be a B,-itish Snbjtct. There is one 

remark that, I omitted, whidt I will submit before I enter upon the 

question of tJ1e indictment. The act of the 42d, as I have shewn, was 

fo~ a very different purpose to that of the 43(1, but I would ask of my 

learned friends, whether, or by what rule, it must necessarily follow, 

that, because, by one act, power is gi\'en to try for misdemeanors, it 

lIlay not, by another, be extended to felonies? I would ask by what 

authority it is that the wisdom of the British legislature, is to be re­

~tricted to the mere power of conferring jurisdiction over misdemeanors 

to the Courts of the colonies. . ~ . 
I noW proceetl to consider the objection raised. t6"'the indictment, 

ilnd in reply to it, I contend, fit-st, That it was unnecessary, secondly, 

That it would have been improper, to h')ve averre,l that De Rei1lhard 

was a subject, or tIlat the offence was committed ill the King's domi­

Ilions. That it was not necessary to aver that·he was a subject, I refer 

to the indictments under the acts of the S5th Henry VIn, to be found 

in Chitty, as precedents. These were fndictments upon the statute 

which gives power to try Jurcign treasons in the King's Bench, or by a 
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Court of Oyer and Terminer, iu any county appointed by the comml.~ 

mon. Hawkins, in setting forth this act, declares it to be for a remtdy 
~n,I'declaration to clear up the doubts which before existed upon the 

'question~, as to in what manner, and at what .place, high treason done 

out of the realm was to be tried, and ·by the act of the 35tb Henry VIII, 

cap.!!, treasons., ·&c. done out of the ~eal'm of England, "shall be from 

" thenceforth enquired of, heard, and determined, before the King's jus~ 

" tices of his bench for pleas to be bolden before himself, by good and 

" lawful IDen 'of the same shire, where the said b'encl; shall sit and b~ 
" kept, or else before such commis~ioners, and in Sllch ~hire of the realm, 

" assllll.ll be assigned by tbe King's Majesty's commisl'ion, and be law­

•• CuI me~ of the same sbire, i~ like manner and form, to aU intents amI 

" purposes, as if slich treasons, mispri~ions of treasons, or concealments 

" of treasons, haa been done, perpetrated, and committed, within the 

.. shire where they shall be so enquired of, heard, and determined, "5 

"~foresai;l." Here the~ is a statue providing fur the trial of an offence! 

(whose very essence is that the individual guilty of it was a subject, 

and owed allegiance,) committed' out of the realm, '":Iirecting tbat it 

.. sha~ be tried by lawful men, in like manner aild form, to all intenti 

.. and purposes, as if it had been done, perpetrated, and corr.mitted, with­
" in the same shire ~·here it shall be 'so enquired of." . Nothing can,' I 

think, be more direct in point than this, but upon reference to indjct~ 

ments upon tbis statute, 'for an offence committed out of the realm, and 

the guilt of which con'sisted entirely in the bei~g ~ subject, we find it 

was not thought necessary to charge the accu~ed with betng a subject. 

I consider this as so conclusive, that I abstain from troubling the COllrt 

further on this objection to the i~dictment. In continuatio~, I submit, 

that the British government has a right to legislate for its own subjects 

aoy where; that, as they can not forego their allegiance, they are arne_­

nable to the laws of the country out of the realm, as much as if within 

it. It will not be nec~ssary to tre~pass on the time of youI' honours 

farthel' on this point, as this offence was actually committed in BritiFh 

territory, because we do not grant my learned friends, iu the face of 

positive acts of parlia~ent, of treaties, of boundary-lines run, and of 

every other act that can positively d~monstrate that this was considered 

by the British government as territory belonging to the Crown of 

Great-Britain, I say we can not grant that this was an ermneous con~ 

si,deration. 

With respect to not proving the Prisoner to be a ~bject, it is true 

that the fourth clause of the act requires proof that a person is not It 

Britis~ subject, and that the offence was committed within the limits ~r 

a colony, settlement, or territory, belonging to an European State, be-
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lrJre n 'PI'isoner, inflicted on this statute, ~hall be forthwith acquitted, 

,but o/whum is it requil'ed? Not of the Crown, eertaillly. lfmy learned 

friends enquire how so? why ,not? :the answer is apparent. It is not 

required of the Crown, because it.is a .circumstance that can be better 

proved by the Prisoner. I:t is i1 circulI\stance completely within his 

knowledge, and therefore \IlUstbe prQved by hJm. It is iI) the nature 

Bf an alibi, the Crown .indicts a prtsoner fol' an oi':ence, and, as well all 

the evidence in our hands will allow, we bring home to a prisoner the 

charge laid again~t .him, he 8~serts that .he was not at the pla,e at the 

time; upon his defeuce he must prove lids to entitle him to ·his acquit­

.tal, and .in prov~ng that he u'.as 110/ where the .indictment charges .bim·to 

have been, ,he must shew where he was. So in this case, we charge the 

Prisoner, with being accessary to die murder of O,wen Keveny; the 

C.rown was not called upon to destroy its OWU case by averring that he 

\V,as a British subject, ·because if it had averred it, the onus probandi 

would lie upon the Crown; it wOlihl have been ,bound to have proved 

,that whieh i.t ·is at aU times difficult to su.bstantiate satisfactorily, viz: 

the birth.pla';;e of the accused. If tJIe Pl'isoncr .had made it a part of 

his defence that he was not a Britisb subject, he had at once the evi­

dence in his own bands, lie would have been put to no ·inconvenience on 

the subject oJ s\lbstantiating that which he alleged, but my learne,' 

friends appeared, till your Honours reminded them of it, to have for­

gotten that it was necessary that a prisoner should go a step beyond 

the hhewing that he was not a snbject, before 4e would, under the sta­

tute, be entitled to his acquittal. By thefiflh alaufc, the intention of 

the legislature is so clearly exhibited, that my lel'l'ned friend's argu­

ment, though ce,I'tainly very ingeniou~, must totally fail, for it is not 

left ill any degree of uncertainty whether a British subj~ct elln be tl'ied 

for crimes un!l offences committed in the territory of anothcl' state, for 

it expreFsly declares be may. So far frOID it being any way dub.ions 

"hether' a British subject ca.n be tried for ofiences cGml1litted in a for­

eign state, the act ~xpFessly provhlcs tlmt a snbject of his l\iaje'ty ,hall 

have his trlal proceeded in, "nothwit.hstan.Ying such oUenet! shall appear 

" to.have been committed within the lirmts of any colony, s&ttlement, or 

"territ;)ry, belonging to any Eurepean state.'? All my learned fl'iend's 

.Ilrgument relativc to the defect in omitting to charge the nffence to 

!lave been commit.te!1 in the l{ing's dominions, vani~hes '0 an instant 

because the o<,3t ~xpressly authorizes tpe trial o~ any o.f his l\Iajesty's 

'subjects fer effences com'mitted eut of t!lC King's dominionR, so as it i, 

not ~ithin the limits of any civil goVel'llIDcnt of the United States ef 

Ameriea. To. be entitled to his acquittal, it was not sufficient mel'ely 

, ~o pro.ve one of the two points. Hi~ proving that he was pot a subject 
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within the King's dominions would not he sufficient; but to come up to 

the statute, it must, before the Court can acquit any person charged Bnd 

prosecuted under this act, be proved that the offence was committed, 

not only"ilOt within the King's dominion~, but also within the limits of 

lome colony, settlement, or territory, belonging to any European state; 

and beyond that, that the person s~harged and prosecuted is Dot a sub­

ject of his Majesty. 

There was another observation of my learned friend, .1I-1r. Stuart',_ 

to which I can not but advert. He said the question between the Crown 

lind the Prisoner was not, subject or no subject, but, guilty or not guilty. 

It is true that was the question, but it was open to the Prisoner to have 

proved, in any way that he could, that he was not guilty, and he would 

have done Ihut, had he proved, what the act renders it necessllry to 

prove, to entitle a Prisoner to his acquittal. So far from debarring the 

consideration of the question of subject or no subject, it fOl'ms a part of 

the question at issue, because he is; charged with having committed 

this offence within the jurisdiction of this Court. To be within the juris­

diction be must be a subject of tbe King, or the offence must have heen 

committed within the King's dominions. The points therefore of sub­
ject or no subject, and of Ring's dominions or not, were fairly included 

in this issue, and upon it the Prisoner might have said, I am not guilty 

in manner and form as I stand charged in the indictment, for I am not 

a subject of his Majesty, and the offence wa~ committed within a col­

ony, licttlement, 01' tel'l'itory, belonging to another European state. 

Having proved this, we know the consequence; the Court 1V0uld hava 

been bound forthwith "to acquit him. Another ground of objection by 

my learned friend Jllf. Stuart, and insisted upon by him at very consid­

erable length Wilc, that the British govel'nment had no title to this terri­

tory. lHy Icarn~d friend by saying that there was no title in possession 

~f the government explained that he did not mean they requh'ed a title 

.:leed 8S an authority, Lilt he said they had never acquit'ed a right either 

by occupancy or conquest. My learned friend, with very great ingen­

uity, represented the Indians us having a government tlefacto, and a 

Jlossession de facio, and would induce us to beHeve, that very great hard· 

ship and injustice would be done to this independent people, possessing, 

(to use my learned friend's own strong language,) ,. all the attributes of a 

.. sov'(eign people," by its being determined that the Courts of the pro­
vince of Canada, through an act of the imperial parliament, had had 

~heir jurisdiction ex~ed to the cognizance of offences committed by 
its own subjects in tl,e Indian territory, over and in whicb, as far as 

l'c~;e;,ion can demomtrate the rieht ,cf governing, the British govern. 
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ment justify their legislating by actual occupancy. That the nature of 

the occupancy held of this ter,ritory by the Bl'jtish, has always been 

considered sufficient to form a title to a civili2:ed power to dispose of the 

soil, or to make laws for the government, of any uncivilized territory 

that it may discover, is evident from numerous instances that might be 

referred to; I will mention but one, namely, the grant to the H'iJdson's 
Bay Company. The pl'inciples upon which this right is sanctioned 

throughout the world are not to be questioned or controverted by any 

reference to the abstract question of benefit or injustice to the Indians, 

whom my learned friend so feelingly cQmpassionates. They rest, for 

their justification, upon the broad and universal assent of every nation, 

in every age, that to eXtend the march of civilization furnishes the 

greatest victory, and the highest title to government, that nations can 

boast. This is tIle right that Great Britain possesses over this immense 

territory •. Its being called Indian territory in the act i~ mere designa­

tion. Wherever the Indians appear, whenever they appear, they are 

always treated as British subjeciR, as in fact they are, for to whom do 

they look for protection but to theil' Great Father. I thel'efore con­

tend, in opposition to my learned friends, that the imlictmcnt is not de­

fective, that the offence is properly laid, when 'it is charged as being a­

gainst the peace of our Lord the I(ing, that the place is correctly and 

fully descl'ibed without the scilicet, that it was unnecessary to alleg" 

that it was in the King's dominions, and that it would have been impro­

,per for us to·have averred that the Prisoner was a subject, seeing that, 

In default of proof, the Crown would be destroying its o;vn indictment, 

For thes" reasons, amongst others, which no doubt IV ill be adduced by 

my learned fdend, the Solicitor General, I consider that the motion for 

a new trial call not be entertained by the 'Court, whilst that in arrest of 

judgement will not avail the Prisoner. 
Solicitor-General,-The motions which my leal'ne'd frienus have, ""ith 

so much ability, submitted to the Court, are two-the first, for a new 

tdal, and the second, in arrest of judgment. At an eal'lier stage of the 

argument I took the liberty of stating ·to youl' honours my belief that 

the motion for a new iT'ial, ill' a case of capital felony, coulu not Le en. 

tertained hy the Court. 1 still f(el considel'able confidence in the cor· 

rectness of the opinion, but it is certainly with the grealest deference 

tbat, us the basi,q of my observations; I assume it to be law, tbat th~ 
motion for a n()w tl'ial in this case can not be ente~ta;ned. Whate\'er 

confidence I befol'e felt tlpon tbe subject CDn /lot ont lJl' increased, whell. 

at the present moment, I refer to the arguments of my leamc,W!'rh'illls, 

and find that al( their ability and intil15tl'Y in research cotl!d not pr"duc.e 

13 ~ingJc "8'C to 5npPIJrt t1ll' Gontrary "pin;n)', [,;1' the utmo,t lenl;ll' 
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ibat they discovered any autbority to go, was to say tb,t It It as ~e­
lieved tbe matter was not finally settled, but that the general opinion 

upon a debate of the whole of the judges, appeared to be that it could' 

not be granted. Thus situated I feel persuilded your hbriol,lrs will not, 

in a case so coriip!fitely novel, accede to the motton fOr a new trial. 

But we do not rely upOn negntive evidence in the opi'ninn which we 

submit of tIie fuadmissibillty of our learned frieri'dYs ptoposition, be; 

r.ause tne case cited by the Allorney-General, from Sixth Term Reports, 

contailling' the dictum of my Lord Kenyon, " that in one class of offence~, 

.. tbose' gl't!ate'r than'misdemeanors, no new trial can be granted at all," 

puts all the arguments ohhe counsel' on the other ~ide upon this part or 

the snbject completely hors du combat. This decision or the enlightened 

and venerable judge, 1 take it, will riot: be set aside by your honours in 

the absence of any conflicting authority, for I au vert again to the cir­

cumstance of roy learned' fl'iend~ on the otlier side, not pro(Tucing a sin~ 

gle C8s'e where a neVI trial had been granted, (nor has there been any, 

exc~Pt tbat ih Let'rnz, "hich hils since been overruled,) and that all 

the length they went was to adduce ar1 instance wherein it is ~aid tbat 

the matte~ does not appear to he fully determined in England wheth~r 

it may, or may not be granted: Under these circumstnnces, we cart 

have no apprehlmsion that there is any thing so peculiar in lids case, a8 

to indute your honours to sanction, with the wei:;!,! of your rlec~ion, 2: 

contrary opinion to that of my 1,ord Kenyon. 

The popu'lar part of the argument, as fo the harushlp of refusi ng a 

new trial in' criminal C85es, has been supported by my learnrd f,·iell", 

Mr. Stuart, on the ground that no other remedy exists, since a writ of 

attaint will not lie against the Jury for fin,ling an improper "erdict, and 

because this would be' no reason for alTesting the judgmellt; anrl 2111y, 
he has urge,l the peculiar anomaly that counsel are not hearu on behalf 

of the prisoner in cases of felony, and that, as new trials are granted in 

civil, a fortiori, they ought to be granted ih criminal 'cases. Tbe plaia 

answer is, tbatif they were granted to prisoners, tbey must nlso be aJ" 

lowed to the Crown, fOl· it is just as possible that a Jury may acquit the 

prisoner against the weight of evidence, or upon improper testimony, aB 

that tbey should conl'ict him. Indeed it appears to me that if my learn­

ed fdend's proposition were establi,hed as the ordinary practice of 

criminal Courts, the bardship would ue greater to prisoners than at pre­

sent, as the principles of bumanity, which always influence the adminis­

tration of OUl· criminal law and the conduct of jurie~, inclines rather, I 

think, to tbe acquittal, than to the conviction of a prisoner, under the 

circumstances alluded to by my leal'llfcl friend. The same amwer may 

be gi\'Cn to the argumen as to the prisoner not being allowed to ad-
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bllicers must exercise their right to reply. Then as to no remedy ex­

isting, if a new trial can not be granted in a case of an improper vel'­

,liet, ina~mllch as it does not fUl"l1i.h a legalllrgument upon a motion in 

arrest of judgment, my learned frienu, the Ali'orney General, has cor­

l·ccted that error by pointing to Ii sure remedy in the mercy of the 

(;rown. Suhject as every human institution is to error from the fl·ailty 

of our natures, it woultl be presnmption to imagine that improper vel'­

<licts may not sometimcs be given, but it is the happiness of a uefendant, 

who may be affeoted by such a verdict, that he has a sure protection 

against the consequences of such error in the mercy of the Crown, which 

never fails, upon a proper representation of the case, tf) extellll its prero­

gative, and remedy'the mlscornluct, or misapprehension, of a jury, by 

pardoning the prisoner. This is therefore the quarter to which my 

ieal"l1ed friends must direct their application, and if it is well founded, 

there can he no doubt of its success. 

The observations which I have addressed to the Court on the prin­

ciple of competenc!) in entertaining the motion, I woulu also remark, may 

serve, in a great measure, as answers to the expediency of granting the 

r.lOtion. There is, according to our idea, no necessity fUI· doing so, to 

enable the Prisoner to escape the eft·uets of the verdict of the Jury, even 

if my learned friend's arguments, as to the propriety which dic(ated it, 

were admitted to be cOITect, and that, in justice and law, he ought to 

escape them, for he has a more sure remedy open to him in the Royal 

mercy, !!.nu tbe po we,· ?f the Crown is equal to its mercy and its justice. 

Upon this part of my learned friends arguments, I therefore forbear 

tl"Oublillg the Court farther. We consider first, with the greatest defe­

rence to your Honours, that the authority of my Lord Kenyon is de~i­

sive in support of our opinion upon the incompetency to entertain the 

motion for a new trial, ami \ve see nothing in the case made out by my 

JearJled friends that would sustain such a motion, were it competent to 

the Comt to r~eeive it. Whatevel· may be your Honour's opinion on 

that point, I feel confident YOll will do me the honour to coincide with 

me, that the previous oJ",c;umcnt of my learned friends, even aumitting 

every statement to he undeniably correct, cannot be made to bear on 

their motion in arrest of judgment. l\ly confidence of being supported 

by the CO~lrt in this, that only fOl· matters on the record, can judgment 

be arrested, arises from the numerous authorities on the point. 'fhe 

111·5t to \V hich I refer is the most elementary boo 1" and indeed may be 

called the grammar of our law. I mean llIr. Justice Blackstone. In 

,.01. 4, page .'375, (Christian's edition) he uescrihes, in considering of 

" judgment and its consequences," \~hat may be offered in ar~eft or stay 
K·" 
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of judgment by a Jefentlant, upon a capital or inferior conviction.­

" He may," says the learned judge, .. at the period of being asked if 

.. he has any thing to offer why judgment should not be awarded against 

" him, as well as at his arraignment, offer any exceptions to tbe indict­

" ment, a~, fot' want of sufficient certainty in setting forth eitber the 

"person, the time, the place, or the offence." In another plaee, 

:'peaking upon this subject, he observes that, " on no other ground than 

matter of law can it lie." In Comyn's Digest, t,ol. 5, title, pleader, let· 

ter S. 47, considering of the avoiding of a verdict by arrest of judgment, 

it is said, " after a verdict a man may allege any thing in tlte rec~rd in 

" arrest of judgment, which may be assigned for error after judgDlBnt," 

and. in the same Digest, title, Indictment, (N,) it is laid down from 

lot 8idcrfin, 85, that a "prisoner shall not tender an~ matter for stay of 

"judgment,' but what al"ises 071 the indictment." Again, the same doc­

trine is expressly laid down, in tbe case of Bell and Stewart, :r.r. 23. 

GEO. II. in Wilson's Reports, t'ol. 1, page 255. "After a verdict the 

" Court will suppose every thing to be right, unless the contrary ap~ 

.. pears on the record," and this very opinion was given upon a motion 

in arre~t of judgment, wherein, its not appearing upon the declaration, 

that the cause of action arose within the jurisdiction of the Court, and 

the possibility that the debt might be such a one as that Court had no 
jurisdiction of, were made the principal grounds upon which the motion 

was urged, and, nevertheless, judgment was given for the plaintiff. In 

the case of Sullon versus Bishop, in 4th Burrows, page 2237, the same 

principle is laid down, In this case, which was one \vherein a defendant 

had been improperly convicted, the Court held that; " he was entitled 

" to some relief, but in what mode he should receive it was not easy to 

"determine." The counsel for Bishop had contended tbat he ought, in 

some way, to have liberty to avail himself of the benefit of a particular' 

provision of a statute, and, amongst others, suggested an arrest of judg­

ment. Upon this the Court said, " there was no pretence to arrest the 

" judgment, because nothing appears on the face of the record to just if!! 

.. ii, and the Court ought not to arrest judgments 1Ipon maller~ not ap­

.. pearing upon the face qf the record, but are to judge upon the record 

.. itself, that their successors may knolV the grounds of theil' judgment." 

I have before noticed that the case in Siderfin goes so far as to say that 

the prisoner shall not tender any matter for stay of judgment, but 

what arises dn the indictment. These authorities are, some of them 

civil, and some criminal, but they all arrive at the same conclusion' 
that no points can be moved in arrest of-judgment but solid mat/en of 

law, which appear upon the record. The same opinions are set fortb 

in v'!-riou5 oaJ'es in which the conduct of the jury, &C. is considered B! 
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affootillg t~e judgment, in 2d Hale, 307. Coke upon Littlelon, 227, B. 
1st Lord Raymond, 232. Salkeld, vol. 1, p.77, and 317 of same vol. 

and the conclusion which my friend, Mr. Chitty, makes upon the whole, 

i~, I submit, perfectly correct in law. ," The causes on wjJich this mo­

H tion may be g.·ounded, although numerous, are confined to objections 

" which arise on the face of,the record itself, and which make the pro­

" ceedings apparently erroneous, and therefore, no defect in evidence, o. 

H improper conlluct in the trial, can be urged in th-is stage of the proceed. 

"ings." Chitty, 1st vol. p, 661. Upon this part of my leal'Ded friends 

argument, I shall close my observations by remarking that, ~hatevel' 

weight in anothe.r place tlie circumstances they adduce may have in ob­

taining mercy for the unfortunate Prisoner, they cannot her, have th~ 

effect of obtaining a new trial, nor be of any consideration on a motion 

in arrest of judgment, The Court, having admitted my learned friends 

to make these remarks incidentally, I felt it my duty to submit some 

ob~~.'valion in reply to them; having done so, I procee<l to consi<ler 

their arguments relative to the jurisdiction of the Court, both as it was 

questioned, under thei.' objections to any Court having the power to try 

for a felony committed in the Indian territory, and a15<; to a Court 0/ 
Oyer and Terminer being invested with tbat po~er. 

The position of my learned friends I take to be, that no Court, ano 

jf aoy, that it is not a Cour~ of Qyer <tnd Terminer an.i general gaol 

delivery, that is invested with power, by the act of 1803, to try a fclony 
,com~ittell in the Indian territories, My learned fdel)<is refer to the 

preamble of the ,act, and the wonls " criJl;les and offences" being used, 
and also Courts in the plural number. They insi.t tl)at it is only misde. 

meano,'s w~ich the term "crimes and ofrence~," ma~e use of in the act, 

give the power of trying, and also that that I'owe,', under tbe dcsie;ua­

tion of Courts, is only given to th'~ ordinary COUl'ts of the several diE' 

tricts of the province, But, if my learne<l f"icnds /.lad gone 0') ttl the 

fourth clause, ~pey would have found that clause conclu~ive against their 

construction' as to the word Courts, (the'species of offences intended by 

the act will be considered p.'esently,) for they would there have found 

that power i! eJl;pressly given to the Court before whom such prosecutioll 

sball be ba4 to acquit, under certain circumstances; the fourt,h clame 

is, " Provided always, Rl)d be it further enacteu, that if any c"ime 0" 

.. offunce cbarge .. t and proseculed under this act shall be prove.! to have 

.. been committe.! by any per''OlI or persons, nol bring a subject or 

" Buhjects of his 7,Iajesty, and also within'the limits of any colony, set· 

H tlement, or telTilol'Y, belonginc; lo any European state, the Court 

.. befol'c which such prosecution shall be had, shall fo~rthlVith acquit 

" such person or persons, not bein'!; sud .. subject or subjects as afore~aiJ, 
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fined to the Coltrls, according to my learned friend~ eomtruction of th" 

term, bllt the power of acquittal is expressly given to the Court before 

whom such prosecution may be had, \I"hich clearly shews that a COU11. 

generally, may try crimes and offences committed in tbe Indian territo­

ries. The reason of the word being used in the plural in relation to 

Lower, and in the sinf;ular nnmber, in relation to Upper, Canada, was 

very suitably explained by the Attorney"General to arise from the diff'e­

rence in the judicial establishment in the two provinces. Then as to 

the term usually; .. in which such crime~ and offences are usually tried," 

I contend that, by this expression, all legal Courts must be meant, 

and, according to this constl"Uction, that we cannot measurz the degree 

of me, or frequency of usage, of such Court, but that every Court le­

gally having the power to try the partieular crime or offence, if com­

~itted in either of the provinces, was meant by the legislature, '" .. 

Court where crimes and offences of the same nature are usually tried, 

and con~equently had jurisdiction given to it to try offences committe!l 

jn the Indian territory. A Conrt of Oyer and Terminer is such a Court 

in the province of Lower Canada, and therefore this is a Court where 

crimes and offences of the like na (ure as that of which the Prisoner has 

been convicteu are ltSually tried, and therefore competent to try ~uch a 

crime or unence, thongh committed in the Indiall tel·ritory. In refe. 

rence to my friend Jl.lr. Sluart's observation tflat this act mnst be mme 

strictly and rigorously construed; I beg to remark that I differ com­

pletely with him. On what it is that he founds his opinion, I do 1I0t 

know. He assi.gned as one reason, that it trenched upon ,,- hat he termed 

.a fundamental princip'le of the COUlmon law of England, which invari~ 

ably a"ociates locali ty anti jurisrlict.ion. 

The p.nquiry which suggests itself to rae, as proper to makP, pre\'i­

ously tn deci,ling upon its construction, is this; is the statute of 4Sd 

Geo. HI. a re,?-edial or a penal statute? If it were a pcnq,l statute, I 

should a::;ree with my learned friend that it ought to receive a most strict 

and rigorous constl"llction, but it is a remedial act ill its fullest extent, 

and, as such, I contend, in opposition to my learned friend, that it 

oo:;ht to receive the most extensive and liberal interpretation, because 

~uch acts are invariably construed in the most liberal manner, and sucb 

is tbe construction, that t think t fcel warranted in believin:; this act 

will receive from yOUl" Honol1r~, nnd, if it receive the extemivc con­

struction I contend for, it will include all Courts, anu must take in a 

Court or Oyer and Terminer. A;ain, in decidio; upon the construc­

tion which any act of parliament ought to recei,-e, I ,houid think it 

highly I'xpedicnt to endeavour to as.;ertain what \Vf'r.~ t"~ ohjects th 



*egisla·ture 'had in view in passing it, alit!, in suppoM of this opinion, 1 
might refer to the authority of Comyns., What was the intention of the 

.egislature in passing: this actis manifest frBm its preamble, which states 

.that, ...... hcr.cas great .erimes 3.fHi oifellces have been committed in the 

.. Indian territory, &Il. wh«eh are not cognizable by any jurisdictioll 

,. whatever, .:md by.reason thereof, great crimes and oliences have gO\lr • 

.. and may hereafter go, unpunished, lU;ld greatly incl·,ease." This was 

the evil which this act was in.tended to remedy, and as great crimes and. 

.ofl'ences had gone unpunished, and apprehensions were entertained that 

ihey might stiH do so, anll greatly im:rease, there was a necessity for 

speedy punishment of crime in the Iudian tel'l'itory, that retl'ibuti\"\~ 

justice might overtake the daring offenders who ~ad long fearlessly 

.eommitted all manner of Cl'imes and. offences of the most atrocious nap 

ture. YOUI' Ho,nollrs know there are .cases in which it is essential that 

"etribution should almost instantly take plaae. I ought rather to say, 

in which the nece",ity o.f speedy ju~tice is such, that, to delay it, woula 

be almost to render it unavailing as an example. We know that case<; 

of murder and treason require-not retribution-it was an impropec 

term that escaped me, became it is not for vengeance tllat the law im· 

poses punishment upon c.rimes, in different ,legree', bnt (or the public 

good, thus, making an example of onc guilty felluw-creatl/l"C, the Qlcan. 

of deterring numbers from falling into a similar ,lelu,ion, is really al,l 

4Wt of ",crcy to tile community at lal·ge. The situation of thi, unIor­

,(unate IIHURl1 .(Jon.ntry 10l1llly uemanucd speedy justice, :).nu the inten­

,tion of the leglslnture was to oring to immediate punbhmcnt offenders, 

.who, for want of any jul'istijctson to take cognizance of their ;;rea~ 

,critnes and ot1e'i£e~, hllll gene hitbel·tu, and, it was much feal"e!l, might 

·hereafter go, uupunisbetl. How could this snlutal'y measur~ be be.,t ef­

.rected ~ In .wl,at way <:ould tbis (}bject of lhe pal'liamr.nt be best ac-' 

complished, but by giving power to all the Courts to take cognilaflc~ 

.of offences committed jn the InJian territol'Y similar to those '\'hioI. are 

<1511ally tpied thCl"ein when commit~d witijin theil" I'eBpective province," 

·This was llone, and jn extending the juris!lictioll to the Courts whcl"e 

,offences of a like nature would have been trieu, if committed in the 

province, it included I), Court of Oyer ami Tenniller. That it should 

"ave done otbenvise, cannot for a moment be imaginecl, I think, if we 

Jook at tbe constitution of the othel' criminal COUl"ts here. 

The Court of Xing's Bench holds two sbort lel"ms annually, <>1" in 

case of the Chief Justice being sick, or, as was tl)e ca~e some time a.:,::", 
, I 

absent from the province, or, if f,'o,Ul any circumstance the COlll't -be 

not full, or, as lately at Montl'l'"I, the Court he incomplete, or cannot 

6it, there could .be no way or atiminiftCl'il).~ f.peedy jus(;ce to crime, or 
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to the individual accusell, (perhaps wrongfully,) but by a Court or Oyer 

and Terminer. In such case~, do my learned friends contend they 

tihould not be tried at all? Supposing some of tbe inllividuals ~ccu8sed 

arrivell at lI-Ionlreul, according to tho course prescribell by tbe statute, 

immediately after the term hull closed, are they to wait five months 

for their trial, witbout there being any possibility of h:wing justice ear· 

lier rendered bepveen the Crown anll tbe pl'isoners? This surely could 

not be the intention of the'lcgislatlll'e by the general eXlllession that of· 

fences cOII)U1itted in the In<lian territories are to he trie,1 in the Courts 

where similar offences, if committe.! within the re~pectlve provinces, 

are usually" !lnll would severally be tried. In Lowe)' Canada as well a. 

Upper, a Court of Oyer anllTerminel' ;s one 'of the usual Courts for 

, the trial of murder and felonies generally, and is therefure a competent 

Court to try under this act the same offences, when sent down for trial 

to these provinces from the Indian terl'itories. That this is a fair con· 

struction of the act in questio/l, I feel s').tisJiell, if not to the very leHu, 

certail)ly according to the intent, which is the rule of law. There is 

another point whiph my learned friends have dwelt on ponsiderauly, and 

upon which they appear to me to place a reliallce bll~ little warranted 

hy any argument which they adduce to support the correl'tness of their 

position, It is that Courts being nsed in the pllll'al number, ill relation 

to Lolftr Canada, it n~ust have refclTcd to the three Courts attached 

to the districts of the province, I contend, in opposition to that con· 

struction given tq the cxpressio~l " Courts whel'e offences are uSHally 

tried," tbat it means, or has refel'ence to, the different kinds of Cuurts 

or tril)ls that may be had, as toe Court of King's Bench, or a trial at 

bar, and a Court of 0YCI' and Terminer, and then tbe difference ill 

phraseology as to the two provinces is accounted for, ~!l.in Upper Cana7 

'da they do not holJ trials at bar; their trials take place only in Courts 

of Oyer and Terminer. 
lIfr. Stuart.-I believe I]]Y learned friend, the Solicitor-General, is 

misinformed 'on that point. He would not, I am confident, state, that 

in Upper Canada. trials at bar ",el'e not held, dill he not believe it to be 

the case, but on farther investigation he will be satisfied t~at the fact is 

trials at hal' do take place in the Upper pl'Ovince. 

8olicitor·Gene)'al,-1 may, perhaps, have gone too far in saying th",y 

were not held in Upper Canalla, they may be perhaps; but when they 

are, sllch Courts form an exception to the general rule; and such Court 

is not the !!!1lul Court, for the usual Court in the sister-province is by 

commission of Oyer amI Tel'miner. In amwer to what I comiJer as a 

minor objection of my leamed fri6nd" (though insbted UpOIi at conside­

Table length fly both of them,) namei y, that tbe juriEJiclion of the Court 
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demeanors committed in the Indian Territories, and the strange princiJ 

,pIe assumed and argued by my learned friend, lIfr. Stuart, that felony 

Is not a crime; I remark that my learned friend appears to consider 

Mr. Justice Blacks/one's making use, in his elementary work, of the 

"terms IIrimes and misdemeanors as ~ynollymou9 terms, a~ settling, con­

clusively, that felony is not crime; but, if the learned gentleIl\an had 

gone on a vel'y little farther, in the 4th vol, of that able work, that 

valuable compendium of our law, he woulll find that his own authority 

is directly in opposition to the argument whiCH he has ~ubmitted . 

.. The general definition of crime," he says, "comprehemls both cl'imes 

" and misdemeanors which, properly speaking, are mere synonymous 

.. terms, though in common usage," (in what common usage'? why, in 

common usage among lawyers, among tliat cla~s of pet'sons for whom 

his work ,vas more particulal'ly i.ntended,) .. the word crimes is made to 

" denote such offences a~ al'e of a deeper and more atl'Ocious dye," and 

a little lower down, in the very same page, he settles tIll; matter most 

conl))usively as to what kind of offences ought to be fank among crimes ; 

.. but," he says, " treason, murder and robbery are properly I'anke,l 

.. among cl'imes." Tbis is " part of lIfr. Justice Blackstone's opinion 
which did not appeal' to attract my leal'lled friend's attention; nor 

coes the recent case of Shaw, produced by my learned friends, at all vary 
01' oppose this doctrine. J~Ir. Selwyn, in ppening tim case on behalf ot, 
the Prisoner, abandons all idea of questioning the general power of the 

Court, uniteI' the term" crimes and offences," to try for felony, and 

the decision of my Lord Ellenborough was not at all influenced by .. 

consideration of the right of trying felonies under that general defini­

tion, .but in arriving at his own decision, the point upon which his jndg. 

ment ,~"dormed was, that this particular ~atute, for the prevention of 

frauds, did not authorize it, and that, therefore, the proceedings must 

he quashed. In forming his judgment he adopted, and, as I humbly 

conceh'e, he sanctioned, the correctness of the position, wllich I have 

bad the honour alreacly to submit as a sacred legal rule, " that every 

" statute ought to be construed according to the intent of parliament," 

"s well as another very Rimilar, "that every statute ought to I(e ex­

.. pounded, not according to the letter, hut according to the iBtent." 

Adopt thi, rule, and what was the intent of the act of 18M? not to 

prevent fl'llUUS, or (0 punish mere wrong's of property, not to hring to. 

jmtice indivirluals WilD had been guilty of slight mi,demeanors; no; the 

l'r~amble of the act recites, in a manner too plain to be misunderstood, 

OJ' to allow it for a moment to be supposed that it wus made to repres8 

nnd punish ~Iight olf~nccs, " That, lVhcl'eas great crimes and OffCDceJ 



.. bave been committeJ in the Indian territories, and by rert\lon of tbeit 

•• ' not being cognizable by any jUl'isdiction "hntever, these great C";OW7 

.. and offences have gone, and may hereaft'el' go, unpuni.hcd." To re~ 

medy this great evil, the act of the 4.'\~ GEO. III. was pa"cd. WhafJ 

the~e great crimes and offences were, unfortunately, was matter of 

puLlic notoriety, in the dreadful state of this d'evot,·.J and unhappy 

country. It was not misdemeanors that constituted the great crimeII' 

and offences, but robberies, arson~, mUl'ders, and e\"ery other atrociou,' 

offence that adds to- the dark catalogue of fclonies. .Aml to suppo,e­

that by this act the smallel' oJfcnces werc inten(led only to be prosecuted" 

tried and punished, would" be to suppose that it "'a, proposed to hollt 

out encouragement to the perpetration of the larger ones. But it is 

contrary t'o common sen,e thus to interpret the act of the legislature. 

They gave the power to try for cl'im~s and offences, for great cimes and 

offences, and the conclusion I arrive at on this part of suhject is, simply, 

that felonies are crimes. 

In adopting the rules that I have quote.l from ComYlls' Digest, vol. 5, 

word Parlialnent-Letter R. 10, one remal'k more oceUrs on the point 

of the proper mOlle of expou'ndinf; ~latutes" Comyns, same word ami 

number, says, .. if the enaeting words can take in the mischief, they 

.. shall he extended for tbat put'pose, though the preamble docs not war' 

.. rant it." Bassett versus Bassett, J\I. 1744, 3 At1C"i~s, 203. Here the 

preamble .loes warrant it, fo~ it recites that crimes and offences have 

been committed; the title war~anls tt, it is all act to extend the juri,. 

oliction to the trial of crimes and offences; the maetinti sections warrant 

it, the second speaks of crimes and offences, an'd of persons guilty of (Ill] 

crime or offence, the third speaks of every me" offender, evidently rc-:' 

fering to i"e former de~cl'iption of persons guilty of any cl'ime or of· 

fence.-There can be no doubt that this act, being a highly rel!ledia. 

one, must be construed to include all cl'imes and offences. I say that, II 

necessity exi~ting for the punishment of murder committed in the Indian 

territories, the parliament, by this act, gave under the term .. crimes 

" and offences," power to the COllrts of the tlVO provinces, (aOll amongst 

them to this Court,) to pl"Osecute, try, and subject to punishment, alt 

persons accused and convicted of murder, or any other felony. ~With re­

spect to the omi5sion of proof as to the baptismal name or Kereny, of his 

actual death, amI of the admis6ion of the confession in a manner which 

my learned fl'iends considel' irregular, I consider that I should be most 

unwarrantably trifling with the time of the Courl were I, after the solemn 

deci;;on the whole of those points have receind, to olfer any thing in 

the shRpe of reply to my learned friends. The Court solemnly ilecided 

the admissibility of the confession, and as it would hay!' b~cn indccoro111 
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in me, to have impugned your Honours' decision, had it. been against 

the admission of it; so n9w it is completely unnecessary to say a word 

in support of it. As to the death anti baptismal name of Keveny, I 

~houlil be actually infl'ingirig upon the province of the Jury, were I to 

presume to stir theIr ilecision; each of these points have been decided 

by the Court, or by the Jury, according as they appertained to the one 

or the other. I decline, therefore, offering any argument upon either 

of the points, anil ~hall proceed to a comideration of whether it was ne­

cessary to have stated on the indictment that the Prisoner was a British 
subject. 

This is clearly a ']liestiorl of lciw, and therefore as clearly a proper 

poi"t to be in,iste-a uP01! in arrest of judgement, but my learned friends 

<lppe-ar to ove!'look that the O'RUS probandi, by tbe fourth and fifth 

clauses of the act, is completely thrown upon the Prisoner. It is he 

who must prove thllt he is not a subject of. his Majesty. After we 

have preveil our allegation that the offence was committed in the Indian 

territory we have gone far enough, our case is proved, and it is the Pris­

oner who must produce negative testimony, or evidence that he was not 

a subject of his l\'Iajesty, and that the offence was committed within 

$ome European ~olony or 5ettlement. All thilt was necessary in the in. 

·dictment was to have avel'fed that the offence was committed within the 

jurisdiction of this «ourt, in the Indian territory, but ex majori cauleUl; 

we have described it as being perpetrated at tbe saitl place in the Rivet 

Willnipic; the Jury have said that the offence was perpetrated there, and 

it is not competent to the Prisonel', after his conviction, to turn round up­

on us an,l say, you ha,'c not averred that I am a British subject. Admit" 

ting what my leamed friends ail vance to be the fact, viz: that De Rein­

hard is not a subject, still that alone wouhl not entitle him to his acquittal. 

It is very true that the act does say to ensure to the Prisoner an acquit­

tal foMhwith, that it must be proved that he is not a subject of bis Ma. 

jesty. but it does not say that, if he stops at having proved that he is not 

onc of his Majesty's subjects, he shall be forthwith acquitted, but that, 

if he is an alien, alld the offence was committed within some European 

colony, or ~ettlement, then the Court, before whom his trial is heldj 

shall forthwith acquit him. But although necessary for him to prove 

himself an alien, and also that the oll'ence was committed within an Eu­

ropean settlement, befOl'e he could obtain an acquittal forthwith, yet 

had we avert'ed him to be a subject, and failed in our proof, we should 

have destl'Oyed bur own charge, and though the offence might not have 

been committed within any European scttlement, yet he must have 

been acquitted. Upon penal statlltes, your HOllours know, tllat it is not 

~Jl1ly unncceswry to aver that which may be negatived auil tberefere 
L'if. 
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destroy the char~, but that it is not necelisary to state provisoes nnu ex­

ceptions. The utmost latitude my learned frieDlls could take, as atTor­

dillg a chance of acquittal in this case, was that, provided De Reinhard 

was not a subject, and his offence was committed in an European settle­

ment or colony, he must be acquitted. Matters of defence, it i8 well 

known, the prosecutor need not anticipate, these were purely matter~ of 

defence and as the effect of not prodng all averment that the Prisoner 

was a subject, would have been to negative our charge, we did not maka 

it. This doctrine is supported by 8 ,'ariety of authorities which are ,·e­

ry summarily stated by my learned friend, Mr. Chilly, t·ol. ht, p.134., 

1hat the necessity for the proving the excuse lies upon the defendant, 

and the contrary need 1I0t he averred by the prosecutor. Our not stat­

ing the Prisoner to be a subject in no way deprived him of the oppor­

tunity of shewing tha the was an alien, because it, is one of the enllcting 

clauses of the act which gh·cs him the right of shewing all that is neces-

6ary for his acquittal. The same learned auth01· says farther, in speak­

ing upon this subject, " if the exceptions themseivell are stated ia the en­

.. acting clauses, it will be necessary to negative them, in order that 

.. the description of the r:rime may in all respects correspond with the 

"statute." Then, if· thi. is the case on penal, surely on remedial, sta­
tutes, which this is in~he highest degree, it can not be necessary for us to 
Ilver that which might destroy our indictment. The provisions of the 

fourth and fifth clauses are purely malters of defence, and the statute 
opens the door for their admission, but at the same time it must Le re­

membered that it is on the Prisoner that the weight of proof is placed. 

I must confess that I do not clearly understand my learned friend's ar­

gument relati'Ve to its being our duty to a,"er that the offence was com­

mitted in the King's dominions. Had the indictment stated that it l'Vas 

committed therein it would have been bad, for the statute expressly sets 

forth that this act is to give cognizance over olfunces committed in the 

Indian country, not within the limits of either of the pro,·inces of Up­

per or Lower Canada, or within the limits of any civil govcrnment of 

the United States of America, and which W&e therefore not cogniza­

ble by any jurisdiction whatsoever. Had we, I therefore repeat, char­

get! the offence as being committed· in the King's dominions the indict­
ment woult! hal'e been bad. 

:l[r. JtJ.3lice Bowcn.-In this case of Shaw's I pljrceive the indict. 

ment charged the offence to have been committed in B.·itish North 

America, to wit, at the parish of SLbIo.ry [a Bmlne, in the county of 
Middlesex. 

Solicilor-General.-We are aware of the scilicet. It is a 'Vcry oM 

form to charge the ofi'ences committed abroad, II! being at a certain 
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place, ,-iz: at Middleux_ This, though not inserted, has not been over­

looked, but we thought it unnecessary_ We have cbargetl the offence 

contrll pacem domini regis, whicb we con sitler to be sufficient, all we are 

justified by precedents in indictments for offences committed at sea amI 

in foreign parts, in which the offence is laid contra pacem domini rcgis, 

,~hich have always been held as gOOlI intlictments. I believe I have ad­

verted to all my learned friend's argument:;, antl whilst I apologize for 

the length of time, which I fear I have so unwarrantably occupied, I 

beg leave to make my acknowledgments for the indUlgent hearing the 
Court has favonred me with. 

Mr. Stuart.-In reply to the arguments which my learned friends, 

the Attorney and Solicitor General, have presented to the Court iu' op­

position to our motions for a new trial and in arrest of judgment, I shall 

trespass but very shortly upon the attention of your bonours. To the 

observations which we have already had the honour of submitting as to 

the right possessed by the Court to grant a new trial, we have nothing to 

add, as we do not consider that our learned friends have at all met them 

by argument, though they have denied their correctnes~_ The remark, 

as to the inconveniences which would result to the prisoners from th .. 

Crown mo-ving for new trials, should they be grante,! to prisoners, and 
a variety of suggestions of a similar description, furnish, in our opinion, 

)10 answer to the authority w/lich we produced and supported by analogy_ 

The arguments which we adduced were broad and e"tcllsive, applicable 
to every case calling for the interposition of the power of the Court.­

Our argument upon this part of tbe question was tbat the principles of 

cl"iminal, were analogou. to t/lose of civil, law, Rnd that, as a new tria! 

call be granted in ciril, so it ought and might in .criminal cases. To thc~e 

propositions my learned friends have given no answer, except producing 

a dictum of a learned judge, for whol)! I entertain as high a respect as 

any they possibly can do, saying t/lat a motion for a new trial in criminal 

cases could not be granted, io which we have rejoined by exhibiting a 

later authority of a contrary de~criptjon in which it is said th~t th", 

question is not yet settled, /lesi/les the authority fl'Om Yi<lfr in which it 

is positively laid down that it may be, a"d an instance c)I;hibited wherdn 

it was granted. I qui.t, however, tbat part of the question, and on tbe 

other motion I agree with my learned friends; the Crown officers, that 

nothing certainly can be admitted on a motion in arrest of judgmpnt, 

except matters which appear upon the recor,l; but I would submit to 

the COllrt that this very circumstance of prechuling any thing but abw­

lute matters of law from being a<lduced, furnishes a stl"Ong argnment in 

favour of the principle of gl'nnting a Ilew trial, or of entertaining the 

motion fOI' one in all criminal ca~cs as fully as a motion in arrest of 
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j,udgment. I purppse tp entcr mpl'e minutely than I did before upon 

tpe branch .of the questipn which is connected witb a cpnsideratipn .of 

which were the Coutts tp whom this extended jurisdictipn was siven by 

the act .of MId G:EO. III. An~ I ~et ont by saying !bat I pel'fe~tly agl'e~ 

with my learned frien<), JIlT, Van/elson, tbat it ,,'as givel),ollly 10 the 

Courts .of the t/tree pi~tri~ts .of the prpvince esla,bli;he4 by tIle judicatllrt 

act and cannpt extend t.o t/lis Court.-lI'ly reasons for agreeing witb 

him are numerous, and first, I submit that thjs power must of ncces~ity 

be given to the Courts t/len in nis/n,ee. That the act co~ld nDt CDU­

template cDnrerring juri,dictiDn .on a Court nDt in being, I think a self­

evident prDpositiDn. I ask tben, (nDt tD detain the Court by a prD­

tracted discus~iDn UpDn thi5 very manifest pDint,) was this Cpurt in !lX­

istence at tlte time, .or i~ it tp be ,aid that the legislature Ippke" forward 

in 1803, fQr tee, tlvelve, .or fifteen, years, and seeing tha~ .. Court .of 

Oyer and Terminer wpuld be sitting, cpnfeITed uppn it, by anticipation, 

juris,liction over crimes and .offences committed in the Indian territory. 

I take up the act of 1803, and I qbserve that it gives jurisdiction tp the 

Courts of Lower Canada, and tD the Court .of Upper Canada, under spe­

cial circumstances. Tp wbat Courts, I ask? It mtlst certainly be tp 

the Courts having ppwer tp try then, at tbe time the jurisdictipn was 

cp~ferr~u, tp tbe Courts that were in esse, apd npt tp Cpurts that were 

.only in posse. II) referring tp the preamble I pe"ceive pne .of tbe rea­

spns fpr passing this act was that .offences required to b~ punished, .over 

which the established <':purts or this prpvince had np jul"isdictiDn, and 

the statute prpceeds immediately tp cpnfer authDrity tp the Courts PI' 

this prpvince for the prpsecutipn and trial .of .offences committed in the 

Indian territor)" and directs that they shall be prpsecuted and tried in 

tbe same manner in w!Jich qfren~es .of the same nature are usually tried. 

I again remark that, li'Dln tne nature .of the jurisdiction tp be exercised, 

~he Court .of King's Bench best cpmpprts with the imporlan(e .of it, the 

~purt of King's Beilch is identical, and perpetual, whilst a Cpnrt .of Oyer 

'lUd Term;ner is changeuLle and tempprary. Whatever may he the va­

riation of its .officers, hpwever tleath ~ay rempve thpse whp .occupy it~ 

par, and dignify its bench, the Cpurt .of King's Bench remains the same. 

Its ppwer is not al'l'ested by the mutatipns .of time, !lr the changes .of 

.of circumstances. Its prpcesses are always in force. Its authprity is 

always in exerci,e, whether it is term .or vacatiDn, still the identity and 

perpetuity .of the Cpurt is preserved. Its judgQS may be rempved by 

casualties,{lr may vanish by death, hut the Court is perpetual,' it exi.t~ 
for evel·. It pal·ticipates in, .or rather is, the seat .of the mpnarch's ppw­

er, and, like tbe King, it never dies. The Cpurt that we have the hD­

~pur tp address in anptbel' rppm is Ii Cpurt fpr ever. It has heen, an4 
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)VW continue so a thOllsanel years hence; that Court will exist for aver, 

",nd although different judges preside over it, 'it will still be the salm 

,Court; the Court of King's Bench. It could not be meant Courts that 

lIiight be erected, fo)' where was the certainty they would be erected, 

and, v;hcn er~cted, what was the certainty of their duration. That fonns 

il con~jderabl,e ohje~tion it) our minds to any but the Courts of the three 

~listr;'cts, being eomidercd the usual Courts of the province. However 

muc'h we m,ay re~pect tbis Court, we cannot hut recollect that this Court 

'is ephemeral, it was born a few days, a~o, and in few days hence it will 

,die, and h,e' no more heard of. Another materia~ditference between the 

J:;ourts is found in the mode of appointing those who are to hold the 

pleas. In the regular Courts they uo not d~end on the choice of any 

Governol', they are the King's judge" independent of every considera­

tion, {lepending on no conting,eney, removed by no inciuent except 

~leath. Although your HOI)ouI'S are judges of the Court of King's Eench, 

;yet it does not vary my argument at all; the appointment of Courts of 

Oye',. an.d Tuminer ih a Yej'y high prerogative, a prej'ogative certainly, 

where the I{ing, by his I'cpr.esentative, names his own judges, for a sre­

~ial oC,casion. I do not, for a moment, iu;,nuate that is not his prero­

gative, or that it i~, or has been, improperly used, but I submit it is a 

very high prerogative of the Crown, and, "'ith the page of hi.tory open 

to our \'iew, we I,night b,e allowed 10 ask, might it 1I0t be made a power­

ful engine of oppre~.ion? Another difierence that I notice iF, that the 

judges are judges of the districts at large, and not confined to any parti­

Ilular one. For' these rca,ons, \\'~ tIiillk, there is sucb a dill"crence be­

~ween the judges of the Court of King's Bench, and the justices, or com_ 

missioners of a Cour,t of Offer and Terminer, that we are induced to be­

/ieve that the legislature did not intcnd, by the word judges, any other 

than tbe re/,'"ItZar judges of the districts of the province. I.come no~, tt) 

the wprus, or part of the act, wherein the Courts of the province are 

speeifieu, all\1 contel)d that the dili"erence is equally striking. Myargu­

Plenl is that yom' Honours are sitting nnoel' a cOlllluission as justice~ of 

a Court of Oyer and Tcr;niner, and tbat this cannot be the COll,i,. of the 

province mcntioned in tbe act as the Court, wherein otfences of a like 

nature are usually tried. The third clause expressly provi~es that every 

,offender may and shall be prosecuted and tried ill the Courts of the pro­

"tince of Lowel' Canaija, unless he ;h:;II, for cel·tain reasons, be transmit­

ted to Upper Canada for his trial. I allege that this Court caunot be 

the Courts designated in the clause of the act I have just r~ferred to, If 

I look to its commission, I shall see it is a Court for the distriel of Que­

bec, not for the three several di,tl'icts, and therefore cannot be the CouTls 

oj' LOlOer Callada. ',!Jen we have the Cuurts of JlIontTeal, antI Thtee'Ri-
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tJt!I'.I', and of Quebec, then we have the Courls oC the province of L01C(Jf 

ClIfIlIdtJ, and it is the Courls in Lower Canada that, are to try oifeuceB 

llOuunitted in the Indian territory. I take it that, unless we have theN 

~0IJ1'ts, a prisoner has not all the benefit which the law intend~d him to 

have, because it might be probable that the legblature had conferred on 

oue or upon some Courts, rights or pri\'ilegcs wbich it f may not apon 

llDOtber --
Mr. Juslice Bowen.-Might not, aceol',ling to your view, commifio 

uons is~ne ander the act of 1793? 

~IT. Stuttrt.-Undoubtedly, hut onl' objection to it is, that would 

be a CffUTt, and a Court of a district, when it is the COUTts who are to 

try for offences committe.l·in the Indian territories, amI the Courls, not 

of a dislriet, but o-f the prorince' Again, the iTlftriority of thiR Court 

must be apparent. The act, in making provi~io-n for the issuing sub­

preuas, declares they shall be issued by the judges; there are 110 judges 
ullder a speeial eommissiot) of Oy~,r and Terminer, WOe know of the 

twe-lve jud'ges of England, and of the judges of the Court of Killg's 

Bench, but not of the judges of a Court of Oyer and Terminer. We 

hear of A. B. C. D. E. F. being tried before jusl'iges of C!8sise, but we 

do not call them judges. It is only when speaking of permanent Court~, 

that we speak of judge" and we say that those who sit under a pommis­
lion of Oyer Terminer are, neither technically, nOlO popularly, judges. 

They are called jns/ices technically, aud commissioners popularly, hut 

no one thinks of calling them judges. My learne<l frielllis ha,'e COIl­

telllle,l that the indictment is sufficiant in llescriuing the offence to ha\'e 

been .~ committed w;lhin the Indian ten'ilol'ies," but that such descl'ip­

tion did not prohilJit more being added, and they, therefore, included 

.. that it was 1cithin the jurisdiction of this Court." This description 

presents a mixed question of law and offacl. The judge directs the jury' 

on the law, allli the jury find tbefatlupon that direction; it is put UpOA 

record, and it is Iheu, we are told, 100 late to plead that it was not in the 

l(ing's dominions, or that we owed him no allegiance, as we were not 

one of his subjects. At present, 11® conslal, on the Crown's own shew­

ing, that this offence might not be commi~ed within the territory of 

some European nation. I said before, Ilm} say still, my learned friendt 

were bound, in their indictment, to give due certainly~ and, I allege, 

that tbey did not, I was misunderstood by my learned fl"iends before, 

i,t was not my intention to insist upon that being introdueed into the in­

tlictment which would make it completely inoperalire, but I stated that, 

merely to charge the offence as ContTtI. pacem domini regis was not suffi­

cient, beeause the offenct', though committeil, might not have been 

-committed against his peaoe, bt'cau~e he might not have any peace to 
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IIreak, and that it was incumbent upon the Cl·oWn, to prove that It wett 

against his peace, before it could be entitled to ask the conviction of tke 
Prisoner. As to the laws of olhe-r nations, I know nothing of tbem till 

tbeYal·e brought into evidence, nor any that justify (me nation I-egi-s­

lating for another. My learned f,·iend, the Soli£itor-Gcneral, produced 

n most extraordinary ,·eason for extending the pOlvet of trying olfened 

committed in the Il'ldian territory to Courts of Oyer and Tcrminer; he 

fpoke of the inconvenience that might a,"ise from th~ incompetency of 

the COUl·t of King's Bench to sit, from its not being full. I would ru-k 

if it be ,pGs~ible that the learned Crown olllcer can, with complacency, 

contemplate the Cou~·t of King's Bench of Lower C4nada, as nor "s~em­

bling from incompetency. Are the pl"ivate or personal feelings of /I 

judge, or two judges, to itlterfere with the jurisprudence of tile c0untry, 

and the regular and due administration of justice between man and man. 

Is the stream frf law and justice to be stopped through the disinclination 

()f any illdividual whatever, no matter fl·om what motive, to perform 

bis duty? I sholll<1 kapc not. I sh(tll now advert very briefiy to the 

distinction which we tlraw belween crimes and/elonies. I take it to Lo 
a fact that will Rot be denied, 0'· I will llroduce authorities upon dIe 

point, that persolls may be tried in Englaqld under the statute-of HENR~ 

VIII. for It/ony commit,ted abroad. That being admitted, I ~efer tl) 
tile act of 180.'3, and find it is to give juristlidion over crimes and offen­

ces; which are not .. cognizaiJle by any jurisdiction whatever." Is 
might narrow my observations very much by 6tatiug that because trea.­

son aAd murder committed abroad, are cognizable by the statutes of 

HENRY VIII. they cannot b~ under tllis tlct; for this net only givcsju­

Fi~diction over" crimes lind olIenees comm.itted ill the Indian tcrritory, 

.. which are not cognizable by allY olher jurisdiction." I will ,·ead tlle 

introduction ofthe preamble. "Whet'easclimes and offences have been 

.. committed in the Indian territories antI other parts of America not 

" witkin the limits of tbe provinces of Upper or Lower Canada, 01· d­

" ther of (IJern, or of the jurisdiction of any of the Courts established 

" in tllese provinces, or within the limits of any civil government of 

" the United States of America, and arc literejlJre not cognizable by an:g 

" jurisdiction whatever, and, by reason thereof, great crimes and oifences 

.~ have gone, and may hereafter go, ullpunished, and g,·eally inc~ease, 
" 1'01· remedy whereof," &c. &c. }'o,· r"medi (ff !Chatl why, evidently 

fo,· the crimes and otfences that \\'erc " not co.,nizable by allY jurisdi£­

tionuhatevcr." If, then, I ~hew- tbat the ofience for which that mall 

has been condcted is cognizable ot the King's Courts at Westmillslcr, I 

think I g.(]l a-long wily_ to ~hcw that he has been iliegally so, for tliat.thu 

ts'nQt<the crime .. Of' olle-of tliln:riulcs oyer wJlich-tlle legislature intclldd' 
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to give the Courts of Canada jurisdictiop, bec:\U~e it WaR only to the triai 

of offences not cognizable by any ,jurisdiction, that the !Sc.l GI<O, Ill. 
made provision. I woulc.l ask if it is not e\'ident tint there are tuo of­

feuces, viz, treason and murdel', which cannot be trieil Ill,der this nct, 

because they can be tried in England; the case of S!'UU' completely em- ' 

braces this principle. The statute mllst be strictly construed, notwith­

standing the observations of lIIr. Solicitor-General, that, as a remedial 

stalute, it ought to receive a most liberal interpretation. I conten,l 

that its construction ought to be most rigorous, for the reasan I ,,,,i,,lIed 

in the eady part of this discussion, viz, tuat whcl'c jurisdiction is con­

ferred independent of locality, there the g,'eatest ,trietne~s ought to 

mark the construction of acts of parliament, Various other reasonS 

mi;;ht be assigned, but I will not detain the Court hy reference to them, 

as we think, in that case, your HOllours will find the uoctrine com­

pletely recognizeu; but here the case is much stronger, a Court does 

exist where oognizancc ·can be tnken of this otfence; tbe ]Gng's Court 

at Westminster. I bhall refl'ain from troubling the Court further, con­

ceiving I have offered sufficient in support of (lUI' propositions, the one 

for a Dew trial, anu the otber in art'e,t of judgment, A new trial we 

consiuer ourselves entitled to, upon the ground of the irregular receipt 

of the confession, anu the misdirection of your Honours as to the boun­

dary line, inasmuch as YOII laid down northward to mean due north, III 

arrest of judgment, I conceive the indictment to be defective, and that 
this Court has no jurisdiction. 

The argttment being closed, the COtt"t was adjourned till Fridfl.Y mo,.. 

ning, the 5th instant, at 10 o'clock, A,lII. 

Friday, 5th J'une, 1818; 

PRESENT AS BEFORE. 

Chief JUJlice &well,-The Court is now called upon to deliver their 

judgment on the arguments urged by the gentlemen who are counsel 

fo~ the Prisoner, on the motion in arrest of judgment, and for a new 

Inal, In support of tbe motion in arrest of judgment, the jnrisdictioft 



~SSulned by this c.oart has b.een objected to, ori a variety of g~otlDdg, 
and very strictly examined, and in so doing, it has been held by the 

Prisoner's coun!eJ, 1st, that the 8tat~te of tbe !3d of the King, does not 

give to any Court the power which we assumed in trying tbe Prisoner 

for a felony, and 2dly, that, on the Quebec aCt, in conjunction with the 

31st Geo. III. we have put a mIsconstruction, ana have misdirected 

tbe jury, who have consequently delivered an erroneous verdict. The 

gentlemert argued first that, under this act, !Sd Geo. III. no. Court has 

jurisdiction over felonies committed in the Imlian territory, and they 

further urged that, lr that po~er is given to any, it is by pre-eminence 

to those Courts which were then existing, and which had been previous­

ly known as the e8t"blished Courts of the province, and this, being iui 

extraordinary, or special Court, its power is dellied. They have further 

avowed that, were it admitted that cognizance couid, under this act, be 

taken offtlonies, and by this Court, stilI the judgment ought to be artesi. 

ed, because it was rieces.ary that it sheuld have appeared upon the indict· 

ment that the Prisoner was a subjeci of his Majesty, and that Ihe offence 

!Vas committed wilhin his Majesty's dominions, neithet of which aver· 

'me:Jts are maile, Rnd it is contended that fur these omissions, judgment 

ought to be arrested. In exhibiting the reasons upon which the Court 

founds its judgment, there are three points BI'ising out of the statute of 
!3d Geo. III. Cap. 1058, connected with the question of jurisdiCtion, 

which will demand 0111' serious consideration. I notice, before stating 
them, that on the 14lh oj the King it is alleged that we have put a con· 

struction ns to the bOllmlaries of his Majesty's ancient province of Que­

bec, which is erroneous, and that we have followed up that misconstruc­

tion, by inisdirecting the jury as to the limits of the ~ovince of Upper 

Canada. The argument of the learned gentlemen then states, that, by 

this misdirection and misconstruction, we have assumed a jurisdiction 

which is not \varranted. The.re were two minor points stated, but these 

if indeed we may now notice them a~ all, having been before decided by 

the Court and by the jury, need only be mentioned: the first was as to 

any proof of the aclual death of Keveny, and the second, that the confession 

!uid to have been made before the Earl of Selkirk, was improperly reo 

~eived as evidence. 'These arc the whole of tbe points which have been 

Juggested, and the COllrt will consider them in the order they have been 

now recapitulate(\. U I'on the question of jurisdiction, there are three 

points arising immediately out of the act of the 43d Geo. III. cap. 138, 

lis stated by the counsel. ist, That by this statute no jurisdiction is 

given to any of the Courts or the province, to try for any felony com­

mitted in the Indian territory; 2dly, that it has not given jurisdiction 

fo this Court to try for a.ny offence ~ommitted in tbe Indian territory; 
)l.iI' 
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anu, Sdly, that it wa~ necessary to aver in the indictment thut " tI,e 

"offence was cummitted in the Eing's duminions," al1tl that" the 

" Prisoner was a subject of his Majesty." These points demand, alltl 

have recci,-ed, the most deliberate attention from the Court, antI 

the result of vur consideration, as well as the reasons which ha,-e ill­

duced it, I shall state in delivering our judgment. The object of the 

act of the 4Sd of the Eing, as we gather from its entire ~ontext,- tak­

ing tbe acl a5 a whole, appeurs to have becn this; to gi,-c jurisdic­

tion to the government of Lower Canada, for the punishment of of­

fences committed, not solely in the Indian territories ,d,ich were con­

sidered as belonging to the British uomillions, bUlln other parts of Amc­

?·ica, viz. in European fcltlements, if committe,l by Bri/ish Stti:i(cl.; 

for this purpose in the enacting clause. afte,· having recited in the Fre­

amhle the necessity requiring the act, it declares that" from and after 

" the passing of this act all offences, committed ,,-ithin any of the In­

" dian territories, 0'· parts of America, not within tbe limits of either 

.. oftbe provinces of Fpper and Lower Canada, or of any l"ivil govern­

" ment of the "lTnited States of America, shall be, and be deemed to be, 

" offences of the same nature, and shall be tried in the same manner, 

" and subject to tbe same punishment, as if the same bad been commit­

" tad within tbe province of Lower or Uppe,· Canada." In the second 

clause it gives to the Magi,trates whom it authorises and empowers the 

Governor, Lieutenant Gover_'1or, &c. to appoint, power, through the 

Indial! Terri/Dry, and in both Canadas, to commit any person guilty of 

ally crime or ~ffence; and makes it lawful for any person to apprehend 

anti detain for the purpose of their being conveyed to Lowe?·. Canada (to 

be dealt with according to law) any person so guilty. 

[The Chief Justice read the second clausc throughout.] 

Tbe third clause provides in certain cases for the transmission of the 

crime or offence for trial to the province ~f Upper Canada.-[The Chief 

Justice read the third clause throughout, remarking that-" by its provi­

" sions the Court, in either proYince, trying slIch offence, were to pro­

.. ceed upon it in every ,-especl as if it had heen really committed in the 

" Province or witbin the immediate jurifdiction of such Court."] 

Having thus declared the mode of trial, and given tbe power of 

(!wardiTlg punishmEltt, the clause proceeds to give power to take the ne­

cessary steps to secure and enfo,·ce the attendance qf witnesses. Autho­

rity is therefo,·e gh'en, to the Judges and other officers of the Court, to 

i"ue subpcenas and otber processes, and such suhprenas anti otber pro­

cesses are made as yalid and effectual, and are to be in full force, and to 

be put in t;\ecution, ill any parts of the Indian Te-rrilories, &c. as fully 
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antI amply as any such 5ubprenas, 01' processes are within the limits of 

the jurisdiction of the Comt from which snch subprenas may have issuell. 

By the next clause, (the JOltrth,) it provides and enacts" That if any 

.. crime or offence, charged and prosecnted, under this act, shall be 

" proved to have been committed by any person or persons, not being_ 

" a snbject or subjects of his Majesty, and also within the limits of any 

.. colony, settlement. or territory, belonging to any European states, 

" the Court before which, such prosecution shall be had, shall forthwith 

" acquit such person or persons, not being such subject or subjects, as 

" aforesaid, of such charge," But the final clause provides that, if any 

per~on be charged with an offence committed in the Ind-ian Te?'ritory, 

or with any other offence committetl elsewhere within the jurisdiction of 

the Court, the Court shall proceed with the trial, if the offender be ~ 

subject, "notwithstanding mch offence shall appeal' to have been com­

.. mitted within the limit. of any colony, settlement, or territory, be­

" longing to any European state," 

From this outline of the statute itself, it is manifest that the inten­

tion of the legislature was; first, to punish the perpetrators of offences 

committed in the Inllian Territory,1chclher Ihey be, orl be not suhj-ects; 

and '2dly, to punish the perpetrators of offences committed in any Eu­

'ropean colony, or settlement, in Ame"ica, being ""Ijerls. It is equally 

mani,fest, that there was not given by this act, any increased jurisdiction 

over--any o/rences committed in the provinces of Lower or Un"?' Cana­

da, nor any jurisdiction over offences committed within the limits of 

any ci"j] government of the Uniled Stales oj Ameriw; amI that it ;lid 

not intcntl, to give any jurisdiction over offences committed in European 

('ulol1 ies, if perpetl'Uted by "liells, Having thus considerctl tue statute 

generally, and the intention of the legislature in passin~ it, I ,hall pru­

ceed to apply itto the case of the Prisoner in reference, 1st, to the ju­

risdiction of this Court 0\'81' the person of the Prisoner, and '211Iy. to 

the jnrisdiction of tbis Court, oYer the crime chal'sed again-t him. 

From the preliminary observations which I have made, as well as 

from a perusal of the act itself, it is e\'ident that this statute claims, or 

a,,"mes, all parts of Amel'ica, not beillS within eithel' of the provinces 

of U ppel' 01' Lower Canada, nor within the limits of any civil govern~ 

mont of the United States of Amel'ica, nOl' in the actual occupancy or ' 

any European state to be Indian territory, wilhin British JlUisdiclion, 

and subject to British legislettion, and hold~ all pel'sons tl1ere being, to be 

hound to that power, whether aliws or sllljccls, It has been argued at 

the bal', that the right of Britbh IpSi,latioll, dit! not extend >f' far, Rilli 

reference \Vas hUll VJ the AIIl'I:riean rebellion to shew that although for­

merly the whole of :North AlI1cdca misht be c')n;idel'cd as sullject to 
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PIe British government, yet t)1at by the event of that rebellion a par. 

ofit was severed, and that, although when no other civilized nation had 

possessions on this continent, it might make no difference whether thll 

limits of any particular territory were or were not correctly ascertained, 

as her jurisdiction over the whole pould not be dispu~ed, yet that now it. 

~s indispensable that they should be so ascertained, and that it should be 

froved on what authority the right is assumed of legislating over the 

Indian territories. You will not of course expe~t me to refer to hill­

tory upon this s)lbject; it wil! be a suffipient answer that tQis daim bas 

been set up fro!)l almost tiD)e i~mem~rial, and confir1~ed, in almost jn~ 

numerable instances, />y t~e sol~mn ~ts of ~he King and Parliament. 

Then how stands the case at present before us? By the indictment and 

the verdict, it is said, the murder was committ!l4 in the Indian territo­

ries, or parts of America, Dot within the limits of Upper Canada, 'nor 

pf Lower Canada, nor of any civil government of the United States of 

America. Upon what pa~t of tb~ ~vidence the Jury have made lip 

their verdict, it is not for us to say, but it isjmmaterial, IIpon this lind­

jng, whether he w~s a subject or not, because, being in the Indian terri­

tories, as described, he owed a temporary allegiance, an,d was clearly 

within the jurisdiction of tpis Court, which is what the Crown alleges. 

If, instead of this, the offence had been committed in some colony or set­

tlement belonging to some European state, then the Prisoner shoul4 
pave shewn it, as also that he was an alien. To enable him to do this, 

it was not necessary that tbe Crown should have alleged him to be a 

subject, nor that thll offence was comjllitted in the King's dominions. 

In the general ~lOur~e or practipe it might be necessary for this plea t~ 
pe made in ~batement, or in a!!cordance with general principles to 

plead it in Bar, but under tbe present statute, it evidently is not so, for 

upon the general plea of not guilty, it is competent to him to prove that 

he is an alien, and that the offence was committed in a colony belonE' 

i ng to some ~urope~1! state. It is the statute therefore wbich provides 

that pleadings in ba~, or abatement, are unnecessary, because by the 

fonrth and fifth clal!ses, it admits them to be proved upon the gelleral is­
sue. 

'.fhe Chief Justice ;ead the 4t?, and 5th ~laIUe$ at length. 

The consequence of these clauses is, tbat the door, by this statute, is 

opened to the prisoner to prove two facts, upon the trial on pleading 

the general issue alone, which will immediately enable bim to demand his 

acquittal, but, as was observed by his Majesty's Crown officers, the onus 

probandi upon this issue, is manifestly thro~D upon the Prisoner, and for 

II feason SUfficiently obvioqs. He could but prove them, and had most 
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~ert that he i~ not a s~bject. The findino- of the Jury is "in mannfl' 
) ::;, , , 

" and form, as ne stands charge~ in the indietment," wbich cbarges th~ 

murller to have been committed in the Indian terl'ito,I'Y, and tbe !indin!; 

~s in the In4ian territory, anll he caD',lot now contradict it. It is im­

possible ~hat he ,can stand kere, at this moment, in a bettersituatiofl. 

than he did upon his tl'iill, He must there bav" proved, not only that 

pe was an alien, but al60 .that his offence was committed witbin some 

European settle,ment. Had he proved that he was an alien, be must, ill 

addition, ha~~ sbewn that tbe oJ!ence was perpe,trated withi~ an Euro­

pean colony; and why ,should be stand now in more favourable circum­

stancestha~ before conviction, where half of whllt mllSt bnv,e constituted 

his defence!s cut away by the finding of the Jury, whicb declares that 

tbe offence :was committed in the Indian territory, and not in any Eu­

ropean colony? Th!s being the state of the case, there is a defect which 

fos unanswerable; he s~oll1<1 have proved tbat he was an alien upon the 

general issue which /i,e pl~aded, for it is most singular tbat he ~hould now 

~all upon the Coud to hold j-lim to be an alien, amI entitled to an arrest 

.of judgment without an iota of proof, not 'so m1lCh e1'en as an ojJidaxit, 

that he is so, whilst, on the otber hand, the positive finding of the 

JUI"Y rell~ers it an il'fclevant fact, by finding that tbe offence was ~om­

Plitted in ~he Indian territory. It is manife,st, if, before the fin~ing of 

the Jury, we coul,l not elCtend to him the rigbt of a,cquittal, or relieve 

him fro~ the authority of the statute, that we cannot now that ~be ver· 

dict of the Jllry has actually disprove,) h,alf of that which'it .was neces­

sary for him t? prove, ~,o justify the Court in aC'luitting him. Tbus 

much is relative to the person of tbe Prisoner befol'e us. 

I now shall ,consi<!er the crime wherewith be is charged. It is fe­

lony and m1ll'uer, and it has heen argue~, and very ably argued too, 

by the genUep1en engaged on t~e defence, that we, that is the COllris 

generally, !lave 110 jurisdiction over felonies comr~litted in the Indian 

tel'l'itories, R'1d especially, it h~s been urged, t,18t a Court of O}!cr 

pnd Terminer has not. We wil! en'luil'e first, whether to atl}! of the 

Courts of this province jurisdi~tion is given over felonies committed 

in the Indian t~rritory, and, if we find that there i~, we will pro~e­

cute the enquiry, ~o as to ascertain whether this Court ougbt to be 

considered ~s oue of them. In reference to the first question, the gen­

tlemen engage!1 on the defence, in SUPPOl't of their position, have pro· 

~l)ced tbe case of Shaw at large, and contend that it sati,factorily 

proves that under the term" crimes aOlI oH'ences," power is not given 

to try for afelony. Any de~ision of my LOI'd Ellen&orollgh is unques­

fionably entitled to the utmo~t respect, and so is this, and it will rll-
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ceive it from this Cuurt; but it is evident, upon looking.'at Shau"s 

case, that it i, nothing more thaD a trial founded on a particular 3tatute, 

and is therefore mel'ely an exposition of that statute. The statute of 

4~d Geo, Ill. cap. ~::;, on which Shaw's case arises, is an extension to 

other cases of a l're\'ious statute, a statute of William and Jiary, which 

made l'rovi,ion for the trial of offences which might by prosecuted by 

indictment and infor'mation, and the case is nothing but an exposition 

of that particulal' statute, Oft'ences prosecuted, 01' that can be prose­

cuted, by indictment and information, mu,t necessarily i'II1ply misde­

meanors, and mi,tlemeanors ouly, As it is an undoubted prinCiple of_ 

law Ylat felony can ?ot be prosecuted by information, it is manifest 

no Court could assume the power of awarding punishment upon a con­

viction on a statute for a cI'ime comprehended within a class of offences 

wbich was not included in the statute upon which the conviction was 

'obtained. It was not doubted that the word crimes included felonies, 

indeed the counsel for Shaw, Mr, Selll'yn, snit! himself, upon tbe applica­

tion of the \\urJ" crimes and offences, to felonies generally, that there 

wa~ no difficulty, the task was to determine whether, in the particular 

instance then before the Court, it could be extended to them. There is 

a manifest diffel'cnce between a general application of a prineiple, an!T 

the special application of it to a parlicu/ar case. 1'1y Lord Ellenbo­

,'ollgh, ill pronouncing; jUllsement in this case of Sha,,', says, (ref cITing 

at the oame moment to tbe l,,"2d Geo, III, cal" 35,) " the words Cl'imes 

then, for Ihe reasons sial cd, ooes incluoe capital felonies" so that upon 

the wbole of this ca~e of Sha'JJ heing cxmnined, "e perceive that the . 
decision i; upon a particular ;tatute, and is of course limited to tbo,e 

which are sui gCllcris. Fr011l 4th Blackstone, page 5th, was sbewn vel'y 

properly tbat .. crime" includes the offences of " murdel', treason and 

robbery," nlbich are felonies, In the la,t edition of that work, with 

1Ilr, Chris/i,,,,'s notes, thcre is, at this place, some notes relative to the 

distinction bet II ?cn crimes ant! misdemeanors, in which language call 

not be clearer or stronger, and they come fl'Om a man certainly enti­

tled to our highest respect. He says, "In the English law, misdemca­

" 1101' is generally used in contrll-distinction to felony, anil misdemeanors 

" comprehencl all indictable offences, which do not amonnt to felony; 

" as perjury, battery, libel" conspiracie" attempts and solicitations to 

" c,)mmit felon4es, &c," In the following page, in considering the dis­

tinction between public crime', and primte injul'ie" he add~, " The di.­

"tinction betlreen public crimes and private iujudes seems entirely to 

" be c1't:atcd by positive laws, and it is referaule only to civil in,litu­

.. tiono, EHry violation of a mnral luI\', {)I' natural obligation, is an 

., in]ury, f'Jr '~':li~!J tbe r.!l;:nt!er ought to make retributirJn tu the intli-
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" viduals who immeiliately suffer froin it, and is also a crime, for which 

" he ought to be punished to that extent, which would deter both him 

" and others from a repetition of the offenc'c. In positive laws those 

" acts are denominated injuries, for which the legislature has provided 

" only retrihution, or a ,compen~ation in damages; but when from ex­

" perience it is discovered that this is not sufficient to restrain' within 

" mo;lerate bounds certain classes of injuries, it then becomes necessary 

•• for the legislative power to raise them into cl'imes, and to endeavour 

" to repress them by the terror of punishment, or the slVord of the pub­
" lic magistmte. 

One of the objects then of legislative interference is, by the terror of 

th,e punishment upon the otfender, and the sword of the civil magi,tl'atc, 

to repress cl'imes. "The word crime" (sa!IS the same author) has no 

.. technical meaning in the law of England. But it seems, when it has a 

" reference to posit-il,c law, to comprehend those Acts which subject the 

I. olfendel' to punishment." From fflr. Jus/ice Blackstone's definition, and 

lIi,., Christian's notes, thel'c can be no doubt then entcl'tained, but that 

the wdrds " crimes and offences" may, and do, in ordinary accept~tion, 

include felonies ; it remains to enquire, does the term" crimes and oU'en­

•• ces," under the present statute, include, an,l,give juri,<liction' over 

them? The true question is thi" whethel', looking at the statute UpOIl 

which the Pdsonel' is charged, in connoction with its context, it ap­

pears to have he en the intention of the legislatUl'e to give jurisdiction in 

~aFeS of felony, by the use of the words" cdmes an<I offences," which 

~o freqnently appear in the pl'eamhle and enacting clauses of this statute. 

TllC first clause is certainly 11I0St comprehen,ive; it is in general words, 

and amply sufficient to include felonies. The wOI'ds mado use of are, 

.. all offences," antI " any of the bidiltn terri/ories," uut, notwithstand­

ing this general description as to crime and locality, it has been urgell 

at the bar, and plausibly urge!! too, that the preamble of this statute is 

different, it will be necessary tlierefol'e, to ha,'e recourse to the' pream­

ble, to asc~rtain whethe,' it really is in opposition to these words-it IS 

as follows: "\Vbereas," &c.-[Pr6amble read, page ~19.]-Xow it is 

said, in refcl'e~ce to this. (anti said truly,) that for murder committed by 

a suuject in a foreign territory, there was a jurisdiction already' esta­

blished by the act of SSd HENRY VIII. c«p. ~:j, and a method provided. 

in which that jurisdiction shall be carrie!1 into effect, viz: "that mur­

" del' confessed by a person, who has been examineil by three of the 

" council, or who is vehemently Sllspcctc!1 to be guilty, may he be?rd 

.. anI! detel'mined before commissioncrs of Oyer and Termiller, in any 

" county of England to be named by the King." Originall), this act 

e~tended to treason, and misprision of treason, but has been repealed ill ,. 
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has been argued, is the Collrt where the offence of nl1ll'del', if committed 

in foreign parts, should be tried. The question is, is this the true import 

of the preamble of the act of the 43d GEO. Ill. cap. 138? Does the con­

text agree with the {ext? The prtamble cannot be und'el'stood but willr 

reference to the states of America. The object or the whole statute, ij 

to provide a local jurisdiction in America, for the tl'ial of crimes com­

mitted in the Indian terl'itories, and why? The preamble of the act 

tells us. It tells us that great crimes aml olfemies are committed; 

uhere does it say they are committed? Not in Lower Canada, whel'e' 

they might be tried; not j'n Upper Canadti, whel'e tliey might be' 

tried; not within the limits of any Civil government of the UniteJ 

SIdles of America, \\'here they might be tdell; but this menti,;m'of the 

provinces of Canada, and of the "{T nitell States of Amel'ic"a, implies that 

these words must be understOOd in reference to a jurisdiction strictly 10-

caI.The preamble reei~s that crimes are committed in the Indian 

territory, and are not cognizable, by any jurisdiction whatsoever, (thac 

is, in America,) not cognizable by any jurisdiction atlapted to tbe ne­

cessity of the case; an.! by th~ act tbe legislature say, we will, for the: 

remedy of tbis evil, erect a competent jurisdiction in America. ShoulJ 

tbis appear a fair and obvious exposition of flie preamhle, yet it may 

still be said that preambles are not alwoys a guide to expound statutes ~ 

case of Barker versus Reading, Jo. 164, M. S. Car. II. They are not 

always most certainly, but, again, on the other hand, it has been settled 

that tbough " the preamble may explain, it cannot restrain, the words 

.. of enacting clauses," and in this, and in aU cases, where it is possible 

the preamble and enacting c\all~e8, are to be construed' togetlfer, as tbe 

context of the statute. 

To shew that these observations on the effect of preambles, and their' 

operation upon the enacting clauses of an act, are correct, numerous au­

thorities might be produced. I ,hall, however, only' refet' to one or 

two, as establishing the principle I have laid down, that the preambl& 

and the enacting clauses mmt he construed, jointly if possible, in order' 

to ohtain the true in tcnt of the framers of a statute, which upon all oc.­

casions must be the guide in determining the interpretation. or exposition 

which It ought to receive. In Viner's abridgement, 19 vol. p. 521, sec. 

100, it is said, " the preamble is a key to open the minds of the makers, 

" and the mischiefs they intend to remedy;" this was said by Dyer, ch. 
J. PI. S69, in case of Stowel, versus Zouch; I refer also to Coke upon 

Littleton, 79 a, for the same doctrine. At the same place in this volume' 

of Viner, is the declaration of three justices, in the case of Barker versus 

Beading before mentioDed,.relative to preambles .. in these wordll: .. the 
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., preamble is not a guide to expound statutes always;"-and this is im. 
mediately followed by an' extract from 8th .1J1od. 144, in the case of the 

King versus .Althoes, which elucidates and enforces the position relative 

to the joint exposition of the clauses and preamble. "Per. Cur. It is 

" no rule, in the exposition of statutes, to contine the general words or 

" the enacting clauses to any particular words, either introducing it, or 

.. to any sucll words. even in the preamble itself; it is true, my Lord 

.. Coke commends a construction whis:h agrees with the preamble, but 

" not such as may coniine the enacting part to it." My Lord Chancel­

wr Cowper,- a man most certainly entitled ~o our respect, confirms this 

npinion in Copema-o! versus Gallant, where he said, " that he could by 

,,- no means, allow the notion that the preamble shall restrain the ope­

" ration of the enacting clauses, and that, because the preamble is too 

" narrow or defective, therefore the enacting clause, which has general 

.. words, shall be restrained from its full latitude, and from doing thai 

" gooq which tbe words would otru,rwise, and of themselves, import, 

" which (with some heat,) he said, was a ridiculous Dation, and instanc­

" ed in the Coventry Act, which if it had recited the barbarity of cut­

" ting Coventry's nose, and the enacting clause had been general, viz: 

.' against the cntting of any member, where the man is disfigured or de­

.. faced, it might, with equal reason, be objected that the cutting of the 

.. lips, 01' putting out the eye, would not have been within the act, be­

H cause not within tbe preamble." Wm •. rep. 320, trin. 1716.-This 
opinion on tbe Coventry act seems expressly adapted to this case, and is 

conclusive as to the mode in which law, as well as common sense, re­

quires that preambles and enacting clauses, should be construed in rela-. 

tion to each othel'. The principle has indeed heen carried much farther, 

it has been helJ that, "all things which may be taken to be withio the 

.. mischief of the statute, shall be taken to be within the equity of it," 

aDEI, unde.· this interpretation, it is said, .. that consideration \leing giv· 

.. eu to the true reason of the remedy, then the office of the jlldge is ai­

.. ways to make such construction, as redresses the mischiefs, and ad­

.. vanella the remedy, and to suppress subtle inventions and- evasions for 

.. continuance uf the mischief, and pro privata commodo, and to add 

.. force and life to the remedy, according to the true intent of the rna­

" kers of the act, pro bono publico." But without saying that it is the 

province of the judge to go that length, I shall apply the general rules 

to this case. 

In the tirst instance, the words that give the jurisdiction are, .. all 

~ offences committed within any of the Indian territories shall be, and 

be deemed to he, offences of the same nature," &c. How can words be 

stronger or more general? If we go a little farther to the third claUS!', 
"'I"" 
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n'e shall find it enact~, " that tbe Court may and shall proceed therein," 

(thut is in each cu~e of crime or oifence committed in the Indian terri­

tory,) "to trial, judgment, and execl.lt'ion, or other punishment, for such 

.. crime or olfence in the same manner, as if such crime or offence had 

.. been really committed within the jurisdiction of such Court." These 

''lords are certainly as general, and liS strong, as those of the former 

clall5c, which gives the jm·isdiction. It is impossible to make them 

stronger, or more general, and it is equally impossible to take for them 

all interpretation more limited than the words ilDport, in their ordin21ry 

a~ceptation. But there is a part of~ these words which requires and de­

,en'ea a more particular consideration. 'V hat are we to understand by 

the words" judgnlent and txecut;on," in connection, as they are, with 

tbe words, " or other punishment?" By the two expl'essions, the act 

must surely refer to differeut kinds of punisbment, anll to all such as 

lire usually awarded in similar case in tbe province, where the same may 

be tried. Let us, however, refer to the case of Shaw, wbich is a cler­

gyable offence, and see how the record would be made up? or rather, 

let us take a case nearer to that of the Prisoner, a case of felony and 

manslaughter, of which the form of the reeord may he found in Black­

stOllf'S appendix, (in HUIII's case :) It concludes in these words, " who 

" upon their oath say" (that is the jury) "tbat the said Peter Hunt is 

" not guilty of the murder as aforesaid above charged upon bim, but that 

.. the said Pcter Hunt is guilty of the felonious slaying of tbe aforesaid 

.. Samuel Collins, &c. And immediately it is demanded of the said 

.. Peter Utlnt, if he hath, or knoweth, allY thing to say, wherefore the 

.. said jmtices here ought not, upon the premises and verdict aforesaid, 

" to proceed 10 judgment and execution against him, wbo sayeth, that 

., he is a clerk, and prayeth the benefit of clergy to he allowed him in 

.. this behalf," &c. 'What then do these words" judgmenl and execution" 

imply? why, they imply that punisbml!nt which is usually awarded in 

ca,es of felony, pre-eminently the punishment of de 11th ; and, if the words 

" judgment and execution" do imply, in the language of the law, the 

1t1tim1l1n S'llpplicill1n, tbe judgment of death, and its execution, then it 

is the puni>hment of death which, by these words, is designated in the 

statute, as is manifest from what immegiately follows, viz, .. or other 

.. puni;hment. For the words are, .. the Court may and shall proceed 

.. to trial, judgment, and execution, or other puni,hment, for such crime 

" 01' offence, in the same manner in every respect, as if such crime had 

.. been committed within the juris(liction of such Courts." To what end 

-,is it, if only some other punishment than that of dealh cali he awarded 

under this act, to what end, I ask, is it that the words" judgment 

.' and execution" are made use of, in contradistinctiun to "other pun-
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ishment?" We are of opinion, upon the .whole, that the legislature, iii 

this IIct, intended to give the power of proceeding to " judgment and ex­

ecution," that is, to award the punishment.of death; and, if so, if power 

is given to accord the punishment of death, it must necessarily follow 

that it was the intention of the legislature, by the previous enacting 

clauses, to give ,the power of tryi~g for felonies, because the punishment 

of death can only be inflicted upon convictions for felonies, alldthen the 

implications, which were drawn from the preamble, by the gentlemen 

engaged in the. defence, are necess!lrily done away. But, notwithstand­

ing these words, " judgment and execution," by legal and technical con­

struction do mean the 1,lli7llum supplicium, and that the ordinary COUl'ts 

of Lower Canada, have the power of trying for felonies committed ill 
the Indian territories, Is the same power vested in ,this COUl't of ,oyer 

and Terminer 1 It is not necessary to enter at length upon clauses from 

which it follows that we have this power. 

By the first clause,in the act, it is declared, that the offence" shall be 

.. tried in the same manner as if the s~me had been ,committed in Lower 

"Canada." Now, we try by various C,ourts, in .criminal proceedingE, 

though always by a jury, sometimes by' the Court of King's Bell~h, and 

sometimes by a Court of Oyer and Terminer and Gaol Delivery; and by 

the 3d clause iUs expressly provided, that," the offender may and ,hall be 

.. prosecuted and tried,in the Cour!s of the province of LOUfer Cllnada~" 
Now, as this clause does not mention any particular Court, ·it is as if it 

said, in any Court, only let the oifence be tried at the cushlwal'Y tljibu­
nal; but, proceeding a little farther in this clause, it designates, to a 

eertain extent, what Court; ., the Court in which cl'imes and offences 

" of a like nature are usually tried." that is to say, in any COUl't, not 

a civil, but a criminal, COlll·t; amI, it goes on to say, a. a fUI·ther uesil,;­

nation, and certainly it is a most decisive one, " and where the same 

" would havEl been tried if such"frime or offence had ,been committed 

" within the limits of theprovince.~~ What can be plainer; let me ask? 

where, if this oJfence had been. committed within this di~~l'ict, would it 

have been tried, but in ~his Cuurt? . The prown ha~ the right of choos­

ing its own Court; would it not have been-in this Court, then, thl:lt t\le 

Prisoner would have been tried, ~{the Cr~l\"n had elected this Court for 

that purpos.e? These clauses are so for.ci-bie'i and carry their own stl'ength 

so completely with them, that it is rea)ly unnecessary to expatiate upon 

them. I shall now touch briefly upou, the other points. W hat I have 

hitherto said, hilS been upon the 43d of the,~(ing, what I have now to 

l'emar,k upon, is that which is connected with the 14th of the Kin,g. 

The points connected with ibis ~c~ have been .already decided during the 

tl'ia], yet, if there had been any thing since advancell to induce tbe 
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'Court to change its opinion, you should assuredly have had the advan­

tage of it, but there is nothing. The act of the 14th of the King, is 

commonly called the Quebec Act. In the first claupe of this Bct, thp. 

boundaries oC His Majesty's ancient province of Quebec are described. 

It is unnecessary to read the whole, but the line reaches the river" com­

" monly called Niagara, and then along by the easle'ro an(l soulhea!!eY"n 

" bank of Lake Erie, following the said bank, nntil the sallie shall be 

" intersected by tbe northern boundary granted by the charter of the 

.. province of Penmyivania, in case the same shall be so intersected, 8r1~ 

" from tbence along the said northern and western boundaries of the 

.. said province, until the said boundary strike the Ohio. But In case 

.. the said haak of the said lake shall not be found to be so intersected, 

" then following the said bank until it shall arrive at that point of the 

" said bank which shall be nearest to the north western angle of the sald 

" province of Pennsylvania, and thence by a right line to the north u:t!s­
" tern angle of the said province; and t11ence along the western bounda­

.. ry of the said province; IInti! it strike the river Ohio, and along the 

.. bank of the said river, westward, to the banks of the Mississippi, and 

" northward to the southern boundary of the territory granted to the 

" merchants adventurers of England, trading to HucJsonts Bay." 

The statute describes the entire line of circumscription of the pro­

vince which it erects, under the name of the province of Quebu, and 

describes it very exactly. The part I ha"e been so particular in reading 
is tbe part upon which it js considered tbat a misdirection has been ginr. 

by the Court to the Jury. It is necessary to observe, relative to this 

line, that it is a curved line in some parts, and a straight line in othcl'f. 

Tbus, whilst going along the banks of the Ohio, it is curved, but as soon 

as it reaches the banks of the Mississippi, it becomes II straight line. It 

follows the banks of the Ohio in a curve, but the words of the statute 

are imperative, when it reaches the mouth of the MiSSissippi. It is to 

proceed" northward," in a straiglit line. If it had been intended that 

it should continue 011, along the banks 'of the Mississippi, it would have 

said so. It can;ies the line to the bank of the Mississippi, and what 

right have we to say, that it should ruu along, or within, the banh 

where they who framed the act, omit it. Tbey say, thence it is to rlln 

northward. You have contended that this ineans to ineline north, ac­

cording to the couru of the river; it is impossible for us to say so, we 

lire bound to take the statute in its words. It is impossible for us to do 

otherwise, it is a fixed and certain boundary, and, according to the sta­

tute, we have, to the best: of our know~edge, decided it. In the decision 

we have made, we are suPP,orted by the authority of my Lord Hardwiilke, 

in the case of Penn and Baltimore. In the disputes between Penrr, the 
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iWllprietor of Pennsylvania; uti-my Lord Baltimore, on the question re­

tative to the limits of lIfaryland, a similar dilliculty arose, anti the care 

js to be found at length" in 1 Vesey, Senr.. 4U. I mention this case, be­

cause the Court have taken ulIDu themselves to decide the limits of Ca­

nada. Odginal jurjsdiction relative to the colonial territories of the 

King, is in the King an'd his council. In this depentlent province ue­

vertheless, we have been compelled to give a decision upon the question, 

not from any wi~l on our part, but because it was brought before us in­

cidentally, and there was n'o avoiding it. The power of deciding final­

ly is, however, at home; the que,tion will be taken before the King 

and his council, and in deciding the limits of Upper Canada, they will 

either confirm or reverse our ,deeision, accordin{; -as we have done right 

or wrong; s~ that as 10 any conseqnences that may result from our er­

ror, if error we have committed, they will be obviated by the superior 

,authority to whom the question is to be'referred. 

It has been urged to U~ that no proof of the death of Keveny W[l9 

shewn. It has been ~ettled, the jury have settled it, but I wi,h there 

could be a doubt entertained about it, I wish it were possible, but I fear 

it is not. It has been urged that we admitted as evidence a confession 

.of the PI·isonel' before the Earl of Selkirk. It no doubt was intenued '0 be stated accurately, but it was not so iu fact. The written papel' ill 

his own hand·writing we did receive, the certificate at the bottom by 

Lord Selkirk, we did not, because there was no proof of it by Lord Sel­

kirk, 01' !Jis c1et'k; we thererore rejected it, speeially on the ground of 

there heing no pl'oof; though it went only to this, that previous to the 

C'lCamination and its being signed, he declared the contents of tbe paper 

>"DS true, in Pl'csellce of Dr, Allan and a .11r, Dease, who wel'e called on 

to witness it.'I'llis .confes!ioll was not all unsupported document: we 

had the 9ame thing over,again throu§b Vil1:hie, and Caplll;;! O'Orsonnens, 

and a5 a paper in his hand-writing it was received as the others at com­

mon law, altbough the cel,tificate of Lord Selkirk endorFcd upon it was 

rejected, 16hallnot toucb upon the motion for a new trial; the au tho­

J'ities aga.inst it are too stl'Ong, indeed they are conclusive. On the 

whole, the order of the Court is, that tbe Prisoner do tll,ke nothing by 

his motiou. 

lIIr. J us/iee Bowen merely expressed his concurrenee in the luminous 

1,iewof the questions, taken by his h~nour the Chief Justice, in the judg­

ment which he had delivered, and observed that if the construction if the 

Prisoner's counsel of the act of 130S was correct, then Ihei-r practice for 

twenty five years, namely, from 1793, had been el'roneous as it was p1etty 

'{!lJtorioU8 that the Courl had m/ 10 I ry felonies of all kinds. 
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Proclamation being made for silence, the sentence of DEATH was pro­
nounced by the Chief Justice, against the Prisoner in the usual manner, 
he being ordered/or execution on Monday the 8th inst. 

END OF THE TRIAL OF CHARLES DE REINHARD. 



SUMMARY 

OF 

THE TRIAL 

OF 

ARCHIBALD M'LELLAN, ESQUIRE. 

UPON Tuesday the 9th June, Mr. Attorney-General moving tbat 

.. ARCH~BALD M'LELLAN" (who bad at tbe close of the MarcIl term 
been Iiberatell from confinement upon giving bail,) " be put to tbe bar 
" for the purpose of ARRAIGNMENT as an accessary to the Murder of 

.. Owen Keveny."-Mr. Stuart observed, that after wbat had passed he 

should not have supposed that- the Crown officers would bave proceeded 

with any more trials on tbis indictment ILt present, and was proceeding 

to oppose the motion, when the Court stated, that till he was formally 

accused by the indictment being read to liim, tbe defendant, not being 

before the Court, could not be heard by it. Mr. Stuart stated, that his 

objection was, .. that the Court could not proceed to decide tbe limits 

.. of Upper Canada, and that it was useless to expose the accused to 

.. the hazard of n long imprisonment, whilst the necessary representa­

.. tions were made to tbe government at home," and suggested that 

perhaps he might be permitted to move the Court" that further pro­

.. cecil ings upon this indictment be staid till the decision was obtained." 

The Court answered, "You must plead sometbing, and then we will 

.. hear you in any way your judgment may point out as most' suitable." 

ARCHIBALD M'LELLAN was then arraigned in the usual form, and 

pleaded NOT GUILTY. (Mr. Stuart being promised by the Court that 

time should be given to prepare a special plea.) In answer to the usual 

elJ'luiry of\\;ben the Prisoner would be ready for trial, ~Ir. Stuart stated 
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toot to prepare the special plea, would take some time, as his eoumef 

must consult together, but he thought by Thursday they would be ready, 

The Crown ojJicers disclaimed any wish to unreasonably press upon the 

Prisoner, and trusting that his counsel would then be ready, moved his 

commitment. 1I'Ir. Stuart submitted that MR. M'LELLA.N was under 

bail to a large amount; but the Court saiil, .. AJler bis al'raigment he 

" cannot be permitted to be at large"-Let the Court be adjourned till 

THURSDA y morning at Eight o'clock, A. i1[. 

On Thursday, the 11th inst. illr. Altoriley-Gen~ralagain moved that 

Archibald M'Lellan be put to the bar. }Ifr. Stuart addressed the Court 

stating, that after great iegal doubts as to the propl'iety of so doing, the 

counsel for Mr. M'Lelian had acceded to his urgent solicitations to allow 

the plea of the general issue to stand. .. Our own opinions (said Mr, 

" Stuart) are not at all changed, for we are rather surrendering our 

" judgments to the anxiuty of the Defendant, who, conscious of his in­

Ol nocence, prefers an immediate trial, under some disadvantages, to 

" protracting the process, hy availing Ilimself of any privilege which 

., the law might give him, and he will be ready fOl' his trial to-morrow." 

The Court was then adjourned till To~orro1l', at Eight o'clock, A. M. 

On Friday, 12th June, the trial commenced before His HonOUr" 

CHIEF JUSTICE SEWELL, and ALEXIS CARON, E8q, King's counlel, 

the same professional Gentlemen conducting the prosecution and defence 

as in the case of De Rtinhard, and the Jury SWQI'Il collsisting of the fol­
lowing gentlemen :-

William M easam, ~ John Glatterer, 
~ 

John Orchard, ~ Jacques Tranquil, 
~ 

Jacques La Fleur, ~ Joseph Chamberland, 
George Potts, 

~ 
Daniel Golstrom, ~ , 

David Gols/rom, 
, 

John Ii ersey, ~ , 
J acq'Ues Boilieu, • J (mph Defoi. , , 
The Prisoner's eopnsel assenting to a suggestion of the Court, tbat lIJ. 

the eighth count contained all the allegations against the Prisoner, i" 

would be unnecessary to trouble the Jury with the whole of the long iD~ 

dictment, he was given in charge to them upon that Count alone. 

.frlr. AI/orney-General opeued tile case by obsel'ving, that altbough 

accused of the crime of murder, the Prisoner was charged ouly as aD 

tlccessary both before and aJler the commission of the olfenee, and ad­

verting to the conviction of the Principal, stated, that the record thereof 

wou") be made evidence against the defendant, as establi!.hing tbe ac­

tual commission of the murder. Having very briefly el'plaiued the Is· 
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gal import of the charge, he expressed !Jis expectation that the separate 

allegations would be so fully sustained, that the Jury would be com­

pelled, in the discharge of their duty, -to find the Prisouer guilty of the 

crime. He cautioned them against any prepossession which the noto­

riety of the disputes between the Hudson's Bay and North West Compa. 

nies might expose them to, and disclaimed on the part of the Crown 

any wish relative to this trial, than that a true verdict might be given 

accOl·,jing to the evidence alone: but, in the absence of positive proot, 

(which cases o! 1nm"der seldom admitted,) he shouhl by a variety oC 
strong circumstances, (he feared,) satisfy the Jury that such a verdict 
mtlst be GUILTY. 

The Attorney-General noticed the means by wilich Mr. Ke~oeny was 

brougbt to Bas de la Riviere-his being sent away by the Prisoner in 

charge of Bois-brulis-his subsequent transfer to Faille, La Pointe, and 

the Indian Jose, together with their quarrel and separation, observing, 

that it would be very material to recollect 11f'Lellan's conduct in It va­

riety of situations, as fwm the coincidc!lCe of circumstances his guilt 

would become apparent. The opposition by the deceased to the war­

rant executed by De Reinhard was then- adverted to, as well as the 

Prisoner's leavIng Keveny the very last time he was seen, in the custody 
of Mainville and De Reinhard, (who might be supposed to be his ene­

mies) an(1 leaving him, after they had in 1I1'Letlan's hearing freely 
"poken of killing him. The conduct of the Prisoner upon meeting 

Faille aOli L(/J Pointe, after their separation from Jo~e, in beating them, 

and his observation that the Indian wanting to kill Keveny" was none 

" of their business" IVere alluded to, as well asthe conversation between 

the peorle of bis own canoe, relative to killing him, and dividing his 

butin. The conversation with the people of the Swan River brigade 

was instanced, and 11'1' Lellan's remark to them, II 'Tis well, he will 

.. not steal any more, to-morrow, at this honr, his business is done," 

described as peculiarly significant. The charge of harbouring the mur­

dcrcl's with a guilty knowledge of their crime, the Attorney-General 

eonsidel'ed to be sustaine<l by the following circum.tances-their bring­

ing to 111' LeU",n's encampment the bloody clothes of the deceased-the 

liillall canoe, in \I' hieh he might have been expected to arrive, being ill 

a similar situation, and the subsequent ordel's of the Prisoner to burn 

tbe canoe. His anxiety to retake Keveny-his anger at not finding him 

where he expected to do so, and then leaving him to follow, instead of 

himself hlmdillg him over to the laws of the country were noticed as 

singular, whilst the absence of surprise upon De Reinhard's communi­

lIating the catastrophe in these words, " His business is done, he is well 

" hidden-he u'/ll 110/ come back ngain," in connection with his continu-
o'f -



298 

ing to live, eat, drink, and sleep with the mnrderer, not only in the 

canoe, but als@ ",hen encamped, were produced as strong additioual 

evidences of guilt. His receipt of part of the btl/in of Ket.eny, and his 

forbidding the people to speak of his death, telling them the probability 

wa~ if spoken of they wonld' suffer, were adduced, and, in connection 

with the circumstance that he was a partner, and therefore had controul 

of the North-West servants, uged to the same' poiut. In addition to 

these facts, it would be proved by a If'Ir. Heur/er, that the Prisoner, in 

a letter addressed to a lIfr. M'Donell, wrote these words, "Ket'eny has 

.. disappeared, don't be anxious about him," which, the Attorney-General 

thought, must be applicable to his destruction, the incitement to which 

horrid step might (he suggested) perhaps be found in the circumstance 

of the valuable information Keveny could furnish to Lord Selkirk, if he 

reached Fort William, added to his natural intrepidity and capacity to 

be serviceable, if any contest took place between the companies. All 

these 21Jr. Attorney-General represented as strong indications of guilt, 

but, proceeding to lay before the Jury the evidence, he shoul!l rely with 

confidence that their verdict would be one strictly consonant to the oath 

they had taken, of making a true deliverance hetween OUI' Sovereign 

Lord the King, and the Prisoner at the bar. 

Wlt:LIAM BAGHELOR COLTMAN, Esquzre," and nfr. JOSEPH 

BOUCHETTE, Juni&r, being SlVorn, proved that the Dalles were to the 

north of a line urawn due west from Portage des Rats, and to the u'est 

of a line drawn due norlh from the junction of the Ohio an,! Mississippi 

rivers-thus establishing, in accordance with the decision in De Rein­

hard's case, that the place where the offence was alleged to have been 

eommitted was within the jurisdiction of this Court. 

Hu BERT FAILLE'S examination commence,l by a relation of the 

circumstances narrated in his evidence (page 13) on the former trial, to 

the worus .. remained on shore," with the addition that" he had asked 

for a gun, but was refused by .Mr. M'Donell."-[1I>Ir. Solicztor General 

stated that his next question had for its object to prove, that at tlzis time 

the intention of killing the unfortunate ]Jlr. Kel'cny existed-the Chief 

Justice asked, "What has this to do with the Prisoner at the hal', 

'* It may be proper here to correct an errol' which has passed unob­
served in Mr. Collman's evidence on the trial of De Reinhard (page 12.) 
Instead of saying, as is there represented, that" it is a matter of public 
II notoriety that writs issued by the magIstrates of the Western district 
" of Upper Canada, are executed at Fort William," it ought to read, 
" It is a matter of notoriety that writs are issued by the magistrates, 
'1 &c. to be executed at Fort William." W. S. 
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.. whose name even is not yet mentioned?" Mr. Solicitor General re­

pliea, that although MT. 11'1' DoneU might now app1lar hOTS du combat, yet 

the Crown would incontestibly connect the whole of the circumstances, 

and the Prisoner with them.-" At this, moment (said ,1I1r. SolieitoT,) 
" Keveny is delivered up to this party, who take him in charge; and we 

" shall shew, that they afterw,ards met the Prisoner at the har, by whom 

.. Keveny was taken out of the custody of these persons, and handed 0-

.. ver to his murderers. Eventually" we shall unite these two branches 

.. of evidence, and distinctly, connect the Prisoner with both ;"-and un­

less permitted to laye,·ents before the Jury, in the order of time in 

which they occurred, the evidence would appear confused. The Court re­

marking, that this was reviving the course which on the late trial had 

been declared inadmissible, directed the Solicitor-General" to first con­

" nect the Pl'isoner, with the transactions he proposed to make evidence 

" against him."] Witness cursorily detailed the intervening OCCUl'ren­

ces, till the arrival of 1I'I'Lellan's canoe, inc1u(ling, among the transac­

tions on shore, the beating he received, saying twice that" he did not 

" know why he was beat," but omitting the expressien, "that it was 

., lWt our business," attributed to 11f'Lellan, (page 16, of the former tri­

al,) -and its subsequent departure with himself and La Pointe, (page 

17,) and continued his evidence up to tbe period of meetirig tbe Swan 

River brigade, (page 18,) declaring, repeatedly, that he related o'n sborp, 

and in the canoe, in the presence of 1I1f. Archy," all that happene,l be­

tween tbe Indian and them, and that the Indian had wanted to kill Ke­

veny, but that he could not say, 'U'hcther the Prisoner heard him or, nol,t 

nor could he 'tell u'hat M'Lellan said, though he stated that he spokc to 

Itim. As his account of what occurred at that meeting, differs from his 

former testimony, (page 18,) it is judged pl'oper to give his exact words, 

accOlllpatlied by an abstract of obserl'ations by the Court and the Adro­

cates :-" The next day (afler embarking,) we met five or six canoes, 

" by which we learnt that lilT. Keveny lYas fartber on, above tbe Dalles 

•. ill the Rhoer T/'innipic, and afterwards we found Keveny at the place. 

" I do not knolV whethcl' it was of Mr. Ducharme, but somebody asked 

" the people of the canoes, how Keveny managed for his living, bill I do 

.. not know whetlter ~Ur. Arthy heard it. We were all talking together, 

•• and somebody asked, " holY does he manage for his living?" and some 

" The Prisoner is known to the Voyageur$ by this appellation. 

t It may be proper here to notice, that in lIfarch, he was particular­

ly examined to this point, and gave si.uilar eddence as to M'Lellan's 

hearing, but he then state,l, that at this time lIIr. Archy scolded him and 

t'auntingly asked who directed h:m to beat the S3,a!;,'? W. " 
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" one answered, sometimes he stole from tbe Indians, and sometimes h. 
"bought. I do not know in what part of the canoe .11-1' LBllan wal at that 

"time. I do not know that M'Lellan heard this conversation. I cannot 

"say. M'Lellan wa, nearer than I was, and I heard it very well. J 

" was a Utile far/her off than 1I'Ir. Archy. I was not then speaking, amI 

" at that time I heard no reply given to this answer. I heard it very 

" well, but I do not know whether .111' Lellan heard ,it or not, but certainly 

" he was nearer than I was." 

[Mr. Stuart suggesting, that till it was shewn that 11fr. M'Lellalt 

took part in this conversation, the {jourt would not insert it on their 

notes, The Solicitor-General contended, that the witness having proved 

the Prisoner to have b~en in a situation, where it was almost impossible 

but he must have heard, hie evidence ought to be taken down. The 

Chief Justice said, that was not so clear, as the witness did not know in 

what part of the canoe M'Lellan was sitting. To which the Solicitor­

General remarking, that being in the canoe, it was reasonable to infer 

that he must have heard. Mr. Stuart rejoined, that if even he did hear 

it was not to cOllvict him of being an accessary to the crime of murder, 

but that it did not unquestionably follow, that because a person W8, 

near enough to attend to a conversation, that be actually must 60 at. 
tend.] 

Faille.-" At Ihat time I did not he~r any answer, but afterwards, 

" and whilst we were in the canoe, I heard some person say, "he \lill 
" not eat long." I do not know in what part of the canoe the person 
" wa& who said so, nor whether Jll'Lellan heard it." 

[The Chief Justice remarked, that he could not 8ee how this evi. 

dence could bear against the Prisoner. 1flr. Stuart urged, that not only 

the presence of lIIr. M'Lellan, but a participation in, and approval of, 

what was going on, must be proved as a substratum. The Chief Jus/we 

referred to the decision on the former trials, that evidence could not be 

accepted of conversations, which it wa5110t proved the Prisoner parti­

cipated in, or approved; (pages 16 and 17,) and then adverting to the 

present case, he added, " We do not see how this is to be brought home 

" to .11'Lellan-tbe witnesses narrative is so imperfect, I really do not 

" see what is to be made of it. He 1Ioes not know where the person9 

" were who held the conversation, whetber behind or before him; he 

" does not know tollo they were, in fact, he appears to know nothing 

" but that they were all in a canoe, and that he heard what passed. It 

" would be highly dangerous to admit as evidence thllt which is not 

.. clearly brought home to the Prisoner, and this conver6ation was cer­

"tainly not brought home so as to make it eddence againet M'Lei • 

.. [(In. If you can shew that he was in a situation near enough to hav .. 
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« heard, in the cornman course of things, it is afact you may prove, but 

.. even then I do not think much could· proceed from it, for though thus 

" situated he might not hear." These observations }lfr. Solicitor Gene­

ral cOllsi,lered as going the length of saying, that a witness must swear 

that a man positi\'ely heard a thing which he held to be impracticable. 

The examination was lhen cOlltinued, the witness answering to different in­

terrogatories, .. that he did not know whether 1I-1'Lellan was before or be­

.. hind him, nor whether the man spoke loud, or as he was then !peaking." 

The Chief Just-ice said, .. It comes exactly to what he has said twicll 

"before. You perceive he will not fix the place of the Prisoner, 01' 

., whether the person spoke loudpr not. Can sw:h evidence bear again~ 

.. a pl'isoner" ?] 

Examinfltion continued. 

Faille.-I hear,! some one say, but I do not know who it was, " thR~ 

" he would not ellt a long while." He said that the Prisoner would not 

eat a long while. I believe he spoke of Keveny. The person that said 

60 was before me in the canoe. 

Chief Justice Bewell.-Where? in what part? 
Faille,-I do not know. lilT. 11-1' Lellan wa~ in the canoe at the 

same time, but I do not know whether or not he was nea"er to tbat per­

son than 1 was. The partners and clerks are generally in the middle of 
the canoe. 1I'1r. 111' Lellan was in the middle, a little towUl'ds the fore­

part. 
Chief J usiice Se1cell.-How did he speak? Did he speak loud? 

Fail/e.-He spoke 10101<1 enough for me to hear him. He spoke as I 

do at present. 'I'he person that spoke was before me. The partners 

and clerks were in the middle. I was behind them. 

Solieitor-General.-The one that spoke was consequently bdwcelt 

you and the gentlemen (bourgeois) ~ 

Faillc.-I do not know. 
[The Court again asked what this could tend to, and Mr. Solicitor­

General proeee(jed to examine Faille as to finding KeJeny, but the Chief 

Justice wishing most clearly to understand, whether upon the expres­

sion, .. he will Tt0t eat a long time,"· tlie Prisone\' said any thing; the 

witness replied, to a question founded on the suggestion, " I do not 

" know. - I do ,JOt know whether 111' Lellan spoke then."] 

Mr. Solicitor-General then examined the witness upon the expression 

" In 1I-Iarf:h. he repeatedly SWOI'C tlmt this very expression was used 

by Mr •• 4r~h'!l' W. S. 
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Gf De Reinhard, (poges 18, 19,) and to hl'Lellan's situation in the ca­

no~, at the time of the conversation of the ltIitifs. (page:21.) He des­

cribed that Mr. lll'Lcllan was nearer to De RebLlUlrd 'tban he was, anti 

that the people spoke as he was then doing, (in ait ordinary tone;) and 

in answer to a solemn interrogatory from the COllrt, be said, "I do not 

" know whether MR. ARCHY heard it or not"-and to a second, " I 
" did Dot hear him speak." Upon which Jllr. Stuart objected to the 

whole of this evidence. The Chief Justice replied, " it rests with the 

"Jury to give what credit to it they think proper, and also to say, 

" wllether the Prisoner did or did not hear. Tbe Crown has merely 

.. proved that be was in the canoe." 

The Court was then adjournedfor half an hour. 

The witness continued his eviilcnce. by relating their departure in 

1"l'Ldlan's canoe-their encamping for the night, and hen ring the re­

port of a gun, (page 22,) adding, (as he diJ i 11 .ilIarrh,) that Desmarais 

said, " Oh, Ihe dogs! they "al'e killed him"-the arrival of the small ca­

noe-hlr. Arch!}, alld others, going to the watel· ;ide-the conver~ation 

tbat pa~sed-and the relation, (to the engages,) by .lIIaintillc, of the cir­

cumstances attending the death, (but as the gentlemen (bourgeois,) were 

110t present, evidence was not allowed of what they were.). The e\ i· 
denee bere, referring particularly to tbe Prisoner, is given at length. 

Faille.-I saw Kepen!}'s things landed, but I do Dot know that 

_III'Lellan saw them; but he was near enough to have seen them, if he 

had loolccd. There was a tmnk with papers which De Reinhard ojl{'ned, 

and, examining the pvpers, threw them into the lent of the bourgeois, 

where hI'Lellan stayed. .lilT. hI'Lellan read them, and tore and burnt 

them. I am cerlain that they were the papel's out of Keveny's trunk, 

~·bich lflr.lfP LeI/an read, lore, and burnt. De Reinhard kept Kcve)1y's 

hoot<, and a loaf of while·~lIgar that belonged to him, De Reinhard put, 

and I saw it, into .~lr. Areh!}'s basket. Before ~hat, he wanted to put 

some tea in, which belonged to Keveny, but M'Lellan prevented him, 

laying he had no occasion for that. I do not know whether M'Lellan 

perceived it, when he put the sugar in. We re-embarked the next day, 

and .lIIr. Jll'Lellt1.n read more papers and tore them; but I cannot say 

whether they were Keveny's. Before we went, I heanlhIr. Archy tell, 

to burn the small canoe, but I do not know for what. There was a great 

deal of blood in it, but I do not know, and he did not say, why it was 

to he burnt. Before embarking, at the waterside, I received orders from 

De Reinhard not to speak of tbe death of Kenny, and I promised him 

that I would say nothing about it; but I do nilt know that .lIl' Lellan 

was there at that moment. I do not know whether .lII'Lellan and De 
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Reinhard met as if they were friends, bufthey ate together, and voyaged 

together, and did not quarrel, and they r~mained together in the canoe, 

as usual, in the bar of the bourgeois. That evening I went to bed before 

the others, and I do not know whether they slept together. 

U pO,n his cross:examination by Mr. Stuart, no new fact was extract­

ed, elCcept he was taken into custody by Captain D'Orsonnens, but at 

the time did not know why, and tbat subsequently he was examined by 

Captain Mathey, and Imade an affidavit before Lo'rd Selkirk. The fol­

lowing, it is believed, comprises the admissions in favour of the Pri­
soner-:-

That 1I'Ir.llPDonell treated Keveny kindly, (page 29,)-that it is 
clls/omary in that country for the Indians to have' arms-that Mr. 

::l'l'Lellan's was i1 light c'anoe,' (allege,) and that in such canoes it is not 

usual fnr the bourgeois and engages to converse together-that it was 

requisite for De Reinhard to remain with the bourgeois, 3S he could not 

paddle, and there was no room among the voyageurs-that though De 

Reinhard took his meals at the same I tme as M'Leilan, there was no ta­

ble, but clerks and partners sat in a circle-that M' Lellan could not 

leave De Reinhard in that place, as he mnst have been starvea to death 

-that eight engages and two bourgeois generally went in a light canoe, 
but that they were fifteen-that he heard lfI'Lelian say, he could not 

take Kel'eny, because his canoe was too much loaded-and that, as be 

could neithe~ write nol' reafl, he could not distinguish lIIr. Kel'eny's pa­
pers f!'Om lIf'Lelian's, nor from (hose then ill his sight. 

JEA N BAPTISTE LA POINTE, being sworn, related briefly the cir­

cumstances detailed in pages 13 and 14; when ill,.. AI/orney-General 

asking if Joseph shewed any intention of killing Keveny. The Chi(f 

Justice (upon j'l1:r. Stuart objecting,) saiu, .. first prove a connection (0 

" exist hetween the Prisoner and this Indian, before you examine what 

" he diu." The witness continued the narrative to the arrival of lI'l'Lel· 

lan's canoe, which he de,criheu a~ on thefourll! day, (instead of theflfth 

as at tbe last trial,) and continued as follows :-

La Poinfe.-Cadolle, who was 'in the canoe, where lIf'Ltllan was, 

enquired of us what we had done with Jose and with Keveny. Faill, 

replicd that Jose wanted to kill Ket'cny, but he had been pl'evented­

upon which Cadotte ,aid, " you blasted blackguards, it i~ false," also, 

" that was not oUl' business," and that, .1 we tlesel'ved a threshing."­

Upon this lIfr. lII'Lellan landed, anu beat us with a canoe pole. Af­

terwards we embarl.cd in Jlfr. 111' Lellan's canoe, and he then told us 

that he had beat us because I ha,l beat the Indian. The PTisoner an,1 

Cadotte wel'e in the canoe, and three times nearer to each olher than to 

file, when Cadotte. ~aid, " it is falfe;" and then J1Tr. Archy landed .and 
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Leat us. I sMalt.! think that .bIr. Arthy heart.! the conversation bet\I'~e" 

me and Cadotte; he was near enough to have heard it. The same day 

I heard lliainville, Vasseur, and the Bois-brUlls speaking about killing 

Keveny, nnd dividing his thing~ amongst themselves. One saiel tbat he 

would have bis hat, and another sai.!, he would have hi~ boots. liP Lei­

Ian was present and might have heard as I did. The gentlemen in the 

canoe laughed at it. 

Chief Justice Se~ell."':''Did the Prisoner laugh? 

La Pointe.-Yes, for certain, when lIfainville sai.!, that he would 

have his hat, be laughed as the others did. They amlredly spoke se.eral 

times of the intention of killing Keveny; it was almost the only rubjecl 

of tbeir conversation. 
Chief Justice Stwell.-;-Did tbe Prisoner say' any thing at that time? 

La Pointe.-Not to my knowledge, but he laughed at it. After we 

IUld met with tbe people of Swan River, I heard a Half-breed enquire, 

II where was Keveny," and they said, .. he is above the Dalles." A Half­

breed then asked, .. bow does he get his living," and after the answer 

was given that, " sometimes he stole, and sometimes he bought," the 

Half-oreeds uttered a cry of joy, exclaiming, II he shall not steal much 

II longer." Mr. Archy was there, but I do not know whether he wag 
aear enough to hear this conversation, nor whether he"was in the canoe 

at tbat instant, but, if be was not in it, be was not far off, for we imme­

diately left the shore, and he was in the canoe when we pushed off. 

Before we met the people of Swan River, De Reinhard said, II I will take 

II good care of him," (Keveny;) .. it is I who will kill him." Kel'eny 

was not on the island where we left him. After having landed there, 

we re-embarke(l, aDd De Reinhard not being yet on board, one of the 

Half-breeds, said to M'Lelia/;, that it would be De Reinhard wh') would 

kill Keveny, and M'Lellan answered, II De Reinhard is 100 much ofa 

II milksop, he i8 not alert enough to kill him.". Thence we returned to 

the Dalles, and from the time we met tbe people of Swan River, down 

to the time we got there, the people were !lull, and I heard no conver­
sation amongst them. 

The witness then narrated the finding Keveny, and then- subsequent 

departure, le~ving him to be conveyed by De Reinhard, Mainville, and . 

the Indian, but said that he knew no reaean why these men were left, 

but he beard M'Lellan say they were to bring on Keveny. He consid­

ered that Mr. Ket'eny apd his baggage might have been taken in M'Lel-

• lan's canoe, which he described to have been lightened by unloading a 

.. " De Rein/um] elt (rop FalQt, il n'e,t patalBes alerte pOWI' Ie tuer'" 
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I}ullntity of wild rice. The exelamllttion in the eanoe OB i1earlug ih~ 
report of the gun, (page gi.) he attributed to Desmarais, and that 

M'Lellan sat be/ween hbn and DesmfLrttfs, but he could not 8ay Whetbet:' 

be heard it or not. He (the witne1OS) did not hellr any thing 1!aid, either 

by the Prisoner, or any other 'bf}urgeoi~, but tbitt at that ilIoment, the1 
a"p~red to him to be more !leliOlis than usual, He contin'ued hi! nar­

rative to the arrival (jf the small eanoe, {page 8'.) but 11S be could not 

say whether Mr. M'Lellcm went to the water !lidej tbe conversation waS 

not gone into ; he, bowever, said that when he did discover that Keveny 

was not with them, b6 did f10t hear 'the Prisoner expres$ any S'Urprire; 

nor did 'he put himself ·into a passion, though" when be thougbt Keveny 

•• had escaped from the North· W egt people, at the time he was 'left 011 

" the mnall i~la",l, {1lages 32 and 88,) be appeared to him to be in a 
" passion'" nor" he ne\'er heard any reproaches or expressions of angel' 

" against either De R einluwd, Mo.mville, or Josi." IUs examination 

proceeded as in the. middle of page 85, with tbe additio~ that " the 
.. clothes were washed before M'Lellan's tent, but he said nothing a­

u bout it, neither good nor bad." In addition to the sugar, he saW 

Keveny's boots in the Prisoner's tent, and 'he 11'180 heard the Prisoner 
give direction~ to burn tbe canoe, (page 802.) "He said in my pre­

" sence, .and tliat of.others, and Faille Wlis 8S near as I was to the ~ris­

" oner, who spoke as loud as I speak, " Burn the canoe, because it 
.. might give some knowledge to the Indians, or to some Calladian, 

" who might be passing by, of tbe murder." '" His accoud of tbe de­
struction of the paper~, though very positive, differing materially from 

}"aille's (page 302,) it is given, togetber with his testimony that he re­

t!etved orders from the Prisoner to conceal the murder. 

La Poinle,-I paw De Reinhard open Keveny's chest, but I do not 

know whether be opened it with the feey or not. I can say iJpon my 

oath, that the papere wCl'e Kevtny's papers, because I saw them. They 

Were taken in the box by the Prisoner, which be oarried himself to the 

fire. De Rein/lard tlid not take the papers out of Ille box, and M'Lella'll. 

carried it himself, and after part of tbe people were gone to bed, be 

examined the papers, and threw them into the fire in succession as he 

examined them. He was not iIi his lenl, but at the fire, and De Rein­

liard was not there then. I can say upon my oalh it.was Keveny's box. 

jl[l Lellan had not burnt all the papers, but on the (ollowing day he 

was stilll'eading some of them in the canoe. He read. ODe, and sai<l to 

• In .7lfarch, he testified tlmt a~ the time M'LeliaR ordered the canoe 
to be burnt, he Baid something eIs~, but he (willieSS) did Dot hear wha& 
it was. W. S, 

.,"" 
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the Half-breeds, "it is very well that Keveny is delld, because (shewing. 

the paper) he had the power of-getting King's troop! to go and take your 

lands at Red River." One of the Half-breeds said, " that is one of his 

papeJ'S then?" 'and he answered, "yes." I saw Mr. Archy destroy the 

papers when he was in the canoe, he threw them into the river with 

stones to make them sink. Before starting in the morning, M'Lellan 

told me not to speak of this murder, saying, .. take care not to speak of 

the murder of Keveny, for you and the rest of you would be punished 

by us." He said also that the crime was equally attibutable to us, and 

that we should be punisbed, and Cadotte told us that we should be hung. 

Several times afterwards on the way, he forbade us to mention the mur­

uer of Keveny, and again when we were come to Lake La Pluie. It 

was llI'Lellan who was master in the canoe, anu De Reinhard retained 

his arms in the canoe. 

The Court adjourned till To-morrow, at Eight o'clock, A. lIf. LA. 
POINTE being committed to the care of a constable. 

Saturday, 13th June, 1St'S. 

UPON his cross·examination by Mr. Vanfelson, he deposed, up t(!l 

the time of his. discovery by Mr. M'Lellan, nearly as on the former 

trial; (page 37,) stating, in addition, that upon their return after first 

leaving Keveny, seeing a flag upon the iSland, they (Faille and himself) 

wanted Jose to put to shore and take him on board again, but he said the 

canoe was too small,~ saying, ,t paddle, paddle, (which was the only 

Fren'ch he spoke) and they doing ~o, he steered the canoe from the island 

where Keveny was. He s.aid, that .. 11fT. Archy landed the first, and it 

.. was certainly before he landed that the conversatiou between Mr • 

.. Cadotte and the witne6s took place;" (page 303,) and also that at 

the time Cadotte pointed out the Indian, and said it was us who had 

beat Jose. In answer to a solemn enquiry upon his oath, whether on 

seeing the Indian, he did not say, it was Faille who had beat him, and 

whether Faille did not say, it was him? Ife said, that he did not, nor 

" The witness explained, that the canoe in which they first received 
Keveny havihg been broken, JD~e had traded for this .. which was a sm(tller 
one. 

f Nage, nuge. 
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tlid he hear Faille say that it was him, but that he then said, "It was I 

"who beat him, because h~ fired at me." He was reminded of his. 

oath, and the question put again, but he gave a simjlar reply. In an-. 

swer to a question from the Ckiif JU3tice, he said, that in the canoes the. 

bourgeDis conversed among themselves, and the engages the same. 

That except 01'1 business, thll bourgeois did not speak to toe engages, 

and that it was the guide they addressed when they had occasion to 

,ive orders. He admitted that it was not easy to paddle and talk at the. 

same time, but still maintQined that in the canoe they did. frequently 

talk of killing Keveny, and dividing his things. Being questioned very 

particularly as to hi~ own situation in the canoe at this. time, and who 

was in the same oar with him, ~e said, " he did not know where he. 

" was, nor could he recollect who was in the same bar." He then de­

Icriblld. the arrangement of a canoe, and what would have been his situ­

ation in l'elation to the,middle (or bourg.eoi&) bar-had he been paddling 

near the 8teersman, or near the foreman or guide, but although examine,l 

by the Court and various counsel, he did not appear to render his posi­

tion at any time intelligible. He said, that he had almost always 

M'Lellan in front of him, sometimes facing him fully, and sometimes 

sideways-that the people very often changed places in paddling, and 

that he ch(lDged his, as also did Mr. Arehy, but he could not say whether 

118 frequently as he did. 
In answec to a question from the Chief Justice, he said, that when 

Mp.inville said he would have Keveny's hat he was in the rank immedi­

diately before the witness, and Vasseur, at the time he claimed the 

boots, was in the bourgeois' bar. Being examined by .Mr. Valifelson 

on this poinqhe said, that when a canoe was ovel'loaded the voyageurs 

paddle.! in tlffi bQ,urgeois' bar, and he wa~certain at that time Vasseur was 

there. That in canoes, such as the Prisoner's, tbe usual complement 

was eight paddlers and two or three bourgeois, but they were fifteen. 

He also declared, that the time of finding Keveny he did not hear De 

Reinhard say, that ~s .i'IIr. M'Lellan's canoe was too much loaded he 

would remain with Keveny, nor did he hear M'Lelian say to De ReiH­

hard that as he had taken him prisoner he had beUer stop and come on 

with aim in the small canoe. 

Mr. Vanfelsan.-In what part of the canoe could you have put Ke­

t'eny amI three others, whilst Vasse~T was in the same bar with the bour· 

geois J 
La Painte.-Keveny might have been put between the two ranks of 

paddlers, but it is not usual to put any body between the paddlers, or 

.,lae in .the bottom of the canoe.· He would certainly not have been ¥ 
his ease, but he might have been put thel'e. 
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Mr. V'ttnfilwn.-T'htti, you mean to «ay, UpOI1 your ottlla, tbat in • 

.,aMe like the one in quest.ion, wbieh had already fiflun men and their 

lIaggtJge 1111 boatd, you conlll, without danger, take in adllition, De 

lIeiinlrIJr4, and #IT",Ot/WIS, with. th8i'r lIagRe, aud make a traver~. 
\J pen yl1ilr oath, j'B tbat true? 

La Po.'nte.-I did 1I0t I!\llaD to ~lIy tbat the lour tumid have gcme. 

If we bad taken Keveny lind his things, it would certainly have bee .. 

dangeroos to kave made the great traverse, il the wind hlew, with the 

danoe so mucb loaded, bot till then it migl1t have done. It is dangeroos 

to traverse the IlIke at all when it blows. 
The witness WIIS thlln eltamined relativll to where the fire was, aOlI 

lie depdSl!d, that be did not 8~e any before ~qe bourgeois' tent, ODd had 

tbere been any, as u5ual, he myet have se6n it, &114 that the papers were 

"ead by tke engages lit·e. Also, tqat lit the arrival of the Illlall canoe, 

Mr. M'LelltJn was about forty or lifty feet distant, but he aoulll not sa, 
whether he was among those who came forward. He confirmed hi, 

testimony relative to the Pl"isoner anti De Reinhard taking tlleir meall 

.. ogether during tile whole voyage, 

Mr. VanfelsoIi.-Ave the partner8 generally pell mel' with the voya, 

geuTI and balf-breeds, or in tbeir lent with the ~Ierks alld interpreters. 
La. Painte.-I can 110t say that tile bourgeois and tfTIgagel arO! usually 

together. The partners, with the clerks aDd interpreters, take their 
meals togethe~, and the wgagill tbeir's at their lire; bUl they cornEl 
from one firo to the other, and joke with the eugage,. 

Mr. Vanlelson.-Could 1II:r. M'Lellan have taken De Reinhard, 

ltlainville, and Jose, prisoners, against the will of the balf-breeds anti 
lndians? 

La Poinle . ...".1f the half-breeds and Indians had opposed it, be could 
not have taken tllem if he qad wanted to do so. 

Mr. V!\tlfelson.-Is not Mainville a half-breed, and JOlt an Indian J. 

La P~inte.,....,.Certllillly, !lnd th~ qaII.br~Il~8 and Jndians are near re, 
lations; , 

Being eXllplined Ill! to the conduct of Glpt. D'.Qrslintlenl, he said, 

that after De Rei7t"ar~ WBl! taken by him he did Dot see them eat to­
gether, or often see them in the tent together, but they might hav,a 

done ~o. A very particular investiglltion took plalle rellUive to the 
white sugar, of which he gave the following aOCoont. 

La Pain/e.-Before the ti\lle that they divided Keveny's things, 1I[,.~ 
Arehy had nothing but Indian (maple) sugar. T\lQ loaf 01 wllite sugar 

J never saw in his tent, but I saw a half-breed pnt it into his hasket 

-near his tent. I do Dot know that the half-breed 'poke to him at the 

time that he put the sugar in the basket. It was the next day, and not 
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whi&h their Sl."rvant put into it. I~ was Rocholl, hi~ ser\'l\nt, ",hll told 

jDe that 1'4' 1.ttlan bad not any 'Whjj,e sugar. ~d I had seen none before. 

Jt Wl!$ ROI;lw'IL who brokl: the SUg;lr. 

The witneStl continued, that lu: did not ll1etlp on the night the papefs 

W8!e destroyel\, tm' beipg or!i\l1ed not to speak of Kevf'(ty" death made 

/Ii m tl\Oughtfl,l), /!.nd ~e WDI! IIfraid of the h,alf-pre,e.u., of De l1~inhard, and 

of ~U. He dill /lotknQW that N'LelllLn too~ away D~ Rei1lfu!.rd..l& 

~'ord II@. gun at z,ac la Pluif. lle rllpe!lted t.)Je account given by 

.Faille, Qf being sjlni ];Iy Capt, »'.Or.O'n1len, to Fort Willi(l'!'fl, ,l!lld oC 
making a d~'l\ .. ation upl,ln 03tl1 before Lord Selk!7k. 

)!fr_ Vaf.lJ,I'l!n.'-Sin~ you made it, I ask you, upon your olllli, whll" 

ther you did I)ot my Qf hear Faille say, that, wl1eu you saw the flag, of 

.K~veny on the island, JOfO wanted to gQ on iiI/ore to tllke J(evenll, but 

that yO'IJ and Faille would not let him? 

La Pointe,-Neither Qne Dar tbe otljer. l. never said so, noT did J 
~!'er here FlLille say 80_ 

]f,. Varifelson.-Npr told allY .one that you hellrd .Faille say 50? 

La Pointe.-I never 'heard it, oar did,I elltr teJlllilY person whauo­

,ever tha t I had beard it. 

AUGIlSTIN POIRIER .dit DE LORGE Wa9 ne"t sworn, and as his ed­

.enee is ft.atly pootradicte<J Qn the defl'oce, it is wholly given_ 

Poirier dit De. Lorg~.-In 1816, I was in the Indian tel'1'itory with 

,Coli.he Duaharme in a hrigade, and I met the Prisoner lit the bar, be­

low the Dalles, in the Rivel' Winnipic. I bearel ))[,. )ff'Lellan ask 

Ducharme, wp"tber, on our way, we had heard any thing of llIr.l(fl'e­

ny, and Colishe ij,oswered," yes, thai he had seen and spoke to him." 

The Prisoner then allked, "how does Kevf1IY do to live P" Colishe an­

Bwered, .. sometill)llS he purchases vlctullb frOD) the Indians, sometimes 

~, they give, ,aoll sometimes );Ie sleals them." Upon which 111' Lellan 
laid, .. very good, 'tis well, he will not steal a long while; to-morrow 

." by this time, hill JJU~jlleas will be done, perhap~ he may never see t4e 

/' sun set again!' 

The Court WI(., Iller adjourned JQ'T half an hour. 

Upon re-assembling, t~e Prisoner's counsel stating that they had no 

1,uestions to put.to Poirier dlt De Lorge. 

FREDERIC)!: DAMIEN HJ:'URTER was sworn, and deposed, that he 

"'liS at Bils de la Riviere in 1316, and that he knew the Prisoner and 

Mr. Alexander M'Donell, whom he believed had gone away to the 

Rocky Mountains. He did not know whether those mountains were in 

~he Unil6d Blales of America. W itnes8 knew lhe bllml-writing or the 
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Prisoner, and beiug questioned wbether he ever .tiW in a letter any 

thing in the Prisoner's hand·writing, lifT. Stua'rt objected to the ques­

tion as illegal. The Attorney Geneml contended, that having proved 

lIfr. M'Donell, to whom the letter was addressed, to be beyond the 

Rocky Mountains, he was entitle,l to put it, but the Court said 'till the 

Crown proved that he was beyond the jurisdiction of this Court sec.on­

daTY evidence could not be received. Mr. Solicitor General contended, 

from the peculiarity of this case, enou~b had been proved to constitute 

this secondary evidence the best which the It8ture of the case would 

admit. The Chief Justice said, "the answer is clear, if you only read 

" the statute upon which the indictment is founde.l," and then read the 

-clause' providing that offences" ,hall be tried in the same manner," &c. 

Attorney General.-lt i~ not proved by the witnes~, but that Mr. 

M'Donell is in the United States. Butl should contend that, in proving 

he had gone into an unexplored countrf, we have proved Buffici~t to let 

in tbe evidenee we present. We wish to prove by a person who saw 

the letter, what its contents are, and we offer tbis as the best evidence in 

the absence of the lettel', and under the impossibility of prodl:lcing 

M'Donell, to whom it was addressed. 

Chiif Justice Sewell.-The basis of your argument, Mr. Allorney 
General, I take to be tbis, that ftIr. ,~1' DoneU is not able to be pro­
duced from peculiar circumstancllIl. If I am in error, set me right. If 

that is your position, we reply, you have not proved that he is out of the 

jurisdiction of this Court, and till you do that, you know, equally as 

well as the Court, that you can Mt be permitted to introduce secondar!j 

testimony. 

Attorney GeneTal.-The basis of the argument upon which I co~tend 

for the right of producing -this evidence is, that the best evidence, name­

ly" the letter itself, is lost. That being the case, I submit, in examining 

a person corr.p~tent to speak of its contents, (rom having actually seen 

the letter, that I am offering evidence which ought to be admitted. 

However, I will proeeed with the examination, and when I come to 

prove the contents of the letter, my learned friends ean object. 

The examination beillg continued, Mr. Heurter stated, tbat he SBW 

a letter written in September, 1816, addressed to the partner in charge 

at Bas de-Za Rivie-re with the signature of DF;ASI!;, on the third page of 

which there was some writing of the Prisoner's in pencil. Mr. Stua1il 

appealing to the Court, was answered, that all that had comef;mt as yet 

was undoubted evidence,.as the contents of the writing was n.ot as yet 

attempted to be made e.vidence. The Attorney General ohserved, that 

he should first trace the letter to the hands of Mr. M'Donell, and then 

prove its contents. Mr. Reurter continued, that Jose, and a man nameli 
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Allemagnej brought the letter and gav~ it to Mr. M'Donell, and the 

next day he saw -a letter opeD on Mr. M'Donell's table, which he read. 

'r4e Court enquired how he knew this to be the letter brought by Jose. 

as it was not open or examined by the witness at the moment it was 

brought. Mr. Heurter replied, .'c I canaot wholly_ say th'tt. it was the 

.. same }ettllr, I am not quile sure that it ~as." 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Very well, now remember, you are not. to 

speak as to the contents of that part'of any lettev which was in the Pri­

soner's hand-writing, w~ther it may make faT, or against, him. You, 

saw a letter brought by Jose, and given by him and one named AlIe­

magne, to Mr.1W'Donell. On the next day, you saw a letter on the 

table of Mr. M'Donell, and in that letter was something in the hand­

-writing of the Prisoner at the bar; what that ,something ,was, (d 'pre­

sent at least,) you must not tell ns. 

The examination proceeded by MR. HEURTER repeating that he saw 

Jose deliver the letter t02lfr. M'Donell, who, according to report, was 

on the other side of the Rocky Mountains. 

Attorney-General.-Next day' you S:J,W it on 1I1r. M'Dolltlli~ table? 

Chief Justice Sewell.-Stop, Mr. Attorney-General. Do not talk of 

tile letter npon Mr. M'Donell's table. I stopped the witness when yau 

,vere questioning him upon this point before, and and he very properly 
said that he could not say that the letter, which he spoke of -as having 
seen on Mr •. M'Donell's table, was the letter which was the day before 

brought by the India~. Ask him about a letter, 01' fifty, if you think it 

important, hut not about the letter, as he has fairly, and honourably to 

hilllself, told us that he cannot say that it was the same letter. 

Mr. BeuTter repeated that on Mr. M'Dbnell's table he saw a letter 

trom Mr. Dease, addressed to the partner in charge at Bas de la Riviere, 

but that he had not seen it since, nor did he know what had become of 

it. He added, that Mr. M 'DoneU was then the partner in charge, and 

that it was generally understood that he was lWW beyond the Rocky 

Mountains. 
'Aitorney-General.-l submit that we have now roewn sufficient to 

entitle us to produce evidence of the eanients of -this letter. This wit~ 

ness saw a letter brought by Jose, one of the three persons in whose 

company Keveny was left, the last time he was seen, and .that it was not 

only brought in the month in wh1ch Ke'leny was murdered, but written 

and dated in that month. We have shew that the day following a let­

ter, (whether the letter, is, I think, a question for the Jury,) was seen 

by the witness on the table of Mr. M'Donell, addressed to the proprie­

tor in charge of the post at Bas de la RivieTe, and that .lfr. J.I'Domll 

was t,hat proprietol·. We have shewlI that in this letter, written by 
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Mr. Deese, there WI!8 It pO$tsr:i'ipt in tlre hat1~.\vrititJg of t1.e Prisoner,. 

and. ,,,e ha~ finally shewn, that, according to general report, M.,.. M'Do" 
nell, to whoID, as proprietor in charge, the leHer Wlls adrlres~d, and intO' 

whose ponession it came, haB disappeareil, Rnd i~, aceording to general 
beHef, where it is impossible to teach him, namely, in the wilderness 

beyond the Rocky lVlountains. I thtrefore snbmit, that we are entitled 

to put to tbis witness tbe question, "wliat did you Be'e, in the haud­
n writing ohbe Prisoner, contkined in a letter froID Mr. Deese, dateil 

•• in Seprrm'ber, 11H6, and addressed to the JlTaprietorin ~bar§C at Btl, 

" de lit RitJiire J" and I also cOt!tend, tbat it ;s It question properly be­
lunging to tbe Jury to <Jetermine, what irrlluenee a letter beitJg brought 

tbe very day before by Jose, ougbt to have I1pon their minds, in decid­

ing, whetber the letter contaming tbe hand-writing oftne Prisoner, wa~ 

not the 7:ery letter brought by the Indian, wlto was present at the time 

of tbe murder ! 
'Oltief Justiet Seluell.-It is not necessary,lJIr. Stuart, that you shoula 

trouble youdelf. Let U8 look at the case lis at tbis moment it present~ 

itself to our viel'v, and wltat does all tbat tbe Crown ot!i!;ers conle!ld 

tbey have pro,ed amount to P Why to this, and to nothing more. They 

have proved that Mr. M' Donell being at the post of Bas de fa Rivit?re, 

Ii letter was brought addressed lothe pl'oprietOl' in charge', and that, on 
the following day, this wi1ncSl< saw, upan the table of Mr. M'Donell, II 
letter from a M.,., Dease, containing a paragraph in the hand-writing of 
tbe PrisOTte'r. So much for the letter. With tespeet to 11-11'. M'Dfmell, 

tbe evidence goes this length, that, according to common report, or 
general belief, he is on the otber side of the Rocky MOUMl!:fns. UpOb 

sbewing tbis, yOt! ask to prove, by this witness, the contmls of 11. lettel' 

tbat was once in bis pOl!session. Why should you be allowed to do so ~ 

you lI3.y, "because' we cannot produce any better evidenee." But YOll 

eannot substantirrte tbis assertion legally. Prima/acie, better evidenCe" 

i« in youI' power. Mr. M'Dondl i~, upon your o'l'\'n sbewing, withm 
the jurisdiction of Ihil Court. 

AttorneyGeneral.-He is beyond tbe Rocky MiJuniains. 

'Chief Justice Sewcll.-It is no matter where he is-, i(you do lIot shew 

tbat be is beyond the power of a process of this Court, under the act for 

extending our jurisdictton to the trial and punishment of oIfenOl!8, com­

mitted in the Indian territories, you are certainly not prodUCing the 

best evidence in prodUCing this witness.. The act provides for tbe issuinr; 

of subprenas, and the enforcing obedience to them, and also declare!! 

that all offences tried under, or by autbority of, this ad" shall be tried 

.. in the same manner, as if tbe same had been committed within the pIJ­

.. t·mc-:e." You would not, I am sure, ask !uch an an admis~ion for ~ 
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corulary evidence on a trial ror an offence committed in this district, and 

the act of 180S being positive, we cannot allow it, on an investigation 

into one charged to have been committed in the Indian territory, because 

the one and the other are equally within our jurisdiction, or your in­

dictment must fall • 

.Attorney-General.-It would be perfectly nugatory to issue Ii subpamll 

to be served beyond the Rocky Mountains. 1 imagine no person, ex­

cepting Sir Alex. M'Kensie, would be found to ungertake the journey. 

Chief Justice Sewell.-I "atmot help that. If the legislature has llone 

right, or if it has done wrong, in passing this act, I am not to en'quire. 

We sit here, not to make or amend laws, but to administer such as are 

made. 

The wit!less continued that he saw M'Lellan at Rell'River, after he 

had heard of the death of Keveny, and was informed by him that he had 

Jeft De Reinhard at Lake La Pluie, to send him word to Fort 1>ouglas 

if Lord Selkirk advanced towards Lake La Pluie. Also, that he saw a 

trunk anll portahle wl'iting-desk at Red River, helonging to Keveny' 

having brass-plates on them, marked with his name. Th" Prisoner also 

told witness, that De Reinhard had sent him an order to buy a horse for 

him, and that use couldbe made of the things which were in Keveny's 

trunk for that purpose, as De Reinhard had property enough belonging 
to him, without taking goods from the store on his account. Mr. Heur­

teT also added, that wanting to take away De Reinhard's trunk tf) where 
he lived, the Prisoner told him he had better take Ke11eny's trunk and 

desk, for fear the English or Red River colony people might soon come 

to the fort and recognize them. 
Upon his cross-examination by lI'lr. Stuart, the witness could not 

recollect whether any body was present at these conversations, but it 

might be the case. He admitted that whilst in the regiment De Rein­

harll was a friend of his. Mr. Stuart enquiring where it was he received 

Keveny's baggage, the Chief Justice suggested that he had not said he 

rceeilled it, but that he had seen a trunk and desk at Red River; the 

question being put again, Mr. Heurter answered" at Bas de la Rit..ere." 

[Mr. Sinart assured the Court he would not put an irrelevant ques­

tion, but the examination of this witness (to whom he had a series oC 
questions to put) wouhl prove to be very important to the Prisoner, and 

his counsel must be permitted to take their own 'course in conducting it· 

The Chief Justice remarked, that the Crown, the counsel for the Priso­

ner, and the Court, he trusted, were equally desirous of ~tr;ct and im­

partial justice, but if a real or imaginary difficnlty appeared, the Court 

who could have no object but to render justice to both parties, mns' 

understand 50 that it might not, by miSConceiving, fall into an error. J 
Q'if 
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lJIr.' HeuTter coutinued, that between the 15th aud 17th September, 

I8t6, he there received a trunk and a portable desk, with the name oC 
J{eveny on them, from Jose, who said that having met De Reinhard, ho 

bad desired him to deliver them to the witness, but that the Pruoner 

was not at Bas de la Riviere at the time. He further stated that the 

same evening /Ie sent them into Mr. M'Donell's room, who refused to 

receive them, although told that De Reinhard had sent them, and the 

next morning when Mr. HeUTter was out, they were sent hack to hu 
room, 'and enquiry being made why they were sent back, Mr. M'DoMll 

told witness that a party would be going to Red River in a few days, 

and he migllt send them 'there, which eventually was done, the witness 

taking his departure for Red River in the same brigade. Witness re­

mained at Fort Douglas about ten days, and the conversation with 
111' Lellan (page S1S.) occurred two or three days afier his arrival there, 

and that was five or six days after reaching there himself. Mr. Heurter 

stated that he did buy a horse for De Reinhard, whose wages enabled 

him to keep one in that country, paying for it, according to the custom 

of trade there, in goods. He also said that he never received an order 

from the Prisoner, for six yards of cloth. 
JOCELYN WALLER, Esquire, (Clerk of the Crown) proved the RECORD 

of De Reinhard's conviction for the murder of OWEN I(EVl:NY, which 
beillg read, closed the case on the part of the Crown. 

DEFENCE. 

NICHOLAS DUCHARME being sworn, deposed that in 1816, he wal 
the guide of a North-West brigade, destined for Swan River, in which 
was a man name,l Poirier dit De Lorge, whom he had known for ten 
yeal's; that whilst they were together they met the Prisoner with four­

teen others below the Dalles, that on seeing them they put to shore, 
Mr. Archy said, " Good morning, Ducharme, how long is it 5ince you 
" left the Grand Portage J" to which he answered, .. it is Dot a little 
" time, as the winds were frequent and contrary." Some nnimp(l)riant 

conversation being detailed, Mr. Vanfelson proceeded to question wit­
ness very pointedly, and his answers being in direct opposition' to the 
evidence on the part of the Crown, both the interrogatories and replies 
are given at length. 

Mr. Vanfelson.-During that time did M'Lellan say anything abo~t 
Kct'eny']. and if he said the lecut thing about him, what was it? 
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Ducharme.-He did not say one single word to me about Keveny, nor 
to the people all the time I was there. 

Mr. Vanfellon.-As you were the guide, if the Prisoner had said any 
thing about him, it would have been to you? 

Duch(lTme.-Yes, certainly, but he did not say a single word about 
Keveny. While M'Lellan was taking what he wanted from my canoe, 
II Half-breed came and asked me .. whether I had seen Keveny," and I 

told him that I had seen him above the Dalles." I have said that for 
ten years, but, I believe, it is twelve that I have known De Lorge. H~ 
always bore an indifferent character amongst us, a very bad character. 

Mr. Vanfelson.-According to all that you have known, and have 

seen, of De Lorge, is he worthy oC belief, or would you believe him upon 

his oath 'J 
Ducharme.-No, I should not,believe him upon his oatb. 
Mr. Vanfelson.-At the time that your brigade met ~'JI[' Lellan's ca­

noe, did he ask of you, " Colishe," whether you had learnt any thing on 

the way about Keveny; and, if you replied, what it was that you said? 
Ducharme.-No, he asked me nothing, Mr. Archy did not speak 

to me about Keveny. 
Mr. Vanfelson.-Did Mr. Arclly ask you, "how Keveny managed 

for his living?" and did you answer that" sometimes he stole, and some­
times he bought victuals?" 

Ducharme.~No, not at all; neither one nor the other. 
Mr. Vanfelson.-Did you hear M'Lellan say" good, very well, he 

"will not ~teal a long while, to-morrow by this time his busineis will 
.. be done," or any thing else about Keveny. 

Ducharme.-No, not at all, Mr. Archy dill not say a single word to 

me about Keveny. I am sure of it. 
Mr. Vanfelson.-I should now wish .De Lorge to be brought into 

Court, that the jury may be satisfied the witness on the part of the 

Crown, is the same that this man has reference to, when he says he is 

not worthy of belief on his oath. 

AugusUn Poirier dil De Lorge came into Court. 

Mr. Vanfelson.-Is this De Lorge, of whom you spoke? 

Ducllarme.-Yes. 
Mr. Vanfelson.-At the time the half-breeds enquired, " whether 

" you had seen Keveny," and that ,yO? answered, "yes, he is above 
the Danes," did the half-breeds shout for joy, and did they say" that 

.. he would not steal a long time?" 
Ducharme.-No, certainly not. That was all that was said. There 

WIIS no shout amongst 21'I'Lellan's people, nor any at all. [11fr. Vanfel-
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son begged the Court to notice that, as it referred to La Pointe's testi-

mony (page S04.)] . 
Mr. Vanfelson.-By what name are you known genera\ly !n the In­

dian country. 
Ducharme.-I am generally kll.own in the Indian country by tho 

name of Col'ishe Ducharme. 

Upon his cross-examination he admitted-that he had been for twen­

ty-six years in the service of the North-West Company, by whom h. 

was well paid, and remained with them-confirmed his former testimo­

ny, that M' Lellan did not speak to him, or anyone about Keveny­

that though in going down he saw, as he supposed, the deceased's tent, 

he did not tell Mr. Archy he had seen it, nor say a word about Keveny. 

Being questioned as to how he knew De Lorge to be a bad character, he 

repJie(1, be generally had that character, and he considered him to bi 

EO, as he had deserted from his canoe.-[The Attorney-General enquir­

ing what he had done tha\ was bad'J The Court saki, enquiry might be 
made generally as to his means of knowing his character, but not as to 

particular acts. Mr. Stuart disclaimed any wish to oppose the mode of 
examination, although illegal; adding, that after the broad manner in 

which De Lorge had been attacked, he could not complain, of any ques­

ti~n by which the Crown might endeavour to support its witness. Th& 
Chief Justice again laid down the rule of law upon the subject, explaining 
it by another relative to a defendant'S character: " If a defendant enabls 

" a prosecutor to examine evidence to character, by calling witnesses ill 
.. support of it, even then the prosecutor cannot examine into partieu­

" lar facts." The Attorney-Gelleral dissenting from this, being an appli­

cable authority, eome further conversation took place in the cl)urse of 

which 1U:r. Stuarl complained of the Attorney-General', representing 

that it was only because he deserted, that De Lorge was considered a 
bad man-stating, that he had been proved to be unworthy of belief 

upon oath, by this witness, wh(>~e character would be supported by the 

mOBt respectable testimony. The Chief Justice briefiy went over the 

f;round again, concluding: " If you have fifty witnesses, bring them af­

" terwards, to attack those of the Crown, or to support your own if at­

" tacked, which is an alteration from the practice heretofore, and I 
.' think a very proper one!'] 

The cross-examination being continued, the witness stated that he 
saw the tent about nine in the morning, and met M'Lellan about two 

in the afternoon; that he was not surprised at seeing a canvaSl tent, a8 

they are common among the French, though not among the Indians; 

that he did not see any other that trip, and he did not tell M'Lellan th_ 
circumstance. 
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1Mr. Stuart proposing to call Colonel Fraser to support DIlM(!rme's 

Ilbaracter; Mr. Solicilor-General r~marked that tbe course was nOllel, tbo' 

perhaps in thi3 case very necessary; bis learned friend's witness appear­

ing to be an exception to .the general rule, which considers evidel)ce and 

character to be good, till they are attacked; and being so, be supposed 

a good cbaracter was to be given, from a conviction that tbe contrary 

migbt be attempted to be establisbed. Mr. Vanfelso'll adverted to Du­

eharme being a stranger, and contended for tbe right o(shewing bis cba­

racter to tbe Jury, to wbich the Court assented, the Solicit»1'-General 

observing, that be dare say, it was very necessary.] 
COLONEL ALEXANDE'R FRASER being sworn, stated, that he bad, 

known Nicholas (commonly called Colishe) DtlchMme upwards of twen­

ty years, and that his general character was most excellent.-Upon be­

ing cross-examined, he stated, that he bad been for almost twenty years, 

but wa~ not now, a partner in the North-West Company, and had been 

in the Indian territory more than twenty years. 

FRAN<;OIS TAUPIER was sworn, and deposed, to tbe general bad 

cbaracter of De Lorge, whom he bad known for fifteen or sixteen years, 

stating, that no aile had a good opinion of bim, but he was generally 

looked upon as one in wbom it was impossible to bave confidence, or to 

believe even upon his oath. He described a light canoe, (allege,) to be 
about twenty-seven or eight feet in length along the bottom, and its u­
lual burden to be eight paddlers, and two or three bourgeois, with tbeir 
provision and baggage, and that it wo,ulu be impossible to make pro­

gress with sixteen men with baggage and provisions-and that even to 

follow tbe windings of the shore would not be safe. The arrangement 

of a canoe he thus described: 

F. Tallpier.-In each canoe there is generally a guide who is mas­

ter of the canoe, even when the bourgeois are on board. When there i~ 

no guide it i~ the front man (d6vunt) who is master. If the bourgeois 

were inclined to load the canoe more than the guide thought right, he 

bas power to prevent it. If the guide would not take a man on board. 

be can not go, for tbey know the route, and are always masters in the 

canoes. When the gentlemen have any orders to give, it is to the guide, 

or to the front man, (devallt.) I never knew tbe gentlemen and tbe 

men to converee together on the way, unless from necessity, and it is 

not the custom for the men to chatter to one allother, for by talking they 

are prevented from getting on. It is hard enougb work to paddle, and 

whilst paddling, it would be ncces~ary, to speak 1'ery loud, in order to 

understand one anotber. Ir there were three men upon a bar they could 

flot paddle. 

Chief Justice Sen·ell.-Or what size is a bar? 



F. 7'aupier.-That of the bourgeois, is or the size of/ouY' feet. Those 

of the men are, three feet and a half, next to the bourgeois, and dimin­

ishing from one to the other. I am ,a canoe-maker. 

Cross-examined, he stated: "All tbe servants of tbe NOTtl .. WeJt 

" Company were good oharacters, he knew only De Lorge wbo was 

" not;" that he was .. six or seven years in the service of the North,. 

.' West Company, and then deserted;" and that" he was Dot discllarg­

.. ed for bad conduct." Being asked what he understood by desertion, 

he replied, " it appears to me a man deserts, when two sleep together, 

" and in the morning one is found to be gone, and to have stolen ~he 

.. hat of the otber; I slept with De Lorge, and when I woke I found he 

" was gone off, and my hat with him."-He also sta,ted, that he never 

saw more tblln eigbt men, and the bourgeois, in a canoe like M'Lellan's. 

Ma. JAnES C. M'T A visa was sworn, and deposed, that being for­

merly a clerk to tbe Nortll-Wesl Company, he knew De Lorge, and bad 

from his sitnation, means to know his general ~haracter, which he deg­

gribed as being that of a very disaffected servant, and not trust-worthy; 

indeed so bad, that he (l'[r. M'Tavish,) would not believe him upon his 

gath. Being called upon by the Court to explain what he meant by dis­

effected, Mr. jl1'Tat';s/l. said, " he had always found him a displeased 
.. and discontented servant-dissatisfied with every thing that was done 
u and extremely disaffected to the interests of his employer1;." 

Upon his cross·examination, he stated, that they always endeavour­

ell to select the best men they could for employment, and that De Lorge 

having been some years in their ~ervice, deserted and entered that of the 

Hudson's Bay Company, or Earl Selkirk, before his engagement witb 

the North-West had expil'ed.-In answer to a suggestion that <1 person 

quitting the service of the North-West Company, and entering into that 

of the Hudson's Bu.!! Company, or Lord Selkirk, would not stand high 

with the!ormer-ftIr. J1I'Tavish said, that he would if he had finished 

bis engagement liJ,;e an honest man, but not otherwise. He stated, that 

persons gellerally enter the North-West Company's rervice for a term of 

years, before they go up to the Indian terdtory.-l\:Ir. Atlerney-General 

intimating, that it was not unusual for dissatisfied or di3qjJecled persons 

to quit the service previously to their indentures eJ!;piring, Mr. M' Ta­
'l'ish declared, tbat during eleven years that he was employed by them, 

he had known but few persons do so ; and among those who did, but 

very few who were honest in other matter". Enquiry being made how 
a person dissatisfied with their service could be relieved from it, except 

by what l1fr. M'Tavisli called desertion; he replied, "very easily for 

h if perrons go lip to tbe Indian territory, and do not find it suit them". 



319 

" upon applying to the com pliny, they are permitted to return as pitt­
U sengers in the first canoes that are goin~ to llIonlreal." 

TiLe Owrt was then adjourned till eight o'clock Monday morning. 

Monday, 15th June, 18ig. 

MR. JEAN CREBA.SSA being sworn, stated that he was, and had 

been, a clerk to the North-West Company for sixteen years. That in 

the summer and autumn of 1816, being stationed at Bas de la Riviere 

Winnipic, he had a knowledge that towards the latter end or .August 

Keveny arrived there a prisoner, in custody of Charles De Reinhard, and 

some others, at about two in the afternoon, and departed the next 

morning for Lac la Pluie, whence he was' to be sent on to Montreal, by 

the usual route of Fort William. The persons who went with him were 

named Lacerte, La Plante, lVlichel Martin, Vassall, and Vaudrie, nei­

ther Jose, De Reinhard, or Mainville, (who was at the fort when he 
went away) accompanied him, and, that when Keveny arrived, there 
were not, with the exception of twoold Canadians, who worked at the 
farm and in the garden, any persons hut Bois-brulis at Bas d~ la Riviere, 

which was distant from Lac la Pluie ahout seven days march for a light, 

and ten for a loaded can,oe. Mr. Crebassa continued, that four or five 

days after 'Mr. Alexander M'Donell arrived there, staid one day, and 

then proceeded to his usual post .. Red River," the capture of Fort Wil. 

liam by Lord Selkirk not being ,known till four or five days afterwards, 

when the news was brought by Mr. StlLar!, who came purposely to com· 

municate the information to Bas de la Riviere, and the other North-West 

posts; and the circumstances he,ing' communicated to Mr. Jl.I'Donell at 

Red River, he arrived at Bas de la Riviere six or seven da~ after the 

information had heen forwarded to him. 

Mr. Stuart.-Did the capture of Fort WiUiam occasion any extraor· 

dinary feeling at Bas de la Riviere 'J 
Mr. Crebassa.-It occasioned great aLixiety lest the ordinat"y supplies 

~hould not come, as Fort William is the usual channel through whicu 

supplies come to the interior, and very great injury was apprehended to 

the trade. Personal injuries were also anticipated to the partners, and 

oihers accustomed to trade with tl~e North-West Company. We appre­

hended ~reat danger from the IVant of provisions, as, if we did not reo 
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eould not barter with the Indians; and, if we had not wherewith to 

buy food from the Indians, we must certainly stan"e. We were alBo in 

want of nets for fishing, as we depend a' good deal on that source fol" 

supplies in that collntry. It was in consequence determined to fit out a 

canoe, to go in the direction of Fort William, and ~ee whether any ca­

noes were coming into the interior. This canoe proceeded the day after 
hIT. 1J;I'Donell's arrival, and, as it was considered an ohject of sufficient 

importance- that the principal partner at the station should go, M'Le[· 

Ian wellt with it. There also went in the canoe, Cuthbert Grant, Jo­

;eph Cadotte, Charle! De Reinhard, M'Lelian's body servant, Rochon, 

one Lorrain, Michel Martin, Le Vasseur, La PlaTlte, Vassalle, Vaudrie, 

and some others, I believe. 

[In answer to an obsen'ation from the Chiif Justice, that he had said 

.Michel "Warlin went with Kereny, the witness said, " Hedid go with Ke­

" veny, but when Mr. ltI'Donell put Keveny in charge of Faille and 

.. others, Martin returned to Bas de Ta Riviere, and now accompanied 

" 111' Lellan."l 
Chiif Justice Sewell.-Did llIainrille go with them? 

Mr. Crebassa.-Yes, he did-. 

Mr. Crebassa being questioned by Mr. Stuart, continued that a canoe 
can average forty"five miles per day-that M'Lettan returned to Bas (It. 
la Riviire (twelve or fifteen days after leaving it) without De Reinhard, 
and, on the next day but one after his arrival, he went to his station at 

the Red River forks. Witness knew Hcurter, a clerk in the North-West 

Company's service, who ha<lleft Bas de la Riviere before M'Lellan had 

arrived there, in a brigade for Red River, where he was to winter, and 

the fil'st ti,ne he saw him afterwards was at the Forks of Red River in 

the 11Iarch following, and he was then in the service of the North-West 

Company. Mr. Orebassa stated that it was not usual to have hand-cuffs 

at the North-West posts, nor were there any at Bas de la Riviere when 

Keveny was there to his knowledge, and, as chief clerk, had there been 

any, he thought he must have known it. When Keveny first left Bas rk 

la Riviere witness heard lIPLellan tell Lacerte, and the others, to tah 
good care of him, and treat him kindly. 

Upon cross-examination the witness stated that Ket'eny was appre­

hended by De Reinhard four or five leagues higher up than Bas de la 

Rit-iere. He repeated that there was no other object for sending the 

canoe, and admitted that each man had his gun, according to the custom 

of that country. hI'Lellan's directions to be kind, &e. to KefJeny, he 

said were given to the Bois-brides, who are half Indians, of those he 

said Lacerte had been a~ lI'Iontreal before, but for the others he did not 
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could not have taught him much of the way, as be went when a child, 
to whioh lYr. Crtbassa saiiI, " He went down when a child, and returned 
,~ ,vhen 8. man.;' 

Mil. JAMES C: M'T AVISH was a1l;ain sword, and having stated that 
Fort William was taken on tbe l.'3tb of August, 1816, was desired by 

Mr. Vttrifeison to relate /iowlt was takeri, the SoliCitor General ohjected, 
~aying, .. Wbat effect can the manner in which it might he taken have 

.. upon a charge of accessary before or after a murder pi, The Chief 

;Tustice considering the fact ali-ea(ly obtaine<1l1s sufficierit, ¥r. Vanfelson 

explained, tbat, in his humble opinion, it was of great importance to 

corroborate Mr. Crebassa's testimony, by provicg tbe manner in which 

Fort William was captured, inasmuch as the sending off tIiis canoe had 

been represented by the Crown officer~, as the result of a conspiracy a­

gainst the life of Keveny. Tbe evidence in continuation was, that at tbe 

time of forcible possession being takeii of the fort, the canoes with sup­

plies were all ready to start, but were not permitted to do so by Lord 

Selkirk, and that t~eir detention expose<l the Clerks and servants of th. 

North West Company, in the Indian country, to starvation. 

Upon his cross-examination, Mr. M'fal'ish stated, that he repeated­
ly applied personally to Lord Selki'rk, aDd also by writing, for leave to 
send off the canoes, but he considered that" he could not permit them. 
" to proceed." Mr. M'TrJ",ish added, " I do not recollect that he gave 
" any rellson," which gave rise to the following discussion. 

AUorney'General.-Had you heard of the destruction of governor 

$emple and his people ?' 

Chief Jus/ice SCU'tlf.-'No, !lfr; AI/orney-General, do bot attempt to 

put that question; it eRn have nothing to do with it. 

Atlorney-Gcrteral.--I beg the Court's pardon; I want to refresh this 

man's memory; perhaps he may remember that the circumstance of the 

iestruciiort of governor Semple, was assi;,;ned as the reao;on why the ca­

noes were not permitte!l to proceed. The stoppage of the csnoes is in 

evidence if we can prove that a reason for stopping them was gh'en, 

have we not n rlght to place it before the Jury, so that they fIlay judge 

whether it was not ajuslifi~ation. 
Ohief J'tslice 8ewcll.-We are nO'l. trying Lord -8elkirk. The Pris­

oner shews the fact that the cnnoe~ wete sbpped. why they were stopped; 

~an be of no comequence to this tda!. It cannot alt~r the fact. Tbe 

rea~on the Prisorier went off in the canoe has bepn ;tated to be that, 

Fort William being taken, they were Apprehensive that their supplies 

might be !topT'~d- They have now gone a .step fal·ther, and proved tbat 

the canoes were stopped, and tbat the supplie8 did not go up. This i! 
B,;r. 
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.. fact, which can not be varied as to the Prisoner, by any rt880B 

being assigned for preventin.g them going up. 
Allo.me!l-Oeneral.-I beg leave to submit, that if it is necessary to 

tbe defence to prove that the canoes were stoppfd, it may perhllps be or 

equal importauce to the Crown to shew that they were properly stop­

ped. 
hIr. Sttlarl.-I shoul.! like to know what ditrerence it was to make 

to the Prisoner if he ,,,as to starve, whether it was because the canoel 

were rightfully or wrongfull!l stopped. 
Attorney-General.-l have no desire to waste time in argument. I 

shall repeat the question, and the Court will dispose of it as they think 

proper. 
Had you heard of the death of governor Semple, and the deslrucliotl 

of hi~ people, and was not that assigned to you as a reason for not per­

mitting the canoes to proceed? 
Chief Justice Sewell.-l can not allow it, lilT. Attorney General. 

Were I to do so, the gentlemen on the other side would wish, and be en­

jitled, to go into their history Elf this transaction, and where should we 

end? and besides all which, it has not the most remote bearing on the 

ease. 
MICHEL MARTIN (after being questioned as to his religious beJief) 

was then sworn, and depoRed that upon the invitation of La Plante to 
go higher up with him, and De Reinhard to take some one prisoner, he 

went and, having taken Keveny, they returned directly to Ba& de la 

Ririire, where they slept. The next day the party set out with him 

for Lake La Pluie, in lIDO small canoes (there being 710 large one.) 

[His narrativp. of occurrences from this moment being directly op­

posed to the cddence on the pal·t of the Crown, is given in his own 

words, only divested of frequent repetitions and unimportant digres­
,ions.} 

lIfarlin.-In the (two small) canoes there were La eerte, La Plante. 

Vassall, VaUilrie, and I, and Lacertc told us thatllI'Lellan'sorderswere 

to take grf'at care of Keveny. When we kft Bas de la Riviere, I did not 

see any Iwnd-cvffs in the canoe, but we afterward~ found some in Keve­

?IY's canoe, and at the distance of tlVO or three leagues higher up these 

hons were put on him. 'We proceeded four or five days before we met 

~Ir.1I1'Donell, and he gave Keveny in charge to Faille, La Pointe, and 

Jose, to be conducted to Lakt la Pluie. lIIr. M'Donell caused his iron. 

to be taken on;, and treated him in a friendly lIlanner, and breakfasted 

with him, and ga"e him ~ome white sugar, Bnd two bottles of rum. Mr. 

M'Donell talked with Jose by an interpreter, in the Saulteux language._ 

(which I speak,) and told him, " to take great care»f the Pri!oner, RlId 
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I' take him t~ Lake la Pluie as speedily as possible." Cadotte was the in. 
terpreter, and i heard Mr. M'Donell give these orders. M'Lellan had 

not seen M'Donell before we·left Bas dela Riviere. Jose had hi. gun., 
is customary and necessary in that country, in case-provisionSJihould fail. 

Lacer/e,La Plante, Vassall, Vaudrie, and 'I, were e:ng~ges, and were or. 

dered by Mr. M'Donell to return with him to Bas de la Riviere, and 

we did so. The guide conducts the march and re.gulates the times of 

i1eparture and of embarkation, and Jose was the guide of that canoe. 

I went up with Mr. ~I'Drtftell to Red River. In consequence nf hear. 

iog that Fort William was taken, we came down to Ba. de la Riviere. 

Thence, 8S the canoes from Fo~t William had terribly failed, we depart­

td with Mr. M'LeUan to go and meet the people, and to ascertain 

whether they were coming. Defmarais was the guide and "lfT. Arell:g 

was the bourgeois (commander) of the canoe. We proceeded for Lake_ 
la Pluie, amI on the way we found Jose on a point of the River Winni­

pic. He had nothing but a shirt to 'clothe him, and he had no blanket, 

not any. Mr. M'Lellan m,ade him embark with us. 

He was asked why he was in that situation, and he told us, but I did 

not hear his complaint against anyone. Jose had his hand wounded, 

and a lump upon his head. After that, we r"und FaiUe and La Pointe 

upon an island, about half a league off, Our people enquired of them 
why they were there, and where Jose was; they replied that the In­
dian wanted to kill them, and that he had run away into the woods, but 
be saii they had beat him, 'and that he fled into the woods. Faille 6aid 

that it was not him but La Pointe who had beat him, and La Pointe 

«aid that it was Faille who had beat.Jose. Mr.lI!l'Lellan landed, and 

reproached them much for having beat the Indian, and wanting to kill 

him, and as Faille and La Pointe laughed at that, he gave Faille blow! 

with a caMe-perch. We took Faille and La Poinle with u~, Bnd the 

~ame day, we met the .people who were going to Swan River, and Co· 

lishe Ducharme was their guide. Before meeting these last, we had 

asked Faille and La Poiute where they had left J(e~eny, and ihey told 

us that they had left him upon an island. Bonhomme _1I10ntour, who is a 

half-breed, Bsked Ducharme whether he knew aily thing of Ktrveny, and 

be answered that he had seen him that day above the Dalles with the 

Indians. I had heard nothing on the way, on the parfof M'-Lellan or 

of any other person in the canoe, relative to Keveny, which 'could-indi­

cate that M'Lellan, or De Reinhard, or any other in the canoe, 'had allY 
design of killing Kweny, nor any words abuut him, until the time ,wUen 

we ruet the people of Swan Rit'er. I was on the first bar imlUediately~ 

behind the bourgeois, fl'om the moment that we had met with Jose, until 

the meeting with the Swall Ru'er people, and afterwarus I was -all the 
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~arting from the brigade, we pursued our way towards the Dallll8, aplj 

that is the usual route for going to Lake I", Pluie. 

A map oj the C()'fj,ntry was h~re presented to the JIl'j. 

We found Keveny above tbe Dalles with the Indians. During th\> 

whole of this time, after we bad parted from t\le people of Sw<!n Riv~r, 
I did not hear anyone whomsoever speak in t\le canoe, of killing 

Keveny, nor of Keveny at all. I heard nothing s&i!l by Vasseur, POI' by 

anyone else, that he would have Ke.vell!l~s boots, or bis bat. 
Mr. StuaTt.-There is now only the intermediate time, namely while 

they were in company with the brigade, to cover. During the time 

that you were with the SW;ln R\ver brigadIJ, did you hear any wort,! 

about killing Keveny J. 
Martin.-No, I did not. I did not hear any word of the kind. 

Mr. Stuarl.-If it had been saill, would you have heard it? or any 

thing similar? 
Martin.-If that or any thillg similar !;lad peen said, I silould eel'· 

tainly have heard it. 
Being questioned as to Vasseur's station, the witness answered, that. 

he paddled before the bouTg~ois, and not in the bar, nor did he aer see 
an engage paddle in the bar of ~he bourgeois. In continua~ion he ,tated, 
tbat having fifteen i,n JIlr. 1Il'Lellan's (,:al)oe, it wa~ impo>sihle to emc 

bark Keveny aDd his baggage. and he was ~herefore left to fullow in 

company with De Reinhar~ and J'!J"iIlVille, having Jose as a gtli(le, who 

was the only person amongst them (excepting Desmarais, who acted in 

the same capa~ity to J/ ':(,ellan's canoe) that knew the route. Haying 

related their encamping, he declared positively, that there was on that 

night a fire befol'e the ~ntrance of llI'Ldlcm's tent. The occ:urrenceii 

upon, and subsequent to, the arrival 0 r the small canoe, is t~us nal'l'ate<L 

JUartin.-I SlIW the ~mall canOi arrive. I was then on the beach. 

Mr. 1I'I'Lellan was n.ot there, but I do nnt know whether he was in hi& 

tent, nor where he was. \Ve set o~the next ,lay for :(,ake La Plzlic, 

and 1 always contioued to paddle in the same place. I have no know­

ledge that 111'LFlktn s4ewed a paper to De Reinhard, and said to him, 

Or to the others, that i~ \\'a,s well that Kereny had been kill~d because he 

had the power of getting King's troops to take aW\iY our la~ds from u~ 
at Req River. M'Lellan, wanted to go farther, to meet the people, bu!; 

we would not; the season was too far advanced. We remained, two 

days at Lake La Pluze, and Mr. M' Lellan then returned with the 

others to Bas de la Riviere, De Reinhard, Faille and La Pointe remai~~ 
ed at .r"ak~ 14 Pluie. The arW8 belonging to De Reinhard, namely a 
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I flid not hear any cry of joy wben we met the people of Swan Rive~. 

;lnd that they told us tbey had ~een 1):eveny," 

Upon his cross-examination, he admitted that there was talking il!­
lhe canoe, and he could not 6ay t!Jat he heard all that paised, but he re­

peated, that during the whole voyage he never heard j[weny's name 

mentioned. .Adyerting to the time when he was taken pri,oner, h~ 

said Keveny was going to fire at De Reinhard, but' tbat he (the witness) 

seized him and took his gun away, which he uncocked, an!l that there 

was a good df'ul of resistance at the time, bnt as tpey spo\j:e Engluh be 

did not understand it. I-Ie heard no orders given to burn the small ca­

noe, nor did be know why it was burnt, t40ugh be admitted there was 

blood upon it Eeing questioned as to why a callo~ should be bllrnt, he 

answered, that V"sseur said" I lIIust go and set fire to that canoe/, but 

it did not burn. He also said t4at Mr. 41f'Lellan appeare'd by hid 

countenance to be much concerned, but he heard notbing said about 

Keveny's !leath, nevel·tbeless M'Lellan did not converse with De Rtin­
liard; and the witness" SIlW very well that he did not look upon bim ip 

" tbe same light as before." Witness asserted tbat he was not known 

in the Indian territory by any other l1ame than tbat of .MicJlel .Uilrlir;. 

The Hon. 'WILLIAM BACHELOR COJ.TM~;l', Sworn. 

'The commencement of 1I1r. Stuart's examination referred to the ap­
pointm,ent of tbe special commissioners for the Indian territory. jl[,. 

·Collman noticed his appointment, and in reply to a question as ts the 

~xtent of tbe autbority possessed by him~elf and colleague, stated that 

some of the Hudspn's Bay gentlemen thougbt them,elves entitled to 

lIct as magistrates generCLlly (thoug;h he believed tbey declined acting 

whilst. he was in tpe Indian country but under a kind of protest) but 

that himself and .Mr. Fletcher were the o.nly magistracy appointed under 

the Statut" of 4.'ld GEp. III Cap. 1.'33, amI that there were only special 
~onstables, no Courts of justice, nor any gaols recngnized by la\\l. lIFr . 

. Collman continned that the Prisoner was in cOllfinemcpt at Fort Douglas, 

at the period of his arrival in July, 1817, and" he tbougqt it bis duty 

.. to see biID in his confinement, to ascertain that he was not treated 

.. with any unnece;sary degree of harsbness." He saw him the SEcond day 

(as he believed) after bis arrival, and agaln .. on the following day for 

.. the purpose of receiving a declaration whicb he had state,l be wished 

" to make." In reply to all inquiry for the declaration, lrlr. Coftman 

said •• ~' it had been filed with other papel'; witb the AttornEY' General," 

also that it was" 11 t'olllniary declaration, on the part of lIIr.lIi'L"!­

Ian." 
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tThe Chief Jus/iee n~ked the Allorney General if he had the dec)ura· 

tion, who replied, that he had, hut as .. his own declaration could not 

.. be evidence, there wa~ no neces!lity to produce it" to_ which the Chitf, 

,;Jusliee observed, though prima jacie, not evidence, yet .. reading i\ 

•• /Digbi 6Ilve 8 great deal of'time and trouble," adding, .. but ex­

.. en:ise your own pleasure," The Crown Officers still refusing it, MT' 
lituart said he should not press it if objected to, but he had thought it 

woultl he tbe ben evidence that the Prisoner had demanded the fullest in­

Y'eStigation of his conduct as well as of the ;nfol'mstion given hy him and 

his wish that the persons capable of giving evidence should be sec.red. 

The Attorney-General ob~erving, that it was no evidence at all, being 

merely the Prisoner's own rleclaratjon, which \Vas never admitted to go to 

the Jury, the Chief Justice suggested that" Jl1 'Lellanmight have taken 

.. a copy and read it in his defence, anil it would then have been before 

"the Jury." !lIr. Stuart, said the important fact, that as 600n as Iflr. 

Coltman arrived at Red River, he went to the Prisoner to receive a vo­

hmtary declaration 011 his part-was obtained, anJ, although well aware 

thltt there were techmcal objt!ctions against this paper being received in 

evidence, yet, as they were merely technical, he did not expect the 

Crown officers to object to their reading, when tHe substantial justice 

or the case would be promoted thereby. The COllrt suggested that hav­

ing as a fact that lIIr. Collman reeeh'ed at a given day the Prisonel"s 
declaration, perhaps it would not he objected that the part relative to 
recnring permns who might be evidences should be read, but 1I'Ir, Stuart 

observing, that unless the entire paper were read, he wonld prefer that 

7lQnf should be, the AI/orney-General said, " then we do not consent to 

" any part of it being read,'" and the' examination was resumed.] 

1fIr. Collman repeated, that" it \Vas not an examination of 111' Lellan 

" which he received (he having been examined before) but a declaration 

" which he stated he wished to make." 

[!lIT. Stuart asked if the Crown officers still refused to produce this 

declaration, remarking that its production would save considerable time, 

alit! the objection could only be technical." !lfr. Solicitor-General observ. 

tid, that the objec~ion of the Crown o/ficers was not a technical, but a 

nlbstantial, objection, viz ... tbat the declaration is not, nor could it 

·H legally be made evidence" but the Prisoner could make .. a similar 

"~tatement in his defence, if he thought it a(lvisable," to which the 

-AltlJrney-General added, " that to allow it to be read,' would be to dis­

"'close the King's evidence." Mr. Stuart urged tbat it would not he 

to disclose tbe King's evidence, but to 'shew. the Prisoner'8 anxiety to 

-give every information, and to h~ve every person secured who was 

likely to give any information on the subject, but the declaration being 
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rerused, he shourd proceed to shew these eirOUi1lstanees by the HiJll" 

Commissioner who recci ved it. Mr. Stuarl then_asking if.M'Lelian gavw: 

the names or-the persons who ~cre with him at the time the murder Wll1l 

~upposoo to have been committed, the Solicitor-r.eneral disclaime4 any 

wish to exclude legal testimony, but doubted whether that qu~,O'l 
could be put, to which the Chief Justice observed that it certainly might 

be obtained from Mr. Coltmtllll as evidence that in July, 1317, an account 

!lJas given to him by the Prisbner, and that it was accompanied by a 

wish that the necessary evidences for his trial might be secured, and it 

would r~main to the Jury to give this evidence what weight they though.t 
proper. The examination was then resumed.] 

Mr. Collman continued his evidence by stating the Prisoner did nilDle 

the persons who were with him in his canoe at the time the murder of 

Keveny was ~upposed to have been committed, and th:..t the last tim~ 
he saw the deceased he was with several Indians, and in company of 

Charles De Reinhard, (who had before executed a warrant against him)' 

one Mainrille, a Half-breed, and a savage named Jose, fils de la Per­

drix Blanche,-that " he requJlStetl that all these pe;sons might be se­

o. cured ami sent to Montreal to give evidence upon his trial," to wbiclJ 

Mr. Collman said he objected on account of the expense, to which the 

Prisoner rejoined that " in a case like this, expense ought not to he 

.. minded." Mr. Stuart enquiring" whetber any measures were tal..-en 

.. in consequence?" biro Collman sai,l that he felt embarrassed, but af­

ter con~ideration he thought it would be right, to make known the 

Prisoner's wish to his friends, and be knew that some steps were taken 

hy them in consequence-that it appeared to bim tbat he bad no legal 

authority to incur the heavy expense, nor had he authority to secure 

the attendance of these people at the trial, by taking them into custody, 

but that he did bring Jose to Montreal, at the expense of goverment-, 

(conceiving there was no other way of procuring his attemlance, he be­

ing at that time at large and at a distance,) thinking it material to 
have him liS a testimony. "Measures were taken, Mr. Collman stated, 

" (but not so early as he could have wished) to instruct Jose'! mind mI 

" to the nature of an oath, and it was untlet'stood (COl' a' time at leam) 

" that he was to be received as an evidence for the Crown." Jllr. StlW.1'l 

stating that bis object was to shew that after Jose waE received .as a 

lGng's evidence, he was indicted, and continued, ., I would ask 1I1r. CoU­

man, wbether be was received as King's evidence by the }(ing's lawj/UJ 

as well as by the King's commissioners J" 

Mr. Coltman.-He came down undoubtedly at the expense of tlJe 
government, under the impression that he was to be a witness, but he 

did not kllOlv for whom. l\ly own opinion, {hat he ought to be a wit-
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Mr. Justice Pyke,) an'd to the AI/orney-General, amI I had letters from 

them which certainly Iml me to consider that he was accepted as the 

King's evidence, and I aceordingly communicated the circumstance tel 

M'Lellan's ftiende. 
]Ifr. Stuart.-I beg to enquire if the Crown officers will now ;:;.dmi' 

the declaration of M' Lellan to he read to the Jury. 

Attorney-General.-We ,10 not see that it ought to he. 

Mr. Stuart.-The situation of the Prisoner was, and ,till continue! 

~o be, a very peculiar one, and in addressing myself to the Court, I 

hope not to go beyond, but I shall stl'ive to reach, the bounds of pro­

fessional dllty to their utmost extent. Fort William was taken possession 

of, and the partners of the North West Company t~ken prisoners, and 

held out, not only in ~his Indian c'ountry, but elsewhere, as rebeJs, and 

persons guilty of tlIli' highest crimes and misdemearrors. A system of 

proscription was adopted aga:imt all who differed with the stronger 

party. A system of intrigue, (which perhaps is still c'arried on,) that 

those who sit in the same room, eat at the same table, drink of the 

Same cup, should be made the instruments of mutual su,picion and 

jealousy, and every man be apprehensive lest his fello\'V shouht become 

llis accuser. Such a system as this was calculated to excite alarm any 
where, but much more in this remote country; destitutll of all those 
safeguards, which the law and its correct administration affords to us. 

Well might this system of proscription excite alarin in a country where 

the Earl of Selkirk was the only magistrate. I am not beyond the facts, 

when I say, this only magistrate was the great and only accmer, 3m1 

that his intention, and perbaps his only intention, was to destroy thia 

commercial company, who were his great rivals. A witness falls into 

biB hauds, if he does not anSWer his purpose, he is changed from a ·wit­

Ile~s to a prisoner, and indicted. Look on the other hand to Faille, La 

Pointe, and Heurter, where, prima jacie, more culpability attaches, they, 

instead of being indicted, are made witnesses. 

Mr. Solicitor-General objected, that these obsetvations were a series 

of accusations not Coun,led in fact, to which Mr. Stuart observed, that 

such round afscrtions were not decorous, nor usual, in our Courts, 

and the Solicitor-General rejoined, that lilT. Stuart was incorrect in 

throwing imputations on witnesses which were no~justified by any thing 

in evidence. The Chief J'ustice intimated to the gentlemen, that the 

Court always heard them with pleasure, hut it could not permit thig 

80rt of replication, for when the coolness of argument was forgotten, it 

was th~ duty of the Court to interfere, as well as when its legallimitll 

were exceeded-then, addressing Mr. Stua.rt, he asked" bow hy possi-
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<. bHity the course he haa adopted could beriefit his client," and added, 

.. on tbe other hand, we must remark, tbat the more eligible mode of 

.. arl'esting irregularity ill argument is to apply to tbe COllrt." Mr. 
Solicitor' Genetal explained, that his intention was merely to say, that 

the statements of his learned fdend were totally unsupported by evidence, 

and that, if investigated, he believed the reverse would be fonnd to be 

the case. The argument was resumed.] 

JWr:.Stuarl brietly recapitulated his former remarks, and continued 

as follows :--The difference.~ between the companies, to which the 

noble Earl and the Prisoner severally belon!;, are well known, and, 

without enumerating the val'ious acts of aggl'essitm which have marked 

the contest, it is sufficient to say, that it belonged, from the peculiar situ­

ation 01 affairs, to the Earl of Selkirk, the prirale prosecutor, to say 

whether an individual was to appear in Court as a witnes$, or as a Pri­
soner. Take the instance of the Indian Jose. After the faith of the gov­
er-nment was plighted, that he was to be a witness on the part of the 

Crown, after the communication of this circumstance has been made to 

the Prisoner and his friend~, from the most respectable source, who bas 

testified to the fact, suddenly the Savage is to be indicted; and we are to 

be deprived of his testimony. I do not intend to get Ollt of tbe abstract 

question, but let us nolV, for a moment, turn to the conduct of the P-ri­
soner. He calls upon the Han. Commissioner as soon as he arrives, and 
requests, (after giving bim a full account of all he knows of the transac­

tion,) that all the persons capable of being witnesses may be sent down. 

Under this rCllucst three persons were eventually sent down. Tbe Pri-

30ner, thus e~.sy as to the result, eY-peeting that these persons are to be 

witnesses for tbe Crown, waits patiently till tbey put him on his trial, 

when, suddenly, he finds himself deprived. of their testimony, b)' their 

being indicted as participators in the sallie offence. I intend to go one 

step farther. Perdrix Blanche was actually receired as an evidence for tbe 

frown by it~ officers, and uncleI' their directions, received religious instruc­

tions, yet, when upon subsequent e~amination his evidence is not found 

to be of sufficient importance to render it worth while to retain him as a 

witness, then he is immediately to be indicted, and we are to be deprived 

of his testimony. Desmarais is jlll;t the same case. He is brought down 

as a wilness, but before the trial, is included in the same indictment, but 

in a different degree. The bardsbip of the situation in wbicb the de­

fendant stands, consists in this, that, f!'Om tbe peculiar sitnation of the 

pri,'ate prosecutor, whom be will he puts into tbe indictment, and brings 

into Court as a priSO'Ilel', and whom he will he puts into tbe Subpalflll, 

an.1 brings him forward as a witness. Tbus, baving the strongest pas­

sious of the human mind, !tope amI feClr, at his commllnd, it is easy to 
~% 



conceive what must uc lhe effect of such an inBuence. Not to mention 

any names, .Lul \\hat, I would ask, distinguish the cases of three of the 

principal wit ne"es 'on the part of the Crown fwm Grant or Cadotte J 

Three are brought to the witne" hox to testify, whilst the two are to be 

arraigned anu tried at the bar. I do not accuse the noble Earl of par­

tiality, but perhaps it is not going too far to say, that, so situated, it 

would be scarcely po"ible for any man fa entirely to .livest himself of 

personal feeling, as not to be influenced in some degree, by it. Looking 

at the scenes that have been presented to our view, and presumptioft 

ll1ight lead us to imagine we discovcrcu, in the events of the Indian Ter­

?'i/ory, tbe force of this principle. The vigilence of my learned friend. 

could not extend to Red Ril'er, they must nece8sarily be dependent on 

the assistance and representations of the magistracy,'and looking at what, 

or rather who, i., that magistracy, contemplating the deep interest Rnd 

hea,'y stake he has in the events that take place there, I say, though, no 

doubt'tbe magistrate is innocent, yet tbe presumption will present it­

self that, sUITounded 11< our natures are by frailty, and exposed as our 

judgments are to influences often so secret and subtle as almost to defy 

detection, personal feeling may have bad some share in the cOUl'se oC 
procedure that bas been adopted. In conclusion, I would remark, that I 

did think, having Leen deprived of all the witnes,es on whom we had a 
right to calculat .. , the officers of the Crown would not have objected to 
the declaration of the defendant being read. Jose, on whom we confi. 

dently relied as a witness on the part of the Crown, is indicted; Desmarais 

is indicted; Grant and Cadolte a,'e indicted; and thus, deprived of our 

primary, we are compelled to resort to secondary, testimony. 

Chi'! Justice Sewell.-One point relative to Jose is establishell, name­

ly, that he was,cnt to recei;'e instruction as to the nature of an oath, 

and tbat, up to that rime, be was intendcu to be used as a witness. You 

therefore only requil'e to prove the second, namely that he was indicted. 

Allorney Genfral.--It is a little singular, I tbink, to attempt tl) 

prove by the commissioner what was done in his absence. As to this 

history of culling witne,ses, I do not know to what my learned friend re.' 

fel's. He appc1rs to speak as if witnesses hau been taken on, and thelt 

hunted oj/; to all iminuations of that kind I am completely indifferent. 

The commissioner unuoubtedly acted with gl'eat caution, bnt the Crown 
?lCter pledge,! ilself to make Jose a uitness. 

Chiif Jllstice 8C1cell,-Tb~re was a little unnecessary heat on this oc, 

casion, wbich I was son'y to observe, because, I am happy to say, it is 

.rhat we are strangers to. 1111', Stuart's position was this: the persona. 

whom we intended, and who!fl we had reason to believe the Crown pro. 

pose" to produce as uitllesses, bave been indicted, and we are thereby de­

prived of our primary, and therefore ought to be allowed to introduc;&l 
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secondary, testimony. The Crown .officers-may be assured illat I feel 

it my bounden duty, and it is my pleasure to protect them, whenever 

they are attacked; but the object of the defence was merely to shew u"~Y 

they could not produce, what is call eo, the best evidence. Here are 

five persons, say they, indicted for being present at the supposed mu,der. 

Perhaps I am not right in my co~jecture,but the jury 1/light insist upon 

their being indicted, a thollsand reasons might be assigned witbout a~­

taching blame to the Crown officers. The only necessary question is 

this; was Perdrix Blanche indicled oflerwlLrds J. 

Mr. Collman stated, " Pe'rdrix Blanthe, was (as he believed) suuse­

.. quently indicte,I"-that he saw Desmarais at Lake ia Plllie,about tbe 

24th June, and understQod, when he first sa(v them, tb;1t he was guide 

to a canoe of goods belonging to Lord Selkirk-that as positively as he 

could remember, (speaking only from memory,) he was brought as .. 

witness, by one 1I'Iichaei 111 'Don ell, an agent to Lord Selkirk; and 

there was no doubt uut Desmarais, htul since becll indicted for tbe same 

offence. Mr. Coltman's examination concluded, by his ~tating, that 

he took no step to bring Rochon down, and that he did not come down, 

Being cros~-rxamined, JIIlr. Coltman said, he had heard many reasons 

assigned why'Rochon was not b~ought down; but he was not sufficiently 

acquainted with their t!'Uth, to assert they were correet-he believed, 
he was now in the Indian tenitory. Also, tbat when it was ueemc(l 
expedient, to take Jose as a witne~s, for the Crown, what he could 

prove could not he known, as he was then unacquainted with the nature 

of an oath; but that he had 1Iot felt himself warranted, in promising 

him that TIe should be a witness, without the sanction of the Crown offi­

cers. That at a time when Jose was with the \\'itnes>cs for the defence, 

in consequence of a lettel· from the Allomey-General, \I i;iIing to have 

him (as lllr. Collman supposed) for a King's evidence, upon his applica­

tion he was prodnced by the gentlemen of the North TV est Company; 

and it had been his own opinion, which had been intimated to the Allor­

lIey-General, that he ought to be returned to the gentlemen, [l'Om whom 

he had been receh·ed, un.der an idea that he was to be a witne". Fi­

nally, Mr. Collman said, that aftcl'w:\I'(), Jose was indicted; but previ­

ously notice was given him, that he could not be received as a witness 

!,n the pElrt of the CroLt'n. 

f/tis ~videllce closed the defence. 

}IR. NOLIN and MILES ~IACDO:-!ELL, E"lLtire, were exomined by 

the Attorney' General, in 'support of D.ES LOGES' character; the formet 

said, he hat! known him three years, hut did not know enoLlgh of him 

to say, whethel· confidence could be placed in him, hut he bad never 

caught him in 11 lie. Mr. J1I(/cJO?lrll's evidence mrJ,'unted to this,II;,1. 
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but he knew nothing bad of him-that be could not say he ever heard hib 

character, from the North West Company, bu~ he knew no reason for 

not believing him upon his oatlJ. 

The CHIEF JUSTICE tben charged the JURY-he commenced by Ul. 

as~urance that ill endeavouring to ei;laircise such parts of tbe ~ubject as 

appeared to require it, the Cour/ had no intention ~o suggestaoy opinion 

on the facts of tlJe case, but its sole object jVould be to place botb witb 

reference to the Crown and to tbe Prisoner, those particular points 

which militate against tbe one an4 the other before the Jury, and thus 

assist them to form, but not to guide, tbeir judgment. He then ex­

plained, t/Iat as the facts were exclusivelY with the Jury, the law was 

equally so with the Court, adding, .. and, gentlemen, it is this happy 

!' union of the respective duties assigned to each, that renders the sys­

.. tem of jurisprudence, wbich we are this I)loment administering, the 

" first in the world." Tbe precise charge against tbe Prisoner, as con­

tained in tbe eighth count of the indictment, was then stated, th!l Chief 

J u.-tice remarking: " It is of no ~onsequence to enquire whether it was 

" by Mainville's hand, or not, that the man was killed, because the 

" record of (De Rei71hard's) conviction has been prQ(luued, and made a 

" piece of evidence against 1IJ'Lellan." The principles upon which 

distinctions of degree in the same crime proceeded, were illustrated and 
applied to this case in the follm!."ing mannel· :-" Having thus exhibited 
., the principle, for a moment apply it hypothetically to this case • .lIfai/!­

" ville actually killed the man, and De Reb/hard was present at the 

"time. Previously, in company with lWaifwille and De Reinhard, the 

" Prisoner, Jll'Lellan had advised, commanded, 91' even consented to 

" the murder. The application is obvious, Mainville is the principal 

" in the first degree, De Reinhard in the second, and M'Lellan would 

" be the accessary before the fact;" and the Jury cautioned against mis­

taking that by this hypothetical elucidation, he intended in the slight­

est degree to involve the Prisoner in the justice ofits application, its only 

object being to explain the principle, so that the law upon which the J u­

ry were to apply to tbe case, might be satisfactorily comprehended. Pro­

ceeding to tpe consideration of wbat constituted an accessary afler the 

fact, he declared: " It is not a mere omission to perform a duty, it is not 

.. a negligence to give information to a magistrate, so that the hue and 

.. cry can be raised after the murderel'; for su~h conduct, though reprehen­

" sible in the highest degree, amounts only to misprision of felony, an 

.. offence most undoubtedly, but not the aggravated one charged in this 

"indictment, He who is..-guilty of merely concealing a felony, is guilty 

" of a misdemeanor, which is pUllishable by fine and imprisonment, hut 
" if this is carried any farther than a culpable remissness of duty, thpr. 
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I' the offender hecomes an accessary afte,' the fact." The Chief Justi~g 

supported his definitions by referring to Mr. Jus/ice Forster, page 125, 

,and to Dalton, C. 161. S. 5. and read at considerable length from the! 

former, and al'riving at the conclusion, that .. it is a principle in law 

., which can never be controverted, that be who procureth a felony to be 

" dOM, is a felon ;" and, to point out the difference between a principal 

and a(X:essary, adding, " if present, (tbat is at tbe perpetration of the 
" olfellce) he is a pdncipal, if absent, an accessary before the fact." 

Having thlls defined what constitllted an Ilccessary before the fact, 

his Honour proposell ta examine, by reference to the testimony, how 

far the Pri~oner was guilty or innocent; intimating tbat, if the evi. 

denc_e appeared to the Jury, in the same light it did to the COllrt, thet 

woul~, perhaps, find no testimony, making him an accessary after tbe 

fact; for, sbould they believe in the existence of a conspiracy to take 

away the life of Keveny, bu~ still apprehend that only a tacit consent on 

the part of the Prisoner, or a very culpable negligence in not prevent­

ing it taking place, then (said he) .. it is my bounden duty to tell you, 

" that though such conduct amollnts to an offence, anll is punishable as 

" such, yet it does not make the Prisoner, (in the eye of the law) an 

" accessary before the fact." 'To constitute him that, he continued, "it 

.. is necessary that it be proved that he not merely did not prevent, as 

" perhaps he might have done, (I am now sp~aking merely hypolhe/i­
" cally,) the munler being committed, but that he actually consentcll' 

': ill his heart to its perpetration." The Chi,! Justice explained to the 

.1 ury, very forcibly that it was their duty to determine whether the evi­

dence proved merely" a tacit acquiescence manifested by a culpable 

" negligence, without having excited, or given his hearts consent to 

.. the murde,', or whether the crime, instead of being a mere neglect to 

" do a duty, was proceeded in from a wish for his death.'" :)Jding, if 

they adopted the opinion that M'Lelian's siltnce resultell from malice, 

a-nd from a secret wi8h in his heart for the death of Keveny, that he had 

abstained from preventing the murder, I< then, gentlemen, it is not 

" merely a negligence in not preventing the murder, but it is a criminal 

.. abstaining, the result of malice aforethought, and the law, judging 

" of offences by the quo animo wherewith they are committed, dcclare~ 

.. such a consenting to be an actual participation in the murder, and 

" that the offender is as guilty, (though absent at the commission of the 

.. crime,) as the felon who actually takes the life. It amounts to that 

•• crime which Mr. Justice Forster, in commenting on the ca~e then be-

, ~ fore him, ~ays, ,It would be n reproach to the justice of the kingdom 

" to suppose that lie is not an accessary.' " 
His Honour noticed that the same doctrine was maintained by Lord 

Hale, page 615 of his learned work, fln,l although difficult for the Jnr:-
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tv say, ~vhcn they shall determine that malice was in the heart, yet that 

it must in this case be done, as" it is the intent of the mind which con­

H stitutes the crime," ond eluc1dated the p05ition by again putting a 

c.are bypothctically. .. !ftbe conversation in tbe canoe (page SOl, et 
"req.) was beard by M'Lellan, and without malice, or ill intention 

" towards Keveny, he neglected to give information of the design, then' 

" be would be guilty of ~oncealment, but would not be an aecessary, for 

II it is the wicked design, the ill intention, wbich constitutes the crime." 

I~ WM then explained, that this was an offence (viz. misprision of mur­

der) which the law punished, and sometimes severely too, and adverting 

again to this conversation: " But, gentlemen, (said his Honour) if on 

.. tbe other hand, as commanding officer of this canoe, he Dot {Jnly 

" heard the conversation, but approving of it in his beart, he neglected, 

.. from a malicious intention, to prevent tbe crime, then, gentlemen, 

" he is guilty of wbat he is accused in the indictment. He is an acees­

" sary to the murder, and in law equally guilty, and liable to the same 
.~ punishment as the principal." The Chief Justice cautioned the Jury 

against imagining that he had any intenti.)n of supposing that tbis was 

the case of M1Lellan, observing, that in pas~ing a verdict: " It i, you 

.. (Ihe Jury) who are to say, and you only, whether it was all omissioll 

.. to perform a duty, arising from no motive of malice or ill-will to the 
U deceased, or whether he consented in his heart from malicious mo­

.. tives." Adverting to the wggestion prl'viously made by the Court, .t was observed that, if the Jury took a similar view of the eyidence, 

the charge of accessary after the fact would perhaps be laid aside (Ilio­

ge!her, but to rlecide that point, it would be necessary to ascertain cor­

rectly what in law constituted the effence. Referring to Hau'kins' Pleas 

of the Crown, established that, " the rescue of a felon from arrest," and 

.. the voluntary suffering him to escape," were that crime, and that 

some beld " those in like manner guilty who opposed the apprehending 

" a felon;" and from tbe same autbority it was shewn, that" suffering 

.. a felon to escape without arresting him on the bare concealment of ~ 

" felony, .10 not make a man an accessary.". 

Tbe Chief Jus/ice then noticed the following" very peculiar circum­

.. stances in this case"-that there 'was no magistl'acy in the Indian ter­

ritory.; the great and (as he believed) only outlet f~om that territory 

was in possession of Lord Selkirk. namely, the forcible detention of 

Fort Trilliam, was considered bostile to the interests of the North-West 

Company; and remarked: " It seems, I tlJink, that he had a know­

" ledge of the felony ha"ing been committed, and he brought'De Rein­

" hard to Lac la Plllie, whether witb an intention to bring bim to Fort 

.. William, and then to send him to Montreal, where he might have, 

" been tried, will be for you to determine, It will be for you to con-
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" sider, whether tbe situation of affairs at Fort William was silch as to 
" frU/!trate such his intention. Upon the face of the testimony, the 
II Court does lIot see any thing that brings bome the charge of accessary 

.. ofter the fact, it is solely, in our judgment, applicable to the all ega­

" tion that he was an acces~ary before the fact, and to that part of the 

.. charge the evidence is of very"serious importance." Before dismissing 

this branch of ' the inquiry, reference was again made to that part'~ 

Hawkins, wherein he discusses" what kind of receipt of a felon will make 

.. the receiver an.accessary after the fact," to enable the Jury clearly t() 

appreciate the distinction which the law makes between that crime and 

a neglige~t eoncealmeut of a felony. and Sir Edward Coke's secontl and 

third institutes were cited for the same purpose, and the consideration 

of .. how far the Prisoner had been proved an accessary after the fact," 

was thus concluded :-" In the present case, perhaps, it cannot be dis­
H puted that a knowledge of the felony has been brought home to the 

.. Prisoner, but is it that knowledge _which amounts to more than a 

•• concealment, You probably will be of opinion with the Court, that 

" nothing beyond that has been proved. It may amount to a most cul­

.. pable negligence, but is not, according to our iuea, that, aiding to 

"escape which is neces,ary, according to the authorities which I have read 

'!I to you, to constitute an indiddual an accessory afler thefacI." The Ju­
ry were again cautioned not to consider the Court as wishing to direct their 
opinions in the following term~: " But let me again remind you, that 

" it not what we say that is to regulate your opinion. Your verdict, 

"gentlemen, is to be Rlosternphatically,your own. You are that coun­

" try upon which the Prisoner has put himself for his trial. It is you, 

" who have sworn duly to try him, and make a just deliverance between 

.. our Sovereign Lord the King and himself, and to do that you must 

" fully and impartially deliv~r your own opinion, unfettered and unia­
t. Iluenced by the sentiments of any man." 

Tile question of jtlri§diclion was then examined, and reference had 

to the val'ious acts so frequently mentioned; the Court repeating as the 

unanimous opinion of the judges, that the bounda:ries of Upper Cdnada. 
were such as were laid down in De Rei1,hard's case. The evidence of 

:Messrs, Collman and BouclieUe, as to locality, ",as read and commented 

011, and taken in connection with the legal .Iecision, it was manif~st 

.. that the spot' en haut des Dalles' was beyoml the American Hne, and 

.. without the bouudaries of the province of Upper Cana,da," The more. 

particular consideration of the fllcts of the case was thus illtl'oduced­

" the locality, involving in it the question of jurisdiction, being disposed 

•• of, we proceed to the consideration of the case itself; and the Court 

" requests your most particular attention to that part of it which relates 

" to the charge against the Prisoner, of being an accessal'y beJore the 
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.. in the lad caSB. I shaH fir5t read the evidence witliout any comment 

.. whatsoever, so that you may have, clearly and distinctly, the wbolE' 

... of it belore you, and after having so done, I ~hal\ endeavour to point 

.. out certain parts which, in the judgment of the Court, make against, 

.. and also certain parts which make for, the Prisoner, and then, witb· 

,. out further observation, shall leave the whole case to your ultimate 

" decision." 
The evidence wa~ read to that part of Faille's (pag. 299) which reo 

lates the conversation with the Swan River brigade, and its difterence 

'with the testimony given by Des Loges (page 3(9) was thus pointed out 

-" He (Des Loges) represents that it was the Prisoner who made the 

.. enquiries, while Faille as fully establishes that it was some other per­

" son, though he cannot say who, becRuse he repeatedly says tbat Mr . 

.. Arohy was with them, but that he does not know whether be heard 

.. what passed, which clearly manifests that (according to his statement) 

" it was not M'Lellan who put the questions." Having reminded the 

Jury that to decide between tbe credibility of oppo~ing testitnony reBted 

with them, it being the duty of the Court merely to point out wbat sug­

gested itself as important, the Chief Justice resumed the reading of the 

evidence. Upon the directions" to burn the canoe" (page 302) and 
whether any, and what reason ,vas a~sjgneJ fo~ so doing, it ,""as re ... 

marked that his statement differed materially from -La Pointe", al­

though they agree that both were present, (page 305) whilst Miehe! 

Martin's account oppnsed tbeirs altogetber. (pag~ .325.) A ~imilar 

contradiction relative to the papers and their destruction was noticed, 

the one swearing, (page 302) the paperR were taken ont of the bolt by 

De Reinhard who put tbem into the Prisoner's tent, anotber giving 

completely a different account, (pClge S05) whilst 11fartin asserts that 

there was a fire before the bourgeois tent tbat night. (page 324.) The 

reading tbe evidence was concluded with only a reme.rk, that Martin's 

evid~nce in favor of the Prisoner, (page 324) was in strict accordance 

with one of the princip~1 witnesses for the Crown, (page 80S) that the 

eanoe being too much loaded was assigned at the time as a reason COl' 

not taking Keveny. 

The Chief Justice intimated tbat it was bis duty to place before fhe 

Jury, the particular bearings which presented themselves to the Court, 

as calculated to assist them in forming a eorrect- decision, but not with 

the most distant intention of dictating, as the verdict must be thtir free 

and unbiassed decision, and continued thus;-

The elltire case, gentlemen, resolves itself into a question of credibi­

lity, and the guilt or innocence of the Prisoner depends, upon the de­

gree of credit you attach to three witnesses, viz; Fflille, .La. Pointe an'} 
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De! Loge1. If you believe litem, that beliel' must, indisputably, lead to 
the conviction of the Prisoner. The circumstances they swear to are, 

that the Pri~oner had the entire commilnd of the party, that he was a 

partner of the N orth-West Company, and the others being clerIcs and 

tervants wel'e consequently under hill controul; and this is not contra­

tlicted by any evidence onothe part of the Prisoner. The convermtion 

in the canoe, is a circumstance sworn to by all; they agree in the main 

fact, that the conversation relative to killing Keveny, did take place in 

the hearillg of t he Prisoner, and also that he participated in it to a cer­

tain extent. The circUlllStance of bis receiving the sugar and appropri­

ating it to his own nse; his receiving the papers, examining them, keep­

ing such as he thought advisable, making away with the rest, the burn­

ing of the little canoe, lJy his own ord~rs-and, as sworn to by one of 

the- witnesses, (page 305,) for the avowed purpose of pr.eventing it be­

ing seen" by the Indians, or Canadians, who might come that way," 

&c.-though Faille says, (page .'302,) equally pmitively, that the Pri­

loner simply ordered it to be burned, but gave 110 reason whalercr for 

so doing; and it should also be remembered, that Faille ant! La Pointe 

agree that they were both present at the time when the order was giv­

en. The injunctions of the Prisoner not to speak of the affair, is related 

by the witnesses with Iittl~ Yariation, and, if credited, forms a strong 
circumstance against bim. His expressions upon reading part of Kene­
ny's papers in the canoe-his rrception of De Reinhard when he came 

without Keveny-eating, sleeping, and journeying, with him, and man­

ifesting, (accord,ing to these witnesses,) a general disposition to be friend­

ly to him as before; all these, gentlemen, are strong circum,tances a­

~ainst the Priwner at the bar: w much so that, if you credit the wit­

nesses, it is the duty of this Court, to say, that notwith,tanding these 

differences upon particular facts, you will feel oblige.i to render a ver­

dict of guilty. But, to do that, you must believe the witnesses on the 

part of the prosecution, and discredit those ill favour of the Prisoner.­

To their evidence it is now my duty to request an equal share of your 

attention, as it goes to contradict, in nlmost every particulll;r, the e~i­
denee of the principal witnesses for the Crown. And first, relative to 

Des Loges, whose testimony is so stl'ong agaimt the P,"imncl", he stated, 

if you recollect, gentlemen, that in 1816, he was in the Indian country, 

with one Colishe Ducharme, that they were in the same brigade, and 

that, going to Swan River, they mel the Prisoner, and he then went on 

to relate a conversation which he slVore took place between them. On 

the part of the l'ri~onel', this man Ducharme, is the fil"st witne~s called, 

(page SU,) and he says positively, that no such conversation did take 

place. A numbllf of questions were put to him, in which different parts 
T% 
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or the conversation related by ·De! Lpges, were embraced,. to -which Ite 
most po~itively gave a denial, contradicting in toto the whole that Poi, 

rier dit Des Loges had Sl'\'oro to, with tbe ~ingle exception of tbe fact, 

that they did meet the Prisoner in going to Swan. River. 

Between this contradictory testimony, it was (said his Honour,) for 

the Jury to decide, and the only aosistance thay could have in forming a 

just decision, was the characters of the persons who give evidence, and in 

the present instance, testimony to that was produced, giving Du~arnte. 

a most ex~el1ent character-aUlI Des Loges, one of the most infamous 

descriplion.-lf Ducharme was belie\·~d, it was stated, that Faille and 

La Poinle's testimony, being contradicted by him in many particular8, 

would pl"Obably be done away with, but it would certainly be impossi­

ble to entertain Des Loges'.-Reference was made to some of the con­

tradictions, and also to the identity of the witness Des Loges-and the 

Chief Justiee ctlntinued-that by an examination.of ,Ducharme's testi­

mony throughout, it would be found to do away the greater part of 

Faille and La Pointe's, and tbe whole of the other man's.-Hadng gone 

over the questions, &c. (page 315,) to Ducharme, his Honour repeated 

that tbis must be the effect of believing him, and proceeded :-

But, gentlemen, all the Court wi~hes, and all it will do, is to point 

out the "triking part. of the evidence to your notice, and then leave it 
to your deci.ion. It i_, however, impo",ible, if you believe Ducharme. 

that you can, for a moment, entertain Des Loges' testimony. Relative 

to the effect it will have upon the two Canadians' evidence, the Court 

CRnnot but remal·k, that they appeared to feel as if they yet recollected 

the coups de balon, by their referring to it so frequently, and it will be 

for) au to ~Ily wbether that cil'cumstance may have had any, and what, 

influence upon their te;tim,JOY, bnt th,"ir very frequent reference to the 

circum~tance proves that it has made a very strong impression upon 

their minds. Another circllm.tance, which you cannot but have no­

ticed, is tbat they neve~ recollect tbe person wllo said this, that, or the 

other, nor the plact Iybere they were at the time they relate a transac­

tion to haye occurred, though they al·e so very minute in their narra. 

tive. But, whilst on pal·ts of transactions wbich it would not be stir­

prising if .. ecollection ·railed them, they are exceedingly positive, of 

otb~rs which it would be more natural that tbey should remember, the 

particnlar5 appcRr to have eFcaped their own memory, or they swear 

that tll·'y never occurred, in which they are contradicted by otber evi­

dence. Tbere are also many parts of the story ill which they do not 
agree ,,,ith ,1ne another. 

[TlIp difference relative to the sugar, (page 302 with .'lOS,) and the 

olestruction of the pap~rs, (page 302 vnlh 305,) were strongly marked.] 

These striking differences in their testimony, will be sufficient, per-
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baps, to shake your confidence in either, if not, perhaps, to destroy tacit 

testimony altogether. The Cou .. t, however, gives no opinion upon ere­

dihility; it is your own unbill'Ssed decision, which must relugate your 

verdict, but it is our duty to notice to you equally, the favourable and 

unfavourahle parts of the testimony, and I must now ob;;erve, tha't the 

oath of lWickel Marlin goes to contradict them at almost every point. 

[The evidence of JrIarlin was then gone over, and tile contra:diction~ 

were painte(l out.} 

More contradictory evidence never came into a Court. of justice, in­

deed there is not one fact of any impOl·tance in which the evidence on 

the tWG sides is not almoHt diametrically oppo~ite, and between them 

you are to decide. There.is another point which we feel bound to no­

tice to you; the Prisoner has 5hewn that he could nQt, in that wild 

country, owing to its peculiar circumstances, bdng that evidence of his 

innocence which he wi~hcd; he also proved that he placed some reliance 

IIpon persons who were brought down Lcipg produced as witnesses on 

the part of the Crown, but who were afterwards inqicted or removed· 

f,om bim. It will bl" JOI' you to say whether this evidence does not,ex­

p!ain \\"hat before appeared to be dubious, and account; in a great ae­

gree, for his not. producing before you more po,itive testimony as to his 

conduct. There. is anotbel' circumstance which it is right I shoul<! ad­
vert to. The Crown officers, with vCI'y great propriety, shewed that 

11fT. Keveny was sent away from Bas. de la Riviere iA the custody 0[' 

five Bois·brillis, intending, 8~ was evident from the tenor of their qllcs­

tione,·that you ~houlil infer t~at Keveny was OQt treated with that kind­

ness which it was cndem'ollred to establish on the defence. To tebut 

such an imprc>sion, ltlr. Crebassa is asked, whether· at that time there 

wcre any persons excepting Bois-bruN: at Bas de Ia Riviere, and he au­

~wers t h(1t, excepting two old Canadians accustomed to work about the 

garden, there \vere not. So far that is explained completely. They 

had no right to keep him at Bas de la Riviere, they were bound to send 

him to LoU'er Canada, and the circumstance of his being put in charge 

of Bois-briiles was unavoil1able. Relative to the Prisoner following Ke­

veny, he says the reason waR because he had heard of the capture of 

Fori Trilliam, which was n(lt known at the time Ket1;)ny was sent away. 

When this information was received at Bas de la Ririere, I think he 

must have kJ.lo\\·n of J(el1eny having been tumed over to tbe two Cana­

dian lads, and the Indian Jose, though it is not in evidence that he did, 

but the circumstance of his being detained, olVing to the quarrel of these 

people, certainly conld not have been in hi~ own knowledge. The Pri­

soner's accoj1nt of meeti;]g him is, that he came upon him acci.Jentally, 

and takes him up that he might be forwRrded on to this province. 'The 

r~ason of his going in the little canoe, if you believe JrIartin, is eecause 
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overloaded, indeed the evidence on -the-part of the Crown, though it 

goes the length of saying that he might have been taken in the canoe 

of the Prisoner, yet says, that he would not have found bimself" ii 80a 

aise." 
These circumstances seem to explain those which appear UIifavoura­

ble to the Prisoner, down to the time ef his parting with Keveny the 

last time that he was seen alive. It only remains to notice the evidence 

as to the conduct of the Prisoner after the time when, I think it cannot 

be doubted but, the fallt of the murder was within his knowledge. 

Faille and La Pointe concur in representing that the Prisoner treated 

De Reinhard in every particular as before, that they eat, drank and 

slept together, as usual, and that they saw no difference. frIartin says 

certainly they did eat amI drink together, yet that he saw a difference 

in Mr. M'Lellan, and that he did not 10Qk upon him in the same light 

as he had formerly done. Some enquiry was also made as to the pos­

sibility of this sort of intercourse being avoided, which YOll will doubt­

less recollect, and give to it what weight you think proper. The COUl"~ 

gentlemen, will make no conclusions as to these very eontradictory and 

extraordinary statements. Our duty is merely to put them before yOt1; 

and this we bav~ done, on the one side and on the other, to the end that 
you may correctly apply each pr.:t of the evidence to the point of the 

case on which it bears, and when you have maturely and con.eientious­

ly considered it, in all its bearings, that you may satisractorily a~d con­

scientiously say, whether Archibald M'Le~lall, tbe Prisoner at tbe bar, 

is guilty or not guilty. 

The Jury then retired, and in about ten minute! Teturned, and deliver­

ed, by Mr. MEA SAM, a l'erdic! o/NOT GUILTY, which walformally 

ncorded. The Jury assented to the record, and the Chief Justice, having 

Ijlanked them for their intention, they were discharged. 

The Attorney.General 8tated to the Court thai he had other mailers a­

gainst Mr.frl'Lellan, and Mr. M'Lelian giving satisfactory bail, 10 aIT­

pear II} anslcer to the charge, was then liberated. 
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